
GŴYS A RHAGLEN SUMMONS AND AGENDA

ar gyfer for a

CYFARFOD O
GYNGOR SIR
YNYS MÔN

MEETING OF THE 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY COUNCIL

a gynhelir yn to be held at the

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR
SWYDDFA’R SIR

LLANGEFNI

COUNCIL CHAMBER
COUNCIL OFFICES

LLANGEFNI

DYDD MAWRTH
15 MAI 2018

TUESDAY
15 MAY 2018

am 10.30 o’r gloch at 10.30 am

Public Document Pack



 A G E N D A

Presentations - Commonwealth Games 2018

Prior to Council business, the Chairman will refer to Wales' success at the 2018 
Commonwealth Games.

1.   MINUTES  

To submit for confirmation, the draft minutes of the meeting of the County Council 
held on 28th February, 2018.

2.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To receive any declaration of interest from a Member or Officer in respect of any 
item of business.

3.  TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER 
OF THE COUNCIL OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

4.   PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  

To note that two petitions have been received in accordance with Paragraph 4.1.11 
of the Constitution.

5.   THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL'S ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2017/18  

To consider the Council Leader’s Annual Report in accordance with paragraph 
4.1.16 of the Constitution.

6.   NOTICE OF MOTION PURSUANT TO RULES 4.1.13.1 OF THE CONSTITUTION  

To receive the following Notices of Motion by Councillor Carwyn E Jones:-

(a) The Isle of Anglesey County Council considers that the Planning Act 2008 
(PA2008), together with its secondary legislation and guidance including 
National Policy Statements, is out of date and not fit for purpose in Wales. The 
PA2008 does not take account of current Welsh legislation including the Well-
being of Future Generations Act (2015) or the Active Travel (Wales) Act 
(2013).

In respect of overhead transmission lines, the Holford Rules (1959, amended 
in the 1990’s) and Horlock Rules (undated on National Grid’s website) are also 
considered to be significantly out of date and not compatible with current 
Welsh legislation. 

Welsh local authorities are bound by the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
and Active Travel (Wales) Act. In terms of nationally significant infrastructure 
projects (NSIPs), this includes consideration of how projects are mitigated, 
either by s.106 agreement or planning requirement. Some elements of NSIPs, 
such as planning requirements will also need to be discharged by local 
authorities. 



The Welsh legislation referred to above is likely to require significantly more 
mitigation than the ‘6 tests’ (see below) as it also relates to the well-being of 
future generations. 

1. Necessary
2. Relevant to planning and;
3. To the development to be permitted;
4. Enforceable; 
5. Precise and;
6. Reasonable in all other respects.

The Isle of Anglesey County Council therefore considers that the PA2008 and 
all necessary secondary legislation and guidance should be updated as a 
matter of urgency to ensure that Welsh local authorities are able to meet their 
statutory duties and to ensure that adequate mitigation is able to be delivered.  

I ask that the Council agrees to this view and that a formal letter expressing the 
above should be sent on behalf of The Isle of Anglesey County Council to Rt 
Hon. James Brokenshire MP, Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government, who has overall responsibility for the Planning Act 2008.  A 
copy of the letter will also be sent to:   

Rt Hon. Greg Clark MP (BEIS) 
Rt Hon. Alun Cairns MP
First Minister Carwyn Jones 
Lesley Griffiths AM
Albert Owen MP
Rhun Ap Iorwerth AM

(b) Background

The lack of detailed information provided thus far by the National Grid on its 
proposed North Wales connection means that the Council is not in a position to 
fully understand the full impacts of the development on Anglesey, its 
communities and its environment. For example, the Council is concerned that 
the local community around the proposed Tunnel Head building (including  
Llanfairpwll and Llandaniel Fab) has not been provided with the required 
information to be able to fully appreciate the scale of HGV and other vehicle 
movements in the area, or the proposal to close Rhonwy Bridge – despite the 
fact that the Council has requested further information. 

The Isle of Anglesey County Council notes the comments made by the 
National Grid in its Statement of Community Consultation, paragraphs 3.5-3.6, 
which places great emphasis on engaging with, and seeking the opinions of 
people who live in close proximity to the proposals and who could be affected 
by the development either permanently or temporarily during the construction 
work.

The lack of detailed information means that neither the Council, the 
stakeholders nor the affected community and residents have been able to 
come to an informed opinion on the likely effects of the development, the range 



of planning requirements or the mitigation measures required to reduce the 
effects of the plan to an acceptable level. 

Previously, National Grid senior officers attended briefing sessions for elected 
members in the Council Chamber. We now understand that they have refused 
requests to attend another formal briefing session with elected members in 
order to answer questions.

Proposal

 1. Therefore the Council requests that National Grid urgently provides the 
additional information required and holds an additional consultation cycle with 
key stakeholders and the affected community in order that each impact, 
including the cumulative effects and the detailed mitigation proposals can be 
considered before the formal submission of the application to the Planning 
Inspectorate.

2. The Council requests the Chief Executive of the National Grid to attend a 
briefing session and to update the elected members of the Isle of Anglesey 
County Council and to respond to their questions on the project.

7.   SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE FOR WYLFA NEWYDD  

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

8.   WELLBEING PLAN - PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD  

To submit a report by the Chief Executive, as presented to the Executive on 30th 
April, 2018.

9.   STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  

To submit a report by Mr Michael Wilson, Independent Chair of the Standards 
Committee.

10.   LOCAL RESOLUTION PROTOCOL  

To submit a report by the Head of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer.

11.   SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  

To submit a report by the Chairs of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee and the 
Partnership & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee.

12.   AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  

To submit a report by the Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee as 
presented to the Audit & Governance Committee on 24th April, 2018.

13.   DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  

To submit a report by the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee.



 1 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 28 February 2018 
 
 
PRESENT:   
 

Councillor Richard O Jones (Chair) 
 
Councillors R Dew, John Griffith, Richard Griffiths, Glyn Haynes, 
K P Hughes, T Ll Hughes MBE, Vaughan Hughes, Llinos Medi Huws, 
Carwyn Jones, Eric Wyn Jones, G O Jones, R Ll Jones, 
R.Meirion Jones, Alun W Mummery, Bryan Owen, R G Parry OBE 
FRAgS, Shaun James Redmond, Alun Roberts, Dafydd Roberts, 
Margaret Murley Roberts, Nicola Roberts, P S Rogers, 
Dafydd Rhys Thomas, Ieuan Williams and Robin Williams 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, 
Assistant Chief Executive (Partnerships, Community & Service 
Improvements), 
Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process 
Transformation, 
Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer, 
Head of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer, 
Head of Democratic Services, 
Committee Officer (MEH). 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  None 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillors A M Jones, Dylan Rees and J A Roberts 
 
 
 

Councillor G O Jones was elected Vice-Chair for this meeting due to an apology received 
by Vice-Chair of the County Council. 

 
1. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting of the Isle of Anglesey County Council held on 12th 
December, 2018 were confirmed.  
 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
The Strategic Leadership Team together with the Heads of Function for Resources and 
Council Business declared a prejudicial interest in item 11 – Pay Policy Statement 2018 
and were not present at the meeting during any discussion or voting thereon. 
 
Councillor Ieuan Williams declared a personal interest in Item 8 – Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and Budget 2018/19 and took part during discussion of the item and voting 
thereon following legal advice. 
 

3. TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRPERSON, LEADER OF THE 
COUNCIL OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
The Chair made the following announcements :- 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1.



 2 

• Best wishes was extended to Mr Scott Rowley, the Head of Transformation who will 
be leaving the authority and the Chair thanked him for his services to the Council; 

• Best wishes was also extended to Mrs Delyth Molyneux, the Head of Learning who 
will be leaving the authority and the Chair thanked her for her services to the 
Council.   

• Congratulations was extended to Mr Arwyn Williams who has been appointed as 
the new Head of Learning; 

• Congratulations was also extended to Mr Ned Michael who has been appointed as 
the new Head of Housing Services. 

• Congratulations was extended to three fishermen from Holyhead, James Frazer, 
Alan Hughes and Garry Wood who will represent Wales in the World Beach Fishing 
competition to be held in North Wales between 20 -27 October, 2018.  This will be 
the first time Wales has hosted this competition and fishermen from all over the 
World will attend; 

• Congratulations was extended to the over 50 Amlwch Walking Football Team who 
has been successful in a recent competition held in Chester.  The Team will  
compete in the next round of the competition in Manchester in due course.   

• The Chair extended his best wishes for a speedy recovery to Councillor J Arwel 
Roberts who has sustained an injury recently. 
 
 

The Chair wished to remind everyone to call upon their elderly and disabled neighbours 
during the extreme weather conditions over the next few days.   

 
The Chair informed the Council that the Chairman Charitable Evening is to be held on the 
20th April, 2018 at Amlwch and noted that details of the evening will be forwarded to 
Members and Guests in due course. 

 
*      *      *     *      *      * 

 
Condolences were extended to Councillor Aled Morris Jones who has lost his mother in law 
recently. 

 
Condolences were extended to Councillor Richard A Dew who has lost his father recently. 

 
Condolences were extended to any Member of the Council or staff who had suffered 
bereavement. 
 
Members and Officers stood in silent tribute as a mark of their respect and sympathy.  
 

4. QUESTIONS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO RULE 4.1.12.4 OF THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Submitted – the following question on notice by Councillor Peter Rogers to Councillor R.G. 
Parry OBE FRAgS, the Portfolio Holder for Highways, Waste and Property :- 
 
‘When the Authority is serving Notices under Section 25 of the Land Drainage Act, 1991 on 
landowners with drainage running into watercourses, is fencing of the ditches compulsory?” 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Highways, Waste and Property responded that in accordance with 
the Land Drainage Act 1991, it is not compulsory for landowners who have drainage 
running into watercourses to fence ditches. 
 

Page 2



 3 

Councillor Peter Rogers considered that the fencing of ditches need to be made 
compulsory due to flooding issues that has occurred during the extreme flooding issues at 
the end of last year. 
 

5. NOTICE OF MOTION PURSUANT TO RULE  4.1.13.1 OF THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Submitted – the following Notices of Motions by:- 
 
• Councillor Robert Llewelyn Jones 

 
“Holyhead Port is such an important economic business for us in Ynys Môn that we as 
a Council must now take a lead in trying to bring a so call SOFT BREXIT to the border 
between Wales and the Republic of Ireland.  We as a group are calling for the 
following action to be taken:- 
 
1.  For a letter to be sent to the Leader of the Dublin City Council from this Council 

stressing our desire and support for a continued free border between our two 
countries with an invitation for them to send a delegation over for us to talk, and to 
demonstrate our desire to continue to work together. 

2. For an invitation to go out to our political representatives in Westminster and Cardiff 
inviting them to visit us in order for us to know what they are doing to press the 
case for as open a border as possible between our two countries. 

 
It is only be engaging the will of the people that we can achieve a decent solution to 
this looming crisis that could have a devastating effect on the Port of Holyhead and the 
Port of Dublin.” 
 

Councillor Bryan Owen seconded the motion. 
 

Councillor Robert Ll Jones said that he and many others are concerned as the how the 
Brexit deal will have an effect on the economy of the Island.  He said that this Authority 
needs to be in contact with Dublin City Council to make sure that the traffic travelling to and 
from the Welsh Ports are able to travel freely without the need for customs checks.  He 
said that having the right approach after leaving the EU both Councils need to work 
together to stop traffic blocking the roads towards the Port of Holyhead due to customs 
procedures. He said that it is imperative that trading with Ireland continues as it is vital for 
the local economy and to secure employment for local people at the Port of the Holyhead.  
Councillor Jones asked the Council to support that a letter be sent to the Chief Executive of 
Dublin City Council requesting a meeting between both authorities to show the willingness 
to work together for a free border between both countries.  He said that local politicians 
need to keep this authority informed as to what procedures are to be put in place to 
safeguard the free flow of traffic between Holyhead and Ireland.  

 
Councillor Carwyn Jones, Portfolio Holder for Major Projects and Economic Development 
said that he agreed as to the importance of the Port of Holyhead to the economy of the 
Island and was concerned with the uncertainty and challenges that Brexit will be for the 
Port.  He said that as Portfolio Holder he has met with Captain Wyn Parry, Stena’s Head of 
Irish Sea Operations to voice concerns as to the future of the Port.   He further said that he 
has written in November 2017 to Mr David Davies MP, the Minister for Exiting the 
European Union and Mr Alun Cairns AM, the Secretary of State for Wales expressing the 
importance of the Port to the economy of Anglesey and to secure employment where 650 
people are currently employed with 80% of these posts being full time.  He said that he had 
further raised whether the appropriate infrastructure to include new border rules and 
customs checks are in place and whether appropriate space exist within the Port boundary 
to carry out such checks.  He further said that the Port at Holyhead is of an International 

Page 3



 4 

importance to Wales and the UK as it is the third busiest UK Port for short sea ferry 
passenger numbers and accompanied passenger car traffic.  The Port is the seventh 
busiest UK port for carrying goods vehicles and trailer traffic and also transports 76% of ‘ro-
ro freight’ units handled by Welsh ports.  The Port is the busiest cruise port in Wales with 
43 ships welcomed to the area.  He noted that the Secretary of State for Wales had 
responded and noted that the Prime Minister had recently outlined the intention to maintain 
the Common Travel Area (an open border area comprising the United Kingdom of Great 
Britain and Northern Ireland, Ireland, the Isle of Man and the Channel Islands).  The UK 
Government’s intention is to ensure that traffic continues to flow freely at all UK ports, with 
new custom arrangements and mechanisms being sought to maintain frictionless trade.  
Officials from the Wales Office, HM Revenue and Customs and the Department of 
Transport have met with representatives of the Border Force and Stena Line to discuss the 
practical implications of Brexit and how they could be mitigated.  A new HM Revenue and 
Customs-led ‘Welsh Ports and Airport Boarder Planning Steering Group has been 
established to consider the pressures on ports following the exit from the EU.  This could 
be an exciting time for the Island, with the possibility of the Wylfa Newydd development 
creating significant and permanent advantages.  Border control changes and practices 
should not restrict these opportunities and our vision for the Port as being of strategic 
importance to the United Kingdom following Brexit.  Councillor Carwyn Jones said that he 
fully supported the motion before the Council.   
  
Councillor Bryan Owen questioned whether an invitation is to be extended to 
representatives from Dublin City Council to meet to discuss implications as regards to 
Brexit and the effect on the Port of Holyhead.  He said that this Council needs to be 
proactive to move forward negotiations with Dublin.  The Portfolio Holder for Major Projects 
and Economic Development responded that he will invite representatives from Dublin City 
Council to meet to discuss the concerns of Brexit on the Port of Holyhead and he assured 
that he would inform the Members of this Council as to the result of these negotiations in 
due course. 

 
Councillor T Ll Hughes MBE said that he had concerns that the ships from the Port of 
Dublin, who carry passengers and containers, will travel directly to France and Belgium 
following the United Kingdom coming out of the EU.  He said it is imperative that 
negotiations take place as a matter of urgency with Dublin City Council. 

 
Councillor Shaun Redmond said that whilst he was not against the motion; it seems that 
the feelings of the Members is that only reversing the Brexit vote will resolve potential 
problems at the Port of Holyhead.   Councillor Redmond said that he was not aware as to 
what a hard or soft Brexit means and coming out of the EU needs to be able to protect 
Ports such as Holyhead. Politicians from both side of the Irish Sea and Brussels need to 
start negotiating.  The Portfolio Holder for Major Projects and Economic Development 
responded that there is a need to look positively to the future as Brexit will bring challenges 
but having the best for the Island is paramount.    
 

    In the ensuing vote it was RESOLVED that the motion be carried. 
 

• Councillor Dafydd Rhys Thomas 
 
That Anglesey County Council:- 
 
1. promotes plastic free ventures and promotes and supports such events. 
2. works towards reducing the use of disposable plastic used at its sites and schools. 
3. encourages businesses to use less disposable plastic. 
4. elects a representative on the Coastal no-plastic Group. 

 

Page 4



 5 

Councillor T Ll Hughes MBE seconded the motion.  
 
Councillor Dafydd Rhys Thomas said that the disposal of single use plastics is a dire 
issue that needs to be addressed.  He said that he became aware of the problem 
whilst walking on Trearddur Bay beach one morning and he saw a seal struggling with 
a plastic bag caught in its mouth; he said that it was a heart breaking experience to 
watch such an instance.  Councillor Thomas said that the issue of plastic in the oceans 
has been highlighted and gained media attention in recent months due to the efforts of 
Sir David Attenborough, who has exposed the dangers of waste to marine life through 
his BBC wildlife programme Blue Planet II.  He further said that attitudes on disposal of 
plastics and waste must change with the need for politicians, the public and private 
sectors to work together to reduce the use of single use plastics to improve the 
environment for the benefit of future generations.  Councillor Thomas afforded the 
Council with examples of different single use plastics together with examples of 
materials that are biodegradable such as cardboard straws and cotton buds.   He said 
that supermarkets needs to reconsider the need for such large plastic and packaging 
on their goods and fishermen need to consider when disposing fishing tackle and 
ropes into the sea.       
 
Councillor Thomas referred to a launch meeting held on the 25th February, 2018 at the 
Oystercatcher Hotel, Rhosneigr which was arranged by the Surfers Against Sewage – 
Anglesey.  The meeting was attended by both Mr Albert Owen MP and Mr Rhun ap 
Iorwerth AM and all that attended pledged to support the campaign of ‘Plastic Free 
Anglesey’.   He said that he hoped that Anglesey can be the first in Wales to be plastic 
free and there is a need to educate children within the authority’s school as regard to 
this issue of disposal of single use plastics.   
 
The Portfolio Holder for Highways, Waste and Property responded that he totally 
agreed with the campaign to reduce the use of single plastic use and said that the 
education within schools as to recycling and reducing the use of plastics is paramount.  
He noted that the Waste Section already attend school to educate the necessity of 
recycling and considered that the Officers from the Waste Section could also promote 
the reduction of plastic use and the dangers to wildlife due to these plastics.   
 
Councillor Bryan Owen said that as the Opposition Group they were fully supportive of 
the campaign of single use plastic free.  He said that the Opposition Group had 
contacted Mr Richard Walton, Environmentalist who has been in contact with the 
Highways and Waste Department which in turn has produced a bilingual logo with the 
words ‘Codwch y Plastic - Pick up the Plastic’ and a picture of a fish with a tear in it 
eye and a plastic bottle in its stomach. The Opposition Group ascertained if the 
Council would adopt this logo and for it to be placed on every Council sign on the 
Island. 
 
The Leader of the Council said that the logo produced by Mr Walton was received, in 
the first instance, in an English version only but it has now been translated into both 
languages.  As Leader she has already discussed with the Head of Highways, 
Property and Waste if this logo could be shared with local primary and secondary 
schools.  It has been confirmed and the stickers are to be placed on signs on beaches 
and any other County Council signs.  She further said that both the Portfolio Holders 
for Highways, Waste and Property and Major Project and Economic Development 
have been working closely with the Highways Department to move this campaign 
forward.   
 
Councillor Carwyn Jones said that the campaign for Anglesey Plastic Free is gaining 
momentum with people wanting to protect the environment and wildlife.  He said he 

Page 5



 6 

was concerned with retailers pushing offers on goods with outrageous single use 
plastic packaging; it is a corporate responsibility of these companies to reduce the use 
of plastic packaging.  Councillor Jones further said that the Council has a joint 
agreement with ‘Keep Tidy Wales’ and Natural Resources Wales to keep beaches 
clean in consultation with Surfers Against Sewage. 
 
The Leader proposed an amendment to the motion that Councillor Dafydd Rhys 
Thomas be nominated to the Coastal no-plastic Group.  Councillor Ieuan Williams 
seconded the proposal. 
 
In the ensuing vote it was RESOLVED that the motion be carried with an 
amendment that Councillor Dafydd Rhys Thomas be nominated to the Coastal 
no-plastic Group.  
 

• Councillor Nicola Roberts 
 

“This Council calls:- 
 

1. For the UK Government to delay the introduction of Universal Credit. 
2. For Welsh Government to insist on devolution powers to vary how Universal 

Credit is paid in Wales.” 
 

Councillor R Meirion Jones seconded the motion. 
 

Councillor Nicola Roberts said the introduction of the Universal Credit will take place 
on Anglesey in June this year.  She conveyed her dire concerns on the effect of 
financial hardship on families and individuals.  It has been reported that following the 
roll out of Universal Credit in Flintshire, people have been waiting up to 12 to 16 weeks 
for their Universal Credit to be sorted and to receive payments.  She further said that 
the system for applying for Universal Credit is complicated and the forms are 
electronic; some people do not have access to computers and internet connection and 
are having to go to their local libraries and local authority offices.  Councillor Roberts 
said that the UK Government needs to delay the introduction of Universal Credit and 
that Welsh Government should insist on devolved powers to vary as to how Universal 
Credit is paid in Wales.  She noted that the Scottish Government has had superior 
devolvement power than Welsh Government with the introduction of Universal Credit.   

 
Councillor Alun Mummery, Portfolio Holder for Housing Services responded that he 
fully supported the need the delay to introduction of Universal Credit on the Island 
which was to be implemented in April 2018, but has been move forward to June.  He 
said that a letter was sent by the Chair of the WLGA on behalf of all the local 
authorities in Wales to ask the UK Government to pause wider role out of Universal 
Credit until improvements to the roll out of the scheme and to take into consideration 
the experiences of claimants within areas which Universal Credit has been rolled out.  
A response was received in December 2017 by Mr Damian Hinds MP, Minister of 
State for the Department of Work and Pensions offering no delay in the rolling out of 
Universal Credit only listing minor amendments such as free customer service 
telephone calls.  He expressed that he considered that political procedures should be 
undertaken as regard to the second part of the motion to the Council.   

 
Councillor Mummery further said that the Housing Department has arranged a series 
of briefing hub meeting on the introduction of Universal Credit with an invitation to any 
person to attend.  The hub meetings have been well attended over the last 7 months 
with outside organisation contributing to the meetings and representatives from the 
Offices of the Member of Parliament and Assembly Member having also attended 

Page 6



 7 

these meetings so as to be able to help and support people when the introduction of 
Universal Credit takes place in June.  He said that 5,000 claimants will await to be 
transferred to the Universal Credit system and the Department of Works and Pensions 
has already rolled out the system to 526 single persons under 35 years of age. 
Councillor Mummery highlighted the resources put in place to support claimants as 
follows :- 

 
• 8 computer hubs will have been introduced at different locations on the Island; 
• ‘Bring a Tin a Month’ campaign which will support food banks with a number of 

public sector partners having signed up to the campaign; 
• Questionnaire sent out to assess computer skills which has resulted in better results 

in IT skills than expected; 
• Road Show around the Island with information as regard to Universal Credit with 

information shared with Town/Community Council in respect of these road shows; 
• Information pamphlet is to be circulated to the residents of the Island; 
• Training for 80 employees through the Child Poverty Action Group; 
•   A member of staff attends half a day a week within Job Centres providing 

information as regard to roll out of Universal Credit. 
 

Councillor Mummery said that he also has concerns as to the effect of the introduction 
of Universal Credit on vulnerable families with the possibility of children having to go 
without food.  He also said that some private landlords are still not registered in order 
to comply with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 which could see some families being 
evicted from their homes whilst awaiting for their Universal Credit to be confirmed. 

 
Councillor Nicola Roberts said that she accepted that there is an extensive platform for 
discussing devolvement of powers but questioned as to why the people of Scotland 
should have more rights than the people of Wales.  Universal Credit will be introduced 
on the Island in June which is near the schools summer holidays; it is a fact that the 
pressure on food banks is much higher during school holidays.   

 
The Leader of the Council said that as Portfolio Holder for Social Services she is also 
concerned as to the effect of the introduction of the Universal Credit on vulnerable 
families and children.  She said that she is willing as Leader of the Council to send any 
letters to delay the introduction of the Universal Credit on the Island. 

 
In the ensuing vote it was RESOLVED that the motion be carried. 

 
(Councillors K P Hughes, Shaun Redmond and Peter Rogers abstained from voting). 

 
6. PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS  

 
Councillor Alun Roberts presented a petition of around 370 signatures to the Chair of the 
County Council from the residents of Beaumaris, together with the parents, governors, staff 
and friends of Beaumaris Primary School who are opposed to the closing of Beaumaris 
Primary School. 
 
The Chair accepted the petition and said that he would forward it to the Executive as part of 
the modernisation of schools programme within the Seiriol area. 
 

7. COUNCIL TAX DISCRETIONARY RELIEF POLICY  
 
Submitted - the report of the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer as 
presented to the Executive on 19 February, 2018. 

Page 7



 8 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance said that the full Council already provides a Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme in accordance with Section 13A (1)(b) of the LGFA 1992 and the 
proposed Council Tax Discretionary Relief Policy is separate and independent of the 
Council’s Tax Reduction Scheme.  The report considered the approach that can be taken 
to provide care leavers with financial support toward their council tax liability that they may 
have, together with extending the period where the Council Tax premium does not apply 
under certain circumstances i.e. where it is a long-term empty property and structural work 
is actually on-going to render the dwelling habitable.  The report also refers to the policy for 
delegated power to the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer to deal with 
applications case by case basis.  
 
The Leader of the Council said that as Portfolio Holder for Social Services she considered 
that it was important to support young people who leave care as the Council has a 
corporate parenting statutory duty towards these young people.  The Leader seconded the 
proposal. 
 
It was RESOLVED to endorse the recommendation of the Executive :- 
 
• That the Isle of Anglesey County Council approves a Council Tax Discretionary 

Relief Policy under Section 13(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
(LGFA 1992) – as detailed within Appendix A of the report; 

• To delegate to the Executive the power to revoke, re-enact and/or amend its 
Council Tax Discretionary Relief Policy; 

• That it delegates powers to the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer 
to determine applications made under Section 13(1)(c) of the LGFA 1992 and any 
amendment or re-enactment thereof, taking account of any policy guideline 
adopted by the National Assembly/Welsh Government, the full Council or the 
Executive. 

 
8. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND BUDGET 2018/19  

 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance presented the Executive’s proposals for the 
Revenue and Capital budgets 2018/19, Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and setting the Council Tax as 8(a) to (ch) within the Agenda. He wished to thank 
the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer and his staff for their work in 
preparing the budget and the Corporate Scrutiny Committee and the Finance Scrutiny 
Panel and to all the Elected Members who had attended numerous seminars and local 
consultation meetings which have taken place with regard to the budget. 
 
He said that whilst facing new responsibilities and increase costs across the services of the 
Council the proposed increase of 4.8% in the Council Tax will assure that the Authority can 
sustain a robust budget to safeguard services from facing more severe cuts in the future. In 
common with most authorities in Wales the Council is facing increase pressures within 
Children’s Services and 0.8% increase in the Council Tax will be earmarked within the 
budget to meet increasing demand within this particular service.  The Portfolio Holder for 
Finance expressed that this Authority’s Council Tax is one of the lowest in Wales.   
 
The Leader of the Council said that she appreciated the commitment of the Members in 
achieving this proposed budget before the Council.   She said that as Leader she has been 
consulting extensively on the budget proposal.  She believed that the budget will enable the 
Council to protect services for the people of Anglesey.  The Leader wished to thank each 
Chief Officer and Heads of Service for their commitment in achieving this budget which has 
been challenging. 

Page 8



 9 

 
Councillor G O Jones said that during the initial budget proposal set out in November 2017 
he attended the consultation on the budget at Ysgol Uwchradd Bodedern.  He said that 
there was an expression of appreciation regarding the information conveyed to the young 
people who attended the session.  He appreciated that the ruling group has listened to the 
comments received by the public as regard to the budget with over 700 comments 
received.  He was pleased that the Executive has decided against cutting the education 
budget and the social services budget and that these services need to be supported.  
Councillor Jones expressed his appreciation to the Executive that there will be no increase 
in the fee for children to travel to schools/college nor cuts to the maintenance budget of 
school buildings.  He further expressed his appreciation that the Executive has not decided 
to close the kitchens of Council owned residential homes.  Councillor Jones questioned as 
to the grants received as part of the local government financial settlement as regard to 
recycling and education.  The Portfolio Holder for Highways, Waste and Property 
responded by noting that a large part of the recycling grant had transferred into the 
settlement with a significant cut being made in the remainder which the Council will now 
have to finance from the core budget. The Portfolio Holder for Education confirmed that no 
education grants had transferred into the settlement. 
 
(d) Amendment to the Budget 
 
The following amendment was received to the Budget proposed by the Anglesey 
Independents Group, of which notice has been received under Paragraph 4.3.2.2.11 of the 
Constitution as follows :- 
 
“The Anglesey Independents Group would wish to propose an increase of 3.8% in the 
Council Tax for the financial year 2018/19. 
 
0.8% of this increase to be ring fenced for the school budget; 
0.2% to be ring fenced for additional funds for children’s services. 
 
This amendment will be balanced by taking an additional £400,000 from reserves.” 
 
Councillor Bryan Owen said that whilst it is accepted that Anglesey’s Council Tax is one of 
the lowest in Wales, the Council Tax increase on Anglesey over the last 6 years has  
double the level of inflation.  The fees for schools breakfast clubs, buses to 
schools/colleges, parking and leisure centre entrance fees have also been increased over 
the years.  He said he was also concerned about local business on the high streets of the 
Island having to face yearly increases in their business rates.  He considered that the level 
of Council Tax can be achieved with an increase of 3.8% in the Council Tax.  The 
Opposition Group has also attended the consultation process as regard to the Budget and 
the majority of the residents of Anglesey wish to protect the education budget and to 
sustain the best education for their children.    Councillor Owen further said that Anglesey’s 
financial reserves are £6.5m and taking out £400k from these reserves would enable a 
decrease of 1% in the level of Council Tax increase for the residents of the Island. The 
Opposition Group’s amendment to the budget would allow 0.8% for the school budget and 
0.2% for children services.  He said that Children’s Services needs to have a period of 
consolidation after receiving substantial investment in the last two years. 
 
Councillor Bryan Owen referred to the revenue of over £900k received from the long term 
empty properties/second homes premium of 25% which was introduced from April 2017; 
only £170k has been allocated to assist first time buyers.  He said that £730k has been 
used for the general expenditure of the Council for 2017/18 but the administration process 
of the Council has overspend £1.7m within the budget.  He questioned if the increase in the 
membership of the Executive is efficient due to these overspend in the budget.   

Page 9



 10 

 
Councillor R Ll Jones seconded the amendment to the budget by the Opposition Group. 
 
The Leader of the Council responded that the reserves of the Council is for unexpected 
incidents that may occur such as the extreme weather that has occurred at the end of last 
year.  She referred to the previous budgets when homelessness was an issue of concern 
and reserves were used for this matter.  She further referred to the pressure on the 
Children’s Services of the Council with an 80% increase in children in care on Anglesey 
and as was reported to the Scrutiny Children Panel and the Corporate Scrutiny Committee.  
The Leader expressed that she wishes to protect the vulnerable people within society and 
this is becoming increasingly difficult and challenging for this Authority to set a responsible 
budget in order to make sure that it can be done in the forthcoming years.  
 
Councillor K P Hughes said that because of cuts by Welsh Government to the budget the 
Council has no options but to increase the Council Tax for residents of the Island.  Whilst 
accepting that the Council must safeguard statutory services it important that the Council is 
an effective Authority.  He questioned as to why the Authority is spending so much on 
Consultants to carry out work on behalf of the Council.  He said that many of the electorate 
are expressing that the only service they receive from the Council is to empty their bins.  
The Opposition Group has submitted an amended budget proposal to the Council which is 
feasible and to make sure that the people receive value for money from this Authority.  
Councillor Hughes further said that there has been no mention of the additional revenue of 
£250k from the smallholdings’ rental income and the long term empty homes/second 
homes premium.   
 
Councillor R Ll Jones reiterated the comments by the Members of the Opposition Group as 
regard to the amendments to the budget with a 3.8% to the Council Tax which the Head of 
Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer has accepted that it is feasible based on the 
figures shown by the Opposition Group.  He said that only 40% of the capital budget has 
been spent with millions of pounds not been spend; this money could be spent to reduce 
the increase in the Council Tax. Councillor Jones further said that income has been 
received from the smallholdings estate and levy from the long term empty homes/second 
homes premium.  The transferring of the Beaumaris Gaol to the Town Council has lost a 
revenue of £30k from the car park in the town for the next 5 years.  The precept for 
Beaumaris Town Council for the residents is £28 compared to Holyhead Town Council’s 
precept of £109. Holyhead Town Council has taken over the park in the town with no 
financial support. He further said that the Council is paying extensive sums to Consultants 
and Agency Staff to do work on behalf of the Authority.   
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance responded to the proposal by the Opposition Group to use 
the reserves to decrease the increase in the Council Tax and said that the reserves at 31 
March, 2018 will be at a level of £6.5m which is the minimum the Section 151 Officer 
recommends.  Although the budget for 2018/19 provides more funding for Children’s 
Services the Council is facing a risk of further overspend which is associated with this 
particular service and may therefore reduce general reserves even further.  The proposal 
by the Opposition Group to use reserves to reduce the increase in the Council Tax to 3.8%, 
the budget process for 2019/20 would have to start finding £400k savings on top of the 
£3m needed within that year.  He further said that Welsh Government has forecasted that a 
further 1.5% reduction is to be made to grants available to local authorities in 2019/20.  The 
local government pay offer is expected to be around 3% this year which will further put 
pressure on local authorities.    As Portfolio Holder for Finance, Councillor John Griffiths 
considered that as the budget for 2019/20 will have further pressures for savings within the 
Council and it is much better to look into the longer term and increase the Council Tax on a 
level that is sustainable and to protect the reserves on a level that is expected.    
 

Page 10



 11 

Councillor Nicola Roberts questioned that there has been a suggestion by the Opposition 
Group that an increase in the Council Tax of 3.8% is sustainable and supported by Officer’s 
within the Council and that it was feasible to use general reserves to keep the level of the 
Council Tax at £3.8% increase. The Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer 
responded that the Opposition Group had asked whether the increase of 3.8% was feasible 
within the Council’s budget rules and he had said that it was within the budget rules and 
general reserve may be used if that is the wish of the Council.  Councillor Nicola Roberts 
further questioned whether it is a risk to use general reserves or is the Council more 
sensible in sustaining the level of reserves as at present.  The Head of Function 
(Resources)/Section 151 Officer responded that his report to the Council outlines as to the 
level of general reserves that is required which amounts to £6.5m, which is 5% of the 
Council’s net budget.  However, the level of general balances may be lower than noted but 
over the medium term it is the minimum level of balances the Authority should hold as 
reserve.  The Officer gave the main examples of unexpected pressures on the Council’s 
budget with overspend in Children’s Services and Education Service together with the 
damage sustained during the recent extreme flooding on the Island in November of last 
year.  The Council needs to have a contingency plan in place to make sure that the 
Authority can operate efficiently within the resources available and to be able to afford 
services for the benefit of the people of Anglesey.   
 
Councillor Shaun Redmond said that whilst this Council’s vision is to run the Authority as a 
business, it is unfortunate that no competition from another source is afforded for services 
provided by the Council.  If local authorities are to run their Council’s as a business a 
private business would look upon its internal costs and not increase the costs to their 
customers.  The Local Government Pension bill of this authority is immense and the 
Authority has to continue contributing to the pension fund; private business are now closing 
entrance to pension funds for new employees.  He considered that this Authority should 
follow such a system as the private sector.  He further said that a review is required as to  
the number of Classroom Assistants the Authority employs.  Councillor Redmond said that 
as an elected member in the Holyhead area the residents he represents are concerned as 
to the continued increase in Council Tax for the services they receive.   He asked as to why 
the Authority is not challenging central government as regard to continued cuts in local 
government settlements and expecting rate payers to face yearly increases in their Council 
Tax.  Councillor Redmond said that the 700 responders to the consultation on the budget 
this year have expressed their wishes to protect the education budget; there had been no 
mention on the Children’s Services budget.  He reiterated his fellow Opposition Groups 
comments as regard to the Beaumaris Gaol and Courthouse being transferred to the 
Beaumaris Town Council which has the lowest precept within the whole authority area.  
Holyhead Town Council have also taken over services and building by this Authority but 
they are having to increase the precept to the residents of Holyhead by £114.  He said that 
a number of shops in Holyhead are now occupied but their business rates are free for the 
first twelve months and thereafter they will move to another unoccupied premises when 
they again will not have to pay business rate for another year.   
 
Councillor Robin Williams said that he wished to respond to the comments made by his 
fellow Councillor as regard to the local government pension scheme and questioned as to 
how he considered that this Authority could cease to pay into a national local government 
pension scheme and withdraw such benefits to the workforce.  He further said that he was 
not comfortable in having to vote to increase the Council Tax levy but he gave an example 
that when a child is place in acute care, the cost to the Authority is £250k. Having two 
children place in care would equate to more than the £400k the Opposition Group is 
proposing to come from reserves would disappear.   
 
Councillor Peter Rogers said that this authority has a vast amount of assets and needs to 
be generating income from these facilities.  He said that vulnerable people and the rate 

Page 11



 12 

payers of Anglesey need to be protected from continued increase in the Council Tax; the 
roll out of the Universal Credit system will also have an effect on these people.  He referred 
to the extreme flooding that occurred on the Island at the end of the year and the burden it 
has been on people having to pay for the damage to their homes.    
 
The Leader of the Opposition reiterated the Group’s amendment to the budget with taking 
£400k from the financial reserves of the Council to bring the proposed Council Tax 
increase 3.8%.  He said that if the proposal by the ruling Group of 4.8% increase in the 
Council Tax is to be implemented it could equate to shops on the local high streets of the 
Island having to close and families struggling to pay for basic essentials.  Councillor Bryan 
Owen proposed the amendment to the budget as noted.  Councillor R Ll Jones seconded 
the proposal. 
 
The Leader of the Council said that many of the services within the Council face increasing 
demand at a time when there are less resources, none more than our Social Services 
which cares for the most vulnerable in society.    
 
The Portfolio Holder for Finance proposed the budget to the Council and the 
recommendations contained within the reports.  The Leader seconded the proposal. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 4.1.18.4 of the Constitution the Opposition Group requested 
that a recorded vote be taken on the proposed motion.  The required number of members 
requesting a recorded vote was not reached. 
 
In the ensuing vote, it was RESOLVED :-   
 
• To accept the budget proposals and Treasury Management Strategy as 

presented for 2017/18; 
 

• To accept the draft Council Tax Resolution as (ch) in the Agenda :- 
 

(a) Pursuant to the recommendations of the Executive, to adopt the Medium Term 
Financial Plan at Section 12 Medium Term Financial Plan and 2018/19 Budget at 
Section 13, as a Budget Strategy within the meaning given by the Constitution, and 
to affirm that it becomes part of the budget framework with the exception of figures 
described as current. 

(b) Pursuant to the recommendations of the Executive, to adopt a revenue budget for 
2018/19 as shown at Appendix 4 Medium Term Financial Plan and 2018/19 Budget. 

(c)  Pursuant to the recommendations of the Executive, to adopt a capital budget as 
shown in the Capital Budget 2018/19 report. 

 
(ch)  To delegate to the Head of Function (Resources) the power to make adjustments 

between headings in Appendix 4 Medium Term Financial Plan and 2018/19 Budget 
in order to give effect to the Council’s decisions.  

 
(d) To delegate to the Executive Committee, for the financial year 2018/19, the powers 

to transfer budgets between headings as follows:- 
 

(i) unlimited powers to spend each budget heading in Appendix 4 Medium Term 
Financial Plan and 2018/19 Budget against the name of each service, on the 
service to which it relates;  

Page 12



 13 

(ii)  powers to approve the use of service and earmarked reserves to fund one-off 
spending proposals that contribute to the delivery of the Council’s objectives 
and improve services; 
 

(iii)  powers to vire from new or increased sources of income. 
 

(dd) To delegate to the Executive Committee, in respect of the financial year 2018/19 
and on the advice of the Head of Function (Resources), the power to release up to 
£500k from general balances to deal with priorities arising during the year. 

 
(e)  To delegate to the Executive Committee, in respect of the period to 31 March 

2019, the following powers:- 
 

(i)  powers to make new commitments from future years’ revenue budgets up to 
the amount identified under New Priorities in the Medium Term Financial Plan; 
 

(ii)  the power and the duty to make plans for achievement of revenue budget 
savings implied by the Medium Term Financial Plan; 
 

(iii)  powers to transfer budgets between capital projects in the Capital Budget 
2018/19 report and to commit resources in following years and consistent with 
the budget framework. 
 

(f)  To set and approve the prudential and treasury indicators which are estimates and 
limits for 2018/19 and onwards as shown in the report on Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement 2018/19. 

 
(ff)   To approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2018/19.  

 
(g)   To confirm that items 1(b) to (ff) become part of the budget framework. 

 
2.  RESOLVED to adopt and affirm for the purposes of the financial year 2018/19 the 

decision of the County Council on 10 March 1998 to set the discount level applicable 
to the prescribed Class A and prescribed Class B of dwellings under Section 12 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended), as described by the Council 
Tax (Prescribed Classes of Dwellings) (Wales) Regulations 1998, as follows:- 

  
 Prescribed Class A  Nil Discount 
 Prescribed Class B Nil Discount 

 
3. RESOLVED to adopt and affirm for the purposes of the financial year 2018/19 the 

decision of the County Council on 6 March 2007 to set the discount level applicable 
to the prescribed Class C of dwellings under Section 12 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 (as amended), as described by the Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Tax Base) and Council Tax (Prescribed Classes of Dwellings) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2004, as follows:- 

 
 Prescribed Class C Nil Discount  
 
4.    RESOLVED to adopt and affirm for the purposes of the financial year 2018/19 the 

decision of the County Council on 10 March 2016 to disapply any discount(s) granted 
to long-term empty dwellings and dwellings occupied periodically (usually known as 
second homes) and apply a higher amount of Council Tax (called a Council Tax 
Premium) of 25% of the standard rate of Council Tax for both long-term empty 
dwellings and for dwellings occupied periodically (usually known as second homes) 

Page 13



 14 

under Sections 12A and 12B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as inserted 
by Section 139 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.  

 
5. That it be noted that at its meeting on 28 February 1996 the Council resolved not to 

treat any expenses incurred by the Council in part of its area or in meeting any levy or 
special levy as special expenses and that the resolutions remain in force until 
expressly rescinded. 

 
6. That it is noted that a resolution of the Executive on 27 November 2017 approved the 

amount calculated by the Isle of Anglesey County Council for its council tax base for 
2018/19 and to further note that the full Council in its meeting on the 12 December 
2017 approved that the local Council Tax Reduction Scheme will continue unchanged 
for 2018/19.  It is also noted that the full Council on 28 February 2018 adopted and 
approved a local Council Tax Discretionary Policy under Section 13A of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. 

 
7. At its meeting on 27 November 2017, the Executive, in accordance with the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 and the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base)(Wales) Regulations 1995 (SI19956/2561) as amended by SI1999/2935 and 
the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) and Council Tax (Prescribed 
Classes of Dwellings)(Wales) Amendment) Regulations 2004 and the Local Authority 
(Calculation of Taxbase)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2016, resolved to approve 
the amounts calculated by the Isle of Anglesey County Council as its tax base and for 
the parts of the area, for the year 2018/19, as follows:- 

 
a) 30,773.31 being the amount approved by the Executive as the Isle of Anglesey 

County Council’s council tax base for the year. 
 
b)      The parts of the Council’s area, being the amounts calculated by the Executive 

as the amounts of the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s council tax base for 
the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more special 
items relate, are as follows:- 

 

 Amlwch 1,474.10 
 Beaumaris 1,061.76 
 Holyhead 3,847.36 
 Llangefni 1,920.50 
 Menai Bridge 1,406.50 
 Llanddaniel-fab 367.43 
 Llanddona 373.78 
 Cwm Cadnant 1,163.31 
 Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll 1,300.75 
 Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog 683.71 
 Bodorgan 451.48 
 Llangoed 650.28 
 Llangristiolus & Cerrig Ceinwen  607.78 
 Llanidan 410.02 
 Rhosyr 989.60 
 Penmynydd 238.97 
 Pentraeth 555.87 
 Moelfre 617.45 
 Llanbadrig 660.71 
 Llanddyfnan 499.45 
 Llaneilian 553.29 
 Llannerch-y-medd 521.77 
 Llaneugrad 180.08 

Page 14



 15 

 Llanfair Mathafarn Eithaf 1,802.82 
 Cylch y Garn 396.33 
 Mechell 538.24 
 Rhos-y-bol 474.13 
 Aberffraw 292.45 
 Bodedern 426.29 
 Bodffordd 417.41 
 Trearddur 1,274.47 
 Tref Alaw 251.64 
 Llanfachraeth 222.77 
 Llanfaelog 1,259.89 
 Llanfaethlu 284.08 
 Llanfair-yn-Neubwll 557.91 
 Valley 976.38 
 Bryngwran 353.35 
 Rhoscolyn 355.61 
 Trewalchmai 353.59 

 
8. That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2018/19, in 

accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992:- 
 

a) £193,604,572  being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 32(2)(a) to (d) of the 
Act. 

 
b)   £61,398,373 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 32(3)(a) and (c) of 
the Act. 

 
c) £132,206,199 being the amount by which the aggregate at 8(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 8(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 32(4) of the Act, as its 
budget requirement for the year. 

 
ch)   £95,811,837 being the aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates 

will be payable for the year into its Council Fund in respect of 
redistributed non-domestic rates, revenue support grant and 
specific grant, reduced by any amount calculated in 
accordance with Section 33(3) of the Act. 

 
d)       £1,182.66 being the amount at 8(c) above less the amount at 8(ch) 

above, all divided by the amount at 7(a) above, calculated by 
the Executive, in accordance with Section 33(1) of the Act, as 
the basic amount of its council tax for the year. 

 
dd)      £1,306,243 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in 

Section 34(1) of the Act. 
 
e)        £1,140.21 being the amount at 8(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 8(dd) above by the amount at 7(a) 
above, calculated by the Executive, in accordance with 
Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its council tax 
for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
special item relates. 

 

Page 15



 16 

          f) Part of the Council's area D 
 Amlwch £ 1,202.67 
 Beaumaris £ 1,166.94 
 Holyhead £ 1,255.05 
 Llangefni £ 1,213.20 
 Menai Bridge £ 1,204.29 
 Llanddaniel-fab £ 1,162.26 
 Llanddona £ 1,155.33 
 Cwm Cadnant £ 1,167.21 
 Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll £ 1,172.43 
 Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog £ 1,165.41 
 Bodorgan £ 1,159.20 
 Llangoed £ 1,156.50 
 Llangristiolus & Cerrig Ceinwen £ 1,153.35 
 Llanidan £ 1,162.17 
 Rhosyr £ 1,166.85 
 Penmynydd £ 1,166.31 
 Pentraeth £ 1,168.92 
 Moelfre £ 1,159.20 
 Llanbadrig £ 1,179.54 
 Llanddyfnan £ 1,153.98 
 Llaneilian £ 1,161.81 
 Llannerch-y-medd £ 1,164.60 
 Llaneugrad     £ 1,162.35 
 Llanfair Mathafarn Eithaf £ 1,168.83 
 Cylch y Garn £ 1,156.86 
 Mechell £ 1,156.41 
 Rhos-y-bol £ 1,155.96 
 Aberffraw £ 1,165.86 
 Bodedern £ 1,163.61 
 Bodffordd        £ 1,160.37 
 Trearddur £ 1,165.59 
 Tref Alaw £ 1,164.51 
 Llanfachraeth £ 1,167.48 
 Llanfaelog £ 1,167.57 
 Llanfaethlu £ 1,160.37 
 Llanfair-yn-Neubwll £ 1,162.62 
 Valley £ 1,173.78 
 Bryngwran £ 1,168.20 
 Rhoscolyn £ 1,150.02 
 Trewalchmai £ 1,158.57 

 
 being the amount given by adding to the amount at 8(e) above, the amounts of the 

special item or items relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council's area mentioned 
above divided in each case by the amount at 8(b) above, calculated by the Executive in 
accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its council tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more special items relate. 

Page 16



 17 

   

 

 

   
 
 

Valuation Bands 

   

          ff) Part of the Council's Area  A B C D E F G H I 
 Amlwch £ 801.78 935.41 1,069.04 1,202.67 1,469.93 1,737.19 2,004.45 2,405.34 2,806.23 
 Beaumaris £ 777.96 907.62 1,037.28 1,166.94 1,426.26 1,685.58 1,944.90 2,333.88 2,722.86 
 Holyhead £ 836.70 976.15 1,115.60 1,255.05 1,533.95 1,812.85 2,091.75 2,510.10 2,928.45 
 Llangefni £ 808.80 943.60 1,078.40 1,213.20 1,482.80 1,752.40 2,022.00 2,426.40 2,830.80 
 Menai Bridge £ 802.86 936.67 1,070.48 1,204.29 1,471.91 1,739.53 2,007.15 2,408.58 2,810.01 
 Llanddaniel-fab £ 774.84 903.98 1,033.12 1,162.26 1,420.54 1,678.82 1,937.10 2,324.52 2,711.94 
 Llanddona £ 770.22 898.59 1,026.96 1,155.33 1,412.07 1,668.81 1,925.55 2,310.66 2,695.77 
 Cwm Cadnant £ 778.14 907.83 1,037.52 1,167.21 1,426.59 1,685.97 1,945.35 2,334.42 2,723.49 
 Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll £ 781.62 911.89 1,042.16 1,172.43 1,432.97 1,693.51 1,954.05 2,344.86 2,735.67 
 Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog £ 776.94 906.43 1,035.92 1,165.41 1,424.39 1,683.37 1,942.35 2,330.82 2,719.29 
 Bodorgan £ 772.80 901.60 1,030.40 1,159.20 1,416.80 1,674.40 1,932.00 2,318.40 2,704.80 
 Llangoed £ 771.00 899.50 1,028.00 1,156.50 1,413.50 1,670.50 1,927.50 2,313.00 2,698.50 
 Llangristiolus & Cerrig 

 
£ 768.90 897.05 1,025.20 1,153.35 1,409.65 1,665.95 1,922.25 2,306.70 2,691.15 

 Llanidan £ 774.78 
 
 

903.91 1,033.04 1,162.17 1,420.43 1,678.69 1,936.95 2,324.34 2,711.73 
 Rhosyr £ 777.90 907.55 1,037.20 1,166.85 1,426.15 1,685.45 1,944.75 2,333.70 2,722.65 
 Penmynydd £ 777.54 907.13 1,036.72 1,166.31 1,425.49 1,684.67 1,943.85 2,332.62 2,721.39 
 Pentraeth £ 779.28 909.16 1,039.04 1,168.92 1,428.68 1,688.44 1,948.20 2,337.84 2,727.48 
 Moelfre £ 772.80 901.60 1,030.40 1,159.20 1,416.80 1,674.40 1,932.00 2,318.40 2,704.80 
 Llanbadrig £ 786.36 917.42 1,048.48 1,179.54 1,441.66 1,703.78 1,965.90 2,359.08 2,752.26 
 Llanddyfnan £ 769.32 897.54 1,025.76 1,153.98 1,410.42 1,666.86 1,923.30 2,307.96 2,692.62 
 Llaneilian £ 774.54 903.63 1,032.72 1,161.81 1,419.99 1,678.17 1,936.35 2,323.62 2,710.89 
 Llannerch-y-medd £ 776.40 905.80 1,035.20 1,164.60 1,423.40 1,682.20 1,941.00 2,329.20 2,717.40 
 Llaneugrad £ 774.90 904.05 1,033.20 1,162.35 1,420.65 1,678.95 1,937.25 2,324.70 2,712.15 
 Llanfair Mathafarn Eithaf £ 779.22 909.09 1,038.96 1,168.83 1,428.57 1,688.31 1,948.05 2,337.66 2,727.27 
 Cylch y Garn £ 771.24 899.78 1,028.32 1,156.86 1,413.94 1,671.02 1,928.10 2,313.72 2,699.34 
 Mechell £ 771.12 899.64 1,028.16 1,156.68 1,413.72 1,670.76 1,927.80 2,313.36 2,698.92 
 Rhos-y-bol £ 770.64 899.08 1,027.52 1,155.96 1,412.84 1,669.72 1,926.60 2,311.92 2,697.24 
 Aberffraw £ 777.24 906.78 1,036.32 1,165.86 1,424.94 1,684.02 1,943.10 2,331.72 2,720.34 
 Bodedern £ 775.74 905.03 1,034.32 1,163.61 1,422.19 1,680.77 1,939.35 2,327.22 2,715.09 
 Bodffordd £ 773.58 902.51 1,031.44 1,160.37 1,418.23 1,676.09 1,933.95 2,320.74 2,707.53 
 Trearddur £ 777.06 906.57 1,036.08 1,165.59 1,424.61 1,683.63 1,942.65 2,331.18 2,719.71 
 Tref Alaw £ 776.34 905.73 1,035.12 1,164.51 1,423.29 1,682.07 1,940.85 2,329.02 2,717.19 
 Llanfachraeth £ 778.32 908.04 1,037.76 1,167.48 1,426.92 1,686.36 1,945.80 2,334.96 2,724.12 
 Llanfaelog £ 778.38 908.11 1,037.84 1,167.57 1,427.03 1,686.49 1,945.95 2,335.14 2,724.33 
 Llanfaethlu £ 773.58 902.51 1,031.44 1,160.37 1,418.23 1,676.09 1,933.95 2,320.74 2,707.53 
 Llanfair-yn-Neubwll £ 775.08 904.26 1,033.44 1,162.62 1,420.98 1,679.34 1,937.70 2,325.24 2,712.78 
 Valley £ 782.52 912.94 1,043.36 1,173.78 1,434.62 1,695.46 1,956.30 2,347.56 2,738.82 
 Bryngwran £ 778.80 908.60 1,038.40 1,168.20 1,427.80 1,687.40 1,947.00 2,336.40 2,725.80 
 Rhoscolyn £ 766.68 894.46 1,022.24 1,150.02 1,405.58 1,661.14 1,916.70 2,300.04 2,683.38 
 Trewalchmai £ 772.38 901.11 1,029.84 

 
1,158.57 1,416.03 1,673.49 1,930.95 2,317.14 2,703.33 

 
 being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 8(e) and 8(f) above by the number 

which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a 
particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to 
dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Executive, in accordance with Section 
36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of 
categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands. 

 

Page 17



 18 

9. That it be noted that, for the year 2018/19, the Police and Crime Commissioner North Wales 
has stated the following amounts in a precept issued to the Council, in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of 
dwellings shown below:- 

   
 Precepting Authority                                                           Valuation Bands 

    A B C D E F G H I 
Police and Crime Commissioner 
North Wales £ 172.08 200.76 229.44 258.12 315.48 372.84 430.20 516.24 602.28 

 
10. That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 8(ff) and 9 above, the 

Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby 
sets the following amounts as the amounts of council tax for the year 2018/19 for each of the 
categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 
    Valuation Bands    

Part of the Council's Area A B C D E F G H I 
Amlwch £ 973.86 1,136.17 1,298.48 1,460.79 1,785.41 2,110.03 2,434.65 2,921.58 3,408.51 
Beaumaris £ 950.04 1,108.38 1,266.72 1,425.06 1,741.74 2,058.42 2,375.10 2,850.12 3,325.14 
Holyhead £ 1,008.78 1,176.91 1,345.04 1,513.17 1,849.43 2,185.69 2,521.95 3,026.34 3,530.73 
Llangefni £ 980.88 1,144.36 1,307.84 1,471.32 1,798.28 2,125.24 2,452.20 2,942.64 3,433.08 
Menai Bridge £ 974.94 1,137.43 1,299.92 1,462.41 1,787.39 2,112.37 2,437.35 2,924.82 3,412.29 
Llanddaniel-fab £ 946.92 1,104.74 1,262.56 1,420.38 1,736.02 2,051.66 2,367.30 2,840.76 3,314.22 
Llanddona £ 942.30 1,099.35 1,256.40 1,413.45 1,727.55 2,041.65 2,355.75 2,826.90 3,298.05 
Cwm Cadnant £ 950.22 1,108.59 1,266.96 1,425.33 1,742.07 2,058.81 2,375.55 2,850.66 3,325.77 
Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll £ 953.70 1,112.65 1,271.60 1,430.55 1,748.45 2,066.35 2,384.25 2,861.10 3,337.95 
Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog £ 949.02 1,107.19 1,265.36 1,423.53 1,739.87 2,056.21 2,372.55 2,847.06 3,321.57 
Bodorgan £ 944.88  1,102.36 1,259.84 1,417.32 1,732.28 2,047.24 2,362.20 2,834.64 3,307.08 
Llangoed £ 943.08 1,100.26 1,257.44 1,414.62 1,728.98 2,043.34 2,357.70 2,829.24 3,300.78 
Llangristiolus & Cerrig 

 
£ 940.98 1,097.81 1,254.64 1,411.47 1,725.13 2,038.79 2,352.45 2,822.94 3,293.43 

Llanidan £ 946.86 1,104.67 1,262.48 1,420.29 1,735.91 2,051.53 2,367.15 2,840.58 3,314.01 
Rhosyr £ 949.98 1,108.31 1,266.64 1,424.97 1,741.63 2,058.29 2,374.95 2,849.94 3,324.93 
Penmynydd £ 949.62 1,107.89 1,266.16 1,424.43 1,740.97 2,057.51 2,374.05 2,848.86 3,323.67 
Pentraeth £ 951.36 1,109.92 1,268.48 1,427.04 1,744.16 2,061.28 2,378.40 2,854.08 3,329.76 
Moelfre £ 944.88 1,102.36 1,259.84 1,417.32 1,732.28 2,047.24 2,362.20 2,834.64 3,307.08 
Llanbadrig £ 958.44 1,118.18 1,277.92 1,437.66 1,757.14 2,076.62 2,396.10 2,875.32 3,354.54 
Llanddyfnan £ 941.40 1,098.30 1,255.20 1,412.10 1,725.90 2,039.70 2,353.50 2,824.20 3,294.90 
Llaneilian £ 946.62 1,104.39 1,262.16 1,419.93 1,735.47 2,051.01 2,366.55 2,839.86 3,313.17 
Llannerch-y-medd £ 948.48 1,106.56 1,264.64 1,422.72 1,738.88 2,055.04 2,371.20 2,845.44 3,319.68 
Llaneugrad £ 946.98 1,104.81 1,262.64 1,420.47 1,736.13 2,051.79 2,367.45 2,840.94 3,314.43 
Llanfair Mathafarn Eithaf £ 951.30 1,109.85 1,268.40 1,426.95 1,744.05 2,061.15 2,378.25 2,853.90 3,329.55 
Cylch y Garn £ 943.32 1,100.54 1,257.76 1,414.98 1,729.42 2,043.86 2,358.30 2,829.96 3,301.62 
Mechell £ 943.20 1,100.40 1,257.60 1,414.80 1,729.20 2,043.60 2,358.00 2,829.60 3,301.20 
Rhos-y-bol £ 942.72 1,099.84 1,256.96 1,414.08 1,728.32 2,042.56 2,356.80 2,828.16 3,299.52 
Aberffraw £ 949.32 1,107.54 1,265.76 1,423.98 1,740.42 2,056.86 2,373.30 2,847.96 3,322.62 
Bodedern £ 947.82 1,105.79 1,263.76 1,421.73 1,737.67 2,053.61 2,369.55 2,843.46 3,317.37 
Bodffordd £ 945.66 1,103.27 1,260.88 1,418.49 1,733.71 2,048.93 2,364.15 2,836.98 3,309.81 
Trearddur £ 949.14 1,107.33 1,265.52 1,423.71 1,740.09 2,056.47 2,372.85 2,847.42 3,321.99 
Tref Alaw £ 948.42 1,106.49 1,264.56 1,422.63 1,738.77 2,054.91 2,371.05 2,845.26 3,319.47 
Llanfachraeth £ 950.40 1,108.80 1,267.20 1,425.60 1,742.40 2,059.20 2,376.00 2,851.20 3,326.40 
Llanfaelog £ 950.46 1,108.87 1,267.28 1,425.69 1,742.51 2,059.33 2,376.15 2,851.38 3,326.61 
Llanfaethlu £ 945.66 1,103.27 1,260.88 1,418.49 1,733.71 2,048.93 2,364.15 2,836.98 3,309.81 
Llanfair-yn-Neubwll £ 947.16 1,105.02 1,262.88 1,420.74 1,736.46 2,052.18 2,367.90 2,841.48 3,315.06 
Valley £ 954.60 1,113.70 1,272.80 1,431.90 1,750.10 2,068.30 2,386.50 2,863.80 3,341.10 
Bryngwran £ 950.88 1,109.36 1,267.84 1,426.32 1,743.28 2,060.24 2,377.20 2,852.64 3,328.08 

Page 18



 19 

    Valuation Bands    

Part of the Council's Area A B C D E F G H I 
Rhoscolyn £ 938.76 1,095.22 1,251.68 1,408.14 1,721.06 2,033.98 2,346.90 2,816.28 3,285.66 
Trewalchmai £ 944.46 1,101.87 1,259.28 1,416.69 1,731.51 2,046.33 2,361.15 2,833.38 3,305.61   

 

 
(Councillor Glyn Haynes abstained from voting). 
 

9. TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW 2017/18  
 
The report of the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer incorporating a review of the 
mid-year position in respect of the treasury management activity was presented for the Council’s 
acceptance.   
 
It was RESOLVED to accept the Treasury Management Mid-Year Review Report 2017/18. 
 

10. AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION - DELEGATION TO THE HEAD OF SERVICE 
(HOUSING)  
 
The report of the Head of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer with an amendment to the 
Council’s Constitution was presented to the Council by the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services reported that the Executive at its meeting held on 29th 
January, 2018 approved the proposed amendments to the Constitution at Enclosure B to the report 
and to commend the changes to the full Council. 
 
It was RESOLVED to authorise the Head of Function (Council Business)/ Monitoring Officer 
to make and publish the amendments to the Council’s Constitution as noted within 
Enclosure B to the report. 
 

11. PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2018  
 
The report of the Head of Profession – Human Resources was presented to the Council by the 
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services in relation to the above. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services said that the Localism Act 2011 requires authorities to 
produce and publish a pay policy on all aspects of Chief Officer Remuneration.   
 
It was RESOLVED to endorse the Pay Policy Statement for 2018/19. 
 

12. TIMING OF COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
Submitted – the report of the Head of Democratic Services as regard to the Timing of Council 
meetings as presented to the Democratic Services Committee on 13th December, 2017. 
 
It was noted that in accordance with the statutory guidance issued by the Welsh Government under 
Section 6(1) of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011, the Council is required to review and 
survey Members at least once every term on the timing of meetings. 

 
 The Chair of the Democratic Services Committee said that following consultation with Group 

Leaders on 26th October, 2017, a survey was sent to all Member to obtain their views.  Options 
included starting meetings at 10.00 am; 2.00 pm; 4.00 pm and 6.00 pm.  13 responses had been 
received (43%).  Members of the Committee discussed the options available, and agreed to adhere 
to the present arrangement with both Scrutiny Committees commencing at 2.00 pm and that no 
changes to the timing of Council meetings. 

 
 It was RESOLVED to adhere to the current arrangements as to the timing of Council 

meetings. 
 

Page 19



 20 

 
 
 
 
 The meeting concluded at 4.40 p.m. 
 

 
 COUNCILLOR RICHARD O JONES 
 CHAIR 

Page 20



  
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

  

MEETING: County Council 

DATE: 05/15/18 

TITLE OF REPORT: Leader’s Annual Report  

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To report on work undertaken during  2017-18   

REPORT BY: Leader of the Council 

 

 
 

 Foreword  

It's hard to believe that a year has elapsed since I was elected Leader of the Isle of 

Anglesey Council. I want to provide an annual report that highlights the progress we 

have achieved against the Coalition’s Manifesto. 

The Group stated - 

In the 2013 election, Plaid Cymru candidates pledged to the people of Anglesey that 

they wanted 'To restore Anglesey’s good name'. Plaid Cymru Councillors and the 

Independent Councillors have worked together effectively over the last four years and 

want to build on this success.   

 

Political maturity has evolved over the last 4 years and will give the Isle of Anglesey 

County Council a solid foundation for the next phase. The members that have come 

together have proved that they have the ability to provide the political stability that is 

essential in order ensure effective governance.   

What have we done? 

We have continued to work in the same way as the previous Council and have 

retained all protocols in order to ensure a fair opportunity for all councillors. 

 

The Wylfa Newydd development has positive aspects with regard to our youth and the 

future of the families on Anglesey, with up to 800 permanent jobs. But we do not accept 

this development at any cost. We want to protect the interests of Anglesey and ensure 

that the developers can mitigate any side effects on our communities as a result of the 

development.  We aim to have strong and prosperous communities. 

What have we done? 

We have created an additional Portfolio in order to ensure the necessary capacity 

to maximize the benefits for the people of Anglesey in the negotiations with 

Horizon. We are committed to promoting the development on the understanding 

that the needs of Anglesey are essential to the success of the project. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.



We are in discussions with the Town and community councils on our Place 

Shaping strategy that provides everyone in their communities with an opportunity 

to come together to discuss their vision for their areas.  

 

We face significant cuts to the authority's budget and maintaining services is 

challenging. We will drive the transformation agenda forward in order to protect our front 

line services. 

What have we done? 

We have agreed on the 18/19 budget and it continues to protect our services 

although we have received a further cut as a Council. We remain in the lowest 

quartile throughout Wales in terms of Council Tax. 17/18 has been very 

challenging for the Children’s Services and the Education Services who have 

overspent and the overspend will have to be funded from the reserves. 

We continued to drive service transformation and the Information Technology 

Department have facilitated a major change in the Planning Department meaning 

that all applications are available for the people of Anglesey to view on-line. We 

are still working on improving our customer service by introducing more ways to 

request on-line services. 

Education 

 

I'm sure you will remember that we as a Coalition are of the firm belief that every child 

and young person in Anglesey deserves the best opportunity to achieve their full 

potential - 

 

* We want to continue to invest in new schools to ensure the best facilities to educate 

our children. 

What have we done? 

We have received confirmation from the Welsh Government that our bid for band 

B funding has been accepted, which provides us with an exciting opportunity to 

develop new schools and new models of teaching here in Anglesey over the next 

few years. We have decided on the teaching model for the Corn Hir, Bodffordd 

and Henblas area. The coalition will promote modernization for the benefit of the 

education of Anglesey's children and will work on an Education Strategy that will 

give the children of Anglesey equal opportunities. 

 

* We will support Teachers and Headteachers in order to ensure the best standards for 

Anglesey’s children. 

What have we done? 

Page 22



We have agreed on a plan to train our own middle managers and a very 

enthusiastic group of teachers are taking advantage of this. We have promoted 

teachers to take on NPQH training, and this year we have the largest number for 

years taking advantage of this training. We plan our Education Strategy in order 

to provide maximum support for our teachers.  

 

* We want to work with partners to ensure that our young people develop essential work 

skills. 

  

What have we done? 

We have continued to work effectively with our partners. The Portfolio Holder is 

fully committed to ensuring that Anglesey has a strong voice in any national, 

regional and local discussions with all partners. 

 Care 

 

Social Care is under constant pressure in our communities. We believe that there is a 

need to work together and strengthen aspects of the work to respond to demand -  

 

* Work with the Health Service in constructive ways to ensure that every individual has 

the opportunity to live an independent life in their communities. 

What have we done? 

We have opened the first phase of Garreglwyd which is a joint plan with the 

Health Board and people from Anglesey have settled well there. Unfortunately, we 

have experienced a delay with the home care plan but we are now moving 

forward positively with this and hopefully the new model will be in place during 

the summer months. We are also attending a number of regional meetings in 

order to ensure that Anglesey works with the Health Board on a County, Regional 

and National level. 

 

* Strengthen support services for families in need of such services. 

What have we done? 

We have established the Anglesey Family Team (Teulu Môn) where the family 

information and support service is available at a single point of access for all the 

Island's families. We have restructured the Children's Services Team to provide 

the best possible opportunities for our social workers and to ensure that they 

have the necessary support in order that they in turn can support families on 

Page 23



Anglesey. 

 

* Work with partners to ensure suitable homes for our older adults. 

 What have we done? 

We have decided to build an Extra Care scheme in Beaumaris to provide the best 

opportunity for our older people to be supported to live independently with 24 

hour assistance.  

 

* Ensure support for carers who look after family or friends 

What have we done? 

We continue to work closely with our partners to secure the necessary support 

for our carers in the Anglesey and Gwynedd Partnership. We also take advantage 

of Regional plans through the Part 9 Board that supports carers. 

 

 

Housing  

 

The group believes that everyone has the right to a suitable home - 

 

* Continue to respond to housing need by building our own social housing and 

increasing the supply of affordable homes for our young people. 

What have we done? 

We have adopted the Department's business plan that includes an action plan for 

the construction of Social Housing here on Anglesey. This means that we would 

invest over £26 Million over the next 4 years to build 195 houses. 

 

* Ensure empty homes are brought back into use to respond to housing need. 

What have we done? 

We have supported the Housing Department to bring as many houses as possible 

back into use. We will continue to work on this over the next year. 

 

* Ensure support for first buyers by means of a council tax premium. 

What have we done? 

Page 24



We have revisited the first time buyer support policy and made it more flexible in 

order to ensure that our young people get the most out of the scheme. 

 

 

The Economy / Jobs 

 

The economy and jobs are essential if we are to keep our young people in Anglesey. 

We believe we can do this by - 

 

* Ensuring that local businesses benefit from any major project. 

What have we done? 

We have continued to emphasize the importance of local businesses in all our 

discussions with large companies and in regional economic discussions. 

 

* Support local businesses to be able to apply for Council contracts. 

What have we done? 

We are starting an internal procurement project to ensure that we have systems 

in place that will enable local companies to take advantage of opportunities 

available in the Council. This work is now underway. 

 

* Promote and create opportunities for young people through apprenticeships. 

What have we done? 

We have been able to promote a 12 week ‘Attracting Talent’ scheme which has 

attracted a significant number of young people. This scheme will give the island’s 

young people an unique opportunity to experience a variety of careers with the 

Council. 

 

 

Environmental Protection 

 

Anglesey is unique because of its surrounding natural environment. We want - 

 

* To continue the fight against the pylons. 

What have we done? 

We have continued to express the Council's strong opinion by protesting, having 

internal and external discussions and supporting local groups in their fight 

against the pylons.  

Page 25



 

* Protect Anglesey's natural environment, which is so important to the tourism sector. 

What have we done? 

We have adopted a joint Local Development Plan, which is the first of its kind in 

Wales. We now create supplementary planning guidance to maximize the needs 

of Anglesey. 

 

* Ensure we meet recycling targets. 

What have we done? 

We have ensured that every house in Anglesey has access to trolley boxes if they 

wish. We have promoted recycling amongst our children and young people. We 

as a Council are committed to promoting recycling and have a goal to be a non-

plastic Council.   

  

To close 

We have had an unforgettable year here in Anglesey. We had a great National 

Eisteddfod in Bodedern which was a success despite the rain, we experienced floods 

which created devastation in the businesses and homes of local people and we had an 

extreme storm disaster in Holyhead with damage to boats and local businesses. All of 

these events require national support, but we are fortunate here in Anglesey in that we 

pull together in an emergency. I would like to thank from the bottom of my heart, the 

Council staff who have gone the extra mile during very challenging times to safeguard 

services. Thank you. 

  

Councillor Llinos Medi 

Leader of the Council 

  

  

Page 26



 

  Page 1 of 4 

 

 ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report to: The County Council 

Date: 15th May 2018 

Subject: Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 

Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr. Richard Dew 
Cllr. Carwyn Jones 

Report Author: 
 

Tel: 
E-mail: 

Dylan J. Williams 
Head of Regulatory & Economic Development Service 
(01248) 752499 
DylanWilliams@anglesey.gov.uk 
 

Local Members:  All Elected Members 

 

A – Recommendation/s and reason/s 

Recommendation(s) 
That the County Council: 
 

i. Adopt the revised (Anglesey specific) Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (SPG) and all Topic Papers & Statutory Assessments.  

 
Introduction 
The New Nuclear Build at Wylfa: Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) was produced 
and adopted by the Isle of Anglesey County Council (the IACC) in July 2014 (Link). 
Supplementary Planning Guidance is a means of setting out detailed thematic or site 
specific guidance on the way in which national and local policies will be applied in 
particular circumstances or areas. As the Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) was yet to 
be adopted, the SPG was produced to fill this policy gap. This enabled the IACC to 
influence and inform Horizon Nuclear Power’s (Horizon) strategic decision making, it 
provided the basis for the County Council’s response to Horizon’s statutory consultations 
(PAC1, 2 and 3) and also provided a sound and robust policy framework for the IACC to 
make decisions in relation to any planning applications (as well as the DCO itself).  
 
However, since the SPG was adopted in 2014, there have been a number of fundamental 
changes which has necessitated the need to review and update this SPG.  
 

1. Policy Changes – The JLDP was formally adopted by the IACC on the 31st July 
2017 (Link). The existing SPG is therefore outdated as it was supplemental to the 
previous Development Plan. For consistency and alignment, the SPG needed to be 
updated to reflect the latest JLDP polices and to be supplemental to the latest 
Development Plan. This ensures that the IACC has a sound and robust policy 
framework to make decisions in relation to any potential TCPA planning 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7.

mailto:DylanWilliams@anglesey.gov.uk
http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/documents/s4675/NNB%20SPG%20Full%20Council%20Report%20July%202014.pdf?LLL=0
http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/documents/s11633/Report%20-%20Joint%20Local%20Development%20Plan.pdf?LLL=0


 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

applications, and to underpin the IACC’s response to the Development Consent 
Order (DCO) application (e.g. Local Impact Report, Statement of Common Ground, 
Written Representations etc.).  
 

2.  Legislative Changes – Since the SPG was adopted in July 2014, there have been 
a number of fundamental legislative changes which has changed the IACC’s role in 
the statutory consenting process. Most notably is the Wales Act 2017, which 
received Royal Assent on the 31st January 2017. This allows project promoters (i.e. 
Horizon) to include associated developments (such as park & ride, temporary 
workers accommodation etc.) within their DCO application instead of being 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and considered under the Town & Country 
Planning Act. The SPG needed to be updated to reflect this latest legislative 
change. Also other key new legislation such as the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Act 2015 needs to be reflected in the revised SPG. The IACC must demonstrate 
how the project/policy meets the 7 wellbeing goals and the alignment between the 
SPG’s objectives and the these wellbeing goals is critical.   
 

3. Project Updates –  Horizon have proposed a number of project updates since the 
SPG was adopted in 2014. The most significant project change is Horizon’s decision 
to increase the on-site temporary workers accommodation from 500 ‘essential 
workers’ to having up to 4,000 workers on-site in a purpose built temporary campus. 
This change needs to be reflected in the IACC’s SPG so that the IACC can 
adequately respond to these proposals. Further detail and clarity on Horizon’s other 
associated developments since 2014 (such as the park & ride at Dalar Hir, Logistics 
Centre at Parc Cybi etc.) also means that these sections of the SPG need to be 
updated.   

 
Consultation 
The IACC undertook a period of 6 week public consultation from the 11th January to the 
22nd February 2018. A members Briefing Session was held on the 30th November 2017 
and a Members ‘Drop in Session’ was arranged for the 13th February 2018, where 
Members had the opportunity to ask questions and provide comments on the SPG. A 
further Members Briefing Session was provided on the 12th April 2018 to update Members 
on the consultation process and to outline the process leading up to Full Council.    
 
168 representations were received by ten (10) individuals and organisations (a summary of 
all the responses can be found in the ‘Representations Report’ in Appendix A). All 
representation received have been considered and changes have been made to the SPG 
where appropriate. All the changes made to the SPG are contained in the ‘Focused 
Changes’ document which can be found in Appendix B. Each representation has a unique 
‘Representation ID’. This enables individuals and organisations who have made formal 
representations to cross-reference their comments with the changes in the document.  This 
shows what has changes, or if it has not changed then reasons are given in the 
‘Representations Report’ for why it remains the same.  
 

Page 28



 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

The SPG consultation material consisted of the following revised and updated documents: 
 

i. Wylfa Newydd SPG; 
ii. 11 Topic Papers (including a new Topic Paper covering North Anglesey); and, 
iii. Series of Statutory Assessment (Sustainability Appraisal, Equality Impact 

Assessment, Welsh Language Impact Assessment, Habitat Regulations 
Assessment and Health Impact Assessment).  

 
Given that Horizon are intending to submit their DCO application to the Planning 
Inspectorate in Spring / Summer 2018, it is imperative that the County Council adopt the 
revised SPG so that it has a robust policy position in order to be able to respond to the 
DCO application. The SPG will be used as the backbone of the IACC’s response and will 
be utilised to underpin the Local Impact Report, Statement of Common Ground and any 
other written representations.  
 
There have been no changes to any of the Topic Papers or Statutory Assessments apart 
from one minor change to Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey (Focused Change 74, Rep ID 
166).  These documents remain unchanged from the January 2018 consultation version 
and a link to all the Topic Papers and Statutory Assessments is included in this report.  
 
 
 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them?  

Two other options were considered. Option A -  not updating the SPG and Option B – Light 
touch Review of SPG. Both option were rejected for three reasons: 
 

i. The existing SPG is outdated as it was based on the previous Development Plan. 
This has been superseded by the Joint Local Development Plan, which means that 
it would hold little material weight in decision-making processes. This option was 
rejected, as it is essential that the IACC has sound and robust policy guidance to 
respond to the consenting challenges of Wylfa Newydd.  
 

ii. There have been significant and material changes to Horizon’s project proposals 
since the adoption of the SPG in July 2014. It is important that these changes be 
adequately reflected in the IACC’s policy guidance in order to accurately influence 
and inform the IACC’s policy position in relation to these proposals.  

 
iii. Due to recent legislative changes (namely the Wales Act 2017); the IACC’s role in 

the consenting process for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects has 
changed. Horizon now have the option of including the associated developments 
(e.g. park & ride, logistics centre etc.) within their DCO application. The SPG needs 
to be updated to reflect these changes.   

 
Option A - Not updating the SPG will put the IACC in a more vulnerable policy position in 

Page 29



 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

responding to Wylfa Newydd. The decision not to update the SPG was subsequently 
rejected. 
 
Option B – Light Touch review of SPG. This option was rejected as the changes required 
to the SPG were considered to be more fundamental. The process to update the SPG is 
the same regardless of scope (i.e. 6 week consultation and adoption by Full Council) so 
this option was rejected as the IACC will only have one opportunity to update the SPG 
prior to the submission of the DCO.  
 
 

C – Why is this decision for the Executive? 

Not applicable.  
 

CH – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 

Yes – the Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) was approved by Full Council on the 31st 

July 2017. This SPG will be supplemental to this adopted policy and is therefore consistent 

with policy approved by the Council.  

 

D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 

Yes – The IACC have secured external funding through the Planning Performance 

Agreement (PPA) with Horizon to undertake the review and update of the SPG. This 

includes the consultation process.  

             

DD – Who did you consult?        What did they say? 

1 Chief Executive / Strategic 
Leadership Team (SLT) 
(mandatory) 

TBC  

2 

 

Finance / Section 151 
(mandatory)  

TBC 

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer 
(mandatory)  

TBC 

4 Human Resources (HR) TBC 

5 Property  TBC 

6 Information Communication 
Technology (ICT) 

TBC 

7 Scrutiny TBC 

8 Local Members TBC 

9 Any external bodies / other/s TBC 

 

Page 30



 

  Page 5 of 4 

 

 

F - Appendices: 

 None.  

 

1 Economic A comprehensive SPG will provide an opportunity to 
influence Horizon’s development proposals to ensure 
positive economic benefits and a long term legacy for 
Anglesey. The SPG will support and influence the 
creation and location of new employment opportunities 
on Anglesey, in addition to encouraging opportunities 
for local businesses to capitalize upon emerging supply 
chain opportunities. 

2 Anti-poverty The SPG has been updated to reflect the goals of the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015. This 
includes a ‘more prosperous Wales’ and a ‘more equal 
Wales which aims to tackle inequality and poverty.  

3 Crime and Disorder Crime has been identified as a key policy topic within 
the SPG. Specific guidance will be included within the 
‘Guiding Principles’ and ‘Locational Guidance’ of the 
SPG to address potential issues with crime and 
disorder.  

4 Environmental The Council’s duties under the Countryside and Rights 
of Way (CROW) Act, 2000 and the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act, 
2006 have been considered in the preparation of the 
SPG. 

5 Equalities The SPG has been subject to a number of 
assessments, including an Equality Impact 
Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal and Welsh 
Language Impact Assessment. It has also been 
updated to reflect the Wellbeing Goals of a ‘more equal 
Wales’.  

6 Outcome Agreements N/A 
7 Other N/A 

FF - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further 

information): 

Wylfa Newydd SPG Representations Report 
Wylfa Newydd SPG Focused Changes Report 
Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (May 2018).  
Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey.  
 
Link to Statutory Assessments & Topic Papers.  
 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/previous-

Page 31

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/previous-consultations/new-nuclear-build-at-wylfa-supplementary-planning-guidance/122204.article?tab=downloads


 

  Page 6 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

consultations/new-nuclear-build-at-wylfa-supplementary-planning-
guidance/122204.article?tab=downloads  
 

Page 32

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/previous-consultations/new-nuclear-build-at-wylfa-supplementary-planning-guidance/122204.article?tab=downloads
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/previous-consultations/new-nuclear-build-at-wylfa-supplementary-planning-guidance/122204.article?tab=downloads


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Representations Report 

May 2018 
 

Page 33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) – Representations Report 

Introduction 

The Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) was subject to a 6-week public 

consultation from the 11th January 2018 to the 22nd February 2018. 168 representations were 

received from 10 responses.  

 

Each representation has been categorised by the IACC to one of the following headings: 

I. Support -  where the representation received supports what is contained in the Wylfa 

Newydd SPG.  

 

II. Object – where the representation received objects to what is contained in the Wylfa 

Newydd SPG.  

 

III. Clarity – where the representation received requests clarity on the Wylfa Newydd 

SPG. This could be clarity on the contents, layout, how to use the SPG, the scope of 

the SPG etc.  

The table in Appendix A indicated whether the representation has either been accepted or 
rejected and reason(s) are provided for this decision. If the change is accepted, these are 
included in the ‘Focused Change’ Document. If they are rejected, the reaon is provided in this 
Report.  
 
If, having read the summary of individual representations, you wish to see the complete 
representation you can do so by viewing a folder containing a hard copy of all  representations 
received in the IACC’s DCO Library at the Anglesey Business Centre, Llangefni. Alternatively, 
a hard copy or an electronic copy of full individual representations can be requested in writing 
by contacting the Project Management Office (PMO): 
 
Energy Island Programme Management Office (PMO) 
Anglesey Business Centre, 
Bryn Cefni Business Park, 
Llangefni, 
ANGLESEY 
LL77 7XA 
Email: PMO@anglesey.gov.uk  
 
What Happens Next? 
 
All the representations received on the Wylfa Newydd SPG consultation will be analysed 
carefully by the IACC. A report outlining all the changes will be submitted with the Wylfa 
Newydd SPG (‘Focused Changes’) to the Full Council on the 15th May 2018. Where a change 
is proposed, this will be cross-referenced with the ‘Rep ID’ of the Representations Report. This 
will allow those who have made representations to track how their comments have been taken 
into account.  

Please note that this is a summary report only. The Isle of Anglesey County Council 
(IACC) are not endorsing the representations that are contained in the report; they 
only represent the views of the individuals or organisations who submitted them. 

The Representation Report is for viewing only and not for comment. 

Page 35

mailto:PMO@anglesey.gov.uk


 
Further Information 
 
For more information in regard to any aspect of the preparation of the Wylfa Newydd SPG or 
the next steps, please contact the PMO via email PMO@anglesey.gov.uk or telephone 
(01248) 752435.  

Page 36

mailto:PMO@anglesey.gov.uk


5 
 

Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) Representations Report (Appendix A) 

Re
p 
ID 

Name Section  Type Summary  Suggested Change Accept 
/ 
Reject 

Reason 

1 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

Section 4 – 
Workers 
Accommodatio
n 

Clarity In Horizon’s view, it is not 
currently clear whether the 
Council’s preference is for the 
location of the TWA is at the Site 
Campus or at the Land & Lakes 
site at Holyhead. GP10b 
suggests that it is the Site 
Campus (which is identified as 
the preferred solution for 
accommodating the majority of 
the construction workforce) whilst 
GP33 suggests that it is Cae 
Glas and Kingsland.  
 
If the intent is that it’s both, then 
the text needs to be amended to 
make this clear.  

Horizon’s preference is 
that the SPG be amended 
to remove the text which 
appears to give 
preferential support to 
specific sites at Holyhead. 
 
However, if the Council do 
not agree with this 
approach then Horizon’s 
concern could be resolved 
by the text being amended 
to make it clear that both 
the Site Campus for up to 
4,000 workers and the 
Holyhead sites are 
supported as locations for 
the temporary construction 
workers.  

Reject GP10 has been amended (Ref 
8 (Focussed Change), see 
Rep ID 9 below). 
 
It is noted that the use of 
onsite accommodation is to be 
delivered as a preferred option 
only where it has been 
consented as part of the 
overall strategy as opposed to 
being used as a reactive top-
up mechanism. The SPG does 
not prefer it in policy terms to 
any other solution as the 
planning case for the selected 
options has not been made.  
 
As set out in the JLDP at 
paragraph 6.3.21, the IACC 
requires that use of existing 
consents for accommodating 
nuclear workers is considered 
before modular 
accommodation in temporary 
buildings is proposed. The 
Council is not prescribing 
either accommodation site 
option but expanding on the 
requirement to consider 
existing consented sites before 

P
age 37



6 
 

seeking further consents. The 
IACC has referred to Cae Glas 
and Kingsland because it 
benefits from such an existing 
consent which has been found 
to be acceptable in planning 
terms and which provides a 
legacy benefit in accordance 
with the JLDP.  

2 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

Paragraph 
1.1.14 

Clarity As this paragraph deals with the 
purpose of the SPG, its role 
should be clarified in relation to 
the primacy of the NPS for the 
decision on the NSIP.  

Incorporate wording from, 
or cross-reference to 
paragraph 1.4.2 of the 
draft SPG which sets this 
out well.  

Accept See Ref 1 (Focussed Change) 

3 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP3 – 
Employment 
sites, logistics 
and transport 

Object Policy PS11 of the JLDP does 
not include a requirement for the 
logistic centre to be within 
Enterprise Zone Site. This is 
adding a further criteria to the 
policy, which is not consistent 
with PINS advice or national 
policy in PPW.  

Delete criteria iv of GP3.  Accept Ref 2 (Focussed Change) 

4 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP5 - Tourism Object Agree in principle with the 
purpose of this guiding principle, 
but the methodology should be 
agreed in accordance with a 
monitoring strategy to be 
approved through the DCO 
process – either by the Secretary 
of State or by the IACC through a 
requirement attached to the 
DCO.  

Inset the words “or 
through an appropriate 
monitoring framework 
approved through the 
DCO” after the words 
“methodology agreed with 
the Council” at the end of 
page 75.  

Accept Ref 3 (Focussed Change) 

5 Horizon 
Nuclear 

GP6 – 
Community 

Object Specifies at point ii. that new 
community facilities and services 
are available to the public and 

Amend to reflect that this 
only applies to facilities 

Accept Ref 4 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 38



7 
 

Power 
[001] 

Facilities and 
Services  

developed in accordance with the 
settlement hierarchy. Whilst this 
is supported in principle, 
Horizon’s proposals are that 
these facilities would be provided 
within the Site Campus and 
therefore they will not be 
available to the public for security 
reasons.  

provided outside of the 
Site Campus.  
 

6 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP9a – 
Community 
Cohesion  

Clarity Amended to include reference to 
the WAMS and includes a 
provision to agree acceptable 
thresholds with the Council.  
 
This is part of Horizon’s 
mitigation proposals and is 
supported in principle, however 
the thresholds should be agreed 
through a monitoring framework 
to be approved through the DCO 
– this is currently envisaged to 
incorporate an Oversight Board, 
which will include IACC, who will 
agree and oversee appropriate 
thresholds.  

Amend point i. to include 
“or through an appropriate 
monitoring framework 
approved through the 
DCO” after “County 
Council”  
 

Accept Ref 5 (Focussed Change) 

7 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP9b - 
Campus Style 
Temporary 
Accommodatio
n  
 

Object This guiding principle adds 
additional criteria beyond that 
which is in Policy PS10 in the 
JLDP. This includes that 
“campuses should not be situated 
so as to create isolated, 
unsustainable temporary 
communities which do not 
integrate with existing services, 
facilities and communities”.  

Amend to include the 
words “(other than the Site 
Campus on the Wylfa 
Newydd Project Site)” 
after the words “campuses 
should not be situated so 
as to create isolated, 
unsustainable temporary 
communities which do not 
integrate with existing 

Accept Ref 6 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 39



8 
 

Horizon objects to this on the 
basis that it is contrary to the 
JLDP which specifically allows for 
campus accommodation to be 
accommodated on the Wylfa 
Newydd site, which by its nature 
is isolated and not integrated with 
existing communities.  
It also contradicts guiding 
principle GP10b which allows for 
campus-style accommodation on 
the Wylfa Newydd Site, 
consistent with the JLDP.   
 

services, facilities and 
communities”.  
 
 

8 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP10a  
 

Clarity Contains a requirement that the 
project promoters WAS should 
consist of campus style 
temporary accommodation, new 
build permanent housing, re-use 
of empty homes and additional 
accommodation (through tourism 
and latent). In addition, contains 
a requirement for the WAS to 
deliver permanent new 
accommodation that addresses 
local needs.  
Horizon agrees with this in 
principle, but it should be 
recognised that any permanent 
housing will be delivered through 
the Housing Fund, rather than 
directly by Horizon.   
 

Insert the words “(either 
directly or through the 
Housing Fund)” after “new 
build permanent housing” 
in the 4th paragraph of 
GP10a.  
 

Accept Ref 7 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 40



9 
 

9 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP10b  
 

Object Requires campus style temporary 
workers accommodation to be 
delivered in a phased way to 
prevent rather than react to 
impact on the local housing 
market. States that the on-site 
workers accommodation Campus 
should be viewed as the 
preferred solution for 
accommodating the majority of 
the construction workers and that 
strong justification will be 
required for not maximising the 
use of this Campus in favour of 
other types of accommodation.  
Horizon strongly supports the 
principle of an on-site Campus 
and welcomes this recognition in 
the SPG, however, the 
requirement to maximise this 
before using other forms of 
accommodation directly 
contradicts Policy PS10 of the 
JLDP which requires the 
developer to demonstrate that the 
use of existing accommodation 
has been maximised first.  
 
 
 
 

Amend to reflect wording 
in Policy PS10 (see 
above).  
 

Accept Ref 8 (Focussed Change) 
 

 

10 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP24 - 
Planning 
obligations  

 

Object Includes additional text that the 
Council require visibility of the 
total S106 package for the main 

Delete the text “visibility of 
the total Section 106 
package, in the form of the 
overall make-up and 

Accept Ref 9 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 41



10 
 

DCO before considering TCPA 
applications in advance.  
Horizon has been working closely 
on the S106 obligations 
associated with SPC which meet 
the relevant planning tests. 
Government guidance is clear 
that such applications must be 
determined on their own merits 
and therefore the SPG should not 
set a requirement to consider 
S106 obligations associated with 
the DCO before a decision can 
be made on these  

quantum, will therefore be 
required by the County 
Council when considering 
these applications”.  
 

11 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

Para 5.1.30  
 

Clarity The text refers to a minimum 
generating capacity of 2,700 MW. 
The DCO will be for a minimum 
generating capacity of 3,000 MW 
and therefore it would be helpful 
to recognise this in the text.  
A visitor and media reception 
centre is also no longer part of 
the proposals being applied for in 
the DCO. As this is a factual list 
of the promoter’s (Horizon’s) 
development proposals, it is 
considered that this should be 
altered.  

Replace 2,700 with 3,000.  
Replace visitor and media 
reception centre with 
“temporary construction 
viewing area”.  

Accept Ref 10 (Focussed Change) 

12 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP27 – North 
Anglesey  
 

Object Inclusion of a consideration in 
GP27 that the project promoter 
will be expected to comply with 
the proximity principle, whereby 
the impacts on host communities 
closest to the site must be 
considered first.  

Although Horizon does 
recognise that many of the 
impacts, and hence 
mitigation, will be focussed 
on the host communities 
closest to the site, it is 
suggested that point iv. is 

Reject Given the scale, duration and 
nature of the project the IACC 
wishes to ensure that the 
impacts on the North Anglesey 
community are fully recognised 
and communicated in a form 
which is understandable and 

P
age 42



11 
 

Horizon recognise that many of 
the impacts of the Wylfa Newydd 
Project will be focussed on North 
Anglesey, however, law is clear 
that impacts must be mitigated 
where they occur and therefore 
this must be the starting principle 
for any mitigation associated with 
the Project, including 
consideration of planning 
obligations.  
 

 

deleted as it suggests a 
presupposition on the 
assessment and mitigation 
of impacts in the ES and 
other Project 
documentation.  
 
 

meaningful to the community. 
This criteria des not pre-judge 
the assessment but provides 
guidance on how that 
assessment should be 
presented in accordance with 
the agreed community impact 
approach.  
The criteria simply states that 
impacts must be mitigated 
where relevant – this is not 
contrary to law and does not 
presuppose any particular 
mitigation. This simply 
provides guidance to 
applicants that the IACC will 
expect to see consideration at 
the North Anglesey level as 
well as more widely and is 
therefore appropriate. 

13 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP28a – Wylfa 
Newydd Main 
Site  
 

Clarity The last paragraph on page 176 
contains a principle to work in 
partnership with the County 
Council on the LEMP. This is 
supported in principle, but the 
terminology should be changed 
to reflect that in the draft DCO, 
which now includes a Landscape 
and Habitat Management 
Strategy in place of the LEMP.  
 

Amend text to refer to 
Landscape and Habitat 
Management Strategy  
 

Accept Ref 11 (Focussed Change) 

14 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP28b  
 

Object New guiding principle GP 28b on 
the Site Campus.  
This incorrectly quotes Policy 
PS10 of the JLDP by stating that 

Policy PS10 does not 
express a preference 
between the Wylfa 
Newydd Project site and 

Accept Ref 12 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 43



12 
 

campuses will only be acceptable 
where they meet a demonstrable 
need that  
cannot be met elsewhere in the 
existing housing market or 
through provision in accordance 
with the settlement hierarchy (our 
emphasis).  
 

sites located in 
accordance with the 
settlement hierarchy.  
Amend to include wording 
from Policy PS10 of the 
JLDP (as above).  
Alternatively, if the text 
relating to the Holyhead 
sites is to remain, it is 
considered that the above 
text should be added to 
GP28b:  
“Subject to meeting the 
requirements above, and 
demonstration that the 
impacts on North 
Anglesey are acceptable, 
it is recognised that the 
Site Campus could 
provide accommodation 
for up to 4,000 workers.”  
 

15 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

Para 5.2.26  
 

Object The explanatory text (para. 
5.2.26) for the Holyhead AoS 
includes amended text which 
states:  
“The proposed Land and lakes 
development includes, amongst 
other elements, the provision of 
315 holiday lodges at Penrhos 
and Cae Glas and a residential 
development of up to 320 
dwellings at Kingsland. The Cae 
Glas and Kingsland sites have 
been promoted by the developer 

Amend text to include 
policy wording from PS10 
of the JLDP (see above).  
This would in practice 
require Horizon to 
demonstrate that 
permanent buildings that 
can be adapted for 
permanent use after their 
use by construction 
workers before proposing 
temporary campus 
accommodation and the 

Accept Ref 13 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 44



13 
 

for temporary workers 
accommodation for the 
construction of Wylfa Newydd. 
However, Horizon has removed 
the site from its consideration of 
locations for accommodation and 
now instead favours a campus of 
up to 4,000 bedspaces at the 
main site. It remains the County 
Council’s view that the proposed 
Land and Lakes development is a 
preferred opportunity to deliver 
construction worker 
accommodation that provides a 
lasting legacy benefit beyond the 
construction period of Wylfa 
Newydd (in the form of housing, 
major tourism development, 
employment and community 
facilities and services).  
The preference for a specific 
location for one type of 
associated development goes 
much further than the policies in 
the JLDP, contrary to 
Government policy and the 
Inspector’s clear  
comments in the report on the 
JLDP.  
The JLDP requires Horizon to 
demonstrate that there is a 
demonstrable need that cannot 
be met through either existing 
accommodation, reuse of 
buildings or new permanent 

SPG should not go further 
than this.  
An alternative approach 
could be include the words 
“in addition to up to 4,000 
workers on the Site 
Campus as identified in 
GP10b” after the words 
underlined in the previous 
column, provided that this 
is the Council’s intention.  

P
age 45



14 
 

buildings. The SPG should go no 
further than this and to do 
otherwise prejudges the proper 
consultation process and 
consideration of the DCO.  
It is also not clear how this 
wording should be read with 
GP10b, which states that the Site 
Campus should be the preferred 
location for accommodating the 
majority of the construction 
workforce.  

16 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

Page 224  
 

Object There is a further reference on 
page 224: “whether or not Land 
and Lakes is developed for 
construction workers (as 
preferred by the County Council)”  
 

See above – it is not 
appropriate to include a 
preference for a particular 
site for associated 
development in an SPG 
for an NSIP and the words 
in brackets should be 
deleted.  
 
 

Accept Ref 14 (Focussed Change) 

17 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

GP33  
 

Object GP33 starts by saying “The 
County Council prefers that the 
project promoter makes 
appropriate use of the approved 
development opportunities at Cae 
Glas to provide construction 
worker accommodation within the 
Holyhead and Environs AoS.”  
GP33 (page 228-229) states that 
if Cae Glas and Kingsland is not 
preferred by the Project 
Promoter, the County Council will 
expect strong reasoned 

It is not clear from the text 
whether the Council’s 
preference is for Cae Glas 
in favour of the Site 
Campus, or if Cae Glas is 
the preferred site in 
Holyhead only.  
It is not appropriate to 
include a preference to a 
particular site for 
associated development in 
an SPG for an NSIP and 
this should be deleted. 

Accept Ref 15 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 46



15 
 

justification for the rejection of the 
scheme in favour of alternatives.  

Reference instead should 
be made to the 
appropriate policy 
guidance in the JLDP.  
Alternatively, this could be 
addressed by amending 
the paragraph under 
temporary construction 
worker accommodation to 
read: “Where temporary 
construction worker 
accommodation is 
proposed within the 
Holyhead and Environs 
AoS, the County Council’s 
preference is that this is 
through the use of the 
approved  
development opportunities 
at Cae Glas.”  
 

18 Horizon 
Nuclear 
Power 
[001] 

New guiding 
principle GP36 
on Anglesey 
Coast and 
Rural 
Hinterland.  
 

Clarity It would be helpful to include a 
plan of this area, so that it is clear 
precisely to which area it applies.  
 

Include a plan. 
 

Reject This is contained within figure 
5.1 (see coast – rural 
hinterland within the legend) 

19 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

Construction 
Workers 
Accommodatio
n 
GP10b  

Object The emphasis of the Original 
SPG was on "limiting construction 
worker accommodation at the 
main site to that which is 
essential and supported by a 
robust justification of need” (Page 
126, GP26). By contrast, the 

The approach in the Draft 
SPG at GP10b does not 
supplement the JLDP, but 
instead ignores the 
sequential approach set 
out in Strategic Policy 
PS10. The role of the SPG 

Accept Ref 8 & 
Ref 12 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 47



16 
 

Draft SPG states that: “The on-
site workers accommodation 
Campus should be viewed as the 
preferred solution for 
accommodating the majority of 
the construction workers. Strong 
reasoned justification will be 
required for not maximising the 
use of this Campus in favour 
other types of accommodation” 
(page 99, GP10b). Land and 
Lakes objects to this highly 
material change for the following 
reasons: 
 
 
(i) There is no evidence or 

explanation in the Draft 
SPG and its associated 
Topic Papers which 
justifies the change in 
approach from minimising 
to maximising 
construction workers 
accommodation at the 
main Wylfa Newydd site. 
The Draft SPG states that: 
“The SPG has been 
revised and updated to 
reflect the now adopted 
JLDP and the emerging 
detail of the project 
promoter’s proposals for 
the Wylfa Newydd project 
(page 99 GP10). Whilst 

is to provide 
supplementary guidance 
to the JLDP and therefore 
the document should 
provide guidance on how 
IOACC expects the 
sequential approach to be 
applied rather than 
ignoring the policy tests 
and adopting an entirely 
new stance by stating that 
onsite construction 
worker's accommodation 
is its preferred strategy. 
 
Guidance contained at 
paragraph 2.3.3 of 
Planning Policy Wales 
Edition 9 (“PPW”) relates 
to SPG and states that 
(with HOW emphasis in 
bold):  
 
“The SPG does not form 
part of the development 
plan but it must be 
consistent with the plan 
and with national policy. It 
must derive from and be 
clearly cross referenced to 
a generic LDP policy, 
specific policies for places, 
and/or- in the case of a 
masterplan or site brief- a 
plan allocation. SPG 

P
age 48



17 
 

Horizon has carried out 
three consultations 
(PAC1-3) as part of its 
DCO process, these 
consultations have been 
based on its proposals 
and evidence. The Draft 
SPG is an IOACC 
document which should 
be based on independent 
evidence prepared by 
IOACC and should not be 
underpinned by evidence 
prepared by a third party 
especially when that 
evidence has not 
undergone rigorous 
assessment and 
independent examination. 
Furthermore, IOACC 
submitted robust 
representations in respect 
of PAC 3 in which it cited 
a number of concerns with 
its approach. It is 
paradoxical that IOACC 
now seeks to rely on a 
consultation in respect of 
which it has expressed 
serious concerns.  

 
(ii) A sequential approach to 

campus style temporary 
accommodation for 
construction workers is set 

cannot be linked to 
National Policy alone; 
there must be a LDP 
policy or policy criterion 
that provides the 
development plan 
"hook", whilst the 
reasoned justification 
provides clarification of the 
relevant national policy. 
The LDP should note 
which policies are 
supplemented by SPG 
(PPW Edition 9, paragraph 
2.3.3) 

P
age 49



18 
 

out in Strategic Policy 
PS10 of the JLDP. The 
policy requires the 
developer to first 
demonstrate that the 
proposal satisfies a 
demonstrable need for 
temporary 
accommodation and that 
this need cannot be 
addressed through the re-
use of existing buildings, 
or the provision of new 
buildings capable of being 
adapted for permanent 
use following their use by 
construction workers.  
Once this demonstrable 
need has been identified, 
the policy requires the 
proposal to be located on 
the Wylfa Newydd project 
site or on sites located 
adjacent to, or well related 
to the development 
boundary of Holyhead, 
Amlwch, Llangefni, 
Gaerwen or Valley and 
close to the main highway 
network where adequate 
access can be provided 
without significantly 
harming landscape 
characteristics and 
features, and also takes 

P
age 50



19 
 

account of policy 
preference for use of 
previously developed 
land. This understanding 
of how the policy should 
be applied is confirmed by 
the first part of GP28b of 
the Draft SPG which sets 
out this sequential 
approach. 

 
 
 

20 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

Reference to 
4,000 workers 
on-site 
(throughout 
Draft SPG).  

Object There is an acknowledgement at 
paragraph 6.3.20 of the JLDP 
that there will be “some” modular 
accommodation in temporary 
buildings on the Wylfa Newydd 
site providing it is supported by 
provision of an appropriate level 
of community facilities and the 
transport impact can be 
demonstrated to be acceptable. 
 
Throughout the Draft SPG, there 
are references to temporary 
workers' accommodation for up to 
4,000 construction workers on 
the main site. Land and Lakes 
strongly objects to this. The figure 
of up to 4,000 construction 
workers has been derived from 
Horizon's latest proposals and 
IOACC has provided no evidence 
to justify this amount of 

Remove all references to 
“4,000 construction 
workers on-site” from the 
SPG.  

Accept Ref 17 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 51



20 
 

construction workers' 
accommodation on the main site. 
Land and Lakes objects to the 
numerous references throughout 
the Draft SPG to up to 4,000 
workers being accommodated in 
temporary accommodation on 
site on the following grounds: 
 
(i) Firstly, the level of 

accommodation stated is 
unjustified and has not 
been underpinned by 
evidence in any of the 
topic papers which inform 
the preparation of the 
SPG. The reference to “up 
to 4,000 construction 
workers” has come from 
Horizon as part of its 
PAC3 consultation. 
Evidence prepared by 
Horizon in support of this 
position has not yet 
undergone rigorous 
assessment or 
independent examination;  

 
(ii) Whilst the JLDP 

recognises that “some” 
temporary workers' 
accommodation will be 
provided on site, the plan 
requires the level of 
provision to be supported 

P
age 52



21 
 

by an appropriate level of 
community facilities and 
the transport impact 
(including worker's access 
and parking) to be 
demonstrated as 
acceptable. The SPG 
should therefore provide 
supplementary guidance 
as to what information 
should be provided as 
part of any application for 
planning permission or 
DCO consent to discharge 
these requirements rather 
than making a judgement 
on the level of temporary 
workers' accommodation 
which will be provided on 
site;  
 

(iii) JLDP Policy PS9 (5) 
requires proposals to form 
part of a robust 
construction workers' 
accommodation strategy 
that has regard to the 
plan's spatial strategy and 
any relevant polices in the 
plan, including Policy 
PS10. Furthermore, 
GP10a of the SPG 
requires the project 
promoter to prepare a 
Non-home-based 

P
age 53



22 
 

Construction Worker 
Accommodation Strategy. 
It is through the 
preparation of this 
document and 
assessment of the 
associated impacts of the 
strategy that the amount 
of onsite temporary 
workers accommodation 
will be identified. It is 
therefore premature for 
the SPG to be referencing 
the amount of onsite 
temporary workers' 
accommodation in 
advance of such Strategy 
being produced.  

 

21 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

Definition of 
‘North 
Anglesey’ and 
the ‘Rest of 
Anglesey’. 

Object Despite this settlement hierarchy 
(in PS10 of the JLDP), Chapter 5 
of the Draft SPG introduces new 
locational guidance, which 
identifies two geographical areas: 
North Anglesey and Rest of 
Anglesey which are shown on 
figure 5.1 of the document. 
 
The areas of North Anglesey and 
Rest of Anglesey are not 
identified in the JLDP. Instead, 
the areas of Amlwch, Llangefni 
and Holyhead are identified as 
main urban centres, each of 
which is attributed the same 

Remove the definition of 
‘North Anglesey’ and the 
‘Rest of Anglesey’ and 
align with settlement 
hierarchy of the JLDP 
(Policy PS10).  

Reject The settlement hierarchy 
applies across the whole JLDP 
including the areas identified in 
Chapter 5.  
This SPG considers the 
impacts of the Wylfa Newydd 
project which is concentrated 
in North Anglesey. That area 
has been identified in order to 
allow specific, relevant 
guidance to be given for the 
area where the majority of 
works will be located.  
The SPG does not change the 
status of the settlements but 
allows guidance and advice to 

P
age 54



23 
 

policy status. The guidance 
contained in the Draft SPG 
effectively seeks to change the 
status of these settlements by 
identifying North Anglesey (where 
Amlwch is located) as an area 
where impact and mitigation will 
be exacerbated and benefits from 
the Wylfa Newydd project will be 
maximised. 
 
The settlement hierarchy in the 
JLDP was subject to public 
scrutiny and independent 
examination. Land and Lakes 
objects to the definition of two 
distinct geographical areas 
because in no way does this 
locational guidance relate to a 
policy “hook” in the JLDP. This is 
reflected at Table A.1 of 
Appendix A of the Draft SPG 
which sets out the key policy 
linkages between the Guiding 
Principles in the Draft SPG and 
adopted planning policy in the 
JLDP. The table only provides 
policy linkages for Guiding 
Principles GP1 to GP26 and does 
not include Guiding Principles 
GP27 - GP36 (all of which relate 
to the Draft SPG’s locational 
guidance). We understand that 
the list contained at Table A.1 is 
not intended to be an exhaustive 

be given at suitable locational 
level – this is one of the 
purposes of SPG and the 
IACC does not accept that 
there is any conflict with the 
JLDP.  
Policy PS9 (paragraph 13) of 
the JLDP provides that the 
burden and disturbance of 
hosting the Wylfa Newydd 
development on the 
community must be 
recognised. The identification 
of the North Anglesey area, 
while reflective of a proposal 
by Horizon, has been 
considered and developed by 
the IACC to assist in providing 
guidance to applicants on how 
to identify and assess the 
impacts on the relevant 
communities in line with that 
policy requirement. Those 
impacts do not relate only to 
construction workers 
accommodation, but to all 
aspects of the project. It is 
considered that many of the 
impacts in the North Anglesey 
areas should be considered on 
that spatial basis due to the 
potential for concentration of 
impacts within that area which 
may be underestimated if 

P
age 55



24 
 

list of all policy that may be 
relevant to the SPG. However, 
the fact that it contains no 
reference to locational policy is 
concerning and indicates a failure 
by the Council to assess the 
linkages between the draft SPG 
and the JLDP in this regard. As 
discussed in section 1, above, 
such an approach falls contrary 
to guidance set out at paragraph 
2.2.3 of PPW. 
 
Paragraph 5.1.10 of the Draft 
SPG confirms that the area of 
North Anglesey has been defined 
by reference to Horizon's own 
definition of the area in relation to 
its proposal to provide 
accommodation for up to 4,000 
construction workers at the main 
Wylfa Newydd site. As discussed 
above, the amount of on-site 
worker accommodation is to be 
subject to assessment against 
the policies of the JLDP and 
independent examination. It is for 
the Draft SPG to provide 
supplementary guidance as to 
how the JLDP policies should be 
applied and not to introduce new 
conflicting guidance in order to 
pave the way for Horizon's 
proposals. 
 

assessed only on an Island-
wide basis. 

P
age 56



25 
 

22 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

Locational 
Guidance -
‘Areas of 
Search’ (All).  

Object
.  

The locational guidance in the 
Draft SPG for each of the "Areas 
of Search" identifies potential 
locations for the delivery of 
permanent housing to be used for 
the temporary accommodation of 
construction workers. For each of 
these Areas of Search housing 
allocations without planning 
permission are identified. 
 
The implications of temporary 
construction workers' 
accommodation being delivered 
on allocated housing sites initially 
is that such sites will be 
prevented from use for their 
primary purpose of delivering 
conventional and affordable 
housing to meet the Council's 
identified housing needs. The 
above housing requirement was 
set for the period 2011-2026 and 
it was therefore expected that 
conventional and affordable 
housing would be delivered on 
allocated sites by the end of the 
plan period. Having regard to the 
Wylfa Newydd project 
programme and the fact that we 
are currently in 2018, if the 
housing allocations are used for 
temporary construction workers' 
accommodation, this will prevent 
the delivery of conventional and 

Remove reference to 
allocated or consented 
housing sites being used 
initially as construction 
workers accommodation.  

Reject This is consistent with JLDP 
position identifying allocated 
sites for Housing. Allocated 
sites are not necessarily sites 
with planning permission.  

P
age 57



26 
 

affordable housing on those sites 
during the Plan period (ending 
2026). 
 

23 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) 
and Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment 
(SEA).  

Object
.  

Land and Lakes have not seen 
copies of the Screening Request 
and the responses from IoACC 
and NRW which determine that 
the Draft SPG does not require 
SEA. Regrettably, these are not 
contained on the Consultation 
website. Land and Lakes must 
necessarily reserve its position 
pending sight of the Screening 
Request documentation but in 
any event it objects to this 
approach on the following 
grounds: 
 
(i) The planning policies 

contained in the JLDP are 
up to date and include 
detailed policies relating 
to the Wylfa Newydd 
project. At the time the 
original SPG was 
prepared in 2014, the 
policies contained in the 
Development Plan were 
significantly out of date 
and did not include the 
detailed policies relating 
to the Wylfa Newydd 
project that the JLDP 
does. Therefore, the 

Land & Lakes does not 
agree that SEA is not 
required in connection with 
the draft SPG. Require 
site of the Screening 
Opinion and NRW’s 
response.  

Reject IACC will share SA/SEA 
Screening Opinion and NRW’s 
response with How Planning 
(on behalf of Land & Lakes) if 
a request is made in writing. 
 
A folder containing a hard copy 
of all representations received 
will also be available in the 
IACC’s DCO Library at the 
Anglesey Business Centre, 
Llangefni. P

age 58



27 
 

approach to the Draft 
SPG must be inherently 
different as it is required 
to supplement adopted 
policy in the JLDP which 
was not in place at the 
time the original SA was 
undertaken;  

 
(ii) There is a clear change in 

approach between the 
Original SPG and the 
Draft SPG. The Original 
SPG was based on the 
Council’s “Thirds 
Approach” for temporary 
construction workers 
accommodation as set out 
in the Council's Position 
Statement. The Original 
SPG sought to minimise 
on-site accommodation 
for temporary construction 
workers whereas the Draft 
SPG seeks to maximise 
such accommodation. As 
a result of this change in 
strategy, it is possible that 
differing economic, social 
and environmental 
impacts could occur, 
which would impact on the 
conclusions of the SA. 
This is recognised by the 
Council through the 

P
age 59



28 
 

introduction of the North 
Anglesey geographical 
area. Therefore, an 
updated SA should have 
been undertaken. It is 
noted that an SA was 
carried out for the JLDP 
however as set out above, 
the Draft SPG seeks to 
introduce guidance which 
is either new or 
contradicts adopted 
policies in the JLDP.  
 

(iii) It is noted that the SA 
prepared in relation to the 
2014 SPG gave very little 
regard to alternatives due 
to the infancy of the Wylfa 
Newydd nuclear project at 
that time. Paragraph 5.2.1 
of the 2014 SA states “in 
undertaking the SA of the 
Wylfa NNB SPG, 
consideration has been 
given to potential 
alternatives. Taking into 
account the fact that the 
development proposals in 
respect of the Wylfa NNB 
project are at an early 
stage, one ‘reasonable’ 
alternative to the Wylfa 
NNB SPG has been 
identified and 

P
age 60



29 
 

subsequently appraised, 
namely ‘Do Nothing’”. 
Given that the project has 
now progressed and detail 
such as the location of the 
temporary worker 
accommodation is 
addressed in the current 
draft SPG the issue of 
alternatives should plainly 
be revisited.  

 

 
 

24 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

 GP5 - 
Tourism  

 

Object GP5 highlights need for detailed 
assessments of potential effects 
associated with the project and 
related developments on tourism.  
 

An additional criterion should be 
included in line with paragraph. 
6.3.17 of the JLDP that seeks to 
ensure that proposals for 
accommodation of construction 
workers minimise the impact on 
the tourism sector, particularly 
existing facilities.  
 

ADD additional sentence 
after first list of criteria:  
“Proposals for 
construction workers 
accommodation should 
be accompanied by a 
detailed assessment 
which considers the 
impacts on the tourism 
sector, including existing 
tourism facilities.”  
 

 

Reject Impact on tourism sector 
(including existing tourism 
facilities) is included in GP5. 

25 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP6 - 
Maintaining 
and 
Enhancing 
Community 
Facilities and 
Services  

 

Object GP6 sets out community facilities 
and services that must be put in 
place to support development 
including education, healthcare, 
IT communications/broadband, 
leisure facilities and emergency 
services.  
 

 ADD:  
“The Wylfa Newydd 
project promoter must 
ensure that community 
services and facilities, 
including education, 
healthcare, IT 
communications/broadban

Accept Ref 18 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 61



30 
 

This list should also include 
shops and sports facilities, in 
accordance with PS9 (criteria 10) 
of the JLDP.  

 

d, sport and leisure 
facilities, shops and 
emergency services are in 
place to accommodate the 
construction and 
operational phases of the 
project and its associated 
and related 
developments”  
 

 

26 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP9a - 
Maintaining 
and Creating 
Cohesive 
Communities  

 

Object GP9a sets expectations of how 
the project promoter should take 
account of the potential for the 
project and associated 
development to affect community 
cohesion, safety and social 
inequalities.  
 

The wording in this Guiding 
Principle should be strengthened 
to ensure that proposals must 
meet these expectations.  
 

“Informed by an 
assessment of socio-
cultural impacts and 
consultation with the 
Island’s communities, the 
County Council will expect 
all proposals to: all 
proposals must:””  

 

Reject The purpose of the SPG is to 
set out further guidance and 
advice on the application of the 
JLDP policies only. The 
change suggested would 
introduce new criteria and 
therefore goes beyond the 
scope of the SPG. 

27 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP9b - 
Maintaining 
and Creating 
Cohesive 
Communities 
– Campus 
Style 
Temporary 
Accommodati
on for 
Construction 
Workers  

 

Object GP9b states that proposals for 
temporary campus style 
accommodation for construction 
workers must be located in 
accordance with the sequential 
approach set out in JLDP Policy 
PS10.  
 

This reference to the sequential 
approach is supported, however 
should be strengthened to 
reflect wording in PS10 which 

DELETE:  
“The Wylfa Newydd project 
promoter must ensure that 
proposals for campus 
style accommodation for 
construction workers are 
located in accordance 
with the sequential 
approach set out in JLDP 
Policy PS10 in order to 
mitigate effects on 
existing communities on 
the Island and promote 

Reject The purpose of the SPG is to 
set out further guidance and 
advice on the application of the 
JLDP policies only. The 
change suggested would 
introduce new criteria and 
therefore goes beyond the 
scope of the SPG. 

P
age 62



31 
 

references not just location but 
also demonstrable need.  
In addition, wording should be 
strengthened to ensure that the 
proposed considerations are 
adhered to.   
 

sustainable, cohesive 
communities.”  
 

REPLACE WITH:  
“In order to mitigate 
effects on existing 
communities on the Island 
and promote sustainable, 
cohesive communities, 
the Wylfa Newydd project 
promoter must firstly 
demonstrate that 
proposals for campus 
style accommodation for 
construction workers 
satisfy a demonstrable 
demand for temporary 
accommodation for 
construction workers that 
cannot be met through 
either existing residential 
accommodation, or the re-
use of existing buildings, 
or the provision of new 
permanent buildings 
capable of being adapted 
for permanent use 
following their use by 
construction workers.  
Once the demand has 
been demonstrated, the 
proposal must be located 
on the Wylfa Newydd 
Project site or a site 
located adjacent to or well 

P
age 63



32 
 

related to the 
development boundary of 
Holyhead, Amlwch, 
Llangefni, Gaerwen or 
Valley and close to the 
main highway network 
where adequate access 
can be provided without 
significantly harming 
landscape characteristics 
and features and also 
takes account of policy 
preference for use of 
previously developed 
land.”  
 

AMEND: 
“Such campuses should 
must not be situated so as 
to create isolated, 
unsustainable temporary 
communities which do not 
integrate with existing 
services, facilities and 
communities”.  
“In addition to the overall 
approach to all proposals 
set out in GP 9a, when 
responding to proposals 
for campus style 
temporary 
accommodation, the 
County Council will 
particularly must consider 
how proposals.” 

P
age 64



33 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

28 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP10a - 
Permanent 
Housing  

 

Object We support that new permanent 
housing proposed to temporarily 
accommodate construction 
workers should be located in 
accordance with the settlement 
hierarchy and spatial strategy as 
set out in JLDP Strategic Policy 
PS17, focusing new development 
in Holyhead, Llangefni and 
Amlwch.  
 
The JLDP does not take into 
account construction workers in 
its calculation of housing 
requirements and allocations. 
GP10a should therefore 
reference a need for the 
accommodation requirements of 
construction workers to be met in 
a way that minimises impact on 
the local housing market, in line 
with PS9 of the JLDP.  
 
Consideration of legacy uses in 
GP10a is weak and should be 
more strongly worded in line with 
PS9 of the JLDP.  

ADD:  
“Proposals for permanent 
housing to temporarily 
accommodate 
construction workers must 
meet the accommodation 
requirements of 
construction workers in a 
way that minimises impact 
on the local housing 
market, including the 
ability of those on low 
incomes to access the 
private rented sector, 
affordable housing and 
other housing services 
and must not result in 
unacceptable adverse 
economic (including the 
tourism sector), social, 
linguistic or environmental 
impacts.”  
DELETE:  
“The County Council will 
expect that, where 
appropriate, proposals 
include clear consideration 
of the long term legacy 
impacts, and proposals for 
providing long term legacy 

Reject The JLDP housing projections 
include the Wylfa Newydd 
Construction Workers. 

P
age 65



34 
 

benefits, at the earliest 
planning stages.”  
REPLACE WITH:  
“Where proposals are for a 
temporary period both the 
site selection and the 
proposal detail must be 
informed by a 
consideration of legacy 
uses, so that investment in 
elements such as 
infrastructure, buildings, 
ecological and landscape 
works brings long term 
benefits.”  

 

29 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP10b - 
Campus Style 
Temporary 
Construction 
Worker 
Accommodatio
n  
 

Object We support the inclusion of the 
sequential approach but this 
should be strengthened to more 
closely reflect the wording in 
PS10 (consistent with proposed 
wording for GP9b)  
We strongly object to the part of 
GP10b which states that:  
 
“The on-site workers 
accommodation Campus should 
be viewed as the preferred 
solution for accommodating the 
majority of the construction 
workers. Strong reasoned 
justification will be required for 
not maximising the use of this 
Campus in favour of other types 
of accommodation”  

DELETE:  
“Proposals for campus 
style temporary 
construction worker 
accommodation must 
accord with the sequential 
approach to preferred 
development locations and 
other provisions in JLDP 
Policies PS9 and PS10. 
The campus style 
accommodation must be 
located on the Newydd 
site, or a site located 
adjacent to or well related 
to the development 
boundary of Holyhead, 
Amlwch, Llangefni 
Gaerwen or Valley and is 

Accept Ref 8 & Ref 12 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 66



35 
 

 
This statement ignores the 
sequential approach and conflicts 
with the existing SPG and 
Construction Workers 
Accommodation Position 
Statement which put forward a 
preferred option for 1/3 of 
workers to be accommodated in 
purpose built accommodation (a 
minimum on-site to meet 
operational requirements but the 
majority off-site).  
 
It also conflicts with the JLDP 
which states that “Providing 
some modular accommodation in 
temporary buildings on the Wylfa 
Newydd Project site would be 
acceptable where it is supported 
by provision of an appropriate 
level of community facilities and 
the transport impact (including 
workers’ access and parking) can 
be demonstrated to be 
acceptable.”  
The statement offers no 
consideration of community 
facilities or transport impacts.  

close to the main highway 
network where adequate 
access can be provided 
without significantly 
harming landscape 
characteristics and 
features. The proposal 
must also takes account of 
policy preference for use 
of previously developed 
land. Proposals should be 
supported by a robust 
justification of need, 
demonstrating that the 
need cannot be met 
elsewhere in the existing 
housing market or through 
new buildings of 
permanent construction 
located in accordance with 
the JLDP spatial strategy 
and temporarily used to 
house construction 
workers.”  
 
REPLACE WITH:  
“The Wylfa Newydd 
project promoter must 
firstly demonstrate that 
proposals for campus style 
accommodation for 
construction workers 
satisfy a demonstrable 
demand for temporary 
accommodation for 

P
age 67



36 
 

construction workers that 
cannot be met through 
either existing residential 
accommodation, or the re-
use of existing buildings, 
or the provision of new 
permanent buildings 
capable of being adapted 
for permanent use 
following their use by 
construction workers.  
Once the demand has 
been demonstrated, the 
proposal must be located 
on the Wylfa Newydd 
Project site or a site 
located adjacent to or well 
related to the development 
boundary of Holyhead, 
Amlwch, Llangefni, 
Gaerwen or Valley and 
close to the main highway 
network where adequate 
access can be provided 
without significantly 
harming landscape 
characteristics and 
features and also takes 
account of policy 
preference for use of 
previously developed 
land.”  
 
DELETE:  

P
age 68



37 
 

“The on-site workers 
accommodation Campus 
should be viewed as the 
preferred solution for 
accommodating the 
majority of the 
construction workers. 
Strong reasoned 
justification will be 
required for not 
maximising the use of this 
Campus in favour of other 
types of accommodation” 

30 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP12 – 
Tourism 
Accommodati
on  

 

Object GP12 sets out measures to 
ensure that there are no 
significant adverse effects upon 
the tourism sector when 
accommodating the non-home 
based construction workforce.  
The wording should be amended 
to reflect that in PS9 of the SPG.  

AMEND:  
“When accommodating 
the non-homed based 
construction workforce 
within the tourist 
accommodation sector, 
the County Council will 
require the Wylfa Newydd 
project promoter to ensure 
that there are no 
significant adverse effects 
upon that sector there are 
no unacceptable adverse 
economic (including the 
tourism sector), social, 
linguistic or environmental 
impacts in accordance 
with JLDP Policies PS 9 
and PS14”  

 

Accept Ref 19 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 69



38 
 

31 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP13a - New 
Caravan or 
Other Forms of 
Non-
permanent 
Accommodatio
n Sites for 
Temporary 
Residential 
Use  
 

Object GP13a should include and set 
out the sequential approach in 
PS9 of the JLDP.  
PS9 of the JLDP provides further 
information on dealing with 
temporary structures, the detail of 
which should be added to 
GP13a.  
 

ADD:  
“A proposal for a new site 
involving the siting of 
caravans or other forms of 
non permanent 
accommodation for the 
purpose of temporary 
residential use for 
construction workers must 
align with the construction 
worker management 
strategy required by JLDP 
Policy PS9. “The Wylfa 
Newydd project promoter 
must firstly demonstrate 
that proposals for campus 
style accommodation for 
construction workers 
satisfy a demonstrable 
demand for temporary 
accommodation for 
construction workers that 
cannot be met through 
either existing residential 
accommodation, or the re-
use of existing buildings, 
or the provision of new 
permanent buildings 
capable of being adapted 
for permanent use 
following their use by 
construction workers.  
Once the demand has 
been demonstrated, the 
proposal must be located 

Reject GP13 deals with removal of 
temporary accommodation as 
well as the provision of 
permanent accommodation in 
accordance with JLDP Policy 
TWR3. 

P
age 70



39 
 

on the Wylfa Newydd 
Project site or a site 
located adjacent to or well 
related to the development 
boundary of Holyhead, 
Amlwch, Llangefni, 
Gaerwen or Valley and 
close to the main highway 
network where adequate 
access can be provided 
without significantly 
harming landscape 
characteristics and 
features and also takes 
account of policy 
preference for use of 
previously developed 
land.”  
 
DELETE: 
“The project promoter 
should prepare and submit 
a scheme of work for the 
removal of temporary 
structures and for 
restoring any land used for 
ancillary infrastructure and 
services to its original 
state.”  
 
REPLACE WITH:  
“If a future or legacy use 
for any temporary 
development is not 
feasible the Council shall 

P
age 71



40 
 

require that temporary 
buildings are removed; 
and that the serviced land 
is left in a suitable 
condition following the 
removal of the structures 
in accordance with a 
scheme of work submitted 
and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority; or all 
waste disposal facilities, 
roads, parking areas and 
drainage facilities are 
permanently removed 
from the site and the land 
is reverted to its original 
state in accordance with a 
scheme of work submitted 
to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority.”  

32 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP28b - Wylfa 
Newydd Main 
Site Campus 
Style 
Temporary 
Construction 
Worker 
Accommodati
on – Key 
Development 
Principles  

 

Object GP28b sets criteria that 
proposals for campus style 
temporary construction workers 
accommodation should pay 
particular regard to.  
Section i.v. refers to provision of 
facilities to meet the needs of up 
to 4,000 construction workers on 
the site. Reference to this figure 
should be removed as this figure 
has not been justified by any 
evidence or been subject to 
independent examination. It also 
does not align with the JLDP in 

DELETE:  
“The onsite provision of 
leisure, recreation 
(including opportunities for 
education), retail and 
healthcare facilities to 
meet the needs of 
construction workers being 
accommodated on the 
main site. Sufficient 
provision is provided for 
the social, catering, health, 
communication, retail, 
leisure and recreational 
needs of up to 4,000 

Accept Ref 17 & Ref 20 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 72



41 
 

which no reference is made to a 
figure of 4,000.  
 
GP28b also fails to add a 
criterion specifically requiring that 
proposals do not have an 
unacceptable transport impact. 
This should be added, in line with 
para. 6.3.20 of the JLDP.  
In addition, wording should be 
strengthened to ensure that the 
proposed considerations are 
adhered to.  

construction workers on 
the site;”  
 
ADD:  
“Proposals must 
demonstrate that the 
transport impact (including 
workers’ access and 
parking) is acceptable.”  
AMEND:  
“proposals for campus 
style temporary 
construction workers 
accommodation should 
must pay particular regard 
to:” 
 

33 How 
Plannin
g (on 
behalf of 
Land & 
Lakes) 
[002] 

GP32 - The 
Rest of 
Anglesey – 
Key 
Development 
Principles  
 

Object We support paragraph 5.2.26 
which states that:  
 

“It remains the County Council’s 
view that the proposed Land and 
Lakes development is a 
preferred opportunity to deliver 
construction worker 
accommodation that provides a 
lasting legacy benefit beyond the 
construction period of Wylfa 
Newydd (in the form of housing, 
major tourism development, 
employment and community 
facilities and services).”  
 

However, the wording should be 
strengthened to remove the 

AMEND:  
“It remains the County 
Council’s view that the 
proposed Land and Lakes 
development is a the 
preferred opportunity to 
deliver construction worker 
accommodation that 
provides a lasting legacy 
benefit beyond the 
construction period of 
Wylfa Newydd (in the form 
of housing, major tourism 
development, employment 
and community facilities 
and services).”  
 

Reject Ref 13 (Focussed Change) 
 
Reject, however the paragraph 
has been amended to align 
with the JLDP (paragraph 
6.3.21) which required the 
developer to consider 
consented sites.  

P
age 73



42 
 

possibility of there being any 
other developments that are 
equally preferred. This assertion 
should be also contained within 
GP32 rather than in supporting 
text.  
 

This statement should be 
included within GP32.  

34 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

General (in 
response to Q2 
of the 
Response 
From) 

Object The Guiding Principles seem to 
deviate from those contained 
within the previous SPG and the 
policy stance approved and 
adopted in the JLDP.  This 
change must surely be beyond 
the guidance given by Welsh 
Government in the PPG? 
 

Need to better align with 
JLDP and Planning Policy 
Wales guidance.  

Reject No specific examples given of 
how the SPG deviates from 
the JLDP and Planning Policy 
Wales (PPW).  
 
The IACC believe the SPG is 
consistent with the JLDP & 
PPW and therefore this 
comment was rejected.  

35 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Locational 
Guidance (in 
response to Q3 
of the 
Response 
From). 

Object No. 
The JLDP gives clear locational 
direction and this introduces a 
new policy direction which would 
undermine the Council’s 
sequential approach as contained 
in the JLDP. 
 

Remove reference to 
‘North Anglesey’ and ‘Rest 
of Anglesey’.  

Reject As set out at Rep 21 above, 
the SPG does not change the 
status of the settlements but 
allows further guidance and 
advice to be given at suitable 
locational level to be useful to 
applicants in assessing the 
impacts as required by JLDP 
policy PS9. 

36 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Locational 
Guidance (in 
response to Q4 
of the 
Response 
From). 

Object No. 
The locational issues are 
included already in the approved 
Development Plan and such any 
‘Guidance’ contained within the 
SPG should firstly follow these 
policies.  If there is a need for 
land use based Locational 
Guidance it should focus in on 
the areas identified within the 

Follow settlement 
hierarchy for Locational 
Guidance.  

Reject No specific examples given. 
The IACC believe that the 
SPG does follow the 
settlement hierarchy in 
accordance with the JLDP. 

P
age 74



43 
 

JLDP – Holyhead, Llangefni and 
Amlwch. 
 

37 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

General (in 
response to Q5 
of the 
Response 
From). 

Object This question  indicates that this 
Response Form has asked a 
number of specific questions, 
however, looking back at the form 
you have asked a total of 7 
questions -  one question 
regarding my understanding of 
the need for the revised SPG (1); 
one question regarding the 
Guiding Principles (2), three 
questions regarding the 
Locational Guidance (3,4 and 6), 
one question regarding the 
general content of the SPG (5) 
and one question on how I was 
made aware of this consultation 
(7). The questions asked are 
therefore very much focused on 
the Locational Guidance which 
seems an odd topic to focus on 
bearing in mind the wide variety 
of other topics rightly contained 
within the Draft SPG.  
 

More questions required 
on contents of SPG rather 
than the Locational 
Guidance.  

Reject The point is noted.  However, 
as the Vision and Objectives of 
the SPG remain unchanged 
from the 2014 SPG (apart from 
the inclusion of the word 
‘wellbeing’ to reflect the 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act), the 
questions asked in the 
Response Form focused on 
the main changes, which were 
related to the locational 
guidance.  
 
The IACC explicitly stated that 
written comments were 
welcomed on any part of the 
SPG and representations are 
not limited to this Response 
Form.  

38 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

North Anglesey 
Place Plan (in 
response to Q6 
of the 
Response 
Form). 

Object No.  
The JLDP was only recently 
approved following a lengthy and 
detailed examination in public.  
The JLDP, as far as I can see, 
makes no reference to the 
specific requirement for a North 
Anglesey Place Plan based on 

No need for North 
Anglesey Place Plan.  

Accept The point is noted. This 
question was raised in the 
SPG Response Form to gain 
the views of the public on the 
potential to develop a Place 
Plan for North Anglesey.   

P
age 75



44 
 

the Wylfa Newydd development. 
The JLDP does, however, 
contain ‘Wylfa Newydd specific 
policies’ which refer to the 
approved settlement hierarchy in 
order to direct some 
developments away from, and 
protect the rural areas into areas 
within or close to Holyhead, 
Llangefni or Amlwch. If there is a 
need for a Place Plan, then it 
should be focused on these 
larger settlements which are 
better able to accommodate the 
scale of development required by 
Wylfa Newydd and help create a 
sustainable legacy for the Island 
following completion of the 
nuclear new build. 
 

39 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 18 
1.3.8. 

Clarity The term ‘project promoter’ 
relates to both Horizon and any 
other third parties proposing 
development in direct response 
to the Wylfa Newydd Project (for 
example, the provision of 
construction worker 
accommodation or related 
employment uses). 
 
Is this correct. Is the Council 
identifying developers, other than 
Horizon, as Project Promoters 
and does this allow them some 
‘special status’? 

Clarity required on the 
definition of ‘project 
promoter’.  

Reject The definition of project 
promoter has been amended 
for clarity and only refers to 
Horizon – Ref 1A (Focused 
change).  
 
While it is anticipated that 
Horizon as the promoter of the 
Wylfa Newydd Nuclear site will 
bring forward the majority of 
any related development it is 
entirely open to any other 
applicant to make applications 
to which this SPG will apply. 
The provision of certain 

P
age 76



45 
 

elements, plans and services 
will require to be delivered by 
the project promoter rather 
than any third party applicant 
and this distinction has been 
made clearer throughout the 
SPG. 

40 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 42 & 43 
Objective 2 

Object Objective 2: To ensure that the 
Wylfa Newydd Project drives the 
transformation of the Anglesey 
and North Wales economies and 
maximises opportunities for the 
employment and up-skilling of 
local people. 

 

vii. Ensuring that associated and 
related development sites (such 
as employment, transport and 
logistics uses) are both in 
suitable locations for effective 
access to the main Wylfa 
Newydd site and are aligned with 
relevant national planning policy 
and the spatial strategy of the 
JLDP, so as to provide a positive 
employment legacy use; 

 

viii. Protecting the tourism 
economy and seeking 
opportunities to grow this sector 
through the Wylfa Newydd 
Project; 
 
 

No direct mention of 
Legacy in any of the SPG 
Objectives at page 40 but 
included in the detail. 
Legacy should be directly 
referred to in the 
Objective.  
 
 
Legacy is included in the 
detail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is supported.  
 

Reject The IACC is content that the 
Objectives of the SPG will 
deliver a positive lasting 
legacy. 

P
age 77



46 
 

41 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 45 
Objective 3 

Object Objective 3: To ensure that the 
Wylfa Newydd Project delivers 
significant and enduring 
infrastructure benefits to the 
Island’s communities. 
 
ii. Delivering construction workers 
accommodation without 
adversely affecting the local 
housing market or the Island’s 
tourist accommodation offer and 
ensuring that this development 
provides a lasting legacy benefit; 
 
vii. Encouraging associated and 
related developments to be 
located in such a way that 
supports the sustainability of the 
Island’s rural and urban 
communities; 

Legacy should be included 
in the Objective as well as 
in the detail that follows so 
as to highlight the 
importance of sustainable 
legacy coming from the 
main Project. 

Reject The IACC is content that the 
Objectives of the SPG will 
deliver a positive lasting 
legacy. 

42 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 48 
Objective 4 

Object Objective 4: To ensure that the 
Wylfa Newydd Project supports 
improvements to the quality of life 
(including health, housing, well-
being and amenity) of the Island’s 
residents, visitors and workers 
during its construction and 
operation. 
 

Change wording. Project 
Promoters and other third-
party developers should 
be required to explain in 
detail how these will be 
achieved and enter into 
Section 106 Agreements 
to ensure compliance. 
 

Reject GP24 of the SPG deals with 
Planning Obligations. Entering 
into a section 106 Agreement 
is the mechanism to achieve 
the objective/outcome. It 
should not form part of the 
objective in itself.   

43 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 87 & 89 
GP 9a 
Maintaining 
and Creating 
Cohesive 
Communities 

Clarity In partnership with relevant 
organisations, the project 
promoter should identify where 
opportunities exist to enhance 
community cohesion and tackle 
social inequalities. In particular, 

There is reference to the 
project promoter here. Is 
this specifically targeted at 
Horizon as the nuclear 
new build promoter or 
does it include other 

Accept Ref 22 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 78



47 
 

 the County Council would 
encourage the project promoter 
to work alongside itself and Mon 
CF to identify how the Wylfa 
Newydd Project (alone and in 
combination with other 
investment projects on the 
Island), through housing, 
education, jobs and services and 
facilities provision, can facilitate 
regeneration in the Island’s most 
deprived communities; 
 

possible ‘project 
promoters’ in a looser 
definition? 

44 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 89 
GP 9b 
Maintaining 
and Creating 
Cohesive 
Communities – 
Campus Style 
Temporary 
Accommodatio
n for 
Construction 
Workers 
 

Clarity The Wylfa Newydd project 
promoter must ensure that 
proposals for campus style 
accommodation for construction 
workers are located in 
accordance with the sequential 
approach set out in JLDP Policy 
PS10 in order to mitigate effects 
on existing communities on the 
Island and promote sustainable, 
cohesive communities. Such 
campuses should not be situated 
so as to create isolated, 
unsustainable temporary 
communities which do not 
integrate with existing services, 
facilities and communities. 

I assume that this is 
directed at Horizon as the 
nuclear developer. 
However, the wording 
seems to promote them to 
have a Planning Authority 
status. While accepting 
that Horizon will have an 
influence over the location 
of any Campus Style 
accommodation is it not 
for the deciding authorities 
(PINS / LPA) to ensure the 
sequential approach 
should be followed? 

Accept Ref 23 (Focussed Change) 

45 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 91   
 
4.4 
Accommodatio
n for 

Object
. 

Whilst it is recognised that there 
may be a need for some campus 
style temporary accommodation 
at the main site, with the project 
promoter suggesting that this 

Alignment with JLDP PS9 
& PS10 required. Robust 
evidence needed to house 
up to 4,000 workers on-
site.  

Accept Ref 17 & Ref 20 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 79



48 
 

Construction 
Workers 
 

could be for up to 4,000 workers, 
in view of its rural and remote 
location, and reflecting existing 
national and local planning policy, 
such development will require to 
be justified by robust evidence 
and provide services and facilities 
in accordance with JLDP Policies 
PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related 
Development and PS10: Wylfa 
Newydd – Campus style 
Temporary Accommodation for 
Construction Workers. 

46 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 99 
 
GP 10b 
Campus Style 
Temporary 
Construction 
Worker 
Accommodatio
n 
 

Object Proposals for campus style 
temporary construction worker 
accommodation must accord with 
the sequential approach to 
preferred development locations 
and other provisions in JLDP 
Polices PS9 and PS10. The 
campus style accommodation 
must be located on the Newydd 
site, or a site located adjacent to 
or well related to the 
development boundary of 
Holyhead, Amlwch, Llangefni 
Gaerwen or Valley and is close to 
the main highway network where 
adequate access can be provided 
without significantly harming 
landscape characteristics and 
features. The proposal must also 
takes account of policy 
preference for use of previously 
developed land. 

The reference to the 
Newydd site seems odd 
when considering the 
policy and the wording at 
page 91. 
I do not understand how, 
following the sequential 
approach, the Council 
could include the Campus 
on the Wylfa site unless 
this is for the lower 
number ‘’essential 
workforce’’ argument 
 
There are statement 
seems to completely 
disregard the policies and 
the preceding statements 
under this heading and 
should be deleted. 

Accept Ref 12 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 80



49 
 

 
The on-site workers 
accommodation Campus should 
be viewed as the preferred 
solution for accommodating the 
majority of the construction 
workers. Strong reasoned 
justification will be required for 
not maximising the use of this 
Campus in favour of other types 
of accommodation. 

47 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 221 & 
222 
5.2.26 

Clarity A major leisure and residential 
development has been granted 
planning permission within and 
adjacent to the development 
boundary of Holyhead to the 
south of the AoS 

(Land at Penrhos, Cae Glas and 
Kingsland). The proposed Land 
and Lakes development includes, 
amongst other elements, the 
provision of 315 holiday lodges at 
Penrhos and Cae Glas and a 
residential development of up to 
320 dwellings at Kingsland. The 
Cae Glas and Kingsland sites 
have been promoted by the 
developer for temporary use as 
workers accommodation for the 
construction of Wylfa Newydd. 
However, Horizon has removed 
the site from its consideration of 
locations for accommodation and 
now instead favours a campus of 
up to 4,000 bed spaces at the 

If the proposed Cae Glas 
and Kingsland 
development (which 
already has planning 
approval) is the Council’s 
preferred option for the 
location of the Worker 
Campus it should be 
reefed to earlier in the 
document in terms of a 
location that is consistent 
with the JLDP policies and 
gives the community a 
sustainable legacy. 

Accept Ref 13 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 81



50 
 

main site. It remains the County 
Council’s view that the proposed 
Land and Lakes development is a 
preferred opportunity to deliver 
construction worker 
accommodation that provides a 
lasting legacy benefit beyond the 
construction period of Wylfa 
Newydd (in the form of housing, 
major tourism development, 
employment and community 
facilities and services). 

48 Arthur 
W Owen 
[003] 

Page 226 
 
GP 33 
Holyhead and 
Environs 
 

Clarity The County Council prefers that 
the project promoter makes 
appropriate use of the approved 
development opportunities at Cae 
Glas to provide construction 
worker accommodation within the 
Holyhead and Environs AoS. 
 
The County Council would 
support appropriate use of the 
permitted permanent residential 
development opportunities at 
Kingsland. 

Should this also include 
Kingsland? 

Accept Ref 24 (Focussed Change) 

49 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

Paragraph 
2.1.2 

Clarity Paragraph 2.1.2 of the SPG 
states that the “National Policy 
Statements (NPSs) set out the 
UK wide criteria by which 
applications for NSIPs will be 
determined by the Secretary of 
State. NPS EN-1 (2011) relates 
to energy infrastructure whilst 
NPS EN-6 addresses nuclear 
power generation and together 

Include reference to the 
preparation of a new NPS 
for Nuclear (EN-6). 

Accept Ref 25 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 82



51 
 

they will provide the principal 
decision making framework for 
the Planning Inspectorate in 
respect of Wylfa Newydd”. The 
SPG should acknowledge that 
the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(DBEIS) are beginning the 
process towards developing a 
new National Policy Statement 
(NPS) for nuclear power stations 
(EN-6). 
 

50 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

General 
(Planning 
Policy section).  

Clarity The SPG should acknowledge 
that, in light of the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015, Welsh Government are 
proposing to revise Planning 
Policy Wales (PPW). There is a 
current consultation on Edition 10 
of PPW.  
 

Reference the preparation 
/ consultation of the 
revised PPW Edition 10.  

Accept Ref 26 (Focussed Change) 

51 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

Paragraph 
1.5.8 

Clarity Paragraph 1.5.8 of the draft SPG 
refers to “Regulation 61(1) of The 
Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010”. 
Please note that the 2010 
Habitats Regulations have been 
replaced by the consolidated 
Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 
Regulations. We note that the 
2017 Regulations are being 
referred to in the HRA for the 
draft SPG.  

Replace reference to “The 
Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations 
2010” with “Conservation 
of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017”.  

Accept Ref 27 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 83



52 
 

 

52 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

Paragraph 
4.10.2 & Topic 
Paper 1.  

Clarity There are references in both the 
draft SPG (paragraph 4.10.2) and 
Topic Paper 1: Natural 
Environment (paragraph 3.2.2) 
documents to the Ynys Feurig, 
the Skerries and Cemlyn Bay 
Special Protection Area (SPA). 
Please note that this SPA has 
been extended, reclassified and 
renamed as the Anglesey Terns 
SPA. There is also no reference 
to the North Anglesey Marine 
Candidate Special Area of 
Conservation (cSAC) in these 
documents. Figure 4.2 of the 
draft SPG and Figure 3.1 of the 
Topic Paper 1 need to be 
updated accordingly. However, 
we note that the Anglesey Terns 
SPA and North Anglesey Marine 
cSAC are referred to and 
considered in the HRA 
undertaken for the SPG which 
include recommendations that 
the guidance in the ‘Key Issues’ 
section is amended accordingly.  
 

Update SPG to reflect 
correct designations.   

Accept Ref 28 (Focussed Change) 

53 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

Paragraph 
5.1.32 

Clarity Paragraph 5.1.32 states that 
“Tre'r Gof SSSI is situated within 
the boundary of the main Wylfa 
Newydd site. NPS EN-6 
highlights that this rich fen habitat 
could be subject to direct and/or 
indirect effects associated with 

 Accept Ref 29 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 84



53 
 

changes to water quality or 
quantity but that it is anticipated 
that sufficient land is available 
within the site for the 
development of a new nuclear 
power station without 
permanently affecting any 
designated area”. Please note 
that, as highlighted in HNP’s 
Section 42 consultation on 
Additional Land, there is the 
potential for permanent effects on 
Tre’r Gȏf SSSI.  
 

54 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

General Clarity NRW consider that greater clarity 
is required in the SPG as to 
which of the policies in the Joint 
Local Development Plan that the 
SPG underpins.  
 

Further cross-reference 
with JLDP.  

Reject The IACC believe that there is 
sufficient cross reference to 
the JLDP in the SPG.  If NRW 
can provide specific examples, 
the IACC will consider and will 
include further cross 
references where necessary. 

55 Cyfoeth 
Naturiol 
Cymru / 
Natural 
Resourc
e Wales  
[004] 

General Clarity NRW consider that there are 
Guiding Principles that would 
have the pathway to potentially 
generate likely significant effects. 
For example, Guiding Principle 
15: Transport “aims to maximise 
the use of sea transport, and 
advocates the enhancement of 
the port facilities at Holyhead 
including improved capacity and 
the Marine Off-loading Facility at 
the main Wylfa Newydd site”. 
Works in the marine environment 
have the potential to generate 

Ensure That protecting the 
environment is considered 
in each relevant GP.  

Accept Ref 30 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 85



54 
 

significant effects. However, we 
note paragraph 1.4.3 of the SPG 
that states “the SPG cannot be a 
vehicle to formulate new policies 
or to ‘allocate’ land for 
development; guidance in this 
SPG should not be read as 
having these effects”. In addition, 
NRW consider that there are 
measures set out within the 
Guiding Principles to ensure that 
the environment will not be 
adversely affected as a result of 
the SPG.  
 

56 Gordon 
Warren 
– 
Amlwch 
Town 
Councill
or [005] 

Topic Paper 5 Suppo
rt / 
Clarity
.  

Gaerwen – Amlwch rail line: the 
SPG main document and Topic 
paper 5 Transport make  
reference to the Gaerwen - 
Amlwch rail line. The Welsh 
Government now supports 
reopening of Llangefni station 
and reinstating the line to 
Rhosgoch and Amlwch would 
provide effective transport during 
construction and a valuable 
legacy for North Anglesey. 
Provision should be included in 
the SPG. 

SPG should include 
reference to the ‘lein 
Amlwch’.  

Reject Although the IACC recognise 
the legacy potential of 
reopening lein Amlwch, it does 
not form part of Horizon’s 
project proposal and would not 
be operational to align with 
Horizon’s timescale. Not 
appropriate for SPG to include 
guidance, which does not align 
with JLDP policy or the project 
proposal.  

57 Gordon 
Warren 
– 
Amlwch 
Town 

Transport Object Transport: In addition to the 
above point, there is too little 
emphasis on the need to improve 
the A5025 between Amlwch and 
Wylfa; and addressing the 
challenge of preventing 

Need reference to the 
A5025 between Wylfa and 
Amlwch and to prevent ‘rat 
runs’ on other local roads.  

Accept Ref 31 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 86



55 
 

Councill
or [005] 

Rhosgoch- Llanfechell – Tregele 
becoming a ‘rat run’ 

58 Gordon 
Warren 
– 
Amlwch 
Town 
Councill
or [005] 

4.4. 
Construction 
Workers 
Accommodatio
n 

Object Temporary Accommodation for 
workers on site: The SPG 
appears to accept this as a given 
in contradiction of the position of 
the North Anglesey Partnership. 
Either the SPG should challenge 
this element of Horizon’s plans or 
place greater emphasis on 
mitigating impact upon 
neighbouring communities. 

Need clarity on IACC’s 
position with regards to 
the on-site Campus. 
Mitigation for neighbouring 
communities also needs to 
be considered.  

Accept Ref 32 (Focussed Change) 

59 Gordon 
Warren 
– 
Amlwch 
Town 
Councill
or [005] 

Mitigation Clarity Near Neighbours: There are 
several references to mitigation 
and/or compensation measures, 
e.g. p43,45. Who will decide what 
measures or compensation will 
be appropriate and how will the 
developer be held to account?  
 
Horizon published a 
Neighbourhood Support Scheme 
in 2014. This refers to intended  
plans for mitigation. These are 
still not available. The proposals 
for compensation are  
very basic. The SPG should refer 
to ensuring the compensation is 
at least comparable  
with other National infrastructure 
projects e.g. Heathrow and HS2. 
 

Need to ensure that 
mitigation measures are 
delivered through 
appropriate requirements / 
conditions and that 
monitoring is in place to 
ensure 
compliance/delivery.  

Reject This is already included in 
GP24 of the SPG.  

60 Gordon 
Warren 
– 

Place Plan (in 
response to Q6 
of the 

Suppo
rt 

A ‘Place Plan’ is essential for 
North Anglesey. This should be 
prepared by the area’s Town and 

Place Plan required for 
North Anglesey to deal 

Accept The IACC note that Amlwch 
Town Council would wish to 
see a Place Plan developed 

P
age 87



56 
 

Amlwch 
Town 
Councill
or [005] 

Response 
Form) 

community councils working 
together to consult with and 
represent the interest of the most 
affected communities. This work 
should proceed as a matter of 
urgency. 
 

with the challenges of 
Wylfa Newydd.  

for North Anglesey to deal with 
the challenges of Wylfa 
Newydd.  

61 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General  Clarity NWWT welcome the emphasis 
placed on the Natural 
Environment in the SPG, as a 
strong theme throughout the 
document as identified in the 
Vision – Objective 7 and in many 
of the Guidance Points. NWWT 
also welcome the overarching 
adoption of the mitigation 
hierarchy (para 4.1.1) of 
avoidance of impacts in the first 
instance followed by mitigation 
and where necessary 
compensation, which reflects the 
Policy approach of EN-6.  
 

NWWT would recommend 
that in places the Guiding 
Principles(GPs) are 
strengthened to reflect the 
supporting policy of both 
the JLDP, along with 
national and international 
guidance and in order to 
make the SPG more 
internally consistent. This 
includes suggested 
adjustments to 
terminology, such as 
removing “seeking to 
conserve [protect] the 
Island’s unique natural 
environment” (GP15 & 
GP21), but instead altering 
this to indicate upfront in 
policy terms within the 
GPs that the Council will 
ensure the Island’s unique 
natural environment is 
conserved and enhanced, 
where the first priority is to 
avoid significant impacts, 
as reflected in the 

Accept Ref 33 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 88



57 
 

mitigation hierarchy (NPS 
EN-6).  
 

62 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General  Suppo
rt 

NWWT very much support the 
Council’s adopted approach to 
the consideration of enabling & 
associated projects under TCPA; 
as a start to the Wylfa Newydd 
Project and the consequent need 
to consider the whole project and 
its cumulative and in-combination 
impacts in the determination of 
any TCPA applications. This is 
particularly relevant to the 
consideration of impacts on the 
Natura 2000 network (SACs, 
SPAs and Ramsar) and on 
nationally designated SSSIs.  
 

Consideration of 
cumulative and in-
combination effects.  

Accept Noted. 

63 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General Suppo
rt 

NWWT would very much 
encourage IACC to include the 
elements of the Precautionary 
Principle as enshrined in The 
Conservation of Habitats & 
Species Regulations within the 
SPG. The SPG already 
recognises the 
uncertainty/unquantifiable/unfore
seeable nature of some of the 
Project’s impacts over such a 
lengthy construction period and 
on-going operation and the 
inclusion of the Precautionary 
Principle (as defined by Europe) 
would be consistent with the 

Include reference to the 
precautionary principle.  

Reject The precautionary principle 
applies during Habitats 
Regulations Appraisal, the 
carrying out of that appraisal is 
a legal duty on the Council 
where it is the competent 
authority and it is not 
necessary to express an 
intention to apply it in the SPG.   

P
age 89



58 
 

approach already taken by the 
Council (cf fig 1.1 taken from the 
Environment (Wales) Act and 
North Anglesey Key 
Development Principles GP27 
v.).  
 
 

64 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General Suppo
rt 

NWWT are encouraged to see a 
focus on Climate Change and 
Adaptation (GP19 & GP20), but 
would suggest that this is taken 
more broadly and reflects not 
only that the Wylfa Newydd 
Project should be resilient as a 
built development to these 
impacts as proposed by the SPG. 
The Wylfa Newydd development 
may have consequences which 
impact on other features of the 
Island (eg Cemlyn Bay SAC) and 
reduce their ability to be resilient 
to climate change.  
 

NWWT strongly suggest 
that close reading is given 
to the Shore Line 
Management Plan (2011 
Section 4 Coastal Area G 
PDZ 18) as well as 
Appendix 6 of the JLDP 
Coastal Change 
Management Area, which 
identifies the policy for 
Managed Realignment in 
the 1st epoch for Cemlyn 
Bay and potential for its 
continuation into epoch 2. 
This, it is suggested, 
should lead IACC to the 
identification in the 
Guiding Principles of the 
role that the Wylfa 
Newydd Project can play 
by both reducing its 
impacts, but also in 
mitigating them in terms of 
coastal squeeze (GP19 & 
GP20) and waste 
management (GP17). 

Reject Too detailed for SPG. These 
impacts will be assessed as 
part of the DCO application 
(and benchmarked against 
JLDP policy position where 
relevant).  

P
age 90



59 
 

65 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General – 
Construction 
Workers 
Accommodatio
n (on-site) 

Object As IACC are no doubt aware, the 
Wildlife Trust have an objection in 
principal to housing 4,000 
workers at the Temporary Site 
Campus within the WNDA, as the 
impacts associated with this 
feature can be avoided on the 
both the features & hydrological 
catchment of water dependant 
fen habitats of Tre’r Gof SSSI. 
Whilst NWWT recognise that the 
County Council must not 
prejudge any submission or seek 
to make an allocation (SPG para 
1.4.3), it is disappointing to note 
the response IACC have taken to 
the project promoters approach 
to this matter and an apparent 
acquiescence in the GPs 
associated with accommodation. 
NWWT object to the emphasis 
provided in GP10b which 
appears, without a reasoned 
justification, to have completely 
altered the Council’s approach to 
the accommodation issue as it 
was adopted in the 2014 SPG. 
The 2014 iteration of the SPG 
sought a 1/3 mix across three 
sectors; purpose built, private 
rented and tourist stock, with 
essential construction worker 
accommodation at the main 
[NNB] site being limited in scale. 
Additionally, it is our very strong 

Need to review GP10b 
and IACC’s position on on-
site construction workers 
accommodation. 
 
IACC’s sequential 
approach to the settlement 
hierarchy is inconsistent.  
 
GP10a and GP10b are 
inconsistent (and the 
position is inconsistent 
with other areas of the 
SPG).  

Accept Ref 8 & Ref 12 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 91



60 
 

contention that the current 
approach adopted within GP10a 
and GP10b is internally 
inconsistent with other policies 
within the consultation draft of the 
SPG. This is particularly evident 
in Welsh Government guidance 
(Prosperity for All 2017) and 
IACC wishing to achieve 
permanent lasting legacy benefits 
(cf SPG Vision - Objective 3 para 
3.2.4 ii & GP10a item b, along 
with Locational Guidance GP36, 
para 5.1.32, 5.2.26 & 5.2.43) and 
the reduction of carbon loading 
by endorsing the principles of 
permanent rather than temporary 
structures (Vision - Objective 7 iii 
and para 4.9.3).  
The introduction by the project 
promoter of the Temporary Site 
Campus is contrary to achieving 
sustainable development in-line 
with national policy and NPS EN-
6, which includes implementation 
of the mitigation hierarchy of 
avoidance in the first instance. In 
the same manner it is also 
contrary to TAN5 and the local 
JLDP (cf SPG para 1.2.1 & 4.1.1 
and JLDP Table 23 and Policy 
PS19). There also seems to be 
an inherent internal contradiction 
between the stated IACC 
sequential approach to 

P
age 92



61 
 

accommodation of GP9b, which 
is reinforced by JLDP PS9 & 
PS10. It is NWWT’s view that the 
Temporary Site Campus would 
be rejected in any other 
circumstances, due to its physical 
scale (24 blocks with 4 up to 7 
storeys); social scale to house a 
population almost 3 times greater 
than the nearest settlement 
(Cemaes pop at 2011 1,300); 
with such unacceptable impacts 
on a nationally designated SSSI 
and other consequent matters 
that NWWT do not currently have 
the ability to comment on.  
 

66 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Page 169 – 
Tre Gof SSSI. 

Object NWWT strongly resist the stated 
notion that enhancement can be 
achieved at Tre’r Gof SSSI (cf 
Character Area - Main Wylfa Site 
para bottom page 169) and 
advise that this is misleading and 
should be removed from the 
SPG. The developer, prior to the 
introduction of the 4,000 
Temporary Site Campus at the 
late stage PAC3 consultation 
(October 2017), had already 
agreed that off-site compensation 
would be necessary for the 
impacts to the SSSI from the 
location of landscape mounding 
to dispose of spoil from the power 
station voids. These impacts, 

Remove reference to the 
notion that enhancement 
can be achieved at Tre 
Gof SSSI.  

Accept Ref 29 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 93



62 
 

whilst one is avoidable, produce 
cumulative impacts on the SSSI 
which result in an extremely 
unfavourable outcome for the 
future of the SSSIs dependant 
hydrological regime (as 
evidenced by HNP’s own 
analysis). Additionally, the 
statement that the site for the 
Temporary Site Campus could be 
reinstated to its current condition, 
is also erroneous given the need 
to disrupt the existing superficial 
groundwater flows and surface 
water drainage patterns to create 
building platforms and introduce 
necessary service provision for 
the Temporary Site Campus.  
 
 

67 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Construction 
workers 
accommodatio
n (on-site).  

Object  NWWT rejects and remonstrates 
IACC for its approach to the 
Temporary Site Campus of 4,000 
worker at Wylfa Newydd site and 
challenges it, as it makes the 
SPG untenable and a 
contradictory piece of guidance 
that will not assist in making a 
balanced planning decision. We 
strongly recommend that the Isle 
of Anglesey County Council 
reconsider the approach it has 
taken to this matter and 
redresses the policy balance in 
the SPG.  

IACC to reconsider its 
position on on-site 
construction workers 
accommodation.  

Accept IACC note the NWWT’s 
position on the On-site 
Construction Worker 
Accommodation. 
 
The IACC have provided 
further clarity in GP28b on the 
onsite campus and GP9b and 
GP10b for temporary workers 
accommodation outside the 
main Wylfa Newydd Site.  
 
See Ref 8 & Ref 12 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 94



63 
 

 

68 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Monitoring and 
securing 
obligations.  

Clarity NWWT strongly support the 
approach proposed by IACC of 
requiring monitoring and securing 
obligations, ring fenced 
programmes of mitigation 
(Community Resilience Funds), 
in addition to seeking Voluntary 
Community Benefit Contributions 
which provide additional 
opportunities for enhancement 
outside the planning system.  
 

However, it is NWWT’s 
view that in some areas 
this approach is not taken 
far enough or is not clearly 
defined.  
 

Reject Point noted.  However, specific 
examples would be required in 
order for the IACC to make 
any proposed amendments. 

69 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General - 
Policy Context 

Clarity IACC should make reference to 
the Government’s current 
consultation on the roll-over of 
EN-6 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/
consultations/national-policy-
statement-for-new-nuclear-
above-1gw-post-2025-siting-
criteria-and-process).  
 

Refer to NPS Consultation 
on EN-6.  

Accept Ref 25 (Focussed Change) 

70 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General - 
Visitor Centre 

Clarity In the description of the project 
there is no mention of the 
proposed TCPA for the Visitor 
Centre or temporary viewing 
facilities of the construction site, 
which are picked up later in the 
Locational Guide 5.1.30. It is of 
note that the project promoter is 
not definitive about these 
proposals or their implementation 
timeframes and this has far 
reaching consequences in 

Need clarity on status of 
visitor centre and the 
potential impacts it will 
have on tourism / visitors 
in the immediate 
surrounding area.  

Reject Noted.  However, the Visitor 
Centre is not proposed as part 
of Horizon’s DCO application 
and has therefore not been 
included in the revised SPG. 
 
The Visitor Centre will be 
considered against the policies 
of the JLDP if a planning 
application were made. 

P
age 95

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-new-nuclear-above-1gw-post-2025-siting-criteria-and-process
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-new-nuclear-above-1gw-post-2025-siting-criteria-and-process
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-new-nuclear-above-1gw-post-2025-siting-criteria-and-process
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-new-nuclear-above-1gw-post-2025-siting-criteria-and-process
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/national-policy-statement-for-new-nuclear-above-1gw-post-2025-siting-criteria-and-process


64 
 

relation to tourism and 
visitor/worker footfall and 
management.  
 

71 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General – 
Policy 
Framework  

Clarity There needs to be consistency 
between the different chapters of 
the SPG in the policy and 
guidance quoted. For example; 
Chapter 2 does not include the 
Welsh Government Partnership 
for Growth: Strategy for Tourism 
2013 – 2020 and the Councils 
own Public Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan which are 
referred to in chapter 4. If the 
Policy Framework in Chapter 2 is 
too strategic then such 
documents should be pulled into 
the appropriate Objectives Tables 
of Chapter 3.  
 

Need to review Planning 
Policy context for 
consistency.  

Accept Ref 35 (Focussed Change) 

72 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

General – 
Vision & 
Objectives 

Suppo
rt 

NWWT welcome the list of 
Objectives as presented at 3.2, 
with some minor adjustments to 
ensure that they are internally 
consistent and pick up on 
national guidance.  
 

Minor amendments 
required (outlined below).  

Accept Noted. 

73 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Objective 5 (i) Clarity Objective 5 i. should recognise 
the importance of the seascape 
and marine character areas.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 36 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 96



65 
 

74 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Objective 5 (iii) Clarity Objective 5 iii. should also 
include avoidance of adverse 
impacts from temporary 
accommodation on the natural 
environment.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 37 (Focussed Change) 

75 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Objective 5 Clarity Objective 5 plans and policies 
should also usefully include 
Welsh Draft Management Plan, 
Anglesey Seascape Character 
Assessment 2013 and NRW 
Landscape Character 
Assessment and Marine 
Character Areas.  
 

Review wording.  Reject Although the IACC recognise 
these are important reference 
documents, they are not plans 
or programmes. These 
documents will be useful 
evidence base for assessing 
any potential impacts.  

76 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Objective 7 (ii) Clarity Objective 7 ii. should be 
strengthened in that in addition to 
seeking permanent biodiversity 
enhancements, it should also 
include the in-perpetuity 
management of mitigation and 
compensation features.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 38 (Focussed Change) 

77 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Objecitve 7 (iv) Clarity Objective 7 iv. should also 
include the sustainable 
management of waste dredged 
materials in-line with OSPAR and 
the beneficial re-use of dredged 
materials policy. This policy 
should also be referred to in the 
supporting table.  
 

Review wording.  Reject Outside the scope / remit of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
These matters will be dealt 
with by NRW and the Welsh 
Government.  

78 North 
Wales 

Objective 7 
(viii) 

Clarity Objective 7 viii. Might usefully be 
amended to include linkages 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 40 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 97



66 
 

Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

between the distinctive 
landscape, seascape and coastal 
environment with not only the 
historic environment but the land-
based/terrestrial natural 
environment. This Objective 
should include the identification 
of the Anglesey Seascape 
Character Assessment 2013.  
 

79 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Guiding 
Principles  
4.1.1 & 4.1.2. 

Suppo
rt 

NWWT welcome the over-arching 
approach taken by IACC to 
project impacts and the 
identification & adoption of the 
avoidance, mitigation, 
compensation. With a clear 
directive of “avoidance in the first 
instance” (para 4.1.1 & 4.1.2). 
We agree with the broad subject 
areas which are presented.  
 

Support the IACC’s 
mitigation hierarchy.  

Accept Noted. 

80 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Figure 4.1 Clarity Note that figure 4.1 is unreadable 
and should occupy a whole page 
in the final printed version. It is 
important that all figures clearly 
show the location and key to 
features of importance, in order 
to allow non-local readers, such 
as the Planning Inspectors, a 
clear grasp of what the Council 
are illustrating.  
 

Review figure 4.1 for final 
draft, ensure that it is 
clearly legible.  

Accept Point noted.  Figure 4.1 has 
been revised to make it more 
clear.  However, it is included 
within the SPG for illustrative 
purposes only.  The JLDP 
constraints map will provide 
the Planning Inspectorate and 
others with a detailed 
illustrations of key constraints.   

81 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 

GP5 – Tourism  Clarity GP5 iv. supporting text should 
include access to the Island’s 
natural & built environment 

Review wording.  Reject Noted.  However, GP5 covers 
the whole of Anglesey and 
therefore the IACC cannot 

P
age 98



67 
 

Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

including local tourist features 
such as Cemlyn Bay Nature 
Reserve, Wylfa Head, and the 
West Coast footpath, so as to link 
with the management plan 
measures.  
 

specify individual natural & 
built environment tourism 
assets. 

82 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP5 - Tourism Clarity This section’s wider text should 
also potentially discuss or link to 
local visitor pressure, visitor 
management and tourist 
infrastructure such as car park 
provision and waymarking and/or 
concessionary access 
arrangements within the vicinity 
of the construction zone. All 
these factors will have a marked 
impact on the existing local 
residential visitors to Wylfa Head, 
Cemlyn Nature Reserve, heritage 
assets and the coastal path to 
Wylfa Head. This has cross-
cutting consequences to health & 
well-being.  
 

Review wording.  Reject The comments are 
site/location specific to North 
Anglesey. These issues are 
addressed in Chapter 5.  

83 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP5 – Tourism  Clarity In GP5 the guidance includes 
identification & implementation of 
measures it should also include 
the word ‘resourced’.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject Dealt with under GP24 – 
Planning Obligations. 

84 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 

GP5 – Tourism Clarity GP5 additional numeric point xii. 
to recognise and therefore 
mitigate the adverse impacts of 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 42 (Focussed Change). 

P
age 99



68 
 

Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

visitor pressure on European, 
national sites and local sites 
which would then encompass 
Wylfa Head Wildlife Site and the 
coastal RIGS (Regionally 
Important Geological Site) as 
Cemlyn Bay Nature Reserve.  
 

85 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP5 – Tourism Clarity It is also unclear why there is no 
guidance from IACC of when they 
anticipate the permanent Visitor 
Centre coming forward and 
whether it should be promoted 
and resourced by the Wylfa 
Project promoter and secured 
through appropriate obligations.  
 

Clarity required as to why 
reference to Horizon’s 
visitor centre is not 
included in this section.  

Reject Point noted.  However as 
outlined in Rep 70 above, the 
Visitor Centre is not proposed 
as part of Horizon’s DCO 
application and has therefore 
not been included in the 
revised SPG. 

86 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Health & Well-
being – 
Supporting 
Healthy 
Lifestyles 
Paragraph 
4.3.11 

Clarity At paragraph 4.3.11 the facilities 
listed should also include access 
to nature reserves and sensitive 
habitats as quiet enjoyment of the 
countryside is considered to be 
extremely beneficial to health and 
well-being (ANGSt guidance 
NRW).  
 

Insert wording.  Reject Noted.  This is covered in 
GP8. 

87 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP8 Clarity GP8 could usefully include IACC 
will resist the loss of ‘or damage 
to’ existing open spaces, 
recreational facilities including 
‘nature reserves or other 
sensitive habitats’.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 43 (Focussed Change) 

88 North 
Wales 

GP8 Clarity GP8 at the last paragraph should 
include the phrase secured and 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 44 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 100



69 
 

Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

‘resourced’ through appropriate 
planning mechanisms.  
 

89 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP13a New 
Caravan or 
other Non-
permanent 
Accommodatio
n Sites 

Clarity GP13a v. should include without 
significantly harming the ‘natural 
environment’.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject This wording aligns with Policy 
TWR3, criteria 1 (iii) of the 
JLDP. 

90 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Transport – 
GP15. 

Clarity GP15 iv. should not state seek to 
conserve, but instead should 
indicate it will be constructed to 
‘ensure’ the Island’s built and 
natural environment is conserved 
and where possible enhanced. It 
should also state that where 
adverse impacts adverse impacts 
are avoided and 
mitigation/compensation 
required. This is because the 
A5025 proposal involves both 
national and European protected 
species.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject Please see GP24. 

91 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Utilities – 
GP16 
Paragraph 
4.7.4 

 Paragraph 4.7.4 Llyn Alaw and 
other water supply sites are 
designated SSSI and the 
increase need for potable and/or 
other water supplies should not 
adversely impact the natural 
environment. The ‘natural 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 45 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 101



70 
 

environment’ should also be 
included in the wording of GP16  
 

92 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Waste Section 
4.8 & GP17 

 At 4.8.3 the waste categories 
should also include ‘dredged 
materials’. It is important to also 
recognise that whilst the project 
promoter’s current preferred 
option is to dispose of dredged 
materials at sea there is a 
recognition that some disposal 
may require terrestrial disposal 
options.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject IACC believe that ‘dredged 
materials’ is covered within the 
wider definition of ‘construction 
materials’. The IACC do not 
believe that it is appropriate to 
specify the type of construction 
materials, as we would 
otherwise have to list them all.  

93 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Waste Section 
4.8 & GP17 

Clarity It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is incorporated into the 
discussion to recognise the policy 
guidance of OSPAR and the 
beneficial re-use of dredged 
materials, which could be in the 
form of shoreline protection, 
management and or beach 
recharge.  

 
IACC should consequently 
expect that dredged waste 
materials should be expected to 
fall within the Site Waste 
Management Plan and 
sustainable approach to its 
management. A precedence is in 
place with the Environment 
Agency adopting such an 
approach to the Boston Barrier 
Tidal Project in 2016.  

Consider inserting new 
paragraph to recognise 
the policy guidance of the 
OSPAR and the beneficial 
re-use of dredged 
material.  

Reject The JLDP strongly supports 
the appropriate reuse of waste 
as close to the source as 
possible and the SPG requires 
the waste management plan to 
comply with the waste 
hierarchy. It does not set out 
the details of how that should 
be done as they will form part 
of the detailed plan proposal 
made at application when the 
likely volumes, composition 
and possible uses of waste will 
be known.  

P
age 102



71 
 

 

94 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment  

Clarity  The SPA Ynys Feurig, the 
Skerries & Cemlyn Bay SPA has 
now been incorporated into the 
Anglesey Terns SPA. The text 
should be adjusted to reflect this.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 46 (Focussed Change) 

95 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 

Clarity At paragraph 4.10.2 mention 
should be made of Cae Gwyn 
SSSI which also abuts the WNDA 
boundary.  
 

Review wording. Accept Ref 47 (Focussed Change) 

96 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 
Paragraph 
4.10.2 & 4.10.3 

Clarity This section (para 4.10.2 & 
4.10.3) should also encompass 
locally designated sites – as per 
national guidance – which 
includes Wildlife Sites (WS) and 
Regionally Important Geological 
Sites (RIGS). The relevant sites 
should be listed in the description 
of the area. This should also be 
reflected in the wording of GP21.  
 
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 48 (Focussed Change) 

97 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 
Figure 4.2 

Clarity Figure 4.2 needs to include an 
inset at a larger scale of the 
Wylfa Newydd Project area 
(WNDA) to show clearly the 
location of designated features, 
as it is not clear. It is important 
that all figures clearly show the 
location and key to features of 

Insert larger map of 
WNDA.  

Reject Please refer to JLDP 
constraints map. 
 

P
age 103



72 
 

importance, in order to allow non-
local readers, such as the 
Planning Inspectors, a clear 
grasp of what the Council are 
illustrating.  
 

98 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 
Paragraph 
4.10.6 

Clarity Paragraph 4.10.6 should include 
an intention to ensure the 
implementation of the 
Precautionary Principle where the 
assessment of impacts are 
uncertain and the risk of 
consequential impacts is high as 
is required by the Habitats 
Regulations. This is explained 
fully in the Summary of key 
comments.  
 

Insert wording to reflect 
the precautionary 
principle.  

Reject The precautionary principle 
applies during Habitats 
Regulations Appraisal, the 
carrying out of that appraisal is 
a legal duty on the Council 
where it is the competent 
authority and it is not 
necessary to express an 
intention to apply it in the SPG.   

99 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment  

Clarity GP21 should remove the term 
seek to and should state that 
IACC will ‘ensure’ the 
conservation of the Island’s 
natural environment and 
wherever possible enhanced.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject IACC wording is sufficient as 
it’s ‘seeks to ensure’. 

100 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 

Clarity GP21 xviii should state include 
‘other conservation measures’ in 
addition to habitat creation, as 
habitat creation may not be the 
most appropriate option.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 50 (Focussed Change) 

101 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 

Clarity GP21 should include a statement 
re the monitoring of agreed key 
conservation features during 

Review wording and 
ensure consistency with 
other sections of the SPG.  

Reject This is covered by GP 24. 
GP26.  

P
age 104



73 
 

Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

construction and operation so 
that if additional or unexpected 
adverse impacts are observed 
appropriate remediation can be 
implemented. This approach 
would be consistent with other 
GPs in the SPG.  
 

102 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP21 – 
Natural 
Environment 

Clarity GP21 should also indicate that 
the County Council will seek to 
secure these measures by 
ensuring appropriate funds, 
obligations and/or bonds are 
used via the planning process to 
ensure the longevity/in perpetuity 
management of mitigation, 
compensation or enhancement 
measures. This would provide 
consistency with other Guidance 
Points in the SPG.  
 

Review wording and 
ensure consistency with 
other sections of the SPG. 

Reject This is covered by GP24. 

103 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP22 - The 
Water 
Environment  
Paragraph 
4.10.9 

Clarity Paragraph 4.10.9 should also 
include changes to coastal 
geomorphological process by the 
introduction of new coastal 
defences such as the breakwater 
or as a result of dredging, which 
could adversely affect water 
quality or features that are reliant 
on water quality or hydrological or 
geomorphological processes, 
such as development impacts 
resulting in over-
topping/breaching Esgair Cemlyn 

Review wording.  Reject Paragraphs 4.9.10 and 4.10.10 
require consideration of all 
elements which could affect 
coastal processes and water 
quality and is therefore 
includes the issue raised.  

P
age 105



74 
 

and affecting the water salinity of 
Cemlyn Lagoon SAC.  
 

104 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP22 - The 
Water 
Environment 

Clarity GP22 the introductory paragraph 
should also include ‘coastal 
habitats or features’.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 51 (Focussed Change) 

105 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP22 - The 
Water 
Environment 

Clarity GP22 2nd paragraph should 
include the phrase where 
adverse impacts are identified 
and ‘cannot be avoided’, 
measures……  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 52 (Focussed Change) 

106 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP22 - The 
Water 
Environment 

Clarity GP22 add to the list of measures 
new point vi. Adopt best practise 
guidance to help secure the 
integrity of designated 
geomorphological or 
hydrologically dependant 
features.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 53 (Focussed Change) 

107 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Historic 
Environment  
Figure 4.3 

Clarity Figure 4.3 needs to include an 
inset at a larger scale of the 
Wylfa Newydd Project area 
(WNDA) to show clearly the 
location of designated features, 
as it is not clear. It is important 
that all figures clearly show the 
location and key to features of 
importance, in order to allow non-
local readers, such as the 

Include larger map.  Reject Please see JLDP constraints 
map. 

P
age 106



75 
 

Planning Inspectors, a clear 
grasp of what the Council are 
illustrating.  
 

108 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Facilitating 
Development  

Clarity At 4.12.4 it is suggested that the 
County Council will seek to agree 
sums for each of the identifiable 
programmes to provide ring-
fenced arrangements within the 
Community Resilience Fund or 
other obligations. This would 
provide consistency with GP27 v.  
 

Review wording.  Reject The point is noted, however, 
the IACC believe this is 
sufficiently covered in GP24 
and GP27. 

109 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Facilitating 
Development 

Clarity NWWT note that IACC have 
indicated in their policy that 
Voluntary Community Benefit 
Contributions can be directed 
towards improvements to 
environmental well-being as 
identified in CRoW and NERC 
(Countryside Rights of Way and 
Natural Environment & Rural 
Communities Acts respectively). 
The text may require adjustment 
to incorporate the provisions of 
the new Well-being of Future 
Generations Act.  
 

Review wording.  Reject The IACC believe that the 
wording does not need to be 
adjusted. 

110 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Implementation 
& Monitoring  
Paragraph 
4.13.1 

Clarity Paragraph 4.13.1 should include 
an additional bullet point; the 
changes to the composition of 
populations of agreed key 
habitats/species or features such 
as those of nature conservation 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 55 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 107



76 
 

significance or a qualifying 
feature of a designated site.  
 

111 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
Paragraph 
5.1.13 

Clarity It is very important that the text at 
paragraph 5.1.13 recognises that 
whilst the majority of the Coastal 
Change Management Area has 
no active intervention this is not 
the case for Cemlyn Bay as 
shown in the Shoreline 
Management Plan and Appendix 
6 of the JLDP. There is the 
recognition for the need for 
Managed Realignment in the 1st 

epoch and potential for this to 
spill over into the 2nd epoch 
depending on the results of 
further assessment.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 56 (Focussed Change) 

112 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
Paragraph 
5.1.32 

Clarity At paragraph 5.1.32  

 ‘locally designated Wildlife 
Sites’ should be included.  

 The significant concerns that 
NWWT has with the explanation 
of Tre’r Goff SSSI are covered in 
the summary of key points.  

 Waste Management bullet 
point should include dredged 
materials.  

 Health & well-being bullet point 
– amenity will be also affected by 
increase in large marine vessel 
movements in a currently low 
usage area and by the 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 29 & Ref 57 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 108



77 
 

consequences of 24 hour 
working.  

 Geology bullet point this is not 
just about contamination but also 
about changes to 
geomorphological process 
increasing the magnitude of 
coastal squeeze and 
compounding the effect of climate 
change. This should be 
recognised.  

 Landscape & visual impacts 
The MOLF will not be a 
temporary impact as elements of 
the new harbour facility will be 
retained for the duration of 
operation and the breakwater is a 
permanent feature designed to 
protect the Cooling Water Intake. 
The text should be adjusted.  
 

113 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
GP28a e (ii) 

Clarity GP28a e ii. should include ‘Cae 
Gwyn SSSI’  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 58 (Focussed Change) 

114 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
GP28a e (v) 

Clarity GP28a e v. a new point should 
be added to include ‘Wildlife 
Sites’  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 59 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 109



78 
 

115 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
GP28a (i) 

Clarity GP28a i should include 
‘biodiverse’ agriculture and other 
key habitat types such as species 
rich coastal or meadow 
grassland, coastal heath and 
cloddiau.  
 

Insert wording.  Reject The IACC believe it is 
sufficiently covered. 

116 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
GP28b (ix) 

Clarity GP28b ix Whilst NWWT do not 
think it is possible this should 
include the statement ‘attempt to 
reinstate ‘predevelopment 
hydrological regime’ as well as 
condition, which might be 
interpreted as above ground 
habitat.  
 

Consider wording.  Reject The suggested change would 
go beyond the policy 
requirement in the JLDP.  

117 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Locational 
Guidance 
GP28b (xiii) 

Clarity GP28b xiii. new point during 
construction and management of 
the Temporary Site Campus 
maximise biodiversity resources.  
 

Consider wording.  Reject The compensation for 
ecological impacts (including 
biodiversity) on the site during 
the construction period while 
any temporary campus is in 
must be addressed in the 
promoters phasing of the 
landscape and environmental 
management plan for the 
overall site as required by 
JLDP policy PS9 paragraph 8. 
  

118 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Cemaes AoS Clarity  For Cemaes AoS at para 5.1.47 
noise dust and air should include 
‘lighting’ from 24 hour working.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 60 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 110



79 
 

119 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Figure 5.3 Clarity Figure 5.3 does not appear to 
extend to Cae Gwyn SSSI and 
Tre’r Gof SSSI is obscured. It is 
important that all figures clearly 
show the location and a key to 
features of importance, in order 
to allow non-local readers, such 
as the Planning Inspectors, a 
clear grasp of what the Council 
are illustrating.  
 

Review map.  Reject There for illustrative purposes, 
please see JLDP constraints 
map. 

120 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP30 Clarity GP30 welcome the recognition 
given to the potential for 
cumulative impacts from 
increased visitor pressure at 
Cemlyn, but should also include 
‘Wylfa Head Wildlife Site’. 
Welcome the need for this impact 
to be managed and mitigated for 
and the identification of the role 
of local nature conservation 
groups in this process.  
 

Insert wording.  Accept Ref 62 (Focussed Change) 

121 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP31 a5025 
AoS.  

Clarity GP31 A5025 AoS should 
included the opportunity to 
improve watercourse water 
quality, provide biodiversity 
mitigation & gains for impacted 
species and better attenuate road 
run-off.  
 

Consider wording.  Accept Ref 63 (Focussed Change) 

122 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 

Holyhead & 
Environs  

Suppo
rt 

Holyhead & Environs NWWT 
support the principle of the 
County Council focusing 
construction workers 

General comment. Accept Point noted. This is included in 
GP33 and the supporting text.  

P
age 111



80 
 

(NWWT
) 
[006] 

accommodation in the this AoS. 
The sites in this area already 
benefit from permission and a 
Section 106 obligation has been 
negotiated to ameliorate natural 
environment impacts, which 
support biodiversity.  
 

123 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Figure 5.4 Clarity Not clear if figure 5.4 shows the 
Land & Lakes complex of sites?  
 

Review map.  Accept Figure 5.4 shows the allocated 
sites (housing and 
employment) of the Holyhead 
area. 

124 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

Llangefni & 
Environs 

Clarity Llangefni & Environs AoS at 
paragraph 5.2.44 does not reflect 
the project promoter’s current 
aspiration for SSSI compensation 
sites in this area.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 65 (Focussed Change) 

125 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 
[006] 

GP34 Suppo
rt 

NWWT welcome GP34’s 
response to the natural 
environment, particularly given 
the potential for SSSI 
compensation.  
 

n/a.  N/A General point. 

126 North 
Wales 
Wildlife 
Trust 
(NWWT
) 

GP35 Clarity GP35 there is no mention of Llyn 
Traffwil SSSI which may 
potentially be impacted by water 
quality issues from Dalar Hir Park 
& Ride.  
 

Review wording.  Accept Ref 66 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 112



81 
 

[006] 

127 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Introduction Clarity The purpose of the SPG states 
(box 1.4.2) an aim to inform pre 
application discussion, this 
purpose should be removed 
given the current timescale for 
submission. 
 

Consider removing 
reference to informing pre-
application discussion.  

Accept Ref 67 (Focussed Change) 

128 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objectives Object The document sets outs with the 
approach that the WNP should 
enhance local identity and 
distinctiveness.  NT supports the 
principle of this objective, but 
would find it very difficult to 
see how the scale of the Wylfa 
Newydd Project could result in 
enhanced local identity and 
distinctiveness with regard to 
landscape or cultural heritage 
matters 

Consider wording.  Reject The IACC acknowledges the 
point, however we will seek to 
enhance local identity and 
distinctiveness through 
appropriate mitigation.  

129 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Mitigation Clarity National Trust supports the 
overarching hierarchy of 
avoidance, mitigation and 
compensation established by the 
SPG.  When the hierarchy cannot 
be achieved there is little detail 
about how it will be decided if 
residual adverse impacts are 
acceptable and what detail there 
is appears to be buried quite 
deep within the Draft SPG.  
Could the document bring 
forward more explicit and visible 
consideration of the issue of 
residual adverse impact? 

Consider additional 
wording on residual 
adverse impacts.  

Reject The potential for residual 
adverse impacts is recognised 
but until any such impacts are 
identified and assessed they 
can only be addressed in 
general terms. Whether any 
residual impact would be 
unacceptable will be a matter 
of planning judgement having 
regard to the requirements 
under policy PS9 and any 
potential benefits of the 
proposal.  

P
age 113



82 
 

130 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Document 
structure  

Clarity In terms of document layout, it is 
noted that Economic 
Development is listed as 4.1, with 
Natural Environment listed at 
4.10 and Historic Environment at 
4.11.  Could the final document 
consider a new contents list and 
layout that might rank these two 
aspects earlier in the document 
(an internationally designated 
nature reserve; a nationally 
designated landscape and a 
nationally important heritage, all 
adjoining the site boundary) 

Consider layout / contents 
page.  

Reject Point noted.  However, the 
SPG is in no particular order of 
preference / importance and is 
in alignment with the 2014 
SPG. 
 
The responses made through 
the focussed changes also 
refer to specific paragraphs / 
sections and therefore cannot 
be changed.  

131 National 
Trust 
[007] 

General Clarity The overarching approach by 
Horizon to the proposed scheme 
is to monitor/react to impact.  An 
overarching approach (Vision and 
Objective) for the SPG should be 
the establishment of the 
precautionary principle for 
potential impacts and require 
actions based on sound science.  
The precautionary theme could 
potentially apply to all impacts, 
but should be fundamentally 
incorporated into all Objectives 
based around tourism visits, 
landscape and ecology. 

Consideration of the 
precautionary principle.  

Reject The JLDP and SPG both 
provide that IACC wish to see 
impacts proactively addressed 
and the mitigation hierarchy 
applied to avoid and minimise 
these wherever possible. The 
IACC has also included further 
guidance on monitoring 
requirements in GP 26 which 
covers the monitoring of all 
impacts. The details of 
monitoring plans will be 
progressed on a case by case 
once the evidence base for 
baseline conditions is agreed.  
 

132 National 
Trust 
[007] 

General  
 
Vision & 
Objectives.  

Clarity  In terms of Vision and Objectives, 

the seascape should be 

recognised as an explicit 

resource for North Anglesey.  

Consider seascape.  Accept Ref 36 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 114



83 
 

There is limited if any reference 

to seascape in the SPG. 

 

133 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Mitigation 
 
4.10. 

Clarity National Trust supports the policy 
approach outlined in Section 4.10 
“‘The County Council will seek to 
ensure that any potentially 
adverse impacts on the Island’s 
natural environment are avoided 
or, where this is not possible, 
mitigated or compensated”.  It is 
not made clear in the SPG which 
adverse impacts would be 
considered acceptable or what 
the criteria are for deciding that 
impacts are acceptable. 

Further consideration 
required on criteria for 
deciding if adverse 
impacts are acceptable or 
not.  

Reject Impacts need to be fully and 
robustly assessed before the 
IACC can determine whether 
they are acceptable or not. 

134 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Vision & 
Objectives  

Clarity The distinction between 

outcomes and objectives is not 

clear. 

 

Consider defining 
outcomes & objectives.  

Reject IACC believe that the 
outcomes are clear and listed 
under each objective. 

135 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Vision & 
Objectives 

Clarity National Trust has developed a 

Cemlyn Vision, as provided 

previously to Anglesey Council.  

The SPG Vision could include 

greater reference to this wider 

vision for the North Anglesey 

Coast, and primarily the key 

tourism land owner in proximity to 

the construction site.   

 

Consider referencing the 
Cemlyn Vision.  

Accept Ref 68 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 115



84 
 

136 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objective 4 
Section 3.2.5 

Clarity Section 3.2.5 needs to reference 
the sensitivity of ecological 
resources in proximity to the 
construction site, to increased 
recreational access in the area by 
construction workers and the 
need for management of access 
to existing sensitive sites. 

Consider wording.  Reject The objective covers the whole 
of Anglesey.  Specific 
guidance is provided within 
relevant locational guidance. 

137 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objective 4 
Section 3.2.5 

Clarity Construction tourism could be 
usefully referenced in Section 
3.2.5.  The document has no 
reference to this issue specifically 
for Cemlyn and Felin Gafnan?  
Section V identifies the 
“protection of visitor attractions”?-
Cemlyn is the key adjacent visitor 
attraction and the National Trust’s 
Cemlyn Vision could be usefully 
incorporated into the Programme 
and National Trust as Key 
Partner. 

Consider wording. Reject Detail on Tourism is contained 
within GP5.  Although the point 
is noted and the IACC 
acknowledge there will be 
‘construction tourists’, the SPG 
does not differentiate between 
different types of tourists. 

138 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objective 5 Clarity Given the project proposals to 

date, it is difficult to see how the 

project can protect and enhance 

the AONB, Cestyll Garden or 

Cemlyn Bay; all three remain at 

risk from the proposed scheme.  

No proposals to date have 

demonstrated any interest in 

considering the conservation and 

enhancement of historic 

character.  The Cemlyn Vision 

could usefully be incorporated 

Include Cemlyn Vision into 
list of Key Programmes.  

Accept Ref 68 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 116



85 
 

into Key Programmes.  Section 

3.2.6 (iii) might usefully mention 

management of the recreational 

impacts of construction workers 

and construction tourism on 

sensitive sites adjoining the 

construction site. 

 

139 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 3.2.7 Clarity Section 3.2.7 could usefully 
include reference to highways 
infrastructure for existing and 
new tourism visits and the need 
to manage tourism in a sensitive 
landscape.  Support is given to 
item vii in relation to a cycle 
strategy and potential areas west 
of Cemlyn could be explored to 
take visitor pressure away from 
the Cemlyn Lagoon, particularly 
during the sensitive nesting 
period.  Are “North Anglesey 
tourism providers” a further key 
delivery partner to Objective 6? 

Consider wording.  Reject The IACC does not 
differentiate between ‘new’ and 
‘existing’ tourism.  This is dealt 
with under GP5. 

140 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objective 6 Object Although Objective 6 could be 
justified on highways grounds, 
the consequence of reliance on 
marine vessel delivery 
movements is the creation of a 
MOLF which will see the 
complete loss of over 30ha of 
seabed and the very high levels 
of environmental harm to land in 
National Trust ownership 

Consider wording.  Reject This objective covers the 
whole of Anglesey and 
therefore the IACC is eager to 
promote the sustainable 
movement of people and 
materials.  It is not appropriate 
with the objectives to delve 
into this detail.  This is 
included in other chapters 
further in the document. 

P
age 117



86 
 

adjoining the construction site.  It 
is very difficult to include the word 
“sustainable” in this objective 
given the consequences of MOLF 
construction.  Residual adverse 
effects are not specified?  If 
Objective 6 seeks to create a 
sustainable community, is there 
potential to add a further 
specified achievement? It is 
suggested a biodiversity 
requirement could be included 
(e.g. ensuring that all access 
proposals and infrastructure are 
delivered with permanent 
biodiversity mitigation & 
enhancement measures). 

141 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Objective 7 Suppo
rt 

Support to Objective 7, but the 
need for local land owners as 
Key Delivery Partners, and the 
identification of National Trust, 
North Wales Wildlife Trust and 
RSPB.  The Cemlyn Vision 
should be identified as a key 
Local Programme. 

Consider wording.  Accept Ref 69 (Focussed Change) 

142 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 4.2 Clarity Section 4.2 (Tourism) does not 
explicitly identify the natural 
resource of the local area at 
Cemlyn forming the basis of local 
tourism. 

Insert wording on Cemlyn 
being a local tourist area.  

Accept Ref 70 (Focussed Change) 

143 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Tourism GP5.  Clarity The project brings forward many 
visitor perception issues: blasting, 
dredging, spoil disposal in the 
sea, tunnelling, noise, vibration, 
dust, siting of cranes, visual and 

Further discussion 
required.  

N/A Noted.  A separate discussion 
will be arranged. 

P
age 118



87 
 

aesthetic disturbance, loss of 
remoteness and wildness.  It still 
remains uncertain how the wider 
perception issue will be 
addressed by Horizon, and how 
tourism partners can respond to 
these potentially negative 
messages with potential new and 
existing visitors to the island. The 
NT would welcome further 
discussion on these issues and 
welcome the current wording with 
Policy GP5 of the Joint Local 
Development Plan and repeated 
wording within Section 4.2.6 of 
the SPG (“In doing so the County 
Council will also expect the 
project promoter to identify and 
implement measures to promote 
Anglesey as a visitor destination 
and enhance the tourism 
potential of the island”. 

144 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Construction 
Workers 
Accommodatio
n  

Clarity In relation to Accommodation for 
Construction Workers (Section 
4.4).  National Trust considers 
the implications for Tre Gof SSSI 
has not been adequately cross 
referenced within Section 4.4.  
The constraint of the SSSI should 
be added to section 4.4.2 
(currently worded as rural and 
remote location).  National Trust 
supports greater work (identified 
in Section 4.4.16) on 
identification and monitoring of 

Consider wording.  Reject The IACC’s position on 
Temporary Construction 
Workers Accommodation is 
clearly articulated in section 
4.4 of the SPG and in GP9b, 
GP28b and GP33. 

P
age 119



88 
 

bedstock, particularly in relation 
to the impacts on the islands 
tourism economy via impacts 
reducing islands accommodation 
offer to visitors.  This section of 
the SPG appears to be neutral in 
relation to the loss of tourism 
legacy for campus style 
accommodation previously 
proposed via the Land and Lakes 
scheme.   

145 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Tourism  
Section 4.4.17 

Suppo
rt 

Section 4.4.17 identifies the 

potential issue of static, touring 

caravans and motor caravans.  

The illegal siting of touring and 

motor caravans could affect the 

wider environment and landscape 

of North Anglesey; and thus 

impact on tourism and 

new/existing visitor economic 

activity.  It is hoped that Anglesey 

Council recognise this potential 

issue and through the SPG will 

look to resource this issue 

through a proactive engagement, 

monitoring and enforcement 

activity.  National Trust welcomes 

the early identification of this 

issue and hope this translates to 

adequate resources being found 

to move forward this potential 

consequence of influx of large 

n/a. N/A Noted. 

P
age 120



89 
 

numbers of construction workers 

to North Anglesey.   

 

146 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Nuclear Waste 
 
Section 4.8.6 

Clarity In relation to the section on 

Radioactive Waste Storage.  

National Trust considers that the 

SPG needs to bring forward more 

explicit detail.  Section 4.8.6 

states the project is likely to 

include some interim storage 

facilities for the treatment and 

storage of radioactive waste.   

The interim period is 200 years 

plus any subsequent 

decommissioning and 

remediation.  The proposed site 

adjoins land in National Trust 

ownership.  National Trust will 

retain this land in perpetuity as 

the land is inalienable land, and 

includes in proximity the Grade II 

listed property Felin Gafnan.  

National Trust considers this 

should be identified as an explicit 

constraint, together with greater 

recognition of the future visitor 

perceptions associated with 

nuclear waste storage facilities; 

their management; and the 

consequences of security in 

Consider wording.  Reject The SPG does not go into 
detail on the storage of 
radioactive waste.  This issue 
will be dealt with by the 
Planning Inspectorate, the 
ONR and NRW. 

P
age 121



90 
 

visual and landscape quality.  

Land owned by Horizon is limited 

and a potential waste fuel store 

will be highly visible in the 

landscape.  This section needs 

greater cross referencing to the 

landscape objectives. 

 

147 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 4.1.1 & 
4.12.3 (6th 
bullet) 

Clarity The Project Wide Guidance 
appears to recognise that there 
will be adverse effects and states 
at 4.1.1 that ‘the construction and 
operation of the Wylfa Newydd 
Project are significant activities 
with the potential to adversely 
affect the Island’s (and the wider 
region’s) unique built and natural 
environment, its communities, 
existing infrastructure, local 
businesses and the tourism 
sector. Therefore, it is essential 
that any potential adverse effects 
are identified and assessed”.  
National Trust considers that at 
the current time, not all the 
potential adverse effects have 
been identified and assessed.  
The project currently fails to 
recognise or assess the impact 
on the residential amenity of 
Felin Gafnan.  It is important 
therefore, for the Project Wide 
Guidance to recognise the 

Consider wording. Accept Ref 71 (Focussed Change) 

P
age 122



91 
 

specific constraints imposed by 
existing residential development.  
It is suggested that Section 
4.12.3 could explicitly identify 
residential amenity, or 
amendment adding residential 
amenity (eg to the 6th bullet point-
could these also be numbered 
rather than bullet points?). 

148 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Community 
Resilience 
Fund 

Clarity Support is provided to the 

provision of a Community 

Resilience Fund and the County 

Councils central role in facilitating 

an adequate impact based 

scheme, alongside wider 

Community Benefit Contributions.  

National Trust consider that 

this needs separating from 

project based impact 

compensation which needs 

explicit identification and 

separate funding.  It is 

suggested that compensation 

based impacts for residual 

adverse impacts from the project 

lies outside any Community 

Resilience Fund, and this 

requirement is identified within 

the SPG.  It is noted that GP24 

(Planning Obligations) of the 

Joint Local Development Plan 

specifies that “the project 

Consider wording.  Reject Voluntary Community Benefits 
are completely separate from 
the statutory planning 
obligations/ mitigations.  The 
CRF is required to deal with 
unquantifiable or unforeseen 
impacts which may arise or 
which have been identified 
through monitoring. 

P
age 123



92 
 

promoter should take full account 

of existing initiatives, plans and 

strategies on the Island and 

engage effectively with local 

communities, the County Council 

and other organisations as 

appropriate, at the pre application 

stage, to identify appropriate 

compensation and mitigation for 

the adverse impacts of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project”, and “measures, 

projects and services to enhance 

the medium and long term well-

being, quality of life and 

sustainability of the communities 

affected will be encouraged”.  

Section 5.1.28 refers to the 

County Council policy for 

Voluntary Community Benefits 

from developers on Anglesey.   It 

is noted that there is currently a 

lack of any detail in this area by 

Horizon, and all pre application 

work has now ceased ready for 

submission of the Development 

Consent Order.  Given this 

scenario, the emerging scheme 

does not meet the requirements 

of either JLDP or policy 

aspirations of the SPG.  This has 

P
age 124



93 
 

been, and continues to be a 

major concern of National Trust, 

particularly as we are now more 

informed about exactly what is 

proposed. 

 

149 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Implementation 
& Monitoring 

Clarity In relation to Implementation and 
Monitoring, it is considered that 
the principles of the 
precautionary principle should be 
incorporated into the SPG in 
section 4.13.1.   

Include reference to 
precautionary principle.  

Reject The JLDP and SPG both 
provide that IACC wish to see 
impacts proactively addressed 
and the mitigation hierarchy 
applied to avoid and minimise 
these wherever possible. The 
IACC has also included further 
guidance on monitoring 
requirements in GP 26 which 
covers the monitoring of all 
impacts. The details of 
monitoring plans will be 
progressed on a case by case 
once the evidacne base for 
baseline conditions is agreed. 
 

150 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 5.1.13 Clarity Section 5.1.13 could usefully 
include reference to the 
metapopulation of Sandwich 
terns across the wider Irish Sea 
area.  Impacts at Cemlyn may 
have consequences and potential 
population pressure at other 
protected sites in the Lake 
District, Northern and Southern 
Ireland.  National Trust alongside 
the North Wales Wildlife Trust 

Insert wording.  Reject This level of detail goes 
beyond that appropriate for the 
SPG. These maters will be 
addressed in other documents 
such as the HRA.  

P
age 125



94 
 

and RSPB has produced an 
Ecological Options Report which 
provides background information 
on ecology and options for future 
management of the Sandwich 
tern population.  This document 
could be usefully referenced in 
this Section of the SPG. 

151 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 5.1.26 Clarity Section 5.1.26, and particularly 
the recognition of natural and 
historic environment.  The 
tourism section at the foot of 
page 163 correctly identifies a 
potential decline in tourism as a 
result of impacts and perceptions 
of tranquillity.  This bullet point 
could usefully be expanded to 
include the management of 
construction tourism, the 
management of construction 
contractors and the associated 
management of visitors to very 
sensitive locations in proximity to 
the construction site. 

Consider wording.  Accept Ref 73 (Focussed Change) 

152 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 5.1.32 
(MOLF) 

Clarity  National Trust supports the key 
considerations listed within 
Section 5.1.32.  It would be 
useful to number the bullet points 
(listed from pages 168 to 173).  
The landscape and visual impact 
bullet point identifies the impact 
from the MOLF as temporary, this 
is not correct as the MOLF & 
breakwater are permanent 
elements of the scheme and may 

Revise wording.  Accept Ref 57 & Ref 71 (Focussed 
Change) 

P
age 126



95 
 

lead to as yet unknown changes 
to the tidal regime at Cemlyn, and 
possible overtopping of the 
shingle ridge in specific wave 
conditions.   

153 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 5.1.25 Gener
al 

Section 5.1.25 includes the 
statement with regard to North 
Anglesey that “The Wylfa 
Newydd Project provides 
opportunities to ensure that there 
is no net loss to biodiversity, the 
landscape, coastline and cultural 
heritage assets. Where loss is 
likely to occur, the project 
promoter will be expected to 
deliver appropriate compensation 
and opportunities exist to 
enhance assets, locations or 
facilities elsewhere within the 
local area”.  It is difficult to 
understand how there can be no 
net loss to the landscape and the 
coastline, given the scale of 
proposals that emerge from pre 
application.  Is this a hollow 
statement with regards to the 
coast adjoining and forming part 
of the application site?  Support 
is given to the principle of no net 
loss to biodiversity and a 
proactive approach could 
transform the project. 

General comment N/A Point noted. 

154 National 
Trust 
[007] 

Section 5.1.32 Gener
al 

Key considerations for the Main 
Wylfa Newydd site include 
recognition that there is potential 

General comment.  N/A Point noted. 

P
age 127



96 
 

for the historic environment to be 
harmed.  Section 5.1.32 states 
“The historic environment: Cestyll 
Garden lies immediately to the 
west of the main site boundary.   
Additionally, there are a number 
of designated cultural heritage 
assets in close proximity to the 
site including Listed Buildings, 
Scheduled Monuments and the 
Cemaes Conservation Area 
whose settings have the potential 
to be detrimentally affected”.  It is 
not entirely clear how this relates 
to the earlier statement that there 
is an opportunity for no net loss 
to cultural assets.  Cestyll 
Gardens a Registered Park and 
Garden, Felin Gafnan and Mill 
(Grade II and II*) listed building 
adjoin the development site.  
Setting will be an important 
consideration, but to date Horizon 
have dismissed the contribution 
they make to the cultural 
landscape.  National Trust 
support the identification of 
potential recreational impacts at 
Llanbadrig (NT also has 
significant land ownership in this 
area of the AONB).  Localised 
environmental damage and 
recreational pressure is very 
likely given the proposals for 

P
age 128



97 
 

4000 construction workers in this 
area.   

155 Rosema
ri 
Heaney 
[008] 

General Object General observations received 
objecting to the proposed new 
nuclear build at Wylfa. Concern 
raised on the legacy of the 
project on the environment, 
nuclear waste etc. for the sake of 
a few hundred local jobs.  
 
No specific comments received 
on the SPG.  

N/A.  N/A No specific comments 
received on the SPG. 

156 NACP 
[009] 

Consultation 
Document  

Clarity  SPG is imprecise and lacks 
detail. Responsibilities and 
expectations are not clearly 
noted. 
IACC should clearly state exactly 
what is expected of the 
developers as far as mitigation 
measures and addressing the 
continued concerns of the host 
community. 

Insert wording  Reject The SPG consist of 
comprehensive suite of 
documents which clearly 
articulates the Council’s vision, 
objectives and expectations in 
relation to the Wylfa Newydd 
project. The IACC rejects the 
notion that it is imprecise and 
lacks detail.  

157 NACP 
[009] 

Transport and 
Roads 

Clarity General road safety concerns. 
Communities continue to be 
concerned about increase in 
volume of vehicles, more so 
along A5025 from bridge towards 
site. NACP have asked many 
times that IACC and Horizon look 
at road improvements from 
Rhosgoch junction to Wylfa 
Newydd. Little information in SPG 
as to how IACC will monitor and 
enforce potential issues such as 
fly parking, unsuitable bus routes, 

Review wording.  Reject The SPG provides the policy 
framework in order to deal with 
and respond to the DCO (and 
Town & Country Planning Act 
applications). Impacts on 
highway and highway safety 
will need to be assessed and 
appropriate conditions/ 
planning obligations imposed. 
It is not the role of the SPG to 
identify these impacts and 
mitigations.  

P
age 129



98 
 

speeding vehicles, weekend 
effect. Concerns about road 
safety (A5025 from site to Wylfa 
Newydd) – narrow roads, no 
mention of park and ride share 
facilities to be developed at east 
of Wylfa Newydd.  

158 NACP 
[009] 

Welsh 
Language  

Clarity  Welsh Language should be 
accounted for and considered in 
all aspects of the project. 
 

More emphasis.  Accept Noted – this is an important 
issue for the IACC and we see 
it as a ‘golden thread’, which 
needs to be considered for 
each topic.   

159 NACP 
[009] 

Accommodatio
n  

Clarity  Changes to timeframe and 
number of temporary workers at 
peak are welcomed. Supportive 
of provision of high quality 
accommodation for 4,000 
construction workers but strongly 
disagree that this should be one 
location – Rhosgoch site should 
be reconsidered for 2,000 
workers. This could be converted 
later to provide a legacy to the 
community of North Anglesey i.e. 
200 employment opportunities for 
30 years or more (support can be 
seen in petition and public 
meetings in PAC2-3). Number of 
contractors living close to 
established communities will be 
considerable – how will IACC 
ensure mitigation measures set 
by Horizon will be implemented? 
Shortage of rented 
accommodation concerns for 

Wish to know in detail how 
IACC will ensure 
mitigation in terms of 
contractors integrating 
with communities 
measures set out by 
Horizon are implemented.  
 
Encourage IACC and 
Horizon to develop social 
housing on council owned 
land in the community 
where it is needed. 
 
 

Reject The NACP position on the on-
site campus / Rhosgoch is 
noted. However, this SPG 
responds to the proposal 
currently being put forward by 
Horizon (i.e. on-site temporary 
campus) which is dealt with 
under GP28b.  
 
The SPG does not however 
preclude any other application 
coming forward for campus 
style accommodation and this 
is dealt with under policy 
GP9a, GP9b and GP10b.  
 
Each GP (including Amwlch & 
Environs) contains guidance 
for permanent housing and the 
IACC encourage permanent 
accommodation used 
temporarily for Wylfa workers 

P
age 130



99 
 

young local families which will be 
displaced by contractors on 
higher wages. Negative effects 
on tourism concerns – cannot 
afford to lose out on visitors. 
NACP do not agree with 
changing caravan sites to all year 
round occupation. 

and then remain for the use of 
the community.  

160 NACP 
[009] 

Health and 
Well-being 

 Concerned about increased 
pressures on services that are 
already stretched to capacity. 
Quality of life concerns for local 
residents. Noise, dust, light 
pollution and working hours 
disturbance. Community 
concerns regarding storage of 
nuclear waste. Concerns 
surrounding long weekly hours 
and shift patterns. 

SPG should highlight 
concerns surrounding shift 
patterns (11 days on 3 
days off) – could result in 
low productivity and high 
accident rate.  

Reject Although the point is noted and 
the IACC agree with the issue 
raised, the control of 
individuals’ working hours is 
beyond the scope of this SPG. 

161 NACP 
[009] 

Local 
Amenities and 
Facilities  

 Request that funding is made 
available for the development of 
village hall/ community meeting 
place at Tregele following 
demolition of Simdde Wen. 
Request funding to upgrade and 
sustain facilities at Amlwch 
Leisure Centre. 

Request for funding.  Reject Noted – GP24 planning 
obligations deals with any 
request for mitigation.  
 
It’s not appropriate for the SPG 
to make this request for 
funding. Appropriate 
mitigations will be secured 
once impacts have been fully 
assessed.  
 

162 NACP 
[009]  

Local 
Resilience 
Fund 

 Encourage Horizon to provide a 
substantial resilience fund that 
can be utilised to address any 
unforeseen problems/ concerns 

N/A N/A Noted – this is included in 
GP24.  

P
age 131



100 
 

during development and 
operation. 

163 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Gaerwen – 
Amlwch rail 
line 
 
Main document 
and Topic 
paper 5 

Clarity  SPG could explore the possibility 
of using line for freight and 
passanger traffic to Wylfa. SPG 
could advocate reinstating the 
existing line and extending it to 
Wylfa.  

Reference to consider 
reinstating Gaerwen – 
Amlwch rail line.  

Reject Although the SPG does not 
specifically reference the ‘Lein 
Amlwch’ it does encourage the 
use of rail to transport workers 
and materials (GP15).  

164 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Health Clarity SPG does not address the issue 
of excessive working hours of 
individual workers. Long hours at 
work combined, for some, with 
significant daily travel time would 
be worrying. 

SPG should highlight this 
as an issue. 

Reject As noted in Rep 160 above, 
this is not a policy issue which 
can be dealt with in SPG. This 
issue will be discussed 
separately with Horizon.  

165 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Transport  Clarity  Too little emphasis on the need 
to improve the A5025 between 
Amlwch and Wylfa and 
addressing challenge of 
preventing Rhosgoch – 
Llanfechell – Tregele becoming a 
‘rat run’ 

More emphasis needed on 
road improvement.  

Reject Noted – IACC notes that 
potential traffic impacts will be 
considered though the 
requirements of various GPs in 
line with objective 6 which 
seeks to minimise adverse 
impacts on road safety  
 

166 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Topic Paper 11  Clarity  North Anglesey Table 3.2.22 
states there is no supermarket in 
N. Anglesey. Amlwch co-op is a 
supermarket. 

Review wording.  Accept REF 74 (Focused Change) 

167 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Temporary 
Accommodatio
n for workers 
on site  

Clarity SPG appears to accept this as a 
given in contradiction of the 
position of the NAP.  

SPG should challenge this 
element of Horizon’s plans 
or place greater emphasis 
on mitigating impact upon 
neighbouring 
communities.  

Reject This is incorrect. The IACC’s 
position on temporary 
construction worker 
accommodation is clear (in 
accordance with the settlement 
hierarchy of the JLDP (Policy 

P
age 132



101 
 

PS9 and PS10). Rhosgoch 
does not conform to this policy 
and therefore the IACC does 
not support it for TWA.  

168 Llanbad
rig 
Commu
nity 
council 
[010] 

Near 
Neighbours  

Clarity The SPG makes several 
references to mitigation or 
compensation. Horizon published 
a Neighbourhood Support 
Scheme in 2014. This refers to 
intended plans for mitigation. 
These are still not available. The 
proposals for compensation are 
very basic.  

The SPG should refer to 
ensuring the 
compensation is at least 
comparable with other 
National infrastructure 
projects e.g. Heathrow 
and HS2. 

N/A Noted – the IACC will pursue 
Horizon on the Neighbourhood 
Support Scheme.  

 

 P
age 133



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Focused Changes 

May 2018 
 

Page 134



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



3 
 

Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) – Focused Changes 

Introduction 

The Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) was subject to a 6-week 

public consultation from the 11th January 2018 to the 22nd February 2018. 168 

representations were received from 10 responses. 

The Isle of Anglesey County Council has now considered all representations received 

in relation to the Wylfa Newydd SPG consultation and consider that certain changes 

are appropriate to ensure that the SPG is coherent, consistent and aligns with the Joint 

Local Development Plan (JLDP). These changes are set out in the Schedule of 

Focused Changes in Appendix A. These Focused Changes set out which part of the 

SPG a proposed change is for, the reason for it and the amendment itself.  

For clarity, this document outlined the changes that have been accepted only. 

Reasons for rejecting proposed changes received during the consultation is 

contained within the Representations Report. Both these documents are cross-

referenced and should be read in conjunction in order to get a full picture of which 

changes have been accepted and rejected, and the reason(s) given.  

Explaining the Focussed Changes 

The proposed focussed change table includes the following information:- 

 Focussed Change Reference: Unique reference for each proposed Focussed 

Change in the first column (e.g. 1, 2, 3..etc) 

 

 Rep ID: The ‘Rep ID’ refers to the representation ID which is contained within 

the Representations Report. Both these documents are cross-referenced so 

that it is clear how the change related to the representations made during the 

SPG consultation period. 

 

 Section: Refers to the relevant section of the SPG.  

 

 Proposed Change (Text): The part of the text affected by one or more 

proposed focussed change is indicated in the form of 'mark changes'. Add text 

is indicated in the form of bold writing and is underlined, and the proposals 

to delete text are indicated with a line through the text. This allows the reader 

to clearly see what the changes are without having to cross-reference the 

consultation version of the SPG. 

 

 Justification: General reasoning regarding why the change has been 
proposed. The proposed focussed changes are suggested in light of 
representations received during the SPG consultation period, and mainly are 
made in order to reflect the most up-to-date available information, for clarity, in 
order to ensure accuracy and to ensure the SPG is consistent with the Joint 
Local Development Plan (JLDP).  
 

Page 136



4 
 

Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) Focussed Changes Report 
 

Reference Section Rep. ID Proposed Change Justification 

1 1.1.14 2 1.1.14 
Once adopted, the Wylfa Newydd SPG will augment 
existing national and local planning policy to help guide 
the masterplanning, design and efficient delivery of the 
Wylfa Newydd Project and to ensure the realisation of 
lasting benefits to the Isle of Anglesey and North Wales 
region. Appendix A shows how the Guiding Principles of 
the SPG relate to national and local planning policy.  
Further detail on the role of the County Council in 
the DCO process and the purpose of this SPG can 
be found in Section 1.4 of this SPG. 
 

Cross – referencing. Provide further 
clarity on purpose of SPG. 

1A 1.3.8 3 1.3.8 and throughout the SPG 

The term ‘Wylfa Newydd project promoter” 
(or “project promoter”)’ relates to both 
Horizon Nuclear Power only. The term 
applicant relates to any other third parties 
proposing development in direct response to the 
Wylfa Newydd Project (for example, the 
provision of construction worker 
accommodation or related employment uses). 
 

To provide clarity and distinction 
between the Wylfa Newydd project 
promoter (Horizon) and any other a-
applicant.  

P
age 137



5 
 

2 GP3 – 
Employment 
sites, logistics 
and transport 

3 Criteria iv of GP3 deleted 
iv. Support the delivery of the Anglesey Enterprise Zone 
through the use of Enterprise Zone site, subject to the 
safeguards set out above; 
 

To ensure consistency with JLDP. 
Policy PS11 of the JLDP does not 
specify that the Logistic Centre 
should be within an Enterprise Zone 
site.  
 

3 GP5 - tourism 4 GP 5 

The success of measures introduced to protect and 
enhance the Island’s visitor economy will be monitored 
through analysis of the results of a regular annual visitor 
survey resourced by the project promoter and any other 
applicant to a methodology agreed with the County 
Council or, where applicable, through an appropriate 
monitoring framework approved through the DCO 
that will produce statistically reliable results and gauge 
the impact of the Wylfa Newydd Project on visitor 
perceptions and numbers. The County Council will also 
require the project promoter and any other applicant 
to provide a funding mechanism, which can be called 
upon to implement additional measures of mitigation, 
should the survey show that the visitor economy is 
suffering as a result of the project. 
 

To provide clarity that this applies to 
the project promoter as well as any 
other applicant.  
 
To Provide clarity that the 
requirement for monitoring may be 
secured through the DCO.  
 
 

4 GP6 – 
Community 
Facilities and 
services 

5 “And which are not located on main W.N Site” + few 
other in GP6 (C&P) 
 
New services and facilities which are required to service 
the project or to mitigate impacts therefrom, and which 
are not located on the main Wylfa Newydd site, 
should be sustainable, integrated and provide a 
permanent improvement and a lasting legacy benefit to 
the Island’s communities. 
 
ii. Ensure that new or relocated community facilities 

and services which are not located on the main 
Wylfa Newydd site are available to the public and 

Amended to reflect that this GP only 
applies to facilities and services 
outside of the Wylfa Newydd Site. 
This GP does not apply to the on-
site campus which is now dealt with 
under GP28b.  

P
age 138



6 
 

allow for a permanent legacy use including ensuring 
that such facilities and services can be maintained 
beyond the construction phase; 

 

5 GP 9a (i)  6 i. Avoid large concentrations of construction worker 
accommodation unless significant socio-economic 
benefits can be delivered to the host community.  
The spatial distribution of workers must be managed 
through the Workers Accommodation Management 
Service (WAMS) and acceptable thresholds to be 
agreed with the County Council, or, where 
applicable, through an appropriate monitoring 
framework approved through the DCO; 
 

For clarity / correctness. The need to 
monitor and manage the workforce 
through the WAMS  will be a 
requirement under the DCO which 
needs to be accurately reflected in 
the SPG.  

6 GP9b – Campus 
style Temporary 
Accommodation 

7 GP 9b title amended: 
Maintaining and Creating Cohesive Communities – 
Campus Style Temporary Accommodation for 
Construction Workers located outwith the main Wylfa 
Newydd site. 
 
The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other 
applicant must ensure that proposals for campus style 
temporary accommodation for construction workers 
(which are not located on the main Wylfa Newydd 
Site) are located in accordance with the sequential 
approach set out in JLDP Policies PS9 and PS10 in 
order to mitigate effects on existing communities on the 
Island and promote sustainable, cohesive communities. 
 

To provide clarity that GP9b applies 
to campus style temporary 
accommodation construction 
workers outside the Wylfa Newydd 
main site only. It does not apply to 
the Wylfa Newydd on-site Campus 
which is dealt with under GP28b.  

7 GP10a 8 Project promoter proposals 
The project promoter’s non-home-based Construction 
Worker Accommodation Strategy should consist of 
campus style temporary accommodation, new build 
permanent housing, (private rented/owner occupied and 
provided either directly or through a Housing Fund), 

For clarity.  

P
age 139



7 
 

the re-use of empty homes and additional 
accommodation (tourism and latent). 
 

8 GP10b 9, 19, 
29, 65 

The following paragraph was deleted from GP10b, 
amended and moved to GP28b 
 
As set out in GP28b i, campus style temporary workers 
accommodation proposed at the main Wylfa Newydd 
site should be delivered in a phased way in order to 
ensure that it prevents rather than reacts to impacts 
upon the local housing market.. Where campus style 
temporary worker accommodation is approved, it should 
be viewed as the preferred solution for accommodating 
the approved number of the construction workers. 
Strong reasoned justification will be required for not 
maximising the use of this Campus in favour of other 
types of accommodation.  
 

For clarity and for consistency and 
alignment with JLDP.  

9 GP24  10 Applications submitted in advance outside of the DCO 
under the Town and Country Planning Act (TCPA) will 
need to be made by the project promoter, and 
considered by the County Council, in the context of the 
totality of the Wylfa Newydd Project rather than as 
standalone projects in order to properly assess the 
cumulative impacts. Mitigation For proposals made 
by the project promoter, mitigation, including Section 
106 obligations relating to these consents, will be 
viewed as the precursor as part of to a comprehensive 
package of mitigations for the overall project, 
including the main DCO consent and this will be 
taken into account in assessing the cumulative 
impact. Visibility of the total Section 106 package, in the 
form of the overall make-up and quantum, will therefore 
be required by the County Council when considering 
these applications. 

For clarity 
 
 
 

P
age 140



8 
 

 

10 Para 5.1.30 11  A power station, including two Advanced Boiling 
Water Reactors with a minimum generating 
capacity of up to 2,700 3,000 MW; 

 

 Visitor and Media Reception Centre Temporary 
construction viewing area; 

 

To ensure accurate description of 
project proposal in accordance with 
the DCO application.  

11 GP28a 13 The project promoter should also work in partnership 
with the County Council, local communities and other 
stakeholders when developing the Landscape and 
Environmental Masterplan (LEMP) Landscape & 
Habitats Management Strategy for the main site in 
order to identify and minimise potential adverse impacts 
and enhance benefits associated with the construction 
and operation of the new nuclear power station. 
 

For clarity – the LEMP has changed 
to the Landscape and Habitat 
Management Strategy.  

12 GP28b 14, 19, 
29, 46, 
65 

As set out in GP28b i, campus style temporary 
workers accommodation proposed at the main 
Wylfa Newydd site should be delivered in a phased 
way in order to ensure that it prevents rather than 
reacts to impacts upon the local housing market. 
Where campus style temporary worker 
accommodation is approved, it should be viewed as 
the preferred solution for accommodating the 
approved number of the construction workers. 
Strong reasoned justification will be required for not 
maximising the use of this Campus in favour of 
other types of accommodation. Approved campus 
style temporary worker accommodation should be 
provided in full at an early stage of the main 
construction period to prevent, rather than react, to 
any negative impact on the local housing market.    
 

Clarity on the IACC’s position in 
relation to on-site campus and 
alignment with Policy PS10 of the 
JLDP. 
 
If the on-site campus is approved 
under the DCO, it should be viewed 
as the preferred solution for 
accommodating the approved 
number of construction workers. 
However, in order for the on-site 
campus to be approved, the project 
promoter must firstly demonstrate 
that the proposal satisfies a 
demonstrable need for temporary 
accommodation for construction 
workers cannot be met through 
either existing consents, existing 

P
age 141



9 
 

When responding to proposals forming part of the 
Development Consent Order, the County Council 
will request a Construction Worker Accommodation 
Phasing Plan that sets out the numbers of workers 
expected to be accommodated within the proposed 
main site campus and the timescale of its 
construction, by phase. This plan should also set 
out how on-site community, health, retail, recreation 
and leisure facilities will be provided for the campus 
and how sufficient provision will be made for the 
number of workers to be accommodated in each 
phase. This Phasing Plan should also set out the 
details for phased decommissioning of the facility 
and provisions for amending the phasing depending 
upon the actual workforce size once construction 
commences.  
 

residential accommodation, new 
permanent residential 
accommodation, or re-use of existing 
buildings in accordance with JLDP 
Policy PS10.  
 
The IACC have referred to the 4,000 
workers in the SPG when describing 
the proposed development (in 
alignment with Horizon’s project 
promoter). However, the IACC fully 
acknowledge that this is yet to be 
assessed and therefore this has 
been changed to ‘the approved 
number of construction workers’.  

13 5.2.26 15, 33, 
47 

A major leisure and residential development has been 
granted planning permission within and adjacent to the 
development boundary of Holyhead to the south of the 
AoS (Land at Penrhos, Cae Glas and Kingsland). The 
proposed Land and Lakes development includes, 
amongst other elements, the provision of 315 holiday 
lodges at Penrhos and Cae Glas and a residential 
development of up to 320 dwellings at Kingsland. The 
Cae Glas and Kingsland sites have been promoted by 
the developer for temporary use as workers 
accommodation for the construction of Wylfa Newydd. 
However, Horizon has removed the site from its 
consideration of locations for accommodation and now 
instead favours a campus of up to 4,000 bedspaces at 
the main site. In accordance with the JLDP 
requirement to use consented sites given that all of 
the impacts of such sites have been assessed and 
(with mitigation) deemed acceptable, it remains the 

For clarity, the IACC have included 
reference to the JLDP requirement 
to use consented sites (in 
accordance with section 6.3.21 of 
the JLDP) “the project promoter 
must consider the use of existing 
consents before proposing modular 
accommodation in temporary 
buildings” 

P
age 142



10 
 

County Council’s view that the proposed consented 
Land and Lakes  development is a preferred opportunity 
to deliver construction worker accommodation that 
provides a lasting legacy benefit beyond the 
construction period of Wylfa Newydd (in the form of 
housing, major tourism development, employment and 
community facilities and services). 
 

14 Holyhead and 
Environs – Key 
Issues 

16 Housing & Community: Whether or not Land and Lakes 
is developed for construction workers (as preferred by 
the County Council being the only consented site for 
Wylfa Newydd Construction Workers 
Accommodation), it is inevitable that some workers will 
seek their own accommodation in Holyhead. Holyhead’s 
local businesses and communities may experience 
substantial change and pressure arising from new 
development. 
 

To be consistent with JLDP para. 
6.3.21.  

15 GP33 17  

Temporary 
Construction 
Worker 
Accommodatio n 

Proposals for 
temporary, campus-
style development in 
this AoS will be 
expected to meet the 
requirements of JLDP 
Policies PS9 and PS10 
and have regard to 
other relevant guidance 
in this SPG (GP 10a). 

The In accordance 
with the JLDP 
requirement to prefer 
the use of consented 
sites before 

To be consistent with JLDP para. 
6.3.21 

P
age 143



11 
 

considering further 
applications, the 
County Council prefers 
that the project 
promoter makes 
appropriate use of the 
approved development 
opportunities at Cae 
Glas and Kingsland to 
provide construction 
worker accommodation 
within the Holyhead and 
Environs AoS. 

 

17 GP28b 20, 32, 
45 

i. The onsite provision of leisure, recreation (including 
opportunities for education), retail and healthcare 
facilities to meet the needs of construction workers 
being accommodated on the main site. Sufficient 
provision is provided for the social, catering, health, 
communication, retail, leisure and recreational 
needs of up to 4,000 for the approved number of 
construction workers on the site; 

 
As set out in GP28b i, campus style temporary 
workers accommodation proposed at the main 
Wylfa Newydd site should be delivered in a phased 
way in order to ensure that it prevents rather than 
reacts to impacts upon the local housing market.. 
Where campus style temporary worker 
accommodation is approved, it should be viewed as 
the preferred solution for accommodating the 
approved number of the construction workers. 
Strong reasoned justification will be required for not 
maximising the use of this Campus in favour of 
other types of accommodation. Approved campus 
style temporary worker accommodation should be 

The references for on site provision 
for up to 4000 construction workers 
is a factual representation of 
Horizon’s project proposal. It will be 
up to the determining authority to 
assess the appropriateness of the 
number of onsite construction 
workers if approved. 

P
age 144



12 
 

provided in full at an early stage of the main 
construction period to prevent, rather than react, to 
any negative impact on the local housing market. 
    
When responding to proposals forming part of the 
Development Consent Order, the County Council 
will request a Construction Worker Accommodation 
Phasing Plan that sets out the numbers of workers 
expected to be accommodated within the proposed 
main site campus and the timescale of its 
construction, by phase. This plan should also set 
out how on-site community, health, retail, recreation 
and leisure facilties will be provided for the campus 
and how sufficent provision will be made for the 
number of workers to be accommodated in each 
phase. This Phasing Plan should also set out the 
details for phased decommissioning of the facility 
and provisions for amending the phasing depending 
upon the actual workforce size once construction 
commences.  
 

18 GP6 – 
Maintaining and 
Enhancing 
Community 
Facilities and 
Services 

25 i. Provide new, relocated or enhanced community 
facilities, services and infrastructure (including 
mobile & IT communications infrastructure/, 
broadband, leisure & sports facilities, healthcare 
and retail) to meet the needs of construction and 
operational workers and to mitigate any adverse 
impacts on existing provision resulting from the 
project either alone or in combination with other 
proposals; 
 

To align with Policy PS9 (criteria 10) 
of the JLDP and to ensure that all 
types of facilities and services are 
listed for completeness.  

19 GP12 – Tourism 
Accommodation 

30 When accommodating the non-home based 
construction workforce within the tourist accommodation 
sector, the County Council will require the Wylfa 
Newydd project promoter applicant to ensure that there 

Alignment with JLDP (PS14 Criteria 
5) 
and PS9 (Criteria 5) 

P
age 145



13 
 

are no unacceptable adverse economic (including 
on the tourism sector) social, linguistic or 
environmental impacts in accordance with JLDP 
Policies PS9 and PS 14 significant adverse effects 
upon that sector in accordance with the JLDP Policies 
PS9 and PS14.  This can be achieved through the 
provision of or contribution to the provision of 
following measures: 
 

20 GP28b (iv) 32, 45 iv. The onsite provision of leisure, recreation (including 
opportunities for education), retail and healthcare 
facilities to meet the needs of construction workers 
being accommodated on the main site.  Sufficient 
provision is provided for the social, catering, health, 
communication, retail, leisure and recreational needs of 
up to 4,000 for the approved number of construction 
workers on site; 
 

Justification as outlined in row 12 
and 17 above.  

21 Throughout 
document 

39 1.3.8 The term ‘Wylfa Newydd project promoter’ 
(or “project promoter”) relates to both 
Horizon Nuclear Power only. and The term 
‘applicant’ relates to any other third parties 
proposing development in direct response to the 
Wylfa Newydd Project (for example, the 
provision of construction worker accommodation 
or related employment uses). 

 
This has been implemented throughout the document. 
 

For clarity, “Project Promoter” refers 
to Horizon only. “Any other 
applicant” refers to any other 
application made by a third party.  

22 GP9a 43 In partnership with relevant organisations, the project 
promoter or any other applicant should identify where 
opportunities exist to enhance community cohesion and 
tackle social inequalities. In particular, the County 
Council would encourage the project promoter or any 
other applicant to work alongside itself and Mon CF to 

For clarity. This applies to any other 
applicant as well as the ‘project 
promoter’.  

P
age 146



14 
 

identify how the Wylfa Newydd Project (alone and in 
combination with other investment projects on the 
Island), through housing, education, jobs and services 
and facilities provision, can facilitate regeneration in the 
Island’s most deprived communities; 
 

23 GP9b 44 The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other 
applicant must ensure that proposals for campus style 
temporary accommodation for construction workers 
(which are not located on the main Wylfa Newydd 
Site) are located in accordance with the sequential 
approach set out in JLDP Policies PS9 andy PS10 in 
order to mitigate effects on existing communities on the 
Island and promote sustainable, cohesive communities. 
Such campuses should not be situated so as to create 
isolated, unsustainable temporary communities which 
do not integrate with existing services, facilities and 
communities. 
 

For clarity – this applies to all 
potential applicants, not just the 
Wylfa Newydd project promoter 

24 GP33 48 GP33 (Temporary Cons Worker Accomm) – last 
paragraph 
 
The In accordance with the JLDP requirement to 
prefer the use of consented sites before considering 
further applications, the County Council prefers that 
the project promoter makes appropriate use of the 
approved development opportunities at Cae Glas and 
Kingsland to provide construction worker 
accommodation within the Holyhead and Environs AoS. 
 

Although Kingsland is included in the 
Permanent Housing section of 
GP33, it is a consented site for 
temporary worker accommodation 
and therefore also needs to be 
included in the Temporary Worker 
Accommodation Section of the GP.  

25 Paragraph 2.1.2 49, 69 National Policy Statements (NPSs) set out the UK wide 
criteria by which applications for NSIPs will be 
determined by the Secretary of State. NPS EN-1 (2011) 
relates to energy infrastructure whilst NPS EN-6 
addresses nuclear power generation and together they 

Factual correctness 

P
age 147



15 
 

will provide the principal decision making framework for 
the Planning Inspectorate in respect of Wylfa Newydd. 
The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy (DBEIS) are in the process of producing a 
new NPS EN-6 for Nuclear Power Generation 
deployed between 2026-2035 (“the new NPS”). It is 
proposed the new NPS will sit outside of the 2011 
Energy NPS suite. That is, it will be a standalone 
NPS which will set the framework for development 
consent decisions on applications for new nuclear 
power stations post 2025.  

 
 

26 Paragraph 2.2.2 50 End of 2.2.2  
 
2.2.2       The latest PPW (PPW Edition 9) was 

published in November 2016 and reflects 
recent changes in legislation including the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, 
which are incorporated as golden threads 
throughout the document. In addition, 
Chapter 4 of PPW reflects the Welsh 
language provisions of the Planning (Wales) 
Act 2015, which strengthens the 
consideration given to the Welsh language in 
the planning system, whilst Chapter 6 reflects 
the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
TAN: 24 (The Historic Environment) was also 
adopted in May 2017 and a revised TAN: 20 
(Planning and the Welsh Language) was 
adopted in October 2017. The Welsh 
Government are currently consulting on a 
revised PPW (Edition 10) which will need 

Factual correctness. Welsh 
Government are currently consulting 
on a revised PPW (Edition 10).  P

age 148



16 
 

to be taken into consideration in future 
plan and decision making. 

 

27 Paragraph 1.5.8 51 1.5.8  To comply with Regulation 61(1) of The 
 Conservation of Habitats and Species 
 Regulations 2010 (SI2010 No.490) the 
 Conservation of Habitats  and  Species 
 Regulations 2017 (‘the  Habitats 
 Regulations’), the County  Council has 
 carried out a Habitats  Regulations 
 Assessment (HRA) screening  exercise. 
 

Factual correctness 

28 Paragraph 4.10.2 52 The North Anglesey Marine Candidate Special Area of 
Conservation (cSAC), has been identified as an area 
of importance for the protection of the harbour 
porpoise which also required consideration. 

Factual correctness 

29 Paragraph 5.1.32 53, 66, 
112 

The natural environment: Tre'r Gof SSSI is situated 
within the boundary of the main Wylfa Newydd site. 
NPS EN-6 highlights that this rich fen habitat could be 
subject to direct and/or indirect effects associated with 
changes to water quality or quantity but that it is 
anticipated that sufficient land is available within the site 
for the development of a new nuclear power station 
without permanently affecting any designated area. 
NPS EN-6 also highlights that Tre'r Gof SSSI could be 
protected through engineered drainage mitigation 
measures to preserve surface and groundwater quality 
and quantity including protection of the mineral rich 
waters and hence maintain the overall ecology of the 
SSSI. There is also the potential for the provision of 
replacement habitat for any habitat that may be lost as a 
result of development.  
 
Environmental assessment undertaken in respect of 
the Wylfa Newydd Project has identified the 

Factual correctness. (Reference 
paragraph 2.3.1 of Horizon’s Main 
Consultation Document on 
Additional Land).  

P
age 149



17 
 

potential for adverse effects on the Tre’r Gof SSSI 
due to possible changes to the hydrological and 
hydrogeological inputs to the SSSI. Horizon have 
produced a drainage design which mitigates the 
potential effects as far as possible, but there 
remains uncertainty about how the Tre’r Gof SSSI 
will respond to the changes in landform and there is 
the possibility of a gradual long term deterioration 
of the rich fen communities for which the SSSI was 
designated. Compensation sites are therefore 
required to mitigate against the potential adverse 
impacts on the Tre’r Gof SSSI.  

30 GP15 & 
Paragraph 4.6.10 

55 GP15: 
Based upon a sufficiently robust profile of demand for 
construction materials, plant and equipment (including 
AILs), the Wylfa Newydd project promoter should define 
a logistical approach to deliveries to the main site and 
associated development sites which maximises the use 
of rail and sea (waterborne) transport modes whilst 
fully assessing and mitigating the effects on the 
environment. 
 
4.6.10: 
It is recognised that the impact of  transporting goods 
and materials along  existing road infrastructure could 
be significantly mitigated by installation of a  Marine Off-
Loading Facility (MOLF) at the Wylfa Newydd site. The 
County Council is  therefore supportive in principle of 
the project promoter’s proposal to include the 
construction of a purpose built MOLF at Porth-y-pistyll 
as part of the main Wylfa Newydd site development, 
provided that the environmental impacts are fully 
assessed. 
 

To ensure that environmental effects 
are fully assessed and considered.  

P
age 150



18 
 

31 GP15 57 viii A Traffic Management Plan will be required 
 which sets out how adverse impacts on key 
 parts of the network will be mitigated 
 (including, but not necessarily limited to, the 
 A55 including the Britannia Bridge, A5 
 including the Menai Bridge and, the A5025  and 
any other impacted route as  necessary) 
showing how any known pinch  points and cross 
boundary impacts will be  addressed. 
 

Clarity – to include other impacted 
routes as necessary. 

32 GP28b (Vi) 58 vi. The provision of a Site Campus Management Plan 
including details of how the site will be managed to 
support promote the health and well-being of those 
accommodated (including ensuring that impacts on 
the amenity of accommodated workers from 
construction noise, light and dust are of an 
acceptable level) and to minimise and mitigate the 
effects on the Island’s communities (particularly 
the near neighbour communities of Tregele and 
Cemaes); 

 

Proximity principle – need to 
consider impacts on the near 
neighbour communities.  

33 3.2.8 61 3.2.8 (ii) Minimising direct loss of wildlife habitats and 
impact upon species of conservation value during 
construction and operation and seeking ensuring 
permanent biodiversity enhancement measures are 
implemented and managed in perpetuity, including 
green infrastructure provision; 
 

To ensure that any permanent 
biodiversity enhancement measures 
and implemented and managed in 
perpetuity.  

35 Objective 3 
 

71 Objective 3 table (Key Local Plans and Programmes): 
Public Right of Way Improvement Plan 
 

For completeness 

36 Objective 5 (i) 73, 132 3.2.6 (i) 
Protecting and enhancing the Island’s landscapes, 
seascape, coastal environment, townscapes and 
cultural heritage assets including designated sites such 

For completeness 

P
age 151



19 
 

as the Isle of Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB), Heritage Coast, Cestyll Garden and, 
Cemlyn Bay (SPASAC), Anglesey Terns SPA and 
World Heritage Site; 
 

37 Objective 5 (iii) 74 3.2.6 (iii) 
Avoiding adverse impacts of temporary construction 
worker accommodation and the influx of construction 
workers on the environment, on community well-
being, cohesion and the unique identity of the Island 
through sensitive associated and related development 
site location, scale, design and management of 
workers; 
 

For clarity and completeness.  

38 Objective 7 (ii) 76 3.2.8 (ii) 
Minimising direct loss of wildlife habitats and impact 
upon species of conservation value during  construction 
and operation and seeking ensuring permanent 
biodiversity enhancement measures are implemented 
and managed in perpetuity, including green 
infrastructure provision; 
 

As Row 33 above.  

40 Obj 7 viii 78 3.2.8 viii 
Enhancing the Island’s distinctive landscape, seascape 
and coastal environment, recognising important linkages 
to the historic environment; 
 

For completeness 

42 GP5 84 GP5 (xiii) 
Mitigate and/or compensate for any potential 
significant impacts of visitor pressure on European 
designated sites, National and Regional designated 
sites and local wildlife sites; 
 
 
 

For completeness 

P
age 152



20 
 

43 GP8 87 GP8: 
In accordance with NPS EN-1, Planning Policy Wales, 
TAN16: Sport, Recreation and Open Space and JLDP 
Policy ISA 2: Community Facilities, the County Council 
will resist the loss or damage to of existing open space 
and recreational facilities, walking and cycling routes or 
impacts on the connectivity of green infrastructure 
unless appropriate replacement provision is made. 
 

For completeness 

44 GP8 88 GP8: 
The County Council will seek to ensure that community 
access to facilities is secured and adequately 
resourced through appropriate mechanisms such as 
planning obligations (see GP24). 
 

For clarity 

45 GP16 91 GP16: 
Where the upgrade of existing, or provision of new, 
utilities infrastructure is required to address identified 
project related effects, this should be agreed with the 
relevant service provider and delivered in a timely 
manner to ensure that the upgrade or provision is 
executed to programme and that there would be no 
intermediate adverse impacts on existing provision, the 
natural environment or ecosystem services. 
 

For clarity 

46 GP21 94 GP21 (i) 
The integrity of Natura 2000 sites such as Cemlyn Bay 
Special Area of Conservation and the Ynys Feurig, the 
Skerries and Cemlyn Bay Special Protection Areas 
Anglesey Terns SPA; 
 

Factual correctness 

47 GP21 (4.10.4) 95 Tre’r Gof Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), a 
rich-fen wetland habitat vulnerable to changes to water 
quality or quantity, is also located within the Wylfa 
Newydd New Nuclear Build site boundary Cae Gwyn 

For completeness 

P
age 153



21 
 

SSSI is also within close proximity to the Wylfa 
Newydd Site which needs consideration.  
 

48 GP21 (ix) 96 Sites of Regional or Local Importance including 
Local Nature Reserves and Wildlife Sites (in 
accordance with JLDP Policy AMG6); 
 

For completeness and alignment 
with JLDP Policy AMG 6.  

50 GP21 (xix) 100 On or off-site habitat creation or enhancement, or other 
conservation measures to compensate for temporary 
or residual effects arising from the Wylfa Newydd 
Project; 
 

For completeness.  

51 GP22 104 The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other 
applicant will be required to demonstrate that the 
construction and operation of the power station, 
associated and related developments, either alone or in 
combination with other proposals, would not have an 
adverse impact on water quality, coastal habitats or 
features, riparian habitats and aquatic species 
(including migratory fish populations) or commercial and 
recreational users. 
 

For completeness. 

52 GP22 105 Where the potential for adverse impacts is are identified 
and cannot be avoided, measures should be 
implemented to mitigate these impacts.  
 

For clarity and completeness 

53 GP22 106 GP22 (new bullet added) 
Adopt best practise guidance to help secure the 
integrity of designated geomorphological or 
hydrologically dependant features; 
 

For completeness. 

55 4.13.1 110  Changes to the composition of populations of 
agreed key habitats/species or features such as 
those of nature conservation significance or a 
qualifying feature of a designated site.  

Point inserted as suggested for 
completeness 

P
age 154



22 
 

 

56 Locational 
Guidance 5.1.13 

111 The area has a rich and varied environment, including 
the Anglesey Coast AONB and Parys Mountain. 
Designated nature conservation sites includes the 
Special Area of Conservation (SAC) of Cemlyn Bay and 
the Special Protection Areas (SPAs) of Ynys Feurig, 
Cemlyn Bay and The Skerries and Liverpool Bay 
Anglesey Terns SPA. The SPA comprises three 
separate areas of importance for four species of 
breeding terns. The three areas are treated as a single 
site as a consequence of regular movement by birds 
between the component parts. North Anglesey also 
contains 19 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) 
some of which extend over separate land areas.  Much 
of North Anglesey also falls within the Coastal Change 
Management Area, which mean no active intervention is 
expected in the JLDP plan period.  Historic assets 
include Cestyll Gardens, which is a registered Historic 
Garden, and the Amlwch, Amwlch Port, Cemaes and 
Llanfechell Conservation Areas. There are also a 
number of Local Wildlife Sites in the area. 
 

Factual correctness.  

57 5.1.32 112, 
152 

5.1.32 Landscape & Visual paragraph 
European, National, Regional and Local designates 
sites will also need to be considered.  Furthermore, 
there are likely to be temporary impacts, including 
through the development of a MOLF.These factors will 
all need to be considered through a Landscape and 
Environmental Habitat Management Masterplan 
Strategy (LEMPor equivalent) for development of the 
main site. 
 
5.1.32 Health & Well-being paragraph: 
As well as the construction activities on site, the 
construction will generate a high number of HGV trips 

For completeness.  

P
age 155



23 
 

to/from the site and a number of vessel movements 
that will generate noise and vibration. 
 

58 GP28a e (ii) 113 the condition of SSSIs including Tre'r Gof and Cae 
Gwyn SSSI; 
 

For completeness 

59 GP28 e 114 Relevant Local Wildlife Sites; 
 

For completeness.  

60 5.1.47 118  Noise, dust and, air quality and lighting: These impacts 
form key concerns for the residents of Cemaes given 
their proximity to the main site. 
 

For completeness. 

62 GP30 120 GP30 – Key Issues (Natural Environment): 
In particular, the potential cumulative effects of 
increased visitor pressure including that from up to 
4,000 resident construction workers at the main site on 
the designated nature conservation sites of Cemlyn Bay 
and the Wylfa Head Local Wildlife Site, and proposals 
for the management or mitigation of these effects, 
should be identified. 
 

For completeness. 

63 GP31 121 Opportunities should also be explored to improve 
watercourse water quality, provide biodiversity 
mitigation & gains for impacted species and better 
attenuate road run-off. 
 

For completeness. 

65 5.2.44 124 The Llangefni area of search has been identified by 
the project promoter as a potential location for a 
SSSI compensation site (at Cors Gwawr and Cae 
Canol-dydd near Talwrn). There are also a number 
of Local Wildlife Sites in this area of Search; 
 

Factual completeness.  

66 GP35 – 5.2.53.1 126 There are several SSSIs within and in close proximity to 
the AoS including (but not limited to), Llyn Traffwll, 
Cors Bodwrog to the north-east of Gwalchmai, 

For completeness.  

P
age 156



24 
 

Malltraeth Marsh to the west of Pentre Brerw, Valley 
Lakes and Beddmanarch-Cymyran to the west of Valley. 
 

67 1.4.2 127 Inform pre-application discussions related to the main 
site and associated developments and related 
development (by the project promoter or any other 
third party applicant); 
 

This SPG will  be used to inform pre-
application discussions not only with 
Horizon, but also with third party 
applicants 

68 Objective 5 135, 
138 

Objective 5 (Key Local Plans and Programmes) 
National Trust: Cemlyn Vision. 
 

For completeness 

69 Objective 7 141 Objective 7 (Key Local Plans and Programmes) 
National Trust: Cemlyn Vision 
 
Objective 7 (Key Delivery Partners) 
National Trust; 
North Wales Wildlife Trust; 
Local Land Owners; 
RSPB 
 

For completeness 

70 5.1.26 142 Tourism: A potential decline in tourism as a result of 
impacts upon attractions such as the Wales Coastal 
Path and the Cemlyn Bay Nature Reserve. The 
increased levels of activity affecting the actual and 
perceptions of perceived 
peace and tranquillity of North Anglesey and the. 
Increased demand for tourism accommodation and the 
intensification of use of local tourism facilities and 
attractions by visitors and by the Wylfa Newydd 
construction workers during construction; 
 

For completeness.  

71 Throughout 147, 
152 

All bullets numbered For ease of referencing  

72 4.12.3 147 Mitigation/compensation to address unquantifiable 
and/or residual adverse impacts on health, well-being 

For completeness 

P
age 157



25 
 

 

and residential amenity and the provision of information 
on health risks to local residents, communities, visitors 
and businesses to address concerns associated with 
the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd 
Project (see GP7); 
 

73 5.1.26 151 Increased demand for tourism accommodation and the 
intensification of use of local tourism facilities and 
attractions by visitors and by the Wylfa Newydd 
construction workers during construction; 
 

For completeness 

74 Topic Paper 11 -  
North Anglesey 
3.2.22 

166 There are no major supermarkets in North Anglesey 
with the closest being the Asda and Morrisons 
supermarkets in Holyhead.  There is a Co-Op in 
Amlwch and also a Tesco Express in Benllech. 
 

Factual correctness. 

P
age 158



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd: 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

May 2018 
 

Page 159



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Contents 

1 Introduction 1 

1.1  The Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 2 

1.2  Sustainable Development  4 

1.3 The Wylfa Newydd Project  9 

1.4  Purpose of this SPG 12 

1.5 Preperation of this SPG  14 

1.6 Structure of this SPG 19 

1.7 Consultation  20 

   

2 Policy Framework  21 

2.1 UK National Policy Statements  21 

2.2  National Policy (Wales) 22 

2.3 Local Policies and Strategies 23 

   

3 Vision and Objectives  29 

3.1  Vision  29 

3.2  Objectives 30 

   

4 Project Wide Guidance  44 

4.1 Economic Development  45 

4.2 Tourism  55 

4.3 Population and Community  59 

4.4 Construction Worker Accommodation and Anglesey’s Housing Market 69 

4.5  Welsh Language and Culture  82 

4.6  Transport  85 

4.7  Utilities  90 

4.8 Waste 93 

4.9 Climate Change  96 

4.10  Natural Environment  101 

4.11 Historic Environment  107 

4.12 Facilitating Development  109 

4.13 Implementation and Monitoring  114 

   

5 Locational Guidance  118 

5.1 North Anglesey 123 

Page 160



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Main Wylfa Newydd Site  131 

 Amlwch and Environs  143 

 Cemaes and Environs  154 

 A5025 Corridor  165 

5.2 Rest of Anglesey  175 

 Holyhead and Environs  179 

 Llangefni and Environs  193 

 A55 / A5 Corridor  201 

 Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland  213 

Page 161



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Foreword 

The new nuclear power station at Wylfa (currently known as and referred to as Wylfa Newydd), along 

with other major developments proposed on Anglesey, present a once in a lifetime opportunity to 

transform the economy and communities of the Island. 

To help secure such transformation, and to ensure that any adverse effects associated with the 

foreseen developments are fully considered and mitigated, there is a need for specific Supplementary 

Planning Guidance (SPG). In this context, the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa: Supplementary Planning 

Guidance (Wylfa NNB SPG) was adopted by Isle of Anglesey County Council (the County Council) in 

July 2014. 

Such guidance has to be placed in the context of UK and Welsh Government national policies, and 

build upon and complement existing local policy. It must therefore be comprehensive given the scale 

and wide-ranging nature and implications of Wylfa Newydd, and be based upon a robust evidence 

base. Since adoption of the Wylfa NNB SPG in July 2014, there have been substantial changes to 

legislation, national (Wales) and local policy as well as to the proposed Wylfa Newydd Project itself. 

As a result of these changes, the County Council has determined that the adopted SPG should be 

revised in order to ensure that it continues to provide a sound basis for guiding decisions on 

masterplanning, design and the efficient delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

The purpose of the revised SPG to be called the Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 

(Wylfa Newydd SPG), is to provide supplementary advice on important local direct or indirect matters 

and to set out the County Council’s response to national and local policy and strategies in the context 

of the Wylfa Newydd Project. The SPG will enable the County Council to play its full role in the 

planning consent processes for Wylfa Newydd, be it as a consultee for the Development Consent 

Order (DCO) application, or in its consideration of Town and Country Planning Act applications for 

related developments or third party development proposals linked to the Wylfa Newydd Project. The 

SPG will be particularly relevant for informing the preparation of the County Council’s Local Impact 

Report, submitted as part of to the DCO examination process as well as informing and underpinning 

other relevant written representations and planning requirements/obligations for the New Nuclear 

Build Project. 

The Wylfa Newydd SPG will not only provide part of a framework for future decisions by the County 

Council, but it will also help to inform the project promoter (and any other third party applicant) 

proposals and decision making by providing clarity in relation to the County Council’s aspirations and 

expectations of the proposed Wylfa Newydd Project. 

The Wylfa Newydd Project will have important implications for the Island’s economy, its communities 

and environment. The County Council is committed to ensuring that the potential adverse impacts of 

Page 162



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

the main Wylfa Newydd Project site, its associated developments and any related developments are 

identified and wherever possible avoided. Where adverse impacts cannot be avoided, the County 

Council’s expectation (reflected in this SPG) will be for the project promoter or any other applicant to 

implement appropriate mitigation and/or compensation measures. The County Council will also seek 

to ensure that the socio-economic benefits related to the construction and operation of the new power 

station are fully realised in order to provide long term support to the Island and its communities. In 

this context, the Wylfa Newydd SPG is underpinned by, and also seeks to enhance, benefits 

associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

The Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) covers both the Gwynedd Local Planning Authority area 

and the Isle of Anglesey and the policies relating to all elements of the project apply to all of the plan 

area; this SPG however covers the area of Anglesey only. This reflects the evolution of this guidance. 

This guidance is a revision of the 2014 SPG, which pre-dated the JLDP and applied in Anglesey only. 

The SPG has been revised and updated to reflect the now adopted JLDP and the emerging detail of 

the promoter’s proposals for the Wylfa Newydd Project. The County Council has relied on and referred 

to the 2014 SPG in its earlier consultation responses on the project proposals and care has been 

taken to limit change to this SPG so that consistency on the principles set out is maintained and the 

advice already given by the County Council remains applicable. Gwynedd Council will rely on the 

policies of the JLDP. 

Your views on this draft document are extremely important to us. To help ensure that the SPG 

identifies and appropriately responds to the opportunities and challenges presented by the Wylfa 

Newydd Project, it is essential that the development of the document is informed by consultation with 

the Island’s residents, communities, businesses and other stakeholders.

Page 163



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
1  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1 Introduction 

1.1.1 The UK Government is committed to meeting its legally binding target to cut greenhouse gas 

emissions by at least 80% by 2050, compared to 1990 levels1. Welsh Government Ministers 

also have a duty to ensure the net Welsh emissions in 2050 are 80% lower than the existing 

baseline in 2050.2 As a low carbon source of energy, the UK Government has clearly stated 

that nuclear power generation has an important role to play in the diversification and 

decarbonisation of electricity demand. Nuclear power generation can also help to ensure the 

resilience of the UK’s energy supply. 

 

1.1.2 It is UK Government policy3 that nuclear power should be able to contribute significantly to the 

national need for new supply capacity as part of an energy mix that includes renewables and 

fossil fuels with carbon capture and storage. Furthermore, the UK Government considers it 

important for new nuclear development to be operational as soon as possible. This is reiterated 

in the Overarching National Policy Statement (NPS) for Energy – EN-1 (2011) and the UK 

Government has published a National Policy Statement (NPS) for Nuclear Power Generation 

– EN-6 (2011) in order to clarify policy and to assist in facilitating the delivery of new power 

stations in a timely manner. 

 

1.1.3 NPS EN-6 identifies eight potentially suitable sites for new nuclear development, one of which 

is located on the Wylfa Peninsula adjacent to the former Magnox power station, which ceased 

generating on 30 December 2015. Development of the new nuclear power station site at Wylfa 

(Wylfa Newydd) is currently being pursued by Horizon Nuclear Power (“project promoter”). 

 

1.1.4 The Welsh Government, through its low carbon transition strategy4, and the Isle of Anglesey 

County Council (the County Council), both recognise the important contribution new nuclear 

power can make to the UK’s energy mix and security of electricity supply and both support the 

principle of development of a new nuclear power station at Wylfa. They also anticipate that the 

development of a new nuclear power station at Wylfa and associated developments (which, 

for the purposes of this document, are termed the ‘Wylfa Newydd Project’) will be a 

fundamental driver for long term, sustainable economic growth on Anglesey and in the wider 

North Wales region. 

 

1 
As established in the Climate Change Act 2008. 

2 As established in the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
3 

See HM Government (2011) The Carbon Plan: Delivering Our Low Carbon Future: DECC: London. 
4 

Welsh Government (2012) Energy Wales: A Low Carbon Transition. Welsh Government: Cardiff.

Page 164

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/47854/1938-overarching-nps-for-energy-en1.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/47859/2009-nps-for-nuclear-volumeI.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
2  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The key strategic importance of the Wylfa Newydd Project is fully recognised in the County 

Council’s Energy Island Programme (EIP) and Welsh Government Enterprise Zone5 which 

together aim to create a geographical hub of excellence for the development, implementation 

and servicing of low carbon energy initiatives. 

1.1.5 It is anticipated that the EIP could contribute to facilitating up to £2.5 billion to the Anglesey 

and North Wales economies over the next 15 years, providing an unprecedented opportunity 

to deliver sustainable and substantial long-term benefits to the socio-economic fabric of the 

Island and region. 

 

1.1.6 In September 2017, the Welsh Government published Prosperity for All: The National 

Strategy; that sets out how Welsh Government will deliver the Programme for Government. It 

takes the commitments in the Programme for Government and sets out how they will be 

delivered by bringing together the efforts of the whole Welsh public sector. The Strategy 

specifically mentions the need to harness the opportunities from Wylfa Newydd and the need 

to link new housing with new major infrastructure developments such as Wylfa Newydd. 

1.1 Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance 

1.1.7 The New Nuclear Build at Wylfa: Supplementary Planning Guidance (Wylfa NNB SPG) was 

adopted by the County Council in July 2014. Since its adoption, there have been a number of 

important changes that have prompted a need to revise the adopted SPG. 

Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) 

1.1.8 The County Council adopted the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint local Development Plan (JLDP) 

on 31st July 2017. The JLDP sets out the vision, objectives, policies and site allocations to 

guide and facilitate development on the Island out to 2026. It provides up-to-date local 

planning policy consistent with national policy set out in Planning Policy Wales, replacing the 

Gwynedd Structure Plan (1993) and Anglesey Local Plan (1996) and superseding the 

Anglesey Unitary Development Plan (stopped 2005) and Interim Planning Policies. 

5 The Energy Island Programme is a public-private partnership with the aim of putting Anglesey at the forefront of energy research and 

development, production and servicing. It is part of the County Council’s Enterprise Island Framework under which Enterprise Zone status 

will accelerate the investment required to secure the Island’s future as a leading location for future low carbon energy innovation, 

generation and demonstration. This will include regeneration, infrastructure and property requirements, as well as ICT communications 

through to power, transportation and water for key sites within the Zone.

Page 165

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/business/energy-island/
https://businesswales.gov.wales/enterprisezones/zones/anglesey/about-anglesey-enterprise-zone
http://gov.wales/docs/strategies/170919-prosperity-for-all-en.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
3  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

In accordance with Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and 

paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning Policy Wales, planning decisions should be made in accordance 

with the Development Plan, unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The 

adoption of the JLDP therefore represents a major change in planning policy since adoption 

of the Wylfa NNB SPG in July 2014. Section 2 provides an overview of the current planning 

policy context for this revised SPG. 

Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

1.1.9 The enactment of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and Environmental 

(Wales) Act 2016 have together placed significant emphasis on the promotion of sustainable 

development and the sustainable management of natural resources (see Section 1.2 for 

further details). The Planning (Wales) Act 2015, meanwhile, has reformed the planning 

system, strengthening the plan-led approach, supporting joint working across local authority 

areas and introducing defined statutory pre-application procedures for some planning 

applications. The importance of the Welsh language in planning decisions has also been 

strengthened through this Act. 

Wales Act 2017 

1.1.10 The Wales Act 2017 has important implications for the process by which the Wylfa Newydd 

project promoter could seek consent for the range of associated / related development to 

support the construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd. The Act enables associated 

development for Welsh energy Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) with a 

generating capacity of more than 350MW (like Wylfa Newydd) to be determined by the 

relevant Secretary of State as part of a Development Consent Order (DCO) application. 

Previously, associated development was not covered by the Planning Act 2008 in Wales and 

would therefore have been determined by the County Council under the Town & Country 

Planning Act (unless ‘called-in’ by Welsh Ministers). However, the project promoter and any 

other third parties promoting projects related to Wylfa Newydd (for example, enabling works 

in advance of the approval of a DCO and proposals by other parties to help meet the needs 

related to Wylfa Newydd) will require consent through the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended). The revised SPG provides guidance, which takes into account this 

important change to the consenting regime. 

 

 

Page 166



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
4  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Other Legislative & Project Changes 

1.1.11 A number of other legislative changes since adoption of the SPG in July 2014 make it essential 

that the adopted SPG is revised and updated to ensure the County Council is well placed to 

respond to the Wylfa Newydd Project proposals. For example, the Social Services and Well-

being Act came into force on 6 April 2016. The Act provides the legal framework for improving 

the well-being of people who need care and support, and carers who need support, and for 

transforming social services in Wales. 

1.1.12 Additionally, there have been changes to the Wylfa Newydd Project description; including an 

increase in forecast construction worker numbers and greater clarity in terms of the type and 

location of associated and related development (see Section 1.2). There have also been 

changes to the social, economic and environmental baseline including ongoing infrastructure 

development as part of the Enterprise Zone such as the Llangefni Link Road. 

1.1.13 As a result of these changes, the County Council has determined that the adopted ‘New 

Nuclear Build at Wylfa SPG’ should be revised in order to ensure that it continues to provide 

a sound basis for guiding decisions on the Wylfa Newydd Project. The County Council is 

therefore consulting on its revised guidance, the Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning 

Guidance (SPG). 

1.1.14 Once adopted, the Wylfa Newydd SPG will augment existing national and local planning policy 

to help guide the masterplanning, design and efficient delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

and to ensure the realisation of lasting benefits to the Isle of Anglesey and North Wales region. 

Appendix A shows how the Guiding Principles of the SPG relate to national and local planning 

policy. Further detail on the role of the County Council in the DCO process and the purpose 

of this SPG can be found in Section 1.4 of this SPG. 

1.2 Sustainable Development 

1.2.1 It is essential that the delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project reflects the principles of 

sustainable development; it must recognise, and be sensitive to, the potential for adverse 

impacts upon the Island’s unique environmental and cultural resources, its communities and 

established economic activity whilst at the same time providing long lasting socio-economic 

and environmental benefits.  The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 requires that any statutory body 

carrying out a planning function must exercise those functions in accordance with the 

principles of sustainable development as set out in the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015 and in doing so contribute positively to the achievement of the Wales’ well-

Page 167



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
5  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

being goals.  Consistent with this requirement, Planning Policy Wales puts in place a 

presumption in favour of sustainable development. JDLP policy PS5: Sustainable 

Development sets out how the principles of sustainable development are applied locally. 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2017 

1.2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on Welsh public bodies 

to carry out sustainable development. In this Act, sustainable development is defined as “the 

process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by 

taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving 

the well-being goals”. In this context, the sustainable development principle means that public 

bodies “must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met 

without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs”. The Act puts 

in place seven well-being goals (see Box 1).

Page 168



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
6  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

Box 1 The Well-being Goals for Wales 

A prosperous Wales An innovative, productive and low carbon society which 

recognises the limits of the global environment and therefore 

uses resources efficiently and proportionately (including acting on 

climate change); and which develops a skilled and well-educated 

population in an economy which generates wealth and provides 

employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of 

the wealth generated through securing decent work. 

A resilient Wales A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural 

environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support 

social, economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to 

adapt to change (for example climate change). 

A healthier Wales A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is 

maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit 

future health are understood. 

A more equal Wales A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter 

what their background or circumstances (including their socio 

economic background and circumstances). 

A Wales of cohesive 

communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 

A Wales of vibrant 

culture and thriving 

Welsh language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the 

Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in 

the arts, and sports and recreation. 

A globally responsible 

Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, 

social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes 

account of whether doing such a thing may make a positive 

contribution to global well-being. 

Page 169



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
7  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.2.3 The Welsh Government has identified five ways of working to ensure that public bodies work 

together to tackle some of the long term challenges facing the communities of Wales. The five 

ways of working are: 

 Long term; 

 Prevention; 

 Integration; 

 Collaboration; and 

 Involvement. 

1.2.4 The sustainable development principle, seven well-being goals and five ways of working 

outlined above are integral to the preparation of this SPG and the well-being goals are 

specifically mapped against the County Council’s vision and related objectives for the Wylfa 

Newydd Project and this SPG (Section 3). 

1.2.5 In terms of the determination of planning applications and of making planning decision, 

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) has been updated to reflect the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act. It states: 

  “The planning system manages the development and use of land in the public interest, 

contributing to improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, 

as required by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. It should reconcile the 

needs of development and conservation, securing economy, efficiency and amenity in the use 

of land, and protecting natural resources and the historic environment. A well-functioning 

planning system is fundamental for sustainable development.”6 

1.2.6 Planning Policy Wales is in the process of being updated. This SPG will also be updated as 

required to reflect the latest National Policy. 

The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

1.2.7 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 sets out the legislative approach for the sustainable 

management of natural resources in Wales. It seeks to maintain and enhance the resilience 

of Wales’ ecosystems and the services and benefits they provide and, in so doing, meet the 

needs of the present generation without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 

their needs. The Act is intended to support and complement the well-being goals outlined 

above, so that current and future generations benefit from a prosperous economy, a healthy 

6 Planning Policy Wales, 9th Edition, November 2016. Para 1.2.1

Page 170



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
8  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

  and resilient environment and vibrant, cohesive communities. 

1.2.8 To achieve the objective of the sustainable management of natural resources, the Act 

introduces a number of principles. These principles, which are to be applied equally and have 

guided the development of this revised SPG, are highlighted in Figure 1.1. 

Figure 1.1 Sustainable Management of Natural Resources – Principles 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Manage 

adaptively 

Take account of 

the resilience of 
ecosystems 

Consider 

appropriate scale 
for action 

Take action to 

prevent 
significant 
damage to 

 

Sustainable 

Management 
of Natural 
Resources 

Promote and 

engage in 
collaboration and 

co-operation 

Take account of 

the short, 
medium and long 

term   
consequences of 

actions 

Make 

appropriate 
arrangements for 

public 
participation in 
decision-making 

Take account of 

the benefits and 
intrinsic value of 
natural resources 
and ecosystems 

Take account of 

all relevant 
evidence and 

gather evidence 
on uncertainties 

Page 171



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
9  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.3 The Wylfa Newydd Project 

1.3.1 The proposed 300 hectare (ha) site which has been identified as a location for a new nuclear 

power station at Wylfa is shown in Figure 1.2. 

Figure 1.2 Location of the Proposed New Nuclear Build Site 

 

1.3.2 Since the adoption of the Wylfa NNB SPG in July 2014, Horizon has been developing its plans 

for the range of development integral to the construction and safe operation of the nuclear 

power station. The power station development envisaged currently comprises: 

i. Development of two UK Advanced Boiling Water Reactors (UK ABWRs) with a generating 

capacity of 3,000 MW; 

ii. Construction works around the power station and in the water near Porth-y-pistyll; 

iii. Creation of a permanent landscaped setting for the power station as well as construction 

of a cooling water system, and associated breakwaters; 

iv. A Marine Off-Loading Facility (MOLF) within Porth-y-pistyll; and 

Page 172



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
10  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

v. Off-site power station facilities consisting of a co-located Alternative Emergency Control 

Centre (AECC), Environmental Survey Laboratory (ESL) and a Mobile Emergency 

Equipment Garage (MEEG). 

1.3.3 Construction of the new nuclear power station is a NSIP under the Planning Act 2008. 

Legislation provides that projects like Wylfa Newydd are of such potential importance to the 

UK that a different consenting process to the “normal” grant of planning permission by the 

Local Planning Authority (LPA) applies. Under this process, the project promoter (Horizon) 

proposes to submit a DCO application for the power station to the Secretary of State for 

Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (Secretary of State). The application will be made 

through the Planning Inspectorate who, following examination, will recommend to the 

Secretary of State whether development consent should be granted or not. The final decision 

on whether to grant or refuse development consent rests with the Secretary of State7. 

1.3.4 Although the County Council is not the consenting authority for the NSIP, it will seek to ensure 

that development has regard to the strategic policies and principles of the Development Plan 

(the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP), the relevant NPSs, national (Wales) planning policy and 

guidance, and existing and emerging Supplementary Planning Guidance. 

1.3.5 The project promoter has revised the likely associated / related development required as part 

of the Wylfa Newydd Project during three stages of formal Pre-Application Consultation (in 

2014, 2016 and 2017) relating to the proposals as well an informal ‘Project Update’ 

consultation in January 2016. Horizon’s third Stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC 3), 

consulted on between May and July 2017, set out a number of proposals which included: 

 On-site campus providing temporary workers’ accommodation (Site Campus) for up to 

4,000 workers; 

 A temporary Park and Ride facility at Dalar Hir for construction workers; 

 A temporary Logistics Centre at Parc Cybi; 

 A5025 off-line highway improvements; and 

 An electrical connection to the National Grid substation. 

Horizon is also proposing the following enabling works (in advance of the DCO application): 

 Site preparation and clearance (SP&C) works to prepare the site for the main construction 

stage; and 

7 Further information on the DCO application process is available via the Planning Inspectorate’s website: 
http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/.

Page 173

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
11  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 On-line highways improvements work to improve the existing A5025 (including widening, 

reconstructing and resurfacing the road from Valley to the power station site). 

1.3.6 In this context, reference to the project as Wylfa Newydd in this SPG includes for 

development at the main Wylfa site, associated developments and any enabling works in 

advance of the DCO which will be Town & Country Planning Act Applications submitted to, 

and considered by the County Council. Additional references are also made to related 

development where relevant. Related developments are those proposed in connection to the 

Wylfa Newydd Project but that are not part of the DCO. These proposals are subject to 

consent under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

1.3.7 The Wylfa Newydd Project does not include development related to connection to the 

electricity transmission infrastructure (i.e. the National Grid), which will be required to serve 

the new nuclear power station. This NSIP (the North Wales Connection Project) is being 

promoted by National Grid and would be subject to a separate DCO application process. 

1.3.8 The term ‘Wylfa Newydd project promoter’ (or “project promoter”) relates to Horizon 

Nuclear Power only. The term ‘applicant’ relates to any other third parties proposing 

development in direct response to the Wylfa Newydd Project (for example, the provision of 

construction worker accommodation or related employment uses). 

1.3.9 The ‘Wylfa Newydd Project’ includes the Power Station Site, the Wylfa Newydd Development 

Area, Off-Site Facilities, any Associated or Related Developments and any other project 

component related to the new nuclear build.

Page 174



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
12  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.4 Purpose of this Supplementary Planning Guidance 

1.4.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance is a means of setting out detailed thematic or site specific 

guidance on the way in which Development Plan policies contained with the JLDP will be 

applied in particular circumstances or areas. The purpose of the Wylfa Newydd SPG is to 

provide supplementary advice on important local direct or indirect matters and to set out the 

County Council’s response to national and local policy and strategies in the context of the 

Wylfa Newydd Project. 

1.4.2 The Wylfa Newydd SPG is intended to: 

i. Inform the position which will be adopted by the County Council in its Local Impact Report8 

and relevant sections of the Statement of Common Ground9; 

ii. Provide a planning framework (alongside the Development Plan and other planning policy 

guidance) that helps guide the applicant(s) and influences the design and development of 

the Wylfa Newydd Project elements to ensure sustainable outcomes, with a focus on 

associated development and related development; 

iii. Inform pre-application discussions related to the main site and associated developments 

and related development (by the project promoter or any other third party applicant); 

iv. Offer supplementary local level guidance, consistent with the relevant NPSs, which the 

Planning Inspectorate and the Secretary of State may consider both important and 

relevant to the decision-making process; and 

v. Form a material consideration in the assessment of any Wylfa Newydd Project related 

Town and Country planning applications submitted by Horizon or other development 

promoters and businesses who may have, or wish to pursue, an interest in the project. 

1.4.3 It should be noted that the SPG cannot be a vehicle to formulate new policies or to ‘allocate’ 

land for development; guidance in this SPG should not be read as having these effects. It is 

also not the purpose of the SPG to make a judgement on the appropriateness and principles 

of the new power station development which comprises the key component of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. This is a matter for the Planning Inspectorate and the Secretary of State to 

consider in accordance with relevant NPSs. 

8 As part of the Planning Act 2008 process, the County Council will be invited to submit a Local Impact Report giving details of the likely 
impact of the proposed Wylfa Newydd Project on Anglesey. Further information on the preparation of local impact reports is available via 
the Planning Inspectorate’s website: http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/Advice-note-1v2.pdf. 
9 A statement of common ground is a written statement prepared jointly by the applicant and another party or parties such as the County 
Council, setting out any matters on which they agree. Statements of common ground help focus on the examination of the material 
differences between the main parties.

Page 175

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/Advice-note-1v2.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
13  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.4.4 It is also important to note that, as a NSIP, the case for new nuclear power stations including 

at Wylfa has already been established at the national (UK) level through NPSs, which provide 

the basis for decision making, by the Planning Inspectorate. It follows that Development Plan 

policy and this SPG do not include policy tests with respect to whether the construction and 

operation of a nuclear power station is acceptable. However, at Section 104(2)(b) and (d) the 

Planning Act 2008 states that the Planning Inspectorate/Secretary of State must have regard 

to any Local Impact Report prepared by the relevant LPA together with any other matters they 

think are both important and relevant to their decision. Further, enabling works and related 

developments submitted by third parties will require consent from the County Council under 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). In addition, other consents may also 

be required before development can proceed. 

1.4.5 This SPG (alongside the Development Plan and other planning policy guidance and 

legislation) therefore enables the County Council to make robust decisions on all Wylfa 

Newydd Project related development including enabling works (Town and County Planning) 

applications and third party applications it receives. Following the passing of the Wales Act 

2017 into law, the SPG is a consideration that weight may be attached to in planning decisions 

related to the DCO. It highlights some of the readily identifiable potential impacts of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project and outlines potential mitigation and enhancement measures to be 

considered in order to ensure that significant adverse impacts are avoided or, if this is not 

possible, mitigated and/or compensated, and that social, economic and environmental 

benefits associated with the construction and operation of the new power station are fully 

realised. 

1.4.6 The Wylfa Newydd SPG does not consider the decommissioning of Wylfa Newydd due to the 

difficulty in predicting the direction of future planning policy and the prevailing baseline socio-

economic and environmental conditions which may apply at the time (likely to be in excess of 

60 years from the present day). It is also expected that adequate controls would continue to 

be in place to ensure the safe decommissioning of the nuclear power station, in accordance 

with an agreed decommissioning plan. However, this SPG does provide guidance in respect 

of the decommissioning of temporary development required to support the construction of 

Wylfa Newydd.

Page 176



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
14  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.5 Preparation of this Revised Supplementary Planning Guidance 

1.5.1 Preparation of this revised SPG consists of five key stages that are shown in Figure 1.3. The 

revised draft SPG has been principally informed by: 

 Review and revision to the topic papers prepared in support of the Wylfa NNB SPG 

adopted in July 2014; 

 Review of evidence base and policy/project changes since adoption of the Wylfa NNB 

SPG in July 2014; and 

 Assessments and appraisals. 

Consultation on this draft SPG represents Stage 3. Taking into account comments received 

during the consultation, the County Council will prepare the final SPG (Stage 4) for adoption 

by the Council’s Executive Committee in early 2018 (Stage 5). Unlike the Development Plan, 

there is no requirement for its examination by an independent Planning Inspector. Upon its 

adoption, and provided its content has been informed by the above mentioned stages, it will 

be a material planning consideration for development management purposes. The adopted 

SPG will be accompanied by a statement of public consultation, which will set out the changes 

made in response to the public consultation or refer to them.

Page 177



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
15  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 1.3  Key Stages in the Development of the Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Evidence Base 

1.5.2 This SPG has been prepared following the adoption of the JLDP and relies upon much of the 

evidence base prepared for that process. The JLDP evidence base papers are available on 

the County Council’s website. 

Topic Paper 

1.5.3 Topic papers were developed to bring together the evidence base and policy context across 

10 topic areas for the adopted SPG. These topic papers have been reviewed and updated to 

inform the preparation of this revised SPG. A new topic paper covering the communities of 

North Anglesey has also been prepared reflecting the potential for significant, often 

cumulative, impacts associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project in this area. The topic papers 

support the: 

i. Identification of the key matters to be considered in drafting the SPG; 

ii. Provision ofguidance with respect to how the SPG could respond to the challenges and 

opportunities identified; and 

Page 178



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
16  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

iii. Presentation of further information to stakeholder organisations and the public in support 

of consultation on the draft revised SPG. 

Box 2 provides a full list of topic papers prepared in support of the SPG. 

Box 2 Topic Papers Prepared in Support of the Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Topic Paper 1: Natural Environment  

Topic Paper 2: Historic Environment  

Topic Paper 3: Housing 

Topic Paper 4: Economic Development  

Topic Paper 5: Transport 

Topic Paper 6: Amenity 

Topic Paper 7: Climate Change  

Topic Paper 8: Infrastructure  

Topic Paper 9: Waste 

Topic Paper 10: Population and Community  

Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey 

Assessment and Appraisal 

1.5.4 In developing this revised SPG, the County Council has carried out a number of technical 

assessments in order to ensure that the range of socio-economic and environmental effects 

that could arise from its implementation are understood, significant adverse effects mitigated 

and positive effects enhanced. These assessments draw on those undertaken for the SPG 

adopted in July 2014 and include the following: 

i. Sustainability Appraisal incorporating Strategic Environmental Assessment Screening; 

ii. Habitats Regulations Assessment Screening; 

iii. An updated Welsh Language Impact Assessment; 

iv. An updated Equality Impact Assessment; and 

v. An updated Rapid Health Impact Assessment.

Page 179



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
17  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Sustainability Appraisal 

1.5.5 Section 62(6) of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a LPA, when 

developing a local development plan (LDP) for its area to: 

a) Carry out an appraisal of the sustainability of the plan; and 

b) Prepare a report of the findings of the appraisal. 

1.5.6 In undertaking this requirement, the LPA must also incorporate the requirements of European 

Union Directive 2001/42/EC on the Assessment of the Effects of Certain Plans and 

Programmes on the Environment, commonly referred to as the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) Directive. This is enacted in Wales through the Environmental Assessment 

of Plans and Programmes (Wales) Regulations 2004. 

1.5.7 The Wylfa Newydd SPG will comprise further guidance to the JLDP, which has undergone SA 

during its preparation; SA of Supplementary Planning Guidance is not a statutory requirement. 

SA was, however, undertaken to support the development of the adopted SPG (2014) with the 

findings presented in an accompanying SA Report. This concluded that the SPG would have 

broadly positive socio-economic and environmental effects; no significant negative effects 

were identified. The amendments presented in this revised SPG would not materially affect 

the conclusions of that appraisal and therefore SA has not been undertaken in this instance. 

The amendments to the adopted SPG have been screened to determine whether the revised 

SPG should be subject to SEA and the County Council has determined that, as the revisions 

would not result in significant adverse environmental effects, the revised SPG does not require 

SEA. This was confirmed by NRW. 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

1.5.8 To comply with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (‘the Habitats 

Regulations’), the County Council has carried out a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) 

screening exercise. This sought to determine whether the revised Wylfa Newydd SPG would 

be likely to have a significant effect on any European designated sites, including: 

 Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) designated under Council Directive 92/43/EEC on 

the Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Fauna and Flora; 

 Special Protection Areas (SPA) designated under Council Directive 2009/147/EC on the 

Conservation of Wild Birds; and 

 Ramsar Sites designated under the 1976 Ramsar Convention (Ramsar sites are not 

European sites but under UK policy are given the same level of protection). 

Page 180



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
18  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.5.9 The screening process has confirmed that the Wylfa Newydd SPG will have no likely 

significant effects on any European sites. 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

1.5.10 An update to the Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIA) prepared in support of the 

adopted SPG has been carried out in order to determine the impact of the revised Wylfa 

Newydd SPG on the Welsh language in Anglesey. This can be found on the Council’s website. 

1.5.11 The WLIA of the draft revised SPG is separate and distinct from any WLIA concerning the 

Wylfa Newydd Project, which is being undertaken by the project promoter. In this context, 

Section 4.5 of this SPG considers further the potential impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

on Welsh language and culture and provides specific guidance in respect of project level 

WLIA. 

Equality Impact Assessment 

1.5.12 The duty to undertake Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) arises from the Race Relations 

(Amendment) Act 2000, the Disability Discrimination Act 2005 and the Equality Act 2010. EqIA 

should consider effects with respect to all members of the community whatever their race, age, 

disability, gender, sexual orientation and religion or beliefs thus helping to ensure social 

inclusion and community cohesion. 

1.5.13 EqIA of the draft revised Wylfa Newydd SPG has been undertaken in accordance with the 

County Council’s toolkit for carrying out EqIA and the EqIA Report has identified that the draft 

document would be unlikely to have an adverse impact on equality. 

Rapid Health Impact Assessment 

1.5.14 The role of Health Impact Assessment (HIA) has been defined as being to: 

“assess the potential health impacts – positive and negative – of policies, programmes and 

projects….and to improve the quality of public decision making through recommendations to 

enhance predicted positive health impacts and minimise negative ones” (Scott-Samuel et al., 

1998). 

1.5.15 The County Council has developed its own HIA toolkit and this has been used to undertake a 

rapid health impact screening of the draft revised Wylfa Newydd SPG.

Page 181



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
19  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

1.6 Structure of this SPG 

1.6.1 This SPG: 

i. Outlines the UK, national (Wales) and local policy framework (including NPSs) which 

provides the context for the guidance (Section 2); 

ii. Sets out the County Council’s vision and related objectives for the Wylfa Newydd Project 

and this SPG (Section 3); 

iii. Provides project-wide guidance related to the likely main potential impacts linked to the 

Wylfa Newydd Project and which is designed to help ensure that associated and related 

development is sustainably located, taking account of the evidence base and national and 

local planning policy (Section 4); and 

iv. Sets out guidance with respect to development in North Anglesey and the Rest of 

Anglesey. The section includes guidance on development at the main Wylfa Newydd site 

and identifies Areas of Search to help direct associated and related development with 

regard to appropriate locations and scale given prevailing and reasonably foreseen 

environmental and social conditions (Section 5). 

How this SPG should be used 

In developing proposals for the Wylfa Newydd Project, the County Council will expect the project 

promoter and any other applicant to give full consideration to both the thematic project- wide 

guidance (contained in Section 4) and relevant locational guidance (in Section 5), together with the 

relevant NPSs, national and local planning policy. 

Not all of the thematic project-wide and locationally specific SPG Guiding Principles will apply to all 

of the proposals directly or indirectly related to the Wylfa Newydd Project. It is therefore not intended 

that the SPG must be read as a whole to provide the basis for consideration of particular proposals 

in particular locations. 

The County Council will use both the project-wide guidance and locational guidance contained in 

this SPG, and relevant national and local planning policy, to: 

i. Respond to any consultation by the project promoter or any other applicant; 

ii. Prepare its Local Impact Report and Statement of Common Ground; and 

iii. Assist decision-making in the determination of any Town and Country Planning Act 

applications for related development it receives from the project promoter or any other 

applicant. 

Page 182



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
20  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The extent to which the guidance is relevant as material planning consideration to each application 

the County Council receives will vary and, by necessity given the likely variable scale and nature 

of the applications, will be determined on a case-by- case basis. 

1.7 Consultation 

1.7.1 The County Council recognises the importance of community involvement in the development 

of this revised SPG. The County Council  consulted on this draft SPG for a six week period, 

from 11 January to 22 February 2018. 168 representations were received from 10 individuals 

and organisations.

Page 183



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
21  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

2 Policy Framework 

2.1.1 The Wylfa Newydd SPG expands upon, and provides local context to, the relevant UK wide 

NPSs, national planning policy for Wales, as well as adopted Development Plan policy. The 

SPG may also influence, and be influenced by, other plans and programmes (planning and 

non-planning documents) at an international/European, national, regional and local level. This 

section provides a summary overview of the principal policy context for the SPG. An extensive 

range of other plans and programmes has also been taken into account in the development of 

this SPG document, as detailed in the accompanying topics papers and referred to in Section 

4 and Section 5 as appropriate. 

2.1 UK National Policy Statements 

National Planning Policy Statements for Energy (EN-1) and Nuclear Power Generation (EN-6) 

2.1.2 National Policy Statements (NPSs) set out the UK wide criteria by which applications for NSIPs 

will be determined by the Secretary of State. NPS EN-1 (2011) relates to energy infrastructure 

whilst NPS EN-6 addresses nuclear power generation and together they will provide the 

principal decision making framework for the Planning Inspectorate in respect of Wylfa Newydd. 

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (DBEIS) are in the process of 

producing a new NPS EN-6 for Nuclear Power Generation deployed between 2026-2035 (“the 

new NPS”).  It is proposed the new NPS will sit outside of the 2011 Energy NPS suite.  That 

is, it will be a standalone NPS which will set the framework for development consent decisions 

on applications for new nuclear power stations post 2025. 

2.1.3 NPSs provide advice on a range of both generic and nuclear-specific impacts that could arise 

from new nuclear build projects including in respect of issues such as biodiversity and 

geological conservation, water quality and resources and socio-economic impacts. As noted 

in Section 1, NPS EN-6 identifies land adjacent to the existing Wylfa Magnox nuclear power 

station as a suitable site for new nuclear development, subject to site and technology specific 

design issues and related impact assessment. 

2.1.4 The policy and guidance on generic impacts contained within NPSs can be used by LPAs to 

inform their Local Impact Reports and other written representations, The Secretary of State 

must have regard to any Local Impact Report when making decisions on such projects. NPSs 

can also be material to the consideration of applications received by LPAs under the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and applicants should ensure that their 

applications are consistent with the guidance in the NPSs. 

Page 184



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
22  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

2.1.5 The County Council recognises the importance of NPSs for decision making related to the 

Wylfa Newydd Project. This SPG is consistent with the policy and guidance contained within 

NPS-EN1 and NPS-EN6. NPS criteria is reflected within the Guiding Principles set out in 

Section 4 and Section 5 and specifically referenced where relevant. 

UK Industrial Strategy 

2.1.6 In January 2017, the Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) issued 

the UK Industrial Strategy Green Paper for public consultation. The objective of the Industrial 

Strategy is to improve living standards and economic growth by increasing productivity and 

driving growth across the UK. The Industrial Strategy identifies 10 pillars believed to be 

important to drive forward the industrial strategy across the whole economy (including 

delivering affordable energy and clean growth). This SPG will take into account the UK 

Industrial Strategy and the 10 pillars to delivering its objective. 

2.2 National Policy (Wales) 

Planning Policy Wales 

2.2.1 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 2016, together with Technical Advice Notes (TAN), Circulars 

and other supplementary documents, provide the national planning policy framework for 

preparing local development plans and set out the Welsh Government’s land use planning 

policies. Together, they seek to encourage sustainable development in Wales by promoting 

social justice and equality of opportunity; and enhancing the natural and cultural environment. 

2.2.2 The latest PPW (PPW9) was published in November 2016 and reflects recent changes in 

legislation including the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016, which are incorporated as golden threads throughout the 

document. In addition, Chapter 4 of PPW reflects the Welsh language provisions of the 

Planning (Wales) Act 2015, which strengthens the consideration given to the Welsh language 

in the planning system, whilst Chapter 6 reflects the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

TAN: 24 (The Historic Environment) was also adopted in May 2017 and a revised TAN: 20 

(Planning and the Welsh Language) was adopted in October 2017. The Welsh Government 

are currently consulting on a revised PPW (Edition 10) which will need to be taken into 

consideration in future plan and decision making.

Page 185

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161117planning-policy-wales-edition-9-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/policy/tans/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/policy/circulars/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/policy/circulars/?lang=en


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
23  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Wales Spatial Plan (2008) 

2.2.3 The Wales Spatial Plan introduces a strategic framework for directing development and policy 

interventions in Wales in the future. Anglesey is part of the North-West Wales Area: Eryri a 

Môn. The plan identifies the following vision for this area: 

  “A high-quality natural and physical environment supporting a cultural and knowledge- based 

economy that will help the area to maintain and enhance its distinctive character, retain and 

attract back young people and sustain the Welsh language”. 

2.2.4 Although the Wales Spatial Plan 2008 continues to provide a strategic framework for directing 

development in Wales, the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 enables the replacement of the Wales 

Spatial Plan with a National Development Framework (NDF). The NDF will become part of the 

statutory framework alongside adopted local development plans (such as the Anglesey and 

Gwynedd JLDP). The Welsh Government published a Statement of Public Participation for 

preparation of the NDF in February 2016, which was followed by a call for evidence stage 

earlier in 2017, and final publication of the NDF is expected in October 2019. 

Draft National Marine Plan for Wales 

2.2.5 The Welsh Government published a pre-consultation version of the National Marine Plan for 

Wales in November 2015. The emerging Plan seeks to reinforce an integrated, evidenced and 

plan-led approach to the sustainable development and use of the Welsh marine area. It 

supports the development of the low carbon economy and reaffirms the Welsh Government’s 

commitment to the delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

2.3 Local Policies and Strategies 

The Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) 

2.3.1 The Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP was adopted by the County Council on 31 July 2017. The 

JLDP replaces the Gwynedd Structure Plan (1993), Ynys Môn Local Plan (1996), the Anglesey 

Unitary Development Plan (stopped 2005) and Interim Planning Policies and provides up-to-

date policy which is consistent with PPW. It sets out the policy framework and strategic aims 

for development and land use from 2011-2026 to the following vision for the Plan area: 

  “By 2026, Anglesey and Gwynedd will be recognized for their vibrant and lively communities 

that celebrate their unique culture, heritage and environment and for being places where 

people choose to live, work and visit. 

Page 186

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/development-plans/wales-spatial-plan/?lang=en


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
24  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

  This means that the Joint Local Development Plan area will be one. 

 which adapts and responds positively to the challenges of climate change; 

 where the Welsh language is an integral part of communities; 

 which boasts an appropriately skilled workforce; 

 where its residents and businesses are able to grasp new economic opportunities in order 

to thrive and prosper; 

 which promotes economic activity amongst young people; 

 which has a varied, well connected, sustainable and broad economic base that makes the 

best use of local strengths and opportunities, and where the benefits deriving from the 

varied economic base are kept local; 

 which is recognized as a leading location for a variety of renewable and low carbon energy 

sectors and knowledge based industries, which will have contributed to transforming the 

local economy, including hosting a new generation nuclear power station, generating low 

carbon energy and catalysing regeneration in the Plan area; 

 where the housing needs of local communities in the area are better addressed in terms 

of supply, type, quality, energy efficiency, location and affordability; 

 that is home to vibrant networks of inclusive communities where residents enjoy good 

health and well-being; 

 where the unique character of its built and cultural heritage, its countryside and landscape, 

and its environment is valued, protected and enhanced; 

 a place where the transport infrastructure, particularly Holyhead port and the A487 and 

A5025 have been developed in order to support and grow businesses locally.” 

2.3.2 This vision is supported by nineteen strategic objectives linked to the following five cross 

cutting themes: 

 Theme 1: Support and create safe, healthy, distinctive and vibrant communities. 

 Theme 2: Sustainable Living. 

 Theme 3: Support growth and regeneration that will transform the local economy under 

the umbrella of Anglesey Energy Island Programme and other strategies and plans, 

building on those elements of its unique economic profile that are identified as being of 

regional and national significance. 

 Theme 4: To give everyone access to a home appropriate to their needs. 

 Theme 5: Protect and enhance the natural and built environment. 

Page 187



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
25  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

2.3.3 The JLDP includes a suite of policies to shape the consideration of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

including any associated and related development. The principal policies which apply to the 

Wylfa Newydd Project are: 

 Strategic Policy PS 9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 10: Wylfa Newydd – Campus Style Temporary Accommodation for 

Construction Workers; 

 Strategic Policy PS 11: Wylfa Newydd – Logistics Centres; and 

 Strategic Policy PS 12: Wylfa Newydd – Park and Ride and Park and Share Facilities. 

2.3.4 These policies set out the Council’s approach as a planning authority when consulted upon a 

DCO application and in its role as a determining authority for related development brought 

forward by the project promoter and any other third party applicant. The policies will also 

ensure that any third party applications for related development conform to the Plan’s strategy 

and objectives. Further detail in respect of those policies relevant to the project and 

associated/related developments is provided at Appendix A and in the topic papers which 

accompany this SPG. 

2.3.5 This SPG has been influenced and informed by the following plans and policies: 

Energy Island Programme 

2.3.6 The Anglesey Energy Island Programme (EIP) seeks to develop the low carbon energy sector 

on Anglesey. The EIP aims to create a centre of excellence for the production, demonstration 

and servicing of low carbon energy initiatives. It brings together proposed low carbon energy 

developments ranging from new nuclear, tidal arrays and biomass, with large contributions to 

the local economy. As well as energy industry jobs, opportunities are highlighted as part of the 

Programme to improve local transport infrastructure, housing, tourism and leisure facilities. 

Anglesey Enterprise Zone 

2.3.7 The Enterprise Zone initiative is designed to complement the EIP and to encourage growth in 

the low carbon energy sector on Anglesey. It aims to: support investment in low carbon energy 

production; establish world-class facilities for low carbon innovation and demonstration; and 

ensure that the supply chain captures servicing opportunities. 

2.3.8 Anglesey Enterprise Zone encompasses the whole of the Island, with the aim to focus 

investment on a short-list of nine key sites agreed based on their suitability to meet the needs 

of business. These sites include: 

Page 188



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
26  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Anglesey Aluminium (EZ1); 

 Parc Cybi (EZ2); 

 Penrhos Industrial Estate (EZ3); 

 Holyhead Port (EZ4); 

 Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate (EZ5); 

 Creamery Land North of Lledwigan Farm (EZ6); 

 Gaerwen Industrial Estate (EZ7); 

 Rhosgoch (EZ8); 

 Menai Science Park (EZ9). 

Isle of Anglesey and Gwynedd Single Integrated Plan - 2013 to 2017 (2014) 

2.3.9 The Isle of Anglesey and Gwynedd Single Integrated Plan (SIP) incorporates the vision and 

action plan of the joint Local Services Board for both counties. The Board is responsible for 

setting the ambition and strategic direction for the SIP and for the collaborative work within the 

area; it consists of leaders from various public, private and third sector organisations. The SIP 

focuses attention on improving the quality of life of local people and communities by enhancing 

economic, social and environmental well- being through: 

 Ensuring that reducing public service resources are used for the greatest benefit; 

 Helping individuals and communities to become strong and resilient and increasingly less 

dependent on public services; 

 Improving economic performance and skills to create / maintain jobs, emphasising lifelong 

learning opportunities, in particular the EIP; 

 Enabling communities and individuals to maintain and develop their independence; 

 Ensuring that opportunities are available for young people; 

 Reducing poverty and providing effective services that meet the needs of vulnerable 

groups; 

 Promoting and sustaining our environment; and 

 Promoting and maintaining our rich culture including the Welsh language. 

2.3.10 The SIP seeks to maximise the EIP to help deliver a prosperous economy, highlighting that 

opportunities in the low carbon energy sector are integral to the improvement of economic 

performance and workforce skills levels on Anglesey. The SIP acknowledges the EIP and the 

£2.5billion contribution it may make to Anglesey’s and North Wales’ economies over the next 

15 years and aims to capitalise upon all strategic energy investment proposals on Anglesey, 

including the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

Page 189

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-and-policies/economic/single-integrated-plan-2013-25/119785.article


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
27  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Anglesey Local Well-being Plan (emerging) 

2.3.11 The Local Well-being Plan is being prepared by the Public Services Board, established under 

one of the new duties introduced with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

The Boards established for Anglesey and Gwynedd have decided to work together in 

partnership across both counties and work with the main public bodies. The Well-being Plan 

will outline the well-being objectives for the Island as well as the steps to achieve those 

objectives. The Local Well-being Plan is due for publication before April 2018. 

Isle of Anglesey County Council Plan 2017 – 2022 

2.3.12 The County Council has prepared a new Council Plan for 2017-2022 that replaces the 

Corporate Plan. The Council Plan includes the key ambition of “working towards an Anglesey 

that is healthy, thriving and prosperous” and contains the Council’s aim, focus areas and 

outcomes which the County Council, as an organisation, will be working towards in order to 

make a difference to the lives of Anglesey’s citizens over the next five years, embedding the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

Welsh Language Strategy 2016-2021 (2016) 

2.3.13 The Welsh Language Strategy was prepared by the County Council and its partners under the 

Anglesey Language Forum. The Strategy recognises the linguistic challenges faced by 

Anglesey and seeks to maximise opportunities to strengthen the Welsh language on the 

Island. The Strategy focuses on three key themes: children, young people and the family; the 

workforce, Welsh language services, the infrastructure; and the Community. It is accompanied 

by an Action Plan to help delivery in line with these key themes. 

North Wales Joint Local Transport Plan 2015-20 

2.3.14 The North Wales Joint Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2015-20 was submitted to Welsh 

Government on the 31 January 2015, providing a detailed programme for transport 

improvements from 2015-2020 and a framework for schemes until 2030. The LTP is a statutory 

document that sits alongside the Development Plan and other policies and plans of the County 

Council. Under the high level intervention of ‘Improved Links to Employment’, the Plan 

references actions which include the Llangefni Link Road, A5025 Valley to Amlwch and an 

A55 Transport Hub/Park and Ride for Wylfa. In addition, within the plan-period, reference is 

made to the regional priority to improve access to Holyhead Port from the A55. The Gaerwen 

Link Road is listed as a medium/longer term aspiration along with the continued protection of 

the former Gaerwen – Amlwch rail line. 

Page 190



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
28  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

North Wales Economic Ambition Board Plan 

2.3.15 The North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) is a collaborative group of private and 

public organisations in North Wales committed to promoting economic growth in Anglesey, 

Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Gwynedd and Wrexham. The Group also includes local 

colleges, Universities in Bangor and Wrexham, and the North Wales Business Council who 

represent the private sector. 

2.3.16 In 2016, the NWEAB adopted its Growth Vision and this vision sets out a clear ambition for 

North Wales for infrastructure development, skills and employment, and business growth. The 

strategy aspires to increasing the value of the regional economy from £12.8 billion to £20 billion 

by 2035 with the creation of 120,000 new employment opportunities. It will also build on its 

strong alliances, joint planning and cross-border through the Mersey Dee Alliance and joint 

work with the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership. Following the success 

of the Growth Vision, the region is in the process of undertaking a Growth Bid through the UK 

and Welsh Governments to secure capital funding to deliver interventions against 

infrastructure, transportation, housing, skills and business support projects. Wylfa Newydd is 

a critical project to realise and deliver the vision of the NWEAB.

Page 191



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
29  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

3 Vision and Objectives 

3.1.1 The proposed Wylfa Newydd Project provides a unique and unprecedented opportunity for the 

County Council and the project promoter and any other applicant to work together to contribute 

towards the socio-economic transformation of Anglesey and the wider North Wales region. To 

help encapsulate this opportunity, the County Council has developed a vision for the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. This vision clearly and concisely sets out the Council’s aspirations for the 

project, as a set of outcomes, which are underpinned objectives outlining how this vision is to 

be delivered. 

3.1.2 Both the vision and objectives have been informed by a review of existing objectives including 

those identified in the JLDP and the SIP as well as relevant NPSs, national planning policy 

and other plans and programmes. They were also subject to public and stakeholder 

consultation during the development of the original SPG as well as this revised SPG. 

3.1 Vision 

3.1.3 The County Council’s Vision for the Wylfa Newydd Project is clear and ambitious and aligns 

with its wider socio-economic and legacy aspirations in relation to all major developments on 

the Island. The Vision is: 

The New Nuclear Build at Wylfa is a positive driver for the transformation of the economy 

and communities on Anglesey, providing sustainable employment opportunities, improving 

the quality of life and wellbeing of existing and future generations and enhancing local 

identity and distinctiveness. 

3.1.4 The Vision is realised through a series of outcomes for the Wylfa Newydd Project, for the 

economy, people and communities of Anglesey and for the environment. Specifically, the 

County Council requires that the construction and operation of the power station, associated 

and related developments will: 

 Contribute to the UK’s need for secure and affordable low carbon energy; 

 Comply with all safety and security requirements to ensure a secure and safe project with 

robust emergency planning provisions during construction and operation; 

 Contribute significantly to long-term sustainable economic growth and local prosperity 

through the provision of quality employment, training and workforce development 

opportunities; 

Page 192



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
30  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Support the prosperity of local businesses by providing appropriate supply chain and 

inward investment opportunities; 

 Support the sustainability, vibrancy and quality of life of Anglesey and its communities 

(including support for the Welsh language and culture) and promote low carbon living and 

behaviours; 

 Take into account environmental, social, economic and health impacts and provide 

mitigation and/or compensation for any adverse impacts whilst maximising positive social, 

economic and environmental benefits; 

 Contribute to an enhancement of local community infrastructure, facilities and services; 

 Promote sustainable modes of transport and undertake infrastructure improvements to 

minimise the impact of the development on local capacity and resilience and enhance 

connectivity; 

 Contribute positively to the biodiversity of the Island and the quality of its natural 

environment; and 

 Recognise the support of local communities in hosting the Wylfa Newydd Project (during 

construction and operation up to the point of decommissioning) by compensating for 

impacts that cannot be mitigated and otherwise securing the good will and understanding 

of the population of the Island as a whole. 

3.1.5 The Vision will be achieved through the commitment of all relevant parties to securing these 

outcomes by both statutory and voluntary means10. 

3.2 Objectives 

3.2.1 The County Council expects that the Vision will be achieved through the following seven 

objectives: 

1. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project contributes to the delivery of the Anglesey 

Energy Island Programme, and the Anglesey Enterprise Zone, placing the Island at the 

forefront of energy research and development, production and servicing; 

2. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project drives the transformation of the Anglesey and 

North Wales economies and maximises opportunities for the employment and up-skilling 

of local people; 

3. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project delivers significant and enduring infrastructure 

benefits to the Island’s communities; 

 

10 N.B. In developing and promoting this Vision, the County Council does not commit itself to act in any way other than in accordance with 

its statutory powers and duties.

Page 193



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
31  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project supports improvements to the quality of life 

(including health, housing, well-being and amenity) of the Island’s residents, visitors and 

workers during its construction and operation; 

5. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project recognises and strengthens the unique identity 

of the Island and its communities; 

6. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project promotes the sustainable movement of people 

and materials and provides resilient transportation infrastructure capable of attracting and 

sustaining economic growth and creating sustainable communities; and 

7. To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project conserves and enhances the Island’s distinctive 

environment and resources, taking into account climate change.

Page 194



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
32  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 1: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project contributes to the delivery of the Anglesey 

Energy Island Programme, and the Anglesey Enterprise Zone, placing the Island at the forefront of 

energy research and development, production and servicing. 

3.2.2 This will be achieved by: 

i. Stimulating growth and inward investment particularly within the energy sector and 

knowledge-based industries; 

ii. Maximising opportunities for research and development activities in low carbon energy; 

iii. Developing skills training required to support the delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project and 

to sustain these skills once it is delivered; 

iv. Promoting low carbon energy projects; 

v. Delivering the strategic infrastructure necessary to accommodate the Wylfa Newydd 

Project and support wider economic growth; 

vi. Identifying opportunities for collaboration with other Enterprise Zones in North Wales. 

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales 

 A more equal 

Wales. 

 GPs 1 to 4; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter; 

 Education 

Providers; 

 Welsh 

Government; 

 North Wales 

Economic Ambition 

Board; 

 UK Government 

 

 UK Industrial 

Strategy; 

 Welsh Government 

Prosperity for All; 

 North Wales 

Economic 

Ambitions Board 

Plan 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Corporate Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Plan; 

Page 195



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
33  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Anglesey 

Enterprise Zone; 

 Anglesey Energy 

Island Programme. 

 

 

Objective 2: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project drives the transformation of the Anglesey and 

North Wales economies and maximises opportunities for the employment and up-skilling of local 

people. 

3.2.3 This will be achieved by: 

i. Up-skilling the Island and region’s workforce and ensuring that new employment 

opportunities benefit existing or returning/previous residents and particularly young people 

wherever possible; 

ii. Supporting attainment in STEM educational opportunities and ensuring that appropriate 

training and apprenticeships are made available to allow people to access employment 

opportunities created by the project; 

iii. Reducing poverty and economic inactivity by helping residents back into work; 

iv. Maximising benefits of development to businesses in North Wales through positive 

procurement practices; 

v. Capitalising on opportunities associated with the decommissioning of the existing power 

station including the retraining of staff employed at the former Magnox site to work in the 

new nuclear power station; 

vi. Directly supporting the growth of supply-chain businesses and related employment uses; 

vii. Ensuring that associated and related development sites (such as employment, transport 

and logistics uses) are both in suitable locations for effective access to the main Wylfa 

Newydd site and are aligned with relevant national planning policy and the spatial strategy 

of the JLDP, so as to provide a positive employment legacy use; 

viii. Protecting the tourism economy and seeking opportunities to grow this sector through the 

Wylfa Newydd Project; 

ix. Managing the impact of the Wylfa Newydd Project on education provision; 

x. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated. 

Page 196



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
34  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales 

 A more equal 

Wales; 

 A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities. 

 GPs 2 to 5; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter; 

 Education 

Providers; 

 UK Government; 

 Welsh 

Government; 

 Menter Iaith Mon 

 North Wales 

Economic Ambition 

Board. 

 

 

 UK Industrial 

Strategy; 

 Welsh Government 

Prosperity for All; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan; 

 Anglesey 

Enterprise Zone; 

 Anglesey Energy 

Island Programme; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Destination 

Management Plan; 

 Shaping the 

Future; 

 North Wales 

Shared 

Construction 

Apprentice 

Scheme; 

 North Wales 

Economic Ambition 

Board Plan. 

 

 

Page 197



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
35  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 3: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project delivers significant and enduring infrastructure 

benefits to the Island’s communities. 

3.2.4 This will be achieved by: 

i. Improving connectivity and the movement of people, enabling residents to capitalise on 

the opportunities presented by the Wylfa Newydd Project and minimising disruption and 

congestion; 

ii. Delivering construction workers accommodation without adversely affecting the local 

housing market or the Island’s tourist accommodation offer and ensuring that this 

development provides a lasting legacy benefit; 

iii. Providing appropriate community infrastructure and services necessary to support the 

Wylfa Newydd Project and ensuring that such facilities are integrated into the Island’s 

existing communities; 

iv. Ensuring that proposals support existing services and facilities including retail provision in 

the Island’s town centres; 

v. Ensuring that measures are implemented to mitigate and/or compensate for significant 

negative effects of proposals and to support local communities where these effects may 

occur; 

vi. Ensuring the provision of appropriate infrastructure (transportation infrastructure, utilities 

and information and communication technologies) needed to accommodate the Wylfa 

Newydd Project and that a lasting legacy benefit is provided for the Island’s, and North 

Wales’ communities; 

vii. Encouraging associated and related developments to be located in such a way that 

supports the sustainability of the Island’s rural and urban communities; 

viii. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated.

Page 198



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
36  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal 

Wales; 

 A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities; 

 A Wales of vibrant 

culture and thriving 

Welsh Language. 

 GP 6; 

 GPs 8 to 13; 

 GPs 16 to 17; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 

 UK Government; 

 Welsh 

Government; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter; 

 Joint Local Service 

Board; 

 Registered Social 

Landlords; 

 Communities First; 

 Utility Providers; 

 North Wales 

Economic Ambition 

Board. 

 

 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

Housing Strategy; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Corporate Plan; 

 UK Industrial 

Strategy; 

 Welsh Government 

Prosperity for All; 

 Other 

Supplementary 

Planning 

Guidance; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 EU Structural 

Funds Programme; 

 Anglesey 

Language Forum 

Welsh Language 

Strategy; 

 North Wales Joint 

Local Transport 

Plan; 

 Public Right of 

Way Improvement 

Plan. 

Page 199



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
37  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 4: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project supports improvements to the quality of life 

(including health, housing, well-being and amenity) of the Island’s residents, visitors and workers 

during its construction and operation. 

3.2.5 This will be achieved by: 

i. Ensuring measures are implemented to minimise noise, vibration, visual amenity and air 

quality impacts arising from the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

through appropriate mitigation; 

ii. Enhancing and improving the provision of community facilities including open space, 

leisure and recreation facilities, emergency and health care services; 

iii. Seeking a comprehensive package of high quality facilities and accommodation provision, 

which includes either new facilities or improved existing facilities, that meet the needs of 

construction workers and that provide legacy use opportunities for the wider community; 

iv. Ensuring that the Wylfa Newydd Project complements local and wider North Wales 

priorities for regeneration and benefits the Island’s disadvantaged communities; 

v. Protecting existing visitor attractions and ensuring that sufficient tourist accommodation is 

maintained of the type and in the location that is attractive to tourists; 

vi. Ensuring that new development is designed so as to reduce opportunities for crime and 

public disorder; 

vii. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated. 

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal 

Wales; 

 A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities; 

 A globally 

responsible Wales. 

 GPs 6 to 8; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter; 

 Joint Local Service 

Board; 

 North Wales 

Police; 

 Education 

Providers; 

 Health Providers; 

 Welsh 

Government. 

 Welsh Government 

Prosperity for All; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Corporate Plan; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan. 

Page 200



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
38  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 5: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project recognises and strengthens the unique identity 

and culture of the Island and its communities. 

3.2.6 This will be achieved by: 

i. Protecting and enhancing the Island’s landscapes, seascape, coastal environment, 

townscapes and cultural heritage assets including designated sites such as the Isle of 

Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), Heritage Coast, Cestyll Garden, 

Cemlyn Bay (SAC), Anglesey Terns SPA and World Heritage Site; 

ii. Sustaining local distinctiveness and conserving and enhancing historic character; 

iii. Avoiding adverse impacts of temporary construction worker accommodation and the influx 

of construction workers on the environment, on community well-being, cohesion and the 

unique identity of the Island through sensitive location, scale, design and management of 

workers; 

iv. Ensuring that proposals conserve and strengthen the Welsh language and culture, 

supporting the County Council’s aim of promoting and ensuring a sustainable future for the 

Welsh language; 

v. Promoting high quality design and the enhancement of the public realm; 

vi. Ensuring that the Island’s image as a tranquil, rural area is maintained and enhanced; 

vii. Promoting Anglesey as being ‘open for business’ for tourism prior to, during and following 

construction; 

viii. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated. 

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal 

Wales; 

 A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities; 

 A Wales of vibrant 

culture and thriving 

Welsh Language. 

 GPs 9 to 10; 

 GP 14; 

  

 GPs 21 to 23; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter 

and any other 

applicant; 

 Natural Resources 

Wales; 

 National Trust; 

 Cadw; 

 Welsh Language 

Forum; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Other 

Supplementary 

Planning 

Guidance; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan. 

Page 201



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
39  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Welsh 

Government; 

 Menter Iaith Môn. 

 The Anglesey Area 

of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty 

Management Plan; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Corporate Plan; 

 National Trust 

Cemlyn Vision; 

 Welsh Government 

Partnership for 

Growth: Strategy 

for Tourism 2013 – 

2020; 

 Anglesey 

Language Forum 

Welsh Language 

Strategy; 

 Public Right of 

Way Improvement 

Plan. 

Page 202



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
40  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 6: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project promotes the sustainable movement of people 

and materials and provides resilient transportation infrastructure capable of attracting and sustaining 

economic growth and creating sustainable communities. 

3.2.7 This will be achieved by: 

i. Minimising road traffic and disruption related to the construction and operation of the new 

power station site and associated and related development sites and seeking measures 

to minimise adverse impacts on road safety and in particular travel to school; 

ii. Maximising the opportunities available with respect to the Island’s existing transportation 

infrastructure including the railway network; 

iii. Supporting the use and development of Holyhead Port; 

iv. Promoting and facilitating the use of the North Wales Coast main line as a transport link 

for workers and material during construction; 

v. Providing good access to the new power station site and ensuring that associated and 

related developments are well served by sustainable transport links; 

vi. Ensuring that construction worker accommodation has good access to community facilities 

and services and the main Wylfa Newydd site; 

vii. Identifying key transport infrastructure improvements required to support the development 

of the new power station site, and which provide a lasting legacy benefit (including 

improvements already identified in the Highways Action Management Plan or specific 

highways/transport strategies such as the Cycle Strategy)); 

viii. Aligning transport proposals with wider Island transport strategies including the North 

Wales Transport Plan and taking account of other major infrastructure proposals on the 

Island; and 

ix. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated

Page 203



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
41  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A prosperous 

Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal 

Wales; 

 A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities; 

 A globally 

responsible Wales. 

 GP 3; 

 GP 6; 

 GP 8; 

 GP 10; 

 GP 15; 

 GP 19; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 UK Government; 

 Welsh 

Government; 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter; 

 Transport 

Operators. 

 UK Industrial 

Strategy; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan. 

 Highways Action 

Management Plan; 

 Cycle Strategy; 

 North Wales Joint 

Local Transport 

Plan; 

 Highways 

Investment 

Programme. 

Page 204



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
42  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Objective 7: To ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project conserves and enhances the Island’s distinctive 

environment and resources, taking into account climate change. 

3.2.8 This will be achieved by: 

i. Conserving the integrity of sites on or near the Island designated at a European, national 

or local level for their nature conservation value; 

ii. Minimising direct loss of wildlife habitats and impact upon species of conservation value 

during construction and operation and ensuring permanent biodiversity enhancement 

measures are implemented and managed in perpetuity, including green infrastructure 

provision; 

iii. Promoting the sustainable management of natural resources such as water and raw 

materials throughout the lifetime of the development, maximising the re-use of existing 

facilities and exploring opportunities to integrate the requirements of the Wylfa Newydd 

Project with those of other development initiatives on the Island; 

iv. Minimising the release of potentially polluting substances to air, land and water; 

v. Mitigating climate change and ensuring resilience to the impacts of climate change; 

vi. Ensuring the sustainable management of waste (in accordance with the waste hierarchy 

and established waste management strategies for the Island); 

vii. Reducing the risk of flooding, both on-site and beyond the boundaries of sites proposed 

for development; 

viii. Enhancing the Island’s distinctive landscape, seascape and coastal environment, 

recognising important linkages to the historic environment; and 

ix. Ensuring compensation is secured for residual adverse effects that cannot be mitigated.

Page 205



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
43  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) 

Act 2015 Goals 

 

Key SPG Guiding 

Principle (GP) (see 

Section 4 and Section 

5) 

Key Delivery Partners Key Local Plans and 

Programmes (see 

Appendix A) 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A globally 

responsible Wales. 

 GPs 17 to 22; 

 GPs 27 to 36. 

 Isle of Anglesey 

County Council; 

 Wylfa Newydd 

Project Promoter 

and any other 

applicant; 

 Natural Resources 

Wales; 

 Welsh Water; 

 Welsh 

Government; 

 Energy Island 

Strategic Forum; 

 National Trust; 

 North Wales 

Wildlife Trust; 

 Local Land 

Owners; 

 RSPB. 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint 

Local Development 

Plan; 

 Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Single 

Integrated Plan; 

 North Wales 

Regional Waste 

Project; 

 Anglesey Local 

Biodiversity Action 

Plan; 

 The Anglesey Area 

of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty 

Management Plan; 

 National Trust: 

Cemlyn Vision; 

 Welsh Water 

Resources 

Management Plan; 

 West Wales Flood 

Risk Management 

Plan; 

 West of Wales 

Shoreline 

Management Plan 

2; 

 River Basin 

Management Plan 

for the Western 

Wales River Basin 

District. 

Page 206



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
44  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4 Project-Wide Guidance 

4.1.1 The Wylfa Newydd Project is an unprecedented opportunity to transform the economies of 

Anglesey and the wider North Wales region and to deliver significant investment in 

employment, the supply chain, services and infrastructure. The project also has the potential 

to provide a catalyst for cultural and behavioural change, ensuring sustainable economic 

development, community cohesion and an improvement in the quality of life of the Island’s 

residents. However, the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project are significant 

activities with the potential to adversely affect the Island’s (and the wider region’s) unique built 

and natural environment, its communities, existing infrastructure, local businesses and the 

tourism sector. Therefore, it is essential that any potential adverse effects are identified and 

assessed. The County Council will expect the Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other 

applicant to seek to avoid adverse impacts in this first instance. Where adverse impacts cannot 

be avoided, appropriate mitigation should be implemented to offset the identified, and agreed, 

significant adverse impacts. Compensation will be sought in respect of residual impacts that 

cannot be mitigated. 

4.1.2 This section of the SPG contains project-wide guidance which accords with the avoidance, 

mitigation, compensation hierarchy and which also seeks to enhance benefits associated with 

the Wylfa Newydd Project. This guidance is set out as a series of ‘Guiding Principles’ (GPs) 

which together seek to support the delivery of the Vision and objectives set out in Section 3. 

The GPs cover the following topics: 

 Economic Development; 

 Tourism; 

 Population and Community; 

 Construction Worker Accommodation and Anglesey’s Housing Market; 

 Welsh Language and Culture; 

 Transport; 

 Utilities; 

 Waste; 

 Climate Change; 

 Natural Environment; 

 Historic Environment; 

 Facilitating Development; and 

 Implementation and Monitoring. 

Page 207



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
45  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.1.3 The County Council will use this guidance, alongside the locational guidance contained in 

Section 5 of this SPG and relevant national and local planning policy, to prepare its Local 

Impact Report, any written representations and to assist decision-making in the determination 

of Town and Country planning applications for developments including enabling and site 

preparation works which may be proposed in advance of a DCO application as well as 

development proposed by third parties (the relationship between the project-wide guidance 

and other relevant NPS, national and local planning policy is set out at Appendix A). The extent 

to which the GPs are relevant to each application the County Council receives will vary and, 

by necessity given the likely variable scale and nature of the applications, will be determined 

on a case-by-case basis. 

4.1.4 The guidance that follows highlights the need to consider the cumulative social, economic and 

environmental impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project (including the in- combination effects of 

the construction and operation of the main site and associated developments), electricity 

transmission infrastructure and other development proposals on the Island including major 

strategic developments. The County Council has developed the ‘Approach and Methodology 

for Environmental Impact Assessment and Cumulative Impact Assessment’, which should be 

followed by the project promoter and any other applicant to assist in the identification and 

assessment of cumulative impacts. 

4.1 Economic Development 

Anglesey Energy Island Programme and Anglesey Enterprise Zone 

4.1.5 Securing the long-term economic future of Wales by achieving the transition to a low carbon 

economy is one of the key priorities of the Welsh Government (as defined in One Wales: One 

Planet, A New Sustainable Development Scheme for Wales (2009)). Economic Renewal: A 

New Direction (2010), which sets out the Welsh Government’s vision for economic 

development, identifies the Energy and Environment sector as being important for Wales with 

the potential for significant economic opportunities to be realised. For example, the Welsh 

Government estimates that there could be £50 billion of investments in low carbon electricity 

production in Wales over the next 10 to 15 years11. In addition the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act include for forty six national indicators covering matters such as levels of 

employment and greenhouse gas emissions. 

4.1.6 The Wylfa Newydd Project is a major investment with the potential to support Anglesey’s, and 

the wider North Wales region, economies and complement the Welsh Government’s aim of 

securing the transition to a low carbon economy. The North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

11 See http://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/100331energystatementen.pdf

Page 208

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/090521susdev1wales1planeten.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/090521susdev1wales1planeten.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/det/report/100705-economic-renewal-a-new-direction-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/det/report/100705-economic-renewal-a-new-direction-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/100331energystatementen.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
46  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

  identifies the project as a strategic priority to enable economic rebalancing in North Wales with 

an opportunity to also address some of the economic issues associated with peripherality on 

Anglesey. The County Council has responded to the opportunities presented by Wylfa Newydd 

and other projects through the establishment of the Energy Island Programme (EIP). The EIP 

aims to create a centre of excellence for the production, demonstration and servicing of low 

carbon energy initiatives as well as highlighting the part inward investment can play to improve 

local transport infrastructure, housing, tourism and leisure facilities, training and skills. 

4.1.7 The importance that the County Council places upon the EIP is also reflected in the Welsh 

Government’s award of Enterprise Zone status to the Island. The Anglesey Enterprise Zone 

encompasses the whole of the Island, with the aim to focus investment on a short-list of eight 

key sites agreed on the basis of their suitability to meet the needs of business (see Figure 

4.1). The Enterprise Zone is designed to complement the EIP and to encourage growth in the 

low carbon energy sector on Anglesey. It seeks to support investment in low carbon energy 

production; establish world-class facilities for low carbon innovation and demonstration; and 

ensure that the supply chain captures servicing opportunities. The Enterprise Zone aims to 

create 1,300 jobs and increase Gross Value Added (GVA) by 10 – 13% to 2025 in Anglesey. 

4.1.8 EIP projects continue to progress; Minesto, a tidal power electricity generating company, has 

secured European funding to develop tidal power close to Holyhead whilst Grŵp Llandrillo 

Menai are also developing a £20M engineering training centre at their Menai Campus in 

Llangefni. The Enterprise Zone projects include the opening of Stages 1 and 2 of the Llangefni 

Link Road which has provided improved access to Coleg Menai. Completion of Stage 4 of the 

Link Road (anticipated in 2018) will further facilitate access to Coleg Menai and Bryn Cefni 

Business Park. In addition, MS-Parc, the Menai Science Park near Gaerwen, is an initiative 

by Bangor University supported by Welsh Government and the County Council. MS-Parc is 

currently under construction (Phase 1) and once complete, it will provide high quality research 

and development space. More detail on these projects is contained within the relevant 

locational guidance at Section 5.

Page 209



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
47  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 4.1 Anglesey Enterprise Zone Sites 

 

4.1.9 The delivery of the EIP and Enterprise Zone is supported by policies contained in the JLDP 

which makes provision for employment land and the necessary infrastructure and facilities 

required to accommodate economic development (see, for example, Strategic Policy PS13: 

Providing Opportunity for a Flourishing Economy and Policy CYF1: Safeguarding, Allocating 

and Reserving Land and Units for Employment Use). It also requires cross-border working 

including with the neighbouring local authorities of Gwynedd Council and Conwy County 

Borough Council in order to ensure that the wider regional benefits of major strategic 

investments including the Wylfa Newydd Project are realised. 

GP 1 Supporting the Anglesey Energy Island Programme and Anglesey Enterprise Zone 

The County Council will require the Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicant 

to support the delivery of the Energy Island Programme and Anglesey Enterprise Zone, 

maximising the economic opportunities available to the Island’s local communities in line 

with JLDP Policy PS 9. This could be achieved through a combination of measures 

including: 

i. Investment in research and development; 

Page 210



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
48  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

ii. Support for education and training, including for the retraining of former Wylfa 

Magnox employees; 

iii. Promotion of opportunities in renewable (including low carbon) energy generation; 

iv. Ensuring that employment, supply chain and procurement opportunities are 

advertised and accessible locally; 

v. Ensuring that supply chain opportunities through investment projects are maximised 

using a range of measures including supply chain charters to set out actions and key 

principles, targets for local contracts awarded (number and value), the use of 

existing procurement systems; 

vi. A procurement strategy which enables local businesses to access opportunities by 

creating a range of size and value of contracts (including low value and small 

contracts) and providing support to local businesses in accessing tendering 

opportunities and participating in procurement processes; 

vii. Provision of local labour agreements; 

viii. Contributions to support for training and up-skilling, including in local schools and 

colleges as well as through the provision of mentoring, training and apprenticeship 

schemes and requiring contractors to participate in such schemes; Supporting the 

promotion of inward investment with a focus upon the establishment/attraction of 

companies involved in low carbon technology on Enterprise Zone sites; and 

ix. Identifying opportunities for collaboration with other Enterprise Zones in North 

Wales. 

The DCO and Town and Country planning applications should be accompanied by a socio-

economic assessments. These assessments must include consideration of the construction 

and operation phases of the Wylfa Newydd Project and the cumulative effects of 

developments in combination with other major developments proposed on the Island. Where 

potentially significant negative effects are identified, the County Council will require that 

mitigation measures specific to these effects are identified and implemented. Where effects 

cannot be mitigated, compensation proposals should be identified. 

 

Job Creation and Skills Development 

4.1.10 NPS EN-1 outlines the socio-economic matters that the project promoter should consider; 

those relevant to economic development include opportunities for the creation of jobs and 

training. JLDP Policy PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development, meanwhile, seeks to 

maximise employment, business and training opportunities for the Island’s local communities 

Page 211



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
49  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

from the Wylfa Newydd Project. The Wylfa Newydd Project will have significant employment 

requirements (particularly during the construction phase) and the more that these can be 

resourced by the Island’s workforce, the greater the economic benefit of the project will be to 

the Island’s economy; Horizon currently proposes that approximately 2,000 (22%) of the peak 

construction workforce will be drawn from North Wales. Importantly, Anglesey’s workforce 

includes workers with skills in the nuclear industry. However, the skills required for the Wylfa 

Newydd Project, whilst complementary, may be different due to specific needs for the delivery 

of the project. 

4.1.11 The County Council is focussed on ensuring that new entrants to the job market are provided 

with the skills to access the construction and operational phase jobs that should be available 

to them. Grŵp Llandrillo Menai are progressing with plans for a brand new purpose-built, 

Engineering Centre adjacent to the existing Energy Centre at its Llangefni Campus that will 

help support and drive forward skills development on the Island. 

4.1.12 The potential local benefits claimed for the project can only be fully realised where the 

predicted levels of local employment and training are delivered. Local young people must be 

supported in accessing education and training to enable them to take up new employment 

opportunities. The measures set out in GP2 below are designed to help ensure that the local 

workforce, including unemployed and economically inactive residents and disadvantaged 

groups, are able to take advantage of the opportunities that may be generated through the 

Wylfa Newydd Project thereby helping to tackle unemployment, raise income levels, improving 

quality of life and reduce rates of out- commuting, without adversely affecting existing 

businesses. It is essential that the project promoter seek to implement these measures as 

early as possible in order to ensure that a locally based, skilled pool of labour is established 

at the outset of the Wylfa Newydd Project. The assessments of potential impacts of the project 

assume a minimum level of local employment; this figure affects not only the socio-economic 

impacts but those across the topic areas. It is therefore necessary that robust measures to 

deliver the anticipated levels of local employment are in place prior to commencement. It is 

critical that such measures are adequately monitored and any shortfall addressed at an early 

stage. Early dialogue between the project promoter, training providers and other stakeholders 

including, for example, Trade Unions and the promoters of other major strategic investment 

projects on the Island will therefore be essential to achieving this goal. 

GP 2 Local Job Creation and Skills Development 

To help maximise education and training opportunities (as envisaged in JLDP Policy PS9), 

the County Council expects the Wylfa Newydd project promoter to prepare and implement 

an Employment and Skills Strategy. This should set out to achieve the following: 

Page 212



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
50  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

i. Provide timely support to existing educational institutions and local education 

provision with an emphasis on the promotion of Science, Technology, Engineering 

and Mathematics (STEM). This may include support to encourage the development 

of STEM qualified teaching staff and the expansion of facilities to capitalise on the 

benefits associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project and to offset any adverse impacts 

on existing provision; 

ii. Support the development of market apprenticeship and work placement 

opportunities to local people; 

iii. Complement the work of skills agencies and existing local and regional initiatives 

which currently include the Reach the Heights Project, the Isle of Anglesey 

Community Education Partnership and the Shaping the Future programme; 

iv. Provide apprenticeships, graduate/post-graduate placements and bursaries for 

students to maximise and retain local skills and talent within the project workforce; 

v. Make best use of a Wylfa Newydd visitor centre for educational purposes; 

vi. Facilitate and support the re-training of staff employed in other businesses so that 

they are able to benefit from alternative employment opportunities associated with 

the Wylfa Newydd Project; 

vii. Support the Island’s disadvantaged communities and local young people, including 

those not in education, employment or training (NEETs), through local training 

initiatives and outreach programmes so that they are able to benefit from 

employment opportunities associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project; 

viii. Ensure that the local construction workforce and other skilled workers have access 

to job opportunities during the construction of the main Wylfa Newydd site and to 

find alternative employment post-construction; 

ix. Ensure and facilitate the on-going training of workers employed at the Wylfa Newydd 

power station, associated and related developments in respect of the Welsh 

language and implement measures to promote the use of the Welsh language in the 

workplace; 

x. Maximise local labour provision through local employment contracts and labour 

agreements, employment initiatives, procurement of businesses and services that 

employ local people and advertisement of positions. This should include the 

establishment of a labour market for Welsh speakers; 

Page 213



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
51  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

xi. Support local businesses where staff are lost to the project through displacement. 

This should include training in skill areas where there is a recognised shortage, to 

increase the overall pool of people available; 

xii. Contribute to the design, set up, management and delivery of an employment and 

skills brokerage service to co-ordinate skills and employment activity; 

xiii. Monitor the take up of roles by local people and set out mechanisms which can be 

implemented where the take up falls below the anticipated level to increase local 

employment. 

All planning applications for associated / related development will be required to 

demonstrate how the aims of the Employment and Skills Strategy will be delivered by the 

proposed development. The level of detail provided in support of any planning application 

should be proportionate to the scale and type of development proposed. 

The applicant should also ensure that job opportunities at both the Wylfa Newydd power 

station site, associated and related development sites are easily accessible by sustainable 

transport modes, particularly to the Island’s most deprived and hard to reach communities. 

Page 214



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
52  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Employment Sites, Logistics and Transport Uses 

4.1.13 The construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project will generate demand for a range 

of new employment uses across the Island. These uses will provide direct or indirect services 

to the construction and operation of the project. In addition, the project will require the 

transportation of goods, materials and people onto and across the Island. These activities are 

likely to be facilitated by the provision of worker, logistics and freight management centres. 

4.1.14 The County Council considers that its role is to facilitate such development, providing that it is 

appropriately sited and addresses the needs of the project and the local communities whilst 

also delivering future legacy use and benefit. 

4.1.15 The JLDP supports employment development through the allocation of land and the 

safeguarding of existing sites. Several of these sites are Anglesey Enterprise Zone Sites. 

Additional windfall development, in accordance with the plan’s spatial strategy and hierarchy, 

is also supported. In addition, Policy CYF4 allows for large scale, single employer proposals 

not on allocated or safeguarded land as long as they are located in an appropriate location, 

are sustainable, well related to settlements and supported by compelling evidence justifying 

the need. JLDP Policies PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development and PS11: Wylfa 

Newydd – Logisitics Centre set out the sequential approach to consideration of development 

proposals for a Wylfa Newydd Project related logistics centre, with a preference for the use of 

safeguarded or allocated employment sites or sites within settlement development 

boundaries. Only where sites in these locations can be discounted based on landscape and 

environmental considerations will sites that are located along or close to the A5/A55 be 

considered, where the impacts of development in the countryside can be acceptably minimised 

and mitigated. 

GP 3 Employment Sites, Logistics and Transport Uses 

The County Council will support employment, logistics and transport uses proposed in 

support of the Wylfa Newydd Project, providing that development accords with national 

planning policy and the spatial strategy and policies contained within the JLDP, including 

the sequential approach to the location of a logistics centre in Policies PS 9 and PS11, and 

reflects the locational guidance contained in Section 5 of this SPG. Proposals will: 

i. Adapt and/or re-use the infrastructure associated with the former Magnox power 

station where this is operationally viable and the existing uses do not give rise to 

amenity or quality of life issues; 

ii. Ensure that the associated development sites chosen together with any related 

development for employment, logistics and transport uses are integrated with 

Page 215



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
53  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

existing employment uses and are easily accessible by a range of sustainable 

transport modes. Any potential adverse effects on the landscape and townscape 

character of the surrounding area should be mitigated and/or compensated; 

iii. Where operations that exceed normal working hours are proposed, specific 

measures to address impacts upon amenity and quality of life and impact on existing 

businesses through, inter-alia, locational considerations, the siting of buildings and 

activities, operational protocols and means of access and egress will be required; 

and 

iv. Ensure a beneficial legacy use, which may include the future use of logistics centres 

in the transhipment of goods through Holyhead Port or the appropriate remediation 

of a previously developed site suitable for future use. 

Where the nature of the use and the location of the proposed site is such that a legacy use 

may not be appropriate, the County Council will require, through relevant conditions 

attached to any consent/permission, that sites are appropriately restored to its satisfaction. 

Security for the cost of restoration of sites with time-limited permissions will be sought 

through planning obligations where appropriate. 

Page 216



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
54  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Local Supply Chain and Servicing Opportunities 

4.1.16 In addition to direct opportunities, the Wylfa Newydd Project will create indirect opportunities 

for businesses and services to support the construction and operational phases. These 

businesses may include, for example, caterers, cleaners and haulage firms as well as 

technicians and service engineers. The County Council is keen to ensure that employment 

opportunities for the local workforce are maximised and that where demand results in new 

businesses establishing themselves or relocating onto the Island, that such demand provides 

opportunities to engage the local workforce. JLDP Strategic Policy PS13: Providing 

Opportunity for a Flourishing Economy sets the overall approach for achieving a varied and 

responsive local economy that encourages investment on the Island. 

4.1.17 The County Council is working with the project promoter and other key stakeholders to develop 

a Supply Chain Service and the Employment & Skills Brokerage Service. The primary 

objective is that these will maximise the benefits and opportunities for businesses and 

employees on Anglesey and in the North Wales region. 

GP 4 Supporting the Local Supply Chain and Service Opportunities 

The County Council will encourage the development of new, or the expansion of existing, 

local supply chain and service businesses not directly connected with the Wylfa Newydd 

Project but which may gain from related activities during the construction and operational 

phases. Such proposals should be compatible with national planning policy and the JLDP, 

including the strategic approach to employment development in PS 13, and reflect the 

locational guidance contained in Section 5 of this SPG. They will be encouraged where they: 

i. Create new employment opportunities, new apprenticeships or training places; 

ii. Utilise any existing Supply Chain Service and Employment & Skills Brokerage to co-

ordinate skills and employment opportunities and assist local people and businesses 

to use access them; 

iii. Complement the wider education, training, skills and supply chain initiatives; and 

iv. Contribute to the formation of clusters of associated services which can be promoted 

as an Island-based product. 

Page 217



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
55  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.2 Tourism 

4.2.1 Tourism is currently one of the Island’s leading wealth creation industries contributing around 

4,032 jobs and £284 million to its economy12. Tourism in Anglesey is a large industry 

comprised of many small but significant businesses across a number of sectors including 

accommodation provision, attractions, restaurants, cruise ships and the Island’s unique 

countryside and coastline. This offer is further developed with Anglesey being the major 

gateway to Ireland via Holyhead Port. 

4.2.2 The tourism industry is critically important to Anglesey’s economy. People who visit the Island 

(as well as those that live and work here), value the quality and diversity of its natural and 

historic environments. People are able to experience the peace and tranquillity as part of 

visiting the Island. This includes the Anglesey AONB, the 125 mile coastline (which includes 

a Heritage Coast) and the numerous beaches serviced by small traditional resorts and towns 

and linked by the Wales Coast Path. Seascapes remain an important part of the character of 

the AONB and the Heritage Coast. 

4.2.3 Tourism is also a key factor in sustaining the quality of life of the Island’s residents. The 

presence of visitors and the money they spend in Anglesey helps to: 

 Provide employment for the local community; 

 Maintain the viability of many of the Island’s attractions, eating places and shops; 

 Stimulate interest in rural diversification, regeneration and environmental projects; and 

 Attract the interest of entrepreneurs from other industries, like the growing number of arts 

and crafts people who have chosen Anglesey as their home. 

4.2.4 The Welsh Government Strategy for Tourism 2013-2030: Partnership for Growth (2013) seeks 

to increase tourism “in a sustainable way and to make an increasing contribution to the 

economic, social and environmental well-being of Wales”. The County Council recently 

approved a new Destination Anglesey Management Plan for the period 2016-2020 (DMP, 

2016). It sets out the following goal for the visitor economy of Anglesey: “Tourism to grow in a 

sustainable way and to make an increasing contribution to the economic, social and 

environmental well-being of Wales.” It seeks to achieve: “A successful and sustainable tourism 

industry in Anglesey which generates wealth for the island, draws on and sustains its special 

environment and culture, brings enjoyment to visitors and at the same time contributes to 

residents’ quality of life”. 

 

12 Based on 2016 data contained in the Isle of Anglesey County Council (2016) STEAM Report.

Page 218

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/Tourism/130613partnershipforgrowthen.pdf
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/u/b/n/Destination-Anglesey-Management-Plan-2016---2020-low-res.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
56  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.2.5 Achieving the aim of the Partnership for Growth Strategy and the DMP vision will mean 

addressing a number of challenges including managing, through the planning process, 

development which could threaten the quality of the coastal environment, the Island’s key 

tourism draw, or impact unduly on public and private tourism businesses. In this respect, the 

construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project could have far reaching implications 

for the Island’s tourism economy, including impacts upon: 

 The natural and built environments which are vital to the success of the Island as a tourist 

destination; 

 Visitor amenity; 

 The tourism workforce; 

 The availability and condition of tourism accommodation; and 

 Visitor perception of the Island. 

4.2.6 Strategic Policy PS14: The Visitor Economy of the JLDP proposes that the County Council will 

support the tourism industry including by preventing development that would have an 

unacceptable adverse impact on features and areas of tourism interest or their settings. NPS 

EN-1, meanwhile, stipulates (at para. 5.12.3) that socio-economic assessments of nationally 

significant energy infrastructure proposals should include consideration of the effects on 

tourism and the provision of visitor facilities. Further to the JLDP and guidance contained in 

NPS EN-1, the County Council will expect the Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other 

applicant to take full account of the potential impacts associated with the construction and 

operation of the main site, associated and related developments on tourism and, where 

appropriate, to provide mitigation and/or compensation to address significant adverse impacts. 

In doing so, the County Council will also expect the project promoter and any other applicant 

to identify and implement measures to promote Anglesey as a visitor destination and enhance 

the tourism potential of the Island. 

GP 5 Tourism 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicant should ensure that the 

construction and operation of the power station or any associated and related developments 

do not unacceptably adversely affect the value and importance of tourism to the Island in 

accordance with JLDP Policies PS9 and PS14. 

A detailed assessment of potential effects associated with project and, where appropriate, 

associated and related developments on tourism (both alone and in combination with other 

proposals) should be submitted with the DCO application and Town and Country planning 

applications received by the County Council. As a minimum, the detailed assessments 

should consider the impacts of proposals on: 

Page 219



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
57  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

i. Transport, including traffic disruption, congestion and journey times; 

ii. The amenity of tourists, including noise and visual impacts; 

iii. The Island’s image and visitor perception of the construction and operation of new 

nuclear power station and that of the nuclear industry; 

iv. Access to the Island’s natural and built environmental assets, including Public Rights 

of Way (including how development can support delivery of the statements of action 

contained within the Council’s Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2008-2018 or 

replacement RWIP covering the next 10 year period when approved); 

v. Landscapes/townscape character and views to/from natural and built environmental 

assets; 

vi. The Island’s culture, identity and distinctiveness; 

vii. Labour displacement; 

viii. The Island’s tourist attractions/facilities; and 

ix. Tourism accommodation (see also GP12). 

Where there is the potential for adverse impacts, mitigation and/or compensation measures 

informed by the actions contained in the Isle of Anglesey Destination Management Plan and 

agreed between the Wylfa Newydd project promoter or the applicant and the County Council 

should be identified and implemented to protect and enhance the Island’s visitor economy. 

These measures could include: 

x. The protection and enhancement of the Island’s natural and built environmental 

assets (see also GP20 and GP21); 

xi. Maintenance and enhancement of access to the coast allied with improvement to 

the Wales Coast Path; 

xii. Maintenance and strategic improvements to the Public Rights of Way Network, cycle 

routes and walking trail networks; 

xiii. Mitigate and/or compensate for any potential significant impacts of visitor pressure 

on European designated sites, National and Regional designated sites and local 

wildlife sites; 

xiv. International, national, regional and local destination marketing in liaison with Visit 

Wales, the Destination Management Plan Partnership and the County Council, 

including activities designed to address negative perceptions of the Wylfa Newydd 

Project; 

xv. Promotion of the Island’s key tourist destinations; 

Page 220



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
58  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

xvi. Provision/enhancement of infrastructure to support tourism including transportation 

infrastructure for tourism such as rail and port facilities; and 

xvii. Improvements to the tourism human resource, linked with wider training and skills 

development (including in respect of the Welsh language). 

Any measures implemented to protect and enhance the Island’s visitor economy should 

meet the requirements of GP20 and GP21 and help the tourism potential of the Island to be 

met without adverse effects on any European or national designated nature conservation 

sites (or their interest features), particularly with regard to visitor pressure. 

The success of measures introduced to protect and enhance the Island’s visitor economy 

will be monitored through analysis of the results of a regular annual visitor survey 

resourced by the project promoter and any other applicant to a methodology agreed with 

the County Council or, where applicable, through an appropriate monitoring framework 

approved through the DCO that will produce statistically reliable results and gauge the 

impact of the Wylfa Newydd Project on visitor perceptions and numbers. The County 

Council will also require the project promoter and any other applicant to provide a funding 

mechanism, which can be called upon to implement additional measures of mitigation, 

should the survey show that the visitor economy is suffering as a result of the project.  It is 

the County Council’s aspiration for the permanent visitor centre at Wylfa to be a key tourist 

attraction, both complementing and enhancing the Island’s existing offer. A visitor centre 

should be accessible by public transport and be of exemplar design that reflects the low 

carbon concept which underpins the Energy Island Programme. 

It is also the County Council’s aspiration for the applicant to provide temporary visitor 

centre during the construction phase of the Wylfa Newydd Project. This shall provide 

interpretation boards and visitor information, viewing platforms, and appropriate parking 

and other facilities. This temporary visitor centre shall be integrated with the Wales 

Coastal Path and other tourism facilities to ensure that the tourism offer in North Anglesey 

is maintained and enhanced during the construction of the Wylfa Newydd. 

Page 221



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
59  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.3 Population and Community 

Community Facilities and Services 

4.3.1 The construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project represents a unique opportunity 

to enhance the sustainability of the Island’s communities. The creation of new employment 

opportunities and an influx of construction and operational workers will generate increased 

demand for important community facilities and services such as health and education. 

Importantly, the investment in infrastructure generated by the Wylfa Newydd Project can 

contribute to an enhancement of community infrastructure, facilities and services, generating 

a lasting legacy benefit for the Island’s communities. 

4.3.2 However, the characteristics of the Island’s population and communities present a number of 

challenges in terms of service and infrastructure delivery. For example, the Island’s resident 

population, which stood at 69,750 at the 2011 Census, is predominantly rural which can make 

service provision difficult. Trend based projections published by Welsh Government13 indicate 

that the population of the Island is to rise to 69,984 by 2026 but that it could reduce to 69,231 

by 2033. Meanwhile the population is ageing with the number of those aged 65 or over 

projected to increase notably from 16,963 in 2014 to 20,087 in 2026 and then to 21,779 in 

2033. This is a rise of around 28% between 2014 and 2033. The number of over 65s as a 

percentage of the Island’s total population is projected to rise from around 24% in 2014 to 31% 

in 2033. This has important implications for service delivery and demands on provision. It is 

also important to recognise that the Wylfa Newydd Project could alter demographic trends and 

projections, particularly during the construction phase when there will be an influx of workers. 

4.3.3 The County Council considers it essential that the Wylfa Newydd Project is integrated with 

community facility and infrastructure delivery that provides a lasting legacy benefit to the 

Island’s communities as set out in JLDP Policy PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development. 

NPS EN-1 (at para. 5.12.3) sets out that assessments of socio-economic impacts should 

consider, inter-alia, the provision of additional local services and improvements to local 

infrastructure and the impact that an influx of workers could have on local population dynamics 

and demand for services and facilities. Paragraph 5.12.8, meanwhile, sets out that the 

examining authority should consider any relevant positive provisions the developer has made 

or is proposing to make to mitigate significant impacts and any legacy benefits that may ensue. 

 

 

13 Welsh Government 2014 population projections by Local Authority. Available via: https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-

Migration/Population/Projections/Local- Authority/2014-based/populationprojections-by-localauthority-year.

Page 222



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
60  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 6 Maintaining and Enhancing Community Facilities and Services 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicantmust ensure that community services 

and facilities, including education, healthcare, IT communications/broadband, leisure facilities and 

emergency services are in place to accommodate the construction and operational phases of the 

project and its associated and related developments. New services and facilities which are required 

to service the project or to mitigate impacts therefrom, and which are not located on the main Wylfa 

Newydd site, should be sustainable, integrated and provide a permanent improvement and a lasting 

legacy benefit to the Island’s communities. 

More specifically, the County Council will expect the project promoter and any other applicant, in 

liaison with key service providers and informed by assessment(s) of supply and demand (including 

quality of provision), to: 

i. Provide new, relocated or enhanced community facilities, services and infrastructure 

(including mobile & IT communications infrastructure, broadband, leisure & sports facilities, 

healthcare and retail) to meet the needs of construction and operational workers and to 

mitigate any adverse impacts on existing provision resulting from the project either alone or 

in combination with other proposals; 

ii. Ensure that new or relocated community facilities and services which are not located on the 

main Wylfa Newydd site are available to the public and allow for a permanent legacy use 

including ensuring that such facilities and services can be maintained beyond the 

construction phase; 

iii. Deliver community facilities and services in locations that are accessible by modes of 

sustainable transport to both workers and, where public access is to be provided, the wider 

public and that reflect the County Council’s spatial strategy (as defined in the JLDP); 

iv. Ensure that new community facilities and infrastructure are developed in accordance with 

the settlement hierarchy, incorporate high quality design and protect and enhance the  

Island’s built and natural environment; and 

v. Ensure that opportunities to complement existing initiatives on the Island, as well as 

investment generated by other major investment proposals, are realised. 

Page 223



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
61  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Health and Well-being 

4.3.4 As set out in Section 1.2, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 includes 

seven well-being goals. The well-being goal ‘A healthier Wales’ aims to deliver “A society in 

which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in which choices and 

behaviours that benefit future health are understood”. NPS EN-1 (para. 4.13.3) highlights that 

the construction and operation of energy infrastructure may have a range of direct impacts on 

health including in respect of increased traffic, air or water pollution, dust, hazardous 

substances and waste and noise. It requires that such impacts are assessed and mitigation 

implemented to address adverse effects where they may arise. JLDP Policy PS 5: Sustainable 

Development sets out the overall approach to delivering sustainable development whilst Policy 

PCYFF 2: Development Criteria ensures that all development avoids unacceptable adverse 

impact on the health, safety and amenity of occupiers of local residences, other land and 

property uses or the characteristics co the locality. 

4.3.5 The importance of health and well-being also extends to the workers employed in the 

construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, particularly if health problems or a 

lack of well-being results in greater demand for the Island’s existing health services; without 

adequate investment, an increase in demand will also have implications for existing 

communities in terms of service availability. This is particularly relevant to the North of the 

Island where demand for these services will be higher. 

4.3.6 The County Council therefore expects the Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other 

applicant to fully consider the potential impacts of their proposals on the health and well-being 

of the Island’s residents, visitors and workers (including the Wylfa Newydd workforce and their 

families). An appropriate range of mitigation measures should be identified to address adverse 

impacts, taking into account the in combination and cumulative effects of disturbance. In 

addition, the project promoter and any other applicant should undertake an assessment of the 

likely demand for health services resulting from the project workforce and ensure, through 

consultation with service providers, that provision is available in the locations it will be required 

or that new provision will be made by the developer. 

4.3.7 The safety of nuclear power stations is regulated by the Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) 

and Natural Resources Wales and the relevant regulatory processes are separate to the DCO 

application. The ONR also determines the off-site emergency planning area for nuclear 

installations where there is a potential for an off-site release of radioactivity that may require 

implementation of countermeasures such as evacuation. This is carried out under the 

Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2001 (REPPIR). 

Page 224



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
62  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.3.8 Upon notification by ONR of the area requiring an Emergency Plan, the County Council 

consults all of the agencies with a role to play in its implementation. Following consultation 

with the relevant agencies and the operators, the County Council has to produce its off-site 

Emergency Plan within six months. The Plan will consider a range of countermeasures 

proportionate to the risks identified, including sheltering or evacuation. The County Council’s 

Emergency Plan will be considered every three years, following the operator's identification of 

hazards on site and the risks they present to the public, or when the operator makes a material 

change to activity on the site. This means that any changes associated with the Wylfa Newydd 

Project will be considered under REPPIR. 

4.3.9 The safety of the nuclear plant is not considered further in this SPG. This is consistent with 

guidance contained in NPS EN-6 which sets out (at para. 3.12.4) that the safety systems that 

must be in place for the design of new nuclear power stations and, further, the requirement for 

compliance with the UK’s robust legislative and regulatory regime, mean that the risk of 

radiological health impact is very small. Notwithstanding the above, it is the County Council’s 

view that the project promoter should seek to clearly communicate how it will manage the 

operations of the nuclear plant (including risks associated with radiation) to the Island’s 

communities, visitors and businesses in order to alleviate concerns and address potential 

negative perceptions linked with nuclear power generation. 

GP7 Protecting Health 

The project promoter and any other applicant must undertake comprehensive assessments 

of the health, well-being and amenity impacts of the construction and operation of Wylfa 

Newydd and, where appropriate all applicants should do so for associated or related 

developments. Assessments should take account of potential cumulative effects. 

In accordance with NPS EN-6, the project promoter and any other applicant should work 

with the County Council and the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board to identify any 

potentially significan health impacts and appropriate mitigation measures.  Mitigation 

measures are likely to relate to: 

i. The provision of information on health risks to local communities, visitors and 

businesses; 

ii. The physical design of new development (including consideration of screening, 

containment and layout to minimise impacts on sensitive receptors); 

iii. Mitigation for affected receptors (including insulation to reduce noise impacts) or 

compensation where mitigation is not practicable; 

Page 225



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
63  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

iv. Measures including the restriction of working hours and traffic management for both 

construction and operational phases; 

v. Monitoring of potential impacts including in respect of noise, air quality and light 

pollution; 

vi. Directly or indirectly supporting the provision of new, or enhancement of existing, 

health services in line with GP6. 

Associated and related developments should not be proposed where construction or 

operational activities would give rise to unacceptable impacts on air quality, noise/vibration 

and light pollution and the amenity of existing residents, visitors, businesses and 

construction workers. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location of construction worker accommodation 

in order to ensure that the health and amenity of workers is not adversely affected by current 

or proposed future adjacent land uses or by construction activities related to the wider 

project. 

In order to address any potential adverse impacts on health arising from associated and 

related developments, the County Council will seek DCO requirements, or impose planning 

conditions as appropriate to the method of consenting. These requirements/conditions could 

cover, inter-alia: 

a) Restrictions on total number of daily vehicle movements and movements during 

peak periods; 

b) Weight limits on construction traffic; 

c) Routing of traffic; 

d) Construction/ operation hours; 

e) Sequencing of construction operations; 

f) Noise, dust and odour management; and 

g) Community consultation on issues/activities likely to significantly impact upon 

amenity (including light pollution). 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter should ensure the health and well-being of its workers. 

Measures may include, for example: 

h) Preparation of a Corporate Health Policy; 

i) Implementation of a Code of Conduct for Construction Workers (see GP9); 

j) The dissemination of health and safety information to workers; 

k) The provision of facilities and services to meet the specific needs of the Wylfa 

Newydd workforce where it has been determined that they would not be better met 

through the enhancement of existing provision (see GP6). 

 

Page 226



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
64  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.3.10 Whilst the residents of Anglesey are generally healthy, there are a number of health- related 

issues that could be exacerbated by the Wylfa Newydd Project. These issues include variation 

and inequalities in health between the most and least deprived communities and the fact that 

a large proportion (approximately two thirds) of Anglesey’s adult population is not sufficiently 

physically active. In particular, the project and influx of construction workers could place 

additional pressure on open space and recreational facilities that play a vital role in promoting 

healthy lifestyles and well-being. 

4.3.11 The findings of the Community Infrastructure Study14 indicate that there is a need to improve 

leisure facilities on the Island and the County Council has commissioned a leisure study that 

specifically considers the impact on leisure facilities in Amlwch.  It is important that measures 

are taken to ensure that appropriate provision is made to accommodate the needs of the 

incoming population and adequately meet the increase in demand on facilities and recreational 

resources such as open space, walking routes and cycle paths. 

4.3.12 The construction and operation of the proposed power station may also bring with it 

opportunities to enhance the health and well-being of the Island’s residents, visitors and 

workers through investment in existing open space and recreation facilities and the provision 

of new facilities for community use. 

GP 8 Supporting Healthy Lifestyles 

In accordance with NPS EN-1, Planning Policy Wales, TAN16: Sport, Recreation and Open 

Space and JLDP Policy ISA 2: Community Facilities, the County Council will resist the loss 

or damage to existing open space and recreational facilities, walking and cycling routes or 

impacts on the connectivity of green infrastructure unless appropriate replacement provision 

is made. 

The County Council will require the Wylfa Newydd project promoter to undertake a 

comprehensive assessment of the potential impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project (including 

in combination with other proposals on the Island) on open space, recreation and leisure 

provision with a view to ensuring that the needs of the construction workforce are met and 

that there would be no adverse impacts on existing provision. 

Where further investment in open space, recreation and leisure facilities is needed to meet 

the increased or displaced demand caused by the project, improved and new provision 

should be sited to provide a permanent benefit to communities. The improvement of existing 

facilities, which are accessible to communities, should be the first option and new facilities 

only considered where improvement is not practical. In undertaking any assessment, 

 

14 AMEC (2014) New Nuclear Build at Wylfa: Community Infrastructure Study. Prepared on behalf of the Isle of Anglesey County Council.

Page 227



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
65  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

it is essential that the project promoter works in partnership with key service providers on 

the Island and undertakes community consultation in order to: 

i. Gain a thorough understanding of the implications of the Wylfa Newydd Project on 

existing provision; 

ii. Identify any opportunities for investment in existing facilities; 

iii. Improve access by sustainable means to existing facilities including improving or 

providing footpaths, cycle paths, cycle parking or bus shelters to increase capacity; 

iv. Integrate proposals with existing or emerging open space, leisure and recreation 

strategies and investment plans and seek to provide multi-use facilities combining 

recreation, social and community facilities where this maximises the benefit to the 

community; 

v. Ensure that new provision is in locations accessible by modes of sustainable 

transport to both workers and local communities; 

vi. Secure community use of new facilities; and 

vii. Ensure the effective long term management and maintenance of new facilities 

beyond construction. 

The County Council will seek to ensure that community access to facilities is secured and 

adequately resourced through appropriate mechanisms such as planning obligations (see 

GP24). 

 

Community Cohesion 

4.3.13 The Anglesey and Gwynedd SIP states that “Community cohesion is vital to ensure good 

relations between people from different backgrounds where diversity is valued and individuals 

share a sense of belonging and work together to make their area a better place”. Following 

the passing of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, work has begun on the 

preparation of the Anglesey Local Well-being Plan which is being led by the Public Services 

Board. The Local Well-being Plan will outline the well-being objectives for the Island and the 

steps that will be taken to achieve those objectives will be detailed in an Action Plan. The 

Local Well-being Plan is due for publication before April 2018 and will replace the SIP. 

4.3.14 Anglesey has a strong sense of community identity although its communities are vulnerable 

to change. An influx of workers associated with the construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

has the potential to create social tensions which in-turn could affect cohesion and erode 

community identity. The consideration of the impacts of the project on community cohesion is 

therefore a priority. NPS EN-1 (at para. 5.12.3) requires applicants to assess the impact that 

Page 228



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
66  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

a changing influx of workers during the construction and operational phases of energy 

infrastructure could have on community cohesion. JLDP Strategic Policy PS9: Wylfa Newydd 

and Related Development requires that Wylfa Newydd proposals should include appropriate 

measures for promoting social cohesion and community safety whilst PS 10 Wylfa Newydd – 

Campus Style Temproary Accommodation for Construction Workers requires the mitigation of 

impacts on facilities and services. 

4.3.15 There are a number of unique and important features of the Island’s communities that must 

be taken into account when considering the potential impact of the Wylfa Newydd Project on 

community cohesion. These features include: 

 Out-migration of younger people due to a lack of access to jobs, training opportunities and 

affordable housing; 

 Isolation of deprived individuals and communities, and increases in social inequality; 

 Areas of severe deprivation - Holyhead Town includes Lower Layer Super Output Areas 

ranking within the 10% or 20% most deprived wards in Wales with other areas of 

deprivation to be found in Llangefni and Amlwch; 

 A high, but falling proportion of Welsh speakers; 

 Low levels of crime - Anglesey is one of the safest places to live and work in North Wales, 

with crime levels remaining fairly consistent over the past seven years; and 

 Rural peripherality, fuel poverty and rising transport costs associated with rural living. 

4.3.16 The construction workforce itself is likely to be culturally diverse and therefore it will be 

important for the project promoter to also consider carefully how effective cohesion and 

integration amongst Wylfa Newydd workers can be achieved. Measures to achieve this should 

be proposed as part of any application. 

4.3.17 The County Council requires the project promoter to take full account of the need to ensure 

that proposals do not adversely affect community cohesion and that, where an adverse impact 

is identified, measures are implemented to enhance integration and tackle social inequalities. 

GP9a  Maintaining and Creating Cohesive Communities 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and all applicants for associated and related 

developments (including third party accommodation taken by workers) must take full 

account of the potential for the construction and operation of the project, to affect community 

cohesion, safety and social inequalities. It will also be essential that the project promoter 

and any other applicant takes full account of the cultural diversity of the construction 

workforce in order to ensure that effective cohesion and integration is achieved. 

Page 229



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
67  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Informed by an assessment of socio-cultural impacts and consultation with the Island’s 

communities, the County Council will expect all proposals to: 

i. Avoid large concentrations of construction worker accommodation unless significant 

socio-economic benefits can be delivered to the host community. The spatial 

distribution of workers must be managed through the Workers Accommodation 

Management Service (WAMS) and acceptable thresholds to be agreed with the 

County Council, or, where applicable, through an appropriate monitoring framework 

approved through the DCO; 

ii. Avoid, minimise or mitigate the potential impacts on Welsh language and culture 

(see GP 14); 

iii. Incorporate high standards of design which reduce crime, antisocial behaviour and 

the fear of crime whilst protecting and enhancing the Island’s built and natural 

environment; 

iv. Be located and designed so as to maximise accessibility for all, including those with 

disabilities; 

v. Be supported by the preparation and enforcement of a Construction Worker Code 

of Conduct and Community Safety Management Plans; and 

vi. Avoid or mitigate any adverse impacts on emergency services provision (including 

Police, Ambulance, Fire Service and Coastguard). 

vii. Proposals which involve the development of permanent dwellings to temporarily 

house construction worker accommodation must integrate such accommodation 

and (shared) community facilities and services within existing communities and in 

accordance with the JLDP spatial strategy; 

In partnership with relevant organisations, the project promoter or any other applicant 

should identify where opportunities exist to enhance community cohesion and tackle social 

inequalities. In particular, the County Council would encourage the project promoter or any 

other applicant to work alongside itself and Mon CF to identify how the Wylfa Newydd 

Project (alone and in combination with other investment projects on the Island), through 

housing, education, jobs and services and facilities provision, can facilitate regeneration in 

the Island’s most deprived communities. 

All proposals must include measures to promote integration with the local community 

including how effective communication with communities will be undertaken throughout the 

project. 

 

Page 230



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
68  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP9b  Maintaining and Creating Cohesive Communities – Campus  Style  

    Temporary Accommodation for Construction Workers located outwith the  

    main Wylfa Newydd site. 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other applicant must ensure that proposals for 

campus style temporary accommodation for construction workers (which are not located on 

the main Wylfa Newydd Site) are located in accordance with the sequential approach set 

out in JLDP Policies PS9 and PS10 in order to mitigate effects on existing communities on 

the Island and promote sustainable, cohesive communities. Such campuses should not be 

situated so as to create isolated, unsustainable temporary communities which do not 

integrate with existing services, facilities and communities. 

In addition to the overall approach to all proposals set out in GP 9a, when responding to 

proposals for campus style temporary accommodation, the County Council will particularly 

consider how proposals: 

i. Mitigate adverse effects on leisure, recreational, retail and healthcare facilities and 

services where there is insufficient capacity in the host or nearby settlement, or 

where the distances to existing facilities does not encourage walking or cycling by 

those workers being accommodated. Such mitigation should include the 

improvement, expansion or provision of community facilities to provide additional 

capacity for construction workers, or, where that is not practical, the provision of 

onsite services and facilities commensurate with the number of workers to be 

accommodated and delivered in time for provision becoming required; 

ii. Promote the health and well-being of workers being accommodated and minimise 

and mitigate indirect/direct effects on the amenity and well- being of the Island’s 

existing communities; 

iii. Ensure that adverse impacts on the Welsh language are avoided, minimised and 

mitigated in accordance with Policy PS1 of the JLDP and GP14; and 

iv. Promote the delivery of lasting and sustainable legacy benefits for the Island’s 

communities in line with Policy PS9 of the JLDP and GP10b. 

Page 231



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
69  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.4 Accommodation for Construction Workers 

   This section of the SPG applies to all proposals for construction worker 

accommodation located outside the main Wylfa Newydd site. Guidance specifically for 

the project promoter on providing campus style temporary accommodation on the main 

Wylfa Newydd site is set out in the locational guidance section at GP28b. 

4.4.1 Irrespective of the Wylfa Newydd Project, demand for housing on Anglesey is predicted to rise 

as a result of increases in household formation rates and rises in the population in the short 

to medium term. The JLDP includes a requirement for 7,184 dwellings between 2011 and 

2026 (to be provided across Anglesey and Gwynedd but excluding Snowdonia National Park) 

and makes provision for around 7,902 dwellings to include a 10% slippage. The spatial 

strategy is to distribute this growth in accordance with the following settlement hierarchy within 

Anglesey (as defined in JLDP Strategic Policy PS17: Settlement Strategy): 

 Urban Service Centres: In Anglesey these are Amlwch, Holyhead and Llangefni; 

 Local Service Centres: In Anglesey these are Benllech, Bodedern, Cemaes, Gaerwen, 

LlanfairPwllgwyngyll, Menai Bridge, Pentraeth, Valley; and 

 Villages: Including service villages (Gwalchmai, Newborough, Llanerchymedd), local 

villages and coastal/rural villages. 

4.4.2 The construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd and related developments will attract a 

significant workforce to the Island that is likely to require accommodation, which, if not 

strategically planned, could have substantial adverse impacts on the Island’s communities and 

environment. During the construction phase, the size of this workforce could reach 9,000 with 

approximately 7,000 seeking accommodation on a temporary basis.15 These numbers are 

based on 2,000 workers being home based16. To ensure that the local labour numbers meet 

or exceed this level measures require to be secured to deliver local employment along with 

monitoring mechanisms. Where local labour does not reach the required level the 

accommodation impacts of the project will be increased and additional mitigation will be 

required. The project promoter or any other applicant must therefore include this linkage in the 

monitoring and mitigation proposals for both local employment and accommodation proposals. 

Effective monitoring and timely intervention will be requried to ensure that the impacts remain 

acceptable. 

 

15 Wylfa Newydd Project Pre-application Consultation Stage 3 Main Consultation Document, Horizon Nuclear Power. 

16 Existing residents already living within the Travel to Work Area of Approximately 90 minutes.

Page 232



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
70  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.4.3 Accommodation should be located in accordance with the broad spatial strategy of the JLDP 

as expressed through Strategic Policy PS17 and with a focus on the settlements of Holyhead, 

Llangefni and Amlwch. The role and size of these centres is such that they are better able to 

sustainably support construction worker accommodation (for example, by providing access to 

a range of services and facilities), whilst minimising the risk of adverse social and 

environmental impacts. These settlements would also be the most appropriate locations for 

accommodating the operational workforce. Focusing development in the larger settlements 

may also generate benefits for existing communities and businesses in terms of, for example, 

investment in services and the longer term provision of housing. Whilst it is recognised that 

there may be a need for some campus style temporary accommodation at the main site, with 

the project promoter suggesting that this could be for up to 4,000 workers, in view of its rural 

and remote location, and reflecting existing national and local planning policy, such 

development will require to be justified by robust evidence and provide services and facilities 

in accordance with JLDP Policies PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development and PS10: 

Wylfa Newydd – Campus style Temporary Accommodation for Construction Workers. 

4.4.4 Permanent housing provided initially for workers should be within development boundaries in 

accordance with the settlement hierarchy. Only where demand for permanently constructed 

accommodation cannot be met in such locations should temporary, modular buildings be used. 

JLDP Policy PS10 again sets out criteria for the development of such accommodation. 

Permanent Housing should be considered and utilised before temporary accommodation, and 

the use of any temporary accommodation should be maximised before workers are placed in 

other forms (including private rented and tourism accommodation). 

4.4.5 The type and tenure of housing on Anglesey is likely to change in the future with requirements 

for smaller households increasing, reflecting both reductions in average household size and 

in response to recent welfare changes. Presently, Anglesey has a greater proportion of 

detached homes than the Welsh average with a correspondingly lower proportion of flats and 

terraced properties. Any housing proposals, which include permanent residential use following 

the accommodation of construction workers, must be designed to take account of the needs 

of the community in providing an appropriate mix of size of units for permanent use the legacy 

benefit by addressing identified housing need in accordance with JLDP Policy TAI 8. The Local 

Housing Market Assessment (2016) notes that average house prices on the Island increased 

between 2011 and 2015 at a greater rate than across Wales as a whole with a 21.7% increase 

between the first quarter in 2011 and equivalent quarter 2015 (compared to an increase of 

9.2% for Wales as a whole). The mean house price in the first quarter of 2015 stood at 

£186,229 (compared to £162,904 for Wales as a whole) rising to £188,737 by August 2017 

(compared to £176,632 for Wales as a whole). 

Page 233



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
71  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.4.6 The availability and affordability of accommodation is constrained by correspondingly low 

incomes, relative to the national average. In this respect, the Anglesey Local Housing Market 

Assessment (LHMA) (2016) breaks down the theoretical affordability of households and 

concludes that 16.5% of households headed by someone employed on Anglesey are 

theoretically unable to afford market housing compared to 5% for those employed outside the 

Island (this is theoretical affordability because it is based on an analysis of all households and 

does not take into account their intention of moving). The data also indicates that 42.4% of 

lone parent households on Anglesey would be unable to afford market housing. Similar 

patterns exist in the private rented sector where turnover is low and average rental prices 

remain relatively high. In this context, the provision of affordable homes is a key objective of 

the JLDP and a priority of the SIP and any proposal for permanent housing must include a 

scheme to secure the delivery of affordable housing as part of the permanent provision. 

4.4.7 National and local planning policies provide the mechanism to enable LPAs to require that a 

percentage of new housing is affordable. At the national level, Technical Advice Note (TAN) 

2: Planning and Affordable Housing requires LPAs to include in their development plans 

authority-wide targets for affordable housing based on the housing need identified in the 

LHMA. The JLDP policy on affordable housing provision is contained in Strategic Policy PS18: 

Affordable Housing and expressed through TAI I5: Affordable Housing Threshold and 

Distribution. Policy TAI15 sets out the size of development site (excluding sites for campus 

style temporary accommodation) at which affordable housing will be required and the 

contribution rate. In the Island’s Urban Service Centres and Local Service Centres, Service 

Villages and Local/Rural/Coastal Villages the threshold is two or more dwelling units whilst the 

contribution rate is 10% to 30% dependent upon which ‘Housing Price Area’ the development 

site falls within. 

4.4.8 The County Council will seek to ensure that the influx of construction workers associated with 

the Wylfa Newydd Project and related increased demand for accommodation does not 

adversely impact the local housing market by displacing existing households from existing 

accommodation and/or by preventing local people from entering the market due to increases 

in rental and purchase prices. 

4.4.9 The County Council has undertaken its own assessments of the potential impacts upon the 

local housing market as a result of the Wylfa Newydd Project and has identified the potential 

for displacement and for increasing barriers to access the housing market. It has considered 

the effects relative to different communities on the Island, for example, in North Anglesey and 

in Holyhead and it has looked at how impacts may differ across different household sizes. The 

County Council has concluded that to reduce impacts upon the local housing market, a 

Page 234

http://wales.gov.uk/desh/publications/planning/technicaladvicenotes/tan2/tan2e.pdf?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/desh/publications/planning/technicaladvicenotes/tan2/tan2e.pdf?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/desh/publications/planning/technicaladvicenotes/tan2/tan2e.pdf?lang=en


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
72  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

number of mitigation measures need to be adopted. These measures have the potential to 

both address some of the impacts arising from a substantial increase in demand associated 

with the influx of workers and to provide a positive legacy for the future. 

4.4.10 In order to mitigate the effects of the Wylfa Newydd Project on the housing market in Anglesey, 

and to help co-ordinate the best use of the private rented sector, the County Council will 

require that the project promoter funds (in its entirety) a Construction Worker Accommodation 

Management Service (CWAMS). Any other applicant proposing to provide construction 

workers accomodation will be expected to register this with the CWAMS. The WAMS should 

adopt a ‘Match, Monitor, Manage’ approach to worker accommodation that: 

 Matches available accommodation to construction worker requirements for the duration of 

the construction phase; this will involve managing the fluctuating needs of construction 

workers and requirement for support services; The project promoter will be required to 

hold a database of approved properties (i.e. affordable and meeting the necessary 

standards) offered by landlords and providers, including the project promoter’s own 

Temporary Workers’ Accommodation; 

 Monitors the number, type and location of properties used as accommodation against 

thresholds agreed between the County Council and project promoter. The thresholds will 

include the number of workers within different accommodation types , property and rental 

prices , numbers of homeless, the number of people in housing need as well as the spatial 

distribution of workers in each area/Ward (measured against agreed thresholds) to prevent 

over concentration of construction workers. A project promoter funded package of 

measures will be called upon to implement additional mitigation should such thresholds be 

reached; 

 Manages resources to reduce the pressure on the local housing market which will include 

for the provision of financial contribution to encourage the increase in housing stock (to 

buy and/or rent) or through the re-use of empty homes and vacant commercial properties 

on the Island. 

4.4.11 Additionally, the project promoter should contribute to regeneration and assist in enabling 

private sector landlords to respond to the unique challenges faced by Anglesey and the Wylfa 

Newydd Project by developing a new model including social enterprise and partnership 

working between the public and private sectors. Once established, this will be self-sustaining 

with the potential to incorporate other housing sectors. 

4.4.12 The influx of construction workers may increase problems of affordability as a result of 

increased demand. Where the potential for significant adverse impact is identified, the County 

Council will require the project promoterapplicantto contribute to the delivery of affordable and 

Page 235



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
73  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

social needs housing, providing a legacy benefit for the Island’s communities. Should such 

methods of mitigation be insufficient to avoid the displacement of local residents, the  or any 

other third party applicant should work with the County Council and local communities to 

develop and implement a ‘locally sensitive lettings policy’ which recognises the particular 

needs of vulnerable groups (for example, social tenants, minority groups, young people and 

disabled people), and include measures to avoid their displacement as a result of increased 

demand created by construction workers. The policy would be implemented through the 

WAMS and would seek to avoid instances where vulnerable residents are put at risk of 

displacement as a result of specific worker demand. 

4.4.13 In accordance with national planning policy, the JLDP and other guiding principles contained 

in this and other SPG, the County Council will expect all construction worker accommodation 

to encompass high quality, sustainable design standards and be located so as to reduce the 

need to travel, maximise accessibility and avoid adverse impacts on community identity and 

cohesion. 

GP10a  Permanent Housing 

All proposals. 

New permanent housing proposed to temporarily accommodate construction workers by 

any applicant should be located in accordance with the settlement hierarchy and spatial 

strategy as set out in JLDP Strategic Policy PS17: Settlement Strategy (as reflected in the 

locational guidance contained in Section 5 of this SPG), focusing new development in 

Holyhead, Llangefni and Amlwch, with smaller scale growth in Local Service Centres and 

Service Villages. Previously developed, sites should be used and use of other sites will only 

be acceptable where it is demonstrated that previously developed land sites are not 

available or suitable for accommodation provision. 

The development of housing for construction workers has the potential to deliver significant 

and lasting legacy benefits for the Island’s communities and economy. The County Council 

will expect that, where appropriate, proposals include clear consideration of the long term 

legacy impacts, and proposals for providing long term legacy benefits, at the earliest 

planning stages. 

Proposals for permanent housing use must have regard to the identified housing needs of 

the community and propose a mix of size of unit which reflects that need. New build 

accommodation should be well designed (in terms of architectural design, 

layout, scale, massing and energy performance) and all accommodation should be 

accessible by sustainable modes of transport 

 

Page 236



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
74  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Project promoter proposals 

The project promoter’s non-home-based Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy 

should consist of campus style temporary accommodation, new build permanent housing, 

(private rented/owner occupied and provided either directly or through a Housing Fund), the 

re-use of empty homes and additional accommodation (tourism and latent). 

Informed by research undertaken by the County Council in respect of the potential 

implications of the Wylfa Newydd Project on the local housing market, the Construction 

Worker Accommodation Strategy should also: 

a) Identify measures to address adverse impacts on the local housing market, including 

the provision of affordable housing, in accordance with JLDP policy and taking into 

account the potential for cumulative effects in combination with other proposals on 

the Island; 

b) Deliver a legacy use by promoting permanent new accommodation that addresses 

local needs including for social, affordable, elderly and special needs housing 

beyond the construction period; 

c) Contribute to the creation of vibrant communities, recognising the broader well-being 

and sustainability implications for residents; 

d) Promote high quality, sustainable design that reflects national and local planning 

policy and guidance contained in the Design Guide for the Urban and Rural 

Environment SPG (or its replacement) and which minimises, and is adaptable to, 

the effects of climate change; 

e) Ensure that housing is located so as to minimise the need to travel by private car 

and promotes the provision and use of sustainable transport modes; 

f) Avoid or minimise adverse impacts on amenity, ensuring that the proportion of 

construction workers in any single location is balanced with the profile of the existing 

community; 

g) Ensure that the provision of any housing conserves and enhances the Island’s built 

and natural environment and is planned, located and designed so as to minimise 

effects on designated nature conservation sites (or their interest features), 

particularly with regard to recreational amenity; 

h) Promote social cohesion and integration including, where appropriate, the 

development of Welsh language skills and appreciation of Welsh culture (see GP9 

and GP14); 

i) Avoid adverse impacts on existing community facilities and services by delivering 

housing in locations with a surplus of supply or through provision of appropriate 

facilities and services where adverse impacts may otherwise occur; and 

Page 237



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
75  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

j) The project promoter shall demonstrate how the Construction Worker 

Accommodation Strategy will be delivered by the proposed development in any 

proposal. 

When seeking to accommodate construction workers within private rented accommodation, 

and in order to address issues of potential displacement, the project promoter must 

establish the Worker Accommodation Management Service to help facilitate the 

development of new houses to buy and to co-ordinate the best use of private rented sector 

accommodation and measures to avoid displacement (following a Match, Monitor, Manage 

approach). This must be in place and operational prior to the commencement of the project 

and able to be scaled up as demand increases. The project promoter should also establish 

a Housing Fund to: 

a) Incentivise provision of new housing, including affordable housing, both to meet 

increased demand and to provide a lasting legacy; 

b) Facilitate improvements to the Island’s private rented sector (in terms of quality and 

quantity) and ensure that properties meet the required standards; 

c) Encourage provision of more latent accommodation (e.g. spare rooms) and assist 

accommodation providers to meet necessary standards and legislative 

requirements. 

d) Fund measures to improve the functioning of the housing market (e.g. help people 

downsize and support rent deposits for people at risk of homelessness); 

e) Augment the County Council’s existing empty homes programme and bring vacant 

properties back into use, both to meet increased demand and to provide a legacy; 

and 

f) Enable the provision of affordable housing solutions including the establishment of 

a social lettings agency and the provision of affordable shared ownership and social 

rented accommodation. 

 

GP10b  Campus Style Temporary Construction Worker Accommodation outwith the 

    main Wylfa Newydd site. 

Proposals for campus style temporary construction worker accommodation must accord 

with the sequential approach to preferred development locations and other provisions in 

JLDP Polices PS9 and PS10. The campus style accommodation must be located on a site 

adjacent to or well related to the development boundary of Holyhead, Amlwch, Llangefni 

Gaerwen or Valley and is close to the main highway network where adequate access can 

be provided without significantly harming landscape characteristics and features. The 

proposal must also takes account of policy preference for use of previously developed land. 

Page 238



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
76  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Proposals should be supported by a robust justification of need, demonstrating that the need 

cannot be met elsewhere in the existing housing market or through new buildings of 

permanent construction located in accordance with the JLDP spatial strategy and 

temporarily used to house construction workers. 

In line with the general requirements of GP 10a, in considering or responding to proposals 

for campus style temporary accommodation outside the main site, the County Council will 

have regard to, in particular: 

i. The external appearance, design, scale, massing and the quality of materials used 

in the accommodation proposed; 

ii. The landscape or townscape character of the site and its surroundings; 

iii. Impacts on sensitive ecological receptors; 

iv. Impacts on the Island’s built and natural environment including designated nature 

conservation sites (or their interest features); 

v. Measures to mitigate adverse impacts where there is insufficient capacity within 

existing off site leisure, recreational, retail and healthcare services and facilities, or 

such facilities are not within an acceptable distance which facilitates walking or 

cycling; 

vi. Impacts on amenity, social cohesion and crime or the fear of crime; 

vii. Impacts on the Welsh language and culture; 

viii. Impacts of noise, air quality and light pollution; 

ix. Impacts on existing utilities and infrastructure; and, 

x. Impacts on the highway network and in particular the implications of construction 

traffic and shift change patterns on the local communities and highway network. 

The project promoter or any other applicant must ensure that any temporary construction 

worker accommodation delivered at sites other than the main Wylfa Newydd site provides 

a legacy benefit such as serviced plots (from which temporary buildings have been 

removed) for future residential development. Where sites have proposals for reuse following 

campus style temporary construction worker accommodation use, the project proposals 

should, in so far as practical, provide infrastructure and servicing which is suitable for the 

intended subsequent use. Where no further use is feasible, the project promoter or any 

other third party applicant should prepare and submit a scheme of work for the removal of 

temporary structures and for restoring any land used for ancillary infrastructure and services 

to its original state. Restoration proposals and funding for restoration may require to be 

secured by planning obligation agreement. 

Page 239



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
77  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The project promoter and any other applicant should maintain monitoring information about 

the number of occupants and duration of occupancy which should be in a format that can 

be made readily available to the County Council on request and be integrated with the 

project promoter’s Worker Accommodation Management Service. 

 

Latent Supply 

4.4.14 The workforce associated with the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project 

will provide existing communities with economic opportunities in the form of demand for 

accommodation. Latent housing supply includes, for example, spare rooms available for rent 

and which could be made available to construction workers, helping to supplement 

householder incomes. In order to enable communities to take advantage of these 

opportunities, and to provide a wide range of suitable accommodation choices for the 

workforce, the project promoter should proactively support, monitor and report on the uptake 

of latent supply through the WAMS and, in partnership with other organisations and initiatives 

on the Island including Mon CF. 

GP11 Latent Supply 

The project promoter shall provide support to existing communities to enable them to access 

the economic opportunities arising from the accommodation needs of the project workforce. 

The promoter should prepare a Strategy that seeks to: 

 Provide training and advice both to existing and prospective landlords wishing to 

provide worker accommodation (including in respect of lodging accommodation); 

and 

 Support the establishment of a Worker Accommodation Management Service 

including the provision of a housing/accommodation officer as the first point of 

contact for construction workers and existing and prospective landlords. The service 

should collate a register of available latent accommodation and monitor the 

distribution of workers across the Island through the Worker Accommodation 

Management Service. 

 

Tourism Accommodation 

4.4.15 Section 4.2 explains the importance of the visitor economy to the Island. A substantial and 

varied tourism accommodation base is essential if Anglesey is to meet the increasing 

demands of visitors and further develop this growing tourism market. JLDP Policy PS 14: The 

Visitor Economy recognises the importance of visitor accommodation to the Island’s tourism 

Page 240



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
78  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

offer and supports the retention of existing, and the provision of new, high quality tourist 

accommodation. 

4.4.16 Research undertaken in 2011 to update the County Council’s knowledge on the 

accommodation sector17 demonstrated that a total of 34,242 possible bed spaces exist on 

Anglesey within both serviced and on a self-catering / caravan camping basis (based on the 

Visit Wales methodology). A total of 75% of accommodation providers indicated that they 

would have an interest in accommodating Wylfa Newydd construction workers. The County 

Council is due to undertake a new bedstock survey in late 2017. 

4.4.17 The use of accommodation by construction workers has the potential to support the Island’s 

tourism economy, particularly at times outside of the main holiday season. New 

accommodation provision used in the first instance by construction workers could, if 

appropriately designed and located, also provide a legacy use as tourism accommodation, 

improving the tourism offer of the Island. However, it is important to ensure that the take-up of 

accommodation by construction workers does not generate adverse impacts upon the tourism 

sector by reducing the Island’s accommodation offer to visitors. 

GP12  Tourism Accommodation 

When accommodating the non-homed based construction workforce within the tourist 

accommodation sector, the County Council will require the applicant to ensure that there 

are no unacceptable adverse economic (including on the tourism sector), social, linguistic 

or environmental impacts in accordance with JLDP Policies PS 9 and PS14This can be 

achieved through the provision of or contribution to the provision of following measures: 

i. The preparation of an assessment of the impacts arising from the accommodation 

needs of the construction workforce upon the tourism sector, including tourism 

accommodation providers; 

ii. Annual survey to gauge visitor perceptions of tourism accommodation and an annual 

survey of tourism accommodation providers to understand patterns of demand; 

iii. If significant adverse issues/effects are identified, the implementation of mitigation 

measures, as set out in a Tourism Accommodation Strategy, which could include 

the provision of additional accommodation, the seasonal rather than year-round use 

of tourism accommodation, financial assistance for improvements to 

accommodation and the appropriate distribution of construction workers via the 

Worker Accommodation Management Service within the tourism accommodation 

 

17 Isle of Anglesey County Council (2012) Bedstock Survey 2011.

Page 241



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
79  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

   sector so as to prevent over concentration. 

Where new tourism accommodation is proposed, this should be well designed and 

sustainably located in accordance with JLDP tourism policies (Policy TWR3) and Policy 

TAI14. In accordance with GP10a, the County Council will consider, in particular: 

a) The design, external appearance, layout, scale, massing and the quality of materials 

used in new accommodation; 

b) The landscape or townscape character of the site and its surroundings; 

c) Impacts   on   the   Island’s   built   and natural  environment including 

designated nature conservation sites (or their interest features); 

d) The provision and quality of appropriate services and facilities; 

e) The potential for a high quality visitor legacy post construction; 

f) The potential to re-use redundant buildings; 

g) The availability of sustainable means of access to facilities including health services 

and retail and leisure provision and the capacity of those facilities to accommodate 

increased demand; and 

h) Impacts on amenity, social cohesion and Welsh language and culture. 

Accommodation should be located so as to ensure ease of access by sustainable means 

of travel to relevant tourism facilities and attractions, community services and facilities and 

the main Wylfa Newydd site. 

Guidance on the use of caravans and other forms of non-permanent accommodation is 

provided in GP13a and GP13b of this SPG. 

 

4.4.18 Recent experience of large construction projects elsewhere in the UK suggests to the County 

Council that there will be a particular demand from construction workers for caravan 

accommodation with accommodation likely to be sought both within static and touring 

caravans, and within motor caravan tourers. JLDP Policies PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related 

Development and PS14: Visitor Economy require that the accommodation of construction 

workers does not result in unacceptable adverse impacts on tourism; that includes the 

availability and desirability of tourism accommodation in caravan sites and chalets. The 

County Council has therefore investigated the supply of caravans available on the Island. 

Taking into account planning and licensing restrictions, which prevent either use by non-

tourists or year round occupancy, it has identified a constrained potential of approximately 

1,300 pitches. When consideration is given to average historical peak occupancy figures, the 

County Council concludes that approximately 200 pitches may be available for year- round 

occupation by construction workers. 

Page 242



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
80  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.4.19 Of the caravan sites identified by the County Council, the majority lie within a thirty minute 

drive-time or beyond from the main site; there are very few close to the site, within North 

Anglesey. Workers seeking accommodation on existing sites will require transportation to their 

place of work and there could be a demand for new provision at existing sites, new sites and/or 

applications to change occupancy restrictions. Any proposals for new provision must include 

details of how sustainable transport linkages will be provided and maintained. 

4.4.20 The County Council understands that the use of caravan sites (static and tourer) can provide 

an income to the site owner, particularly out of season. It may also encourage the supply or 

new or enhanced facilities and construction workers may spend money with local businesses 

in the community. At the same time, the County Council is aware of the high proportion of 

repeat visits by tourists to Anglesey and is concerned that the presence of workers on tourist 

caravan sites, the unavailability of pitches due to high levels of occupancy by workers or a 

general degradation in the condition of caravans used continuously by construction workers, 

may prompt established visitors to holiday elsewhere. The illegal siting of touring and motor 

caravans can also affect the environmental quality of the Island and the County Council 

recognises the importance of utilising its enforcement duties where such action is applicable 

and necessary. Proposals to use sites for static, tourer or motor caravans for accommodation 

by construction workers will therefore be considered in relation to both GP 12 and the following 

guidance. 

GP 13a New Caravan or Other Forms of Non-permanent Accommodation Sites for 

    Temporary Residential Use 

When considering proposals the County Council will take into account whether: 

i. The siting is for a limited period of time which will not exceed the anticipated duration 

of the construction period for the Wylfa New Nuclear Build; 

ii. The site is used solely for the occupation of Wylfa New Nuclear Build construction 

workers for 12 months of the year. 

iii. It can be fully demonstrated and justified that the development is necessary to 

accommodate temporary construction workers for the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa 

and this need cannot be met through existing accommodation or through the 

provision of accommodation in purpose built temporary workers accommodation; 

iv. The site is located so as to minimise the need to travel and promotes the use of 

sustainable transport modes to the Wylfa New Nuclear Build site or to a park and 

ride facility provided by the project promoter or any other applicant; 

Page 243



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
81  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

v. The site is close to the main highway network and that adequate access can be 

provided without significantly harming landscape characteristics and features. 

vi. It can be demonstrated that it does not lead to a significant intensification in the 

provision of static caravans, chalets or permanent alternative camping sites in the 

locality; 

vii. The proposed development is of a high quality in terms of design, layout and 

appearance, as is in an unobtrusive location which is well screened by existing 

landscape features and/or where units can be readily assimilated into the landscape 

in a way which does not significantly harm the visual quality of the landscape; 

viii. There are adequate services and facilities on site to meet the needs of the 

construction workers/occupants. 

ix. There would not be a significant detrimental effect on the Island’s tourism industry. 

 

The project promoter and any other applicant should maintain monitoring information about 

the number of occupants and duration of occupancy which should be in a format that can 

be made readily available to the County Council on request and be integrated with the 

project promoter’s Worker Accommodation Management Service. 

If the proposal is for permanent caravan, holiday chalet or alternative camping 

accommodation which is to be retained following the occupation of construction workers, 

criteria iii to ix above will apply as well as other locational criteria as outlined in JLDP Policy 

TWR3. 

 

GP13b  Use of Existing Holiday Caravans or Other Form of Non-Permanent  

    Accommodation 

A proposal involving occupation of existing holiday caravans or other forms of non- 

permanent accommodation outside the usual occupancy season, or the extension of 

existing sites for the purpose of temporary residential use, must align with the construction 

worker management strategy required by JLDP Policy PS9. When considering proposals 

the County Council will take into account whether: 

i. There is a proven need for temporary residential accommodation in association with 

the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa and this need cannot be met through other forms of 

accommodation or through the provision of accommodation in purpose built 

temporary workers accommodation; 

Page 244



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
82  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

ii. The site is located so as to minimise the need to travel and promotes the use of 

sustainable transport modes to the Wylfa New Nuclear Build site or to a park and 

ride facility provided by the project promoter and any other applicant; 

iii. It can be demonstrated that the proposal would not have a significant detrimental 

impact on the tourism industry; 

iv. Existing providers of caravan, mobile home and other forms of non- permanent 

accommodation will be expected to register with the Worker Accommodation 

Management Service and maintain monitoring information about the number of 

occupants and duration of occupancy and this information should be made available 

to the County Council on request. 

v. The proposal is appropriate when considered against JLDP Policy TWR 3. 

The project promoter and any other applicant will also be expected to contribute towards 

the monitoring and enforcement of the use of caravan accommodation through s.106 

planning obligations, conditions or equivalent. 

 

4.5 Welsh Language and Culture 

4.5.1 The County Council recognises that the Welsh language, culture and heritage are integral 

elements of the social fabric of the Island’s communities and are central to many people’s 

sense of identity. The 2011 Census showed that approximately 57.2% of people in Anglesey 

speak Welsh, which is substantially greater than the average across Wales (19%). 

4.5.2 One of the core objectives of the Anglesey and Gwynedd SIP is to ensure that Anglesey is a 

place where the Welsh language and culture is flourishing. However, the number of Welsh 

speakers in Anglesey has decreased since the 2001 Census by 2.9%, a rate of decline greater 

than the national average (1.7%). The proportion of Welsh speakers also varies within 

Anglesey with the highest concentrations found in the more rural central areas of the Island. 

4.5.3 Ensuring decisions taken by public bodies support the Welsh language is central to the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act’s aim to reinforce sustainable communities and the 

well-being goal to achieve ‘a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language’. The 

requirements of the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, as incorporated in Planning Policy Wales, 

meanwhile, strengthens the consideration to be given to the Welsh language in the land-use 

planning system. The importance of supporting the Welsh language is therefore clear within 

legislative and national planning policy provisions. 

Page 245



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
83  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.5.4 An influx of workers and their families during the construction and, to a lesser extent, operation 

of the Wylfa Newydd Project has the potential to significantly affect Welsh culture and linguistic 

balance in the Island’s communities. TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (2017) 

recognises that there is an imperative need to create favourable circumstances to encourage 

the number of Welsh speakers. This involves securing goodwill towards the language and 

providing language infrastructure such as technology and legislation, but is also concerned 

with securing an economic and social future for Welsh speaking communities. 

4.5.5 At paragraph 3.1.3 in TAN 20 stipulates that planning applications should not be subject to 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment as this would duplicate the assessment undertaken as 

part of the LDP preparation process. However, NPS EN-1 and NPS EN- 6 were not subject to 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment and the County Council considers that the importance 

of Welsh language to the Island’s identify and the scale of the Wylfa Newydd Project are 

exceptional circumstances that warrant more detailed consideration of linguistic impacts by 

the Wylfa Newydd project promoter in respect of DCO, and associated developments and by 

all applicants for related development applications. 

4.5.6 The JLDP includes the overarching Strategic Policy PS5: Sustainable Development and 

Strategic Policy PS1: Welsh Language and Culture, which sets out the policy approach to 

ensuring the Welsh language is protected, promoted and enhanced in planning proposals. 

Policy PS 1 contains thresholds for categories of development requiring the provision of a 

Welsh Language Statements or Impact Assessments. 

GP 14  Maintaining and Strengthening Welsh Language and Culture 

The County Council considers it essential that the Wylfa Newydd Project maintains and, 

where possible, strengthens Welsh language and culture as an important part of the Island’s 

social fabric and community identity. A detailed assessment of linguistic (including 

cumulative) impacts should be submitted by the project promoter with the DCO application 

and that this assessment considers fully the important linkages between Welsh language 

and culture and the future of the Island’s communities, economic development and service 

provision. 

Dependent upon the type and scale of any Town and Country planning application for 

related development and in accordance with the thresholds set out in JLDP Policy PS1, the 

County Council will determine the requirement for either a Welsh Language Statement or a 

more detailed Welsh Language Impact Assessment. Any Statement or Assessment for 

related development should align with the Assessment for the DCO and co-ordinate with 

the measures and monitoring mechanisms proposed under that Assessment. 

Page 246

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/171012-technical-advice-note-20-planning-and-the-welsh-language-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/171012-technical-advice-note-20-planning-and-the-welsh-language-en.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
84  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Pro-active measures agreed between the project promoter and the County Council should 

be implemented to mitigate potential adverse impacts on, and strengthen, Welsh language 

and culture. These measures, which should be set out in a Welsh Language Strategy 

developed by the project promoter, could include: 

i. The establishment of a labour market for Welsh speakers and local labour contracts; 

ii. Promoting opportunities to local Welsh speaking residents and to attract skilled 

Welsh speaking former residents back to Anglesey; 

iii. Establishment of new, and support to existing, Welsh language centres; 

iv. Language induction and lessons for construction and operational workers and their 

families to include the funded provision of specialist Welsh 2nd Language Immersion 

teachers; 

v. Support for the provision of school places in Welsh medium schools and in pre-

school nurseries; 

vi. Development of Welsh learning actions plans for non-Welsh speaking members of 

the project workforce; 

vii. Cultural and language initiatives/projects to encourage the use of the Welsh 

language within communities; 

viii. Measures and agreed targets related to the use of the Welsh language in the 

workplace including the provision of Welsh lessons to worker and education in the 

importance of Welsh to local communities as part of any induction programme; 

ix. The provision of community services and facilities (including youth services) in the 

medium of the Welsh language; 

x. The provision of affordable housing to meet local needs (see GP10); 

xi. Language and cultural awareness initiatives; and 

xii. Provision of bilingual signs. 

All planning applications for related development will be expected to demonstrate how the 

Welsh Language Strategy will be delivered by the proposed development. 

Page 247



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
85  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.6 Transport 

4.6.1 The construction of a new nuclear power station is a major engineering undertaking that will 

take several years to complete and for which there are high demands in terms of worker 

numbers and construction materials, goods, plant and equipment. 

4.6.2 Estimates suggest that around 5.5 million tonnes of materials will be transported to and from 

the Wylfa Newydd site during construction and that at peak times during the construction 

period, around 9,000 workers may be needed on-site. The construction phase of the project 

could extend over a period of approximately 10 years. In addition, Abnormal Indivisible Loads 

(AIL) movements will be required to deliver specific large components to the site. 

4.6.3 The County Council recognises the significant potential for congestion on parts of the existing 

road network in the event that a large proportion of construction related deliveries and worker 

transportation occur by road. In addition to road network congestion, the potential exists for 

increased noise, poorer air quality, increased severance and reduced highway safety which 

could have an adverse impact on the quality of life of Anglesey residents, particularly those 

living in close proximity to the road routes serving the main site. 

4.6.4 At the global and European level, it is recognised that transportation is a major source of 

greenhouse gas emissions and strategic planning will be required to ensure the delivery of 

emissions reduction as defined by the Kyoto Protocol and the European Commission White 

Paper of 2011. The primary means of emissions reduction are likely to include modal shift 

from road to rail and waterborne transport modes and the reduction of the conventionally 

powered car and bus fleets in towns and cities. 

4.6.5 There is recognition that the existing road network requires ongoing management and 

improvement in Wales including at key locations on the A55 which forms the main arterial 

route (Euroroute 22) connecting Anglesey and the North Wales region to the national 

motorway network and major conurbations to the east. With the exception of the A55, all roads 

on Anglesey are maintained by County Council as the highways authority. 

4.6.6 The principal road routes, which are likely to be used to access the main Wylfa Newydd site, 

are the A5, A55 and A5025. The main existing road congestion issues relate to the two bridges 

which provide access to the Island across the Menai Straits (A55 Britannia Bridge and A5 

Menai Bridge), both of which are single carriageway, operate at close to existing capacity in 

the peak hours and experience the highest traffic volumes during the summer holiday season. 

The capacity of the bridges is recognised by the County Council as a key cross boundary 

issue. The Welsh Government are currently undertaking feasibility studies in to the 

construction of a ‘Third Crossing’. 

Page 248



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
86  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.6.7 Studies have identified the potential for constraints to exist locally on the network. These 

constraints may require highway improvements to be implemented, most notably along the 

A5025 and at certain key junctions, for example at the A55 Junction 3 (A55/A5 junction) and 

Junction 1 of the A55 at Holyhead where enhancements to existing highway arrangements 

are required to deal with congestion associated with port traffic at peak periods. The project 

promoter is proposing on-line and off-line work along the A5025 between Valley and the main 

site. Whilst not wishing to prejudice decisions on these elements of the project, the County 

Council does, in principle, recognise that they will mitigate some of the impacts arising from 

vehicle movements; however, additional mitigation and traffic management measures will be 

required. 

4.6.8 The use of transport modes other than road would be preferred on national and local policy 

grounds. Feasibility studies undertaken by the County Council and project promoter18 have 

identified that the North Wales main railway line does have capacity for the delivery of bulk 

construction materials onto Anglesey as far as Holyhead and in particular to the former 

Anglesey Aluminium site. The Port of Holyhead does not have the existing capacity to handle 

such materials due to existing operational requirements and the limited area available for 

materials stockpiling. Similarly, for AILs, the existing port facilities are not ideal but 

opportunities do exist for enhancement of existing infrastructure to maximise the use of the 

Port for the importation of construction goods. Further, any approach involving the movement 

of materials by sea must take account of the importance of the Irish Sea crossing and 

associated road vehicle movements across the Island, which are an essential component of 

the Island’s logistic/tourism infrastructure. 

4.6.9 Both existing rail and port infrastructure present constraints as they would require transfer of 

materials/AILs to road for onward delivery to the main site via the A5025 unless significant 

enhancements and additions to the existing infrastructure are made. 

4.6.10 It is recognised that the impact of transporting goods and materials along existing road 

infrastructure could be significantly mitigated by installation of a Marine Off-Loading Facility 

(MOLF) at the Wylfa Newydd site. The County Council is therefore supportive in principle of 

the project promoter’s proposal to include the construction of a purpose built MOLF at Porth-

y-pistyll as part of the main Wylfa Newydd site development, provided that the enviromental 

impacts are fully assessed. The project promoter’s current estimates set out in the Third Stage 

Pre-Application Consultation (PAC3) suggest that some 60% to 80% of all construction 

materials (by weight), including at least 80% of concrete materials and the vast majority of  

18 See Halcrow (2010) The Heavy Route and MOLF Strategy Study, May 2010 and its review on behalf of the County Council by MDS 

Transmodal (2014) Review of Heavy Route and MOLF Strategy Study Commissioned by Horizon Nuclear Power.

Page 249



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
87  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

AILs, would be delivered via the MOLF. This would support a significant reduction in the likely 

number of HGV trips to and from the Wylfa site along the A55 and A5025 and the County 

Council will require the project promoter to provide an implementation plan for the construction 

and operation of the facility. However, even with an operational MOLF, the project promoter 

is assessing (as a worst case) deliveries to the main site by 40 HGVs per hour between the 

hours of 0700 and 1900. This may result in 80 two-way movements per hour or 960 per day. 

The timescale for the delivery of the MOLF is also a critical issue which could impact upon 

daily HGV vehicle movements. The County Council is eager to see the MOLF operational as 

early as possible in the construction phase in order to avoid additional road movements 

resulting from any potential delay. 

4.6.11 The County Council expects that the transportation issues associated with construction and 

operation will be fully assessed once the profile of materials, plant, equipment and workers 

required to deliver the construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project is known with sufficient 

certainty to enable effective decision making. In developing its transport strategy, the project 

promoter should take full account of JLDP Policies PS 4: Sustainable Transport, Development 

and Accessibility and PS 9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development, and the guiding 

principles within this SPG, which set out the County Council’s preferred approach to delivering 

sustainable transport measures. Consideration should also be given to other development 

proposals on the Island and relevant plans and programmes; including the emerging North 

Wales Joint Local Transport Plan and the County Council’s Highways Asset Management 

Plan, Cycle Strategy and Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2008-2018. Furthermore, for 

consideration of park and ride and park and share facilities, specific criteria set out in JLDP 

Policy PS12: Wylfa Newydd – Park and Ride Facility and Park and Share Facilities applies. 

GP15  Transport 

Based upon a sufficiently robust profile of demand for construction materials, plant and 

equipment (including AILs), the Wylfa Newydd project promoter should define a logistical 

approach to deliveries to the main site and associated development sites which maximises 

the use of rail and sea (waterborne) transport modes whilst fully assessing and mitigating 

the effects on the environment. The use of rail and waterborne transport modes should be 

prioritised in accordance with national planning policy and the need for road transport to be 

minimised. 

Amongst the transport solutions, the project promoter should deliver a Marine Off Loading 

Facility (MOLF) as a means of transporting the majority of construction materials (including 

AILs) to the main Wylfa Newydd site. The project promoter should prepare a MOLF Phasing 

Plan for delivery of the MOLF and undertake implementation in accordance with it. The 

Page 250



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
88  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

MOLF requires to be constructed and available prior to the commencement of the 

construction of the power station. The project promoter should propose measures for 

engaging with the Highway Authority to control the transportation impacts where the MOLF 

is not available or becomes operational during construction. 

The approach to minimising the need for road transport should be set out in a detailed 

Transport Plan that clearly identifies the rationale for the selected methods and how the 

modal splits will be achieved. The Transport Plan should clearly indicate where alignment 

with existing transport plans and strategy will be achieved. 

i. The project promoter should make best use of existing infrastructure provision and 

enhance provision in order to deliver a legacy benefit. 

ii. The project promoter will be expected to pursue opportunities to deliver co- 

ordinated investment in infrastructure, taking into account other major strategic 

investments on the Island. 

iii. In the event that any major new transport proposals are required to support the 

construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, they should be subject to 

assessment using the NATA/WelTAG methodology. 

iv. Any proposals should be sustainably designed and constructed and seek to 

conserve and, where possible enhance, the Island’s built and natural environment 

including through prioritising the use of suitable brownfield land. 

v. The County Council will expect proposals to be in place prior to the commencement 

of activities that would otherwise lead to negative effects. The proposals should also 

deliver a post build legacy benefit for the Island’s communities and economy. 

vi. Where the use of road transport is required, the project promoter should assess 

potential impacts on the highway infrastructure (both alone and in combination with 

other proposals) and ensure that highway improvements are provided where 

appropriate to minimise congestion, ensure safety and minimise environmental 

impacts associated with noise, air quality and severance. 

vii. The project promoter will be expected to prepare Green Travel Plans for both 

development at the main site and for associated and related developments. Long 

distance travel by car to the main site should be minimised and it is expected that 

thorough consideration will be given by the project promoter to how it will promote 

car sharing and the requirement for, and locations of, facilities including Park and 

Ride, Park and Share and freight consolidation to minimise the volume of road traffic 

that will utilise parts of the road network where congestion and/or environmental 

impacts may occur. 

Page 251



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
89  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

viii. A Traffic Management Plan will be required which sets out how adverse impacts on 

key parts of the network will be mitigated (including, but not necessarily limited to, 

the A55 including the Britannia Bridge, A5 including the Menai Bridge, the A5025 

and any other impacted route as necessary) showing how any known pinch points 

and cross boundary impacts will be addressed. 

ix. Through appropriate travel planning, the project promoter should identify how the 

maximisation of sustainable transport access to the main site, associated and 

related development sites (that accords with PS4 and PS9) will be achieved. 

Measures to be considered include: 

a) The strategic location of worker accommodation to minimise the need for 

worker travel by private car; 

b) The promotion of car sharing (for both home based and non-home based 

workers) to reduce the number of private vehicles required by construction 

workers. Any measures that are to be implemented must be realistic and 

achievable and their success evidenced from other major projects of a similar 

scale; 

c) Restriction on the number of car parking spaces at the main Wylfa Newydd 

site; 

d) Encouragement of walking and cycling opportunities including provision of 

new, and enhancement of existing, pedestrian and cycle paths in line with 

existing strategies where appropriate; and 

e) Monitoring of unauthorised or 'fly' parking in the vicinity of the Wylfa Newydd 

site and measures to address any problem identified; 

f) Improvement to public transport services, particularly bus and rail provision. 

x. The project promoter will be required to demonstrate compliance with the preference 

for Park and Ride and Park and Share facilities to be located within or adjacent to 

settlements with development boundaries along the A5/A55 corridor as set out in 

JLDP Policy PS12. The project promoter will also be required to clearly set out how 

construction workers will use any proposed Park and Ride and Park and Share and 

set out how the use of shuttle buses for transporting workers to the site from 

temporary workers accommodation sites will be encouraged. 

xi. The project promoter will be required to regularly monitor the number of 

commercial and private vehicle movements accessing and egressing the main site 

and associated sites. A Transport Movements Action Plan, with an agreed list of 

actions which can be required by the Highway Authority and implemented should 

Page 252



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
90  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

traffic movements be greater than predicted within the DCO and/or planning 

application documentation, should be prepared by the applicant and agreed with 

County Council. This Plan will form part of any consent. The County Council will be 

provided with the results of this monitoring. 

xii. xii. Monitoring of project related vehicle movements should extend to the use of land 

adjoining the highway network as informal ‘park and share’ locations by construction 

workers. As part of the Transport Movements Action Plan, the applicant should 

identify measures to be called upon by the local Highway Authority to control such 

activities should it consider that they pose a danger to highway safety or otherwise 

detract from the character or amenity of an area. Such measures should include the 

imposition of responsible parking obligations on the workforce and be included within 

the code of conduct for construction workers. 

 

4.7 Utilities 

4.7.1 Utilities provision is vital to the delivery of the Wylfa Newydd Project in a number of ways. 

First, there will be utilities (such as water supply infrastructure) that are fundamental to the 

construction and operation of the new nuclear power station as well as associated and 

potentially related development sites such as construction worker accommodation. Second, 

the creation of new employment and an influx of construction and operational workers will 

generate increased demand on utilities including water supply, waste water treatment, 

electricity, gas and telecommunications (including mobile phone coverage and IT 

infrastructure/ broadband) that may not be met by existing provision. Importantly, the 

investment in utilities infrastructure generated by the Wylfa Newydd Project can also benefit 

local communities, the environment and economy delivering a lasting legacy benefit for the 

Island. 

4.7.2 NPS EN-6 (at para. 3.15.2) requires applicants to demonstrate that proposals would not have 

an adverse impact on significant infrastructure. JLDP Strategic Policy PS2: Infrastructure and 

Developer Contributions, meanwhile, stipulates that appropriate physical (including utility) 

infrastructure should already be available or be provided in a timely manner where it is 

required by new development whilst Policy ISA1: Infrastructure Provision states that 

infrastructure required to meet a need directly related to a proposal must be funded by the 

proposal if it is not provided by a service or infrastructure company. Contributions may be 

sought for a range of purposes. 

Page 253



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
91  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.7.3 Proposals for the Wylfa Newydd Project, and any related development, will therefore be 

required to demonstrate that they would not adversely affect existing utilities provision on the 

Island and that works required to enhance existing capacity to accommodate the proposals 

will be undertaken in a timely manner. 

4.7.4 Careful consideration will need to be given to water supply and use. Welsh Water’s Water 

Resources Management Plan (2014) identifies that the Island would be in water 

supply/demand deficit in 2023/24 but that this deficit could be greater and occur earlier as a 

result of the operation of the nuclear power station. A Water Cycle Study19 prepared in support 

of this SPG has highlighted that the additional demand during construction including from 

construction workers could also place substantial pressure on water supplies and that 

additional measures to enhance water supply capacity beyond those identified in the Water 

Resources Management Plan could be required. Additionally, there may be a need for the 

upsizing of the sewerage network system in some locations and enhancement to wastewater 

treatment infrastructure, subject to the distribution of construction workers. This issue could 

be further exacerbated in North Anglesey with the proposal of up to 4,000 workers living on 

site in purpose build temporary workers accommodation. 

4.7.5 New development related to the Wylfa Newydd Project could have an immediate impact on 

the existing electrical infrastructure in some locations. In particular, the County Council is 

aware of capacity constraints in Holyhead, Llangefni, Gaerwen, the Llanfairpwll/Menai Bridge 

area and Amlwch. Connection to the main gas distribution line may also be required at some 

development sites. 

4.7.6 New development related to the Wylfa Newydd Project could have an impact on the existing 

telecommunications infrastructure network in some locations. 

4.7.7 Where possible, the project promoter and any other applicant, in liaison with utilities providers, 

should identify opportunities for any investment in infrastructure required to support the Wylfa 

Newydd Project (for example, telecommunications including IT infrastructure/broadband) to 

deliver wider, lasting community benefits. 

 

 

 

 

 

19 AMEC (2014) Outline Water Cycle Study.

Page 254

http://www.dwrcymru.com/en/Environment/Water-Resources/Water-Resource-Management-Plan.aspx
http://www.dwrcymru.com/en/Environment/Water-Resources/Water-Resource-Management-Plan.aspx


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
92  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 16  Utilities Provision 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicant should demonstrate, in liaison with 

key service providers and informed by a robust assessment of supply and demand, that utilities 

infrastructure (water supply (including private water supply), wastewater treatment, electricity, gas 

and telecommunications including IT infrastructure/broadband) would not be adversely affected by 

disruption or the increased demand arising from the construction and operation of the power station, 

associated or related developments. 

Where the upgrade of existing, or provision of new, utilities infrastructure is required to address 

identified project related effects, this should be agreed with the relevant service provider and 

delivered in a timely manner to ensure that the upgrade or provision is executed to programme and 

that there would be no intermediate adverse impacts on existing provision, the natural environment 

or ecosystem services20. The project promoter and any other applicant shall explore opportunities 

to deliver co-ordinated investment in utilities provision, taking into account other major strategic 

investments on the Island. 

Careful consideration will need to be given to water supply and wastewater treatment infrastructure 

on the Island and the project promoter should undertake early discussions with Welsh Water to 

assess the potential impacts of power station and associated developments on water resources. 

The County Council will support proposals that enhance utilities provision on the Island (including 

telecommunications and IT infrastructure/broadband) for the benefit of its communities, economy 

and environment, subject to other guidance contained in this SPG, national planning policy and 

policies in the JLDP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20 Ecosystem services are defined by Defra as services provided by the natural environment that benefit people. These benefits include: 

resources for basic survival, such as clean air and water; a contribution to good physical and mental health, for example through access to 

green spaces, both urban and rural, and genetic resources for medicines; protection from hazards, through the regulation of our climate 

and water cycle; support for a strong and healthy economy, through raw materials for industry and agriculture, or through tourism and 

recreation; and social, cultural and educational benefits, and wellbeing and inspiration from interaction with nature. For further information, 

see https://www.gov.uk/ecosystems-services.

Page 255

http://www.gov.uk/ecosystems-services


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
93  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.8 Waste 

Sustainable Waste Management 

4.8.1 National and local planning policy and other plans and programmes at the European, national, 

regional and local level focus on the need to ensure that waste is managed in accordance with 

the waste hierarchy and proximity principle. Specifically, the Wylfa Newydd Project should 

support the delivery of Towards Zero Waste, the overarching waste strategy for Wales, and 

its supporting sector plans, the overall aim of which is to produce no residual waste by 2050. 

4.8.2 There is a need to ensure that adequate and appropriately sited/designed facilities are in place 

to manage waste arising from the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, 

including any associated and related developments. JLDP Policy PS 5: Sustainable 

Development sets the overarching principle to reduce waste whilst PCYFF 2: Development 

Criteria requires appropriate waste management provision within all development. 

4.8.3 Waste management related to the Wylfa Newydd Project can be split into four discrete 

categories: municipal (i.e. from households); commercial and industrial; construction and 

demolition; and nuclear (radioactive). As the Waste Collection and Disposal Authority, the 

County Council has a statutory duty to collect household waste from all domestic properties 

on the Island, which will also encompass the domestic waste associated with the construction 

and operational workforce for the project. 

4.8.4 With regard to both commercial and industrial and construction and demolition wastes, the 

County Council does not have a statutory duty to provide facilities to deal with these waste 

types; it is the responsibility of the organisation generating the waste to ensure that it is 

disposed of or re-used/recycled in an appropriate and safe manner. There would appear to be 

good competition and capacity for the treatment and disposal of commercial waste (i.e. 

commercial and industrial as well as construction, demolition and excavation wastes), albeit 

that the disposal of non-recyclable arisings is likely to require facilities located off the Island.

Page 256

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/epq/waste_recycling/zerowaste/?lang=en


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
94  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP17  Managing Waste Sustainably 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other applicant, in liaison with the County 

Council, should ensure that sustainable waste management principles are incorporated into 

the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project. In line with national 

requirements, a Site Waste Management Plan must be provided for all sites to promote the 

sustainable management of waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy and reduce the 

transportation of waste during construction and operation. This should be in place prior to 

construction works commencing and conform to best practice guidance. 

The project promoter or any other applicant should (in liaison with the County Council and 

service providers) ensure the timely provision of any waste management infrastructure 

required to support the construction and operation of the main site, associated and related 

developments in line with the Site Waste Management Plan. A collection optimisation review 

should look at any changes in the distribution of population clusters and the degree to which 

this puts stress on the collection and disposal systems. Wherever possible, waste materials 

should be re-used on site. 

The project promoter or any other applicant shall demonstrate that the waste management 

activities associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project, either alone or in combination with 

other proposals, will not adversely affect the environment or human health. 

Page 257



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
95  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Nuclear Waste Storage 

4.8.5 The UK Government’s approach to nuclear waste disposal is that geological disposal will be 

preceded by safe and secure interim storage. NPS EN-6 (at para. 2.11.3) states that having 

considered the issue of radioactive waste, the Government is satisfied that effective 

arrangements will exist to manage and dispose of the waste that will be produced from new 

nuclear power stations and that the Planning Inspectorate should not consider this further. 

However, proposals for waste management facilities (such as interim storage) that either form 

part of the development of a new nuclear power station or constitute associated development 

should be considered and the County Council therefore considers it essential that appropriate 

guidance is provided in this SPG in respect of interim waste storage facilities. 

4.8.6 The proposals for the Wylfa Newydd Project are likely to include some interim storage facilities 

for the treatment and storage of radioactive waste. In this respect, Strategic Policy PS9: Wylfa 

Newydd and Related Development of the JLDP sets out that any such proposal on the Wylfa 

Newydd site (outside a DCO) would need to demonstrate that the environmental, social and 

economic benefits outweigh any negative impacts. 

4.8.7 Further policy is provided by JLDP Policy GWA3: Radioactive Waste Management. This policy 

states that the County Council will support facilities for the storage / management of 

radioactive waste generated at Wylfa Newydd providing certain criteria are met. These criteria 

include a requirement for consistency with national strategies and policies for managing 

radioactive waste, that social, economic and environmental health assessments justify the 

waste being dealt with at the proposed location and that facilities minimise adverse 

environmental impacts. 

4.8.8 There are often negative perceptions associated with nuclear waste storage facilities and 

uncertainty around the timescale of the required storage. The project promoter or any other 

applicant will need to demonstrate that the benefits of such facilities outweigh any negative 

impacts. 

4.8.9 It should be clearly understood that nothing in this SPG is intended to address the question of 

the long term geological disposal of higher activity waste as that term is used in NPS EN-6 

(paragraph 2.11.2) i.e. spent fuel and intermediate level waste. The consenting of such a 

facility would be dealt with entirely separately from the Wylfa Newydd Project.

Page 258



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
96  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 18  Nuclear Waste Storage Facilities 

The County Council will consider proposals relating to the interim storage of nuclear waste 

on their individual merits. They should be fully justified, taking into account reasonable 

alternatives. When developing such proposals, the Wylfa Newydd project promoter should 

ensure that any potentially adverse socio-economic and environmental impacts associated 

with the construction and operation of nuclear waste storage facilities are outweighed by 

the benefits. More specifically, the County Council requires the project promoter to: 

i. Identify and assess the potential effects of nuclear waste storage including 

radiological risks; 

ii. Fully engage with the Island’s communities and other key stakeholders in developing 

proposals for nuclear waste storage; 

iii. Implement mitigation and/or compensation measures agreed with the County 

Council, where the potential for adverse impacts on local communities, the economy 

or the environment are identified; 

iv. Set out appropriate measures for the decommissioning and site restoration of interim 

waste storage facilities if this will take place within a timescale that is understood at 

the time the DCO is made; 

v. Where the timescale for decommissioning is unknown, provide a commitment (at 

the time an application is made) to supply the details of the measures for 

decommissioning and site restoration at a time agreed in discussion between the 

relevant parties. 

 

4.9 Climate Change 

Climate Change Mitigation 

4.9.1 Climate change is a key policy consideration, with increasing influence in frameworks and 

national targets. The Welsh Government21 has committed Wales to reducing greenhouse gas 

emissions by 3% year on year, in addition to a 40% reduction by 2020 (against a 1990 

baseline). The Environment (Wales) Act 201622 provides Welsh Ministers with the powers to 

put in place statutory emission reduction targets, including at least an 80% reduction in 

emissions by 2050 and carbon budgeting to support their delivery. 

21   As set out in ’One Wales: One Planet: The Sustainable Development Scheme of the Welsh Assembly Government’ (Welsh Government, 

2009). 

22  http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/3/contents

Page 259

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/3/contents


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
97  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.9.2 As energy generation is a key source of greenhouse gas emissions, low carbon energy can 

help meet national greenhouse gas emission targets and mitigate climate change. Low carbon 

energy generation is supported by national (UK) planning policy including NPS EN-1, which 

highlights the importance of large scale deployment of renewables, new nuclear capacity and 

carbon capture and storage, as well as Planning Policy Wales and JLDP Strategic Policy PS6: 

Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of climate change. 

4.9.3 Although the UK Government defines nuclear power generation as a low carbon energy 

source, there would be potentially significant greenhouse gas emissions associated with the 

construction phase of the development which would contribute to climate change. Associated 

greenhouse gas emissions would include embedded carbon in goods and materials, as well 

as emissions from the transport of materials and personnel to and from the main Wylfa 

Newydd site. Sustainable design and re-use of materials can help reduce these greenhouse 

gas emissions. NPS EN-1 advises that sustainability is an important aspect in developments, 

which should be “efficient in the use of natural resources and energy used in construction and 

operation”. Due to the embedded carbon in building materials, transport emissions and energy 

use associated with construction and demolition activities, permanent rather than temporary 

structures are also viewed as more sustainable. 

4.9.4 The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Planning Policy Unit Renewable Energy Capacity 

Assessment (2016) identifies substantial further capacity for renewable energy on Anglesey, 

with tidal power having the greatest potential. Onshore wind (including micro-scale wind) and 

microgeneration (solar photovoltaic, solar thermal etc.) also have credible viability. In addition, 

identification of opportunity areas suitable for solar farm development has been undertaken in 

the Assessment of the potential for solar PV farms in Gwynedd and Anglesey (2016). 

Reflecting the findings of these assessments, there is likely to be scope for the inclusion of 

renewable energy generation as part of the Wylfa Newydd Project, either at the main site 

and/or as part of associated or related developments. 

4.9.5 There are further significant opportunities to act on climate change as part of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project including the promotion of low carbon travel (for example, reducing vehicle 

use and the use of eco-friendly vehicles) and supporting energy efficiency and reducing 

energy demand. These all have key roles in mitigating climate change and meeting targets. 

 

 

 

Page 260

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Examination-Documents/DA020b.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Examination-Documents/DA020b.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
98  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 19   Mitigating Climate Change 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any otherapplicant should seek to minimise the 

contribution of any development to climate change in line with JLDP Policy PS 6; including 

through the preparation and implementation of a Carbon Management Plan. 

Proposals should incorporate measures to enhance sustainable design and construction 

including: 

i. The re-use of buildings and materials, including for the applicant, those at the 

existing Magnox nuclear power station; 

ii. The use of sustainably sourced construction materials

 with low embedded carbon; 

iii. The use of local and regional materials to reduce the need to travel; 

iv. Maximising the use of Park & Ride and Park & Share facilities and the consolidation 

of loads to reduce vehicle movements; 

v. Incorporation of energy efficiency measures in the layout and design of new 

buildings; 

vi. Retrofitting of existing buildings to enhance energy efficiency, where appropriate; 

vii. Facilities which encourage the re-use and recycling of wastes; and 

viii. The use of water efficient products and design. 

In order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions associated with energy use, proposals should 

incorporate on-site renewable energy provision where viable (or, where not viable, 

contributions to reduce emissions off-site will be required). 

Proposals should seek to enhance sustainable travel in order to reduce associated 

greenhouse emissions (see GP15). 

All planning applications for related development will be required to demonstrate how the 

Carbon Management Plan will be delivered by the proposed development. 

 

Climate Change Adaptation 

4.9.6 The Wylfa Newydd Project is also faced by threats from climate change, particularly flood risk 

and damage to infrastructure from rising sea levels, coastal change, temperature rises and 

changing rainfall patterns. The northern side of the Island, where the proposed main site is 

located, is identified as having limited flood risk compared to the other parts of the coast. There 

are flood defences on the western frontage and current coastal flood risk to the local area is 

predominantly from waves overtopping the defended section. NPS EN-6 Volume II includes 

advice from the Environment Agency regarding flood risk at the Wylfa site, specifying that it 

Page 261



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
99  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

‘could be protected against flood risk throughout its operational lifetime’ due to the cliff top 

location. The more recent West of Wales Shoreline Management Plan 2 (SMP2) (2012) states 

that the risk of overtopping the existing flood defences will increase with sea level rise. The 

SMP recommends that existing defences will require monitoring in the future, but that the 

defences are unlikely to fail over the 100 year period. The Western Wales Flood Risk 

Management Plan (2015) notes that current flood risk across the Island is relatively low. 

4.9.7 Whilst flood risk at the main site is considered to be limited, the CFMP highlights that there is 

currently localised river flooding across Anglesey, with severe tidally-influenced flooding in 

some areas. Additionally, there is evidence of surface water and sewer flooding on the Island. 

On Anglesey, there are some 1,000-2,500 properties identified with ‘significant’ likelihood of 

flooding (defined as more than a 1 in 75 (1.3%) annual chance of flooding)), which is forecast 

to rise across the next century due to the effects of climate change (unless preventative action 

is taken). 

4.9.8 In accordance with NPS EN-6, the main Wylfa Newydd site must be resilient to climate 

change. Climate change adaptation is also a key consideration for related developments. 

Planning Policy Wales, TAN15: Development and Flood Risk and the JLDP seek to locate 

development away from flood risk areas and ensure that new development is able to withstand 

the effects of climate change. 

4.9.9 Alongside location, layout and design measures, there are expected to be opportunities for 

the project promoter or any other applicant to contribute to flood risk infrastructure proposals, 

either at the main site or elsewhere on the Island. This may include monitoring and potential 

raising of 2km of flood defences along the north coast of Anglesey (as detailed in SMP2); 

actions to prevent flooding of towns, villages and transport infrastructure; management of local 

surface and sewer flooding; and/or involvement in potential flood warning schemes.

Page 262

http://www.westofwalessmp.org/content.asp?nav=23&amp;parent_directory_id=10
https://naturalresources.wales/media/675146/final_frmp_-western-wales_pk26b82.pdf
https://naturalresources.wales/media/675146/final_frmp_-western-wales_pk26b82.pdf
https://naturalresources.wales/media/675146/final_frmp_-western-wales_pk26b82.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/publications/040701tan15en.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
100  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 20   Adapting to Climate Change 

In accordance with JLDP Policy PS6, the Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other 

applicant should minimise the impacts of climate change on the main site, associated and 

related developments through the incorporation of appropriate design, layout and building 

methods that will withstand the effects of climate change, such as rising temperatures and 

more extreme weather events. This should include the implementation of Sustainable 

Drainage Systems to manage surface water and reduce flood risk. 

To increase resilience, vulnerable associated and related developments including 

construction worker accommodation should be located away from flood risk areas. Where 

essential development is located in areas of flood risk, it should be designed so as to remain 

operational when flooding occurs and compensatory flood storage should be provided. Such 

proposals should also be accompanied by flood warning and evacuation plans. 

The project promoter and any other applicant shall contribute towards enhanced/new flood 

risk management infrastructure and solutions where they are required to safeguard project 

proposals from the long term effects of climate change. Any proposals must also align with 

other relevant strategies for climate change adaptation and reduction in flood risk including 

the West of Wales Shoreline Management Plan 2 and be informed by consultation with 

relevant bodies including the County Council, Natural Resources Wales and the Marine 

Management Organisation. 

Page 263



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
101  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.10 Natural Environment 

Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Landscape 

4.10.1 The Isle of Anglesey has a rich and varied natural environment across its terrestrial, marine 

and coastal areas. Almost the entire coastline of Anglesey is designated as an AONB due to 

the variety of fine coastal landscapes, coinciding with stretches of Heritage Coast. Parts of the 

AONB lie within the proposed main Wylfa New Nuclear Build site whilst the Heritage Coast is 

in close proximity. 

4.10.2 The Island contains important biodiversity and geodiversity assets, as demonstrated by the 

presence of a large number of European and nationally designated sites. Sites of European 

importance are designated to conserve natural habitats and species of wildlife, which are rare, 

endangered or vulnerable in the European Community. In the UK, these form part of the 

‘Natura 2000’ network of sites protected under the EC Habitats Directive (1992). European 

sites across the Island include eight Special Areas of Conservation (SACs), three Special 

Protection Areas (SPAs) and one Ramsar. The proposed main site is located near two 

European designated sites; Cemlyn Bay SAC and the Anglesey Terns SPA. The Anglesey 

Terns SPA comprises three separate areas of importance for four species of breeding terns. 

The North Anglesey Marine Candidate Special Area of Conservation (cSAC), has been 

identified as an area of importance for the protection of the harbour porpoise which also 

required consideration. 

4.10.3 Tre’r Gof Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), a rich-fen wetland habitat vulnerable to 

changes to water quality or quantity, is also located within the Wylfa Newydd New Nuclear 

Build site boundary Cae Gwyn SSSI is also within close proximity to the Wylfa Newydd Site 

which needs consideration. 

4.10.4 The Isle of Anglesey is a UNESCO endorsed geopark, named GeoMôn. A Geopark is a 

territory with a geological heritage of European significance and a sustainable development 

strategy with a strong management structure. It aims to protect geodiversity, promote 

geological heritage to the general public and support sustainable economic development of 

Geopark territories, primarily through the development of geological tourism. 

4.10.5 European and nationally designated sites on Anglesey are shown in Figure 4.2.

Page 264



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
102  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 4.2 European and National Designations on Anglesey 

 

4.10.6 National and local planning policy including JLDP Strategic Policy PS19 Conserving and 

Where Appropriate Enhancing the Natural Environmentas well as other plans and 

programmes at the European, national and local level, focus on the established principle of 

protection for the natural environment. There is also a clear recognition of the inter-relationship 

between environmental protection and enhancement and other key issues such as climate 

change, health, recreation, tourism and economic development. This is reflected in the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016 which sets out the measures to be implemented to manage 

natural resources in a sustainable way. The Act also includes for new a biodiversity duty which 

enhances the current requirements of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 

2006 (NERC Act) and places a duty on public authorities to report on the actions they have 

taken to improve biodiversity and promote ecosystem resilience. 

4.10.7 The natural environment is a key consideration for the power station at Wylfa and associated 

and related developments. The Wylfa Newydd Project has the potential to both affect, and be 

affected by, environmental conditions on Anglesey either alone or in combination with other 

major development proposals including, for example, electricity transmission infrastructure. 

The County Council will seek to ensure that any potentially adverse impacts on the Island’s 

Page 265



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
103  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

natural environment are avoided or, where this is not possible, mitigated or compensated. The 

County Council also expects the project promoter or any other applicant to seek opportunities 

to enhance the Island’s habitats, biodiversity and landscapes aligned with the actions 

contained in other relevant plans and programmes such as ‘Working for the Wealth of Wildlife: 

Anglesey’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan’, the ‘Môn Menai Coastal Action Plan’ (2008) and 

‘Anglesey AONB Management Plan’ (2015) in order to ensure an integrated approach to the 

management of the Island’s natural environment. 

GP 21  Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other applicant should seek to ensure that the 

Island’s unique and distinctive natural environment is conserved and, wherever possible, 

enhanced. In particular, the County Council requires the project promoter or any other 

applicant to demonstrate that the proposal, either alone or in combination with other 

proposals such as electricity transmission infrastructure, would not have unacceptable 

adverse impacts on: 

i. The integrity of Natura 2000 sites such as Cemlyn Bay Special Area of Conservation 

and the Anglesey Terns SPA; 

ii. The condition of Sites of Special Scientific Interest; 

iii. Species protected by European and/or national legislation; 

iv. Key habitats and species, including those identified in the Anglesey Local 

Biodiversity Action Plan; 

v. The ecological functionality of nature conservation sites and their connectivity with 

the wider landscape; 

vi. Regionally Important Geological and Geomorphological Sites and the Geopark 

status of parts of Anglesey; 

vii. Important landscapes including the Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

and Heritage Coast; 

viii. Local landscape character with reference to Special Landscape Areas and 

Landscape Character Areas; 

ix. Sites of Regional or Local Importance (in accordance with JLDP Policy  AMG6) 

x. Seascape with reference to Seascape Character Areas; and 

xi. The Wales Coast Path. 

Where adverse impacts cannot be avoided, appropriate mitigation and/or compensation 

measures will require to be implemented. These measures should take into account 

Page 266

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/business/regeneration-and-investment/increasing-the-economic-benefit-of-the-mn-menai-coastan-action-plan/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/w/x/m/Anglesey-AONB-Management-Plan-2015_20.pdf
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/w/x/m/Anglesey-AONB-Management-Plan-2015_20.pdf


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
104  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

guidance and actions contained in relevant existing and emerging plans and programmes 

and should be agreed with the County Council, Natural Resources Wales and other bodies 

as appropriate. Possible mitigation and compensation measures may include: 

xii. Minimising disturbance during the construction or operation of the main Wylfa 

Newydd site, associated and related developments, taking into account best 

practice; 

xiii. Minimising the area of land required to facilitate construction; 

xiv. Maximising the use of previously developed land and minimising the loss of the best 

and most versatile agricultural land; 

xv. Remediation of contaminated land; 

xvi. The adoption of high quality design principles; 

xvii. Minimising the release of potentially polluting substances to air, water or land 

 including through the adoption of Environmental Management Plans; 

xviii. Restoration of habitats following the completion of construction works; 

xix. On or off-site habitat creation or enhancement, or other conservation measures to 

compensate for temporary or residual effects arising from the Wylfa Newydd Project; 

and 

xx. Landscaping schemes and provision of green space. 

Wherever possible, the County Council will expect the applicant to explore opportunities to 

enhance the Island’s natural environment and ecosystem services including through the 

provision or restoration of green and blue networks or infrastructure. 

Page 267



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
105  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The Water Environment 

4.10.8 Natural Resources Wales’ update to the River Basin Management Plan for the Western Wales 

River Basin District 2015-21 (2015) noted that within the Anglesey management catchment, 

6% of surface water bodies are at high overall classification status, 37% are at good status 

and 57% are at moderate overall status. Whilst there are no water bodies at poor or bad overall 

status, there are a number of river stretches where the quality of water needs to be significantly 

improved. Key challenges to surface water quality including: diffuse pollution from agricultural 

activities; diffuse pollution from historical mines; physical modification of water bodies; point 

source pollution from water industry sewage works; and acidification. The overall standard of 

bathing water around the Anglesey coastline, meanwhile, is excellent. Monitoring of the quality 

of designated bathing waters in 2016 indicated that 92% of Anglesey’s beaches monitored 

had ‘excellent' water quality. Only one beach (Cemaes) achieved 'poor’ water quality 

assessment.23 

4.10.9 The Welsh Government has defined a policy of Integrated Coastal Zone Management which 

encourages all organisations with an interest in the coastline of Wales to work together to 

formulate policies and plans that will lead to vibrant, economically successful and sustainable 

communities around the coastline of Wales. Shoreline Management Plans (SMPs) provide 

key information to inform the statutory planning process. The emerging National Marine Plan 

for Wales also seeks to reinforce an integrated, evidenced and plan-led approach to the 

sustainable development and use of the Welsh marine area, reinforcing the Welsh 

Government’s commitment to the development of Wylfa Newydd. JLDP Policy AMG 4: Coastal 

Protection sets a number of criteria which proposals for development along the coast to be 

assessed against; recognising the coast is a unique and important resource for the Island 

environmentally, socially and economically whilst Strategic Policy PS 5: Sustaianble 

Development sets the overarching policy principle to reduce effects on water quality. 

4.10.10 The Wylfa Newydd Project has the potential to affect the Island’s river and coastal water 

quality, habitats and geomorphology during construction (for example, due to surface water 

runoff from construction sites or increased wastewater associated with an influx of construction 

workers) and operation (for example, due to discharges of cooling water to the sea). The 

project will also place increased demand on water supplies (recognised as a challenge in the 

River Basin Management Plan) which can affect water quality, particularly given the forecast 

future water supply demand deficit in the area. The project promoter should therefore 

demonstrate that the construction and operation of the power station, associated and related  

 

23 Natural Resources Wales data. Available at http://environment.data.gov.uk/wales/bathing-waters/profiles/

Page 268

http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/125095.aspx
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/125095.aspx
http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/125095.aspx
http://environment.data.gov.uk/wales/bathing-waters/profiles/


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
106  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

developments would not adversely affect water quality, working in partnership with those 

bodies involved in the management of water resources and coastal communities. 

GP 22   Conserving the Water Environment 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicant will be required to demonstrate 

that the construction and operation of the power station, associated and related 

developments, either alone or in combination with other proposals, would not have an 

adverse impact on water quality, coastal habitats or features, riparian habitats and aquatic 

species (including migratory fish populations) or commercial and recreational users. 

Where the potential for adverse impacts are identified and cannot be avoided, measures 

should be implemented to mitigate these impacts. Such measures could include: 

i. Surface water runoff control from construction sites and protection of the receiving 

environment, including soils/water pathways through the incorporation of 

Sustainable Drainage Systems into the design of new developments; 

ii. Adoption of Best Available Techniques to address impacts associated with 

discharges such as cooling waters from the nuclear power station; 

iii. The implementation of Environmental Management Plans; 

iv. Implementing water efficiency measures to reduce water demand arising from new 

developments;  

v. Adopt best practise guidance to help secure the integrity of designated 

geomorphological or hydrologically dependant features; and, 

vi. Securing the provision of appropriate water supply and wastewater infrastructure to 

meet demand arising from the construction and operation of the main site, 

associated and related developments, in accordance with GP15. 

Proposals should progress, where relevant, the actions of the Western Wales River Basin 

Management Plan (2015) including those in the Ynys Môn Management Catchment 

Summary and take full account of coastal change and the policies of the West of Wales 

Shoreline Management Plan (2012) (in accordance with GP20). The applicant will also be 

expected to work in partnership with Natural Resources Wales, Welsh Water and coastal 

communities as appropriate to support the objectives of the Integrated Coastal Zone 

Management Strategy for Wales (2007) and emerging National Marine Plan. 

Page 269



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
107  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

4.11 Historic Environment 

4.11.1 Anglesey has a rich heritage that includes a range of designated cultural heritage assets and 

sites that contribute significantly to the overall character of the cultural landscape, and 

importantly provide a key source of tourist interest and revenue from the visiting public. 

Designated cultural heritage assets on Anglesey are shown in Figure 4.3 and in the area of 

the main site include the registered Cestyll Garden, which lies immediately to the west of the 

site boundary, the Bronze Age standing stones Scheduled Monument 1km to the south, three 

Grade II listed buildings in Cafnan to the west of the site, and listed buildings around Cemaes. 

Figure 4.3 Anglesey’s Designated Cultural Heritage Assets 

 

4.11.2 The Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 provides new legislation to manage change in the 

historic environment, replacing some of the UK legislative framework set out in the Ancient 

Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990. These provisions are reflected in Planning Policy Wales and 

TAN 24: The Historic Environment, and will be incorporated within a range of national 

guidance to be prepared by Cadw, the Welsh Government’s historic environment division. 

JLDP Policy PS 20: Preserving and Where Appropriate Enhancing Heritage Assets sets out 

Page 270



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
108  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

the County Council’s strategic planning approach to conserving and enhancing the historic 

environment. The County Council has a duty in exercising its planning functions to preserve 

and enhance the area’s cultural and historic environment and in accordance with national 

policy and the JLDP, the County Council will therefore expect the applicant to ensure that the 

Island’s designated and non-designated assets are conserved and enhanced. 

GP23  Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment 

The applicant will be required to seek to ensure that the Island’s designated cultural heritage 

assets and their settings (including important views to and from sites/features) are 

conserved and where appropriate enhanced in accordance with JLDP PS 20. These assets 

include: 

 World Heritage Sites; 

 Scheduled Monuments and other nationally significant archaeological remains; 

 Listed Buildings; 

 Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and Gardens; 

 Conservation Areas; 

 Candidate Registered Battlefields; and 

 Buildings of architectural/ historic/ cultural merit which are not designated or 

protected. 

All of the Island’s cultural heritage assets, including those that are undesignated and of 

regional or local significance, are recorded on the regional Historic Environment Record 

(HER). The dynamic nature of the archaeological resource means that new sites are 

constantly discovered and added to the record. The applicant should assess the 

archaeological potential of areas affected by development proposals to inform a Historic 

Environment Strategy, in accordance with Planning Policy Wales (Chapter 6) and TAN 24: 

The Historic Environment. 

The registered garden at Cestyll is in very close proximity to the main site and requires 

specific and detailed consideration. 

The County Council requires that the DCO application be accompanied by an assessment 

of historic environment impacts (including cumulative effects), the scope of which should be 

agreed with the County Council in advance. A staged programme of archaeological work 

should be implemented to ensure that all archaeological remains impacted upon by 

development proposals will be subject to an appropriate level of investigation and recording. 

The findings of such investigations should be deposited with the regional HER and 

disseminated to the wider community. Related development planning applications may also 

be required to include for an assessment of historic environment impacts depending upon 

the location, scale and type of development proposed. 

Page 271



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
109  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The applicant should explore opportunities, in liaison with the County Council, Cadw and 

other relevant bodies, to enhance the Island’s cultural heritage assets including through the 

sympathetic renovation and re-use of buildings identified as being at risk or by improving 

public access to assets. Opportunities for interpretation, presentation, outreach and 

education should be explored on site and through liaison with local schools and museums. 

 

4.12 Facilitating Development 

Planning Obligations 

4.12.1 The Wylfa Newydd Project represents an unprecedented opportunity to deliver sustainable 

long-term benefits to the socio-economic fabric of the Island and the North Wales region. 

However, to realise the full benefit of this investment, and to ensure that any adverse impacts 

on the Island’s unique environment and communities are avoided, appropriate mitigation and 

compensation measures will need to be put in place. 

4.12.2 The County Council requires a comprehensive scheme of economic, community/social, 

environmental and safety measures to mitigate and compensate for any impacts of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. This scheme will take account of the needs of the Island’s businesses, 

communities and incoming workforce, its environment, heritage and culture. In accordance 

with the Planning Act 2008, NPS EN-1, Planning Policy Wales, JLDP and associated 

regulations and guidance, these measures would be delivered through planning permission 

conditions, planning obligations, DCO requirements, and development consent obligations as 

appropriate. 

4.12.3 Reflecting the requirement within JLDP Strategic Policy PS2: Infrastructure and Developer 

Contribtuions that new development ensures the availability of sufficient provision of essential 

infrastructure, or that infrastructure is provided in a timely manner to support development, the 

range of potential contributions identified within JLDP Policy ISA1: Infrastructure Provision and 

the guidance contained in this SPG, such measures may include: 

 Investment in educational facilities and providers and development of local employment 

and training initiatives (see GP1 and GP2); 

 Measures and/or contributions to offset any adverse impacts on existing businesses on 

the Island and inward investment (see GP3); 

 Destination marketing, provision of funding for tourism facilities, monitoring and other 

measures designed to avoid, and compensate for, adverse effects on tourism including 

any negative visitor perceptions of the Wylfa Newydd Project (see GP5); 

Page 272



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
110  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Co-ordinated contributions towards community facilities, services and infrastructure 

including telecommunications & IT communications, health care and recreational facilities 

to meet project and local needs and promote the quality of life of affected communities 

(see GP6, GP8 and GP9a and GP9b); 

 Provision of adequate emergency service resources and resilience to cover the potential 

for increased incidents at Wylfa Newydd Project sites and on the transport network (see 

GP6 and GP7); 

 Mitigation/compensation to address unquantifiable and/or residual adverse impacts on 

health, well-being and residential amenity and the provision of information on health risks 

to local residents, communities, visitors and businesses to address concerns associated 

with the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project (see GP7); 

 Specific measures to promote community cohesion, minimise crime and disorder and 

promote community safety, including active provision for the leisure time of workers (for 

example, sport and recreation), the implementation of a Community Safety Action Plan, 

Code of Conduct for workers, and contributions towards the CCTV network (see GP9a); 

 Measures and/or contributions to address any adverse impacts on host communities and 

other settlements as places to live, work and learn, including public realm improvements 

and contributions to meeting strategic regeneration objectives (see GP9a and GP9b); 

 A holistic and co-ordinated range of measures, informed by a Construction Worker 

Accommodation Management Strategy, to mitigate and compensate for adverse impacts 

on the local housing market and tourism accommodation. This may include the provision 

of, and contributions towards, housing (including affordable housing), a Workers 

Accommodation Management Service and Housing Fund (see GP10a, GP10b, GP11 and 

GP12); 

 Mitigation of adverse impacts on Welsh language and culture through, for example, 

language induction and lessons for construction and operational workers and their families 

to include the funding of Welsh Language Immersion teaching staff and the provision of 

additional places in Welsh language schools and nurseries (see GP14); 

 Provision of, and contributions towards, transport infrastructure and services to address 

adverse impacts on existing transport facilities arising from the Wylfa Newydd Project and 

to maintain and enhance connectivity (see GP15); 

 Provision of, and contributions towards, essential infrastructure necessary to support the 

Wylfa Newydd Project, including water supply, waste water treatment, electricity, gas, 

telecommunications, IT and broadband connectivity and waste management (see GP16 

and GP17); 

Page 273



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
111  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Measures to minimise carbon emissions and to enable local climate change mitigation and 

adaptation (see GP19 and GP20); 

 Protection of sites of international, national and local importance for landscape, ecology, 

geology, archaeology and built heritage, together with a range of measures that offset, 

mitigate and compensate for the residual environmental harm resulting from the Wylfa 

Newydd Project, including contributions for the restoration or provision of green / blue 

infrastructure networks or infrastructure (see GP21, GP22 and GP23); 

 Service level agreements to resource the County Council’s involvement in the 

management, implementation and monitoring of conditions, requirements, obligations and 

provision of mitigation (see GP26). 

4.12.4 The County Council considers that the planning obligations for the Wylfa Newydd Project in 

its entirety should themselves fully mitigate and compensate for the resultant impacts. The 

County Council will seek to agree sums for a Community Resilience  Fund (CRF) to mitigate 

and/or compensate for the impacts of the project that cannot be addressed by other means, 

and to administer such a Fund. 

4.12.5 Outside and completely separate from the planning process, the County Council is also 

committed to securing Community Benefit Contributions (CBCs) for Anglesey’s communities 

and citizens from all major developments on the Island, including the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

This is to ensure that communities benefit directly from the use of their local resources and 

are compensated for hosting such development in the national interest. CBCs are widely 

recognised as a legitimate mechanism to support the long term sustainability, quality of life 

and well-being of the Island and its communities. The County Council has developed a CBC 

Strategy24 to outline how voluntary CBCs can be utilised to meet the specific needs of 

Anglesey and its communities. 

4.12.6 As noted, CBCs are completely separate and distinct from the formal planning process. They 

are not a mechanism to make a development acceptable in planning terms and CBCs are not 

taken into account when determining an application for planning consent. It follows that the 

negotiation of such CBCs in respect of the Wylfa Newydd Project will play no part in the 

assessment of planning merits. 

 

 

24 See http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/documents/s500000684/Cyfraniadau%20Budd%20Cymunedol.pdf?LLL=0.

Page 274

http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/documents/s500000684/Cyfraniadau%20Budd%20Cymunedol.pdf?LLL=0


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
112  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 24 Planning Obligations 

The County Council will seek to ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project avoids, minimises 

and mitigates (including, where appropriate, compensates for) adverse impacts during the 

construction and operational phases of the main site, associated and related developments. 

The County Council will seek to secure a comprehensive set of measures and benefits 

delivered through obligations, requirements and conditions that are consistent with the 

relevant NPSs, national planning policy, JLDP, the advice and objectives as set out in this 

SPG and other strategies and policies of the County Council. 

In accordance with the JLDP Policies PS2 and ISA1, the Wylfa Newydd project promoter 

should seek to agree with the County Council, in advance of the submission of a DCO and 

planning applications for related developments, the necessary legally enforceable 

measures to avoid, minimise and compensate for harm during the construction, operation 

and legacy transformation phases. 

Applications submitted outside of the DCO under the Town and Country Planning Act 

(TCPA) will need to be considered by the County Council, in the context of the totality of 

the Wylfa Newydd Project rather than as standalone projects in order to properly assess 

the cumulative impacts. For proposals made by the project promoter, mitigation, including 

Section 106 obligations relating to these consents, will be viewed as part of a 

comprehensive package of mitigations for the overall project, including the main DCO 

consent and this will be taken into account in assessing the cumulative impact. Visibility of 

the total Section 106 package, in the form of the overall make-up and quantum, will 

therefore be required by the County Council when considering these applications. 

Reflecting the guidance contained in this SPG (see GP26), obligations should recognise the 

importance of on-going monitoring of impacts and effects resulting from the Wylfa Newydd 

Project. Mitigation and compensation measures may need to be adjusted during the course 

of project delivery in order to off-set and deal with these impacts and effects. 

Compensation and mitigation should relate, whether directly or indirectly, actual or 

perceived, to the impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project, including the potential for adverse 

impacts on existing businesses and inward investment, tourism, the local housing market, 

the environment, the health and well-being of communities and Welsh language and culture. 

The provision of facilities such as community infrastructure necessary to support the 

construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, which would not otherwise be 

provided, will also be required. The applicant should take full account of existing initiatives, 

plans and strategies on the Island and engage effectively with local communities, the 

County Council and other organisations as appropriate, at the pre-application stage, to 

Page 275



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
113  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

identify appropriate compensation and mitigation for the adverse impacts of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. 

Measures, projects and services to enhance the medium and long term well-being, quality 

of life and sustainability of the communities affected will be encouraged. 

 

Use of Council Powers 

4.12.7 The County Council has a range of statutory powers which it may be able to exercise to 

facilitate the construction, maintenance, operation and decommissioning of the Wylfa Newydd 

Project including the associated and related developments. 

4.12.8 The applicant should approach the County Council when it is considered appropriate that the 

Council utilise a statutory power to facilitate the development and, without which, the 

implementation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, or its implementation timetable, would stall or 

fail. 

4.12.9 The powers listed below are non-exhaustive and are intended to be indicative of the range of 

powers the County Council may be able to exercise to facilitate the main Project site and 

associated developments. Such powers include, but are not limited to: 

 Compulsory purchase powers; 

 Powers to grant or revoke planning permission or any other relevant power under the Town 

and Country Planning regime; 

 Powers under the Council's Highways functions; and 

 Analogous powers relating to any of the above. 

4.12.10 Compulsory purchase and analogous powers are important tools exercisable by the County 

Council as a means of assembling the land or rights required to help deliver the Wylfa Newydd 

Project. Used properly, they can contribute towards effective and efficient urban and rural 

regeneration, the revitalisation of communities and the promotion of the socio-economic 

interests of the County and the wider North Wales region. 

4.12.11 In general, an order or proposal will be considered to be analogous to a compulsory 

purchase order if its making or confirmation takes away from the objector some right or 

interest in land for which the statute gives them a right to compensation. 

4.12.12 There is an expectation that any statutory power utilised by the County Council should be 

cost neutral to the Council. The party seeking support should indemnify the Council against 

any costs incurred by the Council in exercising its statutory powers to assist in the facilitation 

Page 276



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
114  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

of the development of the project and associated developments. This will include, but is not 

limited to, compensation for any land acquired and any legal or other associated costs. 

4.12.13 The County Council would only utilise its statutory powers in accordance with a clear legal 

justification, and in keeping with local, regional and national policy considerations in the 

public interest. The assessment of whether to exercise these powers will be conducted on a 

case-by-case basis and will be assessed against the objectives of this SPG and any other 

relevant national, regional and local policy. The County Council’s decision to exercise such 

powers will be at its sole discretion and subject to the usual legal safeguards. 

4.12.14 In the event that the County Council decides to utilise its statutory powers, these will be 

conducted in a transparent way, in accordance with recognised standards of good practice 

and will include appropriate stakeholder consultation. 

GP 25   Use of Council Powers 

To facilitate the development of the Wylfa Newydd Project, the County Council will consider 

the use of its statutory powers as long as the use of such powers are justified and in the 

public interest. Such powers include: 

 Compulsory purchase powers; 

 Powers to grant or revoke planning permission or any other relevant power under 

the Town and Country Planning regime; 

 Powers under the Council's Highways functions; and 

 Equivalent powers relating to any of the above. 

Should the County Council utilise any statutory power to facilitate the project or associated 

development, the project promoter and any other applicant shall pay all reasonable costs 

associated with the use of that statutory power. 

 

4.13 Implementation and Monitoring 

4.13.1 Given its scale and range of potential impacts, there may be a number of unforeseen effects 

that arise during the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project. It will also be 

important to ensure that any mitigation and compensation measures implemented as part of 

proposals are effective, taking into account future changes to social, economic and 

environmental conditions. Consistent with JLDP Policy PS10: Wylfa Newydd – Campus Style 

Temporary Accommodation for Construction Workers, which requires the monitoring of the full 

range of impacts arising from the project, the County Council will therefore seek to work with 

the project promoter and any other applicant to develop and implement arrangements to 

monitor the Wylfa Newydd Project and related development and to address unforeseen 

Page 277



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
115  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

adverse impacts should these arise. Monitoring is likely to include, but not be restricted, to the 

following: 

 The number of local people trained and up-skilled in programmes funded and/or partly 

funded by the project promoter including those previously employed by Magnox (GP1); 

 The proportion of the labour-force recruited from (home-based) together with the 

proportion of local businesses and suppliers employed on the project (GP2); 

 Annual visitor perception surveys to understand visitor numbers, trends and perceptions 

of the project and whether behaviours have altered as a result (GP5); 

 The noise, air quality and light levels experienced by sensitive receptors to include 

agreed ecological receptors, local residents and the local footpath and cycle network 

(GP7); 

 The type, number and location of properties used by construction workers, average 

rental and property prices within the local housing market and six monthly review of the 

programme for the phased construction and dismantling of the temporary on-site 

accommodation (GP10); 

 The number of empty properties brought back into use (residential and former 

commercial) (GP10); 

 Annual bedstock survey to gauge visitor behaviours and the type and location of tourism 

accommodation used (GP12); 

 Annual review of the achievement of measures agreed between the applicantand County 

Council in the any Welsh Language Strategy (GP14); 

 The volume and route taken by all commercial and private traffic associated with 

construction activities at the main site or at sites associated or related with it (GP15); and, 

 Monitoring of indiscriminate ‘fly-parking’ by construction workers in layby’s and other 

informal parking areas. Changes to the composition of populations of agreed key 

habitats/species or features such as those of nature conservation significance or a 

qualifying feature of a designated site. 

4.13.2 Section 7 of the JLDP presents the monitoring framework. This has been developed to capture 

evidence of the plan’s effectiveness following adoption and it contains a number of indicators 

relevant to the Wylfa Newydd Project. Arrangements for monitoring the impacts of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project should reflect the JLDP monitoring framework where appropriate to do so.

Page 278



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
116  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 26   Implementation and Monitoring 

The County Council will work with the project promoter and any other applicant to develop 

arrangements for monitoring the impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project and the outcomes of 

related mitigation/compensation. This will involve the following: 

 Development of a comprehensive evidence base, describing agreed baseline 

conditions from which change can be monitored and evaluated; 

 Preparation of a monitoring framework including key indicator sets and, where 

appropriate, targets informed by existing national, regional and local plans and 

programmes, including those supporting implementation of the JLDP; 

 Development of monitoring action plans which set out who will carry out monitoring, 

how, and the frequency with which it is to be carried out; 

 Agreement in respect of the form, content and frequency of monitoring reports; 

 Establishment of a protocol for addressing unforeseen effects such as adjustments 

to mitigation and compensation measures; and Service level agreements to 

resource the County Council’s involvement in the management and implementation 

of the monitoring framework will be sought where required, taking into account the 

scale of development. 

Page 279



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
117  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

Locational Guidance 

 

 

 

 

Page 280



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
118  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5 Locational Guidance 

5.1.1 It is important that a strategic approach is taken to the planning and consenting of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. The approach should reflect the JLDP and other legislation, policies, plans 

and programmes of the UK and Welsh Governments, the County Council and stakeholders. 

This will help to ensure that the project and associated and related developments help deliver 

sustainable development that aligns with the wider aspirations for the growth of Anglesey, 

integrates with the community, conserves and enhances the natural and built environment and 

supports delivery of the EIP. 

5.1.2 The overall Wylfa Newydd Project comprises enabling works as well as the main power station 

construction and off-site associated developments. Therefore, these initial enabling works, 

such as site preparation and clearance (SPC) works and on-line improvements to the A5025, 

are to be treated as the start of, and integral to, the Wylfa Newydd Project. The enabling works 

are not stand-alone projects but are a means by which the project will, in part, be delivered. 

This is borne out by the project promoter proposing to reinstate the site following completion 

of the SPC works should a decision be made not to proceed with the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

5.1.3 Given the above, applications submitted to the County Council under the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) will need to be made by the project promoter and considered 

by the County Council in the context of the totality of the project (see GP 25). Likewise, 

mitigation including Section 106 obligations relating to these consents will be viewed as the 

precursor to a comprehensive package of mitigations for the main DCO consent. Visibility of 

the total Section 106 package, in the form of the overall make-up and quantum, will be required 

by the County Council when considering these applications. 

5.1.4 This section of the SPG provides locational guidance, which is designed to inform, and guide 

proposals for, the main site and off-site associated and related development, in accordance 

with the County Council’s spatial strategy for future growth on Anglesey as set out in the JLDP. 

Guidance is provided with a view to avoiding or mitigating the adverse impacts and maximising 

the benefits associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project. The guidance is split into two sub-

sections based upon the geographical areas of ‘North Anglesey’ and the ‘Rest of Anglesey’. 

This spatial distinction reflects the expectation that impacts associated with the project will be 

felt most significantly in the north of the Island where the main nuclear power station site is 

located. Since the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa SPG was adopted in 2014, the project promoter 

has developed and refined their project proposals. The project proposals now include on-site 

temporary workers accommodation for up to 4,000 construction workers, which further 

exacerbates the impact on North Anglesey. 

Page 281



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
119  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.5 Guidance for North Anglesey therefore includes the County Council’s key development 

principles and objectives in relation to the construction and operation of a new nuclear power 

station at the proposed power station site at Wylfa; the construction and operational phases 

of the project lifecycle will give rise to both direct and indirect effects upon communities and 

the environment and in general, these effects are likely to be most significant within the 

communities which surround the main site and any off-site development associated with it. 

5.1.6 Within each of the two geographical areas, Areas of Search (AoS) have been identified. These 

are: 

 North Anglesey; 

 Main Wylfa Newydd Site; 

 Amlwch and Environs; 

 Cemaes and Environs; 

 A5025 Corridor; 

 Rest of Anglesey 

 Holyhead and Environs; 

 Llangefni and Environs; 

 A55/A5 Corridor; 

 Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland 

5.1.7 The areas defined as North Anglesey, Rest of Anglesey and the AoS are outlined in Figure 

5.1 opposite together with the main Wylfa Newydd site.

Page 282



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
120  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 5.1 Wylfa Newydd Main Site and Area of Search 

Page 283



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
121  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.8 Guidance for each geographical area, and for their associated AoS, is set out in the sections 

that follow. Broadly, the approach taken by the County Council is to direct development 

associated with/related to the Wylfa Newydd Project to the Island’s largest settlements and 

along key transport corridors in accordance with the principles of sustainable development 

and the spatial hierarchy as established by the JLDP. For each of the AoS, an overview of the 

range, type, scale and potential location of associated and related development that the 

County Council is minded to prefer in order to facilitate the project is provided. Opportunities 

and key issues that the County Council would expect the applicant to consider when preparing 

proposals for associated and related development in each AoS are also highlighted. Guidance 

that responds to these issues and opportunities is then set out in a series of ‘Guiding 

Principles’ (GPs). 

5.1.9 The County Council will use this guidance, alongside the project-wide guidance contained in 

Section 4 of this SPG and relevant UK, Wales and local legislation and planning policies, in 

preparing its Local Impact Report, to inform and underpin the County Council’s position during 

the Examination into the Wylfa Newydd Project and to assist decision-making in the 

determination of Town and Country Planning Act applications including for site preparation 

and other works which are proposed in advance of a DCO application. The extent to which 

the guiding principles are relevant to each application the County Council receives will vary 

and, by necessity given the likely variable scale and nature of the applications, will be 

determined on a case-by- case basis.

Page 284



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
122  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

North Anglesey 

 

 

 

 

Page 285



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
123  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1 North Anglesey 

Overview 

5.1.10 The area defined as North 

Anglesey comprises the eight 

electoral wards of Llanbadrig, 

Amlwch Port, Amlwch Rural, 

Mechell, Llaneilian, Molfre, 

Llannerch-y-medd and 

Llanfaethlu. This is consistent 

with the project promoter’s 

definition of North Anglesey. 

5.1.11 North Anglesey includes the 

site of the proposed Wylfa 

Newydd power station and almost all of the development that will be directly associated with 

it. As such, the majority of the potentially significant negative environmental, social and 

economic effects are likely to be experienced within this area and by the host communities. 

The potentially significant positive impacts of the project in terms of, for example, employment, 

skills and training are likely to be felt across a wider geography. 

5.1.12 North Anglesey includes the Town and Community Councils of Amlwch, Llanbadrig, Cylch y 

Garn, Mechell and Rhosybol and settlements range in size from the town of Amlwch (Urban 

Service Centre) to Local Service Centres; Local, Rural and Coastal Villages; and Clusters (as 

defined in the JLDP). In recent times, the single largest employer was the former Magnox 

power station (known also as Wylfa A). This ceased generation on the 30th December 2015 

and is about to enter a period of decommissioning. 

5.1.13 The area has a rich and varied environment, including the Anglesey Coast AONB and Parys 

Mountain. Designated nature conservation sites includes the Special Area of Conservation 

(SAC) of Cemlyn Bay and the Special Protection Areas (SPAs) of Anglesey Terns SPA. The 

SPA comprises three separate areas of importance for four species of breeding terns. The 

three areas are treated as a single site as a consequence of regular movement by birds 

between the component parts. North Anglesey also contains 19 Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest (SSSIs) some of which extend over separate land areas.  Historic assets include 

Cestyll Gardens, which is a registered Historic Garden, and the Amlwch, Amwlch Port, 

Cemaes and Llanfechell Conservation Areas. 

Page 286



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
124  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.14 Amlwch lies approximately 10 km from the main New Nuclear Build site and is identified as an 

Urban Service Centre within the JLDP and a Primary Key Settlement in the Wales Spatial 

Plan. As such, it represents the most appropriate location for new housing and employment 

uses in North Anglesey as well as for the provision of community services and facilities. In this 

context, it is anticipated that the town will become a popular location with construction workers 

as a place to live, stay, access services and facilities and relax. 

5.1.15 Cemaes sits beneath Amlwch in the settlement hierarchy and is classified in the JLDP as a 

Local Service Centre. It provides for the essential service needs of its own population and 

immediate rural catchment areas as well as some employment and retail opportunities and 

benefits from good accessibility by public transport to the higher order centres such as Amlwch 

and Holyhead. Reflecting this, the JLDP directs a moderate level of housing growth to Cemaes 

in order to meet local needs. However, given its close proximity to Wylfa (immediately adjacent 

the New Nuclear Build site boundary) it is envisaged that the impacts will be most acutely felt 

in Cemaes, Tregele and LLanfechell. 

5.1.16 The socio-economic profile of the North Anglesey, in terms of population, age, economic 

activity and education can be summarised as: 

 The area defined as North Anglesey is relatively populous and growing. The area is twice 

as densely populated than compared with Anglesey as a whole (2.2 and 1 person/ hectare 

respectively) and household sizes are larger. The population grew at twice the rate of 

Anglesey as whole between 2001 and 2011 (17% and 8% respectively); 

 The population is relatively aged. This is most significant in the 45 to 74 year age range 

which makes up 43.4% of the population compared to 40.6% for the Island as a whole and 

this is considerably higher than the average for Wales of 36.4%. A third of households in 

the area are occupied by pensioners; 

 Against a general improving trend, unemployment has fallen only slightly over the past two 

years. This has seen North Anglesey move from being comparable to the Welsh average 

to that of the poorer performing Island wards as a whole. As at 2016, unemployment rates 

were just over 3% which is approximately 1% above the national figure. 

 Self-employment is far more common in North Anglesey than compared to Island- wide 

and national trends and amounts to 22% of economically active residents (compared to 

18% for Anglesey and 14% for Wales as a whole). There is a greater prevalence of skilled 

workers (occupation groups 4 and 5) but a corresponding lack of residents working in 

managerial occupations (groups 1 to 3). 

Page 287



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
125  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Educational attainment in the area is lower than for the Island as a whole with a slightly 

higher proportion of residents being unqualified and a lower proportion with Level 4 

qualifications and above. 

5.1.17 Alone and in-combination with other planned developments, Wylfa Newydd has the potential 

to both affect, and be affected by, conditions in North Anglesey, whether they are 

environmental, social or economic. Consequently, neither the project nor any of the 

development associated with it can be considered in isolation. The County Council expects 

and requires an integrated approach to assessment, with consideration given to how all of the 

aspects of development can potentially affect the people, culture, environment and economy 

of North Anglesey. 

5.1.18 Section 4 of this SPG provides project-wide guidance that will help to ensure that the adverse 

effects of the Wylfa Newydd Project upon North Anglesey (and the Island as a whole) are 

avoided, minimised or compensated and that the benefits of the project are fully realised. This 

guidance should be taken into account by the project promoter and any other applicant in 

addition to the locational guidance and requirements contained within this section. 

Opportunities 

5.1.19 The Wylfa Newydd Project provides a significant opportunity to deliver economic development 

and regeneration within the settlements of North Anglesey, to improve the well-being of 

residents of all ages and, through proactive measures, enhance aspects of the built and 

natural environment. The County Council is committed to ensuring that the local communities 

of North Anglesey benefit from the opportunities presented by Wylfa Newydd. 

5.1.20 Experience from the implementation of the Hinkley Point C Project indicates strongly that 

demand for worker accommodation is likely to be felt more intensely within North Anglesey 

than compared to other parts of the Island and the wider North Wales region. The project 

promoter proposes to address a substantial element of this demand through the construction 

of up to 4,000 temporary bedspaces that will be located within a construction worker campus 

situated within the main site at Wylfa Head. Irrespective of whether this quantum of 

development is delivered, the project promoter anticipates that workers are also likely to seek 

accommodation in the local housing market and in tourism accommodation. For the residents 

and businesses of North Anglesey, the project therefore provides opportunities to support 

incomes and revenues (for example, through the letting of spare rooms and tourist 

accommodation and re-use of empty properties), promote appropriate new housing 

developments including affordable housing provision and generate increased spend in the 

local economy. 

Page 288



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
126  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.21 The influx of construction workers is likely to lead to increased demand for existing services 

and facilities such as schools and healthcare as well as for local infrastructure. The Wylfa 

Newydd Project presents an opportunity to secure investment in existing, and deliver new, 

facilities and infrastructure, particularly if insufficient capacity is made available in support of 

the main construction worker campus. Such investment will benefit the existing communities 

of the area and the County Council will expect new development to ensure sufficient and timely 

provision of essential infrastructure and facilities in line with JLDP Policies PS2: Infrastructure 

and Developer Contributions and Policy ISA1: Infrastructure Provision and GP9a/9b. 

5.1.22 The construction of the power station will provide new direct and indirect employment 

opportunities in the local economy. It may also attract inward investment, encourage new 

business start-ups and support the expansion of existing local companies. In this context, 

North Anglesey includes a number of sites safeguarded under JLDP Policy CYF 1: 

Safeguarding, Allocating and Reserving Land and Units for Employment Use for industrial and 

business development and which are available to accommodate this potential expansion of 

the local economy. These sites include the former Shell land north of Amlwch (C25), the Llwyn 

Onn Industrial Estate Amlwch (C26) and the Enterprise Zone site of the former site of Shell at 

Rhosgoch (C(wg)39), which is identified as a reserve employment site. 

5.1.23 Greater demand for jobs, accommodation and for community services, together with 

construction-related traffic, is likely to increase travel within the area. In response, the project 

promoter proposes significant off-line improvements to the A5025 south of the main site which 

will have the effect of bypassing the settlements of Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu and south of 

Tregele at Cefn Coch. These works should lead to local environmental improvements for the 

communities along this part of the highway network. North-east of the main site, between it 

and Amlwch, the County Council considers there to be additional opportunities to undertake 

improvements to the highway network in response to the greater demands placed upon it by 

the project and traffic movements associated with construction workers and the supply chain; 

this is in line with JLDP Policy TRA1: Transport Network Developments. 

5.1.24 In addition to the above, opportunities also exist to encourage walking, cycling and the use of 

public transport, either in association with the commute to work or as a recreational activity 

consistent with the requirements of JLDP Policy PS4: Sustainable Transport, Development 

and Accessibility. The significant realignment of the Wales Coastal Path, the wider public 

footpath network and the Sustrans cycling network provide opportunities for mitigation as well 

as enhancement. These signed routes provide vital parts of the network which attracts a 

significant number of visitors to the Island. 

Page 289



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
127  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.25 North Anglesey has an exceptional natural environment, built heritage and strong cultural 

identity evidenced by, for example, the AONB, the presence of registered parks and gardens 

and designated nature conservation sites. The area’s towns and villages and the surrounding 

countryside are also home to generations of Welsh speaking communities that attach a strong 

importance to place and which is intricately linked with its dramatic landscape and coastline. 

For similar reasons, the area is very popular with day trip and holiday visitors who are attracted 

to the tranquillity of the area and open air activities; the vast majority of whom return on a 

regular basis.25 The Wylfa Newydd Project provides opportunities to ensure that there is no 

net loss to biodiversity, the landscape, coastline and cultural heritage assets. Where loss is 

likely to occur, the applicant will be expected to deliver appropriate compensation and 

opportunities exist to enhance assets, locations or facilities elsewhere within the local area. 

There are also opportunities and a need to support and enhance the Welsh language and 

culture, to educate the arriving workforce to the language and culture of the area and to 

support existing cultural events and associations. Informed by a Welsh Language Statement 

or Impact Assessment, the mitigation of effects upon local communities could also include the 

delivery of affordable housing. 

Key Considerations 

5.1.26 The economy, environment and communities of North Anglesey face a number of existing 

issues which may be exacerbated by the Wylfa Newydd Project whilst other new issues may 

arise as a result of the project. These issues include the following and are expanded upon 

elsewhere within the SPG: 

 Natural environment: Impacts arising from the construction and operation of the main site 

and associated sites upon the ecology, landscape, coastline and seascape of the area 

will need to be minimised and mitigated; 

 Historic environment: Key issues relate to the sensitive historic landscape, including 

Listed Buildings, Scheduled Monuments, Conservation Areas and registered park and 

garden and the extent to which they will be impacted by the developments proposed; 

 Utilities and services: Demand for additional resources and utilities requiring measures to 

ensure that a healthy supply/demand balance is maintained to existing sites and 

communities; whilst new sites such as the Rhosgoch Anglesey Enterprise Zone site would 

need considerable extra infrastructure to be provided to supply water to the site and handle 

sewerage given that it is located away from the trunk mains network.   

25 The enterprise survey, which supports the development of Destination Anglesey Management Plan, suggests that there is a high level of 

repeat business on the Island with 60% of serviced accommodation business and 50% of self-catering accommodation business related to 

repeat visitors. 

Page 290



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
128  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

There will be pressures upon existing public services, infrastructure and facilities arising 

from the aging population and increase in new residents both temporary and permanent 

linked to the construction and future operation of Wylfa Newydd. There will also be high 

demand for telecommunications and IT/broadband infrastructure as well as conventional 

utilities such as water, electricity and gas. The project promoter will need to ensure that 

the demand from the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa does not adversely impact on existing 

residents and that a post- construction legacy of high quality infrastructure (both social and 

physical) is provided. 

 Amenity and Health: Impacts upon the amenity of local residents arising from a reduction 

in tranquillity, increases in noise, light, traffic and air pollution. A key issue is therefore the 

need to improve and sustain the overall health and well- being of residents of all ages. 

 Housing: Local residents could potentially be priced out of accommodation, both private 

rented and owner occupied. This could lead to displacement (particularly for low income 

or vulnerable families and increase the risk of homelessness). There may also be 

competition for accommodation used by tourists and visitors together with the potential for 

construction workers to displace visitors from tourist accommodation. 

 Economy & Supply Chain: There is the potential for the local workforce to take the new 

job opportunities, leaving existing businesses and services struggling to retain staff and/or 

recruit. This could have a significant adverse impact on local businesses but also on the 

foundation economy where people are reliant on these services. 

 Education: Education at pre-school, primary, secondary and further and higher levels 

locally is not sufficiently responsive or accessible, nor has the teaching or learning 

facilities, to enable the existing and future workforce to take advantage of employment 

opportunities and deal with increased demand for places, including opportunities in the 

medium of Welsh for workers’ families; 

 Tourism: A potential decline in tourism as a result of impacts upon attractions such as the 

Wales Coastal Path and the Cemlyn Bay Nature Reserve. The increased levels of activity 

affecting the actual and perceived tranquillity of North Anglesey . Increased demand for 

tourism accommodation and the intensification of use of local tourism facilities and 

attractions by visitors and by the Wylfa Newydd workers during construction; 

 Welsh language: Maintaining and enhancing a vibrant Welsh Language and culture is a 

key issue for North Anglesey. 

 Cumulative and in-combination impacts: There is also the potential for ‘in combination’ 

impacts from all of the developments associated with Wylfa New Nuclear Build project 

together cumulative impacts with other development proposals and aspirations of the area; 

Page 291



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
129  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.27 The following Guiding Principle reflects the importance which the County Council places upon 

the need to ensure that the communities, infrastructure and environment of North Anglesey 

are adequately protected, and wherever possible benefit, from the impacts arising from the 

development of the Wylfa Newydd Project. The County Council will seek to ensure that the 

hosting of the project over its lifetime by the communities of North Anglesey is properly and 

fully recognised in the short, medium and long term. This will be reflected through the benefits 

accruing locally, the avoidance of potentially adverse impacts wherever possible, the provision 

of appropriate and timely mitigation measures and when required, compensation payable. 

Benefits may take the form of an enhanced environment, provision of skilled jobs, delivery of 

improved services and facilities and a network of sustainable transport modes together with a 

contribution to a Community Resilience Fund to cover unquantifiable or unforeseen impacts. 

5.1.28 In addition to mitigation secured through the planning process, the County Council has 

adopted a policy for Voluntary Community Benefits from developers on Anglesey. This is 

wholly outside the statutory planning system and will be separately negotiated and agreed 

(Section 4.12). 

GP 27   North Anglesey – Key Development Principles 

i. Development on the main site or elsewhere in North Anglesey, whether it is directly 

or indirectly associated with the project, should have regard to the locational 

guidance contained within this SPG together with the policies of the JLDP. In 

particular, development will be strictly managed within the Coastal Change 

Management Area and the AONB. 

ii. The Wylfa Newydd project promoter or any other applicant must fully consider and 

assess the environmental, social and economic impacts of proposals as they apply 

to the spatial area defined as North Anglesey. The project promoter or any other 

applicant should ensure there is a comprehensive suite of measures designed to 

ensure that the environment, economy, Welsh language, culture and well-being of 

these communities are not adversely affected by the construction or operation of 

Wylfa Newydd and are enhanced wherever possible. 

iii. The need for specific, detailed consideration and mitigation of the potential impacts 

on this spatial area is a consequence of the project promoter’s preferred 

development proposals for Wylfa Newydd having been intensified on and around 

the Wylfa Newydd site. 

iv. In addition, there are other major developments underway or planned in the locality 

giving rise to potential cumulative impacts and the project promoter must ensure that 

Page 292



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
130  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

both combined and cumulative effects are assessed, reported managed and 

mitigated within the DCO application. 

v. Given the scale, complexity and duration of the Wylfa Newydd Project, there will be 

instances where impacts are such that they are unquantifiable or unforeseeable. In 

these circumstances, the mitigation would be in the form of a Community Resilience 

Fund (CRF) from the project promoter within the planning mitigation. The County 

Council would expect to see the ring fencing of an appropriate part of this CRF for 

North Anglesey with the precise amount and arrangements for distribution to be 

agreed by the County Council. The CRF shall set out measures to enhance North 

Anglesey as a place to live, work and visit and include for the continued funding of 

legacy assets and/or services to support the delivery of the proposed Place Plan for 

the area. 

vi. The project promoter or any other applicant will be expected to comply with the 

proximity principle, whereby the impacts on the host communities closest to the main 

New Nuclear Build site must be considered first, followed by North Anglesey, the 

Rest of Anglesey and then the wider sub-region. Any potential adverse impacts must 

be avoided, mitigated or compensated where relevant. This principle should also be 

adopted for the provision of any community benefits. 

Page 293



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
131  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Main Wylfa Site 

Overview 

5.1.29 The proposed main 

New Nuclear Build site 

is located adjacent to 

the existing Wylfa 

nuclear power station 

at Wylfa Head on the 

north coast of 

Anglesey. The site 

extends eastwards to 

the western outskirts of 

Cemaes, south to the 

A5025 and the village 

of Tregele and west to 

the Porth-y- Pistyll inlet. The site is approximately 300ha in areas and is 10km from Amlwch 

to the east, 25km from Holyhead to the south west and 24km from Llangefni to the south. 

5.1.30 The project promoter has undertaken three Pre-Application Consultation stages, through 

which it has arrived at, and refined, its preferred development proposals for the New Nuclear 

Build project. Development at the main site is likely to include: 

 Initial Site Preparation & Clearance works; 

 A power station, including two Advanced Boiling Water Reactors with a minimum 

generating capacity of up to 3,000 MW; 

 Marine Off-Loading Facility (MOLF) and breakwater at Porth-y-Pistyll; 

 Cooling water intake and outfall structures; 

 Electricity transmission infrastructure; 

 Temporary construction worker campus consisting of up to 4,000 bedspaces; 

 Other associated facilities, buildings, structures and features, such as administration 

offices; 

 Interim waste and spent-fuel storage facilities; 

 Landscape works, open channel drainage, mounding and planting; 

 Temporary construction viewing area; 

 Access roads; 

Page 294



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
132  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Temporary and permanent car parking with 1,900 temporary parking spaces with around 

800 of these for construction worker accommodation; and 

 Measures and initiatives to manage any impacts during the construction and operation of 

a new power station26. 

5.1.31 The principle of development of a new nuclear power station at the site has already been 

established in NPS EN-6. However, the County Council also considers it essential that key 

development principles are set out in this SPG which reflect the policies of the JLDP 

(particularly PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development and PS10: Wylfa Newydd – 

Campus Style Temporary Accommodation for Construction Workers), local priorities and 

opportunities, and highlight those issues that it considers should be addressed by the project 

promoter in order to minimise adverse impacts and maximise positive benefits arising from 

the construction and operation of the new nuclear power station and associated and related 

developments. The key development principles apply to works from the initial site 

preparation and clearance through to construction and ongoing operation but do not cover 

the eventual decommissioning of the power station. 

Key Considerations 

5.1.32 The area surrounding the main Wylfa Newydd site has a particularly rich and sensitive 

coastal environment, which together with the presence of important historic assets and the 

rural nature of communities in its immediate vicinity, present a number of key issues that will 

need to be considered by the project promoter when developing proposals for the main site. 

These issues include: 

 The natural environment: Tre'r Gof SSSI is situated within the boundary of the main 

Wylfa Newydd site. NPS EN-6 highlights that this rich fen habitat could be subject to 

direct and/or indirect effects associated with changes to water quality or quantity but that 

it is anticipated that sufficient land is available within the site for the development of a 

new nuclear power station without permanently affecting any designated area. NPS EN-

6 also highlights that Tre'r Gof SSSI could be protected through engineered drainage 

mitigation measures to preserve surface and groundwater quality and quantity including 

protection of the mineral rich waters and hence maintain the overall ecology of the SSSI. 

There is also the potential for the provision of replacement habitat for any habitat that 

may be lost as a result of development. Environmental assessment undertaken in 

respect of the Wylfa Newydd Project has identified the potential for adverse effects on 

the Tre’r Gof SSSI due to possible changes to the hydrological and hydroecological  

26 See https://consultation.horizonnuclearpower.com/stage-3/documents for further details

Page 295



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
133  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

inputs to the SSSI.  Horizon have produced a drainage design which mitigates the 

potential effects as far as possible, but there remains uncertainty about how the Tre’r Gof 

SSSI will respond to the changes in landform and there is the possibility of a gradual long 

term deterioration of the rich fen communities for which the SSSI was designated.  

Compensation sites are therefore required to mitigate against the potential adverse 

impacts on the Tre’r Gof SSSI.However, Horizon state in their most recent consultation 

on additional land that there is the potential for permanent effects on Tre Gof’s SSSI. 

Beyond the main site, there are several internationally and nationally designated nature 

conservation sites. NPS EN-6 highlights that there is the potential for significant adverse 

effects on the integrity of six European sites (Cemlyn Bay SAC, Ynys Feurig, Cemlyn Bay 

and The Skerries SPA, Menai Strait and Conwy Bay SAC, Liverpool Bay SPA, Lavan 

Sands SPA and Puffin Island SPA) through potential impacts on water resources and 

quality, habitat (and species) loss and fragmentation/coastal squeeze, disturbance (noise, 

light and visual), and air quality. 

The Anglesey AONB, Heritage Coast and Wales Coast Path follow the coastline to the 

east and west of the main site. Additionally, there are three pockets of Ancient Woodland 

within the site boundary. 

In addition to the direct effects from construction at the main site there is the potential for 

some of the proposed construction workers, accommodated within a temporary campus 

of up to 4,000 beds, to affect the long-term conservation of some of the designated and 

non-designated features and areas through increased visitor pressure as the workers use 

the footpath network and recreational areas both within this AoS and within adjoining 

Cemaes and its Environs AoS. The potential impacts of this temporary campus will need 

to be considered in combination with those of temporary workers housed in other forms 

of accommodation off-site in communities close to the site.  These and other relevant 

factors need to be considered in a comprehensive Community Impact Assessment 

covering North Anglesey. 

The Wales Coast Path, which follows the coastline to the east and west of the site, also 

presents an opportunity for enhancement. There are wider opportunities to support 

employment, the provision of community facilities and services, and broader infrastructure 

as described in the North Anglesey section above. 

 The historic environment: Cestyll Garden lies immediately to the west of the main site 

boundary. Additionally, there are a number of designated cultural heritage assets in close 

Page 296



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
134  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

proximity to the site including Listed Buildings, Scheduled Monuments and the Cemaes 

Conservation Area whose settings have the potential to be detrimentally affected. 

 Flood risk and coastal erosion: The main site is predominantly located on higher ground 

with hard bedrock and the risks of flooding and coastal erosion are therefore considered 

to be low. However, NPS EN-6 sets out that further assessment is required to determine 

the need for additional defences over the lifetime of a new power station. 

 Surface water and bathing water quality: Cemaes beach has historically suffered from 

incidences of pollution which has resulted in it being recorded as of ‘poor quality’ by NRW. 

Whilst the causes are unrelated to the main site the substantial increase in development 

activity that will take place must be undertaken in a manner which protects existing surface 

water receptors and bathing waters. 

 Welsh language and culture: The main site is in a predominantly rural location with a small 

population and in the immediate area, a limited range of community services and facilities. 

Consequently, it will be important to consider the impact of the construction and operation 

of the new nuclear power station on community cohesion, amenity, including potential 

impact on the Welsh language and culture. Welsh language and culture and the related 

well-being aspects will therefore be integral to the required Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment. 

 Social and economic: The project promoter proposes to construct a temporary 

construction worker campus accommodating up to 4,000 workers. This number equates 

to the population of Amlwch (the third largest settlement on Anglesey) and it will 

consequently require a similar level of support in terms of services and facilities. 

Consistent with JLDP Policies PS2: Infrastructure and Developer Contributions and ISA1: 

Infrastructure Provision, the County Council will require significant investment in new on-

site provision and existing and additional services and facilities within the adjoining AoS of 

Cemaes and Environs and within the Amlwch and Environs AoS supported by 

comprehensive improvements to public transport and other sustainable modes of 

transport. All investment shall be planned and delivered in a phased manner with first 

implementation commencing in advance of campus occupation. A robust and realistic 

assessment of the residual impact on community facilities will also be required where 

onsite provision is made attributable to construction workers accessing local facilities 

outside of working hours Mitigation measures for adverse impacts on community facilities 

including open space, retail and leisure provision should be included with any application 

for worker accommodation. 

 Infrastructure: Issues within the area relate to the provision of IT communications 

infrastructure/broadband and the maintenance and provision of sufficient energy and water 

Page 297



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
135  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

supplies. The effects on infrastructure provision is a key issue, particularly in light of 

proposals to accommodate up to 4,000 workers on site in temporary accommodation. 

 Waste management: The development of the main site will generate large volumes of 

construction waste whilst in the operational phase ongoing waste management will be 

required. The preparation of a Site Waste Management Plan should inform how the waste 

arising will be dealt with. The project promoter is also seeking to accommodate up 4,000 

workers on-site. This may require increases in collection resources, increasing costs and 

local vehicle movements; 

 Spent fuel and nuclear waste storage: The provision and siting of the safe and secure 

facilities to deal with spent fuel and nuclear waste at the main site is a key issue to be 

addressed in the DCO. Ensuring the provision of such facilities is also central to the 

effective decommissioning of the power station. NPS EN-6 states that when decisions are 

being made on the DCO, the licensing and permitting regimes for dealing with this waste 

should be properly applied and enforced. 

 Traffic and transport: The location of the man site is such that transport is a key issue, 

particularly for the communities of North Anglesey. NPS EN-1 supports the concept of 

‘good design’ and in the context of transportation supports demand management 

measures, a prioritisation of rail and water-borne transport over road and advises that 

requirements may be introduced to control HGV movements, prevent un-authorised 

overspill HGV parking and ensure satisfactory arrangements are in place to deal with AILs. 

Road borne HGV transportation has the potential to particularly affect the communities of 

North Anglesey (especially those situated along the A5025), and those in close proximity 

to the main site, whilst impacts could also be felt in other areas of the Island. The provision 

of facilities to enable water borne delivery of the majority of construction materials including 

AILs is therefore a key issue to be addressed by the project promoter. The provision of 

accommodation for up to 4,000 workers will also generate additional pressures on the road 

network. Of particular concern are the associated impacts on A5025 and local road 

network around Cemaes from access and egress to this accommodation campus. 

 Health and well-being, amenity, air quality, noise and vibration: The need to sustain and 

improve the overall health and well-being of the communities within the immediate vicinity 

of the main site during construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project is a key issue. As well as 

the construction activities on site, the construction will generate a high number of HGV 

trips to/from the site and a number of vessell movements that will generate noise and 

vibration. There is also the potential for impacts on air quality particularly linked to the 

access to the main site where traffic may build up if access is not designed appropriately. 

Page 298



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
136  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Impacts upon the amenity of local residents arising from a reduction in tranquillity, 

increases in noise, light, traffic and air pollution are therefore key considerations. 

 Soils and land use: The protection of soil quality during the construction phase will require 

an appropriate mitigation strategy. 

 Geology and contamination: The preservation of geological integrity in the area of the main 

site and the reduction in the opportunities for contamination to occur, during either 

construction or operation of the main site, are key concerns. 

 Drainage, surface and groundwater: The main site is includes part of the Tre’r Gof SSSI, 

which as noted above, is a wetland habitat susceptible to changes in water quality and 

quantity. A key issue is how proposals for the site may affect this SSSI and provide suitable 

drainage. The scale of development proposed at the main site, and the additional impact 

of accommodation up 4,000 construction workers at an on-site campus, will require the 

application of sustainable urban drainage schemes to ensure that water quality and 

quantity is unaffected within the area. 

 Radiological effects: NPS EN-6 states that the safety systems that must be in place for the 

design of new nuclear power stations and the requirement for compliance with the UK’s 

robust legislative and regulatory regime mean that the risk of radiological health impact is 

very small. The promoter must ensure that appropriate measures are in place for the 

storage/management of radioactive waste and that appropriate monitoring is in force in 

line with regulatory requirements. 

 Landscape and visual impacts: Almost the entire coastline of North Anglesey is designated 

as an AONB due to the variety of fine coastal landscapes. The AONB designation is 

overlapped by stretches of the defined Heritage Coast. Unlike AONB, Heritage Coasts 

have no legal protection, but planning authorities must take the designation into account 

when making decisions on development proposals. Alone, and in combination with 

National Grid proposals, development at the main site will have landscape and visual 

impacts. European, National, Regional and Local designates sites will also need to be 

considered. These factors will all need to be considered through a Landscape and Habitat 

Management Strategy (or equivalent) for development of the main site. 

  Archaeology: The main site is known to have remains of archaeological importance. A 

key issue is therefore to ensure that desk based assessment and fieldwork evaluation is 

undertaken and informs the proposals for the main site. NPS EN-1 requires that DCO 

applications should be clear about the extent of the impact that the proposed development 

could have on heritage assets. 

5.1.33 Whilst decommissioning of the former Wylfa Magnox nuclear power station and other 

proposals near the main site (including off-site associated development and connections to 

Page 299



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
137  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

the North Wales National Grid network) may present an opportunity to deliver synergistic 

benefits, the combined scale of works in a relatively small and sensitive area means that it will 

be particularly important for the project promoter to fully consider the potential for cumulative 

impacts. The County Council will therefore expect the project promoter to work in partnership 

with Magnox, National Grid and other developers as appropriate to agree and implement 

measures to work complementarily and to mitigate adverse cumulative impacts and deliver 

legacy benefits. 

GP 28a Wylfa Newydd Main Site – Key Development Principles 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter, as part of the preparation of a DCO application or 

planning applications for associated and related development within the main site, including 

those for site preparation and clearance, should pay particular regard to how proposals: 

a) Minimise impacts on local community cohesion, health and Welsh language and 

culture through: 

i. the preparation of a detailed Welsh Language Impact Assessment to inform the 

identification of appropriate measures to avoid adverse effects on Welsh 

language and culture or mitigate or compensate for any unavoidable effects in 

accordance with national and local policies; 

ii. the provision or improvement of services and facilities, integrated within existing 

settlements and at a scale appropriate to their location, to meet the needs of 

construction workers and which can also be used by the local community during 

the construction of the power station and, where appropriate, be made available 

post construction/operation as a permanent legacy benefit; 

iii. the delivery of improvements to the mobile & IT communications network and 

broadband which currently exists in local communities linked to the delivery of 

high quality mobile telecommunications and internet facilities at the main site; 

iv. adopting measures to promote community safety including the preparation of a 

Code of Conduct for Construction Workers and a Community Safety 

Management Plan; 

v. minimise and mitigate for the loss of any existing facility including sports pitches 

and community use buildings; and 

vi. undertake a comprehensive assessment of the health and amenity impacts of 

the construction and operation of the Wylfa Newydd Project, including noise, 

light, dust and limitation of access to open air recreation resources to inform the 

identification of appropriate mitigation and compensation measures. 

Page 300



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
138  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

b) Promote the sustainable use of resources through: 

i. the management of waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy; 

ii. the use of sustainably, locally sourced construction materials; 

iii. incorporation of energy efficiency measures in the layout and design of new 

buildings or the retrofitting of existing buildings; 

iv. minimising transport and travel by road; 

v. minimising the construction of temporary buildings with no permanent use which 

will be removed; 

vi. the use of water efficient products and design; and 

vii. provision of on-site renewable energy infrastructure. 

c) Avoid adverse effects on water resources and water quality during construction and 

operation; 

d) Ensure that development is resilient to flood risk including storm surge and tsunami; 

e) Avoid, mitigate or where appropriate compensate for adverse impacts on the 

following sites (ensuring no net loss of biodiversity): 

i. the integrity of Natura 2000 sites (or their interest features) including Cemlyn Bay 

SAC, Anglesey Terns SPA, Menai Strait and Conwy Bay SAC, Liverpool Bay 

SPA, Lavan Sands SPA and Puffin Island SPA (where development at the main 

Wylfa Newydd site, either alone or in-combination with other proposals, gives 

rise to the likelihood of significant effects on a Natura 2000 site then Appropriate 

Assessment will be required); 

ii. the condition of SSSIs including Tre'r Gof and Cae Gwyn SSSI; 

iii. Ancient Woodland;  

iv. Local Wildlife Sites; and 

v. key habitats and protected species, including those identified in the Anglesey 

Local Biodiversity Action Plan. 

f) Minimise landscape and visual impacts including in respect of the Anglesey AONB 

and Heritage Coast, historic assets and residential and recreational receptors as a 

direct result of construction and operational activities. Where it has been 

demonstrated by the Wylfa Newydd project promoter that the impacts are 

unavoidable, appropriate levels of mitigation and compensation should be provided; 

g) Maintain and enhance access to the coast via the Wales Coastal Path and to Parys 

Mountain via the Copper Trail. Deliver an overall improvement to both footpath 

networks; 

Page 301



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
139  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

h) Identify landscape treatments, habitat creation, flood risk management and Public 

Rights of Way connections and improvements that integrate appropriately with the 

surrounding area. Landscape and green infrastructure works and enhancements 

that extend beyond the power station main site boundary could potentially mitigate 

and compensate the impacts of the project and provide enhancements where 

appropriate; 

i) Where development is temporary, adopt phased reinstatement and/or create new 

landscapes (to potentially include hedgerows, agricultural land, grassland, 

woodland, water features and scrubland) as soon as is reasonably practicable in 

order to minimise landscape and visual impacts and to compensate for impacts on 

these natural features. The reinstated or new landscape should be maintained 

thereafter; 

j) Minimise impacts on recreation including use of footpaths and cycle paths and 

protect open air recreation opportunities through provision of replacement open 

space, new or improved footpath and cycle paths, the creation of circular walking 

and cycle routes, any loss must be replaced or and public access around the site to 

should be maximise mitigate any loss of connectivity through the site during 

construction. 

The project promoter should also work in partnership with the County Council, local 

communities and other stakeholders when developing the Landscape & Habitats 

Management Strategy for the main site in order to identify and minimise potential adverse 

impacts and enhance benefits associated with the construction and operation of the new 

nuclear power station. 

The project promoter should work in partnership with Magnox (and other applicants as 

appropriate) to explore opportunities to mitigate cumulative adverse impacts and maximise 

benefits from decommissioning activities and the construction of Wylfa Newydd. Those 

opportunities that the County Council would expect the project promoter and Magnox to 

assess include, but are not limited to: 

a) Utilising existing infrastructure and land at the Magnox site to support the Wylfa 

Newydd Project; 

b) Measures to reduce disturbance-related impacts such as noise and emissions to air 

from construction activity and HGV movements; 

c) Impacts on sensitive ecological receptors and enhancement of existing, or provision 

of new, habitat to offset cumulative impacts on biodiversity and deliver biodiversity 

gains; 

d) Measures to reduce cumulative impacts on landscape character and seascape; 

Page 302



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
140  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

e) The re-use of waste and materials generated by either the decommissioning works 

or construction of the project; 

f) The re-training and up-skilling of the existing nuclear power station workforce and 

local contractors in order to prevent the out-migration of skills and reduce adverse 

impacts related to the closure of the existing nuclear power station; 

g) A joint assessment of the impact of the Wylfa Newydd Project and decommissioning 

activities on community services and facilities, infrastructure and the local housing 

market and the implementation of measures to address any adverse impacts within 

the settlements that are affected including through additional provision; 

h) Measures to address cumulative impacts on the Welsh language and culture, 

informed by a joint Welsh Language Impact Assessment; 

i) Preparation of a Joint Transport and Traffic Management Plan(s) including 

proposals for joint investment in any transport infrastructure and services necessary 

to support both projects and the joint use of transportation infrastructure. 

Application of the above principles should combine to demonstrate that the well- being goals 

and ways of working as set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, 

and which underpin this guidance and the County Council’s policy and decision making 

processes, have been fully reflected by the project promoter. 

 

GP 28b  Wylfa Newydd Main Site Campus Style Temporary Construction   

  Worker Accommodation – Key Development Principles 

Proposals for campus style temporary construction worker accommodation at the main 

Wylfa Newydd site must accord with JLDP Policies PS9 and PS10 as well as having regard 

to other relevant criteria contained within this SPG. Proposals will only be acceptable where 

they meet a demonstrable need that cannot be met elsewhere in the existing housing market 

or through the conversion of existing buildings or the use of existing planning consents for 

the accommodation of nuclear workers (in accordance with JLDP Policy PS10). 

In addition to meeting the guiding principles for all development at the main Wylfa Newydd 

site set out in GP 28a, proposals for campus style temporary construction workers’ 

accommodation should pay particular regard to: 

i. Delivery of the construction worker accommodation in accordance with the 

submitted Construction Worker Accommodation Phasing Plan  to avoid rather than 

react to adverse impacts; 

ii. The incorporation of effective occupancy monitoring through the Worker 

Accommodation Management Service (WAMS). 

Page 303



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
141  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

iii. Impacts on the built and natural environment, transport, leisure, recreation (including 

opportunities for open air recreation), retail and healthcare facilities in the locality or 

which will be impacted by workers commuting to the campus from their homes. 

iv. The onsite provision of leisure, recreation (including opportunities for education), 

retail and healthcare facilities to meet the needs of construction workers being 

accommodated on the main site. Sufficient provision is provided for the social, 

catering, health, communication, retail, leisure and recreational needs for the 

approved number of construction workers on the site; 

v. How the proposals plan for sustainable transport including walking and cycling, and 

mitigate the particular transport and access implications arising from the provision 

of construction worker accommodation on site, with particular regard to highway 

safety. The proposed parking provision – commensurate with the phased 

accommodation proposals – must be included in the Phasing Plan; 

vi. The provision of a Site Campus Management Plan including details of how the site 

will be managed to promote the health and well-being of those accommodated 

(including ensuring that impacts on the amenity of accommodated workers from 

construction noise, light and dust are of an acceptable level) and to minimise and 

mitigate the effects on the Island’s communities (particularly the near neighbour 

communities of Tregele and Cemaes); 

vii. Minimising and mitigating seascape, landscape and visual impacts by good design, 

screening, and sensitivity in locating built elements, external appearance, massing, 

scale and quality of materials used; 

viii. Increased visitor pressure associated with the campus style accommodation 

proposals including in respect of the Anglesey AONB, Heritage Coast, designated 

nature conservation sites, historic assets and residential and recreational receptors. 

ix. Proposals should consider how reinstatement to the existing conditions prior to 

development of the accommodation (through an approved scheme of work) and 

possible enhancements are to be secured, when the temporary use of the structures 

has ended, in accordance with an agreed Restoration/Reinstatement Plan; 

x. Minimising and mitigating impacts on recreational assets in the North Anglesey area, 

including the Wales Coast Path, from increased visitor pressure associated with 

accommodating workers on site and the displacement of existing users; 

Page 304



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
142  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

xi. Avoiding adverse effects on the availability and quality of water resources for 

existing communities within North Anglesey that may otherwise arise from the 

accommodation of temporary accommodation workers; 

xii. Assess and locate elements to minimise impacts on the amenity of neighbouring 

residents and communities, including impact from noise and light pollution; 

xiii. Promoting or contributing to the delivery of lasting and sustainable legacy benefits 

for the Island’s communities in line with Policy PS9 of the JLDP; and 

xiv. Impacts on amenity, social cohesion, crime or the fear of crime. 

 

As set out in GP28b i, campus style temporary workers accommodation proposed at the main 

Wylfa Newydd site should be delivered in a phased way in order to ensure that it prevents 

rather than reacts to impacts upon the local housing market.. Where campus style temporary 

worker accommodation is approved, it should be viewed as the preferred solution for 

accommodating the approved number of the construction workers. Strong reasoned 

justification will be required for not maximising the use of this Campus in favour of other types 

of accommodation. Approved campus style temporary worker accommodation should be 

provided in full at an early stage of the main construction period to prevent, rather than react, 

to any negative impact on the local housing market.    

When responding to proposals forming part of the Development Consent Order, the County 

Council will request a Construction Worker Accommodation Phasing Plan that sets out the 

numbers of workers expected to be accommodated within the proposed main site campus and 

the timescale of its construction, by phase. This plan should also set out how on-site 

community, health, retail, recreation and leisure facilties will be provided for the campus and 

how sufficent provision will be made for the number of workers to be accommodated in each 

phase. This Phasing Plan should also set out the details for phased decommissioning of the 

facility and provisions for amending the phasing depending upon the actual workforce size 

once construction commences.

Page 305



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
143  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Amlwch and Environs 

Overview 

5.1.34 Amlwch, together with its immediate 

hinterland, forms the Amlwch and Environs 

Area of Search (AoS). Amlwch is the most 

northerly town in Wales and is situated on 

the north coast of Anglesey, on the A5025. 

The AoS is approximately 10km from the 

main Wylfa Newydd site. 

5.1.35 Amlwch is the main centre for employment 

and services in the north of the Island and 

as at the 2011 Census had a population of 

3,789. However, almost half of the town’s 

workforce out-commutes, higher than any 

other centre on the Island. The town contains a number of important community facilities and 

services including a primary school, secondary school and leisure centre. 

5.1.36 Amlwch Port is within the 30% most deprived LSOAs in Wales and the 20% most deprived on 

Anglesey with employment, education, housing and access to services being particular 

issues27. Unemployment levels are also relatively high in Amlwch, its environs and across the 

north of the Island. For example, in August 2016 the proportion of the population that claimed 

out of work benefits (a measure of unemployment) in the ward of Amlwch Port was 5.7% 

compared to 2.9% in Anglesey as a whole and a Great Britain average of 1.8%28. In 

consequence, there is the potential for investment related to the Wylfa Newydd Project to help 

address existing social and economic issues in the town. 

5.1.37 Amlwch is identified as an Urban Service Centre within the adopted JLDP. It is in close 

proximity to the main Wylfa Newydd site via the A5025 with existing public transport serviced 

by the nos. 60 and 61 bus route. Amlwch has the potential for an enhanced role as a key 

centre in the north of the Island for construction worker accommodation, commerce and 

employment opportunities to support the Wylfa Newydd Project. Investment in Amlwch related 

to the project could help to enhance the vitality and viability of the town, maintain and enhance 

existing facilities and services (and support new provision) and stimulate the creation of local 

job opportunities, supporting its future prosperity. 

27 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 2014. 

28 NOMIS: Claimant Count.

Page 306



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
144  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Opportunities 

5.1.38 The AoS includes two sites safeguarded for employment use within the adopted JLDP (the 

former Shell land north of Amlwch (C25) and the Llwyn Onn Industrial Estate Amlwch (C26)) 

together with the reserve site of Rhosgoch (c(wg)39). The two safeguarded sites provide land 

or available plots suitable for Wylfa Newydd-related development whilst Rhosgoch is 

designated as a reserve site appropriate for B1, B2 or B8 uses associated with the needs of 

Wylfa Newydd or other Energy Island/Enterprise island development where other sites are 

unavailable (JLDP Policy CYF 1: Safeguarding, Allocating and Reserving Land and Units for 

Employment Use). Under JLDP Policies CYF4: New Large Single User Industrial or Business 

Enterprise on Sites which are not Safeguarded or Allocated for Employment Purposes and 

CYF6: Reuse and Conversion of Rural Buildings, Use of Residential Properties or New Build 

Units for Business/ Industrial use there may be other opportunities for employment 

development outside the development boundary in the AoS. 

5.1.39 As the main settlement within North Anglesey, certain forms of mitigation necessary as a result 

of Wylfa Newydd may be most appropriately located within Amlwch. Measures may include, 

for example, the delivery of affordable housing to meet local needs, encouragement to bring 

forward the market housing sites allocated in JLDP Policy TAI 1: Housing in Sub-Regional 

Centre & Urban Service Centres, improvements to public transport and cycling, including 

improved linkages to the main site, support in the re- use of vacant commercial and residential 

buildings, investment in existing services, facilities and infrastructure (including mobile 

telecommunications and broadband), support for economic development, environmental 

enhancement and community initiatives promoted by the County Council and covered in the 

proposed North Anglesey Place Plan. These measures will need to be identified and 

implemented in a cohesive manner, complementing and integrating with wider initiatives 

including a Learning Hub, Well-Being Centre and ‘state of the art’ leisure centre. All facilities 

should be accessible by all members of the communities of North Anglesey. 

Key Issues 

5.1.40 The Amlwch and Environs AoS has a particularly rich and sensitive natural environment and 

cultural heritage that plays an important role in supporting the prosperity of both the town and 

the visitor economy of the Island as a whole. Key issues that will need to be considered by the 

project promoter and any other applicant in this AoS include: 

 The natural environment: Whilst there are no designated nature conservation sites in the 

Amlwch and Environs AoS, the Liverpool Bay SPA is located approximately 3km to the 

east of the AoS and the Mynydd Parys SSSI is situated approximately 1km to the south. 

Page 307



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
145  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The Anglesey AONB and Heritage Coast follows the coastline to the north of the AoS 

whilst the JLDP has designated a Special Landscape Area adjacent to the south of the 

built up area of Amlwch and extending to include Parys Mountain; 

 The historic environment: The Amlwch and Environs AoS has a rich historic environment 

built upon the industrial heritage of Amlwch. A large proportion of the AoS is within the 

designated Amlwch and Parys Mountain Historic Landscape which links Amlwch to Parys 

Mountain and a number of Scheduled Monuments. Parys Mountain was once the greatest 

copper mine in Wales and Britain and the largest copper producer in Europe in the late 

18th century. Its relationship with the town and port of Amlwch, which sustained it, makes 

it a landscape of considerable industrial archaeological importance and the only 

internationally important non-ferrous mining site in Wales. Other assets of particular 

importance include Amlwch and Amlwch Port Conservation Areas and a number of Listed 

Buildings in the town itself; 

 Flood risk: The coastline to the north of the AoS and parts of Amlwch are within Flood 

Zone C2. In this regard, the Western Wales River Basin Flood Risk Management Plan 

(2015) identifies Amlwch as one of the small towns/villages where property and 

infrastructure are at risk from flooding; 

 Utilities: It is understood that there is insufficient capacity in the electrical network to 

accommodate new development in this AoS. Further discussions are also required with 

Welsh Water and Wales & West Utilities to determine the condition and capacity of the 

water, sewerage and gas network. For example, there are isolated incidents of flooding in 

the public sewerage systems that may need to be resolved to allow development to 

proceed in this area. There are also no fibre enabled exchanges within 7.5km of Amlwch 

and opportunities to improve IT communications as part of network improvements to 

support the main site should also be considered; 

 Social and economic: As a potential location for construction worker accommodation and 

other project-related development, Amlwch’s local economy and communities may 

experience substantial change and pressure arising from new development. 

 Welsh language and culture: A relatively high proportion of the population in this AoS 

speak Welsh. For example, in the Amlwch Port ward, 65% of residents can speak Welsh 

compared to 57% across Anglesey (and 19% nationally)29; 

 

 

29 Office for National Statistics.

Page 308



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
146  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 Health and well-being: The residents of Amlwch are likely to be in poorer health compared 

to other Anglesey residents, and Wales as whole. A total of 26.3% of residents have their 

daily activities compromised by poor health compared to percentages of 23.1% and 22.7% 

for Anglesey and Wales respectively whilst 13% have significant health problems. 

Unemployment within Amlwch is over twice the Wales average and higher than that found 

across Anglesey. A lower proportion of residents live in under-occupied accommodation 

and hence a larger proportion are in overcrowded accommodation; 

 Transport Connectivity: Public transport is limited to the local passenger bus network with 

the town distant from the North Wales mainline. The A5025 between Amlwch and Cemaes, 

and Amlwch and Benllech is relatively narrow and has a history of accidents. There has 

been 1 fatal, 3 serious and 3 slight accidents in the vicinity of Betws Bends in the last 10 

years; and 

 Tourism: The visitor economy, linked to the area’s industrial heritage, is an important 

sector. The Port and Copper Kingdom Visitor Centre and, beyond the AoS, Parys 

Mountain, are particularly important tourist attractions. Tourist accommodation will also be 

in demand as temporary worker accommodation. 

5.1.41 Careful consideration will need to be given to the potential for adverse cumulative impacts 

associated with Wylfa Newydd and related development in this AoS and other development 

proposals.

Page 309



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
147  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 5.2 Amlwch development boundary and allocations/ safeguarded land 

 

Page 310



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
148  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 29   Amlwch and Environs 

Associated and Related Developments 

Temporary 

Construction Worker 

Accommodation 

Proposals for temporary, campus-style development in this AoS 

will be expected to meet the requirements of JLDP Policies PS9 

and PS10 and have regard to other relevant guidance in this 

SPG (particularly GP 10a). 

Housing Proposals for permanent housing that is temporarily used to 

accommodate construction workers should be in accordance 

with relevant national and local planning policy and have regard 

to the guidance set out in this and other SPG in terms of 

location, design and type. 

Open market and/or affordable housing will be supported by the 

County Council provided that it is consistent with JLDP Policy 

TAI 1 and comprises of development on the allocated sites of 

Land near Maes Mona (T5), Lon Bach (T6), Rhienwas Field 

(T8) or on Land at Madyn Farm (T7) and Tan y Bryn (T9). 

Development on suitable windfall sites within the development 

boundary of Amlwch will also be acceptable subject to 

compliance with JLDP policy. 

Employment The County Council supports the generation of suitable small 

and large scale new business opportunities and the expansion 

of existing businesses in the Amlwch and Environs AoS related 

to the Wylfa Newydd Project. New employment uses should be 

located within the defined development boundary of Amlwch, 

with a preference for development on brownfield sites and land 

safeguarded for employment use in the JLDP. 

In accordance with JLDP Policies CYF4 and CYF6 and national 

planning policies and guidance, the County Council will support 

employment generating proposals on other suitable sites 

outside the development boundary subject to appropriate 

justification with respect to operational need, due consideration 

of environmental and social issues and there being no suitable 

alternative sites within the development boundary. 

The development of the former Shell site at Rhosgoch for 

business and employment uses catering for the needs of Wylfa 

Newydd or other ‘Energy Island’ development where it can be 

Page 311



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
149  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

demonstrated that there is no suitable, or insufficient allocated 

or safeguarded employment land available consistent with JLDP 

Policy CYF1. 

Community Facilities 

and Services 

The County Council shall require the enhancement of existing, 

and/or the provision of suitable new, community facilities and 

services in the Amlwch and Environs AoS that meet the needs 

of construction workers, address otherwise significant impacts 

upon the availability of services to local residents and/or which 

can be used by residents during the construction of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project. Where appropriate, community facilities and 

services should be made available post construction as a 

permanent legacy benefit. 

The location, scale and design of new community facilities and 

services or improvements to existing ones should accord with 

JLDP policy and have regard to guidance set out in GP6 of this 

SPG and other SPGs. In particular, facilities and services 

should be easily accessible by foot, cycle and public transport, 

where practical include infrastructure for modern 

telecommunications and information and should be built to the 

highest environmental standard possible (i.e. BREEAM 

‘Excellent’). 

Transport and Freight 

Logistics 

In accordance with JLDP policy, support for improvements to 

the current system of public transport should be brought forward 

and opportunities to improve provision for cyclists between the 

town and main Wylfa Newydd site identified and implemented. 

Opportunities 

Llwyn Onn Industrial 

Estate 

The project promoter or any other applicant, in liaison with the 

County Council, should explore opportunities with its suppliers 

to locate Wylfa Newydd related employment uses at Llwyn Onn 

Industrial Estate. 

Rhosgoch Enterprise 

Zone Site 

The project promoter or any other applicant will be required to 

demonstrate that they have carefully considered, in liaison with 

the County Council, to the potential to accommodate 

businesses and enterprises that will initially cater specifically for 

the needs of Wylfa Newydd or other Energy Island development 

at the Rhosgoch Enterprise Zone site. 

Page 312



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
150  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Any new employment uses within this site should be compatible 

with local and national planning policies and guidance 

demonstrating in particular how this relatively remote location 

can be made sustainable in the context of the development 

proposed and its potential to provide suitable access to the main 

Wylfa Newydd site and which may include improvements to the 

highway network. 

Proposals should consider how linkages can be established with 

community facilities and services, transport, infrastructure and 

construction worker accommodation located in Amlwch. 

Key Issues 

Natural Environment Proposals in the Amlwch and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have adverse 

effects on the Liverpool Bay SPA and Mynydd Parys SSSI (or 

their interest features) or other ecological assets both within and 

close to the AoS. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale and 

design of development in order to conserve and enhance 

important landscape designations including the Anglesey 

AONB, Heritage Coast and Special Landscape Area. 

Historic and Built 

Environment 

Development proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other developments, should seek to avoid adverse impacts on 

the industrial heritage of the area and conserve the historic 

landscape. In accordance with national and local planning 

policy, and in having regard to GP23, an assessment of the 

impact of proposals on the historic environment should be 

undertaken with particular attention given to designated sites 

(and their settings) within and in close proximity to the AoS 

including: 

 Amlwch and Amlwch Port Conservation Areas; 

 Listed Buildings; and 

 Scheduled Monuments at Parys Mountain. 

The County Council will expect the project promoter and any 

other applicant to work with Amlwch Industrial Heritage Trust as 

part of the preparation of proposals in this AoS to ensure that 

Page 313



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
151  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

adverse effects are identified and mitigated/compensated and 

benefits maximised. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that reflect 

and enhance local character and provide a safe and accessible 

public realm, in accordance with guidance included in this and 

other SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Flood Risk In accordance with national and local planning policies, 

development should be located away from areas of flood risk. 

Should proposals be brought forward on land subject to flood 

risk, a comprehensive approach to flood risk alleviation is 

expected, informed by a Flood Consequence Assessment. 

Utilities If identifying locations and developing proposals for 

development in the Amlwch and Environs AoS, the project 

promoter and any other applicant should work with Welsh 

Water, Scottish Power Energy Networks and Wales & West 

Utilities, BT and other telecommunication providers to ascertain 

if investment and upgrade of the existing infrastructure network 

is required to accommodate any additional development. This 

investment may include improvements to, for example, the 

electrical infrastructure (dependent on the scale of associated 

development in the area). 

Social and Economic Proposals in the Amlwch and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have an 

unacceptable impact on local businesses and the quality of life 

of communities. An assessment of the socio-economic impacts 

of proposals should be undertaken, the detail of which should 

be commensurate with the type and scale of development 

proposed. Where the potential for adverse impacts is identified, 

appropriate mitigation and/or deliverable compensation 

measures should be identified. 

As with all locations, the County Council will expect a Welsh 

Language Statement to be submitted with specific proposals for 

development in this AoS and a more detailed Welsh Language 

Impact Assessment with large scale proposals located on 

unexpected windfall sites, in accordance with the thresholds set 

in JLDP Policy PS1: Welsh language and Culture. 

Page 314



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
152  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

In order to promote community cohesion, proposals should 

enable the integration of existing and new communities, 

services and facilities. 

Tourism Proposals in the Amlwch and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not unacceptably 

adversely affect the tourism potential of the area. A detailed 

assessment of potential effects associated with development on 

tourism (both alone and in combination with other proposals) will 

be expected where the County Council considers the potential 

for such effects is likely to occur. 

Measures to address any potential adverse impacts on tourism 

and maximise opportunities from investment in this AoS could 

include: 

 Maintenance and, where possible, enhancement of 

access to the coast allied with improvement to the Wales 

Coast Path; 

 Maintenance and strategic improvements to the Public 

Rights of Way Network, cycle routes and walking trail 

networks; 

 Improvements to visitor infrastructure and facilities; 

 Destination marketing in liaison with Visit Wales, the 

Destination Management Plan Partnership, the County 

Council and Amlwch Industrial Heritage Trust; 

 Promotion of the Port and Copper Kingdom Visitor 

Centre; and 

 Identification and delivery of new or expanded visitor 

activities integrated with the events and activities 

proposed by other tourism facilities within North 

Anglesey. 

Opportunities may also exist in this AoS to develop linkages 

with, and support, a Wylfa Newydd visitor centre including 

through marketing or provision of transport links to the centre. 

The development of small-scale, high quality tourism 

accommodation for temporary use by construction workers may 

be supported in this AoS, subject to JLDP Policies P 9 and TAI 

I4 (in the case of caravans, mobile homes and other forms of 

Page 315



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
153  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

non- temporary accommodation) and guidance contained in 

GP12 and GP13a/GP13b of this SPG. 

Page 316



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
154  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Cemaes and Environs 

Overview 

5.1.42 The Cemaes and Environs AoS is situated 

immediately to the east of the proposed 

New Nuclear Build site boundary. It includes 

the villages of Cemaes to the east and 

Tregele to the south and as at the 2011 

Census had a population of approximately 

1,40030. The AoS also contains the former 

nuclear power station previously operated 

by Magnox which is situated west of 

Cemaes Bay. 

5.1.43 Cemaes is the main settlement in this AoS.  

The JLDP identifies Cemaes as a Local 

Service Centre with a defined development boundary, being suitable to accommodate some 

housing growth alongside the provision of services and retail. This primarily reflects the 

settlement’s existing role in providing important services and facilities to meet both local 

needs as well as those of communities in its rural hinterland; services and facilities in the 

village include a primary school, surgery, library, village hall, post office and shops. Tregele, 

meanwhile, is identified as a Local Village suitable for development that addresses 

community needs within and adjacent to the development boundary. No housing sites are 

allocated in Tregele. 

5.1.44 The former Magnox nuclear power station constituted a major employer in the area and for 

the Island as a whole. The station ceased generating on 30 December 2015 and it is now in 

the defueling phase prior to work being undertaken to place it into care and maintenance. 

The site is already over 30% defueled. The power station played an important role in 

supporting local businesses on the Island (data on expenditure with local businesses 

showed direct contracts to a value of £3.2m in 2011/12) and sustained existing service 

provision in both the Cemaes and Environs AoS and across the Island.31 

 

30 The population of the community area of Llanbadrig, which includes Cemaes and Tregele, had a population of 1,357 as at the 2011 

Census. 

31 Magnox Ltd (2013) Wylfa Nuclear Power Station: Environmental Statement 2013 Update

Page 317



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
155  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Whilst decommissioning activities will generate employment opportunities and spend in the 

Island’s economy, on balance the closure of the existing power station is likely to represent a 

significant loss of stable, well paid employment, reduction in investment in local businesses 

and could undermine service provision, affecting quality of life amongst the Island’s 

residents. 

5.1.45 Taking into account the role of Cemaes in the Island’s settlement hierarchy, coupled with the 

combined scale of development that could occur, the Cemaes and Environs AoS is 

considered to have the potential to host a range of development related to the Wylfa Newydd 

Project including permanent housing, accommodating construction workers on a temporary 

basis, permanent staff accommodation, employment, supply chain, transportation and 

logistics. 

Opportunities 

5.1.46 As a defined Local Service Centre, Cemaes is considered to be an appropriate location for 

market and affordable housing and land with an approximate capacity of 60 dwellings has 

been allocated to the rear of Holyhead Road (site T34) in JLDP Policy TAI 2: Housing in 

Local Service Centres. The increase in demand for accommodation which will result from the 

arrival of construction workers should encourage the delivery of this site for market housing 

to include 20 affordable units consistent with Policy TAI 15: Affordable Housing Threshold & 

Distribution and with opportunities to increase provision beyond this number. Under JLDP 

Policies CYF4: New Large Single User Industrial or Business Enterprise on Sites which are 

not Safeguarded or Allocated for Employment Purposes and CYF6: Reuse and Conversion 

of Rural Buildings, Use of Residential Properties or New Build Units for Business/ Industrial 

use there may be other opportunities for employment development outside the development 

boundary in this AoS. 

Key Issues 

5.1.47 The Cemaes and Environs AoS has a particularly rich and sensitive coastal environment 

which, together with the presence of important historic assets and the rural nature of 

communities, presents a number of key issues that will need to be considered by the project 

promoter and any other applicant. These issues include: 

 The natural environment: The Cemaes and Environs AoS contains several internationally 

and nationally designated nature conservation sites. These include Ynys Feurig, Cemlyn 

Bay and The Skerries SPA/Cemlyn Bay SAC and SSSI to the west; Llanbadrig - Dinas 

Gynfor to the east; and Cae Gwyn to the south. The Anglesey AONB and Heritage Coast 

follow the coastline to the east and west of this AoS. A substantial increase in informal 

Page 318



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
156  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

recreation activities within the AONB and along the Heritage Coast as a result of 

accommodating up to 4,000 construction workers at the main site could lead to localised 

environmental damage/pressure. Similar effects could result from the visitors and local 

residents wishing to visit/view the New Nuclear Build construction site; 

 The historic environment: Designated cultural heritage assets in the Cemaes and 

Environs AoS include Cemaes Conservation Area and Listed Buildings around Cemaes. 

Beyond the AoS, the Bronze Age standing stones Scheduled Monument is 

approximately 2km to the south-west whilst three Grade II Listed Buildings in Cafnan are 

approximately 0.5km to the west; 

 Flood risk: The coastline and land around Afon Wygyr, which dissects Cemaes, are 

within Flood Zone C2. Part of the settlement near Trwyn y Penrhyn is also within Zone B; 

 Cemaes Bathing Water Quality: Annual monitoring at Cemaes Bay indicated that water 

quality was ‘poor’ in 2016 and 2017. In 2015, the water quality was assessed as being 

‘sufficient’. Development within the Cemaes AoS, and adjoining AoS, must protect 

bathing waters. 

 Highways capacity: Construction of the project and associated development in the 

Cemaes and Environs AoS, together with other major strategic investment projects, are 

likely to result in impacts on the local road network due to increased traffic flows, 

particularly when combined with increases in traffic during the peak summer months for 

tourism; 

 Social and economic: Construction of the project and associated and related 

development could have a prolonged and sustained impact on the local economy and 

quality of life of communities in the Cemaes and Environs AoS. Impacts are likely to be 

related to, for example, emissions arising from construction activities, pressure on 

existing services and facilities, community cohesion and Welsh language and culture, 

particularly as a result of up to 4,000 construction workers being temporally 

accommodated at the main site. Socio-economic effects may be particularly pronounced 

in this AoS given the relatively small size of the existing resident population and limited 

scale of community facilities, including schools, IT communications and service 

provision. The accessibility of Cemaes to the proposed construction worker campus and 

its attractiveness as a place to visit (particularly during the Summer months) suggest that 

significant numbers of workers may use the town as a place for service provision and for 

recreation; 

 Tourism: Cemaes is an important tourist destination with a substantial number of visitors 

in the summer months. Construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd could have an 

Page 319



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
157  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

adverse impact on the tourism potential of the area in terms of both visitor perception 

and the availability of tourism facilities and services; 

 Noise, dust, air quality and lighting: These impacts form key concerns for the residents of 

Cemaes given their proximity to the main site. Appropriate mitigation / compensation will 

therefore be required for the ‘near neighbours’ affected during the construction phase of 

the Wylfa Newydd Project.

Page 320



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
158  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 5.3 Cemaes development boundary and allocation/ safeguarded land 

 

Page 321



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
159  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 30   Cemaes and Environs 

Associated and Related Developments 

Temporary Construction Worker 

Accommodati n 

In accordance with JLDP Policy PS10, temporary campus 

style accommodation will not be appropriate within or adjacent 

to Cemaes nor any other settlements within this AoS. 

Housing Proposals for permanent housing that is temporarily used to 

accommodate construction workers should be in accordance 

with relevant national and local planning policy and have 

regard to the guidance set out in this and other SPG in terms 

of location, design and type. 

Open market and/or affordable housing will be supported by 

the County Council provided that it is consistent with JLDP 

Policy TAI 2 and comprises of development on the allocated 

site of Land to rear of Holyhead Road (T34). Development on 

suitable windfall sites within the development boundary of 

Cemaes will also be acceptable subject to compliance with 

JLDP policy. 

Employment The County Council supports the generation of suitable new 

business opportunities in the Cemaes and Environs AoS 

related to the Wylfa Newydd Project. New employment uses 

should be located within the defined development boundary of 

Cemaes, with a preference for development on brownfield 

sites. 

In accordance with local and national planning policies and 

guidance including JLDP Policies CYF4 and CYF6, the County 

Council will support employment generating proposals on 

other suitable sites outside the development boundary of 

Cemaes subject to appropriate justification with respect to 

operational need, due consideration of environmental and 

social issues and there being no suitable alternative sites 

within the development boundary. 

Community Facilities and 

Services 

The County Council will require the enhancement of existing, 

and the provision of suitable new, community, communication 

and recreation facilities and services in the Cemaes and 

Environs AoS that meet the needs of construction workers, 

can be used by the local community during the construction of 

Page 322



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
160  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

the Wylfa Newydd Project and which can be made available, 

where appropriate, post construction as a permanent legacy 

benefit. The location, scale and design of new community 

facilities and services or improvements to existing ones should 

accord with JLDP policy and guidance set out in GP6 of this 

SPG and other SPGs. In particular, facilities and services 

should be easily accessible by foot, cycle and public transport, 

include, where practical, infrastructure for modern 

telecommunications and information and should be built to the 

highest environmental standard possible (i.e. BREEAM 

‘Excellent’). 

The provision of facilities and services within the main site will 

be supported by the County Council with sufficient justification. 

The failure to provide services on or off site sufficient to meet 

the requirements of the construction workers will result in the 

County Council’s inability to support the accommodation of up 

to 4,000 construction workers at the main site. 

Transport and Freight Logistics Proposals to enhance the capacity of the A5025 in this AoS 

will be supported, subject to national and local planning policy 

considerations. Other transportation infrastructure proposals 

such as a MOLF will also be supported subject to detailed 

assessment of feasibility and appraisal of other options for the 

movement of bulk construction materials and AILs, in 

accordance with GP15. 

Sustainable modes of transport to support the movement of 

construction workers from the main site via Cemaes to 

enhanced services and facilities in Amlwch and Holyhead 

should be provided and phased in accordance with the level of 

demand generated by the workers. 

Opportunities 

Other Major Development In accordance with GP 27 the project promoter should work in 

partnership with Magnox, the National Grid (and other major 

(energy) applicants as appropriate) to explore opportunities to 

mitigate cumulative adverse impacts and maximise benefits 

from decommissioning activities, the construction of Wylfa 

Newydd and other major strategic energy projects. 

Page 323



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
161  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Key Issues 

Natural Environment Proposals in the Cemaes and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have 

adverse effects on Ynys Feurig, Cemlyn Bay and The Skerries 

SPA/Cemlyn Bay SAC and SSSI, Llanbadrig - Dinas Gynfor 

SSSI and Cae Gwyn SSSI (or their interest features) or other 

ecological assets both within and close to the AoS. In 

particular, the potential cumulative effects of increased visitor 

pressure including that from up to 4,000 resident construction 

workers at the main site on the designated nature 

conservation sites of Cemlyn Bay and the Wylfa Head Local 

Widlife Site, and proposals for the management or mitigation 

of these effects, should be identified. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale 

and design of development in order to conserve and, where 

possible, enhance important landscape designations including 

the Anglesey AONB and Heritage Coast as well as seascape. 

Adverse effects on the natural environment should be avoided 

or mitigated as far as possible in accordance with national 

planning policies, the JLDP and the guidance contained in GP 

21 of this SPG and other SPGs. Where necessary, mitigation 

and where appropriate compensation measures, should be 

identified and implemented in partnership with other applicants 

such as Magnox as well as local nature conservation groups. 

Opportunities should also be sought to deliver biodiversity and 

landscape enhancements. 

Historic and Built Environment Development proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other developments, should seek to conserve and enhance 

the area’s historic assets (and their settings). In accordance 

with national and local planning policy and in having regard to 

GP 23 of this SPG, an assessment of the impact of proposals 

on the historic environment should be undertaken with 

particular attention given to designated sites within and in 

close proximity to the Cemaes and Environs AoS, including: 

 Cemaes Conservation Area; 

 Cestyll Garden; 

Page 324



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
162  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Listed Buildings; and 

 Scheduled Monuments and other assets outside the 

boundary of the AoS. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that 

reflect and enhance local character and provide a safe and 

accessible public realm, in accordance with guidance included 

in this and other SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Flood Risk In accordance with national and local planning policy, 

development should be located away from areas of flood risk. 

Should proposals be brought forward on land subject to flood 

risk, a comprehensive approach to flood risk alleviation is 

expected, informed by a Flood Consequence Assessment. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for 

associated and related development in the Cemaes and 

Environs AoS, the project promoter or any other applicant 

should work with Welsh Water, Scottish Power Energy 

Networks, Wales & West Utilities, BT and other 

telecommunication utilities to ascertain if investment and 

upgrade of the existing infrastructure network is required to 

accommodate any additional development. 

Social and Economic Proposals in the Cemaes and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have an 

unacceptable impact on local businesses and quality of life. An 

assessment of the socio-economic impacts of proposals in this 

AoS should be undertaken, the detail of which should be 

commensurate with the type and scale of development 

proposed. Appropriate mitigation and/or compensation should 

be implemented to address adverse effects. In particular, 

careful consideration will need to be given to the potential 

impacts of development on existing community services and 

facilities in the AoS. In order to avoid placing pressure on 

existing provision, and to promote community cohesion, 

proposals should enable the integration of existing and new 

communities, services and facilities. 

Mitigation of effects arising from increased visitor pressure in 

the settlement (as a result of up to 4,000 construction workers) 

Page 325



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
163  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

could include for the establishment of a Community 

Infrastructure Improvement Initiative (to include Tregele). This 

would provide funding for maintaining the public realm, 

targeted improvement to community spaces and interventions 

to address potential problems of anti-social behaviour. 

As with all locations, the County Council will expect a Welsh 

Language Statement to be submitted with specific proposals 

for development in this AoS and a more detailed Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment with large scale proposals 

located on unexpected windfall sites, in accordance with the 

thresholds set in JLDP Policy PS 1: Welsh language and 

culture. 

Tourism Proposals in the Cemaes and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not adversely 

affect tourism in this area. A detailed assessment of potential 

effects associated with development in this AoS on tourism 

(both alone and in combination with other proposals) will be 

expected where the County Council considers the potential for 

such effects is likely to occur. 

Measures to address any potential adverse impacts on tourism 

and maximise opportunities from investment in the Cemaes 

and Environs AoS could include: 

i. Maintenance and, where possible, enhancement of 

access to the coast allied with improvements to the 

Wales Coast Path; 

ii. Maintenance and strategic improvements to the Public 

Rights of Way Network, cycle routes and walking trail 

networks; 

iii. Improvements to visitor infrastructure and facilities; and 

iv. Destination marketing in liaison with Visit Wales, the 

Destination Management Plan Partnership and the 

County Council. 

The development of small-scale, high quality tourism 

accommodation for temporary use by construction workers 

may be supported in this AoS, subject to JLDP Policies P 9 

Page 326



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
164  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

and TAI I4 (in the case of caravans, mobile homes and other 

forms of non- temporary accommodation) and guidance 

contained in GP12 and GP13a/GP13b of this SPG. 

Page 327



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
165  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

A5025 Corridor 

Overview 

5.1.48 This AoS constitutes a corridor focused 

upon the A5025 that connects Valley to 

Cemaes and to Amlwch. Studies undertaken 

by the Wylfa Newydd Project promoter and 

the County Council suggest that the 

transportation of construction materials 

including abnormal loads could take place 

either from Holyhead Port or the A5 to the 

main Wylfa Newydd site and that physical 

improvements such as bypasses, passing 

places, accident prevention schemes and 

visibility improvements would be likely to be 

needed on the A5025. Consultation 

documentation provided by the project promoter also indicates that car parking for up to 1,900 

private cars will be provided at the main site. 

5.1.49 The project promoter has proposed a series of ‘online’ and ‘offline’ improvements to the 

A5025 between Valley and Cemaes and an encouragement for car sharing to address 

potential environmental effects at Valley, Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu and Cefn Coch. These 

locations are reflected within JLDP Policy TRA1 which also indicates that additional 

improvements may be required to the A5025 between the Cemaes and Amlwch, if the need 

can be clearly demonstrated. 

5.1.50 The project promoter has submitted a Town and Country Planning Act application to the 

County Council outlining the specific online highway improvements in advance of the DCO 

submission. Notwithstanding consideration of this planning application, the County Council is 

supportive in principle of the range of improvements identified, provided they accord with the 

JLDP, national planning policy and guiding principles within this SPG. 

5.1.51 The proposal for off-line improvements will form part of the DCO application and will include 

new stretches of the A5025 at Valley (outside this AoS), Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu and Cefn 

Coch. 

5.1.52 In addition to highway improvements, the project promoter also proposes to site the 

Alternative Emergency Control Centre (AECC) Environmental Survey Laboratory (ESL) and 

Page 328



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
166  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Mobile Emergency Equipment Garage (MEEG) on a partially previously developed site at 

Llanfaethlu which is located within this AoS (former OR Jones bus depot). 

5.1.53 There are no large settlements (i.e. Urban Service Centres or Local Service Centres) within 

this AoS. The main settlements are the small villages of Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu, 

Llanrhyddlad (designated as Local Villages in the JLDP) and Bull Bay (designated as a 

Cluster in the JLDP) which are connected by a bus service that runs the length of the 

corridor connecting the settlements with Holyhead and Amlwch on an hourly basis. These 

villages contain a limited range of community facilities and services and the JLDP would 

support small scale development in or immediately adjoining these villages and in 

appropriate locations in the wider rural area where it would help to support services and 

facilities provision for local communities. Residential development in Llanfachraeth, 

Llanfaethlu and Llanrhyddlad would need to pay particular regard to JLDP Policy TAI 4: 

Housing in Local, Rural and Coastal Villages whilst residential development in Bull Bay 

would need to pay particular regard to TAI 6: Housing in Clusters. 

5.1.54 Given its rural and comparatively sparsely populated character and lack of community 

facilities to accommodate development, for the purposes of this SPG, the A5025 Corridor 

AoS is characterised as an existing transport corridor providing: 

 Access to the main Wylfa Newydd site and one which is likely to be the subject of a 

significant increase in traffic during the construction phase of development; and 

 An important link between Amlwch and its rural hinterland communities, which include 

Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu, Llanrhyddlad and Bull Bay. 

The focus of guidance for this AoS is therefore to identify the requirements for the mitigation 

of effects arising from this transportation function but recognition is also given to the 

proposal by the project promoter to site associated development at Llanfaethlu. 

Opportunities 

5.1.55 Reflecting the predominantly rural character of the A5025 Corridor AoS, opportunities for 

development related to Wylfa Newydd are likely to be limited to proposals that are of a scale 

and type appropriate to the capacity of settlements to accommodate development. 

Significant levels of development would not be supported by the JLDP or national planning 

policy. Limited development within or immediately adjoining the defined village boundaries 

may be appropriate but would need to be of a small scale and capable of being supported by 

existing services and facilities and in the case of residential development, be compliant with 

JLDP Policy TAI 4: Housing in Local, Rural & Coastal Villages. 

Page 329



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
167  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.1.56 Reflecting the predominantly rural character of the A5025 Corridor AoS, opportunities for 

development related to Wylfa Newydd are likely to be limited to proposals that are of a scale 

and type appropriate to the capacity of settlements to accommodate development. 

Significant levels of development would not be supported by the JLDP or national planning 

policy. Limited development within or immediately adjoining the defined village boundaries 

may be appropriate but would need to be of a small scale and capable of being supported by 

existing services and facilities and in the case of residential development, be compliant with 

JLDP Policy TAI 4: Housing in Local, Rural & Coastal Villages. 

5.1.57 The combination of the MEEG, ESL and AECC on one site in Llanfaethlu presents an 

opportunity to improve the appearance and potentially remediate land presently occupied as 

a garage/depot. 

5.1.58 The A5025 online and offline improvements offer the potential to improve utilities and 

infrastructure whilst the road improvements are being undertaken. The project promoter or 

any other applicants should work with utility and infrastructure providers (including 

telecommunications and broadband) to ensure that, where possible, any associated 

infrastructure can be incorporated into the road improvements. 

5.1.59 Opportunities should also be explored to improve watercourse water quality, provide 

biodiversity mitigation & gains for impacted species and better attenuate road run-off. 

Key Issues 

5.1.60 The County Council recognises the importance of the natural environment within this AoS 

which reflects its rural nature. Key issues facing the AoS are likely to be the environmental 

and social effects arising from an anticipated increase in traffic along the A5025 and 

highways improvements with localised issues potentially associated with the 

MEEG/ESL/AECC. The key issues are considered to be: 

 The natural environment: There are four SSSIs which extend into this AoS (Cae Gwyn, 

Llyn Llygeirian, Llyn Garreg-Lwyd and Beddmanarch-Cymyran). The southern stretch of 

the corridor between Valley and Cemaes includes parts of the Anglesey AONB. 

Similarly, the AONB extends into the AoS between Cemaes and Amlwch and abuts the 

northern side of the A5025 along its whole length at this point. A JLDP Special 

Landscape Area also abuts part of the search area boundary to the east; 

 The historic environment: There are a large number of designated historic assets in this 

AoS including Listed Buildings and a registered historic park and garden; 

 Social and economic: The A5025 passes through a number of small villages which, 

whilst identified as being outside areas of defined tranquillity, experience current noise 

Page 330



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
168  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

levels below 55dB (the World Health Organisations Guidelines for Community Noise 

(1999) sets an aspirational 55dB LAeq, 16hr noise level for the avoidance in the onset of 

annoyance). Light, air, vibration and noise pollution issues will need to be identified, 

assessed and mitigated; and 

 Road safety: The A5/A5025 route from Holyhead to Wylfa is currently classified as a 

Highways Agency Class D advisory heavy load route. This recognises its present use as 

a route to access the existing, closed Magnox nuclear power station. The County Council 

understands that the A5025, particularly between Valley and Cemaes, will form a key 

access route for construction vehicles and construction worker vehicles during the 

construction phase of the Wylfa Newydd and that it will also be used during the 

operational phase of the development. As noted above, the A5025 passes through small 

villages and in consequence, road safety along the highway may be compromised 

depending upon the number, type and frequency of vehicles deployed and the mitigation 

measures proposed. 

 Traffic and transport: Whilst the A5025 is the identified highway link between the A55 

and A5/Holyhead to the main site, there are a network of smaller lanes and side roads 

which lead to or from, or which run in parallel with, the A5025. Measures will be required 

to control the number and movement of both commercial and private vehicles associated 

with construction activities at the main site in order to prevent the use of ‘rat runs’ within 

or alongside this transport corridor. The County Council will require the project promoter 

to commit to a traffic management plan which shall include for agreed levels of car 

sharing across the lifetime of construction activities. 

 Utilities & Infrastructure: It is important that consideration is given to providing new or 

upgraded utilities and infrastructure whilst improvements are made to the A5025.  The 

project promoter should work with utility providers to ensure that any upgrades are, 

where possible, incorporated into the design and implementation of the A5025 

improvements.  Resilience and ‘future proofing’ should also be considered (e.g insertion 

of ducting) to prevent future impacts on the highway network and to provide a lasting 

legacy. 

GP 31   A5025 Corridor 

Associated and Related Development 

Temporary Construction Worker 

Accommodation 

In accordance with JLDP Policy PS10, temporary campus 

style accommodation will not be appropriate within the A5025 

Corridor. 

Housing The County Council encourages the development of affordable 

housing and small scale developments of market housing 

Page 331



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
169  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

within the designated Local Villages (Llanfachraeth, 

Llanfaethlu, Llanrhyddlad) consistent with JLDP Policy TAI 4, 

and affordable housing for local need in Bull Bay consistent 

with JLDP Policy TAI 6, recognising that such provision could 

act as mitigation to the effects that may otherwise be 

experienced as a result of increased demand for 

accommodation from construction workers within North 

Anglesey. 

Employment In accordance with local and national planning policy, the 

County Council will generally only support proposals to 

accommodate appropriate new, small scale employment uses 

either associated with the main site or providing supply chain 

opportunities related to the Wylfa Newydd Project in or 

adjoining the Local Villages in the A5025 Corridor. The County 

Council may, however, support employment generating 

proposals on other suitable sites where there is strong 

justification with respect to operational need which cannot be 

accommodated within villages or on sites safeguarded and 

allocated in the JLDP for employment use elsewhere within 

the plan area and with due consideration of environmental and 

social issues.   The County Council would be supportive of the 

relocation of the existing garage/depot currently occupying the 

sites of the proposed combined MEEG/ESL/AECC within 

North Anglesey provided that any proposal is consistent with 

JLDP policy. 

The expansion of existing business will be supported providing 

the development is consistent with local and national planning 

policy and guidance. 

Community Facilities and 

Services 

The County Council does not anticipate there to be a 

requirement for substantial investment in existing, or new, 

community facilities and services in the A5025 Corridor, 

particularly following the opening of the new school in 

Llanfaethlu. Should opportunities arise to enhance existing, or 

provide additional services, then the location, scale and design 

of new community facilities and services or improvements to 

existing ones should accord with Development Plan policy and 

Page 332



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
170  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

guidance set out in GP6 of this SPG and other SPGs. In 

particular, facilities and services should be easily accessible 

by foot, cycle and public transport and should be built to the 

highest environmental standard possible (i.e. BREEAM 

‘Excellent’). 

Transport and Freight Logistics The County Council supports proposals associated with 

improvements to the A5025 and particularly between Valley 

and Cemaes and between Cemaes and Amlwch. In 

considering the suitability of the works proposed, the County 

Council will require evidence that: 

 The number of vehicles proposed is the minimum 

necessary and that other more sustainable methods of 

transportation to the main Wylfa Newydd site have 

been investigated and adopted where possible; 

 Appropriate Traffic Management Plans concerning the 

scheduling of movements, the bulking up of loads, and 

the types of vehicles to be used will be adopted; and 

 The works proposed minimise wherever possible the 

land take and severance that may otherwise occur to 

local communities. 

Opportunities 

Existing and Emerging 

Transport Proposals 

The project promoter will be expected to work in partnership 

with the County Council to identify opportunities to 

complement and support the delivery of County transport 

proposals, including those related to: 

 The emerging Joint North Wales Local Transport Plan; 

 The Highways Asset Management Plan; 

 Highways capacity improvements linked with the 

Anglesey Enterprise Zone sites; and 

 The County Council’s Cycle Strategy. 

Proposals to Co- locate the 

MEEG, ESL and AECC 

The County Council will require the project promoter to design 

a combined facility that is in scale and character with the 

surrounding landscape recognising that it is separate from the 

settlement of Llanfaethlu as defined in the JLDP. The design 

should seek to integrate the development into the landscape, 

providing screening from middle and distant views as well as 

Page 333



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
171  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

from the residential properties which adjoin it to the north. In its 

use of materials and finishes, the proposal should reflect local 

character and it should be built to the highest environmental 

standards possible (BREEAM ‘Excellent’). 

Utilities & Infrastructure In identifying locations and developing proposals for 

associated and related development in the A5025 Corridor, the 

project promoter and any other applicant should work with 

Welsh Water, Scottish Power Energy Networks, Wales & West 

Utilities, BT and other telecommunication utilities to ascertain if 

investment and upgrade of the existing infrastructure network 

is required to accommodate any additional development. 

Key Issues 

Natural Environment Proposals in the A5025 Corridor, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have 

significant adverse effects on ecological assets within and 

close to the AoS. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale 

and design of development in order to conserve and enhance 

the Anglesey AONB and the Special Landscape Area that are 

relevant to the A5025 Corridor. When designing necessary 

road improvements, the County Council will adopt a 

presumption against development within the AONB unless 

wider environmental and social benefits can be demonstrated 

to outweigh the adverse effects to it. It will also require: the 

use of materials for associated structures (for acoustic walls, 

footpaths etc.) that reflect local character; that Public Rights of 

Way are not severed (and that enhancements (condition, 

signage) to them are adopted); and that vegetation and wider 

habitat loss is minimised and where lost, replaced. 

Consideration of the natural environment should also be 

applied when considering the layout, scale and massing of the 

proposed combined MEEG, ESL, AECC. 

Adverse effects on the natural environment should be avoided, 

mitigated and where appropriate compensated as far as 

possible and in accordance with national planning policy and 

guidance, the JLDP and the guidance contained in this SPG 

Page 334



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
172  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

and other SPGs. Opportunities should also be sought to 

deliver biodiversity and landscape enhancements. 

Historic and Built Environment Development proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other developments, should seek to avoid adverse impacts on 

the area’s historic assets (and their settings). In accordance 

with national and local planning policies and GP23, an 

assessment of the impact of proposals on the historic 

environment should be undertaken with particular attention 

given to designated sites within and in close proximity to the 

A5025 Corridor. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that 

reflect and enhance local character and provide a safe and 

accessible public realm, in accordance with national planning 

policy, JLDP policies and guidance included in this and other 

SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for 

associated and related development in this AoS, the project 

promoter or any other applicant should work with Welsh 

Water, Scottish Power Energy Networks and Wales & West 

Utilities to ascertain if investment and upgrade of the existing 

infrastructure network is required to accommodate any 

additional development. 

Social and Economic The project promoter should minimise adverse impacts on 

residential amenity from light, air, vibration and noise pollution 

associated with the construction and operation of transport 

related development and the MEEG/ESL/AECC. Reflecting 

GP7, measures to minimise adverse impacts may include: 

 Screening construction activities; 

 Providing compensation to affected receptors; 

 HGV routing; 

 Restrictions to construction working hours and traffic 

management; and 

 Monitoring of potential impacts including in respect of 

noise, air quality and light pollution. 

Road Safety Measures should be implemented to maintain and enhance 

road safety along the A5025 both for drivers of construction 

Page 335



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
173  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

vehicles but also construction workers, local residents, 

tourists/visitors, operators of other businesses and services, 

cyclists, horse riders and pedestrians. 

Page 336



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
174  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

Rest of Anglesey 

 

 

 

Page 337



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
175  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.2 Rest of Anglesey 

Overview 

5.2.1 The ‘Rest of 

Anglesey’ includes 

all of the 

communities which 

lie outside of the 

area defined as 

‘North Anglesey’. As 

such, it includes for 

the large towns of 

Llangefni and 

Holyhead as well as 

other smaller towns 

and villages 

5.2.2 Being outside the defined area of North Anglesey, the potential for direct effects associated 

with the Wylfa Newydd Project upon the communities and environment of the ‘Rest of 

Anglesey’ is likely to be less relative to North Anglesey; however, there will be some project 

related development within this area and a significant degree of traffic movement through it, 

particularly related to movements from the Port of Holyhead or along the A55. Indirect 

positive and negative effects include, for example, employment opportunities, displacement 

of tenants from the local housing market and changes in tourist perceptions of the Island, 

may also be experienced. 

5.2.3 The Rest of Anglesey includes the Island’s strategic transport network consisting of the A55 

and the Holyhead to Chester railway. Both road and rail broadly follow an east west corridor 

across the Island terminating at or close to the Port of Holyhead. 

5.2.4 The area has a rich and varied culture and identity and includes the World Heritage Site of 

‘The Castles and Town Walls of Edward I’, incorporating the castle of Beaumaris, as well as 

the beaches of the south coast and Holyhead. The centre of the Island comprises 

communities where Welsh as a first language is most commonly spoken. The population is 

on average younger in comparison to North Anglesey although it remains older than Wales 

as a whole. Population density is lower than North Anglesey although Llangefni, with a 

population of 5,116, acts as the main administrative centre of the Island whilst Holyhead, at 

Page 338



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
176  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

twice the size of Llangefni (with a population of 11,431), is the largest settlement in terms of 

population. 

5.2.5 The JLDP identifies Llangefni and Holyhead as Urban Service Centres. As such they 

represent the most sustainable locations for development on Island and this is reflected 

through the allocations for housing and employment within the plan. The towns of Benllech, 

Bodedern, Gaerwen, Llanfairpwllgwyngyll, Menai Bridge, Pentraeth and Valley are 

categorised as Local Service Centres and below them in the spatial hierarchy are the 

Service Villages of Gwalchmai, Newborough and Llannerch-y-medd followed by the Local, 

Rural and Coastal Villages and Clusters. 

5.2.6 Section 4 of this SPG provides project-wide guidance that will help to ensure that the 

adverse effects of the Wylfa Newydd Project upon the Rest of Anglesey (and the Island as a 

whole) are avoided, minimised or compensated for and that the benefits of the project are 

fully realised. This guidance should be taken into account by the project promoter or any 

other applicant in addition to the locational guidance and requirements contained within this 

section. 

Opportunities 

5.2.7 The Rest of Anglesey contains numerous safeguarded employment sites as well as 

employment allocations as defined by JLDP Policy CYF 1: Safeguarding, Allocating and 

Reserving Land and Units for Employment Use. Land is safeguarded for employment at the 

Primary Sites of Parc Cybi (JLDP site C9) and Penhros (C10) in Holyhead together with 

Bryn Cefni (C11), Land north of Lledwigan Farm (C32) and Land in the Creamery (C33) in 

Llangefni. These sites are also some of the nine designated Enterprise Zone sites on the 

Island. Opportunities to bring forward development on all Enterprise Zone land are available 

either to the project promoter or any other applicant or to the supply chain. The occupancy 

and future development of the Menai Science Park (M-SParc) at Gaerwen (C35) also 

provides an opportunity, particularly for nuclear related research and technology. 

5.2.8 The County Council has been active in securing funding for improvements in infrastructure. 

For example, the recent opening of sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Llangefni Link Road provide 

improved access to the Grŵp Llandrillo Menai campus and supports its plans for expansion. 

5.2.9 The visitor economy provides significant job opportunities for the Island’s residents and it 

relies upon having a broad offer of attractions, facilities and accommodation. Opportunities 

to broaden the tourism offer, for example, through support for the implementation of the 

consented Land and Lakes Holiday Village at Penrhos and Cae Glas, Holyhead should be 

taken where it exists. 

Page 339



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
177  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.2.10 In parallel with the provision of new visitor facilities, there are the opportunities to enhance 

the natural and built environment of the Rest of Anglesey, both as an aid to attracting tourists 

but also reflecting its importance in its own right and the value that it plays in defining cultural 

identity in the area. Opportunities to improve strategic footpath networks, such as the Wales 

Coastal Path around the Island, to support habitat restoration and management and the 

preservation and interpretation of the Island’s history present themselves. 

5.2.11 Local communities rely upon an ability to retain access to services and facilities, to jobs and 

to accommodation in order that they can remain sustainable and continue to maintain their 

cultural identity. In this context, the JLDP allocates residential sites in the urban and local 

service centres across the area as well as in service villages, with new market housing also 

supported by policy within local, rural and coastal villages providing its scale is compatible 

with a settlement’s character. Residential development in Beaumaris, Rhosneigr, Four Mile 

Bridge and Trearddur Bay is restricted to local market housing and local need affordable 

housing. Opportunities to bring forward housing allocations early in the plan period in order 

to address potential pressure on the market as a result of the arrival of construction workers 

would be supported by the County Council subject to compliance with the JLDP and national 

policy.  

There may also be opportunities to deliver additional park and share sites within this AoS. 

The development of Park & Share sites will allow construction workers to make formal and 

informal arrangements to meet and car share the onwards journey either direct to site or to 

the park & ride facility. Evidence from the Hinkley C project highlights that without such 

facilities, the percentage uptake of car sharing is extremely low. Providing such facilities will 

ultimately reduce the likelihood of indiscriminate parking in the vicinity of the A55/A5 corridor 

and at junctions of the local road network, as well as provide a parking legacy post 

construction. 

5.2.12 Overall, the Rest of Anglesey offers a wide range of opportunities and further consideration 

is provided to these within the AoSs which follow. 

Issues 

5.2.13 The Rest of Anglesey faces a number of existing issues associated with an ageing 

population, an increasing demand for services and facilities, a reduction in central 

government funding and an end to EU Structural Funding. The effects of these factors 

include a rationalisation of services, including education, a continuation in the decline in the 

use of the Welsh language as residents increasingly move to find work and at the same time 

Page 340



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
178  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

a lack of suitable skills to take advantage of the employment opportunities that may be on 

offer now or in the future. 

GP 32  The Rest of Anglesey – Key Development Principles 

The Wylfa Newydd project promoter , as part of the preparation of the application for DCO 

consent, shall consider the environmental, social and economic impacts of proposals as 

they apply to the environment, economy and culture of the Rest of Anglesey. Where 

positive effects are identified, opportunities to maximise their benefits should be taken and 

implementation measures agreed with the County Council. Where negative effects are 

identified, avoidance, mitigation and/or compensation will be required. Consideration 

should also be given to the potential for cumulative effects. 

The County Council would expect to see a commitment from the project promoter and any 

other third party applicant to actions which support its vision for Wylfa Newydd as 

described within this SPG. Actions will include, but not be restricted to, the enhancement 

of existing, and provision of new, infrastructure and community services and facilities, the 

promotion of the Island’s tourism offer, the delivery of employment opportunities. 

Measures to support the local housing market including the provision of affordable homes 

and environmental improvements across the Island. 

Development in the Rest of Anglesey whether it is associated or related with the project 

shall be located in line with the locational guidance and GPs contained within this 

document together with JLDP and national policy. In particular, development will be strictly 

managed within Coastal Change Management Area and the AONB. 

Page 341



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
179  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Holyhead and Environs 

Overview 

5.2.14 This Area of Search (AoS) covers 

Holyhead town, extending north-

east to include Llaingoch and Porth-

y-felin and south- west to Penrhos. 

The AoS also comprises land 

adjacent to the development 

boundary of the Holyhead urban 

area to the north, west and south. 

5.2.15 Holyhead is the largest town on 

Anglesey and as at the 2011 Census 

had a population of 11,43132 (16% of 

Anglesey’s total population). It is 

also the main retail and service 

centre and benefits from a range of 

community facilities including four primary schools, a secondary school (containing a wider 

catchment of nine primary schools), college, community hospital and a leisure centre. It is 

connected to the main Island by the A5 and A55 and the North Wales Coast main railway line. 

The County Council has recently rationalised primary school provision which has seen the 

schools of Ysgol Llaingoch, Ysgol y Parc and Ysgol Parchedig Thomas Elis replaced by Ysgol 

Cybi which opened in September 2017. 

5.2.16 Holyhead is the busiest ferry port in Wales and provides a key international gateway, with 

some 2 million ferry passenger movements each year to and from Ireland. These numbers 

exclude cruise ship passengers, the numbers of which were forecast to rise to over 20,000 

passengers in 2018. Despite the Port’s performance, the town has suffered from a decline in 

economic performance compared to the rest of Wales. This decline accelerated following the 

closure of two of its three main private sector employers in 2009/2010 (Anglesey Aluminium 

& Eaton Electricals). 

 

5.2.17 The Holyhead Travel to Work Area (TTWA), which covers Holy Island and the west of 

Anglesey, now has the highest Job Seekers Allowance rate, and the second lowest jobs 

density of any TTWA in Wales. Holyhead also suffers from severe deprivation.  

32Office for National Statistics.

Page 342



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
180  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The majority of Holyhead’s Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) are deprived and six out of 

eight wards lie in the bottom 20% most deprived of all wards in Wales. According to the Welsh 

Index of Multiple Deprivation 2014, Holyhead is one of the most deprived of any town in North 

or Mid Wales with an especially high deprivation ranking for health, education, physical 

environment, community safety, housing, income and employment. The LSOAs of London 

Road and Morawelon are the most deprived in Anglesey. 

5.2.18 The Wylfa Newydd Project has very significant potential to act as a catalyst for the 

regeneration of Holyhead by providing much needed investment in housing, community 

facilities/services and job creation. The need for investment and regeneration linked to the project as 

well as other strategic investment in Holyhead to support the transformational change of the town is 

one of the County Council’s key priorities as set out within the Holyhead Infrastructure Prospectus33. 

The Welsh Government provided an £8.5M capital fund to aid regeneration and housing projects in 

Holyhead over the 2014-17 period under the Vibrant and Viable Places urban regeneration 

framework, supporting the County Council’s ambitious programme to transform the town; the County 

Council’s aims and objectives for Holyhead, which include a co-ordinated response to major new 

development, are set out in Holyhead: Realising Sustainable Community Benefit34. 

5.2.19 Reflecting the impact of the EIP, Minesto, a tidal power electricity generating company, has 

obtained European funding through the Welsh Government for the commercial roll-out of its 

technology in north Wales with a proposed marine energy project at Holyhead. Minesto 

propose to install a commercial scale 0.5MW power plant in Holyhead Deep and continue with 

additional deployments in what will eventually be an array with a total capacity of 10MW, 

expected to be operational in 2019. The array will supply electricity to the equivalent of 8,000 

households and create significant employment opportunities in both the construction and 

operational phases. Plans announced in 2017 include the extension of the generation target 

to 80 MW. 

5.2.20 Holyhead is defined as a key growth settlement in the Wales Spatial Plan with the focus on 

providing services and employment and building on established strengths to support and 

spread prosperity to the wider rural hinterland. JLDP policy also seeks to concentrate 

infrastructure investment, employment opportunities and new housing provision in the town. 

The JLDP spatial strategy identifies Holyhead as an Urban Service Centre and a focus for the 

majority of future new development on the Island (together with Llangefni and Amlwch) whilst  

 

33 See: https://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/g/v/c/Holyhead-Prospectus-English.pdf 

34 The successful Stage 1 and Stage 2 bids are available via the County Council’s website. See 

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/business/regeneration-and-investment/vibrant-and-viable-places-bid-for- holyhead/.

Page 343

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/g/v/c/Holyhead-Prospectus-English.pdf
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/business/regeneration-and-investment/vibrant-and-viable-places-bid-for-


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
181  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Policy CYF8: Holyhead Regeneration Area supports development opportunities that 

contribute to positive change in the Holyhead Regeneration Area. Reflecting the role of 

Holyhead in the settlement hierarchy, its proximity to the main site and the potential for 

development related to Wylfa Newydd to support the regeneration of the town, it is the County 

Council’s view that the Holyhead and Environs AoS should be a focus for construction worker 

accommodation and related community facilities, employment uses for the project as well as 

for necessary transport proposals such as Logistics Centre, highways investments and Park 

and Ride/Share facilities. 

5.2.21 The Wales Spatial Plan seeks to maximise the opportunities of Holyhead as a major 

international gateway. The County Council therefore also considers that opportunities in this 

AoS should be explored in relation to the use of Holyhead Port and rail for the transportation 

of freight (bulk construction goods, plant and equipment) and workers, and for the 

development of associated freight logistics infrastructure. 

Opportunities 

5.2.22 Realising the potential for project-related investment to support the regeneration of Holyhead 

will require a co-ordinated and holistic approach to the planning of associated and related 

development and other major economic opportunities and regeneration initiatives in and 

around the AoS. The County Council will expect the project promoter or any other applicant to 

complement these opportunities where appropriate in order to deliver the best outcome for the 

local environment, economy and communities. 

5.2.23 The Holyhead and Environs AoS contains four of the eight Anglesey Enterprise Zone sites35 

including: 

 Anglesey Aluminium (EZ1) (consent has been granted for the development of a 299MW 

biomass power plant); 

 Parc Cybi (EZ2) (consent has been granted for distribution and warehousing uses); 

 Penrhos Industrial Estate (EZ3); and 

 Port of Holyhead (EZ4). 

5.2.24 Horizon’s third stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC3) included Parc Cybi as the location 

for a Logistics Centre. This facility is intended to control the timing of construction related traffic 

movements to the power station site and to allow consolidation of deliveries into fewer loads 

in order to reduce vehicle movements along the A5025. Whilst the development proposal 

would form part of the DCO application, the County Council will nevertheless expect the  

35 For further information on the Anglesey Enterprise Zone and sites see http://enterprisezones.wales.gov.uk/enterprise-zone-

locations/anglesey.

Page 344

http://enterprisezones.wales.gov.uk/enterprise-zone-locations/anglesey
http://enterprisezones.wales.gov.uk/enterprise-zone-locations/anglesey


 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
182  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

project promoter to demonstrate compliance with the sequential approach set out in JLDP 

Policies PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development and PS11: Wylfa Newydd – Logistics 

Centres, which include a preference for sites to be located on allocated/safeguarded 

employment land, within the development boundary of a defined settlement in the settlement 

hierarchy or, in other locations, adjacent to development boundaries of centres that are located 

in close proximity to the A5/A55 where sites falling into the first two categories are discounted 

in line with the policy criteria. 

5.2.25 As an Urban Service Centre, the JLDP envisages that Holyhead will be a focus for housing 

growth on the Island. Opportunities therefore exist to support housing development, including 

the sites specifically allocated in JLDP Policy TAI 1: Housing in Sub-Regional Centre & Urban 

Service Centres. 

5.2.26 A major leisure and residential development has been granted planning permission36 within 

and adjacent to the development boundary of Holyhead to the south of the AoS (Land at 

Penrhos, Cae Glas and Kingsland). The proposed Land and Lakes development includes, 

amongst other elements, the provision of 315 holiday lodges at Penrhos and Cae Glas and a 

residential development of up to 320 dwellings at Kingsland. The Cae Glas and Kingsland 

sites have been promoted by the developer for temporary use as workers accommodation for 

the construction of Wylfa Newydd. However, Horizon has removed the site from its 

consideration of locations for accommodation and now instead favours a campus of up to 

4,000 bedspaces at the main site. In accordance with the JLDP requriement to use consented 

sites given that all of the impacts of such sites have been assessed and (with mitigation) 

deemed acceptable, it remains the County Council’s view that the consented Land and Lakes 

development is a preferred opportunity to deliver construction worker accommodation that 

provides a lasting legacy benefit beyond the construction period of Wylfa Newydd (in the form 

of housing, major tourism development, employment and community facilities and services). 

5.2.27 The Holyhead Waterfront regeneration project is a joint venture between Stena Line and The 

Conygar Investment Company which benefits from planning permission37. The project’s 

concept is to develop the three distinctive character areas of: Newry Beach and green open 

space areas; Porth y Felin; and Soldiers Point and the Great Breakwater. The aim of the 

project is to enhance and rejuvenate Holyhead town by: attracting more visitors to both 

Holyhead and Anglesey; regeneration of the area and the renovation and reuse of the Listed 

Buildings and structures; improving public access through extension of the Promenade, 

enhanced public open space along Beach Road and the creation of a new beach; and by  

36 Planning application reference 46C427K/TR/EIA/ECON. 

37 Planning application reference 19C1046A/EIA/ECON.

Page 345



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
183  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

working in partnership with established local businesses and other tourist attractions such as 

the Breakwater Country Park to provide wider benefits. 

5.2.28 Another potential development site in Holyhead is the Former Eaton Electrical Site 

safeguarded within the JLDP as site C28 suitable for Class B1 and B2 uses. This site is 

within the Holyhead Port Enterprise Zone. 

5.2.29 In addition to the development opportunities outlined above, the Holyhead and Environs AoS 

is also expected to be a hub for development associated with a number of other major 

strategic energy investments on the Island. Together, they present a unique opportunity to 

deliver co-ordinated investment, economic growth and regeneration in Holyhead that 

benefits the local community and businesses. This includes the proposed Salt Island 

extension at Holyhead Port to provide a new deep water quay and standage area. This could 

provide a significant opportunity for consolidating or handling of seaborne freight/materials 

before being barged/shipped up to the MOLF at the Wylfa Newydd Main Site for ‘just in time’ 

delivery. This freight handling capability could provide a lasting legacy for Holyhead Port and 

could provide a significant injection to the Anglesey economy as well as securing the Port’s 

long-term capability to accommodate large cruise ships. 

Key Issues 

5.2.30 The County Council recognises that proposals for project-related investment in Holyhead, 

coupled with other major strategic investment projects in the AoS, will need to carefully 

consider the environmental and socio-economic characteristics of Holyhead and its environs. 

Key issues that will need to be considered by the project promoter and any other applicant 

include: 

 The natural environment: The AoS includes, and is enclosed by, a high quality natural 

environment including a European designated nature conservation site (Glannau Ynys 

Gybi/Holy Island Coast SAC and SPA located to the north-west), several SSSIs to the 

north, west and south east, Anglesey AONB and Holyhead Mountain Heritage Coast; 

 The historic and built environment: Holyhead town has a rich built environment and is 

designated as a Conservation Area which includes a number of Listed Buildings. Recent 

regeneration schemes funded via the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) and Welsh 

Government’s Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) programme have included the 

refurbishment and alternations to the historic market hall, whilst the proposed new school, 

Ysgol Cybi, preserves a Grade II Listed Building. The wider AoS includes further Listed 

Buildings and two Scheduled Monuments to the south, one within and one adjacent to the 

Penrhos Industrial Estate Enterprise Zone site; 

Page 346



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
184  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Flood risk: Whilst for the majority of Holyhead flood risk is not a significant issue, land 

within the Port is at risk of tidal flooding. There is also a risk of tidal flooding at Penrhos 

Beach extending inland over part of the former Anglesey Aluminium plant site; 

 Utilities: Within the catchment of Holyhead wastewater treatment works there have been 

incidents of sewer network flooding. Welsh Water has invested over £1.1 million in new 

water pipes to reduce the risk of burst mains; with further water quality investment work 

planned in 2017. If significant inward investment takes place in this area, this will have an 

immediate impact on the existing electrical infrastructure as there is currently insufficient 

capacity within the electrical network to accommodate major developments 

(housing/employment); 

 Housing & Community: Whether or not Land and Lakes is developed for construction 

workers (being the only consented site for Wylfa Newydd Construction Workers 

Accommodation), it is inevitable that some workers will seek their own accommodation in 

Holyhead. Holyhead’s local businesses and communities may experience substantial 

change and pressure arising from new development. 39.4% of Holyhead’s housing stock 

is within the private rented sector and pressures related to construction worker 

accommodation could negatively affect access to the housing market for existing 

communities, particularly vulnerable households. The potential for adverse socio- 

economic impacts could be increased in communities already experiencing severe 

deprivation as a result of increased pressure on important facilities and services including 

healthcare provision. Holyhead includes wards with some of the lowest percentage of 

Welsh speakers in Anglesey. The percentage of those speaking Welsh dropped between 

2001 and 2011 reducing in the Holyhead Town ward, for example, from 43.2% to 39.1%; 

 Highways capacity: The highway route from the Port of Holyhead to Valley is likely to 

experience increases in traffic volume during construction of Wylfa Newydd. Some of the 

key capacity issues along this route are at: 

o The access to the Port of Holyhead; 

o A55/A5 Junction; 

o A55 Junction 1; 

o A5 between the Port of Holyhead and Valley (as the alternative route to the A55); 

o A55 Junction 3 as the main strategic route through to the A5025 (alternative to the 

A5 route); and 

o A55 Junction 2

Page 347



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
185  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 5.4 Holyhead development boundary and allocations/ safeguarded land 

Page 348



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
186  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 33   Holyhead and Environs 

Associated and Related Development 

Temporary Construction Worker 

Accommodation 

Proposals for temporary, campus-style development in this 

AoS will be expected to meet the requirements of JLDP 

Policies PS9 and PS10 and have regard to other relevant 

guidance in this SPG (GP 10a). 

In accordance with the JLDP requirement to prefer the use of 

consented sites before considering further applications, the 

County Council prefers that the project promoter makes 

appropriate use of the approved development opportunities at 

Cae Glas and Kingsland to provide construction worker 

accommodation within the Holyhead and Environs AoS. 

Permanent Housing Proposals for permanent housing that is temporarily used to 

accommodate construction workers should be in accordance 

with relevant national and local planning policy and have 

regard to the guidance set out in this and other SPG in terms 

of location, design and type. 

Open market and/or affordable housing will be supported by 

the County Council provided that it is consistent with JLDP 

Policy TAI 1 and comprises of development on the allocated 

sites of Tyddyn Bach (T10), Land near Cae Rhos (T11), Land 

near Yr Ogof (T12), Land near Waunfawr Estate (T14), Glan y 

Dŵr (T15) or Ca Serri Road (T16). Development on suitable 

windfall sites within the development boundary of Holyhead 

will also be acceptable subject to compliance with JLDP policy. 

The County Council would support appropriate use of the 

permitted permanent residential development opportunities at 

Kingsland. 

Employment The County Council supports the generation of suitable small 

and large scale new business opportunities, supply chain 

opportunities and the expansion of existing businesses in the 

Holyhead and Environs AoS related to the Wylfa Newydd 

Project. 

New employment uses should be located within the defined 

development boundary of Holyhead, with a preference for 

Page 349



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
187  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

development on brownfield sites and land safeguarded for 

employment use under JLDP Policy CYF1. 

In accordance with JLDP Policy CYF4 and national planning 

policies and guidance, the County Council will support 

employment generating proposals on other suitable sites 

outside the development boundary of Holyhead subject to 

appropriate justification with respect to operational need, due 

consideration of environmental and social issues and there 

being no suitable alternative sites within the development 

boundary. 

Community Facilities and 

Services 

The County Council will require the enhancement of existing, 

and the provision of suitable new, community facilities and 

services in the Holyhead and Environs AoS that meet the 

needs of construction workers, can be used by the local 

community during the construction of the Wylfa Newydd 

Project and which, where appropriate, can be made available 

post construction as a permanent legacy benefit. 

The location, scale and design of new community facilities and 

services or improvements to existing ones should accord with 

JLDP policy and have regard to guidance set out in GP6 of 

this SPG and other SPGs. In particular, facilities and services 

should be easily accessible by foot, cycle and public transport, 

and should be built to the highest environmental standard 

possible (i.e.BREEAM ‘Excellent’). 

Transport and Freight Logistics Improvements to existing transport infrastructure and service 

provision including Holyhead Port, the North Wales Coast 

main railway line, the public transport network and the 

highways required to support the construction of Wylfa 

Newydd will be supported, subject to national and local 

planning policy and guidance as well as guidance set out in 

this SPG, particularly GP 15. 

The project promoter should consider the need for Park and 

Ride and Park and Share facilities and freight consolidation 

(Logistics Centre) in this AoS to minimise the volume of road 

traffic movements between Holyhead and the main Wylfa 

Newydd site. Where appropriate, the development of these 

Page 350



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
188  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

facilities should provide a legacy benefit either through their 

continued use beyond the construction period or by offering 

land for redevelopment. 

Of particular relevance to proposals for a Logistics Centre in 

this AoS are JLDP Policies PS9 and PS11 which set out the 

sequential approach to preferred development locations. 

Opportunities 

Enterprise Zone Sites The project promoter or any other applicant will be expected to 

give careful consideration, in liaison with the County Council 

and Welsh Government, as to how associated and related 

development can support the use of Anglesey Enterprise Zone 

sites EZ1, EZ2, EZ3 and EZ4. In particular, the County Council 

will expect the project promoter or any other applicant to: 

i. Explore opportunities to locate appropriate associated 

and related development at designated Enterprise 

Zone sites; 

ii. Assess the potential to enhance the capacity of the 

Port of Holyhead to handle bulk construction materials, 

supporting its role as a key international gateway; 

iii. Consider how investment in community facilities, 

services and infrastructure elsewhere in the AoS can 

complement and support the delivery of the Enterprise 

Zone sites. 

Land at Cae Glas and Kingsland The project promoter should fully assess the suitability of the 

consented Land at Cae Glas and Kingsland development to 

accommodate construction workers in the Holyhead and 

Environs AoS.  Should an alternative approach to the 

accommodation of construction workers be preferred by the 

project promoter, then the County Council will expect the 

project promoter to provide justification for the rejection of the 

consented scheme and selection of the alternative site(s), 

which should itself be in accordance with existing national and 

local planning policy including JLDP Policies PS9 and PS10.  

Page 351



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
189  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Other Potential Development 

Sites 

The project promoter or any other applicant should consider 

the potential for the Former Eaton Electrical Site to 

accommodate project-related employment development. 

Major Strategic Investments The project promoter or any other applicant is expected to 

work with the County Council and promoters of other major 

strategic investment proposals which are located within, or in 

close proximity to, the Holyhead and Environs AoS in order to 

co-ordinate investment and development opportunities where 

possible, to support the delivery of the Holyhead Infrastructure 

prospectus and to deliver the best outcomes for the local 

environment, residents and businesses including by realising 

legacy benefits beyond the construction period. 

Transport Infrastructure As well as exploring the potential of the Port of Holyhead for 

the transportation of construction materials, the project 

promoter should assess opportunities to utilise rail facilities for 

the movement of construction materials and workers. This 

should include the potential to utilise the existing railhead at 

the Anglesey Aluminium site. 

In considering the feasibility of rail, waterborne and road 

transport modes, and in developing proposals for associated 

and related development including logistics, the project 

promoter should take account of, and seek to support where 

appropriate, existing transport investment proposals in 

Holyhead and in particular the Holyhead Port A55 New Access 

Link. 

Regeneration of Holyhead The project promoter or any other applicant will be expected to 

work in partnership with the County Council and other bodies 

to support and complement wider regeneration initiatives in 

Holyhead (such as the Infrastructure Prospectus and the 

regeneration activities of the Môn CF). 

The project promoter or any other applicant should contribute 

to, and take account of in their development proposals, any 

masterplan for the town including the Holyhead Port 

Masterplan. 

Key Issues 

Page 352



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
190  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Natural Environment Proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, should not have an adverse effect on Glannau 

Ynys Gybi / Holy Island Coast SAC and SPA (or their interest 

features) or SSSIs and other ecological assets both within and 

close to the AoS. In particular, the potential cumulative effects 

of increased visitor pressure on the designated nature 

conservation sites of Holy Island, and proposals for the 

management or mitigation of this, should be identified. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale 

and design of development in order to conserve and enhance 

the Anglesey AONB and Holyhead Mountain Heritage Coast. 

Adverse effects on the natural environment should be avoided, 

mitigated and where appropriate compensated as far as 

possible and in accordance with national planning policies and 

guidance, the JLDP and the guidance contained in this and 

other SPG. Opportunities should also be sought to increase 

green infrastructure provision in this AoS and to deliver 

biodiversity and landscape enhancements. 

Historic and Built Environment Development proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other projects, should seek to avoid impacts on the historic 

assets (and their settings) contained in this AoS including 

Holyhead Town Conservation Area, Listed Buildings and 

Scheduled Monuments. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that 

reflect and enhance local character and provide a safe and 

accessible public realm, in accordance with JLDP policies and 

guidance included in this and other SPG adopted by the 

County Council. 

Flood Risk Careful consideration should be given to development in areas 

of flood risk and in particular on land within the Holyhead Port 

area. In accordance with national and local planning policy and 

guidance, development should be located away from areas of 

flood risk. Should proposals be brought forward on land 

subject to flood risk, a comprehensive approach to flood risk 

alleviation is expected, informed by a Flood Consequence 

Assessment. 

Page 353



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
191  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The integrity of existing flood defences including the 

breakwater at the Port of Holyhead (if port-related 

development is proposed) should be maintained. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for 

associated development in the Holyhead and Environs AoS, 

the project promoter or any other applicant should work with 

Welsh Water, Scottish Power Energy Networks and Wales & 

West Utilities, BT and other telecommunications/broadband 

providers to ascertain if investment and upgrade of the existing 

infrastructure network is required to accommodate 

development. This investment may include, for example, 

improvements to the electrical infrastructure and to the IT 

communications infrastructure. 

Social and Economic Proposals in the Holyhead and Environs AoS, either alone or 

in combination with other developments, should not have an 

unacceptable impact on local businesses, community facilities 

and services (including healthcare provision) and quality of life. 

An assessment of the socio-economic impacts of proposals 

should be undertaken, the detail of which should be 

commensurate with the type and scale of development 

proposed. Particular attention should  be  given  to  potential  

impacts  on  Holyhead’s most deprived  LSOAs.   Where  the  

potential  for  adverse  impacts is identified, appropriate 

mitigation and/or compensation should be implemented. 

The County Council will expect a Welsh Language Statement 

or a more detailed Welsh Language Impact Assessment to be 

submitted with all related development planning applications in 

this AoS, dependent on the thresholds set out in JLDP Policy 

PS1 and details of the proposal. 

Highways Capacity The project promoter or any other third party applicant should 

ensure that proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other developments, do not exacerbate traffic congestion. In 

accordance with national and local planning policy and 

guidance and GP 15 in this SPG, the project promoter and any 

other applicant should assess potential impacts on highway 

infrastructure and ensure that highway improvements are 

Page 354



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
192  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

provided where appropriate to minimise congestion, ensure 

safety and minimise environmental impacts associated with 

noise, air quality and severance. 

New development should be located so as to minimise the 

need to travel and maximise sustainable transport access. The 

County Council will expect the project promoter or any other 

applicant to identify opportunities for investment in local public 

transport and the enhancement of existing, and provision of 

new, pedestrian and cycle paths. 

Page 355



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
193  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Llangefni and Environs 

Overview 

5.2.35 The Llangefni and Environs AoS comprises the 

town of Llangefni together with its immediate 

hinterland including the A5114 which provides 

access to the A5 and A55. Llangefni is the 

Island’s second largest settlement with a 

population of 5,116 (as at the 2011 Census) and 

benefits from a range of community facilities and 

services including two primary schools, a 

secondary school, college, leisure centre and 

community hospital. 

5.2.36 Llangefni is an important employment centre supporting 3,754 jobs, slightly higher than the 

total number of jobs provided in Holyhead. However, pockets of severe deprivation exist in the 

town. The Tudur ward covering the eastern third of the town, for example, is a designated 

Communities First area and is the third most deprived ward in Anglesey (and is amongst the 

15% most deprived wards in Wales) with particular issues relating to health, income, 

employment and education deprivation. The Môn CF Programme, which helps to provide 

employment and training support across the Island, is due to be phased out from March 2018. 

5.2.37 The development of Llangefni is an important socio-economic driver for the Island as a whole. 

It is identified as one of the three Urban Service Centres for growth in the JLDP whilst the 

Wales Spatial Plan designates the town as a Regeneration Area. In this context, a number of 

regeneration initiatives have been implemented to enhance the town’s role as an important 

commercial centre. Current projects, meanwhile, are seeking to capitalise on the opportunities 

presented by the EIP, Enterprise Zone and the Wylfa Newydd Project in particular. These 

initiatives include the ongoing construction of the Link Road to the east and south of the town, 

investment in training and education at Grŵp Llandrillo Menai campus and the provision of 

high quality business premises and infrastructure. As a result, the County Council considers 

that the Llangefni and Environs AoS has the potential to accommodate a range of 

development related to the Wylfa Newydd Project including construction worker 

accommodation, employment, supply chain and logistics uses. 

 

38 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 2014.

Page 356



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
194  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Opportunities 

5.2.38 It is vital that the Wylfa Newydd project promoter and any other applicant, works with the 

County Council, the Welsh Government and other stakeholders to capitalise on the 

opportunities presented in this AoS and to complement the existing efforts being made to 

enhance the socio- economic potential of Llangefni. In particular, the County Council is 

seeking to bring forward two Anglesey Enterprise Zone sites for energy-related development. 

These sites are: 

5.2.39 Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate (EZ5): an existing industrial estate with a mix of office and light 

industrial uses which is safeguarded for employment use under JLDP Policy CYF1 (as site 

C11). It is located close to the A55 and offers design and build opportunities for the low carbon 

energy supply chain. The County Council has secured funding from the European Regional 

Development Fund (EU Convergence Programme for West Wales and the Valleys) and 

previously from the Welsh Government’s Môn a Menai Regeneration Programme to facilitate 

a package of industrial estate improvements in the Llangefni area which include: 

 estate reviews and improvement plans; 

 development briefs and planning permissions for key sites; 

 estate signage and environmental improvements; 

 site infrastructure improvements; 

 marketing and promotional activities to attract investment and jobs; and 

 development of new bespoke BREEAM Excellent business units for rent. 

5.2.40 Creamery Land and land north of Lledwigan Farm (EZ6): located close to the existing Bryn 

Cefni Industrial Park, this site has potential to accommodate industrial and office uses and is 

allocated as sites C32 and C33 for employment under JLDP Policy CYF1. 

5.2.41 In addition, the new Llangefni Link Road to the east of the town, which links the Grŵp Llandrillo 

Menai campus to the A5114 at the Lon Glanhwfa/Industrial Estate Road junction, has been 

partially constructed. Sections 1 and 2 have provided a new road from the Grŵp Llandrillo 

Menai campus to the B5420 Lon Penmynydd, and then linking through to the existing Bryn 

Cefni Business Park road. Section 4, which connects the Link Road to the A5114 has also 

recently opened whilst the detailed plans for Section 3 have been granted permission39. The 

Link Road enables the growth and expansion of the Grŵp Llandrillo Menai campus and 

provides improved access to the Enterprise Zone sites. Additionally, the scheme improves 

linkages with the A55 and helps overcome traffic constraints in Llangefni. 

39 Planning application reference: 34LPA1013B/DA/CC 

Page 357



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
195  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

5.2.42 The Grŵp Llandrillo Menai campus has already expanded with the construction of an Energy 

Centre and further development is envisaged. Significant funding pledges from Welsh 

Government in 2015 will help to facilitate a £20m project for the design and construction of a 

new purpose-built, state of the art Engineering Centre adjacent to the existing Energy Centre. 

This will see the college being developed to support the County Council’s vision and its key 

priority of developing a robust local skills base to capitalise on employment opportunities 

afforded by the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

5.2.43 The current proposals by project promoter set out in the Third Stage Pre-Application 

Consultation (PAC3) do not include the provision of construction worker accommodation in 

Llangefni. GP 28 strongly supports Llangefni as a location for worker accommodation 

recognising the sustainability of the settlement and the legacy benefits that could be derived 

from development in the town. 

Key Issues 

5.2.44 The County Council has identified a number of key issues that will need to be considered by 

the project promoter and any other applicant when developing proposals for associated 

development or related development in the Llangefni and Environs AoS. These issues include: 

 The natural environment: There are no internationally or nationally designated nature 

conservation sites within the Llangefni and Environs AoS, although the Dingle Local 

Nature Reserve, a 17.5 hectare (43 acres) wooded valley, is situated to the north-west of 

Llangefni. The nearest internationally or nationally designated sites are the Anglesey Fens 

SAC and Caeau Talwrn SSSI (approximately 1km to the north of the AoS) beyond which 

is the Anglesey and Llyn Fens Ramsar site and Cors y Farl and Cors Bodeilio SSSIs. To 

the south, Malltraeth Marsh SSSI is situated adjacent to the A5. The Llangefni area os 

search has been identified by the project promoter as a potential location for a SSSI 

compensation site (at Cors Gwawr and Cae Canol-dydd near Talwrn).  There are also a 

number of Local Wildlife Sites in this area of Search; 

 Agricultural land: Land to the south and west of Llangefni includes Grade 2 agricultural 

land. Land of Grades 1, 2 and 3a (as defined by the Department for Environment, Food 

and Rural Affairs (Defra) Agricultural Land Classification system) is considered to be the 

best and most versatile agricultural land; 

 The historic and built environment: The Llangefni Conservation Area includes the historic 

town and several Listed Buildings. Whilst there are no Scheduled Monuments within the 

AoS, Tre-Garnedd Moated Site Scheduled Monument is located to the south-east of the 

AoS and in close proximity to Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate; 

Page 358



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
196  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Social and economic: Project-related development in the Llangefni and Environs AoS 

could have both positive and negative impacts upon local communities. Development 

could provide job opportunities and via Coleg Menai, training and skills development, 

which could support those living in areas of severe deprivation including the Tudur ward. 

The majority of the population in this AoS speak Welsh (over 80% of residents in the 

Cyngar, Tudur and Cefni wards speak Welsh, a proportion higher than any other wards on 

the Island). In consequence, should large numbers of non-Welsh speaking workers 

choose to live within Llangefni, then there is the potential for adverse impacts on 

community cohesion, Welsh language and culture; 

 Flood risk: Parts of Llangefni are at risk of flooding, particularly land adjacent to the Afon 

Cefni which lies within Flood Zone C2 and runs north to south through the town. Beyond 

the development boundary to the south of the town and east of the A5114, a large 

proportion of land is within Flood Zone C1; 

 Utilities: The Llangefni public sewerage system has experienced isolated incidents of 

flooding that may require resolution before developments can proceed. Electrical capacity 

to accommodate major developments is known to be an issue in the area. There is 

insufficient capacity in the electrical network to accommodate any significant additional 

loading. Installation of gas supply would be required to connect potential employment sites 

in the Bryn Cefni Business Park (Lledwigan & Creamery Land) to the main gas distribution 

line; 

 Highways capacity: The Enterprise Zone Transport Infrastructure Feasibility Report40 

highlights that Enterprise Zone development could create capacity issues around 

Llangefni and particularly in respect of the link between the Enterprise Zone sites and the 

A55. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40 AMEC (2013) Enterprise Zone Transport Infrastructure Feasibility Report. Prepared on behalf of the Isle of Anglesey County Council.

Page 359



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
197  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Figure 5.5 Llangefni development boundary an allocations/ safeguarded land 

 

Page 360



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
198  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

GP 34   Llangefni and Environs 

Associated and Related Developments 

Temporary Construction Worker 

Accommodation 

Proposals for temporary, campus-style development in this AoS 

will be expected to meet the requirements of JLDP Policies PS9 

and PS10 and have regard to other relevant guidance in this 

SPG (GP 10a). 

Housing Proposals for permanent housing that is temporarily used to 

accommodate construction workers should be in accordance 

with relevant national and local planning policy and the 

guidance set out in this and other SPG in terms of location, 

design and type. 

Open market and/or affordable housing will be supported by the 

County Council provided that it is consistent with JLDP Policy 

TAI 1 and comprises of development on the allocated sites of 

Land near Ty Hen (T17), Former Ysgol y Bont (T18), Ty’n Coed 

(T19), Land near Ysgol y Graig (T20), Land near Bro Tudur 

(T21) and Land near Coleg Menai (T22). Development on 

suitable windfall sites within the development boundary of 

Llangefni will also be acceptable subject to compliance with 

JLDP policy 

Employment The County Council supports the generation of suitable small 

and large scale new business opportunities and supply chain 

opportunities and the expansion of existing businesses in the 

Llangefni and Environs AoS related to the Wylfa Newydd 

Project. 

New employment uses should be located within the defined 

development boundary of Llangefni, with a preference for those 

sites listed within JLDP Policy CYF1, including the safeguarded 

‘Primary Site’ of Bryn Cefni (C11) and the allocated sites of Land 

North of Lledwigan Farm and the Creamery (sites C32 and C33 

respectively). 

In accordance with JLDP Policy CYF4 and national planning 

policies and guidance, the County Council will support 

employment generating proposals on other suitable sites 

outside the development boundary of Llangefni subject to 

appropriate justification with respect to operational need, due 

Page 361



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
199  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

consideration of environmental and social issues and there 

being no suitable alternative sites within the development 

boundary. 

Community Facilities and 

Services 

The County Council will require the enhancement of existing, 

and the provision of suitable new, community facilities and 

services in the Llangefni and Environs AoS that meet the needs 

of construction workers, can be used by the local community 

during the construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project and which 

where practical can be made available post construction as a 

permanent legacy benefit. 

The location, scale and design of new community facilities and 

services or improvements to existing ones should accord with 

JLDP policy and guidance set out in GP6 of this SPG and other 

SPGs. In particular, facilities and services should be easily 

accessible by foot, cycle and public transport, and should be 

built to the highest environmental standard possible (i.e. 

BREEAM ‘Excellent’). 

Transport and Freight Logistics Improvements to existing transport infrastructure and services 

required in connection with the Wylfa Newydd Project (such as 

the enhancement of highways capacity between Enterprise 

Zone sites and the A55) and freight logistics will be supported, 

subject to local and national planning policy and guidance as 

well as guidance set out in this SPG, particularly GP 15. 

To facilitate the sustainable movement of construction workers 

to and from the main site, the County Council will support the 

provision of Park and Ride and Park and Share facilities in the 

Llangefni and Environs AoS in accordance with JLDP Policy 

PS11 and also service improvements to the public transport 

network both to the main site and to sites associated with the 

project. 

Where appropriate, the development of these facilities and 

services should provide a legacy benefit either through their 

continued use beyond the construction period or by offering 

land for redevelopment. 

Opportunities 

Page 362



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
200  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Bryn Cefni Industrial Estate, 

Land North of Lledwigan Farm 

and Creamery Land Enterprise 

Zone Sites 

The project promoter or any other applicant, in liaison with the 

County Council and Welsh Government, should explore 

opportunities to locate project-related employment uses on Bryn 

Cefni Industrial Estate (EZ5) and Creamery Land (including 

Land North of Lledwigan Farm) (EZ6) Enterprise Zone sites, 

thereby supporting ongoing EIP and Enterprise Zone 

developments within Llangefni. 

Proposals for construction worker accommodation, community 

facilities and services and infrastructure elsewhere in the AoS 

should support and complement the delivery of the Enterprise 

Zone sites where appropriate. 

Grŵp Llandrillo Menai Campus The project promoter or any other applicant should explore 

opportunities to support the expansion of the Grŵp Llandrillo 

Menai campus in order to facilitate the training of local people 

and maximise the potential for jobs generated by the Wylfa 

Newydd Project to benefit the Island’s communities. 

Regeneration of Llangefni The project promoter or any other applicant will be expected to 

work in partnership with the County Council and other bodies to 

support and complement wider regeneration initiatives in 

Llangefni. 

Key Issues 

Natural Environment The project promoter or any other applicant should seek to 

ensure that proposals for associated and related development, 

either alone or in combination with other development, would 

not have adverse effects on internationally and nationally 

designated sites (or their interest features) including Anglesey 

Fens SAC and Caeau Talwrn SSSI, Anglesey and Lyn Fens 

Ramsar Site and Cors y Farl and Cors 

Bodeilio SSSIs and Malltraeth Marsh SSSI.  Adverse impacts 

on other ecological assets both within and close to the AoS 

including Dingle Local Nature Reserve should be minimised. 

Adverse effects on the natural environment should be avoided, 

mitigated and where appropriate compensated as far as 

possible and in accordance with national planning policies and 

guidance, the JLDP and guidance contained in this SPG. 

Opportunities should also be sought to increase green 

Page 363



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
201  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

infrastructure provision in this AoS and to deliver biodiversity 

and landscape enhancements. 

Agricultural Land In accordance with national and local planning policy and GP 

21 of this SPG, the best and most versatile agricultural land 

beyond the boundary of Llangefni should only be developed if 

there is an overriding need for the development, and either 

previously developed land or land in lower agricultural grades is 

unavailable, or available lower grade land has an environmental 

value recognised by a landscape, wildlife, historic or 

archaeological designation which outweighs the agricultural 

considerations. 

Historic and Built Environment Proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

development, should seek to avoid adverse impacts on the 

Llangefni Conservation Area and Listed Buildings in the AoS 

(and their settings). Careful consideration should also be given 

to the potential for development to affect the setting of Tre-

Garnedd Moated Site Scheduled Monument. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that 

reflect and enhance local character and provide a safe and 

accessible public realm, in accordance with guidance included 

in this and other SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Flood Risk In accordance with local and national planning policy, 

development should be located away from areas of flood risk. 

Should proposals be brought forward on land subject to flood 

risk, a comprehensive approach to flood risk alleviation is 

expected, informed by a Flood Consequence Assessment. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for associated 

and related development in the Llangefni and Environs AoS, the 

project promoter and any other applicant should work with 

Welsh Water, Scottish Power Energy Networks and Wales & 

West Utilities to ascertain if investment and upgrade of the 

existing infrastructure network is required to accommodate any 

additional development. This investment may include 

improvements to the electrical infrastructure and to the local 

sewerage infrastructure (dependent on the scale of 

development in the area). 

Page 364



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
202  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Social and Economic Proposals in the Llangefni and Environs AoS, either alone or in 

combination with other developments, should not have an 

unacceptable impact on local businesses and quality of life. An 

assessment of the socio-economic impacts of proposals should 

be undertaken, the detail of which should be commensurate 

with the type and scale of development proposed. Particular 

attention should be given to potential impacts on Llangefni’s 

most deprived LSOAs. Where the potential for adverse impacts 

is identified, appropriate mitigation and/or compensation should 

be implemented. 

The County Council will expect a Welsh Language Statement 

or a more detailed Welsh Language Impact Assessment to be 

submitted with all related development planning applications in 

this AoS, dependent on the thresholds set out in JLDP Policy 

PS1 and details of the proposal. 

Highways Capacity The project promoter and any other applicant should ensure 

that proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, do not exacerbate traffic congestion. In 

accordance with national and local planning policy and having 

regard to guidance, including GP 15 in this SPG, the project 

promoter and any other applicant should assess potential 

impacts on highway infrastructure and ensure that highway 

improvements are provided where appropriate to minimise 

congestion, ensure safety and minimise environmental impacts 

associated with noise, air quality and severance. 

New development should be located so as to minimise the need 

to travel and maximise sustainable transport access. The 

County Council will expect the project promoter and any 

othernapplicant to identify opportunities for investment in local 

public transport and the enhancement of existing, and provision 

of new, pedestrian and cycle paths. 

Page 365



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
203  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

A55/ A5 Corridor 

Overview 

5.2.45 This AoS forms a corridor 

around the A55 dual 

carriageway and A5 which 

bisect the Island on an east-

west alignment between the 

Britannia Bridge and Valley. 

The A55 is a Trans European 

Network route (E22) and a key 

strategic transport corridor on 

the Island, essential to the 

economic performance of 

Anglesey and the wider North 

Wales region. The Wales 

Spatial Plan seeks to maximise 

opportunities associated with the A55, particularly between the economies of Ireland, North 

Wales and beyond, whilst ensuring transport links between the hubs and rural areas are 

adequate to provide access to services, employment and leisure opportunities. The A5, 

meanwhile, is an important regional/county route. 

5.2.46 Transport movements associated with the construction of Wylfa Newydd are likely to affect 

the A55 and A5 as the principle routes onto and across the Island and in consequence, 

there may be a need to improve highways capacity and resilience at several locations, 

including: 

 A55 Britannia Bridge; 

 A5 Menai Bridge; 

 Around the A5/A5025 at Valley; 

 A55 Junction 2 and 3 (A55/A5 junction); and 

 Along the A55 (particularly at peak times of the day and holiday seasons). 

5.2.47 The County Council will therefore support proposals for improvements to the highways  

network in connection with the Wylfa Newydd Project in the A55/A5 Corridor. Reflecting 

Development Plan policy and guidance contained in this SPG, the project promoter should 

also seek to reduce vehicle movements associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project including 

through investment in public transport and the provision of Park and Ride and Park and Share 

Page 366



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
204  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

sites at key residential hubs in this AoS (for example, near Valley, following the preference for 

locations within or adjoining the development boundaries of settlements set out in JLDP 

Policies PS9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development and PS12: Wylfa Newydd – Park and 

Ride Facility and Park and Share Facilities), as well as through the provision of new, and 

enhancement of existing, pedestrian and cycle routes. 

5.2.48 The A55/A5 Corridor includes the settlements of Valley, Gaerwen, Llanfairpwll and Menai 

Bridge which are identified as Local Service Centres in the JLDP and contain a range of 

important community facilities and services including primary schools, GP surgeries, post 

offices and, at Menai Bridge, a secondary school, library and leisure centre. Gaerwen and 

Valley are considered to have the potential to accommodate campus style temporary 

accommodation for workers subject to criteria set out in JLDP Policy PS10: Wylfa Newydd – 

Campus Style Temporary Accommodation for Construction Workers. All of the settlements 

listed are considered to have the potential to accommodate other types of development related 

to the Wylfa Newydd Project including those uses related to: permanent accommodation 

available to construction workers; employment; supply chain; park & ride/share, transportation 

and logistics. It is the County Council’s view that other settlements in this AoS are unlikely to 

be suitable for accommodating Wylfa Newydd-related development due to their size and 

position in the settlement hierarchy. 

Opportunities 

5.2.49 It will be important for transport infrastructure development in this AoS to complement other 

infrastructure investment proposals and enhancements including those contained in the Joint 

Local Transport Plan, the County Council’s Highways Asset Management Plan (2011) and 

Cycle Strategy (2013) as well as highways capacity improvements linked with the Anglesey 

Enterprise Zone sites and other major strategic investments on the Island. 

5.2.50 The Gaerwen Industrial Estate Anglesey Enterprise Zone site (EZ7) (safeguarded site C30 

under JLDP Policy CYF 1: Safeguarding, Allocating and Reserving Land and Units for 

Employment Use) is located to the east of Gaerwen. The site includes existing industrial uses 

with significant potential for expansion and has spare capacity within the existing estate to 

accommodate low carbon energy businesses (JLDP Policy CYF 1 allocations C30 and C34). 

Other potential development opportunities in the A55/A5 Corridor include land near Mona 

Airfield (C31), which is potentially suitable for B2 and B8 uses. 

5.2.51 The Menai Science Park (M-SParc), off Junction 7 of the A55 near Gaerwen, is being 

developed by Bangor University with support from the Welsh Government and the County 

Council. It is allocated under JLDP Policy CYF 1 as site C35 and Phase 1 is currently under 

Page 367



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
205  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

construction. It is anticipated that M-Sparc will become a hub for companies specialising in 

scientific innovation, providing high quality research and development space. The Park could 

host industry facing and science based research projects within the Small and Medium 

Enterprises community and within large corporates. It is hoped that M-Sparc will build on the 

existing strengths of Bangor University in a number of research areas, including energy, 

environmental services, clean technology, engineering and electronics. It is also envisaged 

that M-SParc will contribute towards establishing the Island as a centre of excellence for low 

carbon energy through the Enterprise Zone status and Anglesey’s own Energy Island vision. 

5.2.52 Horizon’s third stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC3) included Dalar Hir as the location 

for its single, proposed Park and Ride site. This facility would be located close to the A55 but 

would be neither within or adjacent to the development boundaries of centres located along 

or close to the transport corridor. The County Council remains to be persuaded that this 

location is compliant with JLDP Policy PS12 and considers there to be opportunities to develop 

additional, satellite Park and Ride / Park and Share facilities within this AoS, along the A55. 

Key Issues 

5.2.53 There are a number of issues that will need to be considered by the project promoter or any 

other third party applicant in the A55/A5 Corridor AoS. These issues include: 

 The natural environment: The Menai Strait is a European designated nature conservation 

site (Menai Strait and Conwy Bay SAC). A further SAC (Llyn Dinam) is located at Valley 

Lakes to the west of the AoS. There are several SSSIs within and in close proximity to the 

AoS including (but not limited to), Llyn Traffwll, Cors Bodwrog to the north-east of 

Gwalchmai, Malltraeth Marsh to the west of Pentre Brerw, Valley Lakes and 

Beddmanarch-Cymyran to the west of Valley. The Anglesey AONB is located to the far 

east and west of the AoS. The AoS also includes two Special Landscape Areas, one to 

the south of Llanfairpwll and the other to the south of Llangefni; 

 The historic environment: There are a large number of designated historic assets in the 

A55/A5 Corridor AoS including Listed Buildings and historic parks and gardens; 

 Flood risk: There are a number of flood risk areas affecting parts of this AoS and in 

particular the south-east of Valley, which lies within Flood Zone C1; 

 Utilities: A Water Cycle Study prepared by AMEC (2014) indicated that Llanfairpwll 

wastewater treatment works was operating close to its volumetric capacity. The 

catchments of Valley, Gaerwen and Llanfairpwll wastewater treatment works have 

experienced sewer network flooding incidents; and 

 Social and economic: The A5 and A55 pass through and are adjacent to a number of 

settlements. Noise levels along and adjacent to the A55 are above 55dB (the World Health 

Page 368



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
206  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Organisation’s Guidelines for Community Noise (1999) sets an aspirational 55dB LAeq, 

16hr noise level for the avoidance in the onset of annoyance). 

 Highway & Junction Capacity: The impacts of the Wylfa Newydd Project and related 

development on the Island’s principle routes of the A55 and A5 is a key consideration 

within the AoS. Highways issues include those around: the A55 Britannia Bridge; A5 Menai 

Bridge; the A5/A5025 at Valley; A55 Junction 2 and 3 (A55/A5 junction); and more broadly 

along the A55 as a whole (particularly at peak times and holiday seasons). 

 Community Cohesion: Outside of the designated Local Service Centres of Valley, 

Gaerwen, Llanfairpwll and Menai Bridge the other Settlements in this AoS are relatively 

small and have a limited range of services and facilities. Consequently, it will be important 

to consider the socio-economic of development in this AoS including in respect of 

community cohesion, Welsh language and culture. 

GP 35   A55/ A5 Corridor 

Associated and Related Development 

Temporary Construction 

Worker Accommodation  

Proposals for temporary, campus-style development will be 

supported in Gaerwen or Valley with proposals expected to 

meet the requirements of JLDP Policies PS9 and PS10 and 

have regard to other relevant guidance in this SPG (GP 10a). 

Housing Proposals for construction worker accommodation should be in 

accordance with relevant national policy and guidance, and the 

JLDP and have regard to the guidance set out in this and other 

SPG in terms of location, design and type. 

In accordance with JLDP Policy TAI 2, new residential 

development on unallocated, windfall sites should be located 

within the defined development boundaries of Gaerwen, Llanfair 

Pwllgwyngyll, Menai Bridge and Valley with a preference for 

development on brownfield sites and the following allocated 

sites: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll - Land near Bryn Eira (T35) and 

Land near Penmynydd Road (T36); Menai Bridge – Ty Mawr 

(T37), Tyddyn Mostyn (T38) and Land near Lôn Gamfa (T39) 

and Valley – Former Cattle Market Site (T40). Residential 

development outside of the development boundaries will be 

required to be 100% affordable. 

Employment The County Council supports the generation of suitable small 

and large scale new business opportunities in the A55/A5 

Corridor related to the Wylfa Newydd Project. New employment 

Page 369



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
207  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

uses should be located on land safeguarded or allocated for 

employment uses under JLDP Policy CYF 1 (in, Gaerwen sites 

C30 and C34), or on suitable sites within or adjacent to the 

development boundaries of Valley, Llanfairpwll and Menai 

Bridge. In addition, the County Council will support employment 

related development on land allocated for B2 and B8 uses near 

Mona Airfield, Mona.  In accordance with local and national 

planning policies and guidance, the County Council will support 

employment generating proposals on other suitable sites outside 

the development boundaries of the settlements listed above, 

subject to appropriate justification with respect to operational 

need, due consideration of environmental and social issues and 

there being no suitable alternative sites within the development 

boundaries. The expansion of existing business will be 

supported provided that the development is consistent with 

national and local planning policy and guidance. 

Community Facilities and 

Services 

The County Council will require the enhancement of existing, 

and the provision of suitable new, community facilities and 

services in the A55/A5 Corridor that meet the needs of 

construction workers, can be used by the local community 

during the construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project and which 

where practical can be made available post construction as a 

permanent legacy benefit. 

The location, scale and design of new community facilities and 

services or improvements to existing ones should accord with 

Development Plan policy and have regard to guidance set out in 

GP6 of this SPG and other SPGs. In particular, facilities and 

services should be easily accessible by foot, cycle and public 

transport and should be built to the highest environmental 

standard possible (i.e. BREEAM ‘Excellent’). 

Transport and Freight Logistics The County Council supports proposals associated with 

improvements to the A55 and A5 and development of freight 

logistics in this AoS, subject to national and local planning policy 

and guidance as well as guidance contained in this SPG, 

particularly GP15. 

Page 370



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
208  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

In considering the suitability of the works proposed, the County 

Council will require evidence that: 

 The number of vehicles proposed is the minimum 

necessary and that other more sustainable methods of 

transportation to the main Wylfa Newydd site have been 

investigated and adopted where possible; 

 Appropriate Traffic Management Plans concerning the 

scheduling of movements, the bulking up of loads and 

the types of vehicles to be used will be adopted; 

 The works proposed minimise wherever possible the 

land take and severance that may otherwise occur to 

local communities; and 

 Full consideration has been given to pinch points and 

cross boundary impacts. 

To facilitate the sustainable movement of construction workers 

to and from the main Wylfa Newydd site, the County Council will 

support investment in public transport, cycle and pedestrian 

routes and the provision of Park and Ride and Park and Share, 

subject to the sequential approach set out in JLDP Policy PS12. 

Park and Ride and Park and Share facilities should, in 

preference, be located within or adjoining settlements with 

development boundaries along or close to the A55/A5 corridor 

in locations such as Valley, Gaerwen, Llanfairpwll and/or Menai 

Bridge. Where appropriate, the development of these facilities 

should provide a legacy benefit either through their continued 

use beyond the construction period or by offering land for 

redevelopment. 

Opportunities 

Gaerwen Industrial Estate 

Enterprise Zone Site 

The project promoter and any other applicant, in liaison with the 

County Council and the Welsh Government, should explore 

opportunities to locate Wylfa Newydd-related employment uses 

at the Gaerwen Industrial Estate Enterprise Zone site (EZ7). 

Proposals for construction worker accommodation, community 

facilities, services and infrastructure elsewhere in the AoS should 

support and complement the delivery of this and other Enterprise 

Zone sites where appropriate. 

Page 371



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
209  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Mona Industrial Estate and 

Allocation/ Safeguarded Land 

The project promoter and any other applicant should explore the 

potential to utilise vacant plots at the established Mona Industrial 

Estate as well as the employment allocations/safeguarded sites 

located in Gaerwen within JLDP Policy CYF 1. 

Menai Science Park (M-Sparc) In liaison with Bangor University and the County Council, and 

subject to planning permission, the project promoter and any 

other applicant should explore the potential for Wylfa Newydd 

related development to be located at, or in close proximity to, M-

Sparc, which is currently under construction. 

Existing and Emerging 

Transport Proposals 

The project promoter and any other applicant will be expected to 

work in partnership with the County Council to identify 

opportunities to complement and support the delivery of County 

transport proposals, including those related to: 

 The Highways Asset Management Plan; 

 Highways capacity improvements linked with the 

Anglesey Enterprise Zone sites; and 

 The County Council’s Cycle Strategy. 

The County Council will work with the project promoter and any 

other third party applicant to identify additional Park and Ride / 

Park and Share sites within locations that are compliant with 

JLDP Policy PS12. 

Key Issues 

Natural Environment Proposals in the A55/A5 Corridor, either alone or in combination 

with other developments, should not have adverse effects on the 

Menai Strait and Conwy Bay SAC and Llyn Dinam SAC (or their 

interest features) or other ecological assets such as SSSIs within 

and close to the AoS. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale and 

design of development to the far west and east of the AoS, in 

order to conserve and enhance the Anglesey AONB and the 

Special Landscape Areas that are of relevance to the AoS. When 

designing necessary road improvements, the County Council will 

adopt a presumption against development within the AONB 

unless wider environmental and social benefits can be 

demonstrated to outweigh the adverse effects to it. It will also 

require: the use of materials for related structures (for acoustic 

Page 372



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
210  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

walls, footpaths etc.) that reflect local character; that Public 

Rights of Way are not severed (and that enhancements 

(condition, signage) to them are adopted); and that vegetation 

and wider habitat loss is minimised and where lost, it is replaced. 

Adverse effects on the natural environment should be avoided, 

mitigated and where appropriate compensated as far as possible 

and in accordance with national planning policy and guidance, 

the JLDP and as guidance contained in this SPG. Opportunities 

should also be sought to deliver biodiversity and landscape 

enhancements. 

Historic and Built Environment Development proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, should seek to avoid adverse impacts on the 

area’s historic assets (and their settings). In accordance with 

national and local planning policies and GP23, an assessment of 

the impact of proposals on the historic environment should be 

undertaken with particular attention given to designated sites 

within and in close proximity to the A55/A5 Corridor. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that reflect 

and enhance local character and provide a safe and accessible 

public realm, having regard to guidance included in this and other 

SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Flood Risk In accordance with national and local planning policies, 

development should be located away from areas of flood risk. 

Should proposals be brought forward on land subject to flood risk, 

a comprehensive approach to flood risk alleviation is expected, 

informed by a Flood Consequence Assessment. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for associated 

development in this AoS, the project promoter and any other 

applicant should work with Welsh Water, Scottish Power Energy 

Networks, and Wales & West Utilities to ascertain if investment 

and upgrade of the existing infrastructure network is required to 

accommodate any additional development. This investment may 

include, for example, improvements to the electrical infrastructure 

and to the local sewerage infrastructure (dependent on the scale 

of associated development in the area). 

Page 373



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
211  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

The project promoter and any other applicant should enter into 

early discussion with Welsh Water in respect of any development 

proposals within the catchments of Gaerwen and Llanfairpwll 

wastewater treatment works. 

Social and Economic Proposals in the A55/A5 Corridor, either alone or in combination 

with other developments, should not have an unacceptable 

impact on local businesses and quality of life. An assessment of 

the socio-economic impacts of proposals should be undertaken, 

the detail of which should be commensurate with the type and 

scale of development proposed. In particular, careful 

consideration will need to be given to the potential impacts of 

development on existing community services and facilities in the 

AoS. In order to avoid placing pressure on existing provision, and 

to promote community cohesion, proposals should enable the 

integration of existing and new communities, services and 

facilities. 

The project promoter and any other applicant should minimise 

adverse impacts on residential amenity from light, air, vibration 

and noise pollution associated with the construction and 

operation of transport related development. Reflecting GP7, 

measures to minimise adverse impacts may include: 

 Identifying Park and Ride and Park and Share facilities 

close to Britannia Bridge to intercept private cars and 

reduce traffic movements along the A55/A5; 

 Screening construction activities; 

 Providing compensation to affected receptors; 

 HGV routing; 

 Restrictions to construction working hours and traffic 

management; and 

 Monitoring of potential impacts including in respect of 

noise, air quality and light pollution. 

Proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, should not have an adverse impact on Welsh 

language and culture in the A55/A5 Corridor. The County Council 

will expect a Welsh Language Statement or a more detailed 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment to be submitted with all 

Page 374



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
212  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

related development planning applications in this AoS, 

dependent on the thresholds set out in JLDP Policy PS1 and 

details of the proposal. 

Page 375



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
213  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland 

Overview 

5.2.54 Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland is the largest of the seven AoS and covers the coastal 

and predominantly rural parts of the Island, away from the main centres and transport 

corridors. It includes some of the most environmentally sensitive parts of Anglesey, such as 

the World Heritage Site around Beaumaris, European and nationally designated nature 

conservation sites and substantial parts of the Anglesey AONB and Heritage Coast. 

5.2.55 Despite the lack of Urban Service Centres, this AoS is estimated to contain well over half of 

the Island’s population, accommodated within the collection of villages, hamlets and isolated 

dwellings. The AoS includes the designated Local Service Centres of Benllech, Pentraeth, 

Beaumaris, Rhosneigr and Bodedern. These centres, along with Pentraeth, are accessed 

via the A5025 with, south of the A55, the A4080 providing access to Rhosneigr. The 

Holyhead-Chester railway also runs through the southern half of the AoS with stations 

(request stops) at Ty Croes and Rhosneigr. Bodedern is accessed from either the A55 or 

A5025 via the B5109. Anglesey Airport is also located to the south of this AoS within RAF 

Valley. 

5.2.56 There are mixed socio-economic conditions present within this AoS. Its LSOAs do not 

feature within those most deprived on the Island; however, there is a distinctive north- south 

and east-west split between the LSOAs with those in the north-south at greater levels of 

overall deprivation. 

5.2.57 Reflecting the JLDP, it is the County Council’s view that only a limited level of Wylfa Newydd-

related development should be accommodated in this AoS (where the policy emphasis is 

towards the protection and enhancement of the environment and maintenance of existing 

communities). Wylfa Newydd-related development may be appropriate within the settlement 

of Bodedern which is located close to the A5025 and A5/A55 corridors and benefits from a 

range of important community facilities and services including a primary school, secondary 

school, GP surgery and post office. However, development in Bodedern must be of a scale 

appropriate to the settlement’s capacity to accommodate growth. 

Opportunities 

5.2.58 Reflecting the rural character of this AoS, there are few allocated JLDP sites with the 

potential to accommodate Wylfa Newydd-related development. Anglesey Airport is located 

less than 3km from the A55 and provides a gateway for both business and leisure travellers 

to North West Wales, linking the Island with Cardiff. The Airport has the capacity to expand 

Page 376



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
214  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

its existing services to include other UK locations if required and whilst air travel will not form 

the primary mode of transport for a large proportion of the Wylfa Newydd workforce, it could 

support the movement of some suppliers or specialist contractors. 

Key Issues 

5.2.59 The County Council recognises the importance of the built and natural environment within 

the Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS as well as the socio-economic conditions experienced 

by its communities. Settlements do not possess a full range of services and facilities whilst 

connectivity is lower than for some of the other settlements on the Island. Local communities 

are not therefore considered appropriate to receive substantial levels of Wylfa Newydd-

related development. 

5.2.60 Key issues that will need to be considered by the project promoter or any other applicant 

looking to locate any development within this AoS will include: 

 The natural environment: The Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS includes a 

number of European designated conservation sites, nationally designated SSSIs and 

National Nature Reserves. It also includes substantial parts of the Anglesey AONB and 

the Heritage Coast. Special Landscape Areas (designated under JLDP Policy AMG2: 

Special Landscape Areas) also lie within this AoS; 

 The historic and built environment: A number of the settlements in the Anglesey Coast 

and Rural Hinterland AoS contain Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas with 

Beaumaris forming part of the wider World Heritage Site. Conservation Areas in the AoS 

include Bodedern, Aberffraw and Beaumaris. Archaeological remains are also present 

across the Island and are less likely to have been disturbed given the predominantly 

rural character of the area; 

 Housing & Community: Settlements in the Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS are 

relatively small and have a limited range of services and facilities. Medium and higher 

order facilities are concentrated in the Local Service Centres of Benllech, Beaumaris and 

Rhosneigr with the other Local Service Centres and Service Villages accommodating a 

lower level of provision. Access to multiple facilities differs throughout the AoS with 

greater distances to travel (over 10 minutes’ drive time) experienced within the central 

part of the Island (the area around llyn Alaw) and much of the coastline including the 

area around RAF Valley. This AoS does not include areas experiencing the greatest 

levels of multiple deprivation on the Island; however, there is a distinctive pattern to the 

deprivation experienced within the LSOAs showing comparatively higher levels of 

deprivation running north-south across the Island as opposed to those that run east-

west; 

Page 377



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
215  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Tourism: The rich built and natural environment of the Anglesey Coast and Rural 

Hinterland AoS plays an important role in the Island’s tourism economy with much of the 

Anglesey’s tourism accommodation located within it. The wards of Trearddur, 

Llanbedrgoch and Llanidan accommodate a significant percentage of the Island’s static 

and tourer sites; and 

 Utilities: Given the rural nature of this AoS, water supply availability may be a key 

constraint. 

 Highways: A key issue is to ensure that appropriate traffic management measures are 

implemented which reduce the likelihood of roads to act like ‘rat runs’ through populated 

areas. 

GP 36   Coast and Rural Hinterland 

Associated and Related Development 

Temporary Construction Worker 

Accommodation 

In line with JLDP Policy PS10, the County Council will not 

support proposals for campus style temporary construction 

worker accommodation development in the AoS. The County 

Council will support applications for either existing or proposed 

static homes or tourer sites to accommodate construction 

workers only where the development can be shown to be 

compliant with JLDP Policy TAI 14 and regard is given to 

guidance set out in this SPG. 

Housing In accordance with the JLDP, the County Council may support 

the development of a limited number of permanent housing 

accommodation units: 

 Within the defined development boundaries of Local 

Service Centres, Service Village and Local, Rural and 

Coastal Villages in accordance with JLDP Policies TAI 

2, TAI 3 and TAI 4 respectively. Residential 

development outside of the development boundaries 

will be required to be 100% affordable. 

 Where they are of a character and scale appropriate to 

the settlement within which they are to be located; and 

 Where they would deliver a legacy of long-term local 

need accommodation. 

On the basis of its location in relation to the A55, A5025 and 

Holyhead, Bodedern is considered to be a key settlement in 

Page 378



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
216  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

this AoS and is designated as a Local Service Centre. It is 

environmentally sensitive (it includes a Conservation Area) but 

it does accommodate the only secondary school in the AoS, is 

served by public transport and contains a reasonable number 

of other services and facilities. JLDP Policy TAI 2 allocates 

one site for residential development on Land near Llwyn 

Angharad (T33) and  would  support  its  use  for  open  

market  housing  (with a proportion as affordable) as mitigation 

of the effects upon the local housing market as a result of 

construction worker demand. As an alternative, part of the site 

could be brought forward as accommodation for construction 

workers provided that the housing offers a longer term legacy 

benefit to the local community in terms of local need housing 

once the construction phase has been completed. Any such 

development should be supported by improvements to the 

existing bus service (particularly the frequency of service) and 

should be of design, scale and character appropriate to the 

settlement. 

Similar considerations will be applied to the allocated site at 

Benllech (Adjoining Wendon Café, T32) under Policy TAI 2 

and in the consideration of applications on windfall sites. 

Additionally, an allocation for local market housing is identified 

in Beaumaris (Casita, T31) under JLDP Policy TAI 5. The 

bringing forward of this site to help meet the housing needs of 

Beaumaris would be supported. 

Employment The County Council is generally unlikely to support the 

generation of new business opportunities and supply chain 

opportunities in the Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS 

related to Wylfa Newydd. 

The County Council may support appropriate small scale 

employment generating proposals on suitable sites where 

there is strong justification with respect to operational need 

and due consideration of environmental and social issues. 

The expansion of existing business will be supported provided 

that the development is consistent with national and local 

planning policy and guidance. 

Page 379



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
217  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Community Facilities and 

Services  

The County Council will require the enhancement of existing, 

and the provision of suitable new, community facilities and 

services in the AoS that meet the needs of construction 

workers, can be used by the local community during the 

construction of the Wylfa Newydd Project and which can be 

made available post construction as a permanent legacy 

benefit. The location, scale and design of new community 

facilities and services or improvements to existing ones should 

accord with JLDP policy and guidance set out in this SPG. In 

particular, facilities and services should be easily accessible 

by foot, cycle and public transport and should be built to the 

highest environmental standard possible (i.e. BREEAM 

‘Excellent’). 

Transport The County Council does not anticipate a need to substantially 

improve transport infrastructure within the AoS as a result of 

the Wylfa Newydd Project on the basis of the level of 

development that is expected to be accommodated in this 

AoS. Localised improvements may, however, be appropriate 

to access Anglesey Airport including the improvement of public 

transport connections to settlements and communities across 

the Island. 

Opportunities 

Anglesey Airport Opportunities to expand the air services currently offered at 

Anglesey Airport in response to the possibility of increased 

demand related to the Wylfa Newydd Project would be 

supported by the County Council, subject to environmental 

considerations. 

Expansion of air services may require development at the 

Airport. Such development must be able to demonstrate that it 

will not lead to unacceptable effects upon the environment, 

that it will take place within the boundary of the existing site 

and that it will not compromise the operations of the adjoining 

RAF station. Improvements to the accessibility of the Airport 

by sustainable transport means would be sought. 

 

 

Page 380



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
218  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

Key Issues 

Natural Environment Proposals in the Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS, 

either alone or in combination with other projects, should not 

have an adverse effect on the many European and nationally 

designated conservation sites (or their interest features) that 

exist within the AoS or that are adjacent to it. Proposals should 

also conserve and enhance the Anglesey AONB, the Heritage 

Coast, areas of outstanding historic landscapes and the 

Special Landscape Areas. 

Careful consideration should be given to the location, scale 

and design of development in order to prevent adverse effects 

from occurring, in accordance with the guidance contained in 

this and other SPG prepared by the County Council. 

Opportunities should also be sought to deliver biodiversity and 

landscape enhancements. 

Historic and Built Environment Development proposals, either alone or in combination with 

other projects, should seek to avoid adverse impacts on the 

historic assets (and their settings) contained in this AoS 

including, for example, the Bodedern Conservation Area. 

Proposals should adopt high quality design principles that 

reflect and enhance local character and provide a safe and 

accessible public realm in accordance with guidance included 

in this and other SPG adopted by the County Council. 

Social and Economic Proposals in the Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS, 

either alone or in combination with other developments, should 

not have an unacceptable impact on local businesses, 

including tourism and quality of life. An assessment of the 

socio-economic impacts of proposals in this AoS should be 

undertaken, the detail of which should be commensurate with 

the type and scale of development proposed. 

Appropriate mitigation and/or compensation should be 

implemented to address significant adverse effects. In 

particular, careful consideration will need to be given to the 

potential impacts of development on existing tourism 

accommodation, including static and tourer caravan sites, and 

community services and facilities in the AoS. In order to avoid 

Page 381



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
219  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

placing pressure on existing provision, and to promote 

community cohesion, proposals should enable the integration 

of existing and new communities, services and facilities. 

The County Council will only support development where it 

does not place additional demands upon existing services that 

cannot be met, unless these demands are funded by the 

project promoter or any other applicant. Access to existing 

services by a range of sustainable transport modes will be 

required and the County Council will expect the project 

promoter or any other applicant to identify opportunities for 

investment in local public transport and the enhancement of 

existing, and provision of new, pedestrian and cycle paths. 

The rural centre of the Island is not considered to be 

appropriate for development related to Wylfa Newydd due to 

its comparative remoteness. 

Proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, should not have an adverse impact on Welsh 

language and culture in the Anglesey Coast and Rural 

Hinterland AoS. The County Council will expect a Welsh 

Language Statement or a more detailed Welsh Language 

Impact Assessment to be submitted with all related 

development planning applications in this AoS, dependent on 

the thresholds set out in JLDP Policy PS1 and details of the 

proposal. 

Tourism Proposals in the Anglesey Coast and Rural Hinterland AoS, 

either alone or in combination with other developments, should 

not adversely affect the tourism potential of the area. A 

detailed assessment of potential effects associated with 

development in this AoS on tourism (both alone and in 

combination with other proposals) will be expected. 

Measures to address any potential adverse impacts on tourism 

and maximise opportunities from investment could include: 

 Maintenance and, where possible, enhancement of 

access to the coast allied with improvement to the 

Wales Coast Path; 

Page 382



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
220  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 Maintenance and strategic improvements to the Public 

Rights of Way Network, cycle routes and walking trail 

networks; 

 Improvements to visitor infrastructure and facilities; and 

 Destination marketing in liaison with Visit Wales, the 

Destination Management Plan Partnership and the 

County Council. 

The development of small-scale, high quality tourism 

accommodation for temporary use by construction workers 

may be supported in this AoS, subject to JLDP Policies P 9 

and TAI I4 (in the case of caravans, mobile homes and other 

forms of non- temporary accommodation) and guidance 

contained in GP12 and GP13a/GP13b of this SPG. 

Utilities In identifying locations and developing proposals for 

associated development in this AoS, the project promoter or 

any other applicant should work with Welsh Water, Scottish 

Power Energy Networks, and Wales & West Utilities to 

ascertain if investment and upgrade of the existing 

infrastructure network, including IT infrastructure/broadband, is 

required to accommodate any additional development. 

In particular, given the rural nature of this AoS, water supply 

availability may be a key constraint and the project promoter or 

any other applicant should discuss any proposals with Welsh 

Water. 

Highways The project promoter or any other applicant should ensure that 

proposals, either alone or in combination with other 

developments, do not exacerbate traffic congestion and traffic 

management measures limit the opportunity for areas to 

become ‘rat-runs’. In accordance with national and local 

planning policy and guidance and in having regard to GP15 in 

this SPG, the project promoter or any other applicant should 

assess potential impacts on highway infrastructure and ensure 

that highway improvements are provided where appropriate to 

minimise congestion, ensure safety and minimise 

environmental impacts associated with noise, air quality and 

severance. 

Page 383



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
221  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

List of Abbreviations 

 

AoS Area of Search 

CBC Community Benefit Contributions  

CFMP Catchment Flood Management Plan  

dB Decibel 

DCO Development Consent Order  

DMP Destination Management Plan  

EIP Energy Island Programme  

EqIA Equality Impact Assessment  

GP Guiding Principle 

GVA Gross Value Added  

Ha Hectare 

HER Historic Environment Record 

HIA Health Impact Assessment 

HRA Habitats Regulations Assessment  

JLDP Joint Local Development  Plan  

LAeq Equivalent Continuous Sound Level  

LNG Liquid Natural Gas 

LIR Local Impact Report  

LPA Local Planning Authority 

LSOA Lower Super Output Area  

MOLF Marine Off-Loading Facility  

MW Megawatt 

NNB New Nuclear Build 

NPS National Policy Statement 

Page 384



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
222  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

NSIP Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project  

ONR Office for Nuclear Regulation 

PAC Pre-Application Consultation  

SA Sustainability Appraisal 

SAC Special Area of Conservation 

SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment  

SIP Single Integrated Plan 

SMP Shoreline Management Plan  

SPA Special Protection Area 

SPG Supplementary Planning Guidance  

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest  

TAN Technical Advice Note 

TTWA Travel to Work Area 

WLIA Welsh Language Impact Assessment

Page 385



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
223  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

Appendix A 

Table A.1 provides an overview of the relationship between the project-wide Guiding Principles (GPs) contained in Section 4 of this SPG and 

other relevant National Policy Statements and national (Wales) and local planning policy, including: 

 Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy (EN-1) (2011); 

 National Policy Statement for Nuclear Power Generation (EN-6) (2011); 

 Planning Policy Wales (2016); 

 Technical Advice Notes (TANs); 

 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP): and 

 Other SPG adopted by Isle of Anglesey County Council. 

It should be noted that Table A.1 identifies the key policy linkages only and should not be viewed as an exhaustive list of all policy that may be 

relevant to this SPG.

P
age 386



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
224  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

Table A.1 Schedule of Project-Wide Guidance Principle Policy Linkages 

 
 
 
 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 
 
 

NPS EN-1 

 
 
 

NPS EN-6 

 
 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 
 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 1: Supporting the 

Anglesey Energy Island 

Programme and Anglesey 

Enterprise Zone 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 7 - Strategic Policies PS9, 

PS13 

- 

GP 2: Local Job Creation 

and Skills Development 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 7 - Strategic Policies PS5, 

PS9, PS13 

- 

GP 3: Supporting 

Employment, Logistics and 

Transport Uses 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 7 - Strategic Policies PS4, 

PS5, PS9, PS11, PS13, 

PS17 

- 

 

 

P
age 387



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
225  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 4: Supporting the Local 

Supply Chain and Service 

Businesses 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 7, 10 TAN 4 Strategic Policies PS5, 

PS9, PS13. PS17, 

- 

GP 5: Supporting the Visitor 

Economy 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 7, 11 TAN 13 Strategic Policies PS9, 

PS13, PS14 

- 

GP 6: Maintaining and 

Enhancing Community 

Facilities and Services 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 10, 11 TAN 4, TAN 16 Strategic Policies PS1, 

PS2, PS5, PS9, PS15, 

PS17 

- 

GP 7: Protecting Health Paras 14.3.1 – 14.4.3 Paras 3.12.7 – 3.12.11 Chapters 4, 13 TAN 11, TAN 12 Strategic Policies PS5, 

PS9 

Design in the Urban 

and Rural Built 

Environment 

 

P
age 388



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
226  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

       

GP 8: Supporting Healthy 

Lifestyles 

Paras 4.13.4, 5.10.5 – 

5.10.24 

Paras 3.12.7 – 3.12.11 Chapters 4, 11 TAN 12, TAN 16 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS9 

- 

GP 9a: Maintaining and 

Creating Cohesive 

Communities 

GP 9b: Maintaining and 

Creating  Cohesive 

Communities – Campus 

Style Temporary 

Accommodation   for 

Construction Workers 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.12.7 – 3.12.11 Chapter 4 TAN 12, TAN 20 Strategic Policies PS1, 

PS2, PS5, PS9, PS10, 

PS17, 

Planning and the Welsh 

Language, Design in 

the Urban and Rural 

Built Environment 

 

P
age 389



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
227  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 10a: Permanent Housing 

GP 10b: Campus Style 

Temporary Construction 

Worker Accommodation 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 9 TAN 2 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS9, PS10, PS16, 

PS17, PS18 

- 

GP 11: Latent Supply Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 9 TAN 2 Strategic Policies PS9, 

PS16 

- 

GP 12: Tourism 

Accommodation 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 11 TAN 13 Strategic Policies PS9, 

PS14 

Holiday 

Accommodation 

GP 13a New Caravan or 

Other Forms of Non- 

permanent 

Accommodation Sites for 

Temporary Residential Use 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapters 4, 11 TAN 13 Strategic Policies PS9, 

PS14 

Holiday 

Accommodation 

 

P
age 390



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
228  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 13b Use of Existing 

Holiday Caravans or other 

Form of Non-Permanent 

Accommodation 

      

GP 14: Maintaining and 

Strengthening Welsh 

Language and Culture 

Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 – 3.11.4 Chapter 4 TAN 20 Strategic Policies PS1, 

PS2, PS5, PS9 

Parking Standards, 

Design in the Urban 

and Rural Built 

Environment 

GP 15: Transport Paras 5.13.3 – 15.13.12 Paras 3.15.1 – 3.15.3 Chapters 4, 8 TAN 18 Strategic Policy PS2, 

PS4, PS5, PS9, PS11, 

PS12, PS13, PS15 

Design in the Urban 

and Rural Built 

Environment 

 

P
age 391



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
229  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 16: Utilities Provision Para 5.12.3 Paras 3.11.3 

3.15.1 – 3.15.3 

– 3.11.4, Chapters 4, 12 TAN 19 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS3, PS5, PS9, PS13, 

- 

GP 17: Managing 

Sustainably 

Waste Paras 5.14.6 – 5.14.9 - Chapters 4, 12 TAN 21 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS6, PS9, PS21 

Design in the 

and Rural 

Environment 

Urban 

Built 

GP 18: Nuclear 

Storage Facilities 

Waste - Para 2.11.3 - - Strategic Policy PS9 - 

GP 19: Mitigating Climate 

Change 

Paras 

5.2.13 

4.5.1, 5.2.6 – - Chapters 4, 12 TAN 8, TAN 22 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS6, PS7, PS9, 

PS19 

Onshore Wind Energy, 

Design in the Urban 

 

P
age 392



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
230  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

      and Rural 

Environment 
Built 

GP 20: Adapting to Climate 

Change 

Paras 5.5.5 – 5.5.17, 

5.7.4 – 5.7.25 

Paras  3.6.6 

3.8.3 – 3.8.5 

– 3.6.16, Chapters 4, 13 TAN 14, TAN 15, TAN 

22 

Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS6, PS9 

- 

GP 21: Conserving and 

Enhancing the Natural 

Environment 

Paras   5.3.3   –  5.3.20, 

5.9.5 – 5.9.23, 5.10.5  – 

5.10.24 

Paras 3.9.3 

3.10.6 – 3.10.8 

– 3.9.6, Chapters 4, 5, 13 TAN 5 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS9, PS19 

Design in the 

and Rural 

Environment 

Urban 

Built 

 

P
age 393



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
231  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 22: Conserving the 

Water Environment 

Paras 5.15.2 – 5.15.10 Paras 3.7.3 – 3.7.8 Chapters 4, 5, 12, 13 TAN 5, TAN 14, TAN 22 Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS6, PS9, PS19 

Design in the Urban 

and Rural Built 

Environment 

GP 23: Conserving and 

Enhancing the Historic 

Environment 

Paras 5.8.8 – 5.8.22 - Chapters 4, 6 - Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS5, PS9, PS20 

- 

GP 24: Planning Obligations Para 4.1.8 - Section 3.7 - Strategic Policies PS2, 

PS9 

Planning Obligations 

 

 

P
age 394



 Wylfa Newydd: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
232  

www.ynysmon.gov.uk      www.anglesey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Project-Wide Guiding 

Principle 

 
 

Principal Policy/Guidance 

 

 
 

NPS EN-1 

 

 
 

NPS EN-6 

 

 
 

Planning Policy Wales 

 

 
 

TAN 

 
Anglesey and 

Gwynedd Joint Local 

Development Plan 

Strategic Policies 

 
 

SPG 

GP 25: 

Powers 

Use of Council - - - - - - 

GP 26: Implementation and 

Monitoring 

- - - - Strategic Policy PS9 - 

 

P
age 395



 
 
 

 

Topic Paper 11: North 

Anglesey  

Prepared in support of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project: Supplementary 

Planning Guidance 

Page 396



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 2  

 

Contents 

1 Introduction 3 

1.1 Purpose of this Topic Paper 3 

1.2 Context 4 

1.3 North Anglesey Overview 7 

1.4 Structure of this Topic Paper 8 

2 Policy Context 9 

2.1 Introduction 9 

2.2 International/European Plans and Programmes 9 

2.3 UK Plans and Programmes 9 

2.4 National (Wales), Legislation, Plans and Programmes 11 

2.5 Regional and Sub-Regional Plans and Programmes 16 

2.6 Local Plans and Programmes 17 

2.7 Key Policy Messages for the Wylfa Newydd SPG 24 

3 Baseline Information and Future Trends 26 

3.1 Introduction 26 

3.2 Baseline Information 26 

3.3 Future Trends 47 

3.4 Key Issues for the Wylfa Newydd SPG 48 

4 Challenges and Opportunities 50 

4.1 Introduction 50 

4.2 SWOT Analysis 50 

4.3 Summary of Key Matters to be addressed by the SPG 52 

4.4 How Should the Wylfa Newydd SPG Respond? 52 

 

Page 397



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 3  

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose of this Topic Paper 

1.1.1 The purpose of this topic paper is to bring together the evidence base and policy 

context in relation to the communities and environment of North Anglesey to inform 

the updating of the Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance (Wylfa Newydd 

SPG).  It is one of 11 topic papers that have been prepared to support the: 

 Identification of the key matters to be considered in drafting the revised SPG;  

 Provision of guidance with respect to how the revised SPG could respond to 
the challenges and opportunities identified; and 

 Offer further information to the public in support of consultation on a draft 
revised SPG. 

1.1.2 Box 1.1 provides a full list of topic papers being prepared in support of the Wylfa 

Newydd SPG. 

Box 1.1 Topic Papers Prepared in Support of the Wylfa Newydd SPG 

Topic Paper 1: Natural Environment 

Topic Paper 2: Historic Environment 

Topic Paper 3: Housing 

Topic Paper 4: Economic Development 

Topic Paper 5: Transport 

Topic Paper 6: Amenity 

Topic Paper 7: Climate Change 

Topic Paper 8: Infrastructure 

Topic Paper 9: Waste 

Topic Paper 10: Population and Community 

Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey 

 

1.1.3 Ten topic papers were originally issued to support the SPG when it was first 

published by Isle of Anglesey County Council (the County Council) in 2014.  Since 

that time the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) has been 

adopted which has required the topic papers to be updated in line with extant local 

planning policy including the drafting of this additional topic paper as indicated in Box 

1.1 above. 

Page 398



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 4  

 

1.2 Context 

Wylfa Newydd 

1.2.1 Wylfa has been identified by the UK Government in the National Policy Statement 

(NPS) for Nuclear Power Generation (EN-6) as a possible site for a new nuclear 

power station (see Part 4 and Annex C of the NPS).  Horizon Nuclear Power 

(Horizon) plans to deliver two Advanced Boiling Water Reactors (ABWRs), 

generating a minimum of 2,700MW, on the Wylfa Newydd main site.  The Wylfa site 

is approximately 300 hectare (ha) in size and it is located beside the existing Magnox 

nuclear power plant (which ceased electricity generation in December 2015).  The 

project will also include associated development both on the Wylfa Newydd site and 

at various other off-site locations (see Figure 1.1). 

Figure 1.1 Location of Wylfa Newydd Main Site 

 

1.2.2 Construction of the new nuclear power station is a Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Project (NSIP) under the Planning Act 2008.  Legislation provides that 

projects like Wylfa Newydd are of such potential importance to the UK that a 

Page 399



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 5  

 

different consenting process to the “normal” grant of planning permission by the local 

planning authority applies.  Under this process, Horizon (the project promoter) 

proposes to submit an application for a Development Consent Order (DCO) for the 

power station to the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 

(Secretary of State).  The application will be made through the Planning Inspectorate 

who, following examination, will recommend to the Secretary of State whether 

development consent should be granted or not.  The final decision on whether to 

grant or refuse development consent rests with the Secretary of State1.   

1.2.3 Although the County Council is not the consenting authority for the NSIP, it will 

seek to ensure that development has regard to the strategic policies and principles of 

the Development Plan (the JLDP), the relevant NPSs, national (Wales) planning policy 

and guidance, and Supplementary Planning Guidance.  The JLDP is the spatial plan that 

gives effect to, inter alia, the Anglesey Economic Regeneration Strategy and the 

Energy Island Programme (EIP).  

1.2.4 In addition to the proposed power station, Horizon will bring forward other projects 

directly related to Wylfa Newydd.  These include off-site power station facilities and 

other facilities and works connected with the development 

(associated developments).  In accordance with the NPS (para 2.3.4), associated 

development may be proposed at the main site, or may relate to works on land 

located off the main site.  Associated development applications are now covered by 

the Planning Act 2008 in Wales and can, therefore, also be determined through the 

DCO process.    Separately, third parties may bring forward development proposals 

indirectly related to the project.  These might include, for example, sites for housing 

that will be occupied by construction workers.  These development proposals would 

require consent under the Town and Country Planning Act (TCPA). 

1.2.5 Since the previous version of this Topic Paper, Horizon has refined the likely off-site 

power station facilities and associated development required as part of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project.  It has undertaken three stages of pre-application consultation 

(in 2014, 2016 and 2017) relating to the proposals and, in the third of these stages 

(PAC 3), it presented a series of preferred options.  The off-site power station 

facilities are now proposed on one site in Llanfaethlu and the associated development 

is likely to include: 

 Site preparation, clearance and enabling works for the new power station 

(within the Wylfa Newydd main site); 

                                                      
1 Further information on the DCO application process is available via the Planning Inspectorate’s website: 

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/. 

Page 400

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/application-process/the-process/


Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 6  

 

 Marine Off-Loading Facility (MOLF), breakwaters and Holyhead Deep, a 

deepwater disposal site for inert construction material;   

 Off-line Highway improvements in four sections along the A5025; 

 Temporary Freight Logistics Centre at Parc Cybi; 

 Temporary Park and Ride facility at Dalar Hir; and  

 Temporary accommodation for the construction workforce on the Site Campus 

(within the Wylfa Newydd main site). 

1.2.6 In addition to the above associated development (that form part of the DCO 

application), Horizon also proposes to submit TCPA applications for site preparation 

and clearance works and for on-line improvements to the A5025.  In this context, 

reference to the Wylfa Newydd Project in this document includes the proposed 

power station and other development on the Wylfa Newydd main site and also the 

off-site power station facilities and associated development proposals, including the 

TCPA applications.  However, the Wylfa Newydd Project does not include the 

North Wales Connection Project (NWCP) which will connect Wylfa Newydd to the 

electricity transmission infrastructure (i.e. the National Grid).  The NWCP is also an 

NSIP.  It is being promoted by National Grid and will be subject to a separate DCO 

application process. 

1.2.7 The term ‘project promoter’ relates to both Horizon and any other third parties 

proposing development in direct response to Wylfa Newydd (for example, the 

provision of construction worker accommodation or related employment uses). 

Wylfa Newydd Supplementary Planning Guidance 

1.2.8 Supplementary Planning Guidance is a means of setting out detailed thematic or 

site-specific guidance on the way in which development plan policies will be applied in 

particular circumstances or areas.  The purpose of the Wylfa Newydd Supplementary 

Planning Guidance (Wylfa Newydd SPG) is to provide supplementary advice on 

important local direct or indirect matters and to set out the County Council’s 

response to national and local policy and strategies in the context of the Wylfa 

Newydd Project.  The SPG is supplemental to the recently adopted JLDP. 

1.2.9 The Wylfa Newydd SPG is intended to: 

Page 401



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 7  

 

 Inform the position which will be adopted by the County Council in its Local 
Impact Report2 and relevant sections of the Statement of Common Ground3; 

 Provide a planning framework (alongside the Development Plan and other 
planning policy guidance) that helps guide the applicant(s) and influences the 
design and development of the Wylfa Newydd Project elements to ensure 
sustainable outcomes, with a focus on associated development;  

 Inform pre-application discussions related to the main Wylfa Newydd site and 
associated developments; 

 Offer supplementary local level guidance, consistent with the relevant NPSs, 
which the Planning Inspectorate and the Secretary of State may consider both 
important and relevant to the decision-making process; and 

 Form a material consideration in the assessment of any Wylfa Newydd Project 
related Town and Country planning applications submitted by Horizon or other 
development promoters and businesses who may have, or wish to pursue, an 
interest in the project. 

1.3 North Anglesey Overview 

1.3.1 This topic paper differs from the other papers prepared to inform the SPG in that it 

is spatial in its focus, rather than topic based.  It addresses the eight wards which 

have been defined by Horizon as ‘North Anglesey’.  The Council has adopted the 

same terminology and geographical extent such that it is consistent with Horizon.  

The wards are: Llanbadrig, Amlwch Port, Amlwch Rural, Mechell, Llaneilian, Molfre, 

Llannerch-y-medd and Llanfaethlu. 

1.3.2 North Anglesey includes the site of the proposed Wylfa Newydd.  As such, many of 

the potentially significant environmental, social and economic effects positive and 

negative both individually and cumulatively are likely to be experienced within the 

area.  

1.3.3 North Anglesey includes the community areas of Amlwch, Llanbadrig, Cylch y Garn, 

Mechell and Rhosybol.  It includes settlements ranging in size from the town of 

Amlwch through to medium and small villages, hamlets and individual isolated 

properties.  The area has a rich and varied environment, including the Anglesey Coast 

                                                      
2 As part of the Planning Act 2008 process, the County Council will be invited to submit a Local Impact Report giving 

details of the likely impact of the proposed Wylfa Newydd Project on Anglesey.  Further information on the preparation of 

local impact reports is available via the Planning Inspectorate’s website: http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2013/04/Advice-note-1v2.pdf. 

3 A statement of common ground is a written statement prepared jointly by the applicant and another party or parties such 

as the County Council, setting out any matters on which they agree.  Statements of common ground help focus on the 

examination on the material differences between the main parties. 

Page 402

http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/Advice-note-1v2.pdf
http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/04/Advice-note-1v2.pdf


Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 8  

 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and Parys Mountain.  In recent times, 

the single largest employer was the former Magnox power station Wylfa A.  This 

ceased generation in 2015 and is about to enter a period of decommissioning. 

1.3.4 The scope of this topic paper addresses the main issues relating to the protection 

(mitigation) and enhancement of the environment, infrastructure and communities of 

North Anglesey. 

1.3.5 North Anglesey is a key consideration for Wylfa Newydd.  The project has the 

potential to both affect, and be affected by, conditions in North Anglesey, whether 

they are the natural environment, for example the presence of protected landscapes, 

or the communities which work and reside in the area.  Wylfa Newydd cannot be 

considered in isolation as there are other potentially competing demands on the 

communities, assets and resources of North Anglesey.  This requires an integrated 

approach such that emerging issues and potential cumulative impacts on the area can 

be addressed through the SPG.  

1.3.6 It should be noted that specific consideration of North Anglesey is also inextricably 

linked to other issues such as the natural environment, climate change, land use, 

communities, tourism, amenity and recreation which are considered in more detail in 

other topic papers. 

1.4 Structure of this Topic Paper 

1.4.1 The remainder of this topic paper is structured as follows: 

 Section 2: Identifies the key messages relative to the North Anglesey arising 
from a review of international/European, UK, national, regional and local 
strategies/policies; 

 Section 3: Presents the baseline information on North Anglesey; and 

 Section 4: Identifies the key matters related to North Anglesey to be addressed 
by the Wylfa Newydd SPG and considers how the SPG could respond to each. 

 

Page 403



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 9  

 

2 Policy Context 

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 The Wylfa Newydd SPG will influence, and be influenced by, other plans and 

programmes at an international/ European, national, regional and local level.  This 

section of the topic paper identifies the most relevant plans and programmes to 

North Anglesey in the context of the project and distils the key policy messages that 

will need to be reflected in the SPG.  

2.2 International/European Plans and Programmes 

EU Structural Funding Programme 

2.2.1 By 2016 EU Structural Funds had created 1,305 jobs within Anglesey supporting 

715 businesses and creating a further 505.  Funds have also been used to support 

learning and increase the skills base of those in employment4.  Figures are not 

available at the North Anglesey level but support has focussed upon those 

communities across the island considered to be most deprived.  

EU Habitats Directive and Water Framework Directive and Bathing Water Directive 

2.2.2 Whilst there are a number of EU Directives with the potential to influence the 

communities and environment of North Wales, given the presence of European 

designated ecological sites and the coast it is perhaps those directives of an 

environmental nature which may have the largest influence on new development both 

at Wylfa Newydd and elsewhere within the area.  The EU Habitats Directive ensures 

the conservation of a wide range of rare, threatened or endemic animal and plant 

species whilst the Water Framework Directive seeks to improve the quality of 

surface and groundwater.  The Bathing Water Directive requires local authorities to 

monitor the quality of their bathing waters, to classify and where necessary improve 

them. 

2.3 UK Plans and Programmes 

Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy (EN-1) (2011) 

2.3.1 This National Policy Statement (NPS) sets out national policy for energy 

infrastructure.  It identifies a number of topic areas which have the potential to affect, 

or be affected by, the environment (socio-economic and natural) of North Anglesey. 

                                                      
4 http://gov.wales/docs/wefo/publications/160524-infographics-july.pdf  

Page 404

http://gov.wales/docs/wefo/publications/160524-infographics-july.pdf


Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 10  

 

For example, the NPS addresses biological and geological conservation, flood risk, 

coastal change, landscape and visual impacts, land use and green infrastructure, and 

water quality and resources.  Furthermore, it provides guidance on the consideration 

of the potential for emissions to affect local communities, such as air, noise, dust and 

light and advises in respect of socio-economic effects that the impact of a changing 

influx of workers during the different construction, operation and decommissioning 

phases of the energy infrastructure could change the local population dynamics and 

could alter the demand for services and facilities in the settlements nearest to the 

construction work (including community facilities and physical infrastructure such as 

energy, water, transport and waste).  There could also be effects on social cohesion 

depending on how populations and service provision change as a result of the 

development.  

2.3.2 The NPS states that development should aim to avoid significant harm to biodiversity 

and geological conservation interests, including through mitigation and consideration 

of reasonable alternatives or compensation measures.  It supports the concept of 

‘good design’ and in the context of transportation supports demand management 

measures, a prioritisation of rail and water-borne transport over road and advises 

that requirements may be introduced to control HGV movements, prevent un-

authorised, overspill HGV parking and ensure satisfactory arrangements are in place 

to deal with abnormal loads.  Transportation issues do have the potential to affect 

the communities of North Anglesey. 

National Policy Statement for Nuclear Power Generation (EN-6) (2011) 

2.3.3 This National Policy Statement (NPS), taken together with EN-1, provides the 

primary basis for decisions taken by the Secretary of State on applications it receives 

for nuclear power stations.  Volume I of the Statement identifies ‘Wylfa’ as a 

potentially suitable site for the deployment of a new nuclear power station.  The 

document sets out the matters to be included in the assessment of environmental 

impacts as: 

 Flood risk; 

 Water quality and resources; 

 Coastal change; 

 Biodiversity and geological conservation; 

 Landscape and visual impacts; 

 Socio-economic; and 

 Human health and well-being. 

Page 405



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 11  

 

2.3.4 Whilst specific reference to ‘North Anglesey’ is not mentioned, reference is made to 

many of the features and sensitivities present in the area within Volume II, section C9 

Wylfa.  For example, reference is made to the potential for adverse effects on sites 

and species considered to be of European nature conservation importance suggesting 

that significant strategic effects on biodiversity cannot be ruled out    Furthermore, 

the Government’s Appraisal of Sustainability identified that there could be potential 

significant effects at the following Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) which are 

within 5km of the site and within North Anglesey: Tre’r Gof SSSI; Cemlyn Bay SSSI 

and Cae Gwyn SSSI.  The Government also recognises within the document that 

whilst there is some potential for partial minimisation and mitigation of the effects, 

there could be remaining effects on the AONB, particularly in those parts of 

North Anglesey close to the site.  Potential impacts on footpaths including the coastal 

path are also highlighted. 

2.4 National (Wales), Legislation, Plans and Programmes 

The Planning (Wales) Act 2015  

2.4.1 As implemented the Act delivers a modernisation of the planning system by 

strengthening the plan led approach, providing for local authorities to work together 

and for some to be merged.  It also introduces a statutory pre application procedure 

for defined categories of planning applications.  This procedure, known as the S61Z 

procedure, has already been used by Horizon in the context of two proposed 

planning applications for Site Preparation and Clearance on for online A5025 

improvements, both within North Anglesey.  

The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  

2.4.2 The Act places a duty on public bodies (including Welsh Ministers) that they must 

carry out sustainable development.  The Act puts in place seven well-being goals to 

help ensure that public bodies are all working towards the same vision of a 

sustainable Wales.  The goals are for the following: A prosperous Wales; A resilient 

Wales; A healthier Wales; A Wales of cohesive communities; A more equal Wales; A 

Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language; and A globally responsible 

Wales.  This sustainable approach to the consideration and delivery of development 

reflects the Council’s aspirations for development within North Anglesey. 

The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

2.4.3 Section 6, Part 1 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 states that a public authority 

must seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of functions in 

relation to Wales.  In so doing public authorities should promote the resilience of 

ecosystems, so far as consistent with the proper exercise of their functions. 

Page 406



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 12  

 

Planning Policy Wales (9th Edition) (2016) 

2.4.4 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) provides the policy framework for the effective 

preparation of local planning authorities’ development plans and can be a material 

consideration in the determination of individual planning applications.  Included in 

this, is the ambition for Wales to use its fair share of the Earth’s resources, where, 

within a generation, the ecological footprint is reduced to the global average 

availability of resources.  

2.4.5 Chapter 4 explains how PPW translates the goals of the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act into guidance for spatial planning.  Each goal is set out along with the 

Government’s requirement for planning policy and decision making.  Advice 

contained within this section of the chapter can be used to inform the SPG and, in 

particular, the way in which development should be planned within North Anglesey. 

2.4.6 Chapter 5 promotes the conservation and improvement of natural heritage in Wales 

through the planning system, with biodiversity considerations identified as being of 

key importance in development proposals.  Advice is provided on the importance of 

all features, but also the specific importance of international and nationally designated 

sites such as those found in North Anglesey.  Chapter 6 considers the historic 

environment.  North Anglesey has a rich cultural heritage and the land within and 

surrounding the main site is known to be important archaeologically.  Furthermore, 

the site is located alongside the registered (and statutorily designated) 

Cestyll Gardens. The chapter sets out the Government’s objectives with regard to 

the historic environment to ensure that it is protected, managed and conserved.  In 

the context of historic parks and gardens it calls for Councils to ensure that when 

considering development applications that they are protected and conserved. 

2.4.7 Chapter 7 Economic Development calls for the planning system to support economic 

and employment growth alongside social and environmental considerations within the 

context of sustainable development; whilst Chapter 8 Transport announces the 

Government’s aim to extend choice in transport and secure accessibility in a way 

which supports sustainable development and helps to tackle the causes of climate 

change.  This is to be achieve in part through the delivery of a more effective and 

efficient transport system. 

2.4.8 PPW chapters 9-14 provide national planning policy on Housing, Retail and 

Commercial Development, Tourism, Sport and Recreation, Infrastructure and 

Services, Minimizing and Managing Environmental Risks and Pollution and Minerals 

respectively.  Each chapter contains national guidance with relevance to North 

Anglesey. 

Page 407



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 13  

 

Wales Spatial Plan (Update 2008) 

2.4.9 The purpose of the ‘Wales Spatial Plan’ is to ensure that activities in the public, 

private and third sectors in Wales are integrated and sustainable, and that actions 

within an area support each other and jointly move towards a shared vision for 

Wales. 

2.4.10 In the area defined as north west Wales (including North Anglesey), the settlement 

of Amlwch is identified as a Primary Key Settlement.  Wylfa is also shown but 

reference to it in the document is with regard to the decommissioning of Wylfa A 

only.  The document recognises that north-west Wales has suffered from an outward 

migration of young people and inward migration of older communities.  It also notes 

that the wider area of north-west Wales is unique in both a Welsh and UK context 

due to its exceptional natural environment, built heritage and strong cultural identity. 

It recognises that the area’s towns and villages and the surrounding countryside are 

home to generations of Welsh speaking communities that attach a strong importance 

to place which is intricately linked with its dramatic landscape and coastline. 

Technical Advice Notes (TANs) 

2.4.11 There are 21 TANs (there is no TAN 9, 17 or 22) which cover a range of planning 

related themes.  Generally, they tend not to be geographically specific and as such 

references to North Anglesey, or to the settlements and features within it, are not 

mentioned.  Policy topics of potential relevance to North Anglesey are summarised 

below. 

TAN 2: Planning and Affordable Housing (2006) 

2.4.12 This document provides advice on how planning can deliver affordable housing.  It 

sets out different policy approaches and guidance on how affordability can be 

secured. 

TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 

2.4.13 TAN 5 states that nature conservation should be integrated into all planning 

decisions in order to deliver social, economic and environmental objectives.  It 

addresses the need to provide net biodiversity benefit. 

TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) 

2.4.14 TAN 6 provides advice on the local of development in rural areas, the policy 

approaches to the consideration of applications for rural enterprises and farm 

diversification and sustainable rural housing.  North Anglesey’s character is in part 

defined by its rural community.    

Page 408



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 14  

 

TAN 8: Renewable Energy (2005) 

2.4.15 TAN 8 identifies strategic search areas for the consideration of onshore wind 

projects over 25MW.  The areas do not include North Anglesey.  It states that 

onshore wind projects up to the 25MW capacity, should be encouraged on 

brownfield/urban sites otherwise most areas outside SSAs should remain free of large 

wind power schemes. 

TAN 11: Noise (1997) 

2.4.16 TAN 11 provides advice on noise generating development as well as the effects of 

development upon noise sensitive receptors.  The construction of Wylfa Newydd is 

likely to give rise to noise particularly within the North Anglesey communities that 

neighbour the site. 

TAN 12: Design (2016) 

2.4.17 This document provides national policy advice to deliver good design.  It introduces 

the steps to be taken in the consideration of design and sets out the various means 

by which local authorities can seek to improve the design of development in their 

areas.  Reference is made to the use of supplementary planning guidance. 

TAN 13: Tourism (1997) 

2.4.18 TAN 13 provides national policy guidance on the planning for tourism related 

development and the approaches to the consideration of applications.  Its focus is 

upon tourism accommodation and of potential relevance to North Anglesey is the 

guidance provided on the issue of holiday and touring caravans.  The document 

recognises that such facilities are particularly important in tourism locations but that 

special consideration needs to be given to proposals within sensitive locations such as 

AONB.  Advice is provided with regard to the importance of screening and 

landscaping of new tourism related development. 

TAN 14: Coastal Planning (1998) 

2.4.19 The coastal zone is defined as an area of land and adjacent sea that are considered to 

be mutually interdependent.  TAN 14 provides guidance on developments within this 

zone and assessments of coastal physical and biological conditions. 

TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) 

2.4.20 TAN 15 provides advice regarding development and flood risk in relation to 

sustainability principles.  It also provides a framework for assessing the risk of 

river/coastal flooding or from water that flows from developments to other 

locations. 

Page 409



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 15  

 

TAN 16: Sport, Recreation and Open Space (2009) 

2.4.21 The document references the use of open space standards and the approach to be 

taken to the planning of facilities within local planning policy and in the consideration 

of planning applications.  The potential influx of construction workers within and 

alongside the existing North Anglesey communities may lead to greater demand for 

existing facilities. 

TAN 18: Transport (2007) 

2.4.22 TAN 18 provides advice on the location of major transport generating development.  

It emphasises the importance of policy support for public transport, walking and 

cycling and provides further advice on the consideration of potential effects arising 

from development traffic, including mitigation.  

TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (2017) 

2.4.23 The document provides guidance on the how the planning system should consider 

the Welsh language when preparing development plans and considering planning 

applications.  The document is consistent with the provisions introduced by the 

Planning (Wales) Act 2015 including clarification of when the Welsh language can be a 

material consideration on planning applications and in the use of language impact 

assessments.  The communities of North Anglesey contain a high number of Welsh 

speakers compared to the national average. 

TAN 21: Waste (2014) 

2.4.24 The Note sets out the Government’s intention to reduce the amount of waste 

generated and where this is not possible to capture waste in ways that enable 

material to be used again and/or harnessing waste as a resource in its own right.  As 

such the document promotes the waste hierarchy.  It also seeks to ensure that new 

waste facilities do not harm public health or the environment.   

TAN 23: Economic Development (2014) 

2.4.25 TAN 23 provides policy advice to support the maintenance and creation of strong 

rural economies.  It also provides guidance on how plans should deal with the 

planning of economic development.  It states that the planning system should give due 

weight to economic development when considering planning applications and that 

economic objectives are not necessarily in conflict with social and environmental 

objectives.  

TAN 24: Historic Environment (2017) 

2.4.26 The Note sets out policy guidance for the planning of all aspects of the historic 

environment, from those of international importance (World Heritage Sites) through 

Page 410



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 16  

 

to listed buildings, locally designated conservation areas and unrecorded heritage 

assets.  The area of North Anglesey possesses a number of important historic sites.  

The approach to be taken within the SPG to the consideration of development 

potentially affecting such sites will be consistent with this guidance.  With regard to 

historic parks and gardens (Cestyll Gardens, North Anglesey), the TAN states that 

the applicant should show that they understand the significance of the registered park 

or garden and the impact that the proposal is likely to have on it.  The local planning 

authority should consider if the impact is likely to be unacceptably damaging. 

2.5 Regional and Sub-Regional Plans and Programmes 

A Single Integrated Plan for Anglesey and Gwynedd Strengthening Communities in Gwynedd 
and Anglesey 2013-2017 (2013) 

2.5.1 The Single Integrated Plan for Anglesey and Gwynedd, is designed to ensure that 

both authorities work together in order to improve the economic, social and 

environmental well-being of both council areas over the next 12 years. The Plan sets 

out the vision and the priority actions for the next 4 years.  The plan recognises that 

new developments, such as Wylfa Newydd and the Menai Science Park, are expected 

to have a long-term impact on the area’s economy.  It acknowledges the positive 

potential that such major investments may bring in areas such as the economy, social 

and environmental opportunities but also recognises the challenges.  The plan aims to 

facilitate the sustainable development of these projects whilst protecting the unique, 

culture, heritage and natural environment of the area. 

2.5.2 The plan does not make specific reference to North Anglesey or the communities 

within it.  Instead, its focus is towards issues at the joint county level.  The plan 

pursues three themes of Healthy Communities, Safe Communities, and Prosperous 

Communities setting out for each, the main facts (baseline), what the Council’s wish 

to achieve and how they will be delivered. 

Western Wales River Basin Management Plan 2015-2021 (2015) 

2.5.3 The River Basin Management Plan addresses: 

 Improving the management of rural land; 

 Reducing the impact of transportation and built environments; 

 Ensuring sufficient amounts of sustainable water; 

 Improving wildlife habitats; 

 Dealing with single source pollution. 

Page 411



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 17  

 

2.5.4 The North West Wales area of the Plan stretches west and south from Conwy 

covering the Island of Anglesey, the Lleyn Peninsula and land draining to Cardigan Bay 

as far south as Borth.  The Plan highlights that the tourism industry is of huge 

economic importance to North West Wales.  There are many EC designated bathing 

waters and opportunities for water based recreation including angling, sailing and 

canoeing.  A legacy of this still exists today with abandoned mines giving rise to 

elevated metal levels in rivers which sometimes directly affect ecological quality.  This 

includes the Parys Mountain copper mine in North Anglesey. 

West of Wales Shoreline Management Plan 2 (2012) 

2.5.5 The Welsh Government has defined a policy of Integrated Coastal Zone Management 

which encourages all organisations with an interest in the coastline of Wales to work 

together to formulate policies and plans that will lead to vibrant, economically 

successful and sustainable communities around the coastline of Wales. Shoreline 

Management Plans (SMPs) provide key information to inform the statutory planning 

process in developing Local Development Plans and economic development 

strategies.  

2.5.6 There are three heritage coast sections on the Island which are Aberffraw Bay, 

Holyhead Mountain and the North Anglesey Coast.  The North Anglesey coast is 

also divided into three Policy Development Zones (PDZs), one which is described as 

PDZ18 North Anglesey: Twyn Cliperau to Trwyn Cwmrwd. 

2.5.7 The plan notes that much of this section of the coast, is under the stewardship of the 

National Trust and the area is also designated as one of Ynys Mons Areas of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty, and as Heritage Coast.  It recognises that the whole 

area is important for tourism, combining the industrial heritage of the Amlwch area 

and the natural attraction and relative remoteness of much of the rest of the area. It 

states that the settlements are very much individual entities supporting tourism in the 

area but are also important traditional communities in their own right. 

2.5.8 The area around Wylfa Head is described as “Hard Rock Shore” and it is considered 

at minimal risk of erosion. 

2.6 Local Plans and Programmes 

Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) 2017 

2.6.1 The Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Development Local Plan (JLDP) sets out the vision, 

the planning policy framework and strategic aims for development and land use from 

2011 to 2026.  The vision includes reference to the settlement of Amlwch, in North 

Anglesey, it states that: 

Page 412



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 18  

 

“Amlwch will have improved its role as a key centre in the North of the Island for 

housing, commerce and employment opportunities to support the nearby new 

nuclear power station at Wylfa. Investment in its town centre will mean that it will 

have an improved shopping environment. Investment in the Copper Kingdom 

heritage between Amlwch and Parys Mountain will have improved its role as a visitor 

destination.” 

2.6.2 Regarding smaller settlements within the northern part of the island, it states that 

the: 

“Villages and clusters will be within convenient reach of the Sub-regional Centre, 

Urban Service Centres or the Local Service Centres. There will be more affordable 

housing and housing to meet the needs of the local communities, and rural economic 

development to strengthen and diversify the rural economy, whilst respecting the 

natural environment.” 

2.6.3 The JLDP is underpinned by nineteen strategic objectives set against five themes.  All 

have some relevance to North Anglesey.  The themes are: 

 Theme 1: Support and create safe, healthy, distinctive and vibrant communities; 

 Theme 2: Sustainable Living; 

 Theme 3: Support growth and regeneration that will transform the local 
economy under the umbrella of Anglesey Energy Island Programme and other 
strategies and plans, building on those elements of its unique economic profile 
that are identified as being of regional and national significance; 

 Theme 4: To give everyone access to a home appropriate to their needs; 

 Theme 5: Protect and enhance the natural and built environment. 

2.6.4 The JLDP contains strategic policies relevant to these themes.  Those considered 

most relevant are summarised in Box 2.1. 

Page 413



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 19  

 

 

Box 2.1 Summary of Relevant JLDP Strategic Policies 

 Strategic Policy PS1: Welsh Language and Culture sets out how the council will 
promote and support the welsh language; 

 Strategic Policy PS 2: Infrastructure and Developer Contributions describes how 
and when planning obligations will be applied; 

 Strategic Policy PS 4: Sustainable Transport, Development and Accessibility; 

 Strategic Policy PS 5 Sustainable Development states that development will be 
supported where it is demonstrated that they are consistent with the principles of 
sustainable development and lists the criteria all proposals should meet; 

 Strategic Policy PS 6 Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change 
permits proposals only where it is demonstrated that they have fully taken account 
of and responded to the policy criteria; 

 Strategic Policy PS 8: Proposals for National Significant Infrastructure Projects and 
Related Developments; 

 Strategic Policy PS 9: Wylfa Newydd and Related Development applies to the 
proposed new nuclear power station including development associated with it; 

 Strategic Policy PS 10: Wylfa Newydd Campus Style Temporary Accommodation 

for Construction Workers applies to the proposed associated development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 11: Wylfa Newydd Logistics Centres applies to the proposed 
associated development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 12: Wylfa Newydd Park and Ride and Park and Share Facilities 
applies to the proposed associated development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 13: Providing opportunity for a flourishing economy supports 
economic development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 14: The Visitor Economy applies to tourism related 
development; 

 Strategic Policy PS 15: Town Centres and Retail references Amlwch and Cemaes 

as local retail centres; 

 Strategic Policy PS 16: Housing Provision sets out a requirement for 7,184 housing 
units between 2011 and 2026 across both Council areas; 

 Strategic Policy PS 17: Settlement Strategy defines the hierarchy of settlements 
with Amlwch, the largest settlement in North Anglesey, an Urban Service Centre; 

 Strategic Policy PS 18: Affordable Housing sets a minimum target of 1,572 
affordable new homes; 

 Strategic Policy PS 19: Conserving and where appropriate Enhancing the Natural 

Environment.  The Councils will manage development to conserve and where 

appropriate enhance the natural environment, countryside and coastline; 

Page 414



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 20  

 

Box 2.1 Summary of Relevant JLDP Strategic Policies 

 Strategic Policy PS 20: Preserving and where Appropriate Enhancing Heritage 
Assets in support of wider economic and social needs; 

 Strategic Policy PS 21: Waste Management including the availability of land in 
appropriate locations to support an integrated network of waste facilities; 

 Strategic Policy PS 22: Minerals sets out how the Councils will contribute to 
regional and local demand for a continuous supply of minerals. 

 

2.6.5 The JLDP strategic policies are supporting by more detailed development 

management policies.  Those which make explicit reference to locations, settlements, 

projects or initiatives in North Anglesey are set out in Box 2.2. 

Box 2.2 JLDP Development Management Policies referencing North Anglesey 

 Policy TRA1 Transport Network Developments: references A5025 Valley to Wylfa 
and other transport infrastructure improvements associated with the new nuclear 
development at Wylfa Newydd, including improvements from Amlwch to Wylfa 
Newydd where need for improvement on that section is demonstrated following a 

highway impact assessment of the Wylfa Newydd Project on the A5025; 

 Policy AND 2: PV Solar Energy; sets out Council policy concerning the potential 
development of sites for solar power generation including the identification of 
‘opportunity’ areas.  One area is identified in the south of North Anglesey at 
LLanddeusart; 

 Policy ARNA1: Coastal Change Management Area: identifies the North Anglesey 
Coast as one such area. A number of other policies relate back to the management 
area.  Essentially however new residential development is not suitable in the 
CCHMA due to the high risk of coastal erosion and flooding; 

 Policy CYF1: Safeguarding, Allocating and Reserving Land and Units for 
Employment Use.   Identifies sites, designated as secondary sites in North 

Anglesey. Sites are the Former Shell land, Amlwch, LLyn Onn Industrial park, 
Amlwch, in addition to a reserve site, the former Shell Site at Rhosgoch; 

 Policy TAI 1: Housing in Sub-Regional Centres and Urban Service Centres. 
Identifies Amlwch as an Urban Service Centre allocating five sites with a total 

capacity of 373 dwellings with a further 142 as windfall; 

Page 415



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 21  

 

 

Box 2.2 JLDP Development Management Policies referencing North Anglesey 

 Policy TAI 2: Housing in Local Service Centres identifies the North Anglesey 
settlement of Cemaes allocating one site for 60 homes and a windfall allowance of 
18; 

 Policy TAI 3: Housing in Service Villages identifies the village of Llannerch-y-medd 
with a site allocated for 17 dwellings and a further windfall provision of 22; 

 Policy TAI 4: Housing in Local, Rural & Coastal Villages identifies the following 

North Anglesey villages of Llanfaethlu (12 dwellings), Llanfechell (24), Llanfachraeth 
(27), Penysarn (27) and Tregele (10); 

 Policy TAI 5: Local Market Housing allows for local market housing on unallocated 
sites within the above settlements subject to certain criteria. It indicates 32 
dwellings in Moelfre; 

 Policy TAI 6: Housing in Clusters identifies clusters of small villages including some 
in North Anglesey where new housing may be acceptable subject to certain 
criteria; 

 Policy TAI 10: Campus Style Accommodation for Construction Workers identifies 
criteria against which proposals for this type of accommodation will be considered;  

 Policy TAI 15: Affordable Housing Threshold & Distribution sets out the 
thresholds over which a percentage of affordable housing will be required.  For all 
categories of settlements above cluster, the threshold is set at 2.  The percentage 
of affordable is set at 10% for ‘Amlwch & Hinterland’; 

 Policy AMG1: Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plans. The North 
Anglesey coast lies substantially within the AONB where new development is 
required to the Management Plan; 

 Policy AMG 2: Special Landscape Areas includes the SLA of Parys Mountain and 
slopes; 

 Policy AMG 3: Protecting and Enhancing Features and Qualities that are Distinctive 
to the Local Landscape Character states that additional consideration will be given 

to developments which directly affect the landscape character if the AONBs in the 
plan are which include the AONB around the North Anglesey coast; 

 Policy AMG 4: Coastal Protection sets a number of criteria which proposals for 
development along the coast will be assessed; 

 Policy AMG 5: Local Biodiversity Conservation requires that proposals must 
protect and, where appropriate, enhance biodiversity that has been identified as 
being important to the local area.  The Policy acknowledges Section 6, Part 1 of 
the Environment (Wales) Act 2016; 

 Policy AT 1: Conservation Areas, World Heritage Sites and registered Historic 
Landscapes, Parks and Gardens requires that development proposals give due 
regard to the plans and registers in place for historic areas, within North Anglesey 

Cestyll Gardens is a registered Historic Garden; 

 Policy GWA 3: Radioactive Waste Management states that facilities will be granted 

Page 416



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 22  

 

Box 2.2 JLDP Development Management Policies referencing North Anglesey 

consent subject to meeting certain criteria.  Within North Anglesey it is assumed 
that facilities will be sought in connection with Wylfa Newydd although these are 
likely to be subject of the DCO application. 

 

2.6.6 The JLDP is supported by a number of SPGs.  These were prepared prior to the 

adoption of the JLDP and as such are likely to be the subject of review.  Until such 

time, they should be read in conjunction with relevant JLDP policy.  The SPGs are 

not specific to North Anglesey or indeed any other particular locations in Anglesey.  

Other Council Policy Documents 

2.6.7 The following documents, whilst not specific to North Anglesey, include policies that 

will influence the delivery of services and/or the Council’s response to Wylfa 

Newydd. 

Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Council Plan 2017 -22 

2.6.8 The Plan sets out the objectives necessary to achieve the Council’s aim of working 

towards an Anglesey that is healthy and prosperous where families can thrive.   

Against each objective the plan sets out why it has been selected and how it will be 

achieved.  The three objectives are: 

 Ensure that the people of Anglesey can thrive and realise their long-term 
potential; 

 Support vulnerable adults and families to keep them safe, healthy and as 
independent as possible; 

 Work in partnership with our communities to ensure that they can cope 
effectively with change and developments whilst protecting our natural 
environment; 

Anglesey Economic Regeneration Strategy (2004 – 2015) 

2.6.9 The strategy establishes the Council’s vision and objectives for economic 

development.  It includes a number of actions designed to support the achievement 

of the vision.  Under ‘challenges’ it identifies some serious deprivation remains 

around Holyhead and Amlwch in particular (i.e. in the north of the Island) and seeks, 

as an objective, to develop the core settlement of Amlwch.  

Page 417



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 23  

 

Anglesey Energy Island Programme 

2.6.10 The Energy Island Programme (The Anglesey Energy Island™ Programme), 

established by Isle of Anglesey County Council, is a collective effort between several 

public, private and third sector stakeholders.  It seeks to achieve the following: 

 Attract and de-risk major strategic investment; 

 Influence potential developers; 

 Support development of competitive people and communities; 

 Support development of competitive businesses; 

 Support development of competitive infrastructure; 

 Realise the benefits major projects can bring and mitigate adverse impacts; 

 Maximise long-term legacy benefits. 

2.6.11 Energy Island Projects are located across Anglesey, however the main project is 

Wylfa Newydd and Magnox decommissioning, both located within North Anglesey. 

Môn Menai Coastal Action Plan (2007) 

2.6.12 The purpose of this Action Plan is to ‘Develop proposals to make the best use of the 

special coastline of Anglesey (in terms of activities on land and sea), in order to 

increase the economic benefit as much as possible.’  The Plan outlines specific 

proposals that have been grouped into twelve different themes, including 

‘Environmental Attractions and Anglesey Coastal Path’ which runs along the north 

coast of Anglesey. 

The Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Management Plan 2015 – 2020 

2.6.13 The Anglesey AONB is predominantly a coastal designation, covering most of 

Anglesey’s 201 kilometre coastline.  The total coverage of the AONB on Anglesey is 

approximately 221sq km (21,500 hectares) and it is currently the second largest 

AONB in Wales. Under Section 85 of the CRoW Act 2000 all relevant authorities 

should have regard to the conservation and enhancement of the AONB. 

2.6.14 The AONB Management Plan evaluates what the special qualities and features of the 

AONB are, and then determines what actions are required to ensure that these 

qualities are conserved and enhanced for future generations. 

Page 418



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 24  

 

Anglesey Destination Management Plan 2016-2020 

2.6.15 The Plan recognises that tourism can bring economic, social and cultural benefits.  It 

seeks to focus on promoting the island’s tourism brand and to differentiate 

destinations by promoting distinct characteristic and personality. 

2.7 Key Policy Messages for the Wylfa Newydd SPG   

2.7.1 Based on the review of plans and programmes in this section, consistent key 

messages/issues relevant to the communities, economy and environment of 

North Anglesey have been identified that will need to be considered in preparing the 

revised Wylfa Newydd SPG.  These messages are summarised in Box 2.3. These 

focus on the balance to be struck between economic development and protection of 

the environment, with particular sensitivity given to the coast.  There is the 

acknowledgement in policy of Wylfa Newydd and the opportunities that it could 

bring to local communities.  National and local policy in particular identify a number 

of issues linked with the protection of the environment in light of Wylfa Newydd.  

Furthermore, policy documents seek to protect local communities from the 

detrimental effects of the development, which may be particularly sensitive during the 

construction phase.  

Box 2.3 Key Policy Messages for the Wylfa Newydd SPG: North Anglesey 

The need to: 

 Deliver sustainable development through the actions of the County Council 
consistent with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; 

 Conserve and where possible enhance the environmental assets of North Anglesey 
which include the AONB, designated ecological sites and species and the historic 
environment consistent with European legislation, national legislation and policy 
and the AONB Management Plan; 

 Recognise, conserve and strengthen the unique character of North Anglesey, its 
cultural identity and the Welsh language consistent with the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act and TAN 20; 

 Seek a net biodiversity benefit as a result of new development in line with the 
Wales (Environment) Act 2016; 

 Protect sites designated for their natural or cultural significance in line with policy 
contained within PPW, technical advice notes, and the JLDP; 

 Recognise the importance of Amlwch as an Urban Service Centre and the North 
Anglesey centre for housing, commerce and employment with smaller centres and 

clusters providing locations for sustainable rural development and local needs 

Page 419



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 25  

 

Box 2.3 Key Policy Messages for the Wylfa Newydd SPG: North Anglesey 

housing in line with the JLDP spatial framework; 

 That development in Amlwch can address issues of deprivation 
(Anglesey Economic Regeneration Strategy); 

 Recognise and encourage the redevelopment of land of the former Shell land, 
Amlwch, Llyn Onn industrial park and as a reserve site, land at Rhosgoch for 
appropriate job generating development consistent with JLDP employment policy; 

 That whilst Amlwch is the prime location for new housing in North Anglesey other 
settlements such as Cemaes and Llannerch-y-medd can make a contribution 
consistent with JLDP policy;  

 Work with communities to respond to change and to protect the natural 
environment as set out within the Anglesey Council Plan; 

 Recognise that the North West of Wales, including North Anglesey has suffered 
from out-migration of young people but retains a strong cultural identity with 
communities attaching a strong importance to the dramatic landscape and coastline 
(Wales Spatial Plan); 

 Understand the importance of a healthy natural environment, both in its own right 
and a key attractor for tourism as set out within the Destination Management Plan.  
Also recognise the importance of tourism to the local economy as referenced 
within the Western Wales River Basin Management Plan; 

 Consider the implications arising from Wylfa Newydd in terms of demand for 
services and facilities as required by Technical Advice Notes and PPW; 

 That the projects forming the Energy Island Programme have the potential to 
transform the economy of North Anglesey as well as Anglesey as a whole. 

 

Page 420



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 26  

 

3 Baseline Information and Future Trends 

3.1 Introduction 

3.1.1 This section summaries the existing baseline characteristics of North Anglesey under 

a number of topic headings and identifies how this baseline could potentially change 

in the future, taking into account the proposed nuclear power station known as 

Wylfa Newydd.  This helps develop an understanding of the key opportunities and 

challenges that should be addressed by the Wylfa Newydd SPG.  It draws on a range 

of datasets from sources including the census, Welsh Government, the County 

Council (including the Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) 2016), and Natural 

Resources Wales (NRW). 

3.2 Baseline Information 

Demography 

3.2.1 Figure 3.1 sets out the distinctive qualities of those electoral wards which comprise 

North Anglesey by plotting the following key elements: 

 Population density (persons per hectare); 

 Household size (persons per household); 

 % unemployment; 

 % economically inactive; 

 % pensioners; 

 % population aged under the age of 30 years; and 

 Annual household income (£k). 

Page 421



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 27  

 

Figure 3.1  A Comparison of Key Socio-Economic Characteristics 

 

3.2.2 The main findings for North Anglesey in relation to the wider Anglesey and Wales 

(based upon the above, and additional information contained within the LHMA 2016) 

are as follow: 

 The northern wards are relatively populous and growing.  The area is twice as 
densely populated than Anglesey as a whole (2.2 and 1 person/ hectare 
respectively) and household sizes are rather larger.  The population grew at 
twice the rate of Anglesey as whole (17% and 8% respectively) between 2001 
and 2011; 

 The population is relatively aged.  This is most significant in the 45 to 74-year 
age range which makes up 43.4% of the population against 40.6% for the island.  
Both these are considerably higher than that for Wales.  A third of households 
in the study area are made up by pensioners; 

 Against a general improving trend, unemployment has fallen only slightly over 
the past two years.  This has seen the northern wards move from being 
comparable to the Welsh average to that of the poorer performing island.  
Rates are now at just over 3% which is approximately 1% adrift of the national 
figure; 

 Self-employment is far more common.  This amounts to 22% of the 
economically active against 18% for Anglesey and 14% for Wales.  There is a 

greater prevalence of skilled workers (occupation groups 4 and 5) but a 
corresponding lack of managerial skills (groups 1 to 3); 

Page 422



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 28  

 

 Educational attainment is lower than the wider island with a slightly higher 
proportion in unqualified and a lower proportion in Level 4 qualifications and 
above; 

 Household savings and equity of owner occupiers are 4% and 8% higher than 
those for the island as a whole, although average household incomes are slightly 
lower reflecting the higher levels of retired. 

Housing Characteristics 

3.2.3 Figures 3.2 and 3.3 demonstrate that the stock in North Anglesey tends to be larger 

(3 bedrooms and above) than for Anglesey and Wales and that there is a significantly 

higher proportion of detached and semi-detached stock.   

Figure 3.2 Comparative Size of Housing Stock  

 

Page 423



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 29  

 

Figure 3.3  Comparative Type of Housing Stock  

 

3.2.4 The contribution of owner-occupation as a proportion of total housing stock split 

across the wards is shown at Figure 3.4.  This indicates that in general owner 

occupation is more prevalent in North Anglesey than across the island and Wales as 

a whole. 

Figure 3.4  Comparative Proportion of Owner Occupied Stock  

 

Page 424



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 30  

 

3.2.5 Figure 3.5 suggests that a consequence of larger housing stock serving on average 

older households is that the level of under-occupation of stock in North Anglesey is 

higher than across the island and significantly higher than that for Wales.   

Figure 3.5  Comparative Proportion of Under Occupied Bedspaces 

 

3.2.6 In summary, the wards of North Anglesey possess a growing but aged population that 

is less likely to work and therefore relatively unresponsive to wider trends in 

unemployment.  The population is likely to live in relatively large, often detached or 

semi-detached accommodation which is relatively under occupied.  

Owner-occupation is more prevalent and homes are more likely to be wholly owned.  

3.2.7 Figure 3.6 sets out the distinctive qualities of the wards in the study area by plotting 

the following key elements: 

 Tenure (% owner-occupied); 

 House type (% detached and semi-detached); 

 House size (% with 3 bedrooms or more);  

 Occupancy (% of stock under occupied); and 

 Age (% of householders aged 30 years and over). 

Page 425



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 31  

 

Figure 3.6  A Comparison of Key Housing Stock Characteristics 

 

3.2.8 Based upon the information set out above, the following general characteristics can 

be drawn out. 

3.2.9 The spatial hierarchy of the Council’s JLDP is well reflected in the housing stock 

profiles reflecting their historic growth.  All three of the higher order settlements 

have a significantly higher proportion of terraces with fewer bedrooms within a 

denser urban fabric. 

3.2.10 The characteristics of Amlwch make it the most distinctive settlement.  Apart from 

being much the largest in the study area, its historical development has left a legacy of 

smaller largely terraced housing which is more likely to be rented than elsewhere in 

North Anglesey.  The smaller size of the stock also means that occupancy is relatively 

high but that overcrowding (3.5% of households) contributes significantly to 

performance of North Anglesey as a whole (2.3%) which is slightly higher than the 

Anglesey average (2.2%).  It also possesses a relatively youthful but relatively poorly 

qualified population.  

3.2.11 The housing stock in Llanbadrig also reflects the historical growth of its main centre 

which is the village of Cemaes.  The housing stock is relatively small, houses have 

fewer bedrooms than the Anglesey average and property is less likely to be owner 

occupied than in rural areas.  Despite limited stock, under-occupancy is high which 

probably reflects its significantly lower average household size (2.08pph) against the 

average for North Anglesey. 

Page 426



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 32  

 

3.2.12 The housing stock in Llannerch-y-Medd also reflects its historical development with 

some larger terraces but is also distinguished by low owner occupancy and by far the 

most youthful population in North Anglesey.  However, under occupancy is high 

when compared to Amlwch but this is counterbalanced by high levels of 

overcrowding suggesting that both these issues may have a patchy distribution. 

3.2.13 The distinction between the remaining rural areas is rather less although the 

following characteristics are evident: 

 Amlwch Rural is very different from Amlwch Port.  It possesses the highest 

proportion of detached and semi-detached dwellings (close to 90%) and with 
the greatest average number of bedrooms.  Owner occupation, under 
occupation and average age of the population are all the highest, or close to the 
highest, in North Anglesey.  Llaneilian and Mechell also possess these general 
characteristics but to slightly lesser degrees. 

 Llanfaethlu is distinct from these settlements in that its stock is the largest in the 
study area and has a correspondingly low level of occupancy.  It also has the 
highest proportion of rented properties in the rural area.   

 Moelfre diverges from this general pattern for the rural area.  The main 
settlement is a traditional coastal village with relatively few detached dwellings 

with the best qualified but most aged population in the study area (42% is aged 
60 and above).  It has relatively large stock and has the highest levels of owner 
occupation in the study area – the proportion of wholly owned stock is 
particularly high. 

Affordability 

3.2.15 The LHMA 2016 divided Anglesey into the three price areas of Menai, Holyhead and 

Rest of Anglesey.  The wards of North Anglesey were considered to fall within the 

Rest of Anglesey category.  Figure 3.8 illustrates the gaps between household income 

and average house prices for the Rest of Anglesey price market.  It shows that 

household incomes of over £40,000 are required to purchase a three-bedroom 

house with average incomes of up to £30,000 required to rent one to four 

bedroomed properties.  With Figure 3.1 showing that median household incomes 

across all North Anglesey wards rarely exceeding £25,000 the ability to purchase 

two, three or four bedroomed properties is likely to be beyond the reach of 

households with private renting confined to smaller properties where these are 

available. 

3.2.16 The County Council encourages the supply of affordable accommodation via policy 

and funding initiatives.  However, in the period 2011-16 only seven affordable housing 

Page 427



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 33  

 

completions were recorded in North Anglesey5 with the greatest number (3) 

recorded in Moelfre 2013/14 and Amlwch (2011/12).  

Figure 3.8 Household income required to access housing in the Rest of Anglesey price 

market, by number of bedrooms 

 
Source: Online survey of property prices, December 2015; StatsWales, 2015 

Vacant Homes 

3.2.17 The County Council records the number of empty residential properties on Anglesey 

through information received from Council Tax returns.  In 2016 records show that 

in North Anglesey there were 165 empty residential properties dispersed across the 

following wards: 

Table 3.1 Distribution of Empty Properties in North Anglesey 2016 

Ward Number 

Amlwch Port  26 

Amlwch Rural 11 

Llanbadrig 28 

Llaneilian  26 

                                                      
5 Information supplied by JPPU 

Page 428



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 34  

 

Ward Number 

Llanfaethlu  32 

Mechell  22 

Moelfre  20 

 

3.2.18 Empty properties have the potential to be brought back into use as accommodation 

either for local residents or for construction workers.  

Tourism Accommodation 

3.2.19 Existing tourism accommodation consists of both permanent accommodation, such 

as hotels and static mobile homes, as well as temporary, caravanning and camping 

sites.  Static, tourer and motor home accommodation within North Anglesey is 

concentrated within the wards of Llanfaethlu and Moelfre with the wards 

accommodating 266 and 373 tourer pitches respectively. There is very little 

additional accommodation of this type elsewhere in North Anglesey (a total of 20 

pitches).  There are approximately 710 static pitches, none of which are licensed for 

full year occupancy. 

Welsh Language 

3.2.20 North Anglesey possesses a high proportion of Welsh speakers and this is 

particularly the case in the western and central areas (see Figure 3.9).  The use of the 

Welsh language is slightly less prevalent in the east with Amlwch Rural and Moelfre 

possessing a lower percentage than the average for the Island as a whole. 

Page 429



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 35  

 

Figure 3.9  Percentage of Welsh Speakers, Anglesey 

 

Community Infrastructure 

3.2.21 Figure 3.10 depicts the presence and availability of community infrastructure in North 

Anglesey against the settlement classifications of the JLDP.  This shows that: 

 The Urban Service Centre of Amlwch possesses the fullest range of services in 
North Anglesey and represents the most sustainable location for future 
development;   

 The Local Service Centre of Cemaes also has a good range of local shops, a 
primary school, two GP surgeries and a pharmacy;   

 The Service Village of Llanerch-y-Medd also possesses a local shop, a primary 
school and a branch GP surgery; and  

 Elsewhere across the rural areas, services are restricted to a dispersed network 
of primary schools and the occasional small local shop usually providing post 
office services.  

3.2.22 There are no major supermarkets in North Anglesey with the closest being the Asda 

and Morrisons supermarkets in Holyhead.  There is a Co-Op in Amlwch and also a 

Tesco Express in Benllech.  

Page 430



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 36  

 

 

Figure 3.10  Community Infrastructure in North Anglesey 

 

Schools and Healthcare 

3.2.23 One secondary school and nine primary schools are located in the north of the Island 

following the new provision at Llanfaethlu (see Figure 3.10 above).  There are 34 

nursery places.  Whilst some primary schools (Amlwch and Cemaes) are forecast to 

exceed current capacities, the secondary school of St Thomas Jones is predicted to 

be up to 50% under-capacity by 2021. 

Page 431



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 37  

 

3.2.24 Medical services are provided primarily by three GP practices (one in Cemaes, 

Llanerch-y-medd and Amlwch), one main practice (Amlwch) and two branch 

surgeries within the communities of North Anglesey. 

Table 3.2 Distribution of Healthcare Provision in North Anglesey 

Type North 

GP Practices 3 

Main Practices 1 

Branch Surgeries 2 

Dental Practices  2 

Pharmacies 2 

Opticians 1 

 

3.2.25 The GP services provided by the Glanrafon Medical Centre in Amlwch are also close 

to benchmark capacities and this also applies to the branch surgery in Cemaes.   

Community Assets and Facilities 

3.2.26 There are 3 libraries located in Amlwch, Molefre and Cemaes.  There are no police 

stations and no retained fire stations with the closest located at Benllech and 

Holyhead.  There are no household waste recycling centres in the north of the Island 

but ‘bring sites’ at Amlwch, Llanfechell, Cemaes and Moelfre. 

Telecommunications 

3.2.27 Broadband speeds across the island are variable but generally speeds are slower 

within the north and west of the Island as illustrated on Figure 3.116. 

                                                      
6 Accessed from ‘thinkbroadband.com’. 

Page 432



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 38  

 

Figure 3.11  A Comparison of Average Broadband Speeds 

 

Transport 

3.2.28 The A5/A5025 route from Holyhead to Wylfa Newydd is a Welsh Government Class 

D advisory heavy load route.  All other highway routes in the north of the Island are 

county roads maintained by IACC as the local highways authority. The A5025 follows 

the northern coastline to link Menai Bridge and Valley.  It is a single carriageway of 

varying quality and the Wylfa Newydd project promoter is proposing a series of on 

and off-line improvements between Valley and the site of the proposed power 

station.  East of the power station site, the highways authority has identified four 

main clusters of accidents, two of which are related to the sections of bends on the 

route where speed and loss of control are major factors in the accidents.  Other 

locations include Betws were there is a pattern of accidents related to U-turns and a 

lack of forward visibility and the Burwen bends where again speed and visibility are 

the main causation factors. 

Bus and Coach Services 

3.2.29 The Island has a network of local bus services. Some routes are operated 

commercially whilst others operate under contract to the Isle of Anglesey County 

Council. Route 61 which runs between Amlwch and Holyhead via Cemaes Bay, 

passes in close proximity to the Wylfa Newydd site.  This service operates at an 

Page 433



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 39  

 

approximately 2 hourly frequency with no evening or Sunday services. Service 62 

operates from Amlwch to Bangor every 30 minutes on weekdays, with a less 

frequent evening service and a 2-hourly service on Sundays.  Four of the weekday 

services extend from Amlwch to Cemaes Bay. The 2011 Census figures show that 

3% of employed persons aged between 16 and 74 who are in employment in the 

whole of Anglesey (excluding persons who work mainly from home), travel by bus.  

3.2.30 There is no railway service in North Anglesey with the closest railway station at 

Valley. 

Natural Environment 

3.2.31 North Anglesey has a rich and varied natural environment across its terrestrial, 

marine and coastal environments, the importance of which is reflected by the number 

of internationally and nationally designated sites. 

European Designated Sites 

3.2.32 Sites of European importance are designated to conserve natural habitats and species 

of wildlife which are rare, endangered or vulnerable in the European Community.  In 

the UK, these form part of the ‘Natura 2000’ network of sites protected under the 

EC Habitats Directive (1992).  Figure 3.12 shows the distribution of European sites 

across North Anglesey which includes the Special Area of Conservation (SAC) of 

Cemlyn Bay and the Special Protection Areas (SPAs) of Ynys Feurig, Cemlyn Bay and 

The Skerries and Liverpool Bay.  The proposed Wylfa Newydd main site is located 

near two European designated sites; Cemlyn Bay SAC and the Ynys Feurig, the 

Skerries and Cemlyn Bay SPA.  The SPA comprises three separate areas of 

importance for four species of breeding terns.  The three areas are treated as a single 

site as a consequence of regular movement by birds between the component parts. 

Page 434



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 40  

 

Figure 3.12 European Designated Sites 

 

Nationally Designated Sites 

3.2.33    North Anglesey contains 19 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) some of which 

extend over separate land areas.  These are shown in Figure 3.13.   

3.2.34 Tre’r Gof SSSI, a rich-fen wetland habitat vulnerable to changes to water quality or 

quantity, is located within the Wylfa Newydd site boundary.  The Welsh Government 

has set a target that 95 per cent of SSSIs will be in favourable condition by 2015 and 

that by 2026 all statutory sites will be in favourable condition (the most recent data 

shows that on Anglesey 1,412 ha of SSSI management units requiring actions are 

under appropriate conservation management, i.e. 18% of the total area of SSSI 

management units on Anglesey)7  Tre’r Gof SSSI is explicitly referenced within the 

site-specific guidance contained within NPS EN-6 Volume 2.  

                                                      
7 Email from NRW dated 13 October 2017 

Page 435



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 41  

 

Figure 3.13 Nationally Designated Sites 

 

Ancient Woodland 

3.2.35 Woodland cover on Anglesey is very low when compared to other parts of Wales or 

Europe at 3.5% of the land area compared to an average of 13% for Wales and 33% 

for the EU. Within North Anglesey, (Figure 3.14) woodland cover appears even less 

prevalent. 

Page 436



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 42  

 

Figure 3.14 Ancient Woodland 

 

Non-Statutory Protected Sites and Other Biodiversity 

3.2.36 There are no designated Local Nature Reserves or National Nature Reserves in 

North Anglesey.  There are a number of non-statutory Wildlife Sites which include 

Wylfa Head and clusters south of Carmel Head, much of the northern coastline and 

Parys Mountain.   

Designated Landscapes 

3.2.37 Almost the entire coastline of North Anglesey is designated as an Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) (Figure 3.15) due to the variety of fine coastal 

landscapes. The AONB designation is overlapped by stretches of the defined Heritage 

Coast.  Unlike AONB, Heritage Coasts have no legal protection, but planning 

authorities must take the designation into account when making decisions on 

development. 

3.2.38 The North Anglesey Heritage Coast runs for 18 miles along the northern shore of 

the Isle of Anglesey from Church Bay in the west to Dulas Bay in the east.  

Page 437



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 43  

 

Figure 3.15 National Landscape Designations 

 

3.2.39 One area of North Anglesey has been designated as a Landscape of Outstanding 

Historic Interest; Amlwch and Parys Mountain (HLW (Gw) 1) and comprises large 

eighteenth and nineteenth opencast copper mines and waste tips which were largely 

dug by hand.  There is also an extensive complex of processing features and 

structures, earlier workings dating from the prehistoric and possibly Roman and 

medieval periods. 

3.2.40 The adopted JDLP identifies parts of North Anglesey as Special Landscape Areas 

(see Figure 3.16).  These are local authority designations. 

Page 438



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 44  

 

Figure 3.16 JLDP Special Landscape Areas 

 

3.2.41 Parts of the Anglesey AONB lie within the proposed Wylfa Newydd main site, and 

the North Anglesey Heritage Coast lies in close proximity.  The site is also located 

within Landscape Character Area (LCA) 4: North West Coast.  The Isle of Anglesey 

Landscape Strategy Update (2011) identifies several key issues for this LCA which are 

summarised in Box 3.1. 

Box 3.1 Landscape Character Area 4: Key Issues 

Coastal Landscapes  

The area includes a range of cliffs and coves. Any development or management proposals 
should take into account:  

 Any direct or indirect impacts upon the range of habitat types;  

 Given its interrelationship with the AONB, any proposals must consider the 
impact upon people’s perceptions of the character and quality of the coast;  

 Work closely with key landowners, such as the National Trust; and  

 Have regard to the AONB Management Plan.  

Page 439



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 45  

 

Box 3.1 Landscape Character Area 4: Key Issues 

Habitat Management  

New development and management proposals should seek to: 

 Maintain high quality and distinctive habitats – coastal edge, mires, fens; and  

 Develop and enhance the existing habitat and link with local Biodiversity Action 
Plan targets.  

Settlement  

Although only a few settlements lie within the LCA, it is important that any development 
proposals should:  

 Be of a form and character that reflects each settlement;  

 Be considered within terms of cumulative impacts upon the wider landscape;  

 Integrate the development using land form, vegetation patterns etc;  

 Do not impose standard solutions; and  

 Have regard to Cemaes Bay Conservation Area SPG. 

Water 

3.2.42 One of the seven Anglesey beaches awarded Blue Flag status is located within North 

Anglesey at Church Bay.  Porth Eilian near Llaneilian is one of five beaches on the 

Island to have won the Seaside Award for its good water quality and facilities.  

Bathing water at Cemaes was recorded by NRW as being of poor quality in 2016. 

Short term pollution is caused when heavy rainfall washes pollution into the sea from 

livestock, sewage and urban drainage via rivers and streams.  There were a total of 

three warnings of a pollution risk forecast during the 2016 bathing water season at 

this beach8.  Measures, including the erection of a new livestock bridge, are underway 

to reduce the potential for future pollution incidents. 

3.2.43 There are seven classified rivers within North Anglesey.  Four are rated by NRW as 

having an overall water quality classification of moderate, and three of good.  

Moderate rivers include the River Wygyr which discharges into Cemaes Bay 

(see above) and Goch Amlwch. 

3.2.44 In Amlwch the sewerage system is generally functioning well and no major issues are 

envisaged with respect to the Amlwch Waste Water Treatment Works (WwTWs) 

                                                      
8 http://environment.data.gov.uk/wales/bathing-waters/profiles/profile.html?site=ukl1100-40050 

Page 440



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 46  

 

in accommodating the proposals for housing growth set out in the JLDP.  However, 

isolated incidents of flooding in the public sewerage network have been recorded. 

3.2.45 Groundwater across the whole of the island is recorded as having an overall status as 

poor. 

Historic Environment 

Listed Buildings and Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

3.2.46 Listed buildings and scheduled ancient monuments (SAMs) are located within each of 

the eight wards which together form ‘North Anglesey’.  Grade I listed building 

represent the top 2.5% of all buildings listed in England and Wales and are those 

buildings defined as being of exceptional interest.  Grade II* make up 5.8% of 

buildings listed with 91.7% of buildings listed as Grade II.  Table 3.2 provides the 

number and grade of buildings per ward, together with the number of SAMs.  It is 

evident from the number totals that North Anglesey possesses a greater number of 

Grade II* buildings (11%) than the national average.  

Table 3.3 Number and Grade of listed buildings and scheduled ancient monuments, 
North Anglesey 

Ward Grade I Grade II*  Grade II SAM 

Amlwch Port 0 1 21 0 

Moelfre 0 1 11 14 

Llannerch-y-medd 0 5 23 6 

Mechell 1 7 42 7 

Llaneilian 1 6 37 5 

Llanbadrig 0 1 2 2 

Amlwch Rural 0 2 5 4 

Llanfaethlu 0 3 65 3 

Total 2 26 206 41 

Historic Parks and Gardens 

    3.2.47   The Register of Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest in Wales is a statutory 

designation.  Cestyll Gardens is situated in a small valley running north to the sea, on 

the north coast of Anglesey, to the west of Wylfa Head.  The garden was established 

in the early twentieth century by the Hon. Violet Vivian used the house as a holiday 

Page 441



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 47  

 

home and then a permanent residence.  The house is no longer present, but the 

property was purchased by the then Central Electricity Generating Board in 1983, 

and the garden is maintained as part of the existing Wylfa Power Station grounds.  

Conservation Areas 

3.2.48 There are 4 Conservation Areas within North Anglesey, most of which are historic 

settlements or ports.  They are: 

 Amlwch; 

 Amlwch Port; 

 Cemaes; and 

 Llanfechell. 

3.3 Future Trends 

3.3.1 Future trends relating to the North of Anglesey are summarised below: 

 After rising up to 2020, the population is likely to decline in line with the future 

trends for Anglesey without significant economic investment which could 
include Wylfa Newydd; 

 The population is likely to continue to age unless a significant number of 
construction workers associated with Wylfa Newydd make North Anglesey 
their home on a permanent basis; 

 Unemployment is likely to continue to be low; 

 The pattern of those wards with highest rates of owner occupation also 
possessing the highest levels of under-occupancy is likely to continue with 
incentives for owners to respond to potential accommodation demands; 

 The number of empty homes might decrease in response to higher levels of 
demand for accommodation particularly if financial support is provided; 

 The percentage of Welsh spoken may continue to fall, particularly if Wylfa 
Newydd workers are not educated about the cultural and history of the host 
communities; 

 With forecast reductions in medium to long-term population figures, the 
viability of services and facilities is likely to weaken; 

 Pressure on the areas sites of ecological, landscape and heritage importance is 

likely to increase leading to degradation without proper protection and 
investment; 

Page 442



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 48  

 

 Higher rates of development in line with JLDP assumptions and the bringing 
forward of sites allocated in the Plan for development may help to address some 
of the potentially negative future trends identified. 

3.4 Key Issues for the Wylfa Newydd SPG 

3.4.1 Based on the findings of the baseline analysis and evidence base, a number of key 

issues relevant to North Anglesey have been identified that will need to be 

considered in revising the Wylfa Newydd SPG.  These issues are summarised in 

Box 3.2 below. 

Box 3.2 Key Issues for the Wylfa Newydd SPG: North Anglesey 

 The need to acknowledge the lack of suitable accommodation, the high proportion 
of owner occupation and lack of significant numbers of smaller, rented 
accommodation; 

 Existing problems of affordability and how they might be exacerbated; 

 The importance of the area as a tourism destination and the measures to be taken 
to preserve its tourist offer; 

 The comparative low level of service provision, the likely further decline and the 
pressures that may be faced as a result of substantial numbers of construction 
workers coming to live in the area; 

 The opportunities that present themselves for inward investment, either the 
allocated housing or employment sites of Amlwch and Cemaes; 

 The lack of sufficient broadband speeds within certain areas of North Anglesey, the 
likely importance placed on this by Wylfa Newydd construction workers and 
opportunities to improve connectivity for all local communities; 

 The current level of public transport provision and the need to ensure that it is 

sufficient to respond to the needs both of construction workers employed directly 
at the main site but also those workers in the local community who may in 
addition be accessing the associated and related sites; 

Page 443



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 49  

 

Box 3.2 Key Issues for the Wylfa Newydd SPG: North Anglesey 

 Protection of the landscape of North Anglesey and views, in particular seascapes 
and important and designated landscapes, particularly the AONB;  

 Protection of the historic environment and opportunities for the sympathetic use 
of historic buildings; 

 The poor quality of some of the water bodies particularly in and around Cemaes; 

 Consider cumulative impacts arising from the Wylfa Newydd project upon the 

communities of North Anglesey in-combination with other proposals, plans and 
programmes. 

 

Page 444



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 50  

 

4 Challenges and Opportunities 

4.1 Introduction 

4.1.1 Based on the review of plans and programmes presented in Section 2 and analysis of 

the baseline and future trends in Section 3, this section draws together the key 

strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats related to North Anglesey to be 

addressed when revising the Wylfa Newydd SPG.  Where appropriate, it also 

provides guidance in respect of how the SPG could respond to the issues identified in 

order to help inform the preparation of the document. 

4.2 SWOT Analysis 

4.2.1 Table 4.1 presents an analysis of the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats 

associated with the Wylfa Newydd Project during construction and operation on 

North Anglesey and in the context of the Wylfa Newydd SPG. 

Table 4.1 SWOT Analysis 

Strengths Weaknesses 

 Internationally and nationally 
important landscapes, heritage coast, 
geodiversity and nature conservation 
sites; 

 A strong tourism offer supported by 
a range of facilities and an outstanding 
natural environment; 

 Proportion of designated sites in 
unfavourable condition; 

 An aging population which will 
increase reliance on public services; 

 A dispersed population (Amlwch, the 
largest settlement, has a population of 
3,789) making it difficult to sustain 
services and facilities; 

 Strong sense of community and place 
linked to the natural environment; 

 A high proportion of the local 
communities using Welsh as a first 
language; 

 A growing population relative to 
other Anglesey communities; 

 Relative remoteness from the main 
transport networks including the A55 
and railway; 

 High levels of under-occupied 
properties in comparison to the 
Welsh average particularly outside 
Amlwch. 

 Lower levels of educational 
attainment; 

Page 445



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 51  

 

 

Strengths Weaknesses 

 A comprehensive level of services and 
facilities within Amlwch which acts as 
the main settlement in the area; and 

 The presence of historic settlements 
set within a rich historical 
environment. 

 Lack of higher order services and 
facilities requiring travel to Holyhead 
or Llangefni; 

 Poor broadband speeds when 
compared with other parts of the 
island; 

 Lack of recycling sites to support 

household waste reduction; 

 The poor quality of surface water and 
beaches at Cemaes; and 

  Decline or slow improvements in 
populations of protected species and 
local biodiversity. 

Opportunities Threats 

 Enhancing the natural environment of 
North Anglesey through pro-active 
measures; 

 Additional affordable housing; 

 Investment into programmes to 
improve the health and viability of 
ecological sites and species; 

 Potential impacts on the seascape, 
landscape character and protected 
landscapes of North Anglesey; 

 Potential impacts on designated sites 

and protected species particularly 
those in an around the Wylfa 
Newydd site; 

 Improving public transport provision 

both to Wylfa Newydd and to the 
wider island; 

 Threats to the welsh language from 

the arrival of an increasing number of 
non-welsh speaking residents; 

 Taking advantage of the availability of 
sites for development to deliver 
inward investment and economic 
growth; 

 Encouraging the use of vacant or 
under-occupied properties (both 
residential and commercial) as a 
means of accommodating workers 
and providing additional income to 
local residents; 

 Increases in traffic along the A5025 
and an over-stretched public 
transport system; 

 Local communities priced out of 

accommodation both rented and 
owner occupied; 

 Education not sufficiently responsive 
to enable existing and future 
workforce to take advantage of 
employment opportunities, particular 
lack of managerial skills; 

 Encouraging investment into existing 
health, sport and community facilities 
for the benefit of the existing 
communities as well as workers; 

 Cumulative pressures on 
environmental resources;  

Page 446



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 52  

 

 

Opportunities Threats 

 Encouraging tourism through a range 
of environmental improvements, 
additional marketing and investment; 
and 

 Support and promote the welsh 
language both within existing 
communities and amongst those 
coming to work in the area. 

 Pressures on existing public services 
and facilities arising from an aging 
population and increase in the arrival 
of new residents; and 

 Loss of existing tourist 
accommodation to workers 
associated with Wylfa Newydd 
resulting in a reduced tourism offer 

and reduction in visitor numbers. 

4.3 Summary of Key Matters to be addressed by the SPG 

4.3.1 Key matters for North Anglesey relate to: 

 Population including community and the Welsh language; 

 Economy; 

 Services and facilities; and  

 The natural and historic environment. 

4.3.2 For each, the construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd provides an opportunity 

to enhance existing conditions if undertaken in a planned and suitably resourced way.  

Without careful planning and resourcing however conditions in the communities and 

environment of North Anglesey could worsen given the scale and magnitude of the 

development proposed.  

4.4 How Should the Wylfa Newydd SPG Respond? 

4.4.1 The Wylfa Newydd SPG will need to consider the potential for effects upon 

North Anglesey in a holistic way.  Many of the changes brought about by 

development could give rise to impacts upon a range of receptors, both natural and 

man-made whilst benefits to one could give rise to positive outcomes to all. 

4.4.2 The SPG should be informed by, consistent with, and support existing policies and 

plans, most importantly the Joint Local Development Plan, which is the adopted 

spatial policy document for the area but also compatible plans and programmes.  All 

consider the inter-relationships between the economy, social development and the 

environment either overtly or implicitly within their objectives and actions.  In the 

context of North Anglesey, the allocation of residential development focussed upon 

the key centre of Amlwch would result in development, for example supporting 

Page 447



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 53  

 

existing retail, services and facilities, accessible, in the context of North Anglesey and 

supporting retention of the local community through the provision of affordable 

homes.  At the same time, development in Amlwch would negate the need for 

change within the Coastal Change Management Area.  

4.4.3 The SPG should seek to collate those policies contained within the adopted JLDP 

that have particular effect to the communities and environment of North Anglesey.   

It should recognise the settlement hierarchy which exists in the area guiding new 

development towards the main settlement of Amlwch with lower levels towards the 

settlements of Cemaes and, Llannerch-y-medd and the local, rural and coastal villages 

of the area. 

4.4.4 Emphasis within the document should also be upon the protection of some of the 

key attributes of the area, namely the high quality of its natural and historic 

environment, its location as an area for tourism and opportunities for inward 

investment. 

4.4.5 The SPG should therefore maintain and expand upon JLDP, and national policy 

protection for the AONB and for sites and species designated at a local, national or 

international level either for their ecological or historical significance.   It should 

provide guidance across a number of policy areas that combined will protect the 

area’s tourism, enhance the opportunities for local communities to take a positive 

role in the construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd and encourage the use of 

allocated sites for development. 

4.4.6 The potential impacts arising from the project will extend to those generated by 

associated works and development off-site; both those permitted under the Planning 

Act 2008 and as applications under the TCPA.  Guidance must therefore consider 

the potential for possible cumulative impacts arising from all elements of 

Wylfa Newydd plus other developments and projects in the area. 

4.4.7 More specifically, the SPG should include guidance that: 

 Establishes the appropriate locations for different categories of development 
consistent with the JLDP spatial strategy as applied to the settlements and rural 
areas of North Anglesey; 

 Sets out specific guidance on environmental matters relating to the main site 
and associated development sites including measures to mitigate effects upon 
sensitive receptors such as the AONB, historic landscape, European, national 
and locally designated ecological sites; 

 Establishes policy guidance to ensure that the amenity of residents in Cemaes, 
Tregele and in other surrounding settlements and in individual residential 
properties is protected with any potentially significant effects mitigated; 

Page 448



Topic Paper 11: North Anglesey  

Page 54  

 

 Encourages the use of JLDP allocated sites to include the former Shell land, 
Amlwch, LLyn Onn Industrial park, Amlwch, and the former Shell Site at 
Rhosgoch; 

 Provides advice for the enhancement of existing and/or provision of new 
infrastructure, services and utilities to ensure that it has the capacity to 
accommodate the increase in demand that will arise as a result of 
Wylfa Newydd; 

 Promotes the use of under-occupied residential properties and the re-use of 
vacant commercial and residential buildings responding to construction worker 

demand; 

 Minimises the potential for effects upon the local communities of 
North Anglesey, their cohesion, health and culture, recognising the importance 
of the Welsh language; 

 Identifies guiding criteria to be used when considering planning applications by 
third parties for the conversion of existing properties into residential 
accommodation; 

 Encourages the appropriate re-use of existing assets and resources which 
includes the existing workforce of North Anglesey, infrastructure, facilities and 

services on the basis that they are adequately supported and/or resourced; 

 Promotes the concept of legacy, both environmental, social and economic that 
improves the condition of North Anglesey as a result of the project; 

 Seeks to ensure that the existing tourism potential of the area is not 
detrimentally affected by the project with measures to address potential adverse 
impacts and maximise opportunities to promote the area as a continuing 
location for visitors; 

 Notes the potential for significant increases in traffic as a result of the project, 
supporting improvements to the A5025 south and north of Tregele and 

promotes a range of sustainable transportation modes;  

 Provides guidance on measures to reduce the effects upon the environment and 
surrounding communities as a result of on-site temporary worker 
accommodation.  

 

Page 449



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 450



V3.1  030418 

Page 1 of 2 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
Report to: Executive and Full Council  
Date: Executive – 30th April, 2018 

Council – 15th May, 2018 
Subject: Ynys Mȏn & Gwynedd Well-being Plan (Public Services Board) 
Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Llinos Medi, Council Leader 
Head of Service: Dr Gwynne Jones, Chief Executive 
Report Author: 
Tel: 
E-mail: 

Anwen Davies, Scrutiny Manager 
01248 752578 
AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk 

Local Members:  This not a ward specific matter 
 

A –Recommendation/s and reason/s 
The recommendations are as follows:  
 
To the Executive:  
The Executive is requested to recommend to Full Council that: 
 
R1  It approves the Local Well-being plan for publication by Ynys Môn and Gwynedd 
Public Services Board. 
R2  It adopts the Well-being Plan and that it is incorporated as part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework to replace the Single Integrated Plan in the Council’s Constitution. 
R3  The Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee be the designated scrutiny 
committee for scrutinising the work of the Public Services Board.  
R4 To amend section 3.2 of the Council’s Constitution to include the approval of decisions 
in relation to the “Well-being Plan” as a function which can only be exercised by the full 
Council; and to delete reference to the “Single Integrated Plan”. 
R5 To amend section 2.6.2 of the Council’s Constitution in order to appoint the Partnership 
and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee as the designated scrutiny committee for 
scrutinising the work of the Public Services Boards. 
R6 To authorise the Council’s Head of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer to 
make all necessary and consequential amendments to the Council’s Constitution to reflect 
the approval of the matters listed above. 
R7 To authorise the Council’s Head of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer to 
make any future amendments, as and when they arise, to the Council’s Constitution (a) when 
they relate to, or (b) arise as a result of, the matters approved above, subject to consultation 
with the Group Leaders and no objections are raised. 
 
 
To the Full Council:  
Full Council is recommended to: 
R1  Approve the Ynys Mȏn & Gwynedd Well-being Plan for publication by the Public 
Services Board. 
R2  Adopt the Well-being Plan and that it is incorporated as part of the Council’s Policy 

Page 341

Agenda Item 8.

mailto:AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk


V3.1  030418 

Page 2 of 2 

Framework to replace the Single Integrated Plan in the Council’s Constitution. 
R3  The Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee be the designated scrutiny 
committee for scrutinising the work of the Public Services Board  
R4 To amend section 3.2 of the Council’s Constitution to include the approval of decisions 
in relation to the “Well-being Plan” as a function which can only be exercised by the full 
Council; and to delete reference to the “Single Integrated Plan”. 
R5 To amend section 2.6.2 of the Council’s Constitution in order to appoint the Partnership 
and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee as the designated scrutiny committee for 
scrutinising the work of the Public Services Boards. 
R6 To authorise the Council’s Head of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer to 
make all necessary and consequential amendments to the Council’s Constitution to reflect 
the approval of the matters listed above. 
R7 To authorise the Council’s Head of Function (Council Business) / Monitoring Officer to 
make any future amendments, as and when they arise, to the Council’s Constitution (a) when 
they relate to, or (b) arise as a result of, the matters approved above, subject to consultation 
with the Group Leaders and no objections are raised. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Members will be aware that the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

(the Act) has established a Public Services Board for every local authority area in 
Wales to ensure that public bodies work together to create a better future of the people 
of Wales.  The Boards for Ynys Mȏn and Gwynedd have decided to collaborate in 
order to deliver their objectives.  Board membership includes representation at the 
highest level across public service organisations in the area as follows: 
 
Statutory Members: 
 Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 Gwynedd Council 
 Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 
 North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority 
 Natural Resources Wales. 
 
Invited Participants: 
 Welsh Government 
 North Wales Police 
 Public Health Wales 
 North Wales Police and Crime. Commissioner 
 Snowdonia National Park 
 Medrwn Mȏn 
 Mantell Gwynedd 
 Wales Probation Service 
 Bangor University 
 Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd 

Page 342



V3.1  030418 

Page 3 of 2 

 Grwp Llandrillo Menai. 
 
 

1.2  The Act also places a duty on Public Services Boards to assess the well-being of their 
areas and create a Well-being Plan which outlines how it is intended to improve the 
well-being of the area's residents.  

 
WELLBEING ASSESSMENT 
1.3 The first stage of the work of creating the Well-being Plan was to undertake an 

assessment of local well-being and carry out research in order to understand and learn 
more about those areas. In addition, several public consultation sessions were held in 
these areas in order to gather more information and give residents the opportunity to 
have their say. 

 
 1.4 In May 2017, Assessments of Local Well-being for the Ynys Môn and Gwynedd areas 

were published with both counties split into 14 smaller areas (eight in Gwynedd and six 
in Anglesey).   

 
1.5 Having considered the data and the views of local people, nine main messages were 

highlighted in the assessments for the entire area: 
 The need to maintain a healthy community spirit 
 The importance of protecting the natural environment 
 Understanding the effect of demographic changes 
 Protecting and promoting the Welsh Language 
 Promoting the use of natural resources to improve health and well-being in the long 

term 
 Improving transport links to enable access to services and facilities 
 The need for good quality jobs and affordable homes for local people 
 The effect of poverty on well-being 
 Ensuring an opportunity for every child to succeed. 

 
 A further series of workshops was held in August 2017 based on the main messages 

identified (above) in order to discuss how it would be possible to respond to the 
matters highlighted.   

 
WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES  
 
2.1 The Plan outlines how the PSB intends to make a difference to the lives of residents by 

working together in order to deliver for the entire area (North West Wales). 
 
2.2 The Well-being Objectives have been drawn up following an analysis of the main 

messages which were highlighted in the Well-being Assessment (above) and 
consideration of other research and assessments e.g. Regional Population 
Assessment in the health and care field. 

 
2.3 There are two well-being objectives with six priorities which the PSB will focus on in 

order to realise these objectives. It is noted that these priorities are based on the 

Page 343



V3.1  030418 

Page 4 of 2 

messages which were highlighted as part of the Well-being Assessment: 
 

Public Services Board Well-being Objectives 
 

1. Communities which thrive and are prosperous in the long-term 
 The Welsh language 
 Homes for local people 
 Effect of poverty on the well-being of our communities 
 Effect of climate change on the well-being of communities 

 
2. Residents who are healthy and independent with a good quality of life 

 Health and care of adults 
 Welfare and achievement of children and young people 

 
2.4 The Public Services Board believes that these are areas in which public service 

partners could better collaborate, during a period of significant cutbacks in public 
sector resources, in order to secure the best outcomes for the residents of Ynys Môn 
and Gwynedd. 

 
WELL-BEING PLAN   
 
3.1 The Public Services Board have now approved the final version of the Well-being Plan. 

The Plan is attached as APPENDIX 1. 
 
3.2 Under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 20151, if the local authority is 

operating executive arrangements, the function of approving the local well-being plan 
for publication may not be exercised by an executive of the Authority under those 
arrangements.  Approval of the Full Council will therefore be required.   

3.3 The Plan will need to be formally approved by each of the statutory members of the 
Board2 prior to its publication during May, 2018.  Locally, the Well-being Plan will be 
considered by the Executive on 30th April, 2018 and submitted to Full Council for 
approval during May, 2018. 

 
SCRUTINY OF THE WELL-BEING PLAN   
 
4.1 The PSB held a three month statutory consultation period on the draft Well-being Plan, 

which ended on 30th March, 2018.  
 
4.2 As statutory consultee and the designated committee, the Partnership and 

Regeneration Scrutiny Committee had an opportunity to scrutinise the Draft Well-
being Plan on 8th March 2018. Following robust questioning by Members, the 

                                                           
1 Part 4, Section 43(5)  
2 Anglesey & Gwynedd Councils, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority and 
Natural Resources Wales 

Page 344



V3.1  030418 

Page 5 of 2 

Committee resolved to recommend approval of the draft Plan and authorised the 
Chair to submit its formal response to the Chair of the PSB. The Committee’s 
response to the Public Services Board is attached as APPENDIX 2. 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION 

5.1  Implementation of the Act requires amendments to the Council’s Constitution: 

 In order to appoint a scrutiny committee, namely the Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee, to scrutinise the work of the Public Services Board; 

 To incorporate the “Well-being Plan” as part of the Council’s Policy Framework 
(decisions on which are the responsibility of the full Council). The Well-being Plan 
replaces the Single Integrated Plan, references to which will need to be deletedin 
the Constitution. 

 

 

B – What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt for 
this option?  
This report places legislative requirements upon the Public Services Board to publish the 
well-being Plan in May 2018. If the Well-being Plan is not published by the Public Services 
Board, as prescribed in legislation, the Welsh Government will need to be informed of the 
reason why.  
 

C – Why is this a decision for the Executive? 
Implementing changes to the Constitution first requires report to the Executive.  
 
CH – Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 
The matter concerns the adoption of a new Policy to be included in the Council’s Policy 
Framework. 
 
D – Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 
No additional financial implications specific to the Council. 
 
DD – Who did you consult?        What did they say? 
1 Chief Executive / Senior Leadership 

Team (SLT) 
(mandatory) 

Considered by SLT on 9/4/18: No comment  

2 
 

Finance / Section 151 
(mandatory)  

 

3 Legal / Monitoring Officer 
(mandatory)  
 

  

Page 345



V3.1  030418 

Page 6 of 2 

4 Human Resources (HR)  
5 Property   
6 Information Communication 

Technology (ICT) 
 

7 Procurement  
8 Scrutiny The Draft Well-being Plan was submitted to 

the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee on the 8th March 2018. The 
Committee recommended approval of the 
Plan and responded by way of letter to the 
Chair of the PSB. Refer to APPENDIX 2.  

9 Local Members  
10 Any external bodies / other/s  
 
 
 
E – Risks and any mitigation (if relevant)  
1 Economic  
2 Anti-poverty  
3 Crime and Disorder  
4 Environmental  
5 Equalities  
6 Outcome Agreements  
7 Other  
 
F - Appendices: 
1. Well-Being Plan (Final version)  
2. Letter dated 23 /03/18 from the Chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 

Committee to Chair of the PSB. 
 
FF - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further 
information): 
Anwen Davies, Scrutiny Manager, Isle of Anglesey County Council, Council Offices, 
Llangefni.  LL77 7TW 
 
 

Page 346



GWYNEDD & ANGLESEY
WELL-BEING PLAN

2018GWYNEDD AND MÔN PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD

Page 347



WELL-BEING 
PLAN
The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board is 
committed to achieving positive changes to ensure 
the best possible future for communities across both 
counties through this Well-being Plan. The aim is to 
make a real difference to the lives of residents and 
ensure that public service providers work together to 
achieve a common ambition for the whole region.

We have strong and proud communities, with a 
tradition of helping each other and working together. 
The role of these communities will be central to 
delivering the well-being objectives which have been 
set out in this plan.

Engaging with communities is core to the success of 
the plan, and the Board commits to providing clear 
guidance in order reach its objectives. As members, 
we will take collective responsibility for realising the 
plan and we will work with partners to improve the 
well-being of residents and our communities. 

However, it is important to emphasise that this Plan 
should not be considered in isolation and it does not 
look to encompass all the services and activities of 
the public bodies working in Gwynedd and Anglesey. 
The individual organisations will continue to provide 
services which will deliver their own objectives as 
well as contribute to the well-being objectives of the 
Public Services Board.

Ffion Johnstone
Chair of the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public   
Services Board

Deddf Llesiant 

Page 348



WELL-BEING 
OF FUTURE 
GENERATIONS 
(WALES) ACT 2015 
The aim of the Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (2015) is to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.

The Act highlights seven well-being goals (see 
image below) and five ways of working in order to 
give public bodies a common purpose. It also tries 
to ensure that we are better at making decisions by 
placing a duty on organisations to think about the 
long-term, to collaborate and to consider people of 
all ages when resolving and preventing problems.

Together, the seven well-being goals and the five 
ways of working have been designed to support 
public bodies to meet the existing needs of their 
communities and ensure that the decisions of 
today do not harm future generations.

The Act has established a Public Services Board 
for every local authority area in Wales to ensure 
that public bodies work together to create a better 
future for the people of Wales. As part of this, the 
Public Services Boards must assess the well-being 
of their areas and create a Well-being Plan with the 
aim of improving communities. 

The Boards must consider a host of other 
legislation which have also been created to 
improve public services, they include:

• Climate Change Act 2008
• Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998
• Childcare Act 2006
• Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010
• Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014
• Crime and Disorder Act 1998
• Environment (Wales) Act 2016
• Planning (Wales) Act 2015

With all of this, the plan is being developed in a 
complex national and international context – with 
economic and political uncertainty placing added 
pressure on services, and having an impact on 
communities locally and across Wales.

A resilient 
Wales

A healthier 
Wales

A more equal 
Wales

A Wales of 
cohesive 

communities

A Wales of 
vibrant culture 

and thriving 
Welsh Language

A globally 
responsible 

Wales

A prosperous 
Wales

Page 349



Public 
Services Board 
Membership
The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Boards 
have decided to work together as one Board to 
deliver their objectives.

The statutory members of the Board are:

• Gwynedd Council and the Isle of Anglesey 
County Council

• Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
• North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority
• Natural Resources Wales

As well as the statutory members, the Board 
is duty-bound to invite other individuals and 
bodies to participate. The Gwynedd and Anglesey 
Public Services Board has invited the following 
organisations as guest members:

• Welsh Government
• North Wales Police
• Public Health Wales
• North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner
• Snowdonia National Park Authority
• Mantell Gwynedd
• Medrwn Môn
• Wales Probation Service
• Bangor University
• Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd
• Grŵp Llandrillo Menai

There will be an opportunity to ask other bodies/
organisations/ partners to sit on the Gwynedd and 
Anglesey Public Services Board in the future as 
specific objectives and actions are identified.

Page 350



ASSESSMENT 
OF LOCAL  
WELL-BEING
In May 2017, an Assessment of Local Well-being was 
published for Gwynedd and Anglesey. The Public 
Services Board decided to divide the two counties into 
14 smaller areas and research was undertaken in order 
to understand and learn more about the well-being of 
those areas. Eight of these areas were in Gwynedd and 
six in Anglesey.

Once the data had been gathered and the research had 
been completed individual booklets were produced for 
each of the 14 areas. The booklets looked at well-being 
in the context of the four main headings of the Act – 
namely Social, Economic, Environmental and Cultural. 
'Population and Language' has been included as an 
additional heading locally as the Board recognises the 
importance of this specific theme to the area.

Twenty-eight public sessions were held, two in each 
of the areas, to gather more information and to give 
residents an opportunity to voice their opinion. We 
asked if they recognised their area from the booklets, 
what was important to them, and what they liked 
about their community as well as what they would like 
to see changing. Residents were also asked what was 
important in terms of the well-being of the individual 
and the well-being of the community.

It was important that we heard various opinions 
from across the area, so sessions were held at schools 
and with community groups. In addition, regional 
discussions were held with representatives of harder-to-
reach groups.

There was a social media campaign and articles 
appeared in local press and on partners’ websites to 
promote the assessment, and to encourage residents to 
complete an on-line questionnaire about their areas.

The information booklets for each area are still available 
on the website.

www.LlesiantGwyneddaMon.org. W
W

W
.L

LE
SI

AN
TG

W
YN

ED
DA

M
ON

.O
RG

Page 351



WHAT IS 
WELL-BEING?
There isn’t one specific definition of ‘well-
being’. There are frequent discussions about the 
meaning, but it can mean something different to 
everyone. Well-being can describe those things 
which affect how good an individual’s life is. 
Our personal well-being can include feelings of 
happiness, quality of life and the concept of living 
life to the full. Our communities, culture, health, 
environment and economy all affect well-being 
and quality of life. What’s important to personal 
well-being is also likely to change as people go 
through the various stages of life. It also follows 
that people’s personal well-being has an impact 
on the well-being of their families, and the 
communities that they are a part of.

WHAT IS WELL-BEING 
FOR THE PEOPLE 
OF GWYNEDD AND 
ANGLESEY?
The following is a flavour of what the people across 
both counties said:

What’s good about living in your area?

The fact that it has a high percentage of Welsh-
speakers, and a strong sense of community is 
important to people. Several noted that being able to 
live in a safe area is also very important, as well as the 
natural environment and the views which surround 
them.

What’s not so good?

A lack of good quality jobs is a concern for the 
residents of Gwynedd and Anglesey. It was also noted 
that the distance from services and facilities and a lack 
of suitable public transport is also a problem. Other 
factors which caused concern were high house and 
property prices and the appearance of streets in some 
towns.

What promotes your well-being and contributes 
to the quality of life in your area?

The opportunity to undertake outdoor activities, the 
natural environment, local facilities and a community 
spirit are all factors which have a positive impact on 
the well-being of the area’s population. All of this, 
together with the support of family, friends and 
neighbours contribute to promoting well-being and 
improves the quality of life of the people of Gwynedd 
and Anglesey.

What would you change about your area to make 
it a better place to live?

The factors that residents would change about their 
area are public transport, more jobs with higher 
salaries, developing local activities and facilities, and 
improving the appearance of streets.

Page 352



WHAT DID THE ASSESSMENT TELL 
US ABOUT THE WELL-BEING OF OUR 
AREAS?
The assessment was a starting point – an overview of well-being to accompany the area booklets which gave 
the Public Services Board a better understanding of Gwynedd and Anglesey.

Having considered the data and the views of local people, the Board concluded that the key messages of the 
assessment were as follows:

  1. The need to maintain a healthy community spirit
  2. The importance of protecting the natural    

 environment 
  3. Understanding the effect of demographic changes
  4. Protecting and promoting the Welsh language
  5. Promoting the use of natural resources to improve  

 health and well-being in the long-term
  6. Improving transport links to enable access to   

 services and facilities
  7. The need for good quality jobs and affordable   

 homes for local people
  8. The effect of poverty on well-being
  9. Ensuring an opportunity for every child to succeed
   
These are the main messages, but the Board acknowledges that other important factors have not been 
highlighted. It is possible that one of the reasons for this is that the action already taken is effective and has a 
positive impact on residents’ lives.

The Board will review the data in the Assessment regularly and will respond to any significant changes 
which have not already been identified as priorities within this plan.

Similarly, the Board will work to get a more detailed understanding of future developments and 
challenges which could influence well-being in the area. These include Wylfa Newydd, leaving the 
European Union and the effects of climate change, such as flooding.

Page 353



Developing 
the Plan
How were the Well-being 
OBJECTIVES agreed upon?
With nine main messages highlighted in the Well-being Assessment, a series of workshops were held 
throughout the summer of 2017 in order to listen to views about which areas to prioritise. The workshops 
were open to public bodies, the third sector, town and community councils and community groups.

Eighteen workshops were held in total, two for each of the messages.

The workshop looked at each one from the perspective of:

a) ambition
b) the Board’s influence
c) confirming whether the message should be a well-being goal 
d) how Board members should work together to make a difference to residents

A summary of the responses was submitted to the Public Services Board and it was decided which areas 
should be prioritised for this Well-being Plan.

Page 354



1. THE NEED 
TO MAINTAIN 
A HEALTHY 
COMMUNITY 
SPIRIT 
It is clear that there is a healthy community spirit in 
Gwynedd and on Anglesey – with each of the 14 areas 
saying that this was central to their well-being. It is 
important that this spirit is nurtured and promoted to 
create prosperous and sustainable communities and 
areas which are confident to face the challenges of 
the future.

The Board sees healthy communities as a basis to 
achieving its goals over the coming years, therefore 
members will work together to reinforce the 
strengths within our communities.

The work of delivering the priorities and maintaining 
healthy communities will happen hand in hand with 
those communities.

2. The 
importance 
of protecting 
the natural 
environment
The natural environment of Gwynedd and Anglesey 
is very important to the well-being, culture, health 
and economy of the area. We have special habitats 
across both counties which are important natural 
assets and are a home to a variety of wildlife, which 
contribute to the well-being of the area and the 
wider population. Wide areas of Gwynedd and 
Anglesey have also been designated due to the 
importance of the landscape or conservation which 
reflect the value of this natural environment.

Our climate is changing and it will continue to do 
so – causing the sea level to rise and more extreme 
weather events such as flooding. This will affect the 
well-being of communities and the services which 
are provided, therefore, this will be a priority 
area for the Board.

The Board considers that protecting the natural 
environment is a key part of delivering its priorities 
and it will be a common theme that runs across all 
the well-being objectives.

Page 355



3. UNDERSTANDING 
THE EFFECT OF 
DEMOGRAPHIC 
CHANGES 
The population of Gwynedd and Anglesey is ageing, 
with the number of young people in our communities 
declining. The demography of the area will change 
significantly and the nature and needs of our society 
will be very different as a result.

The Board is keen to improve its understanding 
of how this change will affect the well-being of 
communities and individuals. It is possible many 
older people will continue to work and contribute 
in full within their communities. However, we also 
acknowledge that older people are more likely to 
need more care and support and we'll need to plan 
for this. We understand that an older population does 
not necessarily mean an unhealthy population, but 
we must acknowledge that there will be an increased 
demand for services due to the ageing population.

4. PROTECTING AND 
PROMOTING THE 
WELSH LANGUAGE
Data about the Welsh language clearly shows the 
decline that has occurred over the last 30 years in the 
number of Welsh-speakers. The 11% fall in numbers 
in Gwynedd between 1981 and 2011 is higher than 
that for the same period across Wales. Gwynedd and 
Anglesey are the two counties in which the Welsh 
language is strongest and is used daily by a vast 
majority of the population. However, if the decline 
continues, some areas could be at risk of losing the 
language for future generations.

The Board understands the importance of the Welsh 
language in terms of the social make-up and cultural 
identity of the area. We must ensure that residents 
can and choose to live their lives through the medium 
of Welsh and that they can access community services 
and activities in Welsh. This is therefore a priority 
for future joint working.

Page 356



5. Promoting the use of natural 
resources to improve 
health and well-being 
in the long-term
Our information shows that the health of the population of Gwynedd and Anglesey is not as good as it could 
be. For example, 52% of adults and 30% of children aged 4-5 in Gwynedd are obese or overweight. The 
picture on Anglesey is similar with 58% of adults and 29.6% of children aged between 4 and 5 overweight or 
obese. Children and adults should be enabled to be more active, particularly in the outdoors, we should do this 
by promoting and improving access to natural green spaces.

People need to be encouraged to take responsibility for their own health and to take part in activities which 
will prevent illness in the future.

Due to the need to improve the population’s physical and mental health and the long-term effect this will have 
on well-being, health and care will be a priority for the Board.

6. Improving transport
links to enable 
access to services 
and facilities
The lack of access to services was one of the issues raised most frequently during the Well-being Assessment 
consultation. It’s clear that this is a matter of concern and has a significant effect on the well-being of 
individuals. So, services need to be planned locally and target the well-being areas.

A specific plan for the region has been developed by the North Wales Ambition Board which includes 
a Local Transport Plan. The Public Services Board believes that the best way of securing improvement is 
by supporting the work of the Ambition Board. The Board will put a formal structure in place in order to 
collaborate and influence the work of the Ambition Board.

Page 357



7. THE NEED FOR GOOD 
QUALITY JOBS AND 
AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR 
LOCAL PEOPLE

Good Quality Jobs

The need for good quality jobs was one of the main messages of the 
consultation. Our information shows that the median weekly salary in 
Gwynedd (£347 per week) is lower than the same figure for Wales as a whole. 
The money that people in Gwynedd have to spend after taxes and the costs 
of running a home is £14,640 per head per annum which is £662 less than for 
Wales as a whole. The picture is slightly better on Anglesey with the median 
weekly wage 8% higher than the same figure for Wales. 

During the consultation, many residents said that this was one of the reasons 
why young people leave their communities and identify this as an important 
issue in terms of the general well-being of the area.

The Board fully understands the need for good quality sustainable jobs. We 
also recognise the work that’s happening on this across the region under the 
leadership of the North Wales Ambition Board. The Ambition Board is in the 
process of creating a growth bid which will address this matter. Therefore, as with 
transport, the Public Services Board will collaborate and support the work of the 
Ambition Board in order to ensure the full benefits for Gwynedd and Anglesey.

Affordable homes for local people

Given the median property price and median household income, 60% of 
Gwynedd families are priced out of the housing market. This percentage varies 
from area to area with the highest percentage in Llŷn where 73% of families 
have been priced out of the market. On Anglesey 64% of families are priced 
out of the housing market with this as high as 72% in the Lligwy and Twrcelyn 
area.

Residents believe that this is another reason for the outward migration of 
young people and this has a negative effect on the well-being of those 
communities. People are keen to see more affordable houses to support and 
maintain strong and healthy communities.

The Board will prioritise this over the next period and it will work with 
partners to find an achievable solution for the problem.

Page 358



8. The effect 
of poverty on 
well-being
Evidence shows clearly that living in poverty has a 
detrimental effect on individuals’ well-being – in the 
short-term and long-term. Poverty is caused by a lack 
of resources, the most obvious of which is income, but 
it also includes the lack of ability to obtain goods and 
access basic services.

The data gathered highlights issues such as the 
difference in the educational attainment of pupils 
who receive free school meals and those who pay. On 
Anglesey the gap is 25%, and in Gwynedd it is 36%  
- this compares to 33% across the whole of Wales. 
In addition to this, 18% of Anglesey households and 
21% of Gwynedd households are in fuel poverty, 
both higher than the Welsh figure of 14%.

The Board will prioritise this area of work in order 
to get a detailed understanding of the implications 
of living in poverty. We will continue to develop the 
Well-being Assessment to get a better picture of the 
area and where the lack of access to services is more 
challenging due to poverty.

9. Ensuring an 
opportunity 
for every child 
to succeed
A lack of educational attainment can have an impact 
on the well-being of individuals throughout their 
lives, so we need to ensure that every pupil has an 
opportunity to succeed.

Health data also shows that obesity is a problem, and 
this can have a long-term effect on the well-being of 
children and young people.

There is clear evidence about the long-term 
detrimental effect of negative experiences in 
childhood and how this can affect the well-being of 
people throughout their lives. The need to ensure 
that our children and young people have positive 
experiences during their childhood is therefore 
important.

The Board will give priority to supporting families 
to try to ensure that every child has the best start in 
life. We will also work with key partners to deliver the 
best possible results for children and young people.

Page 359



COMMUNITIES WHICH THRIVE AND ARE PROSPEROUS IN THE LONG-TERM
TO REALISE THIS OBJECTIVE, WE WILL PRIORITISE:

The Welsh language: We will work together to increase the 
use of the Welsh language within public bodies in Gwynedd 
and Anglesey. We will promote the use of Welsh as the 
preferred language of communication between public bodies 
across both counties. 

Homes for local people: We will work with the housing sector 
to ensure more suitable and affordable homes in the right 
places to meet local needs. We will work together to ensure that 
homes are of high quality and meet the needs of residents.

The effect of poverty on the well-being of our 
communities: We will develop a detailed understanding of 
how poverty affects the area and look to ensure that the work 
happening across public bodies is more effective in mitigating the 
long-term effects of poverty.

The effect of climate change on the well-being of communities: We will work 
together locally to mitigate the effects of climate change on our communities. 

HEALTHY AND INDEPENDENT RESIDENTS WITH A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE
TO REALISE THIS OBJECTIVE, WE WILL PRIORITISE:I

Health and care of adults: We will work with the Regional 
Partnership Board to ensure that the services planned for the 
older population meet local needs. We will collaborate locally to 
plan a wide range of preventative activities for adults to enable 
them to live healthy and independent lives.

The welfare and achievement of children and young people: 
We will plan preventative services and activities together to 
support families before the need for intensive intervention 
arises. We will encourage children, young people and their 
families to improve their health so that they can live healthily 
and independently within their communities in the long-term.

Our Well-being OBJECTIVES 
Having looked at the key messages of the Well-being Assessment, and considered findings of other 
research and assessments such as The Regional Population Assessment, two well-being objectives have 
been agreed. The Public Services Board has also decided it should focus on areas that need collaboration 
to secure the best possible results for the people of Gwynedd and Ynys Môn. So, six areas have been 
prioritised in order to achieve the two well-being objectives.
 
The images alongside the objectives below show how each will contribute towards achieving the national 
well-being aims.

1

2

A prosperous 
Wales

A resilient 
Wales

A more equal 
Wales

A Wales of 
vibrant culture 

and thriving 
Welsh Language

A globally 
responsible 

Wales

A prosperous 
Wales

A healthier 
Wales

A more 
equal Wales

A Wales of 
cohesive 

communities

Page 360



How we'll work in the future? 
The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board will operate in line with seven principles. Five of these 
are national sustainable development principles and two have been added by the Board locally. These 
principles will help us to work together, avoid repeating past mistakes and get to grips with some of the 
challenges we will face in the future.

The Welsh Language     
The Welsh language will be a golden thread 
running through the plan. We will promote the use 
of the language in all aspects of our work and will 
work with communities to develop services and 
activities through the medium of Welsh.

Equality 
We will continue to target local and national 
resources to tackle inequality and disadvantage in 
order to close the gap between the most privileged 
communities and the most deprived communities.

Long term   
We will continue to gather data to ensure a better 
understanding of how communities look now 
and how they will look in the future as a result of 
factors such as demographic changes. We will also 
look at which national and regional changes are 
on the horizon and try to analyse the effect on our 
communities. By doing so, we can work together 
as partners and residents to plan services for the 
future.

Prevention    
We will use trends data to identify the problems 
which will face our communities in the future and 
will develop and implement plans to prevent them. 
We will work with communities to enable them 
to do more to prevent issues from developing 
and support programmes which can make a real 
difference in the long-term.

Collaboration     
We will try to remove the barriers which prevent 
effective collaboration. We will also share 
information and good practice between Board 
members and our residents about what is being 
done to realise objectives and priorities. We will 
consider the Board’s membership regularly and will 
ensure that the right partners are included in order 
to achieve our objectives.

Integration    
We will work in a way which will contribute to 
more than one goal where appropriate and in 
accordance with Welsh Government’s national well-
being objectives. We will try to integrate services 
if evidence shows that this gets the best results for 
our communities. We will consider other local and 
regional strategies and plans which work towards 
the same or similar goals and work together in 
order to achieve them.

Involvement  
Our residents and our communities have an 
important role to play when planning services 
for the future and we will ensure that their 
perspectives and experiences are central to the 
process of planning the work of the Board. We 
will adopt the National Participation Standards for 
all ages and ensure that the Board works within 
those standards. We will ensure that people can 
communicate with us in their preferred language 
and medium.

Page 361



The Next 
Steps
The Well-being Plan is a live document which will 
change and develop over time. Although the well-
being objectives and the priority areas have been 
set out here, this is an overview of what we intend 
to do. Further work will be carried out to develop 
specific work programmes. 
  
The next step will be to draw-up detailed work 
programmes and identify Short, Medium and 
Long-Term actions for the six priority areas.

The Board’s work will be regularly monitored by the 
Scrutiny Committees of Gwynedd Council and the 
Isle of Anglesey County Council. An annual report 
on the progress of this plan will also be produced. 

Members of the public have had the opportunity 
to share their views throughout the process of the 
developing the Well-being Plan. Many comments 
and points received have been incorporated 
into the final plan.  Some matters identified have 
not been included as yet, however, we will be 
addressing these over the coming year. 

Although the formal consultation period has 
now ended we are still keen to hear your views. 
To have your say, or if you would like to receive 
more information about the Gwynedd and 
Anglesey Public Services Board, please visit  
www.llesiantgwyneddamon.org.

 

For more 
information...
01766 771 000
post@llesiantgwyneddamon.org 

Ask for
Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services 
Board Programme Manager

Or contact:
The Council’s Business Support Service
Council Offices
Shire hall Street 
Caernarfon 
Gwynedd
LL55 1 SH

Page 362



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ffion Johnstone  (Cadeirydd – Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus / Chair- Public 
Services Board) 
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 
Eryldon 
CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 IHU  
 
 23/03/2018 
 

Gwilym o Jones 

Cynghorydd-councillor 

 

Bryngwyn 

6 Tre Ifan 

Caergeiliog 

Ynys Môn-Anglesey 

Ll65 3YB 

 
Ffôn/ tel: (01407) 740105 
E-Bost / E-mail: gwilymjones@ynysmon.gov.uk 
 
Ein Cyf-Our ref: GJ/GWR – Scrutiny Unit 
 
 
 
 

 
Annwyl / Dear Ffion, 
 

CYNLLUN LLESIANT DRAFFT GWYNEDD AC YNYS MÔN [2017] 
 
Rwy’n ysgrifennu’r llythyr hwn atoch fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Sgriwtini Partneriaeth ac Adfywio, sef 
y pwyllgor sgriwtini dynodedig yn y Cyngor hwn ar gyfer ystyried materion sy’n ymwneud â gwaith y 
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. 
 
Ar 8fed Mawrth 2018, cafodd y Pwyllgor gyfle i graffu Cynllun Llesiant drafft Gwynedd ac Ynys Môn. 
Yn dilyn cwestiynu cadarn gan yr Aelodau, mae’n bleser gennyf eich hysbysu fod y Pwyllgor wedi 
penderfynu cymeradwyo’r Cynllun ac wedi rhoi’r awdurdod i mi gyflwyno ei ymateb ffurfiol. 
 
Yn ystod ei drafodaethau, cododd y Pwyllgor nifer o faterion yr oeddynt am eu dwyn at sylw’r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (BGC) ac rwy’n crynhoi’r rhain isod:   
 
 Roedd y Pwyllgor yn cefnogi’r farn y dylai’r BGC barhau i ddatblygu yn Fwrdd rhagweithiol a 

dynamig, gan ddangos ei fod yn gweithio mewn partneriaeth mewn modd cryf, cydlynol a 
chydweithredol er mwyn gwireddu’n llawn yr uchelgeisiau a nodir yn y Cynllun Llesiant drafft.  
Serch hynny fe wnaeth Aelodau ddwyn sylw i’r angen i’r BGC fod yn ffocysu ar weithredoedd, 
byddai hyn yn lleihau’r posibilrwydd iddo gael ei weld fel  “siop siarad”. 
 

 Rhoddwyd pwyslais ar bwysigrwydd sefydlu trefniadau ar gyfer adrodd yn rheolaidd i’r Pwyllgor 
Sgriwtini ar gynnydd y BGC. Nododd y Pwyllgor ofynion canllawiau diweddar Llywodraeth Cymru 
ar gyfer pwyllgorau sgriwtini awdurdodau lleol1 a gofynnodd i’r BGC fod yn ymwybodol o hyn. 

 
 Nododd yr Aelodau yr angen i’r BGC ddatblygu cynllun gweithredu cadarn y gallai’r Pwyllgor 

Sgriwtini ei ddefnyddio i fonitro cynnydd y BGC o ran gweithredu’r Cynllun Llesiant ac ymgysylltiad 
yng nghylch cynllunio’r BGC (gofynion canllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru y cyfeirir atynt uchod). 

 
 Mynegwyd pryderon nad oedd unrhyw gyllid ar y cyd ychwanegol wedi cael ei nodi hyd yn hyn 

gan bartneriaid er mwyn cwrdd ag amcanion y Cynllun. 
 

                                                           
1 Canllawiau ar gyfer Pwyllgorau Sgriwtini Awdurdodau Lleol ar graffu Byrddau Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
(Llywodraeth Cymru, Awst 2017) 

Page 363



 
 

 Cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor Sgriwtini at bwysigrwydd ymgysylltiad effeithiol gyda dinasyddion a nododd 
yr angen i’r BGC godi ei broffil gyda thrigolion Ynys Môn a Gwynedd. Roedd y Pwyllgor hefyd o’r 
farn y byddai o fudd, o bryd i’w gilydd, i mi  fynychu cyfarfod cyhoeddus o’r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau 
Lleol fel sylwedydd 
  

 Cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor Sgriwtini at y llifogydd a gafwyd yn ddiweddar ar yr Ynys. Ym marn y 
Pwyllgor, roedd hi’n bwysig i’r BGC ddelio’n rhagweithiol gyda materion o’r fath oherwydd 
cydnabuwyd fel blaenoriaeth “y byddwn ni [BGC] yn gweithio gyda’n gilydd yn lleol i liniaru 
effeithiau newid hinsawdd ar ein cymunedau”.  

 
 Dygodd y Pwyllgor Sgriwtini sylw at y ffaith fod gwella cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth fel y gellir cael 

mynediad at wasanaethau a chyfleusterau wedi bod yn un o brif negeseuon yr asesiad llesiant. 
Ystyriwyd y dylai’r BGC weithio gyda Bwrdd Uchelgais Gogledd Cymru er mwyn gwella’r sefyllfa 
yn lleol ac yn rhanbarthol.  

 
 Roedd yr Aelodau’n croesawu’r gynrychiolaeth mewn perthynas â materion tai yn y BGC ond o’r 

farn y dylai cynrychiolydd o Gymdeithas Dai sy’n gwasanaethau ardaloedd y ddau Awdurdod Lleol 
gwahoddiad i fod yn Aelod o’r Bwrdd. Nodwyd bod cynrychiolydd o Gartrefi Gwynedd yn cael 
gwahoddiad i gyfarfodydd fel Aelod o’r Bwrdd ond yn gwasanaethau cymunedau Gwynedd yn 
unig.  

 
Mae’r pwyntiau hyn wedi cael eu tynnu o gofnodion drafft y cyfarfod,  ac rwy’n amgáu  er mwyn rhoi 
trosolwg i chi o’r cyfarfod.  
 
I gloi, carwn, ar ran y Pwyllgor, ddiolch i bawb sydd wedi bod yn rhan hyd yma o’r gwaith o baratoi’r 
Cynllun Llesiant drafft.  

 
------------------ 

 
GWYNEDD & ANGLESEY DRAFT WELL-BEING PLAN [2017] 

 
I am writing this letter in my capacity as Chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee, the designated scrutiny committee at this Council for considering matters relating to the 
work of the Public Services Board. 
 
On 8th March 2018, the Committee had an opportunity to scrutinise the draft Gwynedd and Anglesey 
Well-being Plan. Following robust questioning by Members, I am pleased to let you know that the 
Committee resolved to approve the draft Plan and authorise me to submit its formal response. 
 
During its deliberations, the Committee raised a number of matters that they wanted to bring to the 
attention of the Public Services Board ( PSB) which I summarise below:   
 
 The Committee supported the view that the PSB should continue to develop as a proactive and 

dynamic Board, demonstrating strong, cohesive and collaborative partnership working in order to 
fully realise the ambitions set out in the draft Well-being Plan.  Members did however draw 
attention to the need for the PSB to be action orientated, thus eliminating the possibility of being 
seen as a “talking shop”. 
 

 The importance of arrangements being made for regular reporting on progress by the PSB to the 
Scrutiny Committee was emphasised.  The Committee noted the requirements of recent Welsh 
Government guidance for local authority scrutiny committees2 and requested that the PSB to be 
aware of this. 

 
                                                           
2 Guidance for Local Authority Scrutiny Committees on the scrutiny of Public Services Boards (Welsh 
Government, August 2017) 

Page 364



 
 Members noted the need for the PSB to develop a robust action plan which the Scrutiny 

Committee could use to monitor progress of the PSB’s implementation of the Well-being Plan and 
engagement in the PSB planning cycle (requirements of the Welsh Government guidance referred 
to above). 

 
 Concern was expressed that no additional joint funding had been identified thus far by partners to 

meet the objectives of the Plan. 
 

 The Scrutiny Committee made reference to the importance of effective citizen engagement and 
noted a need for the PSB to raise its profile with the residents of Anglesey and Gwynedd. The 
Committee also considered that, on occasions, it would be beneficial for me to attend a public 
meeting of the Public Services Board as an observer. 

 
 The Scrutiny Committee referred to incidents of flooding that have occurred on the Island. The 

Committee considered it important that the PSB were proactive in dealing with such matters as it 
had been recognised as a priority that “we [PSB] will work together locally to mitigate the effects 
of climate change on our communities”.  

 
 The Scrutiny Committee raised the point that improving transport links to enable access to 

services and facilities had been one of the key messages of the well-being assessment. It was 
considered that the PSB should work with the North Wales Ambition Board to improve the situation 
locally and regionally.  

 
 Members welcomed representation of housing matters at the PSB but considered that a 

representative from a Housing Association serving both Local Authority areas be invited as a 
Member of the Board. It was noted that a representative from Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd was 
an invited member of the Board but with the mandate of only serving the communities of Gwynedd.  

 
These points have been extracted from the draft minutes of the meeting, which I enclose in order to 
give you an overview of the meeting.  
 
Finally, on behalf of the Committee, can I thank all concerned for the work undertaken to date in 
preparing the draft Well-being Plan.  
                                                                                            

Yn gywir/Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 

Y Cynghorydd Gwilym Owen Jones 
(Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Sgriwtini  Partneriaeth ac Adfywio /Chair, Partnership and 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee) 

 
 
Cop i / Copy to: 
 Arweinydd / Leader – Cyngor Sir Ynys Môn/ Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 Prif Weithredwr /Chief Executive - Cyngor Sir Ynys Môn /Isle of Anglesey County Council  
 Janet Roberts – Cyngor Gwynedd / Gwynedd Council  
 Dewi Wyn Jones – Cyngor Gwynedd/Gwynedd Council 

 

Page 365



This page is intentionally left blank



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 1 
 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING: County Council 
 

DATE: 15th May 2018 
 

TITLE: 

 

Annual Report of the Chair of the Standards 
Committee  
 

REPORT BY: 

 

Michael Wilson, Chair of the Standards Committee 
& Independent Member of the Standards 
Committee 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To Report on the Activities of the Standards 
Committee in 2017/18 and to secure Council 
Approval for the Committee’s Programme for 
2018/19 
  

CONTACT OFFICER: Lynn Ball, Head of Function (Council Business) / 
Monitoring Officer (ext  2568) 
 

 

Introduction 
 
1. The Standards Committee is a statutory committee which comprises 9 members (2 

County Councillors, 5 Independent Members and 2 Community Council Members). 
 
2. A casual vacancy for an independent member of the Standards Committee was filled 

through an open and competitive process, conducted by the Council’s Standards 
Committee Selection Panel during the year. A new member was appointed on 12th 
December 2017. Mr John Robert Jones’ term will end on 11th December 2025. The 
term of the other four independent members ends on 17th December 2019.  

 
 As part of the selection process, it was agreed that should a further casual vacancy for 

an independent member of the Standards Committee arise during the next twelve 
months, Ms Sarah Laing Gibbens will be automatically appointed to this role without 
the need for a further recruitment process, provided that the candidate remains 
eligible for the role, and subject to satisfactory references being received prior to the 
appointment. 

 
3. Two Town and Community Council representatives were also appointed during the 

year. Councillor Iorwerth Roberts of Bryngwran Community Council and Councillor 
Keith Roberts of Trearddur Bay Community Council were appointed on 12th December 
2017 for a period until the next local government election or until such time as the 
appointees are no longer Community Council members, whichever occurs first. 

 
4.  The County Council members are reappointed annually by the Council. 
 
5. The Standards Committee has (amongst others) the following roles and functions in 

relation to County Councillors and Town/Community Councillors:- 

Page 367

Agenda Item 9.



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 2 
 

 (a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors; 
 (b) assisting Councillors to observe their Code of Conduct; 
 (c) advising, training, or arranging to train Councillors; 
 (d) considering applications for dispensations; 
 (e) dealing with any referrals from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 

(PSOW), or the Adjudication Panel for Wales (effectively the national Standards 
Committee). 

 

Background 
 
6. At its meeting on the 23rd May 2017 the County Council resolved to approve the 

Standards Committee’s Programme for 2017/2018.  The original Programme identified 
proposed areas of work, timetable and resources.  This document is reproduced at 

ENCLOSURE B to this Report and has been updated to include the work which has 
since been delivered against objectives originally set. 

 

7. ENCLOSURE C to this Report contains the Standards Committee’s Programme for 
2018/2019, which is presented for the Council’s endorsement. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

 

8.  The Chairman would like to thank the Committee for its diligent contributions 

throughout the year, to acknowledge the support and advice of the officers who assist 

the Committee, and to thank members of the County Council for their readiness to 

engage with the work of the Committee. 

 

 8.1  Complaints 

 

 In 2016, the Committee was pleased to advise the Council that: “less of its time had 
been spent in conducting hearings, or attending meetings/mediation arising from 
alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.”  Once again, as recorded in 2017, this 
overall trend continues. 

 

 The Standards Committee receives reports every quarter and at its ordinary meetings 

which provide statistical information about the number and status of Code of Conduct 

complaints filed with the PSOW against (a) IOACC’s Members and (b) Town and 

Community Council Members. At the Committee’s most recent meeting, on the 14th 

March 2018, it was noted, from among all the members of our Town Councils, 

Community Councils and County Council, there was only one matter reported and that 

confirmed the PSOW had decided not to investigate any further.  

 

 The Committee continues to believe that self-regulation is working and that the 

reporting of a few complaints to the PSOW, when necessary and appropriate, is an 

indication of an organisation which appreciates the difference between the inevitable 

‘cut and thrust’ of politics and potentially serious matters which may warrant 

independent investigation.  The Committee believes the number and level of 

complaints to the PSOW to be an indicator of good corporate health. 

Page 368



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 3 
 

 

 8.2 Meetings 

 

 This was the first full year in which the Committee only met twice annually (rather than 

quarterly as was the previous arrangement). This remains more than the statutory 

requirement which details that standards committees must meet at least once every 

year.  

 

This frequency seems to have worked well and the agendas at the two formal 

meetings per year remain appropriate.  

 

Of course, extraordinary meetings can be called to ensure compliance with any 

statutory obligations and informal meetings will continue as business demands. This 

has indeed been the case with 2 meetings of the Dispensations Panel during the year 

and 3 Selection Panel meetings. There have also been other informal meetings as and 

when required. 

  

 8.3 Dispensations 

 

 Dispensations may be granted by the Standards Committee, in certain circumstances 

defined by statute, where the Member would otherwise be unable to participate in a 

debate or decision owing to a significant (prejudicial) personal interest. The Standards 

Committee may sometimes be in a position to overreach that prejudicial interest if 

certain conditions are met. The Dispensations Regulations apply to County 

Councillors and Town and Community Councillors. 

 

 Last year, it was reported that the Standards Committee had circulated further advice 

to Members about dispensations and that this had been reiterated in Training, held on 

18th May 2017. A briefing note on Dispensations was also circulated to the Town and 

Community Councils’ Clerks on 06.03.2017. 

 

 In 2017/2018, the Standards Committee has granted four dispensations. Two are 

generic dispensations for all members replacing others which automatically expired 

after the local government election in May 2017 and two have been granted following 

applications by a County Councillor and a Community Councillor. 

 

 The members to whom a dispensation applies should note that he/she will still need to 

declare a personal interest and confirm they are relying on the dispensation afforded 

to them on a specified date.  

 

 All County Councillors and Town and Community Councillors are recommended to 

consider whether an application for dispensation may be appropriate for them in 

certain circumstances.  

 

 

Page 369



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 4 
 

 

 8.4  Personal Development 

 

 The Standards Committee recommends to all Members that they engage with the 

Training and Development Programme offered by the County Council and that they 

take up the offer of Personal Development Reviews with their Group Leaders. 

  

 8.5 Training 

 

 Following on from that point, in November 2017, I attended one of three training 

sessions arranged by the WLGA for newly elected Councillors and was disappointed 

with the turnout of Anglesey Members. It was a very informative course and Mark 

Drakeford A.M. (Cabinet Secretary for Local Government at the time) gave a 

presentation. I would again reiterate the Standards Committee’s recommendation 

made in 8.4 above that Members participate in the Training and Development 

Programme offered by the County Council. 

  

 8.6 Members’ Registers of Interests 

 

Last year it was reported that the Standards Committee had conducted a review of the 

single register of interests retained by a sample of the Town and Community Councils. 

This was intended to assist the new councils to ensure compliance after May 2017.  

 

However, this year, the Standards Committee returned to its task of conducting an 

annual review of the three registers of interests of the County Councillors. This was 

particularly important this year as it would show the picture one year on from the 

election of some new Members and other Members who have been re-elected. 

 

The Committee was concerned that a number of members still need to review their 

pre-declarations in the “standing register”, as some entries were incomplete or lacked 

clarity.  These concerns have been raised in previous years, in general advices 

circulated to all members, and with particular issues around membership of outside 

bodies and lack of clarity around the location of land/property in the ownership of 

some members. So as to alleviate some of the problems which have been identified in 

relation to the pre-registration forms (being out of date / incomplete), a member of the 

ICT team will be available for an hour’s drop-in session in the Council Chamber before 

each of the four ordinary meetings of the Council for the next 12 months. During those 

sessions, Members can take advantage of further training on how to update the online 

forms.  

 

Declarations made by some Members in meetings could be improved if Members fully 

completed the form and provided sufficient information in relation to the interest and 

how it relates to the item on the agenda. 

 

Page 370



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 5 
 

Training has also been identified as an area which needs to be improved for some 

and for easier navigational access to the information to be available to the public. 

There have therefore been amendments to the website, which have been discussed in 

a Briefing session with Members on 3rd May 2018; the information is not new, but new 

pathways have been created to these sources of information from each Member’s 

biography page. 

 

Following the review, some individual members have received personal emails from 

the Standards Committee with recommendations in relation to some of the information 

which has been published. An email detailing the general conclusions of the review 

has been sent to all Members (ENCLOSURE A). 

 

This year it is the Committee’s intention to review a sample of the register held by 

Town/Community Councils (as last year) and the general findings will be reported 

back to all Town and Community Councils later this year. It will be interesting to 

consider if the standards have been maintained or improved since the last review in 

2016/2017. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: - 
 
 

1. To note the Programme delivered by the Standards Committee between April 2017 

and May 2018 at ENCLOSURE B. 
 

2. To endorse the Standards Committee’s Work Programme for 2018/2019 as 

outlined in ENCLOSURE C.

Page 371



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 6 
 

ENCLOSURE A 

 

 
Annwyl Aelod, 
 
Ac eithrio yn 2016/17, pan oedd y Pwyllgor Safonau yn canolbwyntio ei ymdrechion ar Gofrestr Diddordebau’r Cynghorau Tref a 
Chymuned, mae'r Pwyllgor Safonau yn cynnal adolygiad blynyddol o'r Cofrestrau mewn perthynas â datganiadau o ddiddordebau gan 
Aelodau a gedwir gan y Cyngor. Mae'r Pwyllgor Safonau'n credu mai ei rôl yw cynorthwyo Aelodau i gydymffurfio â'u dyletswyddau, nid i 
chwilio am gamgymeriadau a gobeithiwn y bydd yr argymhellion o’r adolygiad yn ddefnyddiol. 
 
Diolch am eich cefnogaeth a'ch cymorth gyda'r adolygiad, ac am ddiweddaru eich ffurflenni lle bo angen cyn cynnal yr adolygiad. Roedd 
yr wybodaeth a adolygwyd yn cynnwys: - 
 

 Y Gofrestr Sefydlog 

 Datganiadau a wnaed mewn cyfarfodydd 

 Cofrestr Rhoddion a Lletygarwch 

 Adroddiadau Blynyddol yr Aelodau 

 Rhaglenni a Chofnodion Cyfarfodydd 

 Hyfforddiant a gynigir gan y Cyngor a Chofnod Hyfforddi pob aelod 

 Rhestr Cyrff Allanol 
 
Yn dilyn adolygiad eleni, mae'r Pwyllgor yn gofyn i chi roi sylw dyladwy i'w gasgliadau cyffredinol fel a ganlyn: - 
 

Y Gofrestr Sefydlog 
 
1. Fe fyddem yn atgoffa Aelodau yn benodol i sicrhau bod eu cyfeiriadau a’u daliadau tir wedi'u disgrifio'n glir yn adran 1.6 y 

gofrestr. Os nad oes gan Aelod ddiddordeb mewn unrhyw dir, dylent nodi 'Dim' neu 'Dim Diddordebau' ar y gofrestr. 
 
2. Mae hefyd yn bwysig bod Aelodau'n datgelu eu haelodaeth o gyrff cyhoeddus, elusennau a chymdeithasau cyhoeddus eraill. 

Dylai aelodau nodi enw a chyfeiriad llawn y sefydliadau / elusennau y maent yn aelodau ohonynt. Dylai'r Aelodau hefyd fanylu ar 
eu statws yn y sefydliad hwnnw. 
 

3. Mae anghysonderau hefyd o ran aelodaeth o sefydliadau allanol rhwng y rhai a restrir gan y Cyngor a'r rhai a ddatganwyd gan 
aelodau unigol; nid ydynt bob amser yn cael eu cofnodi ar y ffurflenni er eu bod wedi'u rhestru ar "flaen dudalen" pob Aelod. Mae 
blaen dudalennau Aelodau i'w gweld yn - 

P
age 372



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 7 
 

http://democratiaeth.ynysmon.gov.uk/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=650&LLL=1 

 
4. Pan mae Aelodau'n datgan diddordeb mewn busnes, dylent ddarparu digon o wybodaeth ynghylch yr hyn y mae’r diddordeb 

busnes yn ei olygu. 
 

5. Atgoffir aelodau o'r gofyniad statudol i ddiweddaru'r Gofrestr Sefydlog o fewn 28 diwrnod i unrhyw newidiadau ddigwydd.  
 

6. Er mwyn lliniaru'r problemau sydd wedi'u nodi mewn perthynas â'r ffurflenni cyn-gofrestru (ddim yn gyfredol / anghyflawn), mae'r 
Pwyllgor Safonau wedi cwrdd â chynrychiolwyr o'r Gwasanaeth TGCh i'w trafod. Noder y bydd aelod o'r tîm TGCh ar gael am 
sesiwn galw heibio am awr yn Siambr y Cyngor cyn pob un o'r pedwar cyfarfod cyffredin o'r Cyngor am y 12 mis nesaf. Cynhelir y 
sesiwn galw heibio gyntaf yn Lolfa’r Aelodau fore Ddydd Mawrth, Mai 15fed 2018 rhwng 9.30yb a 10.30yb. Yn ystod y sesiwn, 
gallwch fanteisio ar hyfforddiant pellach ar sut i ddiweddaru'r ffurflenni ar-lein. Y gobaith yw y bydd hon yn ffordd o’ch cynorthwyo 
chi fel Aelodau i gydymffurfio â'ch dyletswyddau statudol yn unol â'r Cod Ymddygiad. 

 

Datgan diddordebau mewn cyfarfodydd 
 
1. Pan fydd Aelodau'n ticio'r blwch i ddatgan diddordeb, rhaid iddynt hefyd nodi manylion y diddordeb hwnnw. Rhaid i natur y 

diddordeb ac a yw'r diddordeb hwnnw yn ddiddordeb personol neu’n un sy'n rhagfarnu fod yn amlwg ar y ffurflen. 
 
2. Mae angen mwy o eglurder mewn perthynas â'r wybodaeth a ddarperir gan yr Aelodau ynghylch natur y diddordeb a’r modd y 

mae'n ymwneud â'r eitem ar yr agenda. 
 
3. Os yw'r Aelodau'n ansicr a oes ganddynt ddiddordeb y mae angen ei ddatgan mewn cyfarfodydd, dylent geisio cyngor er mwyn 

osgoi anghysonderau yn y datganiadau a wneir. 
 

4. Mae aelodau weithiau yn datgan diddordebau ar lafar mewn cyfarfodydd ond nid ydynt yn cwblhau'r gwaith papur. Mae angen 
cwblhau'r ffurflen ar gyfer datganiadau o ddiddordeb ym mhob cyfarfod lle datgenir diddordeb o'r fath ar lafar, oherwydd nid yw 
datganiadau llafar o ddiddordeb yn ddigonol ynddynt eu hunain. 
 

Cofrestr Rhoddion a Lletygarwch 
 
Ychydig iawn o ddatganiadau sy'n cael eu gwneud mewn perthynas â rhoddion a lletygarwch a gwahoddir Aelodau i ail-ymgyfarwyddo 
eu hunain â’r Protocol Rhoddion a Lletygarwch 
 

Hyfforddiant 
 

P
age 373

http://democratiaeth.ynysmon.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?LLL=1
http://monitor.ynysmon.gov.uk/Journals/2014/11/06/p/w/j/234534---Nodyn-Briffio-i-Aelodau-ar-Ddatgan-Rhoddion-a-Lletygarwch---Cymraeg.pdf


CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 8 
 

Mae'r Pwyllgor Safonau wedi sylwi bod nifer o Aelodau wedi methu â mynychu digon o hyfforddiant eleni. 
 
Ar adeg yr adolygiad, nid oedd 5 Aelod wedi mynychu hyfforddiant ar y Cod Ymddygiad ers yr etholiad ym mis Mai 2017, er gwaethaf 
cael eu gwahodd i hyfforddiant o'r fath. Mae hyn yn achosi llawer o bryder. Rwyf wedi cysylltu â'r unigolion hynny yn uniongyrchol.  
 
Roedd y Pwyllgor Safonau o'r farn ei bod yn anodd llywio trwy'r wybodaeth berthnasol, yn enwedig mewn perthynas â hyfforddi Aelodau. 
Felly mae ymholiadau'n parhau o ran gwella'r wybodaeth sydd ar gael ar gyfer mynychu sesiynau hyfforddi a chyfarfodydd cyrff allanol, 
a sut y gall y cyhoedd weld y wybodaeth honno. 
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurder hefyd mewn perthynas â'r hyfforddiant cynllunio a’r hyfforddiant diogelu gorfodol y mae'n rhaid i'r Aelodau eu 
mynychu. 
 

Aelodaeth a Phresenoldeb ar Gyrff Allanol 
 
Noder os gwelwch yn dda y gofynnwyd i Arweinyddion Grwpiau fonitro aelodaeth yr Aelodau o gyrff allanol a’u presenoldeb yng 
nghyfarfodydd y cyrff hynny. Gofynnwyd iddynt hefyd sicrhau bod yr Aelodau'n darparu adborth priodol ar y materion a godwyd ynddynt. 
 
 
Mae'r canfyddiadau hyn yn nodi casgliadau cyffredinol yr adolygiad. Mae rhai Aelodau unigol wedi derbyn negeseuon e-bost personol 
gan y Pwyllgor Safonau gydag argymhellion ar gyfer adolygu / diweddaru / esbonio peth o'r wybodaeth a gyhoeddwyd. Lle ystyriwyd bod 
hynny'n angenrheidiol, gofynnwyd i rai Aelodau gyfarfod â mi. Yn y llythyrau, rydym wedi gofyn am ymatebion. Lle na dderbyniwyd 
ymatebion, cofiwch y byddwn yn codi'r mater gyda'ch Arweinyddion Grwp. 
 
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn gwerthfawrogi eich bod chi i gyd yn brysur iawn ac yn ymwybodol mai dim ond un o nifer o dasgau y mae'n rhaid i chi 
fynd i'r afael â nhw yw hon. Fodd bynnag, gobeithiwn y bydd yr argymhellion uchod yn cynorthwyo i arbed amser i'r Aelodau oherwydd 
bydd gwella safon y ffurflenni, gobeithio, yn osgoi beth allai fod yn gwynion di-sail sy’n draul ar amser pawb. 
 
Cofion, 
 

 
 
Dear Member, 
 
Apart from in 2016/17, when the Standards Committee concentrated its efforts on the Town and Community Councils’ Register of 
Interests, the Standards Committee conducts an annual review of the Registers in respect of declarations of interests by Members which 

P
age 374



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 9 
 

are held by the Council.  The Standards Committee believe its role is to assist Members to comply with their duties, not to look for errors 
and we hope that you will find the recommendations from the review helpful. 
 
Thank you for your support and assistance with the review, and for updating your forms where necessary prior to the review being 
conducted. The information reviewed included:- 
 

 The Standing Register 

 Declarations made in meetings 

 Gifts & Hospitality Register 

 Members Annual Reports 

 Agenda and Minutes of Meetings 

 Training offered by the Council and each member’s Training Record 

 Outside Bodies list. 
 
Following this year’s review, the Committee asks that you have due regard to its general findings, which are as follows:- 
 

The Standing Register 

 
1. We would remind Members specifically to ensure that their addresses and land holdings are clearly described in section 1.6 of 

the register.  If a Member has no interest in land they should enter ‘None’ or ‘No Interest’ on the register. 
 

2. It is also important that Members disclose their membership of other public bodies, charities and associations.  Members should 
provide the full name and address of organisations/charities of which they are members. Members should also detail their status 
within that organisation. 
 

3. There are also inconsistencies in terms of membership of external organisations between those listed by the Council and those 
declared by individual members; they are not always recorded on the forms although they are listed on every Member’s “front 
page”.  Members “front page” can be found at - 
http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?LLL=0  
 

4. Where Members are declaring a business interest they should provide sufficient information on what the business interest is. 
 

5. Members are reminded of the statutory requirement to update the Standing Register within 28 days of any changes occurring.  
 

P
age 375

http://democracy.anglesey.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?LLL=0


CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 10 
 

6. In order to alleviate the problems which have been identified in relation to the pre-registration forms (being out of date / 
incomplete), the Standards Committee has met with representatives from the ICT Service to discuss. Please note that a member 
of the ICT team will be available for an hour’s drop-in session in the Council Chamber before each of the four ordinary meetings 
of the Council for the next 12 months. The first drop-in session will be held in the Members’ Lounge between 9.30am and 
10.30am on Tuesday 15th May 2018. During the session you can take advantage of further training on how to update the online 
forms. It is hoped that this is a way of assisting you as Members to comply with your statutory duties in accordance with the Code 
of Conduct. 

 

Declaration of interests in meetings 

 
1. When Members are ticking the box to declare an interest they must also provide details of that interest. Both the nature of the 

interest and whether that interest is a personal or a prejudicial interest must be evident on the form. 
 

2. Greater clarity is required in respect of the information supplied by Members regarding the nature of the interest and how it relates 
to the item on the agenda.   
 

3. If Members are unsure as to whether they have a declarable interest in meetings they should seek advice in order to avoid 
inconsistencies in the declarations being made. 
 

4. Members occasionally declare an interest orally at meetings but do not complete the paperwork.  The form needs to be 
completed for declarations of interest at every meeting where such an interest is declared orally, as oral declarations of interests 
alone are not sufficient. 
 

Register of Gifts and Hospitality 
 
Few declarations are made with regard to gifts and hospitality and Members are invited to re-familiarise themselves with the Protocol of 
Gifts and Hospitality 
 

Training 

 
The Standards Committee has observed that several Members have failed to attend sufficient training this year. 
 
At the time of review, 5 Members had not attended training on the Code of Conduct since the election in May 2017, despite being invited 
to such training.  This causes much concern.  I have contacted those individuals directly.   
 

P
age 376

http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/2014/11/06/b/z/m/234533---Briefing-Note---Gifts-and-Hospitality---Saesneg.pdf
http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/2014/11/06/b/z/m/234533---Briefing-Note---Gifts-and-Hospitality---Saesneg.pdf


CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 11 
 

The Standards Committee considered that to navigate through the relevant information, particularly in relation to Members’ training, was 
difficult.  Enquiries are therefore ongoing in terms of improving the information available for attendance at training sessions and in 
meetings of outside bodies, and how that information may be viewed by the public. 
 
Clarity has also been sought in relation to the compulsory planning training and safeguarding training which Members must attend. 
 

Membership and Attendance on Outside Bodies 
 
Please note that Group Leaders have been requested to monitor Members’ membership and attendance at meetings of outside bodies. 
They have also been requested to ensure Members are providing appropriate feedback on matters raised therein. 
 
 
These findings set out the general conclusions of the review. Some individual Members have received personal emails from the 
Standards Committee with recommendations for review / updating / explaining some of the information which has been published.  
Where it was considered necessary, some Members have been requested to meet with me. In the letters, we have asked for responses. 
Where responses have not been received, please be aware that we will be raising the matter with your Group Leaders. 
 
The Committee appreciates that you are all very busy and is aware that this task is only one of a number that you have to address.  
However, we hope that the above recommendations will assist in saving time for Members as improving the standard of the forms will 
hopefully avoid what may potentially be groundless and time consuming complaints. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
Mike Wilson 
 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Safonau / Chair of the Standards Committee. 
Cyngor Sir Ynys Môn / The Isle of Anglesey County Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 377



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 12 
 

ENCLOSURE B 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME – MAY 2017 TO APRIL 2018 

 

   

TIMETABLE 

 

RESOURCES 

 

 

STATUS AS AT YEAR END 

1. To conduct hearings into alleged breaches of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct, by County 
Councillors and Town and Community 
Councillors, following a referral from the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
(PSOW) 

 As and when 
referrals are 
made and in 
accordance 
with the 
performance 
indicator 
 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 No referrals 

2. To conduct hearings into applications for 
Dispensations made by County Councillors 
and Town/Community Councillors  

 As and when 
applications 
are made and 
in accordance 
with the 
performance 
indicator 
 

 Monitoring Officer 
 
 

 Dispensation application by 
Councillor Carwyn Jones, elected 
member of IOACC, with meeting 
held on 18.07.2017.  
The dispensation related to the 
Councillor’s three personal 
interests, two of which are also 
prejudicial, in relation to the 
County Council’s strategy for the 
medium and long-term future of 
education on the Island, and 
specifically in the Seiriol ward. 
The dispensation was granted to 
Councillor Jones in the terms 
recorded in the minutes.  
The dispensation is valid until 8 
May 2022.  

 Generic dispensation applied for 
by the Monitoring Officer on 
behalf of Members of the Isle of 

P
age 378



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 13 
 

Anglesey County Council as at 
May 2017, or at any time during 
the Council’s term until May 2022, 
with meeting held on 13.09.2017. 
The application related to the 
Indemnities Sub-Committee. The 
same generic dispensation was 
granted for the same issue, and in 
the same way, in September 
2013. The dispensation was 
granted and is in force for the 
remaining Council term. 

 Dispensation application by 
Councillor Roger Dobson of 
Llanbadrig Community Council 
with meeting held on 14.03.2018.  
The dispensation related to the 
Councillor’s personal interest 
which is prejudicial, in relation to 
the property he owns and its 
proximity to the Wylfa Newydd 
development site. 
The dispensation was granted to 
Councillor Dobson in the terms 
recorded in the minutes.  
The dispensation is valid for the 
duration of the Councillor’s term of 
office.  

 Generic dispensation applied for 
by the Monitoring Officer on 
behalf of Members of the Isle of 
Anglesey County Council as at 
May 2017, or at any time during 
the Council’s term until May 2022, 
with meeting held on 14.03.2018. 
The application related to any 

P
age 379



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 14 
 

future decisions on school 
charges.  A similar generic 
dispensation was granted in the 
same terms in 2015. The 
dispensation was granted and is 
in force for the remaining Council 
term i.e. until May 2022.  
 

3. To undertake an advisory role in connection 
with any matters arising under the Council’s 
Local Resolution Protocol. 
 

 As and when 
requested 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 No requests 

4. To oversee training and development on the 
Members’ Code of Conduct in accordance 
with paragraph 2.6 of the Code 
 

 Ready for 
May 2018 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

TOWN/COMMUNITY COUNCILS:- 

 members of the Standards 
Committee attended the training 
sessions for Town and 
Community Councillors on 
13.11.17, 15.11.17, 22.11.17, 
29.11.17 and 22.3.18  
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEMBERS:- 

 Review of post-election induction 
and training arrangements for 
members 

 Two members of the Standards 
Committee attended the regional 
induction session for newly 
elected members in November 
2017 

 Programme presented by the 
Human Resources Development 
Manager and approved by the 
Standards Committee on 14 
September 2016  

 Training programme has been 
approved and published to 

P
age 380



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 15 
 

members 

 Member Development Charter – 
the Council is applying for a 
renewal. 

 

5. To review the three registers of Members’ 
Interests followed by any necessary advice 
and guidance. 
 

 By the end of 
April 2018 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 Review conducted between 
January and February 2018 

 Individual letters sent to certain 
Members following the review 

 General findings letter sent to all 
Members on 03.05.2018 (copy 
attached at Enclosure 1) 

 Town and Community Council 
members of the Standards 
Committee will undertake a review 
of the interests of the independent 
members of the Standards 
Committee on 14.05.2018 
 

6. To undertake the role of consultee on any 
proposed change to the Constitution relevant 
to the role of the Standards Committee and 
especially where such proposed changes 
might disproportionately prejudice the rights 
and interests of any minority group. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 No referrals 

7. To undertake the role of consultee on any 
proposed legislative / policy changes etc 
relevant to the Standards Committee’s area of 
responsibility. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 Standards Committee Selection 
Panel to appoint new independent 
Member – see 13 below 

 Amended Code of Conduct – 
adoption by the Town and 
Community Councils has been 
reviewed 

 A review of whether Town and 
Community Councils have 

P
age 381



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 16 
 

Websites has been conducted 

 The Standards Committee is to 
review the publishing of the 
Annual Reports by Members 

 

8. To make any recommendations to the Council 
for improvements in those areas of work 
which relate to the Standards Committee. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 Management Structure – staff, 
members and Standards 
Committee members can all view 
(sent 24.3.17). This is to be 
reviewed every 12 months. A 
review is being undertaken at 
present.   

 Local Resolution Protocol – 
subject to a separate report to 
Council on 15.05.2018 

 

9. The Chair of the Standards Committee to 
present an annual report to the Council 
outlining the work of the committee during the 
previous year. 
 

 May 2018  Chair 

 

 15.05.2018 

10. To ensure that the knowledge and skills of the 
Standards Committee are developed and 
updated by:- 
   

  Monitoring Officer 

 

 

 - regular reviews of decided cases from 
o other relevant authorities 
o Adjudication Panel for Wales 

 

 Ordinary 
meeting of the 
Committee 

  Delivered on 13.09.2017 and 
14.03.2018 to the Standards 
Committee. Published to County 
Councillors on 27.11.2018 and 
20.03.2018 and Town and 
Community Councillors on 
23.03.2018 
 

 - to participate and contribute on the North 
Wales Standards Committee Forum 

 Twice 
annually 

  24.11.17 – Forum Meeting held by 
Wrexham County Borough 

P
age 382



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 17 
 

 Council. 

 Next meeting to be hosted by 
Gwynedd County Council on 
29.06.2018 
 

 - to participate and contribute to the All 
Wales Standards Committee Conference. 
 

 Once every 2 
years – due 
2017/2018 

  No Conference 2017/2018. 

 Scheduled on 14.09.2018 in 
Aberystwyth (arranged by 
Ceredigion County Council) 

 

 - To be reviewed under a performance 
appraisal review scheme similar to that 
used by the county council’s elected 
members. 

 

 One every 2 
years – due 
2018 

  The Chair undertook a Personal 
Development Review process, 
including an hour’s meeting, with 
each independent member and 
the Town/Community Council 
representatives of the Standards 
Committee on 27.04.2018 

 The Chair will undertake a 
Personal Development Review 
with the Monitoring Officer   

 The next PDR is in two years i.e. 
2020 and the term of 4 of the 
independent members of the 
Standards Committee will have 
finished before then (in December 
2019) 
 

11. To monitor progress on Member complaints 
filed with the PSOW and to undertake an 
annual analysis of complaints data in relation 
to Ynys Mon County Council and Town and 
Community Councils in order to identify 
trends/issues of concern/training needs. 
 

 Quarterly   Monitoring Officer 

 

 Report to the Standards 
Committee on 13.09.2017 and 
14.03.2018 

 Complaints matrix is circulated to 
Standards Committee members 
quarterly in April (January-March), 
July (April-June), October (July-
September) and January 

P
age 383



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 18 
 

(October-December). It details the 
complaints received and the 
progress made regarding those 
complaints being investigated by 
the PSOW in relation to (a) 
County Councillors and (b) Town 
and Community Councillors. 

 Report by the PSOW and 
summary of the Casebook of 
Code of Conduct complaints 
received by the PSOW between 
April 2016 and April 2017 reported 
to the Standards Committee on 
13.09.2017. Report circulated to 
County Council Members on 
27.11.2017 and 20.03.2018 and 
Town and Community Council 
Clerks on 23.03.2018 

 Further report by the PSOW and 
summary of the Casebook of 
Code of Conduct complaints 
received by the PSOW between 
July and November 2017 reported 
to the Standards Committee on 
14.03.2018.  

 Report by way of an analysis of 
the nature of the complaints 
referred to the PSOW / recent 
trends presented to the Standards 
Committee on 13.09.2017 (item 
4). This is to be an annual report 
to the Standards Committee. 
 

12. To maintain contact with Group Leaders to 
discuss any issues of concern. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Chair  5.10.2017 

 8.11.2017 

 25.01.2018 

P
age 384



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 19 
 

 26.04.2018 
 

13. Appoint a new independent member to the 
Standards Committee. 
 

 As soon as 
possible 

 Monitoring Officer 

 Standards Committee 
Selection Panel 
 

 Standards Committee Selection 
Panel met on 20.09.2017 to 
approve the advertisement of the 
vacancy of an Independent 
Member of the Standards 
Committee. 

 Standards Committee Selection 
Panel met on 17.11.2017 to draw 
a shortlist of applicants for 
interview on 27.11.2017 

 Following interviews, the 
Standards Committee Selection 
Panel nominated a candidate for 
appointment to the Standards 
Committee and the Chair of the 
Standards Committee Selection 
Panel was to present a report to 
full Council nominating the 
successful candidate and 
recommending that the second 
shortlisted candidate be 
automatically appointed to any 
further casual vacancy for an 
independent member of the 
Standards Committee, if such 
should arise in the next twelve 
months. 

 At its meeting on 12.12.2017, full 
Council resolved to appoint Mr 
John Robert Jones as co-opted 
independent member of the 
Standards Committee from 

P
age 385



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 20 
 

immediate effect; and in the event 
that a further casual vacancy for 
an independent member of the 
Standards Committee arises 
during the next twelve months, to 
automatically appoint Ms Sarah 
Laing Gibbens to this role without 
the need for a further recruitment 
process, provided always that this 
candidate remains eligible for the 
role, and subject to satisfactory 
references being received prior to 
the appointment. 

The appointment will continue 
until 11 December 2025. 

 

14. Appoint two Town and Community Council 
representatives to the Standards Committee 

 Following May 
2017’s 
election 
 

 Monitoring Officer  At its meeting on 12.12.2017, full 
Council resolved to appoint 
Councillor Iorwerth Roberts of 
Bryngwran Community Council 
and Councillor Keith Roberts of 
Trearddur Bay Community 
Council. 
These appointments will continue 
until the next local government 
elections or until such time as the 
appointees are no longer 
community council members, 
whichever occurs first. 

 

15. Report performance indicators on a default 
basis 
 

 Relationship between Members and 

 Quarterly  Monitoring Officer 

 

 Reported quarterly 

P
age 386



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 21 
 

Political Groups 

 The effectiveness of the Council’s 
Standards Committee 

 Standards of conduct and behaviour of 
Members 
 

 

P
age 387



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 22 
 

ENCLOSURE C 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME – MAY 2018 TO APRIL 2019 

 

   

TIMETABLE 

 

RESOURCES 

 

 

STATUS AS AT YEAR END 

1. To conduct hearings into alleged breaches of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct, by County 
Councillors and Town and Community 
Councillors, following a referral from the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
(PSOW) 

 As and when 
referrals are 
made and in 
accordance 
with the 
performance 
indicator 
 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

2. To conduct hearings into applications for 
Dispensations made by County Councillors 
and Town/Community Councillors  

 As and when 
applications are 
made and in 
accordance 
with the 
performance 
indicator 
 

 Monitoring Officer 
 
 

 

3. To undertake an advisory role in connection 
with any matters arising under the Council’s 
Local Resolution Protocol 
 

 As and when 
requested 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 

4. To oversee training and development on the 
Members’ Code of Conduct in accordance 
with paragraph 2.6 of the Code 
 

 Ready for May 
2019 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 

5. To review a sample of the Register of 
Members’ Interest as retained by Town and 
Community Councils followed by any 
necessary advice and guidance 

 By the end of 
April 2019 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

 

P
age 388



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 23 
 

 

6. To undertake the role of consultee on any 
proposed change to the Constitution relevant 
to the role of the Standards Committee and 
especially where such proposed changes 
might disproportionately prejudice the rights 
and interests of any minority group. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 

7. To undertake the role of consultee on any 
proposed legislative / policy changes etc 
relevant to the Standards Committee’s area 
of responsibility. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 

8. To make any recommendations to the 
Council for improvements in those areas of 
work which relate to the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Monitoring Officer 

 

 

9. The Chair of the Standards Committee to 
present an annual report to the Council 
outlining the work of the committee during the 
previous year. 
 

 May 2019  Chair 

 

 

10. To ensure that the knowledge and skills of 
the Standards Committee are developed and 
updated by:- 
   

  Monitoring Officer 

 

 

 - regular reviews of decided cases from 
o other relevant authorities 
o Adjudication Panel for Wales 

 

 Ordinary 
meeting of the 
Committee 

  

 - to participate and contribute on the North 
Wales Standards Committee Forum 

 

 Twice annually   

 - to participate and contribute to the All 
Wales Standards Committee Conference. 

 14.09.2018   

P
age 389



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 24 
 

 

 - To be reviewed under a performance 
appraisal review scheme similar to that 
used by the county council’s elected 
members. 

-  

 One every 2 
years – due 
2020 

  

11. To monitor progress on Member complaints 
filed with the PSOW and to undertake an 
annual analysis of complaints data in relation 
to Ynys Mon County Council and Town and 
Community Councils in order to identify 
trends/issues of concern/training needs. 
 

 Quarterly   Monitoring Officer 

 

 

12. To maintain contact with Group Leaders to 
discuss any issues of concern. 
 

 As and when 
required 

 Chair  

13. Report performance indicators on a default 
basis 
 

 Relationship between Members and 
Political Groups 

 The effectiveness of the Council’s 
Standards Committee 

 Standards of conduct and behaviour of 
Members 
 

 Quarterly  Monitoring Officer 

 

 

14. To review the system for Members to be 
providing feedback from Outside Bodies on 
which they have been appointed and the 
support which they require from the Council 
to be able to do this. Consider the information 
which is made available to the public in 
relation to those Outside Bodies e.g. Agenda 
and Minutes of those meetings. 
 

 

 By the end of 
April 2019 

 Monitoring Officer 
 

 

P
age 390



CC-019486-MY(437579) Page 25 
 

15. Begin the process of recruiting 4 new 
independent members to the Standards 
Committee, in order to replace the committee 
members’ whose term end in December 
2019. The aim would be for those members 
to attend the last formal meeting of the 
Standards Committee held in the current 
members’ term in September 2019. 
 

 Process to 
begin by the 
end of April 
2019 

 Monitoring Officer  

 

P
age 391



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

CC-019486-MY/437545 Page 1 
 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING: County Council 
 

DATE: 15th May 2018 
 

TITLE: 

 

Local Resolution Protocol 
 

REPORT BY: 

 

Michael Wilson, Chair and Independent Member 
of the Standards Committee  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To report to Members on an amended Local 
Resolution Protocol and for the same to be 
approved by full Council 
  

CONTACT OFFICER: Lynn Ball, Head of Function (Council Business) / 
Monitoring Officer (ext  2568) 
 

 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1  The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) following revision of his test 

for investigating complaints, encouraged local authorities in Wales to deal with low 
level misconduct complaints between members through an informal local resolution 
protocol. 

 
1.2  There were a number of objectives behind this development, including:- 

1.2.1  to reduce complaints submitted to the PSOW; 
1.2.2  earlier resolution of local issues to avoid escalation; 
1.2.3  the fostering of good and positive relationships between members. 

 
1.3  Each local authority in Wales was responsible for adopting its own protocol. The 

PSOW/Welsh Government (which strongly supported the initiative) did not specify 
the requirements of a protocol, nor provide any standard format to be followed. 

 
1.4  The Isle of Anglesey County Council has a Local Resolution Protocol. The Protocol 

in its current format was adopted on 23 May 2013. A copy of the current Protocol is 

at Enclosure 1. 
 
1.5   The current Protocol, although approved by full Council, has no statutory force and 

is a voluntary and informal scheme. It is not mandatory for any member to submit to 
the Protocol. However, such a Protocol is considered to afford members an 
effective and fair way of dealing with low level disputes and is evidence of good 
local governance.  

 
1.6 Owing to recent discussions within the North Wales Standards Committee Forum, 

the Standards Committee has decided to amend the current Local Resolution 
Protocol so that it involves a simpler process of mediation between the relevant 
elected members and two independent members of the Standards Committee. 

Page 393

Agenda Item 10.



 

CC-019486-MY/437545 Page 2 
 

Documentation is to be kept to a minimum and early and swift resolution is a 
priority. The current Protocol is deemed too complex and burdensome. 

 

2. Amended Local Resolution Protocol 
 

2.1  The draft amended Local Resolution Protocol proposed is at Enclosure 2.  
 

2.2 The purpose of the draft amended Protocol is to: 

 promote high standards of conduct;  

 foster and maintain positive working relationships between members; 

 address low level behavioural complaints which do not meet the PSO’s 
threshold in relation to evidence and public interest;  

 deal with matters arising as quickly as reasonably possible to avoid 
unnecessary escalation of issues; 

 safeguard the Council’s reputation.  
 

2.3  The draft amended Protocol seeks to achieve swift resolution and reconciliation by 
way of a mediation process. It is a voluntary arrangement, so both parties must 
agree to mediate.  
 

2.4 The draft amended Protocol may only be utilised when the alleged misconduct 
against the member falls under one of two paragraphs of the Code of Conduct, 
namely:  

           4(b) - allegations of failure to show respect and consideration for others; and/or 
6(1)(d) - allegations that a member has made vexatious, malicious or frivolous 
complaints against other members. 
 

2.5 When a member wishes to use the draft amended Protocol, s/he must put the 
complaint in writing to the Chair of the Standards Committee (in the form attached 
to the draft amended Protocol) within 14 days from the date of the event which is 
the subject of the complaint, or 14 days from the date when the event came to the 
knowledge of the complainant. The Chair of the Standards Committee will then 
share the complaint with the member who is the subject of the complaint and s/he 
will have 14 days to send a written reply to the Chair of the Standards Committee. 
The Chair of the Standards Committee will copy the full response to the 
complainant and arrange a private meeting between the complainant, and the 
member who is the subject of the complaint, together with any two independent 
members of the Standards Committee.  However, if no response has been received 
from the member who is the subject of the complaint, within the 14 day period, then 
no meeting shall be arranged. This is because of the voluntary nature of the draft 
amended Protocol; for the mediation process to succeed, the voluntary cooperation 
of both parties is required.  

 
2.6  If the parties agree to the meeting, the aim would be for the two parties to come to 

an agreed resolution. The Standards Committee members will not come to a view 
or make any findings but may make informal recommendations to the parties, 
which will not be binding. The process is confidential, meetings are held in private, 
and the minimal paperwork is also treated as confidential. 
 

Page 394



 

CC-019486-MY/437545 Page 3 
 

2.7  It should be noted that, despite the contents of the draft amended Protocol, 
members are still encouraged to resolve any issues direct with one another, or 
through group leaders. 
 

3. Consultation 
 

3.1 The draft amended Protocol at Enclosure 2 was circulated by the Chair of the 
Standards Committee to the Council’s four Group Leaders prior to a Group 
Leaders’ Meeting on 26th April 2018.  

 
3.2 The Chair of the Standards Committee also attended the Group Leaders’ Meeting 

on 26th April 2018, in order to address the Group Leaders on this issue, and all four 
confirmed the agreement of their groups to the draft amended Protocol.  
 

4. Further Considerations 
 

4.1  Independent Standards Committee Members will be required to facilitate any 
meetings arranged under the draft amended Local Resolution Protocol.  

 
4.2 Upon approval by the Council of the draft amended Local Resolution Protocol in 

Enclosure 2 arrangements will be made for the independent members of the 
Standards Committee to receive relevant training in mediation.  

 

5. Recommendation 
 

5.1 To abolish the current Local Resolution Protocol at Enclosure 1 and adopt the 

draft amended Local Resolution Protocol at Enclosure 2. 
 

Page 395



CC-016592-LB/168773 
Adopted 23/5/2013 

 

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

           LOCAL RESOLUTION PROTOCOL 
 

Generally 
 
1. The purpose of the Protocol is to promote high standards of conduct, with a view to 

fostering positive working relationships among Members, and between Members 
and Officers, to avoid spurious complaints to the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales (PSOW) and to safeguard the Council’s reputation.  

 
2. The Protocol will only apply to cases of alleged misconduct against Members under 

paragraphs 4(b) and 6(1)(d) of the Code of Conduct.  That is to say, allegations of 
failure to show respect and consideration for others, or allegations that a Member 
has made vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints against other Members or 
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the Council. 

 
3. The Protocol seeks to achieve swift mediation and reconciliation.  It is not punitive 

but it may become relevant to sanction if a formal complaint, involving a pattern of 
similar conduct, is made to the PSOW. 

 
4. The Protocol is not intended to interfere with, or take the place of, group or party 

discipline. 
 
5. The Protocol is not intended to interfere with, or take the place of, any statutory or 

contractual rights which Officers may have. 
 
6. The Protocol is not intended to oust the jurisdiction of the PSOW but, rather, to deal 

with a limited category of cases, where a breach of paragraphs 4(b) or 6(1)(d) of 
the Code may have occurred, but where such a finding would probably not result in 
disciplinary action.  Such cases, at least individually, would not meet the PSOW’s 
threshold test for investigation. 

 

Procedure 
 
7. A Member or Officer wishing to use the Protocol must put their complaint in writing 

to the Monitoring Officer, explaining when and where the alleged breach occurred, 
how and why paragraph 4(b) and/or 6(1)(d) have been breached, together with the 
details of any witnesses and any relevant documentation. 

 
8. Any written complaint must be sent to the Monitoring Officer within 7 working days 

from the date of the event which is the subject of the complaint, or 7 working days 
from the date when the event came to the knowledge of the complainant. 

 
9. The Monitoring Officer, or his/her representative, will send a copy of the complaint, 

and any supporting evidence, to the Member who is the subject of the complaint. 
That Member will have 7 working days, from receipt, within which to send a written 
reply to the Monitoring Officer setting out their response and providing details of 
any witnesses and any relevant documentation. 

 
10. Having received a reply from the Member complained of, or when the time for reply 

has elapsed, the Monitoring Officer will:- 

Enclosure 1 

Page 396



CC-016592-LB/168773 
Adopted 23/5/2013 

 

 

 
- copy the full response to the complainant; 

 
- arrange a meeting of an informal Panel of the Standards Committee to 

consider the complaint on the first convenient date available for all 
concerned. 

 
11. The meeting of the Standards Committee Panel will take place in private and any 

paperwork which it receives, or which it generates, will remain confidential to the 
Panel, its advisors, and the parties.  This is, however, subject to any legal duty to 
disclose e.g. to the PSOW in the event that matters escalate. 

 
12. Any informal Panel of the Standards Committee will consist of two Members of the 

Committee, on a rotational basis, but will not include a Community Council 
Member. 

 
13. The parties will be asked to attend the Panel and will be responsible for bringing 

along any witnesses upon whom they intend to rely. 
 
14. In the absence of a party or witness it will be a matter for the discretion of the Panel 

as to whether or not they proceed, or reschedule. 
 
15. If the complainant, or the Member complained of, is a Member of a political group 

then he/she may invite their Group Leader to attend the Panel.  Any relevant Group 
Leader is not required to attend, but is encouraged to do so. 

 
16. The Monitoring Officer, or his/her representative, will attend to advise the Panel. 
 
17. The procedure of any Panel will be informal.  The Panel will endeavour to be fair 

and even handed to both parties. There will be no rules of evidence, as such, but 
any witnesses called will only attend to share their information with the Panel; they 
will not “sit in” during the meeting. 

 
18. After hearing from the parties, and any witnesses, together with the Group Leaders 

(should there be Group Leaders in attendance and should they wish to address the 
Panel) the Panel will then retire to private session, returning to express its view and 
to put forward any recommendations it may have for resolution.  The Panel has no 
disciplinary powers but may make recommendations to Group Leaders individually, 
in relation to Members of their Group and, to the Group Leaders collectively in 
relation to any unaffiliated Member. 

 
19. There will be no right of appeal under this process. 
 
20. The parties will receive written confirmation of the Panel’s findings and the outcome 

of all Panels will be reported, albeit in an anonymised format only, to all quarterly 
meetings of the Standards Committee. 

 
21. The outcome of any Panel will also be discussed as a standing item at Group 

Leaders’ meetings. 
 
 

Page 397



 

CC-19486-LB/432569(433882)  
DRAFT 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

LOCAL RESOLUTION PROTOCOL 
 

Generally 
 
1. The purpose of this informal Protocol is to: 

 promote high standards of conduct;  

 foster and maintain positive working relationships between members; 

 address low level behavioural complaints which do not meet the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales’ (PSOW) threshold in relation to evidence and public 
interest;  

 deal with matters arising as quickly as reasonably possible to avoid 
unnecessary escalation of issues; 

 safeguard the Council’s reputation.  
 
2. The Protocol will only apply to cases of alleged misconduct against members under 

two paragraphs of the Code of Conduct, namely:  

4(b) 
allegations of failure to show respect and consideration for others; 
and/or 

6(1)(d)  
allegations that a member has made vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints 
against other members. 
 

3. The Protocol does not apply to complaints by third parties. 
 

4. The Protocol seeks to achieve swift resolution and reconciliation by way of a 
mediation process. It is a voluntary arrangement, so both parties must agree to 
mediate. The process has no statutory basis.  It is not a legal requirement to adopt 
such a Protocol but both the Welsh Government and the PSOW have advised, in 
the strongest terms, that Local Authorities should have such arrangements in place. 

 
5. The Protocol is not intended to interfere with, or take the place of, group or party 

discipline; nor self-regulation by members. 
 
6. The Protocol is not intended to oust the jurisdiction of the PSOW but, rather, to deal 

with a limited category of complaints which would not meet the PSOW’s threshold 
test for investigation. 

 

Procedure to instigate a mediation meeting 
 
7. A member wishing to use the Protocol must put their complaint in writing to the 

Chair of the Standards Committee (form attached) explaining:  

 when and where the alleged breach occurred; 

 how and why paragraph 4(b) and/or 6(1)(d) has been breached;  
 
8. Any written complaint must be sent to the Chair of the Standards Committee within 

14 days from the date of the event which is the subject of the complaint, or 14 days 
from the date when the event came to the knowledge of the complainant. 

 

Enclosure 2 

Page 398



 

CC-19486-LB/432569(433882)  
DRAFT 

9. The Chair of the Standards Committee will share the complaint with the member 
who is the subject of the complaint.  

 
10. The member receiving the complaint will have 14 days, from receipt, within which to 

send a written reply to the Chair of the Standards Committee setting out their 
response. 

 
11. Having received a reply from the member complained of, the Chair of the 

Standards Committee will:- 

 copy the full response to the complainant; and 

 arrange a mutually convenient and private meeting between the complainant 
and the member who is the subject of the complaint, together with two 
independent members of the Standards Committee.  This will take place as 
soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
12. The meeting shall take place in private.  
 
13. If no response has been received under paragraph 10 above, within the 14 day 

period, then no meeting shall be arranged. In order for the mediation process to 
succeed, the agreement of both parties is required.  
 

14. The Mediation Meeting 
  

14.1  The informal “panel” of the Standards Committee shall consist of any two 
independent members of the Committee, on a rotational basis. Members of 
the Standards Committee will only facilitate a mediation meeting if they have 
received training for this purpose. 

 
14.2 Paperwork shall be limited to the initial complaint and response.  
 
14.3  The purpose of the meeting will be for the parties to come to an agreed 

resolution. The Standards Committee members will not come to a view or 
make any findings but may make informal recommendations to the parties.  
Any such recommendations shall not be binding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 399



 

CC-19486-LB/432569(433882)  
DRAFT 

 

LOCAL RESOLUTION PROTOCOL FORM –  

TO INSTIGATE THE MEDIATION PROCESS 

A:   Your Details 

Surname: 

 

Forename(s): Title: 

Address and 
Postcode: 

 

 

E-mail Address:  

Daytime contact 
telephone number: 

 

Mobile Number:   

Please state by which of the above methods you would prefer me to contact you 

_______________________________________________________________ 

B:  About your complaint (please continue your answers to the following 

questions on a separate sheet(s) if necessary) 

C.1 Name of the member you are complaining about: 

 

C.2 What do you think they did wrong? 

 

C.3  Do you think they broke the Members’ Code of Conduct and why? 

 

C.4  Describe how you have been affected by the conduct which is the subject of your 
complaint 

 

C5. When did you first become aware of the matter which is the subject of your 
complaint? 

 

Page 400



 

CC-19486-LB/432569(433882)  
DRAFT 

C.6 Have you already tried to resolve your complaint with anyone else, e.g the member 
direct, group leader etc? If so, please give brief details of how, when you did so and 
any outcome. 

 

C.7 What is your expectation at the end of the process? 

 

 

 

Signature:   ______________________                Date: _________________ 

 

When you have completed this form, please send it to: 

The Chair of the Standards Committee 

Email : mxwcs@ynysmon.gov.uk  

 

Please note that a copy of your completed form will be shared with the member who 

is the subject of your complaint. 

 

Page 401

mailto:mxwcs@ynysmon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
1.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Council is requested to: 

1.1 Approve the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2017/2018 
1.2 Note continued progress made in implementing our local Scrutiny improvement 

journey and the impact this is having on practice 
1.3 Appoint the chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee as the 

“scrutiny champion” for the period May 2018 to May 2019. 
  
2.0 BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

 
2.1 This Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report encompasses the work undertaken by the 

two scrutiny committees between the Council's annual meeting on 23rd May 2017 and 
15th May 2018. 

 
2.2 The chairs of the two scrutiny committees led on developing the forward work 

programmes during this period. The scrutiny committees work programmes are 
submitted to the monthly Scrutiny Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs Forum and for 
approval at each scrutiny committee meeting.   

 

Role of the Scrutiny Champion 

2.3. The “Scrutiny Champion” has an important role in promoting the overview and scrutiny 
function both within the Council and also with external partners of the Authority.  It is 
not a mandatory or remunerated position.  On 14th May 2015, the Council resolved that 
the chair of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee be appointed as “Scrutiny Champion” for 
the period May 2015 to May 2016 and, thereafter, that the role of the Champion should 
alternate between the two scrutiny committee chairs. The Chair of the Partnership and 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee should therefore be appointed as the designated 
Scrutiny Champion for the coming year.  

 

Appendix: 

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2017/18  
 

 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO : County Council  

DATE: 15th  May 2018 

TITLE OF REPORT: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2017/18 

REPORT BY:  Chairs of: 
1. Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
2. Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  Report on the work of the two scrutiny committees during 
2017/18 and provide an overview of the 2018/19 scrutiny work 
programme 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
E-mail: 
Telephone 

Anwen Davies (Scrutiny Manager) 
AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk 
01248 752578 

Page 403

Agenda Item 11.

mailto:AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk


 

- 1 - 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY   

ANNUAL REPORT: 2017-2018  

 

 

 

 

 
SCRUTINY 

 

Page 404



 

- 2 - 

 

 

CONTENTS 

 

1 Foreword 

2 What is Overview and Scrutiny 

3 Corporate Scrutiny Committee    

4 Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee          

5 Local Scrutiny Improvement Journey 

6 Assessing the Impact of Scrutiny 

7 Looking Forward to 2018/19 

8 Contact  Scrutiny     

 

                         

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 Outcomes and Characteristics for Effective Local Government Overview and  
Scrutiny 

Appendix 2 Membership of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 

Appendix 3 Membership of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 

Appendix 4 Vision for Delivering Effective Scrutiny in the Council  

Page 405



 

- 3 - 

 

1. FOREWORD 

Councillor Aled Morris Jones  
 Chair of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee  2017/18  

 Scrutiny Champion 2017/18  
 
 

 

It is my pleasure to provide an overview of the work of Scrutiny in the Council over the past 12 
months. 
 
Firstly, as the current Scrutiny Champion may I note the important contribution that Member 
Scrutiny makes to our governance arrangements.  I believe that the progress we have made over 
the past year in our improvement journey provides a strong basis upon which to move forward, 
ensuring the role that Scrutiny plays in the Authority’s governance arrangements:  
 

i. Supports robust and effective decision-making 
ii. Makes a tangible contribution to the Council’s improvement priorities 
iii. Continues to evolve 

  
This improvement journey needs to continue as we prepare for the 2018/19 municipal year. 
 
The scope of work of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee is discussed in this report and it is fair to 
note that the workload has been considerable and varied.  A total of 11 meetings were convened 
during the year in order to complete our work programme: 
 

 Annual budget setting 2018/19 – this is one of the most important responsibilities of the 
Committee.  The Corporate Scrutiny Committee considered the draft budget and the 
response to the Council’s Public Consultation and also made a contribution to the budget 
consultation plan.  Views of citizens were also received by the Committee by a representative 
of the Citizens’ Panel.  I believe that significant progress has been made during this period as 
regards the budget setting process and the contribution that Scrutiny made.    

 Quarterly monitoring of performance – the Committee monitored performance on a 
quarterly basis using the corporate scorecard.  The scorecard continues to evolve as an 
effective tool for Member Scrutiny monitoring of performance.  This work has also included 
monitoring of implementation of the children’s services improvement plan.  I am sure that 
work in this area of the Committee’s work programme will continue to develop 

 Transformation priorities - a number of substantial issues were considered by the 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee over the past 12 months including – schools’ modernisation 
programme, transformation of heritage and library services and extra care housing.  Again, 
this aspect will continue to be an important element of the Committee’s work programme. 

  

Page 406



 

- 4 - 

 

I also wish to note the significant contribution the Finance and Children’s Services Improvement 
Panels have made to the Member Scrutiny work programme during 2017/18 and am pleased to 
report that their contributions have been commended externally.   

Finally, I believe that Scrutiny has developed well over the past year and has added value to the 
decision-making in the Council.  This improvement focus should continue as we move forward.  
Thank you to all those who have assisted and contributed. 

 

Councillor Aled Morris Jones 

(Chair of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 407



 

- 5 - 

 

Councillor Gwilym O Jones    
 Chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 

2017/18 

 

 

 I am pleased to have an opportunity to provide a flavour of the work undertaken by the Partnership 
and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee during 2017-2018. 
 
Before I  continue, I  would like  to take this opportunity  to emphasise  the importance of   Scrutiny 
Committees to the Council, in effect  they are  the  eyes and ears of everyone living on Isle of  
Anglesey. Through these committees we, your councillors, make sure that the services provided by 
the Council and its partners are continually improving. 
 
The Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee provides the Executive with 
recommendations and views on the Authority’s and its partners’ work; our aim is to ensure that 
public services on the Island meet the different needs of the Island’s residents, within available 
resources, as effectively as possible.   
 
Over the past year we have scrutinised numerous matters; here are some of the highlights during 
the past 12 months: 
   
 How Môn Communities First Ltd delivered its programme and its future plans following post 

communities first funding changes. The Committee met with Môn Communities First 
representatives and officers from the Council. The Council was appointed as the Lead 
Delivery Body for the Anglesey Communities First cluster in February 2013.  

 The Community Safety Partnership is required to report to the Partnership and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee to present on overview of its activities to enable the Committee to ensure 
that the partnership delivers in accordance with the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2016. At 
its meeting the Committee had an opportunity to discuss the priorities and future direction of 
the partnership. 

 How the Council and its partners work together to improve performance of schools. The 
Committee welcomed the Managing Director of GwE (School Effectiveness and Improvement 
Service for North Wales) and had an opportunity to question him on the organisations future 
plans. As well as hearing from GwE, the Committee received information on   key stage 
performance of the 2016/2017 school year, together with reports from the School Progress 
Review Scrutiny Panel.  

 The Committee is a statutory consultee on the Well-being Plan of the Public Services Board. 
The Committee did approve the draft plan but provided the Public Services Board with areas 
that needed to strengthened and develop in moving forward. 

  
I am grateful to all those that have helped the committee to undertake its work and who has taken 
the time to give us information or advice. I would also like to thank all the Committee’s Members for 
their hard work and commitment over the past year. The next 12 months will undoubtedly be as 
demanding as 2017-2018.   
 
Councillor Gwilym O Jones   
(Chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee) 
 

Page 408



 

- 6 - 

 

 
 
2.0 WHAT IS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY?  
  

National Context: 
 
2.1 Scrutiny committees form part of the way in which local government in Wales 

operates. As well as the establishment of a decision making executive, the Local 
Government Act 2000 requires the establishment of one or more scrutiny 
committees to hold the decision-makers to account, drive improvement, act as the 
voice of the community and play a role in assisting in policy development and 
review. 

 
2.2 The Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS)1 advocates four key principles in support of 

effective Member scrutiny: 
i. Provide “critical friend” challenge to executive policy makers and decision 

makers 
ii. Enable the voice and concerns of the public and its communities to be heard 
iii. Be carried out by “independent minded governors” who lead and own the 

scrutiny process 
iv. Is evidence based and drives improvement in public services. 

 
2.3 In January 2017, the Welsh Government published a White Paper entitled 

Reforming Local Government: Resilient and Renewed.  The White Paper sought 
views on proposals for mandatory regional working to deliver a range of services, 
address workforce issues and implement electoral reform. Welsh Government have 
very recently published a subsequent Green Paper2 explaining its ambitions and 
proposes a statement of intent for a stronger and more empowered local 
government in Wales.  These proposals set out an approach for the future of local 
government “to deliver stronger, more resilient and sustainable public services with 
democratic accountability at its core”3.  It is anticipated that specific proposals will 
also be developed relating to Member scrutiny functions both within the local 
context and also in holding to account services delivered through regional 
arrangements. It will therefore be necessary for us to continually develop our local 
scrutiny framework and arrangements in response to the proposed new legislation 
and evolving national policy context. 

 
2.4 The Wales Audit Office undertook a national review of scrutiny during 2017/18 with 

fieldwork in all local authority areas. The purpose of the review was threefold: 
 
                                                           
1 Good Scrutiny Guide, Centre for Public Scrutiny 2004 

2 Strengthening Local Government: Delivering for people (20 March, 2018) 

3 Strengthening Local Government: Delivering for people (20 March, 2018, p.2) 

Page 409



 

- 7 - 

 

 Explore how ‘fit for the future’ our scrutiny arrangements are and how well placed we 
are to respond to future challenges (including continued pressure on public finances 
and possible move towards regional working between Councils) 

 Scrutiny of the Public Services Board 
 Wellbeing of Future Generations and how we are responding in relation to our 

scrutiny work. 
 
Evidence gathering and fieldwork by the Wales Audit Office in respect of the Council’s 
Scrutiny arrangements was completed by the end of January, 2018.  The draft report on 
the Scrutiny review had not been received at the time of preparing this annual report. 

 
2.5 It was reported in the 2016/17 Annual Report that an independent review of scrutiny 
had been commissioned4 by the Council during 2016 in order to provide an external view 
on the: 
 

 Strengths of the then scrutiny arrangements 
 Possible areas for further development in moving forward, after the Council Election 

in May, 2017. 
 
The key messages from this review provided a framework for our local scrutiny 
improvement journey which is ongoing in the Council. This is discussed in more detail in 
paragraph 5 below. 
 
 

Local Structure: 
 
2.6 Parent committees: The overview and scrutiny function at the Isle of Anglesey 

County Council continues to be delivered through a structure comprising of two 
parent scrutiny committees: 

  
 Corporate Scrutiny Committee; and 
 Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. 

 
2.7 Scrutiny panels: During 2017/18, the Council revised its scrutiny structure and 

established 3 standing scrutiny panels with members of all 3 panels allocated from 
the membership of both parent committees: 

  
 Finance Scrutiny Panel (reporting to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee) 
 Children’s Services Improvement Panel (reporting to the Corporate Scrutiny 

Committee) 
 Schools Progress Review Scrutiny Panel (reporting to the Partnership & 

Regeneration Scrutiny Committee)  
 
 

  
 
 
                                                           
4 Centre for Public Scrutiny 

Page 410



 

- 8 - 

 

 
 
2.8 Our scrutiny committees can undertake their work in one of the following ways:   

 Consider a topic during a formal meeting 
 
 Consider a topic in more detail by establishing a scrutiny outcome panel  OR 
 Conduct informal sessions on a particular area of policy. 
. 

2.9 Again during 2017/18, the scrutiny committees were aware of the need to seek to 
focus their work on outcomes and within the Wales Audit Office framework of 
characteristics and outcomes for effective local government overview and scrutiny5: 
 Better outcomes 
 Better decisions 
 Better engagement 
 
This best practice framework is summarised in APPENDIX 1 to this report. 

 
2.10 Call-in of decisions: Scrutiny committees can “call-in” a decision  taken by either  

the Executive, Portfolio Holder or an officer to whom the Executive has been 
delegated with a specific decision making power. The scrutiny committees only 
exercise a “call-in” when there is good reason to do so (through a Test of 
Significance), and during 2017/18 this was exercised once, by the Corporate 
Scrutiny Committee.  The Corporate Scrutiny Committee called in a decision made 
by the Executive on the transformation of the culture service (Beaumaris Gaol and 
Courthouse) in December, 20176.     

 
3.0  CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Remit: 

3.1 The focus of the work of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee is to provide assurance 
regarding the performance and delivery of all services; ensure the council achieves 
its corporate and service objectives (as outlined in its Corporate Council Plan, 
Annual Budget, Budget and Policy Framework, Performance Management 
Framework, Corporate Policies or their successor plans and policies); and to 
support and make recommendations for continuous improvement.  

3.2 Members of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee hold briefing meetings in advance of 
every committee in order to prepare and focus discussion at the formal meetings of 
the committee. This is regarded good practice and it is intended to continue with 
these arrangements in 2018/19. 

 

  

                                                           
5 Good Scrutiny? Good Question!, Wales Audit Office, 2014 

6 Corporate Scrutiny Committee, meeting of 14th December, 2017: Transformation of the Culture Service – Beaumaris 

Gaol and Courthouse 

Page 411



 

- 9 - 

 

 

 

Membership: 

3.3 The Corporate Scrutiny Committee is chaired by Councillor Aled Morris Jones and 
supported by Vice Chair Councillor Dylan Rees.  Ten Members sit on the committee 
and membership reflects the political balance of the Council.  The Committee also 
includes Co-opted Members and the co-optees on Education matters have full  

Voting rights on education related issues.  Full details of the membership of the 
committee is attached (APPENDIX 2).   

4.0 PARTNERSHIP AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Remit: 

4.1 The primary focus of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee is to 
ensure that the interests of the citizens of the Isle of Anglesey are promoted, and 
that best use is made of Council resources, in line with the council’s priorities, that 
demonstrate added value from working with partners. The remit of the committee 
includes regional and national arrangements as well as local arrangements.  

4.2 The committee is also the nominated Crime and Disorder Committee dealing with 
crime and disorder matters, as required under Section 19 and 20 of the Police and 
Justice Act 2006.  It is also the designated committee for scrutinising the work of the 
Public Services Board (Ynys Môn and Gwynedd). 

4.3  During 2017/18, the committee introduced a practice of holding briefing meetings 
with members prior to each formal scrutiny committee meeting. This is regarded 
good practice and it is intended to continue with these arrangements in 2018/19. 

 
Membership: 
 
4.4 The Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee was chaired by Councillor 

Gwilym Jones and supported by Vice Chair Councillor Robert Llewelyn Jones. Ten 
members also sit on this committee and membership reflects the political balance of 
the Council.  The Committee also includes Co-opted Members and the co-optees 
on Education matters have full voting rights on education related issues.  Full 
details of the membership of the committee is attached (APPENDIX 3). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 412



 

- 10 - 

 

 
5.0  LOCAL SCRUTINY IMPROVEMENT JOURNEY 

 
5.1 During 2016, the Senior Leadership Team commissioned the Centre for Public 

Scrutiny to undertake a review of our local scrutiny arrangements, in order to 
provide the Authority with recommendations to build on and further strengthen the 
overview and scrutiny function in readiness for the new administration in May, 2017.  
The outcomes of this review provided a strong basis upon which to move forward, 
ensuring that the role Member scrutiny plays in the Authority’s governance 
arrangements: 

 
 Supports robust and effective decision-making 
 Makes a tangible contribution to the Council’s improvement priorities 
 Continues to evolve. 

 
5.2  Our improvement programme has prioritised a number of key themes (which are 

summarised below), in order to provide a robust framework to: 
 Clarify the role and contribution of Scrutiny in the governance arrangements 

of the Council  
 Identify the actions required in the short and medium term in order to further 

improve Scrutiny.  
 
 
SCRUTINY IMPROVEMENT JOURNEY: KEY THEMES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.3 We are now working towards fully implementing actions in the third iteration of the 

improvement programme.  Paragraph 6 below summarises progress made and 
begins to measure the impact of our improvements.  

 
 

Reinforcing a 

“whole Council” 

approach to 

Scrutiny 

Improving the 

impact of 

Scrutiny 

Building capacity 

& capability for 

effective Scrutiny 

Improving Public 

Engagement in our 

Scrutiny work 

Well-Being of Future 

Generations and 

Scrutiny 

Page 413



 

- 11 - 

 

6.0  ASSESSING THE IMPACT OF SCRUTINY  
 

6.1 A number of significant outputs were achieved by Scrutiny during the last municipal 
year, which go some way in assisting us to assess the impact that the function has 
had locally: 

 Forward work programmes – there is now a well-established practice of 
forward work programming in place to underpin the work of both scrutiny 
committees.  These programmes are an important tool in assisting scrutiny 
committee members to prioritise their work and have been discussed with the 
Senior Leadership Team and Heads of Service.  Both committees review the 
content of their forward work programmes at each meeting in order to ensure 
that they remain relevant and keep abreast with local priorities. Our local 
forward planning arrangements now ensure greater focus on: 
 

i. Strategic aspects 
ii. Outcomes 
iii. Priorities of the 2017/2022 Council Plan and corporate transformation 

programme 
iv. Work of audit, inspection and regulation 
v. Matters on the forward work programme of the Executive. 

 
 Committee meetings – a total of 17 scrutiny committee meetings were 

convened during 2017/18:  
     

Committee  Number of meetings convened 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee  11 
Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee  6 

 
 There are also robust arrangements in place to ensure appropriate feedback at 
the Executive on matters that have been considered by both committees.  
 

 Scrutiny Panel meetings – there have been regular meetings of the 3 scrutiny 
panels during 2017/18: 

 
Panel Number of meetings convened 
Children’s Services Improvement Panel 11 
Finance Scrutiny Panel 8 
Schools Progress Review Panel 11 

Page 414



 

- 12 - 

 

 

 

These panels have been embedded into practice by: 

 Putting in place robust governance arrangements to support each 
panel 

 Ensuring a clear focus / remit and work programme for the panels 

 Putting in place a reporting / escalation process ensuring that the work 
of scrutiny panels is reported in a timely manner 

 Ensure appropriate pace for the work of the panels, which is in line with 
corporate priorities. 

 Chairs and Vice-chairs Forum – this forum is now in its second year of 
running and has met on a monthly basis during 2017/18.  The Forum is 
considered an important vehicle to oversee the scrutiny committee work 
programmes and jointly negotiate priorities with the scrutiny committees’ chairs 
and vice-chairs.   It also takes lead responsibility for developing and 
continuously improving the overview and scrutiny function in the Council.   The 
role of the Forum has also evolved during 2017/18 to include monthly 
conversations between the Executive (Leader), Chairs/Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny 
and the Senior Leadership Team (Chief Executive) to ensure better alignment 
between work programmes. 
 

 Development, training and support for Members – by: 

 Putting in place a phased, bespoke development programme which 
focuses on the key elements of governance / scrutiny: 

 

 
 

 

 

Code of 

practice / 

Constitution 

n 

Role & conduct of 

Scrutiny Chairs / 

Effective Chairing 

Skills 

Introduction 

to Scrutiny 

Effective 

scrutiny 

questioning & 

constructive 

challenge skills 

Roll out of E-

learning Portal as a 

Member 

development tool 

Effective 

financial 

scrutiny 

skills 

Page 415



 

- 13 - 

 

 Convening periodic information sharing / awareness raising sessions for Scrutiny 
Members on key issues (e.g. Wellbeing of Future Generations, role of the Public 
Services Board).  Also, as a forum for Member self- evaluation / reflection on the 
performance of scrutiny. 

 Scrutiny across a broader base – a broader approach to Member scrutiny has 
been developed during the year by: 

i. Effective forward planning to ensure alignment between topics discussed 
at Member briefing sessions, scrutiny panels and full scrutiny committee 
meetings 

ii. Clarifying the role of Members on corporate programme boards and 
ensuring robust, timely high level reporting to scrutiny committees, 
escalating slippage as required 

iii. Developing the breadth of topics discussed at Member briefing sessions, 
in support of Scrutiny and ensuring information available to Members on 
strategic and transformation topics. 

 “Closing the Scrutiny loop” – by having in place robust arrangements to: 

i. Report on progress or escalate issues from: 

 Scrutiny panels to parent committees 
 Scrutiny committees to the Executive 
 Corporate programme boards to scrutiny committees. 

ii. Enable and encourage self-analysis and reflection by Scrutiny Members 
in order to identify strengths and areas for further development / focus 

 Scrutiny & Wellbeing of Future Generations – developing to role of Scrutiny 
by: 

 Ensuring Members focus on the 5 ways of working to frame questions 
 Developing a new scrutiny report template, placing wellbeing of future 

generations at its core 
 Raising awareness and providing information in Member briefing and 

development sessions 
 Reviewing progress made in developing the role of scrutiny against best 

practice 
 Putting in place a framework to scrutinise the Public Services Board and 

key partnerships. 

 Citizen engagement in Scrutiny – developing a policy statement as the 
foundation to further develop our engagement with citizens through Member 
scrutiny and putting steps in place to ensure that the voice of citizens is heard in 
the local decision making process. 

 

Page 416



 

- 14 - 

 

 

  

 

Measuring outcomes: 

6.2 Capturing and assessing the impact of Scrutiny is a challenge to achieve as the 
outcomes of overview and scrutiny activities are not always tangible and often do 
not easily lend themselves to being measured in a systematic way.  Furthermore, it 
is not easy to measure the effectiveness of the overview and scrutiny function’s 
ability to influence decision makers through discussion and debate.  There are 
however some examples where the input of scrutiny has added value and / or 
influenced the way in which proposals have been implemented by the Council: 

 2017/18 budget setting process – a more strategic and outcome based approach 
to budget setting based on best practice7 is becoming embedded in local practice.  
The Corporate Scrutiny Committee concentrated its efforts on a number of key 
issues which included scrutinising the impact of efficiency proposals and the quality 
of the public consultation pack.  In moving forward, the Authority will further build on 
this work, ensuring the input of the Finance Scrutiny Panel earlier in the budget 
setting process (by focusing on scrutiny of process and timescale of efficiency 
proposals). 
Outcome: this process allows for a more systematic approach to financial scrutiny, 
as an essential building block of sound financial management and governance. 

 Citizen engagement and participation – scrutiny input to the budget setting 
process also included direct engagement with and a contribution from both the Isle 
of Anglesey Citizens’ Panel and Youth Council (Llais Ni) which added value to the 
scrutiny function.  Representatives from both panels took part in the process 
through: 

 Meetings with the Senior Leadership Team, Chair of the Corporate 
Scrutiny Committee and question/answer session with the Council Leader 

 Observed 2 meetings of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 Formal presentation to budget discussion at the Corporate Scrutiny 

Committee 
Outcome: this involvement by local people in Member scrutiny has further 
developed our capability to ensure that voices of local people are heard as part of 
the decision making process (better public engagement).  Also, a strong foundation 
is in place to improve outcomes for citizens. 

                                                           
77 Raising the Stakes: Financial scrutiny in challenging times. A guide for Welsh local authorities, Centre for Public 

Scrutiny (2014) 

Page 417



 

- 15 - 

 

 Improvements and Performance of children’s services – scrutiny of the 
improvement journey in children’s services has matured during the past year 
through the input of the Children’s Services Improvement Panel.  This work-stream 
has resulted in the following positive outcomes.  In its recent review of progress in 
implementation of children’s services improvements, Care Inspectorate Wales 
commended the contribution of the Panel: 

“….We recognise the continued corporate commitment provided to ensure that 
children’s services improve and the willingness to reach a shared understanding of 

the challenges being faced.  Similarly the increased scrutiny and challenge from 
elected members has been a positive development….”8 

 
Outcomes: 

 A small team of Members who have developed a high level of knowledge about the 
complexities of children’s services and a level of expertise in the service area 

 Development of a model of working that focuses on a smaller group, encouraging 
good attendance and teamwork 

 Creating conditions that are conducive to effective Scrutiny e.g. there has been a 
tangible improvement in the level and depth of questioning by the Panel    

 Scrutiny activity is well planned, efficient and objective and based on evidence from a 
range of sources  
 

 Review of School Performance – Since May 2017, a scrutiny Panel consisting of 
Members from both Scrutiny Committee, has met with representatives of 4 secondary 
schools and 10 primary schools to monitor performance of the Island’s schools. A 
report  submitted by the Panel to the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee on 6 February 2018 identified 10 key matters that would need monitoring 
to ensure continued school improvement.  

Outcomes: 

 8 Members who have develped a high level of knowledge about School 
performance 

 Development of a model of working that focuses on a smaller group, encoraging 
good attendance and team work 

 Schools are aware of the Panel and that its focus is to assist with strengthening  
school educational performance on the Island  

 

 
                                                           
8 Correspondence dated 11/01/18 from Care Inspectorate Wales (Review of progress in implementation of Children’s 

Services Improvement Plan) 

Page 418



 

- 16 - 

 

 Draft Wellbeing Plan (Ynys Mȏn and Gwynedd) – On 8th March 2018, the 
Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee scrutinised the draft Well-being  

Plan of the Public Services Board. Following consideration of the draft Plan, the 
Chair of the Committee was auhorised to submit the Committee’s formal response 
to Chair of the Public Services Board. A copy of the letter is attached to the report 
submitted to Executive on 30 April 2018. 

Outcome: 

 The Committee recommended to the Public Services Board that it approves the Plan 
but raised several matters to strengthen the PSB going forward. 

 Additional Learning Needs Partnership (Ynys Mȏn and Gwynedd) – On 10th  April 
2018, the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee scrutinised the Additional 
Learning Needs Inclusion Joint Service which had been established with Gwynedd 
Council during September 2017.. 

 
Outcome: 

 

 Monitoring of the new service’s performance took place and further performance 
reports will be submitted to the committee on a six monthly basis. 

 

 Finance scrutiny – financial scrutiny has developed significantly from a low base, 
during the past year with external expert input and guidance from CIPFA Wales.  The 
panel have taken a strategic approach to scrutiny of financial matters and developed 
an effective questioning strategy to underpin their work.  For example, interventions by 
the Panel in response to some significant budget pressures have triggered some 
positive mitigation measures by Children’s Services and the Learning Service.  CIPFA 
Wales have commended this development journey: 

“During the time we worked with the Panel there has been a distinct change in the way 
the Panel operates.  Members now have clarity on their role, and those of officers in 

attendance.  This has resulted in an effective use of time, improved structure and 
management of the agenda and a rigour in questions.  Members are considering 

issues from an informed and broader financial base which is evident by the quality and 
nature of the questions posed.  Questions and their approach demonstrates an 

improvement in confidence and also a resilience and determination to obtain 
satisfactory responses in a balanced and assertive manner.  The development of a 

forward work programme to include items from the financial calendar, emerging issues 
and a programme of topics will result in the Panel adding real value to the scrutiny 

process over time.  Being independent of thought and proactive in developing the work 
programme is a major development for the Panel”. 

 

CIPFA Wales have been invited by Members to return in the Autumn, 2018 to assist 
the Panel in its assessment of progress and set the work programme priorities for 
2019/20.   

Page 419



 

- 17 - 

 

 

 

 

Outcome: 

  More strategic and outcome based approach to financial scrutiny; evidence based 
scrutiny making a robust contribution to sound financial management and governance 
arrangements in the Council. 

 

 

Measuring the Impact of our Improvement Journey: 

6.3 The table below summarises the impact of some of our key areas for improvement 
during 2017/18: 

 

 

 

IMPACT OF OUR SCRUTINY IMPROVEMENT JOURNEY 

Theme How Impact 

Scrutiny Vision We have continued to 
mainstream the principles 
of our vision, ensuring that 
they are a core feature of 
our scrutiny work e.g. 
foundation to our 
preparatory work for the 
new Council; basis for our 
Scrutiny Member 
development programme. 

Early signs of emerging 
evidence → increase in 
Member confidence; better 
scrutiny in committees; quality 
of Member contributions in 
panel work and maturity of 
questioning strategies; feeling 
of Team Scrutiny amongst 
most Members. 

Member development and 
support 

Bespoke development 
programme for Scrutiny 
Members with the 
objective of developing: 

 Scrutiny skills 

 Increased levels of 
technical information 
on specific topic areas. 

1. Our Scrutiny principles and 
values underpin Member 
behaviours 

2. Effective questioning 
strategies at work. 

Scrutiny arrangements Alignment of work 1. Better alignment between 

Page 420



 

- 18 - 

 

Theme How Impact 

that are fit for purpose programmes 

The following now happen 
as an integral part of the 
process: 

 Programme alignment 
conversations with the 
Leader and Chief 
Executive at the 
Scrutiny Chairs/Vice- 
Chairs Forum (monthly) 

 Monthly discussion 
between the Leader, 
Head of Democratic 
Services and Scrutiny 
Manager 

 Regular alignment 
conversations → 
scrutiny officers and 
heads of service 

Scrutiny across a 
broader base 

Opportunities to scrutinise 
outside of the formal 
committee meetings → 
briefing sessions, panels, 
transformation boards. 

all work programmes –  
matters of public interest 
being considered by 
Scrutiny 

2. More of a focus on 
strategic aspects → 
Council Plan and 
transformation priorities, 
outcomes and risks 

3. Scrutiny arrangements that 
are aligned; an effective 
contribution to our 
governance arrangements.  

Scrutiny panels  Work programmes in 
place for the 3 panels 

 Expert input to support 
the Finance Panel 
(CIPFA Wales) 

 Assessment of 
children’s services 
improvement 
programme by Care 
Inspectorate Wales. 

1. Clear focus for the work of 
the panels 

2. Model of working that 
focuses on smaller groups 
→ good attendance, 
Members developing a 
level of subject “expertise”, 
teamwork and sense of 
ownership. 

Public Services Board Foundation in place to 
further develop the work 
programme of the 
Partnership & 

Too early to measure impact.  

Page 421



 

- 19 - 

 

Theme How Impact 

Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee – in order to 
scrutinise the Public 
Services Board and 
partnership working in 
accordance with national 
guidance. 

Scrutiny template 

 

 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations 

 Following a trial period, 
a new report template 
has been rolled out. 

Clarity of Scrutiny role → 
concise objectives, clear 
scrutiny questions. 

 5 ways of working 
underpins the scrutiny 
questioning strategy. 

Place the 5 ways of working at 
the centre of the Scrutiny 
function. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 422



 

- 20 - 

 

 

 
 
6.4 Self-assessment of Scrutiny effectiveness 
Our work around measuring the outcomes and impact of Scrutiny practice in the Council 
has also included some survey work with Members through small group discussions using 
some core questions as a framework: 
 What were the highlights in Scrutiny during the past year? 
 In your opinion, what impact did Scrutiny have during 2017/18 in supporting the 

Executive to make effective decisions? 
 Are there any aspects that could be improved or delivered more effectively in the 

future.   
 What development needs do you have to support you in the role? 
 Any general observations on the influence and / or impact on the work of Scrutiny 

Members in the decision making processes? 
 

What our Members had to say…… 
75% of our Scrutiny Members took part in the self-assessment.  Below is a flavour of what 
our Members had to say.  The findings of this exercise have fed into our improvement 
priorities for 2018/19: 
 
 
 
   
  

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Much of the work was 

positive.  Being a member 

of the Children’s Services 

Improvement Panel was a 

highlight of me 

Carry on with the current 

training and Member briefing 

sessions.  I am keen to use E-

learning but finding time to do 

the modules is difficult 

I was elected in May, 2017, 

so am a relatively new 

Member.  I am on numerous 

committees and it has been 

a steep learning curve 

I am a Member of both Scrutiny 

Committees.  I have had an 

opportunity to consider a lot of 

matters but the highlight was able 

to scrutinise the Executive’s draft 

budget – adding value to the 

decision making process 

Scrutiny is 

important and 

good work is 

undertaken by the 

committees 

Training for Members is very 

important.  The training so far 

has been excellent and it’s just 

a case of carrying on with the 

good work 

Scrutiny is important and 

is required.  Scrutiny 

Committees keep people 

on their toes and assist 

the Executive in arriving 

at the correct conclusions 

I think Scrutiny is working well 

here on Anglesey and the 

scrutiny panels allow us to look 

into things in more depth 

Scrutiny is now able 

to hear the voices of 

people in our 

communities 

In moving forward, there is a need to carry on with 

the good work and maintain the momentum.  

Possibly strengthen the link between the scrutiny 

panels and Portfolio Holders 

Page 423



 

- 21 - 

 

 
 

 
 

7.0        LOOKING FORWARD TO 2018/19 

7.1 The Authority will continue on its journey to fully implement the Scrutiny 
improvement programme.  The following key areas will be prioritised for action over 
the coming months: 

KEY SCRUTINY DEVELOPMENT AREAS 

Theme How 

Vision Continue to mainstream our Scrutiny vision  

Member 
Development and 
Support 

a. Further develop the rolling programme in place to support 
and develop Scrutiny Members – focus on self-evaluation; 
chairing skills; scrutiny of performance data; financial 
scrutiny; information technology matters; E-learning 

b. Convene short, regular briefing/ development / review 
sessions with Scrutiny Members 

Scrutiny Panels Review the work of the panels to ensure: 

 clear, robust work programmes 

 appropriate pace and focus 

 areas of focus in accordance with corporate priorities 

Citizen Engagement 
in our Scrutiny work  

Build upon our initial work by formalising inputs from the Youth 
Council / Citizens’ Panel into subjects of public interest 

Wellbeing of Future 
Generations 

Clarify the role of Scrutiny by further developing the Scrutiny 
report template and Scrutiny key questions 

Public Services 
Board and 
partnership working 

 

Develop the work programme of the Partnership and 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise the Public 
Services Board and effectiveness of partnerships in accordance 
with national guidance 

  

 

 

Page 424



 

- 22 - 

 

 

 

7.2 Wales Audit Office Review of Scrutiny – the Council will also ensure a timely 
response to the findings of the recent review of our local arrangements, through a 
robust action plan (which will be incorporated into our existing improvement 
programme).  This work will be prioritised once the review report is available. 

8.0     CONTACT SCRUTINY  
 
8.1  To find out more about scrutiny in Anglesey or to give your views please contact: 

 
Scrutiny Unit, 
Isle of Anglesey County Council, 
Council Offices. 
Llangefni. 
Anglesey. 
LL777TW 
 

Anwen 
Davies  

Scrutiny Manager (leading on supporting the 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee). 

(01248) 752578 
AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk 

 

Geraint Wyn 
Roberts  

Scrutiny Officer (leading on supporting the 
Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee). 

(01248) 752039 
GeraintRoberts @ynysmon.gov.uk 

 
 
                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 425

mailto:AnwenDavies@ynysmon.gov.uk
mailto:gwrce@ynysmon.gov.uk


 

- 23 - 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY   

ANNUAL REPORT: 2017-2018  

 
 

APPENDICES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 426



 

- 24 - 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Outcomes and Characteristics for 
Effective Local Government Overview & Scrutiny9 

 
Outcome  
What does good 
scrutiny seek to 
achieve? 
 

Characteristics 
What would it look like? How could we recognise it? 

 

1. Democratic 
accountabilit
y drives 
improvement 
in public 
services.  
 
“Better 

Outcomes” 

 

Environment  
 
i) Overview & scrutiny has a clearly defined and valued role in the council's 

improvement and governance arrangements.  
 

ii) Overview & scrutiny has the dedicated officer support it needs from 
officers who are able to undertake independent research effectively, and 
provides councillors with high-quality analysis, advice and training.  

 
Practice  
 
iii) Overview & scrutiny inquiries are non-political, methodologically sound 

and incorporate a wide range of evidence and perspectives.   
 

Impact  
 
iv) Overview & scrutiny regularly engages in evidence based challenge of 

decision makers and service providers.  

 
v) Overview & scrutiny provides viable and well evidenced solutions to 

recognised problems. 

 

2. Democratic 
decision 
making is 
accountable, 
inclusive and 
robust.  

 
“Better 

decisions” 

 
Environment  
 
i) Overview & scrutiny councillors have the training and development 

opportunities they need to undertake their role effectively.  
 
ii) The process receives effective support from the council’s corporate 

management team who ensures that information provided to overview & 
scrutiny is of high quality and is provided in a timely and consistent 
manner.  

 
Practice  
 
iii) Overview & scrutiny is councillor-led, takes into account the views of the 

public, partners and regulators, and balances the prioritisation of 
community concerns against issues of strategic risk and importance.  

 
iv) Overview & scrutiny meetings and activities are well-planned, chaired 

                                                           
9 Good Scrutiny? Good Question! Wales Audit Office, 2014 

Page 427



 

- 25 - 

 

effectively and make best use of the resources available to it.  
 

Impact  
 
v) Decision makers give public account for themselves at overview & scrutiny 

committees for their portfolio responsibilities.  
 

3. The public is 
engaged in 
democratic 
debate about 
the current 
and future 
delivery of 
public 
services.  

 
“Better 
engagement” 

 

Environment 
 
i) Overview & scrutiny is recognised by the executive and corporate 

management team as an important council mechanism for community 
engagement, and facilitates greater citizen involvement in governance.   

 
Practice  
 
ii) Overview & scrutiny is characterised by effective communication to raise 

awareness of, and encourage participation in democratic accountability.   
 

iii) Overview & scrutiny operates non-politically and deals effectively with 
sensitive political issues, tension and conflict.  

 
iv) Overview & scrutiny builds trust and good relationships with a wide variety 

of internal and external stakeholders.  
 

Impact  
 

v) Overview and scrutiny enables the 'voice' of local people and communities 
across the area to be heard as part of decision and policy-making 
processes.  
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 428



 

- 26 - 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Membership of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 
 

Name Ward 
Political 

Party/Group 

 
Name Ward 

Political 
Party/Group 

 

Cllr Aled 
Morris Jones  

( Chair) 
Twrcelyn 

Anglesey 
Independents  

 
 

Cllr Dylan 
Rees  
(Vice-
chair) 

Canolbarth 
Môn 

Plaid Cymru 

 
Cllr Lewis 

Davies 
Seiriol Plaid Cymru 

 

 

Cllr 
Trefor 
Lloyd 

Hughes 

Ynys Gybi Plad Cymru 

 
Cllr Alun  
Roberts 

Seiriol Plaid Cymru   
 

 

Cllr 
Nicola  

Roberts 

Canolbarth 
Môn 

Plaid Cymru 

 
Cllr Richard 

 Griffiths 
Twrcelyn 

The 
Independent 

 Group   

 

 

Cllr 
Richard  
O Jones 

Twrcelyn 
The Independent 

 Group   

 

 
Cllr J Arwel 

Roberts  
 
 
 

 

Ynys Gybi  
Wales  Labour 

Party    

 

 
Cllr 

Shaun 
Redmon

d   

Caergybi 
Anglesey 

Independents  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                            

Page 429



 

- 27 - 

 

 
                                                                                                                        APPENDIX 3 
 

Membership of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 

 
Name Ward 

Political 
Party/Group 

 
Name Ward 

Political 
Party/Group 

 

Cllr 
Gwilym O 

Jones 
 

(Chair) 

Llifon 
The Independent 

Group 
 

 Cllr Robert 
Llewelyn 

Jones  
(Vice- chair) 

Caergybi 
Anglesey 

Independents  

 

Cllr 
Dafydd 
Roberts 

Bro Rhosyr 
The Independent 

Group  

 

Cllr 
Vaughan 
Hughes 

Lligwy Plaid Cymru 

 Cllr Alun 
Roberts 

Seiriol  Plaid Cymru 

 

 
Cllr 

Margaret 
Roberts 

Lligwy Plaid Cymru 

 

Cllr Nicola 
Roberts 

 

Canolbarth Môn 
Plaid Cymru 

 

 Cllr Robin 
Williams 

Aethwy Plaid Cymru 

 
Cllr 

Kenneth P 
Hughes 

Talybolion  
Anglesey 

Independents  
  Cllr Glyn 

Haynes 
Labour 
Party 

Caergybi 

 
 

Members of the Partnership and 
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee during 

part of 2017-2018 

Cllr Alun 
Mummery   

Cllr Carwyn 
Elias Jones 

Cllr Eric 
Jones  

 
 
 

  

 

Page 430



 

- 28 - 

 

 
APPENDIX 4 

 

A vision for delivering effective scrutiny in Isle of Anglesey County Council  

Vision  

Scrutiny in Anglesey aims to secure better outcomes for citizens and communities and also add to the 

effectiveness of the Council by helping make public services more transparent, inclusive, accountable and 

cost effective.  

Guiding Principles for Scrutiny in Anglesey   

 Scrutiny is characterised by an atmosphere of mutual trust, co-operation and shared responsibility 

for achieving the best outcomes for local communities.  

 

 Non-Executive Members are non-political in carrying out their support and challenge roles.  

 

 Scrutiny activity directly broadens the evidence base upon which decisions and programmes of 

transformational change are predicated by providing a view on how proposals are likely to resonate 

with local communities. 

 

 Non-Executive Members help ensure that a strategic, long term approach is taken when major 

service reconfiguration is being considered by providing constructive challenge in testing 

assumptions, examining risks and challenging how resources are prioritised. 

Our Values  

Overview and Scrutiny in Anglesey…. 

 Is ‘forward and outward’ and proactive rather than ‘inwards and reactive’ 

 Has a clearly defined and valued role in the council's improvement and governance arrangements 

 Is non-political, methodologically sound and incorporates a wide range of evidence and 

perspectives including those from strategic partners, regulators and the public.  

 Is led by councillors who have the training and development opportunities they need to undertake 

their role effectively. 

 Receives effective support from the council’s senior leadership team who ensures that information 

provided to overview and scrutiny is of high quality and is provided in a timely and consistent 

manner.  

 Takes into account concerns expressed at ward level in a non-parochial way when managing its 

forward work programme.   

 Is well-planned, chaired effectively and makes best use of the resources available to it. 

 Is recognised by the executive and senior leadership team as an important council mechanism for 

community engagement, and facilitates greater citizen involvement in governance.  

 Builds trust and positive relationships with a wide variety of internal and external stakeholders.   
 

Page 431



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee / County Council 
 

Date: 26 April 2018 / 15 May 2018 
 

Subject: Annual Report of the Audit & Governance Committee 
2017/18 – Chair’s Report  
 

Head of Service: Marc Jones, Head of Function (Resources) / S151 Officer 
01248 752601 
MarcJones@ynysmon.gov.uk 
 

Report Author: 
 

Marion Pryor, Head of Audit and Risk 
01248 752611 
MarionPryor@ynysmon.gov.uk  
 

Nature and Reason for Reporting: 
The Audit and Governance Committee is required under its terms of reference to prepare a 
report to the Council on its activities during the year. This report provides the necessary 
report to meet this requirement. 
 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1. This report details the activities of the Audit and Governance Committee during 
2017/18. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. That the Audit and Governance Committee endorses the Annual Report of the Audit 
and Governance Committee for 2017/18 prior to its submission to the meeting of 
the County Council on 15 May 2018. 

3. Background Information 

3.1. The Audit and Governance Committee is a statutory Committee of the Council. It is 
a key component of the Council’s governance framework providing independent 
and high level resource to support good governance and strong public financial 
management. 

3.2. The Committee provides, to those charged with governance, independent 
assurance on the adequacy of the governance and risk management frameworks, 
the internal control environment, and the integrity of the financial reporting. By 
overseeing internal and external audit and other regulators, it makes an important 
contribution to ensuring that effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

Page 433

Agenda Item 12.

mailto:MarcJones@ynysmon.gov.uk
mailto:MarionPryor@ynysmon.gov.uk


 

 

4. Governance  

4.1. There is a requirement for Welsh local authorities to undertake an annual review of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and governance arrangements 
with its annual Statement of Accounts.  

4.2. The Council produced an Annual Governance Statement following widespread 
consultation and a review of governance processes in the year. The 2016/17 
Statement was consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework for 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. 

4.3. The Committee received the draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 prior to its review 
by External Audit at its meeting of 28 June 2017. At its meeting of 21 September 
2017, the Committee approved the Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 and 
referred the document to the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive, as 
statutorily required.  

4.4. Other governance documents received during the year included the Annual Report 
of the Senior Information Risk Owner and the Head of Function (Council Business) / 
Monitoring Officer’s Concerns, Complaints and Whistleblowing report for 2016/17, 
which were reported to the meeting of 21 September 2017. 

5. Risk Management 

5.1. The Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 includes a requirement for local 
authorities to appoint a Committee with responsibility to review and assess the risk 
management, internal control and corporate governance arrangements of the 
Council. The Audit and Governance Committee’s terms of reference charge it with 
fulfilling these requirements. 

5.2. From 1 April 2017, the Risk Manager’s line-management transferred to the Head of 
Audit and Risk. Together, they reviewed the Council’s approach to risk 
management, with the Audit and Governance Committee receiving a report of the 
outcome at its meeting on 5 December 2017, along with the Council’s Risk 
Management Policy and Framework.  

5.3. The Committee has continued to support the development of the Risk Management 
framework within the Council during the year and considered the Council’s 
corporate risks on 21 September 2017 and 13 February 2018.  

6. Financial Accounts 

6.1. The Committee accepted and noted the draft pre-audit Statement of Accounts for 
2016/17 at its meeting of 28 June 2017.  

6.2. On 21 September 2017, the Engagement Lead for Financial Audit (Deloitte) 
reported his intention to issue an unqualified opinion on the accounting statements 
in accordance with the statutory deadline, subject to the satisfactory completion of 

Page 434



 

 

three matters set out in his report and the receipt of the Council’s Letter of 
Representation.  

6.3. Consequently, the Committee resolved to recommend acceptance of the 2016/17 
Statement of Accounts to the Full Council.  

7. Treasury Management 

7.1. In accordance with its terms of reference and the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in Public Services (2011), the Committee considered the 
Annual Treasury Management Report for 2016/17 on 25 July 2017.  

7.2. The Committee scrutinised the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
for 2017/18 on 13 February 2018. The Committee forwarded both documents to the 
Executive without further comment. 

7.3. The Committee also received a mid-year report on Treasury Management at its 
meeting of 5 December 2017 to monitor developments and trends. 

7.4. As part of the scrutiny of the above reports, the Committee reviewed the Council’s 
risk exposure and its ability to manage risk in relation to its Treasury Management 
activities. 

8. Internal Audit 

8.1. The Council appointed a new internal Head of Audit and Risk with effect from 1 
April 2017, following the ending of the previous Service Level Agreement with 
Conwy County Borough Council for the management of the internal audit service 
from 1 August 2015.  

8.2. The Committee received the former Audit Manager’s Internal Audit Annual Report 
2016/17 at its meeting of 28 June 2017. The Committee resolved that having 
considered the information presented both verbally and within the documentation, 
the Committee was assured that for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017, the 
Council had satisfactory internal control, risk management and corporate 
governance processes in place to manage and support the achievement of its 
objectives. 

8.3. At its meeting of 28 June 2017, the Committee received the results of the External 
Quality Assessment of the internal audit service, as part of its obligations under the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, where an external assessment must be 
conducted every five years. The Committee noted the that the internal audit service 
‘Generally Conforms’ with the Standards and noted the Head of Audit and Risk’s 
Action Plan developed to address the improvement areas identified.  

8.4. The Committee approved the Internal Audit Charter at its meeting of 21 September 
2017. It included the safeguards to limit impairments of independence or objectivity 
which may be caused by the chief audit executive undertaking non-audit activities, 
namely responsibility for risk management and insurance.  

Page 435



 

 

8.5. The Committee approved the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan for 
2018/19 at its meeting of 13 February 2018, noting the new audit approach to audit 
planning. 

8.6. Throughout the year, the Head of Audit and Risk reported outcomes to each of the 
Committee’s regular meetings as part of the internal audit update report. Progress 
reports also included the progress of services in implementing internal audit 
recommendations and addressing Issues/Risks. 

9. External Audit 

9.1. The Auditor General for Wales is the statutory external auditor of the Council. The 
Auditor General’s role includes examining how the Council manages and spends 
public money, including how it achieves value in the delivery of public services and 
on how well the Council plans for improvement. 

9.2. The Wales Audit Office, on behalf of the Auditor General, undertakes the 
Performance Work. The Performance Lead reported to the 28 June 2017 meeting 
on its work in relation to its Annual Improvement Report 2016/17, including a 
summary of reports issued by other regulators, namely CSSIW, Estyn and the 
Welsh Language Commissioner. The Performance Lead reported that the Council 
was likely to comply with the requirements of the Local Government Measure 
(2009) during 2017/18. 

9.3. Deloitte, on behalf of the Auditor General, undertakes the financial audit work. It 
reported its intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial statements 
for 2016/17 to the 21 September 2017 meeting.   

9.4. The External Audit Annual Letter for 2016/17 along with the notice of the 
certification of the completion of the audit of the 2016/17 accounts was presented to 
the 5 December 2017 meeting for information.  

9.5. The Committee has received and considered regular update reports from the Wales 
Audit Office and Deloitte. This is an important aspect of the Committee’s business 
to ensure that the Council considers all external reports, by either the Audit and 
Governance Committee or one of the Scrutiny Committees, and that it is taking 
appropriate action. 

10. Countering Fraud and Corruption 

10.1. The Committee did not receive any fraud and corruption reports during 2017/18.  

11. Frequency of Meetings 

11.1. The Committee’s terms of reference require it to meet a minimum of four times per 
year. During the year, the Committee met formally on six occasions. 

11.2. The membership and attendance at meetings during 2017/18 is at Appendix A. 

Page 436



 

 

12. Membership 

12.1. The Committee consists of eight members of the Council, which are politically 
balanced, plus a maximum of two co-opted Lay Members appointed by the 
Committee.  

12.2. The two co-opted Lay Members’ tenure ended at the end of May 2017. The 
Committee appointed two new Lay Members, following an external process, with 
effect from June 2017.  

12.3. At its meeting of 31 May 2017, the Committee elected Councillor Peter S Rogers as 
its Chairperson and Councillor Robert Llewelyn Jones as its Vice-Chairperson. 

13. Terms of Reference  

13.1. The Committee should periodically review its terms of reference for 
appropriateness. It last reviewed and approved its terms of reference in February 
2015, with approval granted by the Executive in April and the County Council in 
May 2015. 

13.2. In accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Programme, the terms of 
reference were due to be submitted to the Committee’s meeting in September 
2017. However, due to a delay in publishing updated CIPFA guidance, the 
Committee agreed to postpone the review until the updated guidance is published.   

13.3. It is anticipated that the new guidance will be published during April 2018.  

13.4. Following that, a review of its responsibilities, in particular, in terms of governance, 
will be undertaken.  

14. Effectiveness 

14.1. The Committee has worked within its current terms of reference, which includes the 
requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 in relation to the role 
of the Audit and Governance Committee in monitoring risk management, 
governance and internal control within the Council. 

14.2. Actions raised by the Committee and their resolution are detailed at Appendix B. 

14.3. The Committee’s Forward Work Programme for 2018/19 is detailed at Appendix C. 
This is subject to change following the revision of its Terms of Reference during 
2018/19. 

15. Chair’s Remarks 

15.1. The Chair would like to express his gratitude to the Committee’s Members for their 
attendance and contribution to the work of the Committee during the year. He also 
takes this opportunity to thank the two co-opted Lay Members who came to the end 

Page 437



 

 

of their tenure during the year, for their work during the term of the previous 
Committee. 

15.2. The Chair would also like to express his gratitude to those Council employees who 
have attended and contributed to the meetings and, in particular, also takes this 
opportunity to thank all the staff within the Finance and Internal Audit Services 
whom he has found most helpful. 

15.3. The Chair takes this opportunity to remind the Council of the importance of the work 
of the Committee, which is even more relevant in the current economic situation in 
terms of ensuring that the Council is run in a sound manner and that value for 
money is being obtained. 

15.4. The Committee is committed to continuing to work with Council employees in 
supporting continuing improvements in the Council’s operations in 2017/18. 

 
 
 
COUNCILLOR PETER S ROGERS 
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
24 APRIL 2018 

Page 438



 

 

Appendix A – Frequency of Meetings and Attendance  

 

Members 

Meetings Number 
of 

Meetings 
Attended 

27/04/17 31/05/17 28/06/17 25/07/17 21/09/17 05/12/17 13/02/18 

Cllr Peter S Rogers 
(Chair)  

Cancelled Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 5 / 6 

Cllr Robert Ll. Jones 
(Vice-Chair)  

Cancelled Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 5 / 6 

Cllr Richard Griffiths Cancelled Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 6 / 6 

Cllr G O Jones Cancelled Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 5 / 6 

Cllr Dylan Rees Cancelled Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 5 / 6 

Cllr Alun Roberts Cancelled Yes Apologies Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 / 6 

Cllr Margaret 
Roberts 

Cancelled No Yes Yes No Yes Yes 4 / 6 

Cllr Robin Williams 
 

Cancelled Yes Yes Yes Apologies Yes Yes 5 / 6 

Mrs Sharon Warnes 
(Lay Member) 

Cancelled Yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1 / 1 

Mr Richard Barker 
(Lay Member) 

Cancelled Apologies n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 / 1 

Mr Dilwyn Evans 
(Lay Member) 

n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 / 5 

Mr Jonathan 
Mendoza (Lay 
Member) 

n/a n/a Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 / 5 

Total for 
Committee  

0 8 9 9 8 8 9  

P
age 439



 

 

Appendix B – Progress on Actions Raised by the Committee during 2017/18 

Meeting 

Date 

Raised 

Min. 

Ref. 

Matter Raised Action Required Responsibility 

for Action 

Date 

Action 

Required 

Current Status RAG 

Status 

28/06/17 6 Two Limited 

Assurance Reports 

in relation to the 

Housing 

Maintenance Unit in 

Gaerwen 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

ask the Head of Housing 

Services to attend the 

next Committee in July 

2017 to give an account of 

the service’s response to 

the issues raised.  

Head of Audit 

and Risk / 

Head of 

Housing 

Services 

July 2017 The Housing Technical 

Services Manager and 

the Housing Management 

Unit’s General Manager 

attended the 25 July 2017 

meeting to give an 

account of the work 

undertaken to address the 

issues raised.  

 

28/06/17 6 Outstanding Internal 

Audit 

Recommendations 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

provide the Committee at 

its meeting in September 

2017 with a schedule of all 

outstanding internal audit 

recommendations.  

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

September 

2017 

The Head of Audit and 

Risk provided the 

Committee with a 

schedule of all 

outstanding internal audit 

recommendations at its 

meeting of 21 September 

2017. 

 

28/06/17 6 Limited and Minimal 

Assurance Audit 

Reports 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

provide the Committee 

with reviews resulting in 

Limited or Minimal 

Assurance as and when 

they are issued.  

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

Ongoing Reviews resulting in 

Limited or Minimal 

Assurance have been 

issued to Members as 

and when they have been 

issued. 

 

P
age 440



 

 

Meeting 

Date 

Raised 

Min. 

Ref. 

Matter Raised Action Required Responsibility 

for Action 

Date 

Action 

Required 

Current Status RAG 

Status 

28/06/17 10 Forward Work 

Programme updates 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

update the Forward Work 

Programme in accordance 

with the discussions 

during the meeting. 

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

Ongoing The Forward Work 

Programme is updated 

accordingly at the end of 

every meeting. 

 

25/07/17 3 Internal Audit 

Delivery Plan 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

amend the ‘On Track’ 

column in the table 

showing the progress of 

delivery against the IA 

Operational Plan to 

indicate the Audit 

Committee meeting to 

which the outcome of the 

review is due/likely to be 

reported. 

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

Immediate Action superseded. Full 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 

submitted to each 

meeting, with the 

expected date of the Audit 

Committee meeting to 

which the outcome of the 

review will be reported. 

Internal performance 

measure also established.  

 

21/09/17 3 Threats from 

malicious hacking 

activities 

ICT Service to report back 

to the Committee on the 

Council’s approach to 

dealing with the threat 

from malicious hacking 

activities. 

Head of ICT December 

2017 

The ICT Business 

Transformation Manager 

reported on the Council’s 

approach to dealing with 

the threat from malicious 

hacking activities and 

other forms of cyber-

crime at its meeting of 5 

December 2017.  

 

P
age 441



 

 

Meeting 

Date 

Raised 

Min. 

Ref. 

Matter Raised Action Required Responsibility 

for Action 

Date 

Action 

Required 

Current Status RAG 

Status 

21/09/17 6 Internal Audit of 

School Transport 

Arrangements 

The Internal Audit review 

report in relation to School 

Transport to be referred to 

Scrutiny for its 

examination with the 

recommendation that an 

Action Plan be formulated 

and that the Plan be 

monitored and overseen 

by a project team. The 

Audit Committee to be 

informed of the outcome 

of Scrutiny’s examination 

of the report.  

Committee 

Administration 

Immediate The Corporate Scrutiny 

Committee considered 

this issue at its meeting 

on 31 January 2018. It 

was satisfied overall by 

the progress made 

against the Internal Audit 

Action Plan and by the 

commitment shown by 

both services to complete 

the plan within timescale. 

The Corporate Scrutiny 

Committee had further 

determined that it be 

provided with a progress 

update at its June 2018 

meeting. 

 

21/09/17 6 Delivery dates of 

individual review 

reports in the 

Internal Audit Plan 

Provision to be made in 

the IA Plan to indicate  

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

Immediate As above – date now 

included in the Internal 

Audit Annual Plan. 

 

P
age 442



 

 

Meeting 

Date 

Raised 

Min. 

Ref. 

Matter Raised Action Required Responsibility 

for Action 

Date 

Action 

Required 

Current Status RAG 

Status 

05/12/17 3 Members’ access to 

internal audit reports 

The Chair, Portfolio 

Member for Finance and 

Head of Function 

(Resources) / Section 151 

Officer to meet with the 

Committee’s two Lay 

Members to consider how 

best to enable them to 

have access to the range 

of Internal Audit reports in 

support of their role on the 

Committee.  

Head of 

Function 

(Resources) / 

Section 151 

Officer 

Immediate A meeting was held on 7 

February 2018 between 

the Head of Function 

(Resources) / Section 151 

Officer, the Head of Audit 

and Risk, the Chair of the 

Audit and Governance 

Committee and one of the 

Lay Members to discuss 

the way forward with 

providing internal audit 

reports to the members. It 

was agreed to provide 

more detail in the Internal 

Audit Update and to 

continue providing full 

copies of the individual 

audit reviews with a 

Limited or Minimal 

Assurance.  

 

05/12/17 3 Corporate 

Procurement 

Framework – First 

Follow Up review 

Head of Audit and Risk to 

follow-up on the officer 

response in connection 

with the Corporate 

Procurement Framework 

first follow up review. 

Head of Audit 

and Risk 

April 2018 The Head of Audit and 

Risk will update the 

Committee at its meeting 

of 24 April 2018. 

 

 

P
age 443



 

 

Appendix C – Forward Work Programme 2018/19 

Date Accounts Internal Audit External Audit Treasury 

Management 

Risk 

Management 

Governance Other 

April 2018  Update Report Progress 

Report 

   Election of 

Chairperson 

and Vice-

Chairperson  

Annual Report 

of Committee – 

Chair’s Report 

June 2018 

 

Draft 

Statement of 

Accounts & 

Annual 

Governance 

Statement 

IA Annual 

Report for 

2017/18 

Progress 

Report 

  Annual 

Review of the 

Audit and 

Governance 

Committee’s 

Terms of 

Reference 

 

July 2018  Update Report Progress 

Report 

Treasury 

Management 

Annual Report 

on 2017/18 

Activity 

   

September 

2018 

Recommend 

for Approval of 

Council the 

Statement of 

Accounts and 

Annual 

Update Report 

Outstanding 

Internal Audit 

Receive Report 

on Accounts to 

those charged 

with 

 Annual Review 

of Risk 

Management 

Strategy  

Progress 

made on 

External 

Regulatory 

Reports 

 

P
age 444



 

 

Date Accounts Internal Audit External Audit Treasury 

Management 

Risk 

Management 

Governance Other 

Governance 

Statement 

Recommendati

ons 

Governance 

(ISA 260) 

 

Review of 

Corporate Risk 

Register 

December 

2018 

 Update Report Progress 

Report 

Scrutiny of Mid-

Year Report on 

Treasury 

Management 

Activity in 

2018/19 

 Annual 

Health & 

Safety Report 

Annual Report 

on Fraud and 

Corruption 

Annual Review 

of Audit 

Committee 

Effectiveness & 

Counter Fraud 

Arrangements 

February 

2019 

 Internal Audit 

Strategy and 

Annual Plan 

2019/20 for 

approval 

Update Report 

Progress 

Report 

Treasury 

Management 

Strategy 

2019/20 

including 

Prudential 

Indicators 

Corporate Risk 

Register 

Progress 

made on 

External 

Regulatory 

Reports 

 

 

P
age 445



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 

 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

MEETING: COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

DATE: 15 MAY 2018 
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  Democratic Services Committee – Annual 
Report 2017/18 
 

REPORT BY: Chair of Democratic Services Committee  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 

To report on the Work of the Committee 
during 2017/18 

 
1. Introduction 
 
The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 places a duty on the Council to establish 
a Democratic Services Committee as supported by the Head of Democratic Services.  
 
The main purpose of the Committee is to review the adequacy of provision within the 
Authority in terms of staff, accommodation and other resources to fulfill the duties and 
functions of Democratic Services. Under the Measure, the Committee is obliged to meet 
at least once per annum and to report on such matters to Council. 
 
This is the sixth annual report prepared by the Committee since its establishment in 2012. 
 
Following Council elections in May 2017, 21 Members were re-elected and 9 new 
Members. As part of the Council’s governance arrangements all Members were issued 
with job descriptions covering various roles and responsibilities. In line with past practice 
the Council has issued Ipads to all Members to undertake work and for accessing 
committee and other relevant documents. It is acknowledged that there have been some 
functionality issues with these devices and that Members need timely support and training 
to gain maximum benefit. Ongoing drop in sessions are available to Members on a 
quarterly basis supported by ICT staff. The Democratic Services committee will monitor 
arrangements during the next 12 months.  
 
2. Work Programme of Committee 
 
This report summarises the issues discussed by the Committee during 2016/17 and also 
provides commentary on current status.  
 
In general, the Committee has focused on the following areas: 
 

 Member Development and Training Plans 
 

 Webcasting of meetings 
 

 Independent Remuneration Panel Annual Report  
 

 Wales Charter for Member development and support 
 

Page 447

Agenda Item 13.



  
 

 

 Members Annual Reports 
 

 Welsh Government consultation on Electoral Reform  
 

 Timing of meetings and timetable for 2018 /19  
 
 
The table below summarises the issues discussed at each meeting during the past year. 
 

Date of Committee Subject Current Status 

27/9/2017 
 
 
 
 
 

Consultation on 
electoral reform in 
Local Government  
 
 
 
 

The Committee had an opportunity to 
comment on Welsh Government 
proposals.Welsh Government propose 
changes to electoral voting and 
registration prior to next local 
government elections. 
 

 Training and 
Development Plan  
 

A progress report on the training and 
development plan was considered 
including e-learning. A further update 
was submitted to the committee in 
March 2018. 

 Members annual 
report  

This report summarised information on 
the number of annual reports for 
2016/17 prepared by re-elected 
Members following elections in May 
2017. The report noted that 20 out of 
21, returning Councillors had prepared 
an annual report. 

13/12/17  IRP draft report for 
2018/19 

A summary of proposals was 
presented to the committee. Final 
proposals were presented to the 
committee on 20 March 2018 including 
increases to basic allowance and 
removal of the two tier salary levels for 
executive and committee chairs. A 
separate report will be presented to the 
Council on 15 May, 2018. 
 

 The Wales Charter 
for Member Support 
and Development 
 

The report recommended that the 
Council re apply for the WLGA Charter 
granted to the Council in 2014.This 
included the need to prepare a self-
assessment. A further update was 
provided to the committee in March 
2018 

 Timing of Council 
meetings  

This report dealt with the requirement 
to review the timing of Council 
meetings. The committee 
recommended no change and this was 
accepted by the Council on 28 
February, 2018 

Page 448



  
 

 

20/3/18 Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
for Wales annual 
report 2018/19  
 

Information summarised above  

 Members Annual 
Reports 2017/18 
 
 

This report outlined the timetable for 
preparing annual reports and 
publication of reports on the Council’s 
website by 30 June 2018. Progress is 
currently being monitored via Group 
Leaders meetings 

 Member 
Development and 
Training Plan 
2017/18 

See comments above. A separate 
report on the 2018/19 programme will 
be submitted to Council on 15/5/18. 
Progress on the preparation of 
personal development reviews by 
Councillors is currently being reviewed 
via Group Leaders  

 Member 
development and 
support charter 

Please see comments above. The self-
assessment has not yet been 
submitted and needs to include 
information on progress relating to the 
completion of personal development 
reviews by Councillors. Further 
updates are planned to the committee 
during 2018. 

 Webcasting of 
meetings 

This report summarised information on 
the webcasting of meetings of the 
Council, Executive and Planning and 
Orders committee and statistics since 
2016. The service has recently been re 
tendered for the next 3 years. The 
contract has been awarded to Public-i 

 Schedule of Council 
meetings for 2018/19 

The timetable of meetings was 
confirmed by the committee for 
2018/19 

 
 
 
3.  Recommendation: 
 
 
The County Council is requested to accept the report and note the matters considered by 
the Committee during 2017/18  
 
 
Chair of Democratic Services Committee 
02/05/2018 

Page 449



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1. Minutes
	5. The Leader of the Council's Annual Report for 2017/18
	7. Supplementary Planning Guidance for Wylfa Newydd
	Report - Wylfa Newydd SPG
	Appendix 1 - Wylfa Newydd SPG Representations Report
	Appendix 2 - Wylfa Newydd SPG Focused Changes
	Appendix 3 - Wylfa Newydd SPG
	Appendix 4 - Topic Paper

	8. Wellbeing Plan - Public Services Board
	1.  V3.1  Report - Well-being Plan - MWY amendments accepted
	2. APPENDIX  1 -  Plan -designed format
	3. APPENDIX  2 - Letter

	9. Standards Committee Annual Report 2017/18
	10. Local Resolution Protocol
	Report - Local Resolution Protocol
	Enclosure 1 - LRP
	Enclosure 2 - Local Resolution Protocol

	11. Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2017/18
	Covering report -
	V 2.7 Scrutiny Annual Report 2017-2018_AD_1

	12. Audit Committee Annual Report 2017/18
	13. Democratic Services Committee Annual Report 2017/18

